
 
 

 

 To: Councillor Crockett, Convener; Councillor Milne, Vice-Convener; and Councillors 
Allan, Boulton, Corall, Cormie, Delaney, Finlayson, Grant, Jaffrey, MacGregor, 
McCaig, Jean Morrison MBE, Thomson and Yuill. 
  

 
 

Town House, 
ABERDEEN 29 October 2012 

 
 

ENTERPRISE, PLANNING AND INFRASTRUCTURE 
COMMITTEE 

 
 The Members of the ENTERPRISE, PLANNING AND INFRASTRUCTURE 
COMMITTEE are requested to meet in Council Chamber - Town House on TUESDAY, 6 
NOVEMBER 2012 at 2.00 pm. 
 
Please note that all members of the Council are invited to attend the meeting for 
the presentation at item 1.1 on the agenda. 
  

 
 

JANE G. MACEACHRAN 
 HEAD OF LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC SERVICES 

 
 

B U S I N E S S 
 

1 PRESENTATION   
 

 1.1  Aberdeen Masterplanning Process  (Pages 1 - 12) 
 

2 REQUEST FOR DEPUTATIONS   
 

 2.1  Request for Deputation by Kingswells Community Council in Relation to 
Item 9.1 on the Agenda   
 

3 DETERMINATION OF EXEMPT ITEMS OF BUSINESS   
 

 3.1  Members are Requested to Resolve that any Exempt Business on this 
Agenda be Considered with the Press and Public Excluded.   
 

Public Document Pack



 
 
 

4 MINUTES AND APPOINTMENTS TO OUTSIDE BODIES   
 

 4.1  Minute of Previous Meeting of 11 September 2012  (Pages 13 - 32) 
 

 4.2  Appointments to the North East Scotland Fisheries Development 
Partnership  (Pages 33 - 34) 

  The Partnership acts as an advisory body to the Councils of North East 
Scotland and the industry and provides support to fishing dependent 
communities. 
(5 Members to be appointed). 
 

5 MOTIONS   
 

 5.1  Notice of Motion by Councillor Malone - Referred from Council on 13th 
June 2012  (Pages 35 - 38) 

  “To instruct the Director of Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure to 
support the request by the International School of Aberdeen and install a 
safe pedestrian crossing similar to other crossings on North Deeside Road 
at the entrance of the school. At present there is no safe crossing and 
pupils and community members must negotiate a very busy road” 
 
 

 5.2  Notice of Motion by Councillor Townson - Referred from Council on 13 
June 2012  (Pages 39 - 44) 

  “Council agrees to develop a youth employment strategy for Aberdeen in 
consultation with relevant public and private organisations.” 
 

 5.3  Notice of Motion by Councillor Jennifer Stewart - Referred from Council on 
10th October 2012   

  “That this Council considers the possibility of scheduling future meetings of 
the Development Management Sub Committee so as to avoid meetings 
being held in July, with a suggestion that meetings be held in late June and 
early August instead to assist with meeting performance indicators for 
dealing with planning applications.” 
 

 5.4  Motion by Councillor Yuill - The Glens and Deeside Way (Pictish Way)  
(Pages 45 - 48) 
 

6 PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT AND SERVICE WIDE ISSUES   
 

 6.1  *Delivering Transformational Change in Asset Management and 
Operations Services  (Pages 49 - 52) 

  (Please refer to separate appendix at item 12.1 on the agenda) 
 



 
 
 

7 FINANCE   
 

 7.1  Capital Monitoring - Enterprise, Planning & Infrastructure Projects  (Pages 
53 - 58) 
 

 7.2  2012/13 Revenue Budget Monitoring  (Pages 59 - 70) 
 

8 ENTERPRISE   
 

 8.1  Visit Aberdeen  (Pages 71 - 74) 
  (Please refer to separate appendix at item 12.2 on the agenda) 

 
 8.2  Aberdeen Digital Connectivity  (Pages 75 - 82) 

 
 8.3  International Partnership and Twinning Applications  (Pages 83 - 94) 

 
 8.4  Support for Local Employability Training Providers  (Pages 95 - 98) 

 
9 PLANNING AND SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT   

 
 9.1  West Huxterstone, Kingswells Masterplan  (Pages 99 - 190) 

 
 9.2  Loirston Development Framework  (Pages 191 - 216) 

 
 9.3  Maidencraig Masterplan  (Pages 217 - 238) 

 
 9.4  Adoption of Masterplans, Planning Briefs and Development Framework as 

Supplementary Guidance in Support of the Aberdeen Local Development 
Plan  (Pages 239 - 306) 
 

 9.5  Adoption of Draft Supplementary Guidance to Local Development Plan  
(Pages 307 - 362) 
 

 9.6  Supplementary Guidance: Wind Turbine Development in Aberdeen City  
(Pages 363 - 388) 
 

 9.7  Technical Advice Note: The Repair and Replacement of Windows and 
Doors  (Pages 389 - 424) 
 

 9.8  Aberdeen City and Shire Strategic Development Plan  (Pages 425 - 486) 
 

 9.9  MUSIC Project Update  (Pages 487 - 494) 
 



 
 
 

10 INFRASTRUCTURE   
 

 PROPOSED TRAFFIC ORDERS COMING TO COMMITTEE FOR THE FIRST 
TIME 
 

 10.1  Various Small Scale Traffic Management and Development Associated 
Proposals (New Works)  (Pages 495 - 506) 
 

 TRAFFIC ORDERS AT THE MIDDLE STAGE OF THE PROCEDURE 
 

 10.2  Justice Mill Lane - Traffic Management Proposals -  Initial Statutory 
Consultation  (Pages 507 - 512) 
 

 TRAFFIC ORDERS AT THE LAST STAGE (WHERE THE MAIN STATUTORY 
OBJECTION PERIOD IS OVER) 

 

 10.3  Traffic Orders at the Final Stage of the Statutory Process  (Pages 513 - 
518) 
 

 OTHER INFRASTRUCTURE,  ROADS AND PARKING ISSUES 
 

 10.4  Aberdeen Western Peripheral Route - Advance Works & Services  (Pages 
519 - 522) 

  (Please refer to separate appendix at item 12.3 on the agenda) 
 

 10.5  Strategic and Local Transportation Projects  (Pages 523 - 556) 
 

 10.6  Permit Misuse Policy  (Pages 557 - 562) 
 

 10.7  Garthdee Controlled Parking Area - Permit Changes  (Pages 563 - 566) 
 

 10.8  City Wide Flooding Issues  (Pages 567 - 574) 
 

 10.9  Market Street/ Guild Street Junction - Rationalisation of Turning 
Movements to Improve Capacity  (Pages 575 - 580) 
 

11 COMMITTEE BUSINESS STATEMENT AND MOTIONS LIST   
 

 11.1  Committee Business Statement  (Pages 581 - 602) 
 

 11.2  Motions List  (Pages 603 - 610) 
 



 
 
 

12 ITEMS WHICH THE COMMITTEE MAY WISH TO CONSIDER IN PRIVATE   
 

 12.1  Supplementary Report - Delivering Transformational Change in Asset 
Management & Operations Services (Refer to item 6.1 on the agenda)  
(Pages 611 - 658) 
 

 12.2  Appendix -  Visit Aberdeen Draft Business Plan - Stage Two Executive 
Summary (Refer to item 8.1 on the agenda)  (Pages 659 - 676) 
 

 12.3  Appendix - Aberdeen Western Peripheral Route - Advance Works & 
Services (Refer to item 10.4 on the agenda)  (Pages 677 - 678) 
 

 
Please note that reports marked with an * have implications for agreed Priority Based 

Budget (PBB) options. 
 

Website Address: www.aberdeencity.gov.uk  
 
To access the Information Bulletins for this Committee please use the following link: 
http://committees.aberdeencity.gov.uk/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=13008&path=13004 
 
 
Should you require any further information about this agenda, please contact Mark Masson, 

tel. 522989 or email mmasson@aberdeencity.gov.uk  
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
COMMITTEE    Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure  
 
DATE      6 November 2012  
 
DIRECTOR     Gordon McIntosh 
 
TITLE OF REPORT  Aberdeen Masterplanning Process 
 
REPORT NUMBER:       EPI/12/231 
 
 
1 PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 This report updates the Committee on the principles, and clarifies 

administrative aspects, of the Aberdeen Masterplanning Process, 
adopted as supplementary guidance to the Aberdeen Local 
Development Plan. The Process gives direction as to how masterplans 
will be prepared to guide future development.  The Aberdeen 
Masterplan Process can be viewed at: 
http://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/nmsruntime/saveasdialog.asp?lID=31782&sID=14394 

 
Members please note that the report will be accompanied by a 
presentation at the committee meeting. 
 

2 RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 
2.1 It is recommended that the Committee: 
 

(a) retain the adopted Aberdeen Masterplanning Process; 
(b) note the administrative changes to the community engagement in 

the process namely: 
(i) Action Note to be circulated immediately following public 

meetings; 
(ii) Community councils to be given advance copy of draft 

masterplans a minimum 14 days prior to the relevant 
Committee meeting; 

(iii) Written response from statutory consultees, including 
community councils, to be appended to Committee 
reports following public consultation. 

 
3 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
3.1 Generally developers will meet the cost of preparation of masterplans 

including all consultation and engagement.  On average, the cost of 
preparing a masterplan or development framework for a large area is 
approximately £250,000.  This will vary depending on the complexity 
and scale of the site and generally includes input from design, 

Agenda Item 1.1

Page 1



 

 

planning, transportation, engineering, environmental assessment and 
public relations.  Given the number of masterplans highlighted in the 
Appendix to this report, this represents a potential saving to the City 
Council in excess of £3 million.  This figure could be much higher 
depending on the number of phased masterplans required to support 
development. 

 
3.2 The Masterplanning Process generates proposals that will result in 

efficiencies in the determination of future planning applications related 
to development frameworks and masterplans, leading to a reduction in 
Council staff time to assess future detailed proposals. 

 
4 OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 There are no known property, legal or equipment implications arising 

from this report. 
 
4.2 Masterplanning reduces the risk of piecemeal and inappropriate 

development in the City.  Mixed use development and the efficient use 
of land will contribute towards the Council’s aim of promoting 
sustainable development. 

 
4.3 Masterplanning contributes to efficiencies in determining future 

planning applications. By encouraging acceptable forms and uses of 
new development to be agreed publicly, it allows more informed 
decision making to be made earlier, saving time and resources for staff, 
applicants and the public.  

 
4.4 In accordance with the Local Development Plan, Appendix 4, The 

Action Programme and the Infrastructure and Developer Contributions 
Manual, masterplans explicitly reference how development will address 
requirements for cumulative and local transport infrastructure, public 
transport routes and walking and cycle paths as far as they are known 
at the early stages of planning. 

 
4.5 A Strategic Environmental Assessment has been undertaken on all 

masterplan sites as identified in the Aberdeen Local Development Plan 
as part of the preparation for the proposed Aberdeen Local 
Development Plan.  

 
5 BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 
 
5.1 The Aberdeen Masterplanning Process has been prepared as a guide 

to developing and delivering masterplans in Aberdeen City. The 
adopted Aberdeen Local Development Plan emphasises the need to 
masterplan all major sites and identifies 11 Masterplan Zones in the 
City.  Developers are expected to prepare Masterplans for each zone 
and coordinate the planning and delivery of associated infrastructure 
requirements.  Reflecting current national design guidance, the 
Process seeks to enable the delivery of sustainable places.  

Page 2



 

 

 
5.2 The Masterplan Process identifies the need to consider an integrated 

approach to site planning, urban design, sustainable transport, ecology, 
landscaping and community involvement. There is also a recognised 
need to ensure quality of design for new developments in Aberdeen, 
from the largest and most significant areas of change to smaller 
individual sites.  The Process identifies 3 main types of supplementary 
guidance:  Development Frameworks, Masterplans and Planning Briefs 

 
• Development Frameworks set out a baseline, or two dimensional, 

spatial framework for the way in which large areas, or areas in 
multiple ownership, are to be developed. 

 
• Masterplans present detailed guidance, in three dimensions, on 

design matters, specific topics, or land uses for sites in single 
ownership, or for buildings or external spaces within a larger 
development framework.  

 
• Planning Briefs concentrate on site specific guidance highlighting 

planning policies, constraints and opportunities. A planning brief 
informs any planning application made for the site.  Planning Briefs 
can range from small sites in conservation areas up to the scale of 
a masterplan.  

 
5.3 For some sites a basic development framework may require to be 

developed into a more detailed three dimensional Masterplan, 
describing and illustrating the proposed urban form for each phase of 
development. The initial sites where this is expected are identified by 
the Local Development Plan. Masterplans may include design codes 
and will include an estimated timeline for delivery as well as a response 
to the ALDP Action Programme and Infrastructure Requirements. 

 
5.4 All Development Frameworks and Masterplans are expected to be 

adopted as supplementary guidance to the Aberdeen Local 
Development Plan. 

 
5.5 Each Development Framework, Masterplan and Planning Brief must 

address the following 4 key themes, although the level of detail will be 
dependent on the scale and complexity of the proposed development 
site. 

• Context 
This includes a detailed description and appraisal of the site and 
surrounding area, planning policy review and options appraisal 
combined with a vision statement outlining the aims and objectives 
of what the supplementary guidance will achieve. 
 
• Identity 
This details the design principles of the masterplan that will be used 
to inform the more detailed design stages including settlement 

Page 3



 

 

pattern, street layout, open spaces, landscape, building scale and 
massing, infrastructure and services.  
 
• Connection 
This includes accessibility within the site, concentrating on 
pedestrian, cycle, public transport and general access, external 
links and the infrastructure necessary to support these connections. 

 
• Communication 
It is essential that a communication and engagement plan is 
developed and agreed at inception to ensure appropriate levels of 
community involvement can be maintained throughout masterplan 
preparation. 
 

5.6 All development frameworks and masterplans are required to include a 
Delivery Strategy, to which all applicants will have to comply, specifying 
how the key strategic elements of infrastructure will be delivered for the 
entire development framework or masterplan site. These elements will 
be site specific but would normally include transportation infrastructure 
(footpaths, cycle ways, roads), public transport provision, education 
provision, community facilities, strategic open space etc. 

 
The strategy will be expected to link infrastructure provision to a 
Phasing Plan for the entire site and to clearly identify and justify 
thresholds and trigger points for the delivery of these key strategic 
facilities (based, for instance, on the capacity of the road network 
identified in an agreed transportation assessment or the capacity of 
local schools based on advice from the Council’s education service) 
 
Where sites are in multiple ownership it will obviously be essential that 
evidence is provided to show that all landowners and prospective 
developers work together to agree the Delivery Strategy. 
 

5.7 In order to prevent piecemeal development and problems with delivery 
of key infrastructure for development framework or masterplan sites it 
is expected that an application for planning permission in principle or 
detailed planning permission for the entire site based on the 
development framework or masterplan will be submitted in advance of 
any other applications for development of the site. This application and 
its associated legal agreement will be the mechanism for controlling 
development and infrastructure delivery for the site as a whole. 

 
5.8 All planning applications for national or major development must 

comply with the Pre-Application Consultation (PAC) process outlined in 
the Planning etc (Scotland) Act 2006. If PAC is required, applicants 
must submit a Proposal of Application Notice at least 12 weeks prior to 
the submission of the planning application. As there is no upper time 
limit for consultation, it is recommended that Notice be submitted early 
to coincide with the masterplanning process to enable all engagement 
to contribute to the consultation process and avoid duplication. 

Page 4



 

 

 
5.9 Methods of engagement will vary according to the scale, complexity 

and nature of the proposed development. The engagement process will 
include, but not be exclusive to, the following: 

 
Elected Members  
Elected Members represent constituents in the community, have 
detailed knowledge of issues affecting their wards and should be 
involved in the Process. This need not continue beyond information 
gathering and should not prejudice any Member’s position in 
determining future planning applications.  
Transport  
Roads authorities, public transport operators (including bus and rail), 
NESTRANS and Transport Scotland must be involved as necessary 
throughout the development of the proposal.  
Agencies  
Scottish Environmental Protection Agency, Historic Scotland, Scottish 
Natural Heritage or other statutory or relevant consultees as 
appropriate will be involved in the early stages of planning to determine 
key issues. In addition, utilities, NHS Grampian, Grampian Police 
Architectural Liaison Officer, emergency and other services, should 
also be consulted.  
Community  
Local communities, community councils and other groups must be 
actively engaged throughout the Masterplan process.  
Other  
Planning Obligations Officer. 
Landowners and tenants affected by proposals.  

 
5.10 The minimum administration of the masterplanning process itself can 

be summarised as follows: 
 

Task 
 

Responsibility 
Identify and allocate sites to be masterplanned 
through the Local Development Plan 

ACC 
Scope of work for masterplan Developer/ACC 
Engagement at inception to establish background 
information and identify issues; 

Developer 
Public meeting, presentation, workshop or 
exhibition as appropriate to confirm issues and 
review initial design options and concepts; 

Developer 

Develop initial design concepts with Masterplan 
team 

Developer/ACC 
Second public meeting, presentation, workshop or 
exhibition as appropriate to confirm design 
concepts;  

Developer 

Review and update draft masterplan 
This includes detailed scrutiny and analysis of 
proposals by officers, co-ordinated by the 

ACC/Developer 

Page 5



 

 

Masterplan team. 
Informal submission of final draft masterplan to 
community councils a minimum of 14 days prior to 
the Committee meeting; 

ACC 

Report to Enterprise Planning and Infrastructure 
Committee for development frameworks and single 
masterplans (as strategic documents), or  
Report to Development Management Sub-
Committee for masterplan phases as identified in 
an approved development framework and planning 
briefs (as technical documents); 
All documents to act as interim planning advice 
(see definitions below) 

ACC 

Public consultation on final draft as interim 
planning advice approved by the relevant 
Committee  

ACC 

Report to relevant committee on the results of that 
public consultation 

ACC 
Submission to Scottish Ministers for approval to 
adopt as supplementary guidance (see definition 
below) to the development plan 

ACC 

 
5.11 Definitions 

‘Interim Planning Advice’ – this specifies that the Development 
Framework, Masterplan or Planning Brief is in the public domain and 
available for the purposes of a formal City-wide consultation.  As such it 
becomes a material consideration in the determination of any planning 
application.  The duration of consultation will typically be 4 weeks, 
given that public engagement has taken place throughout the 
preparation of the proposals.  This allows responses to be collated and 
reported back in the next committee cycle. 

 
5.12 ‘Supplementary Guidance’ (SG) – this is adopted and issued by a 

planning authority in connection with a Local Development Plan, as a 
result any such guidance will form part of the Development Plan.  Any 
masterplan seeking adoption as supplementary guidance to the 
development plan, which applies to all of those in Aberdeen City, must 
accord with the requirements of the Planning etc. (Scotland) Act 2006.  
In essence all development frameworks, masterplans and planning 
briefs must be subject to a formal consultation period pending 
committee approval and prior to submission to the Scottish 
Government for consideration to adopt as supplementary guidance to 
the development plan.  Before adoption, the SG must be publicised and 
a period for representations to be made specified, this includes the 
targeting of key consultees and stakeholders who may want the 
opportunity to comment.  Following the specified consultation period 
and as a result of comments received, relevant changes will be made 
to the final document before reporting back to committee and 
subsequent submission to Scottish Ministers.  After 28 days have 

Page 6



 

 

elapsed, the authority may then adopt the guidance unless Scottish 
Ministers direct otherwise. 

 
5.13 Throughout each stage detailed in section 5.8 above, the developer 

and their agents are expected to work with input from appropriate 
officers in the City Council and the Planning Obligations Officer, co-
ordinated by the Masterplanning Design and Conservation Team.  

 
5.14 Appendix 1 to this report highlights the development frameworks and 

masterplans and their status as supplementary guidance for 
information.  Appendix 2 to this report outlines the Actions and 
expected level of detail from supplementary guidance in the context of 
the whole planning process. 

 
5.15 We place high value on early engagement in the planning process.  As 

such, it is much more constructive to engage with communities early on 
and ensure that issues are addressed prior to completion of 
masterplans.  As part of the actual masterplanning process, an Action 
Note will be published by the developer or their agents following every 
public meeting and circulated between the developer, community 
council and City Council to ensure consistency of message and reduce 
the chance of any misunderstanding between parties. 

 
5.16 Although there is no statutory obligation to consult with community 

councils prior to committee reporting, it is current practice to circulate 
masterplans to community councils prior to the relevant Committee 
meeting for information on what will be made public during the 
consultation process.  This ensures awareness and understanding of 
the content of the finalised draft document. Given that community 
councils and other stakeholders views have been considered and 
addressed where appropriate during the preparation of the masterplan, 
this will be formalised to a minimum 14 day period prior to the 
committee meeting to ensure consistency in all masterplans.  It does 
not supersede the statutory public consultation, during which the 
community councils’ formal views, along with other stakeholders will be 
considered. 

 
5.17 Following statutory consultation, in the second report to Committee, we 

will include written responses to the consultation, including those from 
community councils, with the report, in addition to a summary of 
general issues and our responses to them.  

 
6 IMPACT 
 
6.1 The proposal contributes to the Scottish Government Priorities, in 

particular safer and stronger – improved opportunities and quality of 
life, and greener – improving the built environment and sustainable use 
of our natural resources.  

 

Page 7



 

 

6.2 The proposal contributes to the following Single Outcome Priorities: 1 – 
We live in a Scotland that is the most attractive place for doing 
business in Europe; 2 – we realise our full economic potential with 
more and better employment opportunities for our people; 10. We live 
in well-designed, sustainable places where we are able to access the 
amenities and services we need; 12 – We value and enjoy our built and 
natural environment and protect and enhance it for future generations. 

 
6.3 The report contributes to the 5 Year Business Plan in terms of objective 

– Communication and Community Engagement; sharing our plans and 
aspirations for the city, – delivering an up-to-date plan, – facilitating 
new development projects to improve Aberdeen’s living environment 
and, – support open space initiatives. 

 
6.4 The report contributes towards the Aberdeen City Council 

Administrations vision for Aberdeen – The Smarter City: 2012 – 2017, 
particularly creating a City which is a great place to live, bring up a 
family, do business and visit. It specifically contributes to the follows 
objectives: Governance – encouraging citizens to participate in design 
and development; Living – improving opportunities for physical activity; 
Environment – energy efficient design and construction, attractive 
streetscapes and access to green space; Economy – improve access 
to range of affordable housing; Mobility – encourage cycling, walking 
and promoting a sustainable transport system which reduce carbon 
emissions. 

 
6.5 The report is consistent with the Council’s Corporate Plan in particular 

with regard to delivering high levels of design from all development, 
maintaining an up-to-date planning framework, sustainable 
development and open space provision.  

 
6.6 The report is consistent with the Planning and Sustainable Service 

Plan, in particular engaging the community in the planning process, 
and the delivery of masterplans/development frameworks in line with 
The Aberdeen Masterplanning Process.  

 
6.7 An Equalities and Human Rights Impact Assessment has been 

prepared. In summary, many of the aims of the proposal will have 
positive benefits, including:  

� encouraging effective public engagement at the earliest 
opportunity in the planning process; 

� ensuring that this engagement continues throughout; 
� detailing infrastructure provision where appropriate including 

transportation, education, utilities, affordable housing; and 
� encouraging walkable neighbourhoods and access to open 

space which will have long term health benefits. 
 

Page 8



 

 

7 BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
7.1 Aberdeen Local Development Plan 2012 

http://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/Planning/ldp/pla_local_development_pl
an.asp 
 

7.2 Aberdeen Masterplanning Process  
http://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/nmsruntime/saveasdialog.asp?lID=317
82&sID=14394 
 

8 REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS 
 

Sandy Beattie 
Team Leader – Masterplanning, Design and Conservation 
� 01224 (52) 2155 
� sbeattie@aberdeencity.gov.uk 
 

Page 9



 

 

Appendix 1 
Masterplans  
 

Site/Area Type Status 
 
Masterplan Zone 1: Dubford and Murcar 
(OP2) Murcar Development Framework 

(requires an update) 
approved 

(OP25) Dubford  
 

Development Framework approved* 
 
Masterplan Zone 2: Grandhome 
(OP12) Grandhome  
 

Development Framework 
(further phased Masterplans to 
follow) 

ongoing 

 
Masterplan Zone 3: Stoneywood 
(OP24) Stoneywood  
 

Development Framework and 
Masterplan 
 

approved+ 

 
Masterplan Zone 4: Newhills Expansion and Dyce Drive 
(OP26) Craibstone North Development Framework 

(further phased Masterplans to 
follow)  

ongoing 
(OP28) Rowett North   
(OP29) Craibstone South  
(OP30) Rowett South  
(OP31) Greenferns Landward 
 

 
 
Masterplan Zone 5: Greenferns 
(OP45) Greenferns 
 

Development Framework and 
Phase 1 Masterplan 
(further phased Masterplans to 
follow) 

approved* 

 
Masterplan Zone 6: Maidencraig 
(OP43) Maidencraig South East Masterplan pending 
(OP44) Maidencraig North East 
 

 
 
Masterplan Zone 7: Kingswells 
(OP40) West Hatton and Home 
Farm (Prime 4) 

Development Framework and 
Phase 1 Masterplan 

approved* 
(OP40) Phase 2 and 3 Masterplan approved* 
 (further phased Masterplans to 

follow) 
 

(OP42) West Huxterstone  
 

pending 
 
Masterplan Zone 8: Countesswells 
(OP58) Countesswells 
 

Development Framework and 
Phase 1 Masterplan 
(further phased Masterplans to 

pending 

Page 10



 

 

follow) 
 
Masterplan Zone 9: Friarsfield 
(OP51) Friarsfield 
 

Development Framework approved+ 
 
Masterplan Zone 10: Oldfold Farm 
(OP62) Oldfold Farm Masterplan approved+ 
 
Masterplan Zone 11: Loirston 
(OP77) Loirston Development Framework 

(phased Masterplans to follow) 
pending 

(OP78) Charleston  
 
Other Masterplans 
Aberdeen City Centre Development Framework adopted 
Aberdeen Harbour Development Framework approved* 
Bon Accord Quarter Masterplan adopted 
Cove Masterplan approved* 
Former Davidson’s Mill, 
Bucksburn 

Development Framework approved+ 

Phase 1 Masterplan approved+ 
(further phased Masterplans to 
follow) 

 
Friarsfield  Development Framework approved+ 
Foresterhill  Development Framework approved* 
North Garthdee Farm (land at) Planning Brief approved+ 
RGU Garthdee Development Framework approved+ 

RGU City Centre Campus Planning Brief approved+ 
   
Future Masterplans 
AECC/Murcar   
North Dee/South Dee   
   
   

 

 Approved:   interim planning advice awaiting adoption 
* indicates subject to Committee approval to submit to 
Scottish Ministers 
+ indicates screening results to be submitted prior to 
submission to Scottish Ministers 

Adopted:  endorsed by the Scottish Government and adopted as 
supplementary guidance 

Pending:  awaiting decision from the 6 November EP+I Committee 

Page 11



 

 

Appendix 2: Actions and expected level of detail 
 Development Plan Supplementary Guidance Applications 
stage Aberdeen City and 

Shire Structure Plan  
(to be Strategic 
Development Plan) 

Aberdeen Local 
Development Plan 

Development 
Framework 

Masterplan Planning Permission in 
Principle 

Detailed Planning 
Application or Matters 
Specified in Conditions 

consultation 11 weeks for finalised 
draft plan 

8 weeks for Main Issues 
Report, 
16 weeks for Proposed 
Plan. 

Engagement as detailed in 5.10 in the main 
report above, ongoing throughout masterplan 
process, and formal 4 week statutory 
consultation.  

28 days or as otherwise agreed in any processing 
agreement for statutory consultees 
21 days neighbour notification  

level of 
information 

Housing and 
employment land 
allocation 
 

Site analysis, 
identification and 
allocation in accordance 
with Structure Plan 

Design layout 
principles, landscape 
and visual impact 
assessment, use mix 
identified. 

Detailed design 
layout including 3 
dimensions 
Landscape and visual 
impact assessment. 
Ecological impact as 
necessary. 

Supported by 
development framework 
and/or masterplan 

Further detailed 
building design, 
development layout, 
landscape proposals 
etc. 
 

transport 
study 

Cumulative Impact 
Assessment 
Strategic Transport 
Fund (STF) arising from 
that 

Accessibility criteria to 
inform allocations 
Action Plan – Indicative 
local mitigation for each 
masterplan area  
Infrastructure and 
Developer Contributions 
Manual (including STF) 

High level transport assessment 
Reference to STF contribution 
Delivery response to Action Plan and 
Infrastructure + Developer Contributions Manual 
Indicative phasing and trigger points 

Formal detailed statutory Transport Assessment 
Roads Construction Consent 
Section 75 Legal Agreement including Planning 
Obligations such as transport, affordable housing, 
community facilities, education, core path etc 
 

level of 
information 

Major infrastructure 
requirements identified. 

Major and Local 
infrastructure 
requirements identified. 

Principles of junction 
strategy, indicative 
layout street layout, 
development block 
structure, key external 
connections. 

Building layout, 
details of street and 
principles of junction 
strategy, transport 
solutions for all 
modes, street types, 
junction location. 

Supported by development framework and/or 
masterplan. 
Significant level of detail to define impact 
mitigation and movement within and outwith the 
area. 

environment Strategic Environmental Assessment Environmental assessment screening and/or 
scoping opinion 

Environmental Assessment if required 
note The above is indicative only and can be supplemented with Drainage, Flood Risk Assessment, Habitats Regulation Assessment, or any other assessments 

as necessary depending on the site characteristics or location. For Supplementary Guidance, an agreed scope of work will be prepared between ACC and 
the developer.  For major applications processing agreement is undertaken between ACC, the developer and statutory consultees. 

 

P
age 12



 
 
 
 

ENTERPRISE, PLANNING AND INFRASTRUCTURE COMMITTEE 
 
 
 
 

ABERDEEN, 11 September, 2012.   Minute of Meeting of the ENTERPRISE, 
PLANNING AND INFRASTRUCTURE COMMITTEE.  Present:- Councillor 
Crockett, Convener;  Councillor Milne, Vice-Convener;  and Councillors Allan, 
Boulton, Cameron (as substitute for Councillor McCaig), Corall, Cormie, 
Delaney, Finlayson, Grant, Jaffrey, MacGregor, Jean Morrison MBE, Thomson 
and Yuill; Councillor Stewart (for article 7), Councillor Greig (for article 11) and 
Councillor Townson (for article 5). 
 
 

The agenda and reports associated with this minute can be found at:- 
http://committees.aberdeencity.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=140&MId=2522&Ver=4  
 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
1. The Head of Service for Planning and Sustainable Development provided details 
in relation to two Scottish awards received by the service, namely the Trinity Group for 
Service Quality and a commendation for the Local Development Plan for Quality in 
Development Planning. 
 
The Convener congratulated Jane Forbes, Planner for being nominated by the RTPI 
APC (Royal Town Planning Institute – Assessment of Professional Competence) 
Assessors as one of the top ten candidates for 2012. 
 
 
DETERMINATION OF EXEMPT ITEMS OF BUSINESS  
 
2. Prior to considering the matters before the Committee, the Committee resolved 
in terms of Section 50(A)(4) of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973, to exclude 
the press and public from the meeting for article 38 so as to avoid disclosure of exempt 
information of the Class described in paragraphs 6, 9 and 10 of Schedule 7(A) to the 
Act.    
 
 
MINUTE OF PREVIOUS MEETING OF 31 MAY, 2012 
 
3. The Committee had before it the minute of its previous meeting of 31 May, 2012. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to approve the minute. 
 
 
SPEED LIMIT REVIEW – MOTION BY FORMER COUNCILLOR FARQUHARSON – 
EPI/12/182 
 
4. With reference to article 15 of the minute of its meeting of 31 January, 2012, the 
Committee had before it a further report by the Director of Enterprise, Planning and 

Agenda Item 4.1

Page 13



  
 
 

ENTERPRISE, PLANNING AND INFRASTRUCTURE COMMITTEE 
 

11 September, 2012 
 
 
 
 
Infrastructure (a) regarding the motion submitted by former Councillor Farquharson 
which had requested that officers explore the possibility of changing the whole structure 
of traffic speed controls within the City of Aberdeen; and (b) providing information on (1) 
the blanket city wide 20mph for residential uses implemented by Portsmouth Council; 
(2) traffic controls implemented by other comparable cities; and (3) the prosecution 
rates for motorists exceeding the existing 20mph speed limit in the city.  
 
The report recommended:- 
that the Committee –  
(a) note the content of the report and that officers have undertaken the review of 
 speed limits in line with Scottish Government guidance; 
(b) approve the outcomes of the speed limit review as detailed in the report:- 
 (i) A93 from Bieldside to Milltimber possible reduction of speed limit from 
  40mph to 30mph; 
 (ii) B997 from The Parkway to just north of Dubford Road, reduction in speed 
  limit from 40mph to 30mph; 
(c) Instruct the appropriate officers to commence the necessary legal procedures of 
 preliminary statutory consultation for the traffic regulation orders required as 
 described in the report. If no significant objections are received, then progress 
 with the public advertisement and report the results to a future meeting of this 
 Committee; and 
(d) Agree that given the findings of the review no further action is required in regard 
 to the Notice of Motion by former Councillor Farquharson. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) to approve recommendations (a), (b) and (c); 
(ii) to report back on the feasibility and costs for converting existing 20’s Plenty 
 Zone speed limits to mandatory 20mph speed limits; and 
(iii) to report back on reducing the speed limit on (1) the A944 city boundary at 

Westhill to Hazlehead from 50mph to 40mph, including the possible introduction 
of fixed speed cameras for enforcement and all costings associated with the 
proposal, consulting with Aberdeenshire Council in the production of this report; 
and (2) Skene Road from 50mph to 40mph as a result of the West Huxterstone, 
Kingswells development, including all associated costings. 

 
 
MOTION BY COUNCILLOR TOWNSON – YOUTH EMPLOYMENT STRATEGY 
 
5. In terms of Standing Order 21, the Committee had before it the following motion 
by Councillor Townson which had been referred from Council at its meeting on 13 June, 
2012:- 

“Council agrees to develop a youth employment strategy for Aberdeen in 
consultation with relevant public and private organisations” 

 
The Committee resolved:- 
that officers be instructed to submit a report to the Committee on this matter. 

Page 14



  
 
 

ENTERPRISE, PLANNING AND INFRASTRUCTURE COMMITTEE 
 

11 September, 2012 
 
 
 
 
MOTION BY COUNCILLOR MALONE – PEDESTRIAN CROSSING AT ENTRANCE 
TO INTERNATIONAL SCHOOL OF ABERDEEN 
 
6. In terms of Standing Order 21, the Committee had before it the following motion 
by Councillor Malone which had been referred from Council at its meeting on 13 June, 
2012:- 

“ To instruct the Director of Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure to support the 
request by the International School of Aberdeen and install a safe pedestrian 
crossing similar to other crossings on North Deeside Road at the entrance of the 
school. At present there is no safe crossing and pupils and community members 
must negotiate a very busy road” 

 
The Committee resolved:- 
to defer consideration of this item until the next meeting of the Committee in terms of 
Standing Order 21(4). 
 
 
MOTION BY COUNCILLOR JENNIFER STEWART – ON-STREET SUNDAY 
PARKING CHARGES 
 
7. In terms of Standing Order 21, the Committee had before it the following motion 
by Councillor Jennifer Stewart which had been referred from Council at its meeting on 
22 August, 2012:- 

“Council instructs officers to report on the feasibility and implications of 
removing/ending on street Sunday parking charges” 

 
Councillor Jennifer Stewart was in attendance and formally moved her motion and 
explained the rationale behind her request. 
  
The Committee resolved:- 
that officers be instructed to submit a report to the Committee on this matter. 
 
 
MOTION BY COUNCILLOR YUILL – PROVISION OF MATERIALS AND 
EQUIPMENT TO UNDERTAKE SNOW CLEARING  
 
8. In terms of Standing Order 21, the Committee had before it the following motion 
by Councillor Yuill which had been referred from Council at its meeting on 22 August, 
2012:- 

“That this Council agree to instruct officers to report to the appropriate 
Committee on the feasibility of providing local communities with the materials 
and equipment necessary to undertake snow clearing and gritting and that this 
report should seek to include information about such schemes operating 
elsewhere in Scotland and the UK.” 
 
 

Page 15



  
 
 

ENTERPRISE, PLANNING AND INFRASTRUCTURE COMMITTEE 
 

11 September, 2012 
 
 
 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
that officers be instructed to submit a report to the Committee on this matter. 
 
 
MOTION BY COUNCILLORS YUILL, DELANEY AND MALONE – CHANGE TO THE 
REGULATORY REGIME FOR BUS SERVICES 
 
9. In terms of Standing Order 21, the Committee had before it the following joint 
motion by Councillors Yuill, Delaney and Malone which had been referred from Council 
at its meeting on 22 August, 2012:- 

“That this Council agrees to write to the Scottish Government and Aberdeen’s 
MSP’s calling for a change in the regulatory regime for bus operators providing 
scheduled public services to introduce a ‘public service obligation’ which would 
require any bus operator providing more than 50% of the bus services in a 
particular local authority area to provide a basic level of bus service (including in 
evenings and at weekends) to communities across that local authority area.” 
 

The Committee resolved:- 
that officers be instructed to submit a report to the Committee on this matter. 
 
 
MOTION BY COUNCILLOR YUILL – BUS SERVICES TO AIRYHALL  
 
10. In terms of Standing Order 21, the Committee had before it the following motion 
by Councillor Yuill which had been referred from Council at its meeting on 22 August, 
2012:- 

“That this Council (1) expresses concern at the impact the withdrawal of evening 
bus services to Airyhall will have on residents of that community, including 
increased social isolation for some; and (2) instructs officers to report to the 
relevant Committee on the feasibility and likely cost of introducing a City Council 
supported evening bus service to Airyhall and to further report on options for 
funding such a supported service.” 

 
The Committee resolved:- 
that officers be instructed to submit a report to the Committee on this matter. 
 
 
MOTION BY COUNCILLOR GREIG – BUS SERVICES TO SEAFIELD AND 
CRAIGIEBUCKLER  
 
11. In terms of Standing Order 21, the Committee had before it the following motion 
by Councillor Greig which had been referred from Council at its meeting on 22 August, 
2012:- 

“That the Council produces a report on identifying funding sources for the bus 
services which are scheduled for withdrawal from Seafield and Craigiebuckler.” 

 
Page 16



  
 
 

ENTERPRISE, PLANNING AND INFRASTRUCTURE COMMITTEE 
 

11 September, 2012 
 
 
 
 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
that officers be instructed to submit a report to the Committee on this matter. 
 
 
MOTION BY COUNCILLOR DELANEY – PARK AND RIDE SERVICES FROM 
KINGSWELLS  
 
12. In terms of Standing Order 12(1), the Committee had before it a Notice of Motion 
by Councillor Delaney which had been referred from Council at its meeting on 22 
August, 2012. 
  
Councillor Delaney, seconded by Councillor Yuill formally moved his motion in the 
following terms:- 

That this Council (1) deplores First Aberdeen’s decision to terminate the Park 
and Ride service from Kingswells at Aberdeen Royal Infirmary; (2) instructs 
officers to seek a meeting with First Aberdeen to emphasise the need for 
effective Park and Ride services in order to reduce congestion caused by 
commuter traffic and their role in achieving this; and (3) instructs the Chief 
Executive to seek a meeting with the Transport Minister and Group Leaders to 
discuss recent reductions in bus frequencies across the city and First 
Aberdeen’s failure to deliver on local and national transportation policies in 
Aberdeen. 

 
The Convener, seconded by the Vice Convener moved as an amendment:- 

That this Council (1) regrets First Aberdeen’s decision to terminate the Park & 
Ride service from Kingswells at Aberdeen Royal Infirmary; (2) instructs officers 
to seek a meeting with First Aberdeen to emphasise the need for effective Park 
& Ride services in order to reduce congestion caused by commuter traffic and 
their role in achieving this; and (3) instructs the Chief Executive to seek a 
meeting with the Transport Minister and Group Leaders to discuss recent 
reductions in bus frequencies across the city. 

 
On a division, there voted:- for the motion (2) – Councillors Delaney and Yuill; for the 
amendment (13) – the Convener, the Vice Convener and Councillors Allan, Boulton, 
Cameron, Corall, Cormie, Finlayson, Grant, Jaffrey, MacGregor, Jean Morrison MBE 
and Thomson. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to adopt the amendment outlined above. 
 
 
2012/13 REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING – EPI/12/184 
 
13. The Committee had before it a joint report by the Director of Enterprise, Planning 
and Infrastructure and the Head of Finance, which highlighted the current year revenue 

Page 17



  
 
 

ENTERPRISE, PLANNING AND INFRASTRUCTURE COMMITTEE 
 

11 September, 2012 
 
 
 
 
budget performance to date along with forecast outturns for the services which related 
to the Committee and advised on any areas of risk and management action. 
 
The report recommended:- 
that the Committee –  
(a) note this report on the performance to date and the forecast outturn and the 
 information on risks and management action that is contained therein; 
(b) approve the virement proposals detailed within Appendix A;  
(c) instruct that officers continue to review budget performance and report on 
 Service strategies as required to ensure a balanced budget; and 
(d) instructs officers to report, in due course, on the actual outturn compared to 
 budget following completion of the 2012/13 financial statements. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) to approve the recommendations; and 
(ii) that officers report back to the Committee on the feasibility of utilising the 
 underspend within the budget for road, pavement and street lighting repairs. 
 
 
CAPITAL MONITORING – ENTERPRISE, PLANNING AND INFRASTRUCTURE 
PROJECTS – EPI/12/175 
 
14. The Committee had before it a joint report by the Director of Enterprise, Planning 
and Infrastructure and the Head of Finance, which provided an update on the capital 
spend to date for the Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure projects included within 
the Non-Housing Capital Programme. 
 
The report recommended:- 
that the Committee note the current position. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to approve the recommendation. 
 
 
TWINNING AND INTERNATIONAL PARTNERSHIPS – EPI/12/153 
 
15. With reference to article 20 of the minute of its previous meeting of 31 May, 
2012, the Committee had before it for consideration a report by the Director of 
Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure which sought approval of applications for 
financial assistance from the International Twinning Budget 2012/13. 
 
The report recommended:- 
that the Committee approve the following applications –  
(a) £2,500 towards the participation of four delegates from Aberdeen to go to 

Regensburg as part of their Photo Symposium 2012, 27th to 30th September 
2012; 

Page 18



  
 
 

ENTERPRISE, PLANNING AND INFRASTRUCTURE COMMITTEE 
 

11 September, 2012 
 
 
 
 
(b)  £2,200 maximum contribution towards the visit of four delegates from Clermont-

 Ferrand to Aberdeen with the purpose of extending and building on business, 
 economic, educational and sport links, 22nd-25th October 2012; 

(c)  £1,925 maximum towards the visit of a group of Head Teachers and the Head of 
 Education at Aberdeen City to Stavanger Education Department to initiate 
 discussion on twinning projects between the two cities, 26th to 27th September 
 2012;   

(d)  £630 grant towards the visit of the International Partnerships Officer to Gomel to 
 represent Aberdeen City Council, accompany 21st Aberdeen Scouts and to 
 attend meetings at Gomel City Council, 8th-15th October 2012; 

(e)  £1,500 towards the participation of Aberdeen Kilt Kickers in the Stavanger 
 annual meeting of social dancers, 28th-30th September 2012; 

(f)     £5,200 towards the participation of the junior group of the HipHop School in  
 Aberdeen, accompanied by the International Partnerships Officer,  in the 
 ‘Trans’Urbaines’ Festival in Clermont-Ferrand, 5th to 9th November 2012; 

(g)  £400 maximum contribution towards the visit of the International Partnerships 
 Officer to Stavanger Council, October 2012; and 

(h)  £2,055 towards the visit of young people from the YMCA group in Aberdeen to 
 Regensburg, 18th to 22nd October 2012.  

 
The Committee resolved:- 
to approve the recommendations. 
 
 
CITY EVENTS PROGRAMME 2013-2014 – EPI/12/146 
 
16. The Committee had before it for consideration a report by the Director of 
Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure which sought approval of the 2013-2014 City 
Events programme and associated budgets which were outlined in appendices 1 and 2 
of the report. 
 
The report recommended:- 
that the Committee –  
(a) note the content of this report; 
(b) approve the proposed City Events programme for 2013-2014; 
(c) approve the proposed budget to deliver the programme for 2013-2014; 
(d) refer the report to the Finance and Resources Committee to consider the 
 request for monies from the Common Good Fund. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) to approve the recommendations; 
(ii) that officers report back to the Committee in early 2013 providing information in 

relation to the Festive Communities Grant, specifically identifying the benefits of 
the grant, outlining previous and present uptake figures and geographical 
spread, and advising what the grant monies had been spent on previously; and  

Page 19



  
 
 

ENTERPRISE, PLANNING AND INFRASTRUCTURE COMMITTEE 
 

11 September, 2012 
 
 
 
 
(iii) that officers review the arrangements for the Santa Parade and Christmas Lights 
 Switch-on event, specifically with an option that they be held jointly, and report 
 back to the Committee in early 2013 in this regard. 
 
 
COMMUNITY DIGITAL MEDIA CHANNEL – EPI/12/170  
 
17. With reference to article 17 of the minute of meeting of 18th January 2011, the 
Committee had before it for consideration a report by the Director of Enterprise, 
Planning and Infrastructure relating to the status of the Community Digital Media 
Channel. 
 
The report recommended:- 
that the Committee support the decision to withdraw from taking a leading role in 
developing a Community Media Channel at this time and instead to support the efforts 
of Station House Media Unit to progress future work in this development area. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to approve the recommendation. 
 
 
ABERDEEN CITY EMPLOYABILITY FORUM – EPI/12/169 
 
18. The Convener advised that this report had been withdrawn from consideration 
until the next meeting of the Committee. 
 
 
RETAIL ROCKS UPDATE – EPI/12/171 
 
19. With reference to article 31 of the minute of meeting of 18th January 2011, the 
Committee had before it for consideration a report by the Director of Enterprise, 
Planning and Infrastructure which provided a current update on the Retail Rocks 
Project in Torry and offered suggestions for future linked activities. The report also 
presented an overview of vacant retail units across the city and explored the potential of 
replicating Retail Rocks in other city neighbourhoods. 
 
The report recommended:- 
that the Committee –  
a) accept this update as an accurate overview of the pilot project to date; 
b) note that no grant funding currently exists to replicate the Retail Rocks Project on 

the same basis as the existing project; 
c) note that initial investigations have not identified any obvious areas of the City 

where a subsequent Retail Rocks type project could be successful; and 
d)   allocate a budget of £5,000 from within the existing Employability, Skills and 

Community Enterprise Budget to support the further research that would be 
required to determine whether other funding mechanisms can be developed, and 

Page 20



  
 
 

ENTERPRISE, PLANNING AND INFRASTRUCTURE COMMITTEE 
 

11 September, 2012 
 
 
 
 

other suitable areas of the city can be identified, to replace or realise a similar 
Retail Rocks type initiative within the city. 

 
The Convener, seconded by the Vice Convener, moved:- 
 that the recommendations as contained within the report be approved. 
 
Councillor Corall, seconded by Councillor Cameron moved as an amendment:- 
 that recommendations (a) and (b) be approved; and that officers be instructed to 

investigate and report on the possibility of extending Retail Rocks into the 
George Street area, including the financial implications in anticipation of the 
submission of a bid to the 13/14 budget process; and to allocate a budget of 
£5,000 from within the existing Employability, Skills and Community Enterprise 
Budget to support this research. 

 
On a division, there voted:- for the motion (8) – the Convener, the Vice Convener and 
Councillors Allan, Boulton, Finlayson, Grant, Jean Morrison and Thomson; for the 
amendment (7) – Councillors Cameron, Corall, Cormie, Delaney, Jaffrey, MacGregor 
and Yuill. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to adopt the motion. 
 
 
MANAGEMENT OF EVENTS IN PARKS AND OPEN SPACES – EPI/12/145 
 
20. The Committee had before it for consideration a report by the Director of 
Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure relating to the management of events within 
Council owned parks and open spaces.  
 
The report recommended:- 
that the Committee –  
(a) note the current arrangements in place within City Events to manage Aberdeen’s 

Parks and Open Spaces; 
(b) approve the current pricing structure in place and acknowledge the agreed 

working relationship between City Events and Environmental Services that 
ensures that Aberdeen’s Parks and Open Spaces are maintained to the highest 
standard for ongoing event use; 

(c) agree that the Castlegate is the only recognised location within Aberdeen that 
can be used for political party and pressure group events; and 

(d) note the ever increasing disruption to Aberdeen’s programme of events due to 
unauthorised Traveller encampments. 

 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) to approve recommendations (a) and (b) of the report as outlined above; 

Page 21



  
 
 

ENTERPRISE, PLANNING AND INFRASTRUCTURE COMMITTEE 
 

11 September, 2012 
 
 
 
 
(ii) to amend and approve recommendation (c) as follows “to agree that the 

Castlegate is the historic location within Aberdeen that can be used for political 
party and similar events”; 

(iii)  to request the Housing and Environment Committee to review and update the 
Council’s Parks and Open Spaces Management Rules; 

(iv)  to note the ever increasing disruption to Aberdeen’s programme of events due to 
unauthorised Traveller encampments and instructs officers to discuss with 
Grampian Police how a more robust approach could be adopted to dealing with 
such unauthorised encampments; and 

(v)  to request that officers report back to the appropriate Committee on how future 
events of the type described are to be managed in Park and Ride sites.  

 
  
DECLARATION OF INTEREST 
 
The Convener and Councillor Corall declared a non-pecuniary interest in 
the subject matter of the following article by virtue of them both being 
Board Members of Visit Aberdeen. They did not feel it necessary to 
withdraw from the meeting during consideration thereof. 

 
 
VISIT ABERDEEN BUSINESS PLAN – EPI/12/150 
 
21.  With reference to article 24 of the minute of meeting of 13th September 2011, the 
Committee had before it a report by the Director of Enterprise, Planning and 
Infrastructure which provided information in relation to the establishment of Visit 
Aberdeen. 
 
The report recommended:- 
that the Committee –  
(a)  note the current position with regard to the establishment of Visit Aberdeen and 

the production of their business plan; and 
(b)  request officers to submit a paper to the next meeting of the Committee, 

confirming the support needed from the Council to enable Visit Aberdeen to 
undertake the activities, and deliver the outputs, set out in their business plan. 

 
The Committee resolved:- 
to approve the recommendations. 
 
 
ABERDEEN HOGMANAY CELEBRATIONS – EPI/12/180 
 
22.  The Committee had before it a report by the Director of Enterprise, Planning and 
Infrastructure which provided details of the current position with Aberdeen’s Hogmanay 
2012 celebrations and sought approval for recommendations aimed at providing the city 
with a new Hogmanay event in 2013. 

Page 22



  
 
 

ENTERPRISE, PLANNING AND INFRASTRUCTURE COMMITTEE 
 

11 September, 2012 
 
 
 
 
 
The report recommended:- 
that the Committee –  
(a)  recognise the city’s desire to include a Hogmanay event in its Festivals and 

Events programme in support of Aberdeen’s bid for UK City of Culture; 
(b)  agree that due to a lack of financial support and time available to organise an 

appropriate event there will be no Hogmanay celebration in 2012; 
(c)  support the development of a new family event at Hogmanay in Aberdeen in 

2013; and 
(d)  note that officers will submit a report to Council before the end of February 2013, 

assessing the potential for a 2013 event and requesting approval of an 
appropriate budget to deliver a safe, inclusive and enjoyable family event in 
2013. 

 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i)  to approve recommendations (a), (c) and (d) of the report as outlined above; 
(ii)  instruct officers to identify funding streams, including external sponsorship, to 

support a Hogmanay event in 2012 and to report to the next meeting of the 
Council in this regard; and 

(iii)  to thank the previous sponsor for their support of the 2011 Hogmanay 
Celebrations. 

 
 
ABERDEEN THE SMARTER CITY: A STRATEGY FOR 2020 – EPI/12/164 
 
23. The Committee had before it a report by the Director of Enterprise, Planning and 
Infrastructure relating to the Smart Cities concept and outlined the benefits of becoming 
a Smarter City. 
 
The report recommended:- 
that the Committee –  
(a) agree to develop a citywide Smarter Aberdeen Strategy and implementation plan 

which has sustainable development at its core, in line with the administrations 
vision Aberdeen – the Smarter City; and 

(b) instruct officers to report back to the Committee in August 2013 with the strategy 
and implementation plan for approval. 

 
The Committee resolved:- 
to approve the recommendations. 
 
 
WEST HUXTERSTONE, KINGSWELLS MASTERPLAN – EPI/12/172 
 

 24. The Committee had before it a report by the Director of Enterprise, Planning and 
Infrastructure relating to the West Huxterstone, Kingswells Masterplan, prepared as a 

Page 23



  
 
 

ENTERPRISE, PLANNING AND INFRASTRUCTURE COMMITTEE 
 

11 September, 2012 
 
 
 
 
guide for the future development of land identified as Opportunity Site OP42 in the 
Aberdeen Local Development Plan.  

 
The report recommended:- 
that the Committee –  
(a) adopt the West Huxterstone, Kingswells Masterplan as interim planning advice; 

and 
(b) agree for officers to implement the process to ratify the Masterplan as 

Supplementary Guidance by the Scottish Government. This will include public 
consultation with results incorporated in the submission. 

 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i)  to delay consideration of the report until the next meeting of the Committee, 

during which time officers to consult with Kingswells Community Council on the 
Masterplan; and 

(ii) that officers be instructed to report back to the next meeting of the Committee on 
the masterplanning process and to also receive a presentation in this regard. 

 
 
VARIOUS SMALL SCALE TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT AND DEVELOPMENT 
ASSOCIATED PROPOSALS (NEW WORKS) – EPI/12/144 
 
25. The Committee had before it a report by the Director of Enterprise, Planning and 
Infrastructure relating to various small scale traffic management measures identified by 
officers, residents, local members, emergency services, etc and verified as necessary 
through surveys by officers. The report also outlined proposals associated with new 
developments as part of the development management process. Finally, the report 
included proposals for individual parking spaces for Blue Badge holders which now 
require to be progressed through the normal legal process for the required Traffic 
Regulation Order.  
 
The report recommended:- 
that the Committee –  
(a) approve the proposals in principle; 
(b) instruct the appropriate officers to commence the necessary legal procedures of 

preliminary statutory consultation for the traffic regulation orders required as 
described in the report. If no significant objections were received, then progress 
with the public advertisement and report the results to a future meeting of this 
Committee; 

(c) instruct the appropriate officers to commence the combined statutory 
consultation for the traffic regulation order for the list of Blue Badge parking 
spaces and report back to a future meeting of this Committee. 

 
 
 
 

Page 24



  
 
 

ENTERPRISE, PLANNING AND INFRASTRUCTURE COMMITTEE 
 

11 September, 2012 
 
 
 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) to approve the recommendations contained within the report with the exception 

of the proposals outlined for Cranford Road, in respect of which officers would 
consult with the local councillors and report back if necessary; 

 (ii) in terms of the proposal for Foresterhill Road, to note in relation to Councillor 
Cormie’s request that the speed limit extension be monitored, that as part of the 
statutory consultation process officers would receive feedback from partners 
including Grampian Police and NHS Grampian, and would report back to the 
Committee following the consultation period. 

 
 
TRAFFIC ORDERS AT THE FINAL STAGE OF THE STATUTORY PROCESS – 
CG/12/082 
 
26. The Committee had before it a report by the Director of Corporate Governance 
which advised of the outcome of the final statutory stage of the following two traffic 
orders and presented objections which had been received where relevant in each 
case:- 
(i) The Aberdeen City Council (A96/Old Meldrum Road/Mugiemoss Road, 

Aberdeen)(Shared Pedestrian/Cycle Path) (Amendment) Order 2012; and 
(ii) The Aberdeen City Council (Dubford/Greenbrae Area) (Various 

Footways)(Redetermination of Means of Exercise of Public Right of Passage) 
Order 2012. 

 
The report recommended:- 
that the Committee – 
(a) in relation to The Aberdeen City Council (A96/Old Meldrum Road/Mugiemoss 

Road, Aberdeen)(Shared Pedestrian/Cycle Path) (Amendment) Order 2012 to 
either:- 
(1)  approve the referral of the shared pedestrian/cycle path proposed order to 

the Scottish Ministers for determination; or 
(2) accept that the objection is valid and instruct that the proposals be 

abandoned; and  
(b) approve The Aberdeen City Council (Dubford/Greenbrae Area) (Various 

Footways)(Redetermination of Means of Exercise of Public Right of Passage) 
Order 2012, and agree that this order be made as originally envisaged. 

 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) to approve recommendations (a)(1) and (b) of the report as outlined above; and 
(ii) that officers be instructed to report back in two years time on how these Traffic 

Orders have progressed. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 25



  
 
 

ENTERPRISE, PLANNING AND INFRASTRUCTURE COMMITTEE 
 

11 September, 2012 
 
 
 
 
REVIEW OF THE NATIONAL SPEED LIMIT ON THE C128C ROAD BETWEEN ITS 
JUNCTION WITH THE A944 AT KINGSWELLS ROUNDABOUT AND THE EXISTING 
40MPH RESTRICTION TO THE NORTH OF CULTS – EPI/12/161 
 
27. The Committee had before it a report by the Director of Enterprise, Planning and 
Infrastructure which (1) provided information relating to Councillor Boulton’s earlier 
motion regarding the implementation of a 40mph speed limit on the currently 
derestricted section of the C128C road between its junction with the A944 at Kingswells 
Roundabout and the existing 40mph restriction to the north of Cults; and (2) outlined 
the effect that the installation of the Vehicle Activated Signs and the retexturing of the 
carriageway have made on vehicle speeds, accident numbers and severity on the 
C128C. 
 
The report recommended:- 
that the Committee – 
(a) note the content of this report and the results of the follow up surveys/analysis 

that have been carried out since the road safety measures were installed last 
year; and 

(b) agree that no further action should be taken with regard to the implementation of 
a lower speed limit. 

 
Councillor Cameron, seconded by Councillor Corall moved:- 
 that the recommendations contained within the report be approved. 
 
Councillor Boulton, seconded by Councillor Yuill moved as an amendment:- 

to instruct officers to commence a statutory consultation process to reduce the 
speed limit on the road to 40mph; and to refer the estimated costs (£5,000) for 
implementation to the Finance and Resources Committee for consideration. 
 

On a division, there voted:- for the motion (5) – Councillors Cameron, Corall, Cormie, 
Jaffrey and MacGregor; for the amendment (10) – the Convener, the Vice Convener 
and Councillors Allan, Boulton, Delaney, Finlayson, Grant, Jean Morrison, Thomson 
and Yuill. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to adopt the amendment. 
 
 
ROADS WINTER SERVICES PLAN 2012/13 – EPI/12/183 
 
28. The Committee had before it a report by the Director of Enterprise, Planning and 
Infrastructure which provided details of the proposed Winter Services Plan and 
explained significant changes. 
 
The report recommended:- 
that the Committee –  

Page 26



  
 
 

ENTERPRISE, PLANNING AND INFRASTRUCTURE COMMITTEE 
 

11 September, 2012 
 
 
 
 
(a) note the content of the report; and 
(b) agree the Roads Winter Service Plan for 2012-2013. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) to approve the recommendations; and 
(ii) to thank City Wardens for their efforts and assistance to residents during 

previous winter periods. 
 
 
EXTENSION OF PAY BY PHONE PARKING – EPI/12/185 
 
29. The Committee had before it a report by the Director of Enterprise, Planning and 
Infrastructure which  sought approval to extend pay by phone parking so that it is 
available in all pay and display areas. 
 
The report recommended:- 
that the Committee –  
(a) approve extension of pay by phone parking so that it is available in all pay and 

display parking areas; and 
(b) to instruct officers to undertake the necessary legal procedures, in accordance 

with the Local Authorities Traffic Orders (Procedures) (Scotland) Regulations 
1999 to make and promote the traffic regulation order required. 

 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) to approve the recommendations; and 
(ii)  to instruct officers to report back on the feasibility of paying parking charges by 

credit/debit cards at parking machines. 
 
 
ROAD ASSET MANAGEMENT PLAN – EPI/12/159 
 
30. The Committee had before it a report by the Director of Enterprise, Planning and 
Infrastructure which provided details of the first version of an Asset Management Plan 
for Roads Assets of the Council prepared as part of a family of Asset Management 
Plans covering the corporate assets of the Council. 
 
The report recommended:- 
that the Committee –  
(a) approve the Road Asset Management Plan; 
(b) agree to its continuing development as the basis for the stewardship of the 

Roads assets; 
(c) approve the continuing participation in a nationwide project to continue the 

development and implementation of such plans; and 
(d) note the financial implications of the Plan. 
 
 

Page 27



  
 
 

ENTERPRISE, PLANNING AND INFRASTRUCTURE COMMITTEE 
 

11 September, 2012 
 
 
 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to approve the recommendations. 
 
 
FLOOD RISK MANAGEMENT (SCOTLAND) ACT 2009 – GOVERNANCE 
ARRANGEMENTS FOR THE NORTH EAST LOCAL PLAN DISTRICT – EPI/12/166 
 
31. The Committee had before it a report by the Director of Enterprise, Planning and 
Infrastructure which sought approval of governance arrangements for the North East 
Local Plan District (NELPD). 
 
The report recommended:- 
that the Committee –  
(a) agree the governance arrangements for the NELPD; and 
(b) appoint a member to the NELPD. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) to approve the recommendations: and 
(ii) to appoint Councillor Alan Finlayson as the member to the NELPD. 
 
 
PALMERSTON – REVISED TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT AND CONTROLLED 
PARKING ZONE PROPOSALS – EPI/12/178 
 
32. The Committee had before it a report by the Director of Enterprise, Planning and 
Infrastructure which outlined the results of the parking surveys and informal 
consultation by letter drop carried out on the streets within and surrounding the 
proposed Controlled Parking Zone within the North Dee area and of the initial design 
work which was undertaken. 
 
The report recommended:- 
that the Committee –  
(a) note the results of the informal consultation and parking survey exercises; 
(b) instruct officers to progress the preliminary design of the traffic management 

proposals and Controlled Parking Zone; 
(c) instruct officers to establish cost estimates for the traffic management proposals 

and Controlled Parking Zone and develop a business case for the Controlled 
Parking Zone; and 

(d) instruct the appropriate officers to report back on the findings of the above to a 
future Committee meeting. 

 
The Committee resolved:- 
to approve the recommendations. 
 
 
 

Page 28



  
 
 

ENTERPRISE, PLANNING AND INFRASTRUCTURE COMMITTEE 
 

11 September, 2012 
 
 
 
 
PERMIT MISUSE POLICY – EPI/12/151 
 
33. The Committee had before it a report by the Director of Enterprise, Planning and 
Infrastructure which advised on the development of a formal policy for dealing with 
misuse of all parking permits within the city, such as residents permits, business 
permits, contractors permits and Blue Badges. 
 
The report recommended:- 
that the Committee -  
(a) note that monitoring levels of misuse of residents permits and Blue Badge has 

commenced and will actively continue to the end of September to gather 
statistical date on the potential levels of abuse; and 

(b) instructs officers to report back to the Committee in November on the levels of 
misuse and with draft policies, procedures, actions and any financial implications 
arising from resources to address the misuse of parking permits and Blue 
Badges. 

 
The Committee resolved:- 
to approve the recommendations. 
 
 
OFF-STREET MONTHLY PARKING PERMITS – EPI/12/152 
 
34. The Committee had before it a report by the Director of Enterprise, Planning and 
Infrastructure which provided information in relation to the levels of monthly parking 
permits being purchased within the off-street car parks. 
 
The report recommended:- 
that the Committee instruct officers to introduce a limit on the number of spaces 
available to permit holders (average 48% of full car park capacity) within the larger off-
street car parks, to introduce off-street parking permits designated to a specific off-
street car park and to monitor the operational performance of the car parks. 
 
The Committee resolved:-  
to approve the recommendation. 
 
 
STRATEGIC AND LOCAL TRANSPORTATION PROJECTS – UPDATE REPORT – 
EPI/12/167 
 
35. The Committee had before it a report by the Director of Enterprise, Planning and 
Infrastructure which outlined the progress to date of various strategic and local 
transportation projects within Aberdeen City and the wider area which flow from the 
development of the Regional Transport Strategy produced by Nestrans, and the 
Council’s own Local Transport Strategy. 
 

Page 29



  
 
 

ENTERPRISE, PLANNING AND INFRASTRUCTURE COMMITTEE 
 

11 September, 2012 
 
 
 
 
The report recommended:- 
that the Committee –  
(a) note the content of this report; 
(b) endorse development through Nestrans as outlined in section 5 of the report, 

including Board decisions and progress on the 2012/13 programme of works; 
and 

(c) agree a response to Nestrans on the draft Regional Transport Strategy Main 
Issues Report. 

 
The Committee resolved:- 
to approve the recommendations. 
 
 
COMMITTEE BUSINESS STATEMENT 
 
36. The Committee had before it a statement of pending and outstanding Committee 
Business, which had been prepared by the Head of Legal and Democratic Services. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) to delete item 5 (Community Digital Media Channel), item 7 (VisitScotland 

Funding 2011/12 and Proposed Aberdeen Destination Marketing Organisation), 
item 9 (North Dee – Development Update) and item 12 (Speed Reduction at 
Countesswells) from the statement; and 

(ii) to otherwise note the updates contained within the list. 
 
 
MOTIONS LIST 
 
37. The Committee had before it a statement of outstanding motions under the 
Committee’s remit which had been prepared by the Head of Legal and Democratic 
Services. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to note the updates contained within the list. 
 
 
 In accordance with the decision recorded under article 2 of this minute, the 

following item of business was considered with the press and public 
excluded. 

 
 
BUS SHELTER ADVERTISING CONTRACT 
 
38. The Committee had before it a report by the Director of Enterprise, Planning and 
Infrastructure relating to the status of the Bus Shelter Advertising Contract for Aberdeen 
City. 

Page 30



  
 
 

ENTERPRISE, PLANNING AND INFRASTRUCTURE COMMITTEE 
 

11 September, 2012 
 
 
 
 
 
The report recommended:- 
that the Committee –  
(a) instruct officers to enter negotiations with Clear Channel with the aim of agreeing 

a reduced term for the Bus Shelter Advertising Contract; 
(b) instruct officers to negotiate appropriate terms for a formalised extension to the 

minute of variation in respect of the Variation in order for the Contract and 
Variation to expire at the same time; 

(c) invoke Standing Order 1(6) (a) of the Standing Orders relating to Contracts and 
Procurements in order to exempt this contract negotiation from Part A of the 
Standing Orders; and 

(d) instruct officers to report back on the outcome of the above negotiations and with 
a plan for retendering the Contract and Variation. 

 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) to approve the recommendations; and 
(ii) to instruct officers to undertake a systematic review of all commercial contracts 

relating to Enterprise, Planning & Infrastructure to ascertain and record 
termination arrangements and take appropriate action to safeguard the Council’s 
position. 

- COUNCILLOR CROCKETT, Convener.   
 
 

 

Page 31



Page 32

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 4.2

Page 33



Page 34

This page is intentionally left blank



ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

COMMITTEE :  Environment, Planning and Infrastructure 

DATE:     6th November 2012 
 
DIRECTOR:    Gordon McIntosh 

TITLE OF REPORT:  Notice of Motion from Councillor Malone � �To 
instruct the Director of Enterprise, Planning 
and Infrastructure to support the request by 
the International School of Aberdeen and 
install a safe pedestrian crossing similar to 
other crossings on North Deeside Road at the 
entrance of the School.  At present there is no 
safe crossing and pupils and community 
members must negotiate a very busy road.� 

 
REPORT NUMBER:  EPI/12/162 

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
This is a background report which responds to Councillor Malone�s 
Notice of Motion �to instruct the Director of Enterprise, Planning and 
Infrastructure to support the request by the International School of 
Aberdeen and install a safe pedestrian crossing similar to other 
crossings on North Deeside Road at the entrance of the School.  At 
present there is no safe crossing and pupils and community members 
must negotiate a very busy road�.  
 
Following the deferral of this item by the committee on the 11th 
September further discussions have been held with the school and an 
update is provided. 

 

2. RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 
There are no recommendations at this time. 
 

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
There are no financial implications arising from this report. The 
International School of Aberdeen has informally intimated that they are 
willing to finance any proposal accepted by Aberdeen City Council. 

Agenda Item 5.1

Page 35



4. SERVICE & COMMUNITY IMPACT 
 
4.1 The content of the report meets with the local Community Plan 

objectives to continually improve road safety and maximize 
accessibility for pedestrians and all modes of transport. 

 
4.2 The proposals are in line with the Council�s Transportation Strategy to 

improve safety for all road users by continuing to reduce the number of 
casualties in traffic collisions. 
 

5. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 

None arising from this report  
 

6. REPORT 
 

Background 

6.1 At its meeting on 13th June 2012 full Council considered a motion 
raised by Councillor Malone �to instruct the Director of Enterprise, 
Planning and Infrastructure to support the request by the International 
School of Aberdeen (ISA) and install a safe pedestrian crossing similar 
to other crossings on North Deeside Road at the entrance of the 
School.  At present there is no safe crossing and pupils and community 
members must negotiate a very busy road� 
 

6.2 Council officers have been in discussions with the International School 
of Aberdeen for the previous 18 months to bring forward a scheme to 
enhance pedestrian safety at this location, and these discussions are 
still in progress. 

 
6.3 This issue originates from the Planning Application for the relocation of 

the school.  
 
6.4 A Transportation Statement was submitted in support of the application 

with regard to the impact the development was likely to have on the 
local roads network.  

6.5 Within this statement it was indicated that, at that time, the vast 
majority of the pupils were taken to the school by buses provided by 
the school that the majority of the remainder travelled by car. In short 
only 1% of pupils cycled/walked to school and when school staff were 
included the figure rose to 2% of daily visits. 

6.6 It was indicated that this bus service would continue after the move and 
that the travel split would remain. 

Page 36



6.7 The proposal in the Planning Application was approved on the 
information submitted and did not include a requirement for a 
pedestrian facility. Had a pedestrian facility been highlighted by the 
schools consultants as a requirement at the planning stage then the 
roads mitigation necessary to support the application would have 
reflected this along with the conditions associated with a crossing 
facility. 

6.8 Correspondence from the School�s engineering/planning consultant 
restarted in August 2010 shortly after the new school opened, 
requesting that ACC consider the introduction of a pedestrian facility.  

 
6.9 Initial surveys were carried out to determine the numbers of people 

walking and cycling to the School, and also to record the level of 
community usage. These surveys indicated a level well below that 
which would be necessary to support the introduction of a crossing 
facility.  

 
6.10 When considering the survey results a meeting was held with the 

School Management, Head Teacher, their Planning/Engineering 
Consultant and the Council�s Traffic Management Team to discuss the 
various options that had been suggested by the school and to rule out 
those that were not possible. The discussions also considered the 
means by which to take forward those options that had potential. 

 
6.11 Various measures were discussed at length and these included, 

reducing the speed limit on North Deeside Road, Pelican/Puffin 
crossings, Zebra Crossing, Pedestrian Refuge Islands and School 
Crossing Patrollers.  

 
6.12 Of these options only the Pedestrian Refuge Islands and installing a 

School Crossing Patroller were considered viable by the Traffic 
Management Team. It was suggested that the ISA take forward these 
two options for further investigation. The school does not wish to 
pursue the option of a School Crossing Patroller. 

 
6.13 Proposals for retro-fitting a pedestrian refuge island at either side of the 

School entrance were submitted. However, on both occasions the 
design did not meet the recommended standards and guidance on best 
practice documents contained within the �Design Manual for Roads 
Bridges� and the recommendations in �The Design of Pedestrian 
Crossings� and �Cycling by Design�.  

 
Update

6.14 A meeting 26th September was attended by Councillor Malone, 
representatives of the International School Aberdeen and officers from 
the City Council to review crossing options. 

Page 37



6.15 The outcome of this meeting was that a facility could be installed 
subject to a departure from standards that officers felt could be 
accommodated in the constrained circumstances.  

 
6.16 The standards contained within the design guidance documents 

indicate that separate independent running lanes be provided for both 
motorised vehicles and cyclists with a central island capable of 
accommodating cyclists and pedestrians. Whilst provision to the 
absolute standards is achievable within a green field environment it is 
necessary to consider the constraints of the existing environment and 
in this particular case the urban environment 

 
6.17 The design of a scheme to meet the recommended design standards 

would include the widening of the North Deeside Road by 
approximately 1.2 m requiring existing walls and mature trees to be 
taken down and replaced. The cost of the widening the road and 
impact on the built environment would very high when compared to the 
level of provision and would not be in scale. It is therefore considered 
that provision a pedestrian island at this location to meet the 
recommended design standards would not be a cost effective or 
affordable option. 

 
6.18 A departure from the recommended standards that will provide a 

pedestrian crossing facility has been considered and can be 
accommodated within the existing road boundary without any 
significant additional risk to other road users and whilst maintaining 
visibility and sight stopping distances. 

 
6.19 A layout for a pedestrian island that meets the minimum design 

standards for a pedestrian crossing and which is similar to existing 
crossing facilities on the North Deeside Road is possible within the 
current road boundaries. However it will be noted that in order to 
accommodate the pedestrian crossing island it will not be possible to 
provide a dedicated cycle lane through the location of the island but will 
revert to a standard shared carriageway over this short section.  

 
6.20 We currently await an updated design from the school�s consultants, 

taking account of the agreed criteria and specifications, but are 
confident that an acceptable design will be forthcoming. 

 
7. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS  

 
Ruth Milne 
Technical Officer,  
rumilne@aberdeencity.gov.uk
(01224) 538052 
 

8. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
N/A 

Page 38



 

 

 
 

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
COMMITTEE  Enterprise, Planning & Infrastructure   
  
 
DATE    6th November 2012   
 
DIRECTOR   Gordon McIntosh   
 
TITLE OF REPORT  Development of a Youth Employment Strategy  
 
REPORT NUMBER:      EPI/12/238  
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 

This report has been produced in response to a motion raised by 
Councillor Townson on the 13th June 2012 to develop a Youth 
Employment Strategy. 
The report outlines the activities already taking place in relation to the 
production of a youth employment strategy and action plan based on 
the Scottish Government Opportunities for All Programme.  It aims to 
reassure elected members that this work is already being progressed 
as a priority for the community planning partners and the council.  It 
clarifies who is currently leading this work in the city and seeks 
approval for this work to be progressed through the Integrated 
Children’s services Successful Transitions Outcomes Group.  
This report will also highlight the number of individuals within the 16 – 
19 segment that are not currently in Education, Employment or 
Training. 

 
3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  

 
The work to date in mapping the current activities available for those in 
the target segment which are not currently engaged, is being 
undertaken by an officer in Education, Culture and Sort and does not 
require additional financial input. 
All identified services to date are funded by external funders and 
should require no additional financial input from Aberdeen City Council. 

 
4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 

There may be an additional resource requirement to ensure that 
partners maintain updated records on the system.  This would be 
sought from within Education, Culture and Sport and Skills 
Development Scotland. 
 

Agenda Item 5.2

Page 39



 

 

5. BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 
 
Rising unemployment within the 16 – 19 year old age group is of key 
concern nationally and a number of initiatives have been launched by 
both the Scottish and UK governments to address this issue. 
The unemployment rates for the 16 – 19 year olds within the city whilst 
not giving reason to be complacent are significantly lower than other 
areas of the country. 

Skills Development Scotland’s data for September 2012 
highlight that there are currently 270 Job seeker allowance 
claimants within the 16 – 19 year category.  This represents 
0.17% of the working age population of Aberdeen, which has an 
average unemployment rate of 2.2% 
Of those 270, there are 155 that have been claiming for 13 
weeks or less. 
In comparison the city of Dundee with an average 
unemployment rate of 6.5 % and a population of 144,300 has 
645 Job seeker allowance claimants within the 16 – 19 year 
category, representing 0.68% of the working age population, of 
which 320 have been claiming for 13 weeks or less. 
On a UK wide basis with a slightly different measuring 
mechanism there are 1.02 million individuals within the 16 – 24 
year old segment claiming Job seeker allowance. 

 Current situation - Internal 
Officers within Education, Culture and Sport currently co-ordinate and 
take a lead role in supporting the multi agency Successful Transitions 
to Adulthood Outcome Group.  The key objectives of this multi agency 
group are to ensure appropriate provision is available to minimise the 
number of school leavers not in employment education or training, and 
to ensure all partners are fully informed on all local and national 
initiatives to ensure individuals within this target segment can access 
all appropriate support.  This group leads the implementation of the 
national Opportunities for All and the Youth Employment Strategy in the 
city. 
The lead officer for this group has also mapped out all the appropriate 
local provision, updates regularly and shares with partners, ensuring 
that all partners that engage with this client group have an overview of 
current provision and can refer appropriately. 
Additionally officers within Education, Culture and Sport manage the 
delivery of the Activity Agreements, which provide a package of tailored 
activity and learning to re-engage those young people furthest from the 
labour market 

 
External 
There are a number of external initiatives that are managed by Skills 
Development Scotland on behalf of the Scottish Government. 
Opportunities for All 
The Scottish Government has made a commitment to offer every 16 – 
19 year old a place in education or training through the “Opportunities 
for All” initiative. 

Page 40



 

 

Training for Work 
Training for Work provides vocational training support to people aged 
18 or over who have been continuously unemployed for at least 13 
weeks and are actively looking for work. 
Get Ready for Work 
Get ready for Work arranges skills training and work placements for 
people aged 16 – 19 who are finding it difficult to access training, 
learning and employment. 
Additionally Skills Development Scotland maintain a database of all 
School leavers, which highlights those that are not currently in 
employment, education or training.  This information is used to ensure 
all individuals are contacted and made aware of the services available 
through Skills Development Scotland and its delivery partners to 
reduce the time that School leavers are disengaged.  They also provide 
support in the form of “My world of Work” coaches who will give one to 
one support to those furthest from the labour market. 
My world of work 
My world of work is an online toolkit that offers support and information 
in relation to job seeking, local employment opportunities, sector 
specific information and skill development tools within the employability 
arena. 
 
Going Forward 
The Scottish Government launched Scotland’s Youth Employment 
Strategy in 2012 and also appointed Angela Constance MSP, as 
Minister for Youth Employment.  This strategy has been widely adopted 
and sets out delivery expectations for Local authorities to address the 
issues of Youth Unemployment on a local level, and has made 
commitment to additional funding to deliver new and increase the 
delivery on existing initiatives e.g. Modern Apprenticeships. 
The Scottish Government has requested Skills Development Scotland 
through local community planning to develop a “Local Youth 
Employment Plan” 
“Youth Employment Plans should bring together key Community 
Planning partners with a contribution to make to this agenda, and 
encourage service alignment locally. 
Skills Development Scotland takes a lead role in developing Youth 
Employment Plans with each local authority area as the basis for 
agreeing the nature and size of the priority cohort locally and to 
develop a shared pipeline approach to manage the process.  The 
development of records of the type of each offer made will also be 
considered” 
The initial meeting in early October with Skills Development Scotland 
highlighted that officers within Education, Culture and Sport through the 
Successful Transitions to Adulthood Outcome Group, had already 
made significant progress through their mapping activity to meeting the 
needs of the minister, and were commended on their work.  Further 
work will be initiated over the coming weeks to ensure a process is in 
place to allow this information to be regularly updated, and currency 
maintained, this will highlight which initiatives have been most 

Page 41



 

 

successful and any areas of duplication or over provision.  A fully 
populated map of activity will assist support workers, guidance staff 
and advisors to direct clients appropriately to a programme that is most 
suited to their needs and therefore most likely to be successful.  
 
In addition to this Aberdeen City Council and its Community Planning 
partners are committed to delivering activities and developing 
appropriate initiatives as per the Scottish Government, Youth 
Employment Strategy through the Successful Transitions Outcome 
group. 
 
 

 
6. IMPACT 

Single Outcome agreement (SOA) National Outcomes:  
1. We realise our full economic potential with more and better 

employment opportunities for our people 
2. We are better educated, more skilled and more successful 
3.   People of all ages take an active part in their own learning to        
achieve full potential.  Learning and training is appropriate and 
accessible to learner’s needs 

 
 Aberdeen - the Smarter City 

We will ensure all citizens are encouraged and supported appropriately 
to make their full contribution. 
We will help every citizen to improve their knowledge and skills, 
together contributing to our success as a learning city 
We will enhance the physical and emotional wellbeing of all our citizens 
by offering support and activities which promote independence, 
resilience, confidence and self-esteem. 
We will work with our partners to seek to reduce the levels of inequality 
in the city. 
We will provide a high quality education service within our schools and 
communities which will improve attainment and life chances of our 
children and young people to achieve their full potential in education, 
employment or training. 
Working with our third, public and private sector partners, we will 
provide opportunities for lifelong learning which will develop knowledge, 
skills and attributes of our citizens to enable them to meet the changing 
demands of the 21st century. 
Again, working with partners, we will create a City of Learning which 
will empower individuals to fulfill their potential and contribute to the 
economic, social and cultural wellbeing of our communities. 
 

7. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Scottish Government’s Youth Employment Strategy  
Skills Development Scotland’s Youth employment Action Plan guidance 
 

 
 

Page 42



 

 

8. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS  
 
Heather Farquhar 
Senior Officer, Employability, Skills and Community Enterprise 
Tel: 523361 
Email: hfarquhar@aberdeencity.gov.uk 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 43



Page 44

This page is intentionally left blank



 

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 
COMMITTEE                      Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure 
 
DATE               6 November 2012   
 
DIRECTOR    Gordon McIntosh  
 
TITLE OF REPORT  The Glens and Deeside Way  
 
REPORT NUMBER:  EPI/12/232    
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
            

This report is in response to Councillor Ian Yuill’s Motion to this 
Committee on 13th September 2011 about the creation of a new long 
distance path route between Aberdeen and Perthshire. (At that time it 
was suggested that it could be called the Pictish Way). 

 
 
2. RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 

1.  Note the content of this report. 
 
2. Support the principle of the long distance route but take no further 
action until all authorities along the route are engaged in the project. 

  
 

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
None. 

 
 
4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 

There are no other implications. 
 
 
 
5. BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 

 
5.1  At its meeting of 13th September 2011 this Committee approved 

Councillor Ian Yuill’s Motion “amongst other things, to request officers 
to participate in the Royal Deeside, Angus and Perthshire Way 
Steering Group which was already discussing the establishment of the 
“Pictish Way”, and that officers report back to the next meeting of the 
Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure Committee regarding the terms 
of the motion, and in particular detailing the outstanding aspects 

Agenda Item 5.4

Page 45



 

required to establish and signpost the proposed “Pictish Way”, as well 
as the financial cost of achieving this”. 
 

5.2  An interim report was presented to the Committee at its 31 January 
meeting. This provided an update explaining that Angus Council 
intended to commission a feasibility study that would consider if the 
proposed route in its entirety was achievable, whether there is demand 
for it and providing details of the works required to bring it up to a fit for 
purpose standard. 

 
5.3    Following completion of the feasibility study a meeting of the Steering 

Group, renamed the Pictish Way Steering Group was held in Forfar on 
the 25th of August. This was attended by the Senior Planner from the 
Environmental Policy Team and Councillor Yuill. 

 
5.4    The principal issues that arose from consideration of the feasibility study 

were the resource implications for the local authorities taking on the 
route development and the continuing maintenance of the gap sections 
between established paths or tracks. The whole route would need to be 
in place and be brought up to a fit for purpose standard before it could 
be promoted and land owner negotiations would be needed prior to 
this. Within Aberdeen City there is a relatively short length of the route 
and this is already in place as the Deeside Way. Other local authorities’ 
areas have longer lengths of the route and gaps that would be more 
costly to resolve. The resource implications for these authorities would 
be much greater. At the last two Steering Group meetings there have 
been no representatives from Aberdeenshire Council or the 
Cairngorms National Park Authority. Large sections of the route pass 
through their areas and therefore their support for the project would be 
crucial. 

 
5.5 There would then be significant financial and legal (liability and 

landowner negotiation) issues with the route being developed jointly by 
local authorities and the Cairngorm National Park Authority. However, 
there are  examples of long distance routes (e.g. the Rob Roy Way) 
having been developed ‘virtually’ and promoted as a concept online by 
private individuals. Interest and use (under access rights provided by 
the Land Reform (Scotland) Act) grows gradually, and more official 
route development can follow as and when possible. The potenial 
economic benefits of the route are recognized and there is broad 
support  from the Steering Group but the shorter term resource and 
legal implications suggest that a more practical first step would be the 
development of the ‘virtual’ route. A member of the Steering Group has 
undertaken to develop a website describing and illustrating the route. 

 
5.6 There was also discussion on the name of the route. There already is a 

Pictish Trail in the Highlands and there was agreement that Glens and 
Deeside Way would be a more appropriate title. The precise start and 
finish of the route is not specified but it is quite clear that there is the 
opportunity to link Aberdeen (via the Deeside Way) with Pitlochry. 

Page 46



 

 
 

6. IMPACT 
 The Single Outcome Agreement’s Wealthier and Fairer outcome is 

most directly relevant to this report, as the long distance path could 
attract leisure tourists to the city, although none of the actions listed in 
the SOA relate to such a project.  This also relates to the Vibrant, 
Dynamic and Forward Looking objective of Aberdeen being an even 
more attractive place in which to do business.  This could support the 
EP&I service priority within the 5 Year Business Plan of encouraging 
future economic and business development in the city. 

 
 
 
 
7. BACKGROUND PAPERS  
 
 None 
 
 
8. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS  

 
Paul Pillath 
Team Leader, Environmental Policy 
paulp@aberdeencity.gov.uk 
01224 522228 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 47



Page 48

This page is intentionally left blank



 
ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 

 
 
COMMITTEE   Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure   
 
DATE     6 November 2012  
 
DIRECTOR    Gordon McIntosh  
 
TITLE OF REPORT  Delivering Transformational Change in Asset 

Management & Operations Services  
 
REPORT NUMBER:  EPI/12/243 
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 

This report provided the Committee with indicative details of the 
approach being taken within the Asset Management and Operations 
Services within Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure to enable the 
services to deliver the level of efficiencies identified within the Council’s 
Business Plan. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATION(S)  

  
 It is recommended that the Committee: 
 

a) note the findings from the soft market testing and soundings 
undertaken by the services to date 

b) agree that the capability exists within the in-house workforce to 
achieve similar levels of efficiencies through transformational 
changes and appropriate investment in services 

c) note the range of change options identified within the report 
d) instruct officers to report back in six months to update the 

committee on progress 
 

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
The 2011/12 budget decisions identified a number of options for 
delivery including a saving of £4.481M annually from 2013/14 onwards 
which is for ‘Partnering of AM&O Services. The 2012/13 General Fund 
revenue budget makes provision of £0.5M to enable the delivery of 
these savings in future years. 
 

4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 

A number of the options require changes to working practices, changes 
to job content or indeed changes to working hours in order to deliver 
the level of saving/efficiency identified. In each case there will be 

Agenda Item 6.1

Page 49



engagement with staff groups involved and ongoing dialogue with trade 
unions in order to ensure that the reasoning behind change is clear and 
the benefits are delivered. Services with a key role to play in the 
change process will be participating in the governance of the 
transformation of the services e.g. Education in relation to soft Facilities 
Management  

 
5. BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 

 
Asset Management and Operations (AM&O) provide a strategic and 
operational function for the management and maintenance of the 
Council’s physical assets i.e. properties, road infrastructure, vehicles 
and plant. 

 
The various teams are led by a wide range of professional and 
specialist service managers supporting frontline operations primarily in 
property, facilities management, roads and vehicle maintenance. 

 
The 2011/12 budget decisions identified a number of options for 
delivery including a saving of £4.481M annually from 2013/14 onwards 
which is for ‘Partnering of AM&O Services. The 2012/13 revenue 
budget makes provision of £0.5M to enable the delivery of these 
savings in future years. 

 
Soft Market Testing has identified that potential service providers would 
generate an average savings across each function of around 20% (for 
more detail see Supplementary Report). As this is a gross saving 
comparisons and takes no consideration of costs the Council would 
have to encounter to manage any external provider net saving levels 
have been estimated. The levels of efficiencies are reflective of the 
approach and level of saving the in-house service would make to 
transform the service.  

 
The market soundings identified specific actions that the private sector 
could generate savings from. These are Staff Transfer/Turnover, 
Maximising Attendance, Use of Supply Chain, Access to Wider 
Resources/Contracts, Innovation and Optimising External Income 
Sources. The comparison between internal and external service 
providers points to significant similarities of approach to cost reduction 
and service quality. It also has to be recognised that some work is 
already outsourced for workload/benchmarking purposes and in the 
circumstances managers are familiar with the local market, costs and 
capabilities of external service providers. 

 
One of the key factors affecting the in-house service cost is the hourly 
rate of pay of many staff groups. Decisions made as part of the annual 
budget process to increase the lowest levels of pay for staff have 
increased service delivery costs against a backdrop of lower costs and 
minimum wage conditions in the private sector. 

 

Page 50



Since Financial Year 2010/11 a significant number of savings have 
been generated across the range of services within AM&O. A robust 
Capital Programme fee income from project design has now been 
established. In addition the ongoing rationalisation of corporate 
accommodation is assisting in bring down revenue spending in this 
area. Through continued innovation we are reducing our energy costs 
that provides the additional benefits of paying lower carbon reduction 
commitment costs. 

 
The table below summarises the split of savings contributing to the 
overall target within option EPI_AMO01.  

 

 
These figures have been confirmed by Finance colleagues as fitting to 
adjusted levels of spending in 2013/14. 

 
Undoubtedly action needs to be taken to improve the efficiency of 
some services, especially those where soft market testing suggests 
opportunities exist.  

 
Every opportunity is being identified to optimise income and where 
processes involve other services to involve them in any review.  

 
At present a number of projects are under way to deliver efficiencies. 
Two specific tasks are being undertaken that will establish the most 

Service Heading Saving/Efficiency Estimated 
Saving 
£000 

Total 
Savings 
by 
Service 

Facilities Management   

1128 

Catering Income generation / new services 310 
Working Patterns/productivity 70 

Cleaning Working Patterns 100 
Management Structure 150 

Janitorial Income from rents 164 
Redesign Out of Hours Service / 
Roles 

125 

School Crossing Patrols Working Patterns 50 
Hard FM Absorbed Cost Pressures 159 

Fleet Redesign Service Delivery 166 600 Vehicle Replacement Costs 434 
Parking Consistency of Charging 200 200 
Asset Management Fee Income 1000 1980 Corporate Estate Review 980 
Roads Absorbed Cost Pressures 200 

500 New Income sources 125 
Working Patterns 100 
Process Re-engineering 75 

Total   4408 

Page 51



cost effective and practical way forward for the future use of our 
property assets, these being the reviews of corporate office 
accommodation and depots. Services have set out in their asset 
management plans future needs in these areas and given the cross 
cutting nature of the services involved it is important to undertake a 
thorough option appraisal. Unfortunately such reviews and their 
outcomes will require further planning and resourcing and so a realistic 
timescale for delivery will be approaching 2014/15 before any 
meaningful savings can be delivered. 
 

6. IMPACT 
 

Aberdeen – The Smarter City identifies as a high priority that the 
Council will provide and promote a sustainable transport system, 
including cycling, which reduces our carbon emissions. 
 
The Single Outcome Agreement identifies as a National Outcome 15, 
“Our public services are high quality, continually improving, efficient 
and responsive to local people’s needs.” One of the actions identified is 
that partners will “Modernise service delivery and ensure there is 
appropriate investment in staff training, equipment and accommodation 
to deliver this”. 

 
7. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

Internal reports produced summarising the Soft Market Testing Returns 
for services (Fleet, Roads and Streetscene, Catering).  

 
Report by Ernst and Young re Option Appraisal for Management of 
Investment Properties. 

 
 The information contained in these reports is confidential in nature. 
 
9. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS  

 
Hugh Murdoch 
Head of Asset Management & Operations 
hughm@aberdeencity.gov.uk 
01224 523965 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 52



 

 

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 
 
COMMITTEE    Enterprise, Planning & Infrastructure   
 
DATE      6 November 2012 
 
DIRECTOR     Gordon McIntosh 
 
TITLE OF REPORT  Capital Monitoring – Enterprise, Planning & 

Infrastructure Projects 
 
REPORT NUMBER:       EPI/12/211 
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 

To advise the Committee of the capital spend to date for the Enterprise, 
Planning & Infrastructure projects included within the Non-Housing 
Capital Programme.  

 
2. RECOMMENDATION(S)  

  
 The Committee note the current position. 
 

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
The monies required to fund these projects are achieved through 
external borrowing, capital receipts and grant income. These projects 
are all accommodated within the Non-Housing Capital Programme. Any 
underspend, carry forward or overspend will have implications for the 
programme. There are no issues at present that would result in such 
implications. 

 
4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 

There are no other implications at this time but as projects progress or 
indeed fail to progress then other implications may arise and will be 
reported at an appropriate Committee. 

 
5. BACKGROUND / MAIN ISSUES 

 
As reported at the Finance & Resources Committee in June 2012 the 
overall responsibility for the monitoring / management of the Capital 
Programme lies with the Head of Asset Management & Operations. 
The Planning & Monitoring Officer within Asset Management & 
Operations is in regular contact with the Service Representative and 
the Capital Accountant, reporting in the first instance to the Corporate 
Asset Group. This ensures that the spend figures are always up to date 
and accurate. 

Agenda Item 7.1

Page 53



 

 

 
Enterprise, Planning & Infrastructure has a total of 13 projects, totaling 
£22.688 million allocated to it from the Non-Housing Capital 
Programme. The projects and total budget committed to each project 
included in the programme are:- 

 
1) Corp Property Condition & Suitability Programme 

£7.71 million 
 

2) Cycling Walking Safer Streets Grant 
£252,000 

 
3) Access From the North 

£430,000 
 

4) Western Peripheral Route  
£4.1 million 

 
5) Corporate Office Accommodation 

£1 million 
 

6) NESTRANS - Capital Grant 
£960,000 

 
7) 3R's Furniture, Fittings & Equipment and Other Works 

£50,000 
 

8) Planned Renewal & Replacement of Road Infrastructure 
£3.748 million 

 
9) Land Acquisition – Contingency 

£650,000 
 

10) Frederick Street Relocations - Crombie Road 
£43,000 

 
11) Frederick Street Multi Storey Car Park 

£2.345 million 
 

12) Hydrogen Buses 
£400,000 

 
13) City Broadband 

£1 million 
 

Spend for all projects to the end of September is £5.1 million, 22% of 
the total budget. Discussions so far have identified potential 2012/13 
underspend in the Hydrogen Buses and City Broadband projects. 
Spend profiles provided by the project’s budget holder show it is 
anticipated that any underspend this financial year will be picked up in 

Page 54



 

 

the following financial year(s). The three year capital business plan 
ensures that a project will not underspend within the three year period. 
 
Appendix A provides a breakdown of expenditure to date and relevant 
supporting information as necessary. 

 
An update on the capital position will be reported to this Committee on 
22 January 2013. 

 
6. IMPACT 
 

Corporate - The capital programme encompasses projects which link to 
the Community Plan, Single Outcome Agreement, Corporate and 
Individual Service Plans and Vibrant, Dynamic & Forward Looking. 
 
Public - This report will be of interest to the public as it outlines the 
Council’s capital spending to date on Enterprise, Planning & 
Infrastructure projects. 

 
7. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

Non-Housing Capital Programme 2012/13 – Capital Monitoring Report 
approved at Finance & Resources Committee on 19 June 2012 

 
8. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS  

 
David Marshall 
Planning & Monitoring Officer 
� damarshall@aberdeencity.gov.uk 
� 01224 523191 
 
  
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Page 55



 

 

Appendix A: Spend to date 
 

 
Project Description Budget Holder Total 

Budget 
12/13 

Budget 
13/14 

Budget 
14/15 

Spend 
to end 
Sep. 

  £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 
 

Corp Property Condition & Suitability 
Programme 

Neil Esslemont 7,710 7,400 7,400 1,652 
Cycling Walking Safer Streets Grant Doug Ritchie 252 232 341 38 
Access From the North Tom Rogers 430 7,010 6,400 63 
Western Peripheral Route  John Wilson 4,100 1,000 600 0 
Corporate Office Accommodation Hugh Murdoch 1,000 0 0 53 
NESTRANS - Capital Grant Joanna Murray 960 882 1,295 480 
3R's Furniture, Fittings & Equipment and Other 
Works 

Graeme Craig 50 0 0 15 
Planned Renewal & Replacement of Road 
Infrastructure 

Mike Cheyne 3,748 3,768 3,659 1,640 
Land Acquisition - Contingency Stephen Booth 650 0 0 1 
Frederick Street Relocations - Crombie Road Jim Forbes 43 0 0 254 
Frederick Street Multi Storey Car Park Ian Taylor 2,345 0 0 881 
Hydrogen Buses Jan Falconer 400 400 400 0 
City Broadband Jan Falconer 1,000 1,000 0 25 

      
 Totals 22,688 21,692 20,095 5,100 

 
 
• Over half of the budget for Planned Renewal & Replacement of Road 

Infrastructure has been spent, Works are ongoing and the full budget is 
profiled to be spent this financial year. 

 
• The Condition & Suitability budget continues to be spent. Further 

commitments totalling £3 million are currently being undertaken. The full 
project budget is currently profiled to be spent this financial year. 

 
• Given the recent court decision to reject a further appeal against the 

Western Peripheral Route, the budget holder of this project will proceed 
with a detailed spend profile as soon as possible. A project plan and 
expected out turn for 2012/13 and the next two financial years will be 
reported to the next meeting of this committee if available. 

 
• The Corporate Office Accommodation budget has been split into 5 sub 

headings:  
 
o Marischal College Improvements 
o Town House: Replacement Sound System 
o Town House: Refurbishment & Upgraded Security 
o Frederick Street: Ground Floor & External Envelope Repairs 
o Upgrading Offices 
 

Due to the complexity and nature of the projects defined it is confirmed 
that most of this budget will slip to 2013 / 14. However, it is intended to 

Page 56



 

 

have all contracts legally committed this financial year. To date, £53,000 
has been spent on office moves and improvements to Marischal College. 

 
• The Frederick Street Relocations – Crombie Road project involved the 

relocation of the Education, Culture & Sport Reserve Collection to vacant 
Council owned industrial units at Crombie Road. Much of the required 
refurbishment to this unit was from the dilapidations budget, paid for by the 
outgoing tenant. This “transfer” is still to be processed and will help bring 
the total expenditure back into line. 

 
• The City Broadband capital project budget of £2 million has been 

reprofiled. It is believed that the only spend for this project will be to 
purchase expert advice in order to undertake an accelerated procurement 
process, at a cost of £42,000 with the remaining £1.9 million profiled for 
2013/14.  

 
• Similarly, the Hydrogen Buses project has been reprofiled and now 

anticipates the full spend will be made in 2013/2014: £800,000 for the 4 
buses in December 2013 and £1.2 million for the remaining buses in April 
2014.  

 
• Issues relating to Frederick Street Multi Storey Car Park reported to the 

previous EP&I Committee have now been resolved and expenditure is 
continuing according to the project plan. The car park facility is on target to 
open on 19 November 2012. 

 
• £70,000 has been spent from the Land Acquisition – Contingency budget 

but has yet to show in the ledger. This will show in October’s ledger. This 
acquisition was 46.28 acres of land at Mill of Dyce, Dyce. 

 
• The NESTRANS Capital grant spend is following the original spend profile. 

£480,000 in September will be followed by the same amount again in 
February. 

 
   

Page 57



Page 58

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
COMMITTEE   Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure   
 
DATE     6 November 2012 
 
DIRECTOR    Gordon McIntosh 
 
TITLE OF REPORT  2012/13 Revenue Budget Monitoring 
 
REPORT NUMBER:  EPI/12/201 
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to: 

i) bring to Committee members’ notice the current year revenue 
budget performance to date along with forecast outturns for the 
Services which relate to this Committee; 

ii) advise on any areas of risk and management action. 
 
 

2. RECOMMENDATION(S)  
 
2.1 It is recommended that the Committee: 

i) note this report on the performance to date and the forecast outturn 
and the information on risks and management action that is 
contained herein; 

ii) approve the virement proposals detailed within Appendix A;  
iii) instruct that officers continue to review budget performance and 

report on Service strategies as required to ensure a balanced 
budget; 

iv) instructs officers to report, in due course, on the actual outturn 
compared to budget following completion of the 2012/13 financial 
statements. 

  
 

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  
 

3.1. The total Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure budget currently 
amounts to £52.0M net expenditure. 

 
3.2. Based upon present forecasts it is anticipated that the outturn for the 

Directorate will be £1.2M below budget.  This position will be reflected 
in the overall financial monitoring for the Council when it is reported to 
Finance and Resources Committee at the end of this committee cycle.     

 
3.3. Further details of the financial implications are set out in section 5 and 

in the appendix to this report. 
 

Agenda Item 7.2

Page 59



 

 

 
4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 None. 
 
 
5. BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 

 
5.1 This report informs Members of the current year revenue budget 

performance for the Directorate to Period 5 (end of August 2012) and 
provides a high level summary for the consideration of Members. It also 
outlines whether or not there are any cost pressures that are 
immediately identifiable from the expenditure incurred to date and 
actions being undertaken to manage these.    

 
5.2 The Directorate report and associated notes are attached at Appendix 

A. 
 

Financial Position and Risks Assessment 
 

The overall position for the Directorate at Period 5 is a net underspend 
of £1.4M.  The forecast outturn for the full year is a net underspend of 
£1.2M.  The reason for this movement is that a number of recharges to 
the Directorate do not take place until the year-end. 
 

 The outturn is based on a detailed review of progress towards 
achieving the income and expenditure budgets of each service and 
takes account of any factors which are expected to influence them.  
Detailed below are the main variances that are forecast to apply for the 
full year: 

  
• Staff costs across a number of services are forecast to be 

£960K below budget due the ongoing management of 
vacancies. 

 
• Fee income for the Non-Housing Design Team is forecast to 

exceed budget by £300K as the Service’s workload for the 
current year is expected to increase in line with the Non-Housing 
Capital Plan.  

 
• Fleet Management costs are forecast to be £130K below budget 

with increased short-term hires costs being offset by savings in 
vehicle lease costs. 

 
• The cost of school catering provisions is forecast to be £70K 

above budget due to continuing pressure on food prices. 
 

• Recharges for services to non-General Fund accounts are 
forecast to exceed budget by £500K.  None of these recharges 
are new but some were not included in the budget and others 

Page 60



 

 

were reviewed in 2011/12 and revised charges for 2012/13 are 
anticipated as a result. 

 
• Advertising income is forecast to be £200K below budget.  The 

service will not achieve the additional income required by PBB 
option EBD03a.  

 
• Other shortfalls in income totaling £100K are forecast across a 

number of services, primarily in Marketing Services and in 
exhibitions income. 

 
• The outturns detailed in Appendix A incorporate the main risks 

identified by the Service to date.  The most significant additional 
risk faced by the Service relates to the severity of the winter and 
its impact on roads maintenance budgets.  This could add up to 
£100K per week of severe weather and would reduce the 
Directorate’s overall favourable variance. 

 
 
6. IMPACT 
 
 Corporate - as a recognized top priority, the Council must take the 

necessary measures to balance its budget. Therefore Committees and 
Services are required to work within a financial constraint. Every effort 
is being focused on delivering services more efficiently and effectively. 
 
Public – this report is likely to be of public interest due to the size of the 
budgets involved and the nature of the services provided by Enterprise, 
Planning and Infrastructure, a number of which are front line services 
delivered directly to citizens and the business community within the 
city. 

 
7. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

Financial ledger data extracted for the period. 
 

 
8. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS  
 

Brian Downie 
Finance Manager 
bdownie@aberdeencity.gov.uk 
01224 346351 

Page 61



Page 62

This page is intentionally left blank



ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL
REVENUE MONITORING 2012 / 2013

DIRECTORATE : ENTERPRISE, PLANNING AND INFRASTRUCTURE

AS AT 31 August 2012 ANNUAL 
BUDGET

PLANNED ACTUAL VARIANCE FORECAST 
TOTALS

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 %

39,657 13,252 11,908 (1,344) 38,440 (1,217) (3.1%)

4,401 1,840 1,903 64 4,722 320 7.3%

7,049 2,453 2,509 56 6,979 (69) (1.0%)

935 318 173 (145) 725 (209) (22.4%)

52,042 17,862 16,493 (1,369) 50,866 (1,176) -2.3%

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PROJECT DIRECTOR

TOTAL BUDGET

HEAD OF PLANNING AND SUSTAINABLE 
DEVELOPMENT

OPERATIONAL SUPPORT MANAGER

YEAR TO DATE

FORECAST 
VARIANCE

OUTTURN

HEAD OF ASSET MANAGEMENT AND OPERATIONS

ACCOUNTING PERIOD 5

Page 63



Page 64

This page is intentionally left blank



ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL
REVENUE MONITORING 2012 / 2013

DIRECTORATE : ENTERPRISE, PLANNING AND INFRASTRUCTURE

AS AT 31 August 2012
ANNUAL 
BUDGET

PLANNED ACTUAL VARIANCE
FORECAST 

TOTALS

CHANGE 
FROM 
LAST 

REPORT

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 % £'000

28,701 11,655 10,954 (702) 27,737 (964) (3.4)% 620

10,548 5,887 5,395 (492) 10,268 (279) (2.6)% (200)

1,503 444 595 151 1,624 121 8.1% (514)

5,157 2,149 2,083 (65) 5,073 (84) (1.6)% (58)

14,263 5,943 6,671 728 14,568 305 2.1% 641

3,043 1,268 1,168 (100) 2,972 (70) (2.3)% (42)

11,703 21 42 21 11,715 11 0.1% 17

74,918 27,366 26,907 (459) 73,957 (960) (1.3)% 464

(2,936) (1,197) (1,852) (655) (2,289) 647 (22.0)% 59

(851) (354) (224) 130 (598) 253 (29.7)% (68)

(17) (7) (2) 5 (7) 10 (59.8)% 0

(6,303) (2,626) (3,156) (530) (7,531) (1,228) 19.5% (829)

(12,768) (5,320) (5,179) 141 (12,666) 102 (0.8)% (608)

(22,875) (9,504) (10,414) (909) (23,091) (215) 0.9% (1,446)

52,042 17,862 16,493 (1,369) 50,866 (1,176) (2.3)% (982)

VIREMENT PROPOSALS
Several.  See details within individual Head of Service summaries.

FORECAST
VARIANCE CHANGE

REVENUE MONITORING VARIANCE NOTES £'000 £'000
Employee Costs

(964) 620

Property Costs

(279) (200)

Administration Costs

121 (514)

Transport Costs

(84) (58)

Supplies & Services

305 641

Transfer payments

(70) (42)

Capital Financing
11 17

Government Grants

647 59

Other Grants & Contributions

253 (68)

Interest
10 0

Recharges

(1,228) (829)

Other Income

102 (608)

(1,176) (982)

OUTTURN

FORECAST 
VARIANCE

ACCOUNTING PERIOD 5

YEAR TO DATE

PROPERTY COSTS

ADMINISTRATION COSTS

GROSS EXPENDITURE

STAFF COSTS

TRANSPORT COSTS

SUPPLIES & SERVICES

LESS: INCOME

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

TRANSFER PAYMENTS

CAPITAL FINANCING COSTS

OTHER INCOME

TOTAL INCOME

OTHER GRANTS

INTEREST

RECHARGES

School catering food costs are forecast to be higher than budget, in line with current trends. Supplies and 
services within Roads Services are above budget in line with the level of workload.

NET EXPENDITURE

Vacancies have been identified and are being managed across all services.

Savings are forecast in energy and repairs costs.  Janitorial rents have been budgeted for but no costs are 
being incurred.

Building application fee income is forecast to exceed budget.  A review of budgets has identified a number of 
recoveries that are unlikely to be made and the outturn has been updated to reflect this.

The postages budget is forecast to be overspent pending reorganisation of the postages budgets corporately.  

The forecast cost of contributions to a number of external bodies has been reduced on the basis of the actual 
level of payments made in 2011/12

Accommodation recharges to non-General Fund accounts for Marischal College and the other main sites is 
forecast to be above budget.  The Architectural Design team is forecasting income in excess of budget in line 
with their increased workload associated with the capital plan.

The budget for the Hytrec project was not matched correctly against expenditure and has since been 
reallocated.  Recoveries for the AWPR project are forecast to be less than budget in line with the level of 
expenditure incurred.

Sponsorship and advertising income is forecast to be below budget.

Vehicle leasing costs will be below budget while external hires and repairs are forecast to exceed budget.

No significant variance from budget is forecast at this stage.

No significant variance from budget is forecast at this stage.

Page 65



ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL
REVENUE MONITORING 2012 / 2013

DIRECTORATE : ENTERPRISE, PLANNING AND INFRASTRUCTURE
HEAD OF ASSET MANAGEMENT AND OPERATIONS

AS AT 31 August 2012
ANNUAL 
BUDGET

PLANNED ACTUAL VARIANCE
FORECAST 

TOTALS

CHANGE 
FROM 
LAST 

REPORT

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 % £'000

19,332 8,055 7,449 (606) 18,875 (457) (2.4)% 148

10,232 5,694 5,207 (487) 9,946 (286) (2.8)% (202)

871 265 417 152 1,018 147 16.9% 151

1,927 803 741 (62) 1,857 (71) (3.7)% (71)

10,450 4,354 4,293 (61) 10,760 310 3.0% 70

25 10 21 10 25 0 0.0% 0

11,102 21 42 21 11,102 0 0.0% 0

53,938 19,202 18,169 (1,034) 53,582 (356) (0.7)% 96

(1,050) (438) (617) (179) (1,056) (6) 0.6% 0

(140) (59) (35) 24 (7) 133 (95.0)% 133

0 0 0 0 0 0 0.0% 0

(5,802) (2,418) (2,855) (437) (6,737) (935) 16.1% (935)

(7,288) (3,037) (2,755) 282 (7,342) (54) 0.7% (272)

(14,281) (5,950) (6,261) (311) (15,142) (861) 6.0% (1,074)

39,657 13,252 11,908 (1,344) 38,440 (1,217) (3.1)% (977)

VIREMENT PROPOSALS
None this cycle

FORECAST
VARIANCE CHANGE

REVENUE MONITORING VARIANCE NOTES £'000 £'000
Employee Costs

(457) 148

Property Costs

(286) (202)

Administration Costs

147 151

Transport Costs

(71) (71)

Supplies and Services

310 70

0 0

Income

(861) (1,074)

(1,217) (977)

YEAR TO DATE OUTTURN

FORECAST 
VARIANCE

ACCOUNTING PERIOD 5

STAFF COSTS

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

LESS: INCOME

TRANSFER PAYMENTS

CAPITAL FINANCING COSTS

INTEREST

PROPERTY COSTS

OTHER GRANTS & CONTRIBUTIONS

ADMINISTRATION COSTS

TRANSPORT COSTS

SUPPLIES & SERVICES

GROSS EXPENDITURE

RECHARGES 

OTHER INCOME

The cost of catering provisions is expected to be £70K above budget in line with current trends in food costs. The cost of 
fleet spares is forecast to be £30K above budget.  The cost of supplies and services across a number of Roads Services 
functions is forecast to be £220K above budget, based on current levels of activity.

TOTAL INCOME

NET EXPENDITURE

No significant variance from budget is forecast at this stage.

Fee income for Non-Housing Design team is expected to be £300K above budget based on a forecast of increased 
workload associated with the current year's non-housing capital plan. A review of the allocation of accommodation costs 
carried out as part of the 2011/12 year-end exercise identified several areas where allocations to services outwith the 
General Fund had to be increased.  The forecast incorporates these revised allocations and it is expected that an 
additional £500K will be recharged for the current year.  The level of recoveries made by Roads Services is expected to 
exceed budget by £60K, reflecting an increased workload.

Capital Financing Costs

Vacancies have been identified and are being managed across the service.

Marischal College energy costs are forecast to be £70K below budget.  Property repairs for Marischal College and 
Kittybrewster are forecast to be £80K below budget.  The budget to cover the cost of rents for janitors homes is no longer 
required, saving £130K.

The main item of overspend is forecast to be postages at £120K.  It was expected that this budget would have been 
consolidated across the organisation but work on this is still ongoing.

Underspends are forecast in vehicle leasing costs (£230K). The cost of external hires is forecast to be £100K over 
budget and the cost of vehicle repairs is forecast to be £50K over budget.

Page 66



ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL
REVENUE MONITORING 2012 / 2013

DIRECTORATE : ENTERPRISE, PLANNING AND INFRASTRUCTURE
HEAD OF PLANNING AND SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT

AS AT 31 August 2012
ANNUAL 
BUDGET

PLANNED ACTUAL VARIANCE
FORECAST 

TOTALS

CHANGE 
FROM 
LAST 

REPORT

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 % £'000

6,319 2,401 2,426 24 6,053 (266) (4.2)% 509

307 184 179 (5) 312 5 1.8% 0

345 60 46 (13) 235 (110) (31.9)% (726)

3,149 1,312 1,308 (4) 3,149 0 0.0% 1

2,581 1,075 1,918 842 2,629 48 1.9% 541

767 320 312 (8) 745 (22) (2.9)% (12)

590 0 0 0 590 (0) (0.0)% 0

14,058 5,352 6,188 836 13,713 (345) (2.5)% 313

(1,871) (759) (1,301) (541) (1,393) 478 (25.6)% 2

(270) (112) (60) 52 (274) (4) 1.4% 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0.0% 0

(157) (66) (138) (73) (329) (172) 109.1% 0

(4,710) (1,963) (2,180) (217) (4,738) (28) 0.6% (444)

(7,009) (2,900) (3,679) (779) (6,734) 275 (3.9)% (441)

7,049 2,453 2,509 56 6,979 (69) (1.0)% (128)

VIREMENT PROPOSALS
None this cycle.

FORECAST
VARIANCE CHANGE

REVENUE MONITORING VARIANCE NOTES £'000 £'000
Employee Costs

(266) 509

Property Costs

5 0

Administration Costs

(110) (726)

Transport Costs

0 1

Supplies and Services

48 541

Transfer Payments

(22) (12)

Capital Financing Costs
(0) 0

Income

275 (441)

(69) (128)

The cost of consultants used in Transport Strategy & Projects and in Roads Authority Works is forecast to be £150K 
above budget although in both cases, there is adequate budget under Administration Costs to cover the value of these 
works and a corresponding favourable variance.  Savings are forecast in Development Management consultancy fees 
(£40K) and in Development Plans (30K).  A further £30K of savings is forecast in materials costs across a number of 
services.

Contributions to external bodies is forecast to be £20K below budget based on the actual level of contributions made in 
2011/12.

The level of recovery necessary for the AWPR project is forecast to be £200K below budget.  There is currently no 
income forecast against the SURF project whereas a £70K budget has been set for this.  There are corresponding 
savings forecast in staff costs and administration costs and forecast outturns have since been re-aligned to eliminate 
these variances.

Vacancies have been identified and are being managed across the service. 

No significant variance from budget is forecast at this stage.

Transport Strategy & Projects has a budget under this heading of £110K while the actual spend is forecast to be in 
consultants fees under Supplies & Services (see below).

No significant variance from budget is forecast at this stage.

No significant variance from budget is forecast at this stage.

NET EXPENDITURE

GROSS EXPENDITURE
LESS: INCOME

RECHARGES 

OTHER INCOME

TOTAL INCOME

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

INTEREST

PROPERTY COSTS

OTHER GRANTS & CONTRIBUTIONS

ADMINISTRATION COSTS

TRANSPORT COSTS

SUPPLIES & SERVICES

TRANSFER PAYMENTS

CAPITAL FINANCING COSTS

STAFF COSTS

YEAR TO DATE OUTTURN

FORECAST 
VARIANCE

ACCOUNTING PERIOD 5

Page 67



ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL
REVENUE MONITORING 2012 / 2013

DIRECTORATE : ENTERPRISE, PLANNING AND INFRASTRUCTURE
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PROJECT DIRECTOR

AS AT 31 August 2012
ANNUAL 
BUDGET

PLANNED ACTUAL VARIANCE
FORECAST 

TOTALS

CHANGE 
FROM 
LAST 

REPORT

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 % £'000

1,987 828 759 (69) 1,972 (15) (0.7)% (31)

9 8 9 0 10 1 16.5% 2

247 103 120 17 301 54 21.9% 61

75 31 32 1 62 (13) (17.0)% 12

1,213 506 459 (47) 1,165 (48) (4.0)% 29

2,250 938 836 (102) 2,202 (48) (2.1)% (30)

12 0 0 0 23 11 94.6% 17

5,793 2,413 2,214 (199) 5,736 (57) (1.0)% 60

(15) 0 65 65 160 175 (1147.4)% 57

(440) (183) (130) 53 (317) 123 (28.0)% (201)

(17) (7) (2) 5 (7) 10 (59.8)% 0

(149) (62) 0 62 (264) (115) 77.1% (84)

(770) (321) (244) 77 (586) 183 (23.8)% 108

(1,391) (573) (311) 263 (1,015) 377 (27.1)% (121)

4,401 1,840 1,903 64 4,722 320 7.3% (61)

VIREMENT PROPOSALS
None this cycle.

FORECAST
VARIANCE CHANGE

REVENUE MONITORING VARIANCE NOTES £'000 £'000
Employee Costs

(15) (31)

Property Costs
1 2

Administration Costs

54 61

Transport Costs

(13) 12

Supplies and Services

(48) 29

Transfer Payments

(48) (30)

Capital Financing Costs

11 17

Income

377 (121)

320 (61)

Equipment purchases within Marketing & Design are forecast to be £30K below budget.  Event costs within European 
Funding and Projects are forecast to be £20K below budget.

Contributions to external bodies is forecast to be £30K below budget based on the actual level of contributions made in 
2011/12.

Sponsorship income within the Central Marketing service is forecast to be £130K below budget.  Recoveries and 
advertising revenue within the Marketing and Design service are forecast to be £60K below budget.  £160K of the 
remaining variance is in the Hytrec project and is due to a mis-match in the allocation of budget and expenditure, which 
has since been corrected.

Vacancies have been identified and are being managed across the service.

No significant variance from budget is forecast at this stage.

Sponsorship costs within Central Marketing are forecast to be £40K above budget.  Subscription costs are forecast to 
be £20K above budget.

Travel expense costs associated with international trade and investment activities are forecast to be £20K below 
budget.

Budgets have been re-aligned to reflect better the organizational structure of the service and some forecasts have not 
been updated.  Corrections have now been made to eliminate this variance.

NET EXPENDITURE

GROSS EXPENDITURE
LESS: INCOME

RECHARGES 

OTHER INCOME

TOTAL INCOME

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

INTEREST

PROPERTY COSTS

OTHER GRANTS & CONTRIBUTIONS

ADMINISTRATION COSTS

TRANSPORT COSTS

SUPPLIES & SERVICES

TRANSFER PAYMENTS

CAPITAL FINANCING COSTS

STAFF COSTS

YEAR TO DATE OUTTURN

FORECAST 
VARIANCE

ACCOUNTING PERIOD 5

Page 68



ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL
REVENUE MONITORING 2012 / 2013

DIRECTORATE : ENTERPRISE, PLANNING AND INFRASTRUCTURE
OPERATIONAL SUPPORT MANAGER

AS AT 31 August 2012
ANNUAL 
BUDGET

PLANNED ACTUAL VARIANCE
FORECAST 

TOTALS

CHANGE 
FROM 
LAST 

REPORT

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 % £'000

1,063 371 320 (51) 837 (227) (21.3)% (6)

0 0 0 0 0 0 0.0% 0

40 17 12 (5) 71 30 74.1% 0

6 3 2 (0) 5 (1) (18.9)% 0

19 8 1 (7) 13 (5) (29.0)% 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0.0% 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0.0% 0

1,129 399 336 (63) 925 (203) (18.0)% (5)

0 0 0 0 0 0 0.0% 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0.0% 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0.0% 0

(194) (81) (163) (82) (200) (6) 3.2% 190

0 0 0 0 0 0 0.0% 0

(194) (81) (163) (82) (200) (6) 3.2% 190

935 318 173 (145) 725 (209) (22.4)% 185

VIREMENT PROPOSALS

FORECAST
VARIANCE CHANGE

REVENUE MONITORING VARIANCE NOTES £'000 £'000
Employee Costs

(227) (6)

Property Costs
0 0

Administration Costs

30 0

Transport Costs
(1) 0

Supplies and Services
(5) 0

Income
(6) 190

(209) 185

OUTTURN

FORECAST 
VARIANCE

ACCOUNTING PERIOD 5

STAFF COSTS

YEAR TO DATE

PROPERTY COSTS

TRANSFER PAYMENTS

CAPITAL FINANCING COSTS

ADMINISTRATION COSTS

TRANSPORT COSTS

SUPPLIES & SERVICES

RECHARGES 

OTHER INCOME

GROSS EXPENDITURE
LESS: INCOME

None this cycle

Various small savings are forecast in a number of areas.

NET EXPENDITURE

No significant variance from budget is forecast at this stage.

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

The budget includes a £190K provision for living wage costs which will not be required and which has since been 
removed from the budget.  There is an additional provision of £30K for redundancy payments which is forecast not to be 
needed either.

No significant variance from budget is forecast at this stage.

Adverse variances are forecast in storage and archiving (£20K) and in copying and subscriptions (£10K).  In both cases 
this is based on a comparison of actual spend in 2011/12 with the budget provision for 2012/13.

No significant variance from budget is forecast at this stage.

TOTAL INCOME

INTEREST

OTHER GRANTS & CONTRIBUTIONS

Page 69



Page 70

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
COMMITTEE   Enterprise Planning & Infrastructure 
 
DATE     6 November 2012 
 
DIRECTOR    Gordon McIntosh 
 
TITLE OF REPORT  Visit Aberdeen  
 
REPORT NUMBER:  EPI/12/236 
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 

To advise Committee of the current position regarding the 
establishment of Visit Aberdeen, a Aberdeen Destination Marketing 
Organisation (DMO) for the city and to detail the funding requirements 
to build on past investment to further drive the promotion of Aberdeen 
as a destination for business and leisure tourism. 

 
2.        RECOMMENDATION(S)  

 
1.  To note the current position with regard to the establishment of Visit 

Aberdeen and the production of their business plan. 
 

2. To acknowledge the support needed from Aberdeen City Council to 
enable Visit Aberdeen to undertake the activities, and deliver the 
outputs, set out in their business plan. 
 

3. To agree the allocation of £200,000 towards Visit Aberdeen’s 
destination marketing activities from 6 November 2012 to 31 March 
2013.  

 
4. To agree the allocation of £520,000 towards future destination 

marketing activities from 1 April 2013 to 31 March 2014, then annually 
for a further four years subject to the council’s normal budgetary 
process.  

 
5. That Visit Aberdeen provides ACC with an annual Service Level 

Agreement and an updated Business Plan detailing their planned 
activities, plus regular progress reports, to enable the agreed monies to 
be released on a quarterly basis. 

 
 
 
 
 

 

Agenda Item 8.1

Page 71



 

 

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
Within its 2012-13 budget, Economic & Business Development 
currently has £520,000 allocated for activities designed to promote 
Aberdeen as a destination for business and leisure tourism, as follows: 
 
Business Tourism Services      £213,750 
(formally provided by Aberdeen Convention Bureau) 
Visitor Information Centre      £100,000 
Local and International Marketing Activity   £  71,250 
Regional Promotion (in conjunction with ACSEF)  £  85,000 
Conference Subvention Support     £  50,000 
 
Total         £520,000 
 
Recent realignment of the City Promotion service budget, in parallel 
with the service’s recent re-organisation and the transfer of resources 
previously used to purchase VisitScotland services , will ensure that the 
above resources can safely be allocated to the DMO’s establishment in 
the future without detriment to existing services. 
 
Costs associated with the realisation of Visit Aberdeen will be met from 
within the existing City Promotion budget within Economic & Business 
Development and it is fully anticipated that the use of these funds will 
leverage significant additional resources from partner agencies and 
stakeholders from year’s three to five of Visit Aberdeen’s operation. 

 
 

4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 

Following discussions with Visit Aberdeen and the staff within City 
Promotions and City Events, it has been agreed that all existing staff 
within the Economic & Business Development Service responsible for 
place marketing, inward investment and events would remain and that 
resources within the existing team would be allocated to support the 
activities of Visit Aberdeen going forward, as outlined in their summary 
business plan (see Appendix 1). 

 
5. BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 

 
EP&I Committee on 13 September 2011 agreed to authorise: 
 

(a)   Aberdeen City Council officers to work with its partners at Visit 
Scotland, ACSEF, Aberdeen and Grampian Chamber of 
Commerce and private sector tourism businesses to establish a 
DMO Steering Group that would at no additional cost to Aberdeen 
City Council: 
 
-      establish a private sector led DMO   
-   appoint the DMO’s Board of Directors, by 30 November 2011 

Page 72



 

 

-      produce an action plan for the period 30 November 2011 to 30  
September 2012; 

-      implement the DMO’s initial action plan; 
-      appoint a Chief Executive, this was achieved in August 2012 
-      supervise the production of a detailed, Five Year DMO 
business plan, by the new DMO Chief Executive, before 30 
September 2012; 

 

(b)   the submission of a further report to Enterprise, Planning and 
Infrastructure Committee in November 2012, requesting ongoing 
council support for the Aberdeen DMO for the next 3-5 years, 
based on existing resources (i.e. no new resources), subject to the 
DMO Chief Executive and Board:- 
(1)   producing an appropriate, detailed and financially sustainable 

3-5 year Business Plan; and 
(2)   securing significant private sector cash contributions or other 

non-council income streams, equivalent to at least 50% of the 
DMO’s total annual operating costs over the 3-5 year business 
plan period. 

 

Since the above recommendations were approved, officers have been 
working with the Board of Visit Aberdeen and the newly appointed 
Chief Executive to establish the organisation and produce a detailed 
business plan. 
 
 

In summary, since September 2011, Visit Aberdeen has: 
 

•        Formed Visit Aberdeen Ltd, a company Ltd by Guarantee 
•        Appointed an Interim Independent Chair, six private sector   

board members representing the funding partners and/or 
appointed through public advertisement and three ACC elected 
members  

•        Appointed, after market tender, bankers, legal advisers and 
finance advisors/auditors. 

•        Appointed a CEO to take up post on 14 August 2012. 
•        Held various stakeholder engagement events, involving Board 

Members, Council officers and other stakeholders involved in 
the marketing or Aberdeen as a visitor destination (Aberdeen 
Airport, VisitScotland, Aberdeen Hotels Association etc.),as part 
of the business planning process. 

•        Produced a draft business plan for discussion with their Board 
and key funding partners 

 

The draft business plan confirms that Visit Aberdeen’s main aim is to 
be: 

“The best city destination for their target markets” 
 

This aim is consistent with Visit Aberdeen’s intention to identify target 
markets that could potentially regard Aberdeen as an excellent visitor 

Page 73



 

 

destination and then convince people in these target markets that 
Aberdeen is the best destination available to them. 
 

Visit Aberdeen’s draft business plan identifies five key objectives that, 
if achieved, will realize this aim: 
 

Objective One:   Market Aberdeen with Energy 
Objective Two:   Provide great reasons to visit 
Objective Three:   Deliver exceptional results for investors by 

realizing the full tourism potential of Aberdeen 
Objective Four:   Tourism is everybody’s business 
Objective Five:   Run a tight ship 

 

The draft business plan provides a significant amount of detail as to 
how these objectives will be achieved, how success will be measured, 
and describes the organisation structure, budget and funding needed 
to undertake this activity. 
 

The Board of Visit Aberdeen have approved the draft business plan 
and a summary of this is attached in Appendix 1. Committee are 
asked to review this and accept it provides a valid basis for providing 
Visit Aberdeen with the requested grant funding. 
 

6. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

Appendix 1 - Visit Aberdeen’s Business Plan Executive Summary. 
 
7. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS  

 
Dawn Schultz 
City Promotions Manager 
Tel:01224 522767 
Email Dschultz@aberdeencity.gov.uk 
 
Gerry Brough 
Project Director 
Te: 01224 523197 
Email Gbrough@aberdeencity.gov.uk 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 74



 
 
 

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
COMMITTEE   Enterprise Planning and Infrastructure Committee  
   
DATE     6 November 2012 
 
DIRECTOR    Gordon McIntosh 
 
TITLE OF REPORT  Aberdeen Digital Connectivity Update Report 
 
REPORT NUMBER:  EPI/12/208 
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
 
This report provides:- 

- an update on UK and Scottish Government activities and 
- an outline of ACC’s Activities to date. 

 
RECOMMENDATION(S)  
 
That the Committee:  

• notes the details within this report, 
• endorses the bid to the Department of Culture Media and Sport’s (DCMS) 2nd 
round of Urban Broadband Funding (UBF), 

• instructs that officers, that should the bid be successful, undertake the processes 
required to implement the plan within this bid, taking into account any changes that 
are required by the funder; 

• instructs officers to procure the necessary additional technical advice at an 
estimated £330k, in order to prepare for the procurement of private sector 
development partners to implement the city wireless and open access broadband 
projects within this plan, 

 
 
 
2. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
As a result of the Council’s 2012/13 capital programme, provision has been made to invest 
up to £2 million in Open Access and City Wireless Digital Programme over the next two 
financial years.  The scheme identifies 4 projects.  The most significant of these projects is 
the Open Access Fibre Network to which Aberdeen City Council’s (ACC) full £2 million will 
be used in addition to a further £2 million from Aberdeenshire Council.  This comes to a total 
of £4 million for this project. Within the UBF Bid ACC has applied for a further £3 million from 
the DCMS for this. This will create a significant stake-holding, along with any existing asset 
to which ACC can make an ‘in-kind’ contribution in seeking a Private Sector Partner.  The 
Private Sector Development partners will benefit with access to the growth and development 

Agenda Item 8.2

Page 75



sectors in the city, with the ability to utilise ACC’s assets and existing infrastructure  The 
other three projects within the bid require only an in-kind contribution from ACC.  The bid has 
commercially sensitive information but is available for Elected Members to view on request 
to the author of this report. 
 
4. SERVICE & COMMUNITY IMPACT 
 
An Equalities Human Rights Impact Assessment was undertaken as part of the report to this 
committee on 13 September 2011. These significant infrastructure projects have the 
potential to provide benefit in the delivery of frontline services which reliant on digital 
connectivity in their delivery. This covers services in social care, education, community 
wardens work, environmental health, building services and planning. The contents of the 
report relate directly to delivering on key National Outcomes of the Single Outcome 
Agreement: 
 
National Outcome 1 – We live in a Scotland that is the most attractive place for doing 
business in Europe 
National Outcome 2 – We realise our full economic potential with more and better 
employment opportunities for our people. 
National Outcome 3 - We are better educated, more skilled and more successful, renowned 
for our research and innovation. 
 
Delivering Next Generation Access (NGA) with associated affordability levels for 
disadvantaged communities (geographical and societal) will support and enable community 
engagement to improve life chances and opportunities.  This also supports the 
administration’s Smarter Aberdeen Policy Statement as NGA.   
Aberdeen City and Shire Economic Futures (ACSEF) identified a number of areas within the 
Economic Action Plan where NGA can play a critical role in transport, global connectivity, 
attracting and developing skilled people and company headquarters. 
 
The delivery of next generation broadband and wireless connectivity is consistent with ACC’s 
administration policy – “Aberdeen a Smarter City”. It supports ACC’s aspiration for Aberdeen 
to be a Smarter City. The widespread availability of NGA will allow public services to be 
more cost effectively delivered – this will become increasingly important as Council budgets 
reduce in real terms.  A good example of this has been the savings made by building 
services who already use Consillium’s Total mobile application and have made cost savings 
in the region of £1.5 million.  ACC’s enforcement officers are also using mobile technology 
but due to the poor connection across the city, are unable to utilise the full benefits of real 
time data transfer.  ACC invests in the region of £1 million per annum in information 
technology with more services opting to use it so as to provide effective and efficient 
services. 
 
 
5. OTHER  IMPLICATIONS 
The European Commission currently has Draft EU Guidelines for applying State Aid rules in 
relation to the rapid deployment of broadband networks. Digital Connectivity Procurements 
have significant State Aid implications. The UBF bid required all bidders to provide a State 
Aid opinion for their options.  ACC obtained expert advice from TaylorWessing, the advisors 
to Birmingham City Council who has already obtained State Aid clearance from the 
European Commission.   
 

Page 76



The plan would see ACC partnering with third parties to deliver services across the city and 
the potential that ACC utilise current property and asset portfolios to assist this delivery.  
This plan may also provide an opportunity to identify ongoing revenue income. Which could 
be reinvested into infrastructure, access to areas which would be otherwise uneconomic etc. 
 
If the programme is approved for further development any implications arising will be 
reported to committee as part of ongoing process. 
 
6. REPORT 
 
6.1 Background 
 

On 9 November 2010 this Committee instructed officers to develop a programme to enable 
the delivery of improved broadband connectivity to domestic and commercial users in 
Aberdeen.  This was undertaken by Aberdeen City and Shire Economic Future (ACSEF), 
Aberdeen City Council (ACC) and Aberdeenshire Council (AC).  As a result of this on 11 
September 2012, the Enterprise Planning and Infrastructure Committee agreed to support 
efforts to lobby Scottish Government for funding, appoint an advisor to assist officers to 
implement the recommendations with in the ‘Maximising Digital Connectivity’; and to support 
submission of an initial bid for up to £2 million of capital funding, from Aberdeen City 
Council’s 2012/13 capital programme. 
 
The proposal presented to this committee on 11 September 2012 identified three key 
projects, namely; 
 
(1) An open access fibre  network built adjacent to the future peripheral road around the 
City to connect key business areas such as Westhill and Dyce and the residential suburbs 
like Kingswells and Dyce with the potential extension to the Shire from Westhill and along 
the Energetica corridor. Due to commercial sensitivity the cost are unable to be published. 
 
(2) A rural access strategy to ensure that there is 100% availability of broadband 
services in the rural areas and significantly increased access speeds. AC are working with 
Scottish Government on this with the costs being part of the current proposed Scottish 
Government procurement process. 
 
(3) Deployment of next generation wireless technology in Aberdeen’s core city area, 
to be a concessionary scheme which would be cost neutral to the ACC.. 
 
It was believed that Projects (1) and (2) could obtain Central Government funding through 
British Digital UK programmes being managed in Scotland by the Scottish Government and 
could also potentially be suitable for European funding programmes. 
 
Project (3) may be deliverable without public subsidy. 
 
6.2 Update 

 
Since the Committee granted approval for this initiative a number of actions have been 
undertaken. ACSEF funded a Project implementation plan for City next generation wireless.  
This was used to assist in bringing together a capital bid to cover the full required investment 
for Open Access Fibre and City Wireless Digital Connectivity which is part of ACC’s five year 

Page 77



business plan.  It was agreed on 9 February 2012 by Council that £2 million will be part of 
the Council’s three year capital programme.   
 
Joint Governance Structures, as shown overleaf, with the ACC and Aberdeen City Council 
have been established.  The Digital Connectivity Board is a joint board between ACC and 
AC. It is co-chaired by its Chief Executives. Its membership consists of the two Councils’ 
Directors of Enterprise, Directors of Corporate Governance, Project Sponsors and Project 
Managers, Super-users - ACSEF representative (as a public-private partnership) and a 
business representative from the Federation of Small Business. The remit of this board is to 
receive reports and oversee all Digital Connectivity projects across the North East of 
Scotland. The board meets bi-monthly and all meetings are documented. The Project’s 
Terms of Reference have been developed to give a focus of the expectation and 
requirements of this Board. 
 
ACC has a City Digital Connectivity Project Delivery Board which is tasked to deliver the City 
wireless project but this is being extended to include broadband connectivity in the City’s 
contiguous area including Westhill. The Delivery Board consists of the Project Sponsor, 
Project Manager, Project Co-ordinator, Head of Procurement, Head of Asset Management, 
Head of Planning, Legal Advisor, Financial Advisor, Programme Management Office (PMO) 
representative, Super-user (ACSEF), Advisor from Aberdeenshire Council and Broadband 
Specialist. It meets monthly and its meetings are documented.  

Page 78



 
Governance Structure 

Co-Chairs  
Colin Mackenzie / Valerie Watt 
Members 

Gordon McIntosh 
Stephen Archer 
Stewart Carruth 
Christine Gore 

Gerry Brough 
Jan Falconer 
Roddy Matheson 
Rita Stephen 

Business representative 
Andy Willox (FSB) 
 

Digital Connectivity Project Board 
 

City Digital Connectivity Project Delivery 
Board 

 

Open Access Project Delivery Board  
 

Rural Access Project Delivery Board 
 

Sponsor 
Gerry Brough 
Members 
Jan Falconer 
PM 
Andrew Win PC 
Henrietta Pallos 
(PMO) 
Craig Innes 
(CPU) 
Hugh Murdoch 
(AMO)  
 

 
Margaret Bochel (PSD) 
Brian Downie (Finance)  
Scott Patterson 
(Finance) 
Jane MacEachran 
(Legal) 
Rita Stephen (Super 
User/ Client) 
Roddy Matheson, 
Aberdeenshire Council 

Vacancy 
Broadband Specialist 
 

Sponsor 
Christine Gore  
Gerry Brough 
Members  
Roddy Matheson 
Alistair Reid 
Jan Falconer 
Rita Stephen 

Sponsor 
Stephen Archer 
Members 
Murray Ferguson 
(CNP)  
Gordon Ogilivie 
(Angus Council) 
Paul Allan (NHS 
Grampian) 
Mike Powell (Marr 
Area Partnership) 
Andy Willox (FSB) 
Charlie Adam (NUF)  
Gordon Sutherland 
(Moray Council) 
 

 
 

 
Les Allan 
Belinda Miller 
Roddy Matheson 
Nicola Graham 
Alistair Reid 
Jackie Buchanan 
(all AC) 
Craig Innes (CPU) 

 

Page 79



 
 
 
The Scottish Government in the meantime produced its ‘Scotland’s Digital Future 
Action Plan. It consists of four Programmes.  Programme One is called 
‘Achieving a Step Change to 2015’.  Its aim is to address the digital divide, 
specifically for those areas where the market will currently not go, to ensure a 
step change in speeds by 2015. The outcome we are seeking is a significant 
uplift in speeds for everyone by 2015, with speeds of 40 – 80Mbps for 85% to 
90% of premises.  Scottish Government had planned to produce a Procurement 
Strategy by March 2012, commence procurement in September 2012 so as to 
award a contract by the first half 2013. 
 
The Scottish Government is producing a procurement strategy where it aims to 
use the UK Government’s procurement process in order to gain State Aid 
approval.  As this is yet to be achieved the procurement has been delayed.  
Though exempt from this ACC continues to work with Scottish Government.  
 
BT announced early this year it would upgrade two of its 13 exchanges that 
serve the city (nine in the City and four in the Shire).  A further four exchanges 
were due to be upgraded by September 2012 and one more by September 2013.  
Whilst these exchanges are concentrated around the City Centre, BT is a 
commercial enterprise which will only undertake work on cabinets that are 
commercially viable. ACC’s modelling shows that this will only upgrade 66% of 
premises in Aberdeen (this excludes new planned developments.) whilst the 
Scottish Government’s modelling indicates that 70% of premises will be covered. 
ACC is exempt from Programme One funding as the market will meet the city’s’ 
needs. Aberdeenshire is included in Programme One and has the Rural 
Broadband Project Delivery Board whose membership consists of a range of 
stakeholders and AC officers. This Board overseas the Rural Broadband work 
being undertaken as Phase one of the Scottish Government’s Digital Action Plan. 
It is also part of the Aberdeen City and Shire joint Digital Connectivity Board. 
 
The Scottish Government’s Digital Action Plan Programme Two aims to achieve 
world class digital connectivity by 2020.  Whilst there is no timing for this 
programme, Scottish Government is undertaking a Public Consultation for the 
procurement for the rest of Scotland to which they have identified £100 million of 
public funding to which the Scottish Government will expect local authority 
contributions which have yet to be determined. ACC has also been working with 
the Scottish Cities Alliance (Aberdeen, Dundee, Edinburgh, Glasgow, Perth and 
Stirling) on a Cities Digital Project which aims to focus on bringing together work 
with mobile operators, smart ticketing, wireless technology and transport and 
intra-city collaboration in digital connectivity. Cities are sharing ‘lessons learned’, 
along with shared resources and have a comprehensive stock-take on where 
Cities and regions are in the digital mix.  This is an important element within the 
City and Shire’s Digital Connectivity Strategy. 
 

6.3 DCMS UBF Phase 2 Bid 
 
A range of groups, included ACC, wrote and lobbied the UK government due to 
Aberdeen being excluded from the earlier Phase one of Urban Broadband 

Page 80



Funding for large cities.  In June 2012 the Chancellor George Osborne 
announced a £50 million fund for which 27 smaller cities including Aberdeen, 
Dundee and Perth could compete, with the closing date being 17 September 
2012. The City Digital Delivery Board produced ACCs bid to the Department of 
Culture, Media and Sport’s UBF Phase 2 bid with technical advice from Mott 
MacDonald and specialist State Aid advice which was submitted to DCMS on 14 
September 2012. 
 
The bid covers the contiguous area of Aberdeen City and includes Westhill.  The 
technical strategy to deliver enhanced digital connectivity across Aberdeen will 
be addressed in four parallel work streams:- 

• Open Access Fibre Network - a network built around the key 
developments areas in the City including the new growth areas defined by 
LDP12 and existing key business hubs such as Aberdeen Airport and the 
Bridge of Don. This also includes 20,000 homes and 196 hectares of 
employment & industrial land. It also includes 3,000 houses and 10 
hectares of employment land in Countesswells and up to 8,000 homes in 
Elsick. These are areas in the City and Shire that form part of the 
contiguous area.   Access to the major business parks in the neighbouring 
Shire (notably Westhill). Both Councils are contributing to this project.  
Both ACC and  AC will contribute to this. 

• City Wifi Scheme – to provide next generation wireless network deployed 
across the City to give enhanced broadband access capability for both 
residents and businesses. The access speeds obtained will be a function 
of the number of base stations deployed delivering download speeds of 
greater than 20Mbps. A deployment of this nature will provide citizens with 
an alternative to the ADSL services typically used in the City that suffer 
from contention and hence limited performance. It would also provide a 
commercial incentive to upgrade the City’s exchanges.  Implementation of 
WiFi hotspots across the City would provide benefits to businesses and 
consumers – providing remote access to key applications and flexible 
working. It is also likely to be attractive to visitors – enabling tourists to 
access local information and travel data. This is a concessionary scheme 
and would only requiring the use of Council assets as an investment 
stake. 

• Voucher Scheme- available to SMEs including Non-Government 
Organisations, Charitable organisations etc to provide a grant up to £500 
to contribute towards capital works to enable digital connectivity 

• White area in-fill1- use UBF funding to gap fund the elimination of such 
white areas (subject to state aid approval). This will be undertaken either 
through a separate ACC procurement or as part of wider national 
procurements currently being undertaken by the Scottish Government.  
Should this procurement fail to eventuate ACC will make efforts to meet 
the DCMS’s requirements within the given timeframes. 

                                                 
1 An area where there is an absence of affordable services at 2Mbit/s or above could be a useful retail 
indicator of a lack of effective competition and/or lack of economic viability for basic broadband 
networks, which will be surrounded by grey and black areas.  Grey areas In a grey area NGA networks may 
exist or be planned, but such network or networks have not been constructed in an open way such that 
competition in high speed broadband services can be assured and there is no proven c commitment by 
any operator to deploy an inherently open NGA network in the coming 5 years. A black area has access to 
NGA.  The in-fill is providing NGA. 

Page 81



   
Should ACC be successful in its bid it is envisaged that ACC will undertake an 
accelerated procurement process commencing in early December 2012.  This is 
because the UBF funds must be spent by December 2014.  As ACC’s bid is still 
in a competitive process, we are unable to disclose the total amount that has 
been bid. Should the bid be unsuccessful it is still viable to pursue the Open 
Access Fibre Network and City Wifi Scheme.  ACC already has a procurement 
brief for a City Wifi Scheme, produced by Mott MacDonald.  The Open Access 
Fibre Network has £4 million of funds from ACC and AC and it is possible to 
undertake the necessary procurement process so as to gain a development 
partner to undertake the work that is required. This plan not only considers the 
key development areas but will address the areas that will struggle to gain 
connectivity. The estimates the cost of specialist Procurement and legal advice  
be in the region of £330,000.  There is budget allocated for this cost which will be 
spread across both this and next financial year.  
 
Whilst the White area in-fill may not be possible in the short-term, this may 
eventually be addressed by the market. The voucher system may also be difficult 
to achieve but collaboratively with the Scottish City Alliance, ACC is working on 
Demand stimulation initiatives which can be replicated in the City. 
 
 
 
 
7. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS  
 
Jan Falconer 
Manager Projects Partnerships and Funding 
jfalconer@aberdeencity.gov.uk 
01224 522662 
 
 
 
8. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
The Scottish Government (2012) Infrastructure Action Plan - Step Change 2015 
Rest of Scotland Procurement Public Consultation 
The Scottish Government (2012) Scotland’s Digital Future First Annual Progress 
Report and Update – 2012 
European Commission, (2012) Draft EU Guidelines for the application of state 
aid rules in relation to the rapid deployment of broadband networks 
The House of Lords Committee Communications Session 2012-2013 (2012) 
Broadband for all— an alternative vision 
The Scottish Government (2012) Scotland’s Digital Future - Infrastructure Action 
Plan   
ACSEF Management Team Paper (2011) Maximising Digital Connectivity – Next 
steps and Action Plan 
The Scottish Government (2011) Scotland’s Digital Future A Strategy for 
Scotland, http://www.scotland.gov.uk/Resource/Doc/981/0114237.pdf 
DCMS (December 2010) Britain’s Superfast Broadband Future 

Page 82



 

 

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
COMMITTEE  Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure   
  
DATE    6th November 2012   
 
DIRECTOR   Gordon McIntosh   
 
TITLE OF REPORT International Partnerships & Twinning Applications  
  
REPORT NUMBER: EPI/12/197 
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
The purpose of this report is to bring before Committee applications for 
financial assistance from the International Twinning Budget 2012-2013 and to 
make recommendations. 
 
2. RECOMMENDATION(S)  

  
That the Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure Committee recommend the 
approval of the following grants from the International Twinning Budget 2012-
2013: 

 
  i)   £1,790 towards the participation of two entertainers from Stavanger, 

Clermont-Ferrand and Regensburg in Aberdeen City’s Christmas Light 
Switch-On Parade 24th to 26th November 2012. 
 

ii)    £3,410 maximum contribution towards the participation of traditional 
Norwegian singers from Stavanger to enhance the Christmas Tree Light 
Switch-On Ceremony, Aberdeen,  29th November to 1st December 2012. 

 
iii)   £2,400 contribution towards the visit of three Aberdeen City Council 

Officers to the Festival du Court Métrage, Clermont-Ferrand, 1st to 8th 
February 2013.  

 
iv)   £3,960 towards the participation of an Aberdeen delegation in the Social 

Initiative Market in Regensburg, 4th to 11th December 2012.  
 
v)   £6,800 contribution towards the inclusion of two musical elements from 

Regensburg and Stavanger twin cities in the Aberdeen Jazz Festival 
2013, 15th to 17th March 2013.  

 
 
 
 

 
 

Agenda Item 8.3

Page 83



 

 

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  
 

Full council approved the International Twinning Budget for 2012-2013 of 
£137,350. The approved budget from the Common Good Fund, provides 
£102,000 of monies towards the support of twinning projects and/or visits.  

 
   

 Balance of Budget Available £65,860 
i) Contribution towards the participation of two 

entertainers from Stavanger, Clermont-Ferrand and 
Regensburg in Aberdeen City’s Christmas Light 
Switch-On Parade 24th to 26th November 2012. 
 

£1,790 

ii) Contribution towards the participation of traditional 
Norwegian singers from Stavanger to enhance the 
Christmas Tree Light Switch-On Ceremony, 
Aberdeen, 29th November to 1st December 2012. 
 

£3,410 

iii) Contribution towards the visit of three Aberdeen 
City Council Officers to the Festival du Court 
Métrage, Clermont-Ferrand, 1st to 8th February 
2013.  
 

£2,400 

iv) Contribution towards the participation of an 
Aberdeen Delegation in the Social Initiative Market 
in Regensburg, 4th to 11th December 2012.  
 

£3,960 

v) Contribution towards the inclusion of two musical 
elements from Regensburg and Stavanger twin 
cities in the Aberdeen Jazz Festival 2013, 15th to 
17th March 2013.  

£6,800 

 TOTAL £18,360 
 Amount remaining in budget if 

recommendations approved: 
£47,500 

 
 
4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 

The health and safety implications of all visits are taken into account 
during planning, with any exceptional implications addressed at the time 
of application. 
 
The International Partnerships Officer regularly reviews the travel advice 
provided by the Foreign and Commonwealth Office and is in close contact 
with counterpart officers in the twin cities to ensure information provided to 
participants is accurate and up-to-date.  
 
Where individuals/groups from Aberdeen are travelling overseas, 
comprehensive pre-visit briefings are offered by the International 

Page 84



 

 

Partnerships Officer and all have the opportunity to ask questions and 
request support.  

 
When participating in overseas visits, Council employees are covered by 
the Council’s insurance policy while non-Council employees are instructed 
by the International Partnerships Officer to obtain comprehensive travel 
insurance.  
 
Long established twinning links will not be maintained without regular 
reciprocal visits and ongoing projects being initiated by communities, 
groups and individuals and there is the potential for the city’s international 
image to be damaged if we don’t continue to support established 
relationships. 
 
Without support from the twinning budget, exchanges and visits of this 
nature could not take place and people in Aberdeen would lose a wide 
range of opportunities to engage with the international community. In 
addition, incoming visitors to the city on twin city projects support the local 
economy through their participation at events and hospitality and retail 
expenditure while visiting the city.  
 
The International Partnerships Officer will provide a strong link between 
Aberdeen and our twin cities who also provide organisational support, 
advice and guidance when required.  
 
They will also make recommendations on funding available to the group 
and offer support to foster a relationship with the city so that it is long 
lasting and beneficial to the people of Aberdeen without requiring on-
going financial support from the public purse.  
 
All groups participating in twin city activities are encouraged to develop 
sustainable relationships with their partner groups. Links between most of 
the twin cities of Aberdeen are active, and links which have not recently 
been engaged have been contacted to re-establish communications. It is 
important that all visits and projects through twinning are long-standing 
and fruitful to ensure their benefit to the local people of Aberdeen, to 
establish and promote positively the overseas image of Aberdeen and for 
best practice to be shared between cities.  

 
 
5. BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 
 
i)  Contribution towards the participation of two entertainers from 

Regensburg, Clermont-Ferrand and Stavanger to participate in the 
Aberdeen City’s Christmas Light Switch-On Parade, 24th to 26th 
November 2012 .  

      
The annual Christmas Light Switch-On Parade is a popular and well-
attended event within the Winter Festival programme. Last year, over 
25,000 people came to Aberdeen city centre to see the festive lights 

Page 85



 

 

being switched-on.The event normally consists of local groups and 
entertainers from across the UK. This will be the first time an international 
element will be added to the festival.  
 

The City Events & Twinning team is looking into ways to incorporate the 
unique offerings from our twin cities to enhance and value-add to 
Aberdeen’s existing annual events programme. This involvement offers 
an excellent opportunity to demonstrate to Aberdeen’s population and 
overseas visitors our twin city connections and that Aberdeen strives to 
include an international dimension in its events.  
 

After discussions with organisers of the parade, it was decided two 
entertainers from Stavanger, Clermont-Ferrand and Regensburg will 
participate in the parade. Each of the entertainers will wear the traditional 
costume of their country and perform traditional folk dances for the 
crowds. This addition to the parade will add a new dynamic to this family 
orientated event which is key fixture in the Winter Festival programme. 
 

The twin cities participation in the parade will add a new element to this 
even changing event and will further promote the international links 
Aberdeen is proud of. . It will also highlight cultural differences between 
Aberdeen and its twin cities and the traditional ways in which we 
celebrate the festive season. Aberdeen is dedicated to demonstrating the 
importance of our twin cities by building and developing new projects 
which will benefit the local population and those of our overseas partners. 
It will further promote Aberdeen as a welcoming and open city which 
values its long standing relationships.. Our invitation to the twin cities has 
already initiated reciprocal invitations for Aberdeen performers to 
participate in events such as Stavanger’s National Day in May 2013. This 
will continue to promote Aberdeen City as an exciting place to visit, full of 
tradition, culture and heritage.  
 

The contribution asks for a maximum £1,790 contribution towards the 
participation of the six entertainers to cover the costs of accommodation, 
meals and transport. The twin cities would cover the cost of air flights for 
their participants to and from Aberdeen.   

 
ii) Contribution towards the participation of traditional Norwegian 

singers from Stavanger at the Christmas Tree Light Switch-On 
Ceremony, Aberdeen, 29th November to 1st December 2012.  

 
Another key event during the Winter Festival programme is the 
Christmas Tree Light Switch-On Ceremony. Each year the tree is 
generously gifted to Aberdeen from the City of Stavanger. This year, 
the dates of the ceremony have been changed in order to allow the 
Mayor of Stavanger to attend. Given the involvement of the Mayor of 
Stavanger and representatives from the Norwegian community in the 
tree ceremony, Stavanger Kommune has encouraged closer 
collaboration and suggested the inclusion of a cultural element 
traditional to Norway in the Christmas Tree Light Switch-On Ceremony.  

Page 86



 

 

 
Stavanger Kommune have proposed a group of traditional Norwegian 
singers perform at the Christmas Tree Light Switch-On Ceremony to 
promote the Aberdeen and Stavanger connection and demonstrate the 
strong links between the two cities. Some of the younger singers will be 
dressed in traditional costume of Norway, and the singers will perform 
a mixture of Norwegian and Scottish songs. Their performances will 
reflect the traditional customs of Norway and fulfill the request from 
Stavanger Kommune.  The citizens of Aberdeen will be invited to 
attend the ceremony to enjoy the choir as they sing popular Scottish 
songs.  

 
During the day of Thursday 29th November, various business meetings 
will be undertaken. The link between Stavanger and Aberdeen has in 
the past mainly focused on the business and economic links. 
Stavanger’s participation in the Christmas Tree Ceremony will promote 
both cities abilities to combine business, culture and tradition. It will 
also demonstrate to Stavanger that Aberdeen is able to effectively 
respond to requests and continue to have successful working 
relationships which are sustainable and provide mutual benefit.   
 
Also on the 29th November,, the singers will perform in various city 
centre locations in Aberdeen to highlight the Christmas Tree Switch-On 
Event, thus encouraging a larger audience to attend the event.  After 
the ceremony they will return to the city centre malls to perform again. 
The evening of Thursday 29th November has been designated by the 
BID as a ‘Shopping Extravaganza’ so the Norwegian performances will 
add to the whole retail experience. 
 
The Norwegian choir will also perform at the Nativity Scene and the 
Winter Gardens in Duthie Park on Friday 30th November to enhance 
the Winter Festival programme and increase the entertainment 
available to the local communities. The choir will then perform in 
Aberdeen Art Gallery on Saturday 1st December as the Gallery is 
holding a special event for the children. Their performance will be an 
excellent opportunity to showcase to the children and their families 
Aberdeen’s connections with Stavanger, increase their understanding 
of different cultures and the number of family orientated events in 
Aberdeen.  
 
Stavanger’s participation in the Winter Festival is aimed at enhancing 
the city events programme and providing the public with international, 
high quality performances from our twin city. For both the Light Switch-
On Parade and the Christmas Tree Ceremony, feedback will be sought 
from the event organisers and the twin cities in order to determine the 
success and value added to the events. The feedback will be used to 
determine to pursue twin cities participation in forthcoming years.  
 
Most of the singers have stated that when their performances finish in 
Aberdeen that they will be staying on in Aberdeen in order to see more 

Page 87



 

 

of the city and enjoy the retail opportunities available. Any of the 
singers who remain in Aberdeen for their own leisure purposes will pay 
their own hotel costs etc.  

 
The application requests a total of £3,410 to contribute towards the 
cost of accommodation, subsistence, travel and a contingency to meet 
any unanticipated costs. The participants will be covering some of the 
cost of accommodation and Stavanger Kommune is paying the cost of 
the flights for the singers and for the total cost of the visit of the Mayor 
of Stavanger.   

 
 

iii) Contribution towards the visit of three Officers to the Festival du 
Court Métrage, 1st to 8th February 2013.  
 
The Court du Métrage in Clermont-Ferrand is an international short film 
festival and in 2013 it will be the 35th annual festival to be held. The 
Festival provides an annual meeting place and exhibition space for 
various international and national organisations, agencies, individuals, 
societies and industries to showcase their activities, present their work, 
network and prepare for their next film or video productions.  
 
It is proposed that three Aberdeen City Council Officers attend the 
Clermont-Ferrand Festival du Court Métrage during the 2013 exhibition 
in order to determine how artists can submit a film to the Festival and 
what requirements there are to the film production. The visit will also 
establish the appropriate partners in Clermont-Ferrand and other 
industry professionals with whom Aberdeen should work with in order 
to successfully submit any short films. The links that would be forged 
during attendance will ensure that Aberdeen will have the opportunity 
to showcase short films filmed and produced in Aberdeen at the 2014 
Court Métrage. The year 2014 is particularly important to have work 
produced in Aberdeen shown at this Festival since it will be 
Homecoming year and Commonwealth Games in Glasgow. With much 
of the international focus on Glasgow, the International Festival in 
Clermont-Ferrand allows Aberdeen to promote its local film-making 
talent and cultural vibrancy.  

 
The main aim of the visit is to showcase homegrown talent on an 
international platform, but the Court du Métrage is also an excellent 
way of promoting Aberdeen City as a destination due to the wide, 
international audience and could provide incentives for film-makers to 
film their productions in Aberdeen or in the surrounding areas. 
 
Citymoves Aberdeen has already expressed interest in submitting a 
video to the Court du Métrage to portray the local dance talent and 
culture in Aberdeen. The visit will allow for the knowledge and expertise 
to be learnt in order to explain how local groups in Aberdeen can 
submit a video or film to demonstrate Aberdeen is a community based, 
talented and full of culture and artistic talent. Additionally, Aberdeen 

Page 88



 

 

College provides a course in ‘Film School’. Local Aberdeen students 
would have the opportunity to include their work within the Festival du 
Court Métrage. Arts Development would also work with the most 
vulnerable and disadvantaged citizens of Aberdeen. If the funding is 
approved the links will help the team to work with these groups to 
develop, produce and showcase their work.  
 
Aberdeen City Council has strong arts and cultural links with 
Regensburg, but has in the past struggled to find suitable cultural 
partners in Clermont-Ferrand in which to engage in this internationally 
recognised Festival. The International Partnerships Officer, through 
contacts in Clermont-Ferrand, has successfully managed to establish 
contact with the organisers of the Festival who want to welcome 
Aberdeen to their event and undertake meetings to discuss deeper 
involvement and participation for 2014.  
 
The application requests a maximum of £2,400 to cover the costs of 
flights and some subsistence for the Officers whilst in Clermont-
Ferrand. Clermont-Ferrand will cover the cost of accommodation for the 
delegates as part of the normal twinning agreement for visiting groups. 
Following the visit, applications will be made to Creative Scotland to 
secure future funding to support ongoing development.  

 
 

iv) Contribution towards the participation of Aberdeen Delegation in 
the Social Initiative Market, Regensburg between the 4th and 11th 
December 2012.  
 
The Arts Development team at Aberdeen City Council was invited to 
populate a stall at the Regensburg Social Initiative Market, during their 
recent visit to Regensburg for the Photo Symposium. It is anticipated 
between four to six adults will travel to Regensburg in order to 
participate in the Market. The delegation from Aberdeen will compose 
of the Aberdeen artists selling their products at the Market, as well as 
Aberdeen City Council Officers who will provide support and assistance 
to the artists and can promote the Aberdeen city as vibrant place to 
visit, work and live whilst in Regensburg. A delegation of between four 
to six people is also required as the Market in Regensburg operates 
between 1000 and 2100 therefore the delegation will take it in rota 
shifts to operate their stall, ensure that the appropriate working breaks 
can be taken as identified in the risk assessment and also to provide 
training sessions.  
 
The group will offer training sessions to groups involved with the Social 
Initiatives Market to help promote the arts as a tool for improving social 
inclusion. The work made for this project with Regensburg will be made 
available to local outlets in Aberdeen to promote the work of the Arts 
Development team and raise awareness of the strong twinning links 
with Regensburg. 
 

Page 89



 

 

 
For 2012, a stall will be held in Regensburg aided by Aberdeen City 
Council Art’s Development team promoting the social enterprise project 
currently being undertaken by the Arts Development team. This year 
the team and artists will work with the Art Development team 
volunteers, the 100 Word Project and the adult justice service to create 
small works to take to the market and sell to raise funds to sustain 
projects in Aberdeen.  
 
Aberdeen continues to be invited by Regensburg to participate in their 
Christmas Markets which is a credit to Aberdeen City Council for their 
innovative projects being undertaken in the local community and being 
used as a model of forward thinking.  
 
The people involved in designing, producing and packaging the artwork 
will be provided with an international platform for the sale of their work. 
The quality of the work shown at the market in Regensburg will 
promote the creative talents of the makers and the work Aberdeen City 
Council delivers to enable social inclusion. It will further promote 
Aberdeen as a city who actively engages its citizens in creativity and a 
supports a culturally rich environment in which to live, visit, and learn.  

 
The application requests a total of £3,960 towards the cost of air travel, 
local transport and some subsistence. A break-down of costs is given 
below.  

 
Expenditure  
Flights  £2,400 
Transport £300 
Subsistence £1,260 
Hire of Stall £400 
Accommodation £4,200 
Staff costs, materials £8,000 
Total £16,560 
  
Income  
Estimated Fund-Raising £400 
Contribution by participants £12,200 
Total £12,200 
Expenditure-Income £16,560-£12,200 
Total Applying For: £3,960 

 
 

 v)Contribution towards the inclusion of two musical elements from 
Regensburg and Stavanger twin cities in the Aberdeen Jazz 
Festival 2013, 15th to 17th March 2013.  .  

 
Jazz Aberdeen is a not for profit organisation which was started by the 
Aberdeen Jazz Group. Since its first annual Jazz Festival in 2003, the 
festival has helped Aberdeen in promoting jazz as it involves both local 

Page 90



 

 

and international artists, therefore attracting a large crowd of jazz fans 
to Aberdeen. The Festival also hosts various workshops for amateur 
jazz players and schools, ensuring that local people can benefit from 
the event.  
 
During the Aberdeen Jazz Festival 2012 two of Aberdeen’s twin cities, 
Regensburg and Stavanger participated and were highly successful 
during the event and received excellent media coverage with the band 
from Regensburg described as ‘punchy and dynamic’. As a result of the 
performance of the band from Regensburg, a new band formed 
consisting of jazz musicians from both Aberdeen and Regensburg. 
Both twin cities participation encouraged a younger audience to attend 
the Festival, particularly to witness the young jazz band Skadne Krek 
from Stavanger.   
 
The twin city links with Stavanger were strengthened by inviting a jazz 
club promoter from Stavanger who has since invited jazz musicians 
from Aberdeen to perform in Stavanger. Information on the Aberdeen 
Jazz Festival is sent to jazz bookers in Stavanger and it was found that 
people travelled from Stavanger to Aberdeen to attend the Festival and 
enjoyed retail and other leisure pursuits during their stay. It is evidence 
that the Aberdeen Jazz Festival, through the twin city links, is 
successful in attracting an international audience and internationally 
promoting the Aberdeen city, its culture and music. 

 
The Aberdeen Jazz Festival 2013 organisers wish to continue to 
promote the jazz musician exchanges between the twin cities, develop 
and enhance their twin city project work to the maximum benefit of the 
local communities and attract a larger audience to the Festival. The 
organisers of the Festival are applying for funding towards two 
elements of twin city inclusion in the 2013 Festival.  
 
The first element is applying for funding to help towards commissioning 
a new project of collaboration featuring the Aberdeen and Regensburg 
musicians. Regensburg will send a professional jazz band to Aberdeen, 
including the international player Walter Lang, in order to compose and 
rehearse new material with Aberdeen musicians. This new project will 
then be premiered at the Aberdeen Jazz Festival 2013. The joint 
Aberdeen and Regensburg band will also perform at the Regensburg 
Jazz Festival in 2013 on a reciprocal visit.  
 
The second request for support contributes towards bringing a new 
dimension to the Aberdeen Jazz Festival by including the Scottish 
National Youth Jazz Orchestra workshop in Aberdeen. Music students 
who are currently at University from either Stavanger or Clermont-
Ferrand will provide music tuition at this workshop, offering the 
opportunity for youth jazz musicians to meet with their twin city 
partners, learn from the partners, share techniques and gain insight to 
a different approach to jazz music and culture.  By involving the 
younger people into the Aberdeen Jazz Festival, and adding an 

Page 91



 

 

international dimension from the twin cities will contribute towards 
sustaining the legacy of the long-standing jazz links Aberdeen has with 
Regensburg and Stavanger.  
 
Aberdeen Jazz Festival has already proved that it is successful with the 
promotion of the Aberdeen jazz scene internationally as fans from both 
Regensburg and Stavanger alike flew to Aberdeen in order to attend to 
the Festival and Aberdeen musicians have been invited to their jazz 
events. In order for the Festival to maintain its continued success, it is 
important to maintain and develop new projects with the twin cities, to 
attract and promote the music and culture in Aberdeen and highlighting 
that the city continues to provide high quality entertainment for the local 
population and its visitors. The Festival will be enhanced from last year 
by providing development and educational opportunities for the youth 
audience in Aberdeen.  
 
The application requests a maximum of £6,800 towards 
accommodation, transport and additional fess. The musicians have 
accepted a lower fee in order to reduce the total amount applied for. 
The twin cities will cover the cost of air travel for the musicians 
travelling to Aberdeen. A break-down of the costs has been given.  
 
Element One Expenditure  
Flights  £1,400 
Hotels £1,260 
Transport £380 
Subsistence £480 
Artist Fees £3,600 
Jazz Aberdeen £450 
Marketing £450 
Office & Promotion Expenses £1,200 
Total £9,220 
  
Element Two Expenditure  
Flights £1,500 
Accommodation £600 
Subsistence £400 
Fees £1,000 
Transport £180 
Office & Promotion Expenses £900 
Total £4,580 
Element One + Element Two £13,800 
  
Income  
Contribution from participants £6,100 
Other sources of income £900 
Total £7,000 
Expenditure-Income £13,800-£7,000 
Total Applying For: £6,800 

Page 92



 

 

 
6. IMPACT 
 

Aberdeen – the Smarter City 
 

•        We will promote Aberdeen as a great place to live, 
bring up a family, do business and visit. 

•        We will ensure that Union Street regains its 
position as the heart of the city and move cultural 
activity centre-stage through re-invigorated cultural 
leadership. 

 
Smarter Living ( Quality of Life) 
 

•        We aspire to be recognised as a City of Culture, a place of 
excellence for culture and arts by promoting Aberdeen as a 
cultural centre hosting high quality diverse cultural events for 
the whole community and beyond. 

 
Smarter Economy (Competitiveness) 
 

•        We will work with partners to promote the city as a place to 
invest, live, work and export from. 

 
Community Plan 

•        Work with other organisations, agencies and groups, including 
Visit Scotland and Visit Aberdeen, to encourage tourism and the 
provision of facilities for tourists. 

 
Promoting and supporting international exchanges, involving various 
communities of interest, significantly contributes to Aberdeen City 
Council Vision as outlined above and to the actions of the Single 
Outcome Agreement. The outlined twinning projects also align with the 
cultural strategy vision as it allows for improved communication of 
cultural opportunities, helps with changing the perception of the city, to 
develop a stronger cultural identity and to have increased levels of 
effective partnership working.  
 
Aberdeen’s twin city partnership initiatives: 
 
•  Foster international understanding and friendship and an appreciation 
of cultural diversity 
 
• Provide Aberdeen’s citizens with an awareness of, and insight into, 
international issues and perspectives and their impact on Aberdeen 
and Scotland 

 
• Promote the image and raise the profile of the city overseas; and 

 

Page 93



 

 

• Provide a forum for the exchange of knowledge, expertise, skills, 
ideas and best practice in any given field.  

 
Opportunities for groups, communities and organisations to access twin 
city projects and exchanges and for possible sources of funding are 
advertised through the Council’s website, press releases, school 
circulars where appropriate and the Aberdeen Council of Voluntary 
Organisations e-bulletin.  
 
Human Rights, Equalities and Diversity: Aberdeen City Council has in 
place a range of statutory and discretionary plans, schemes and 
policies to promote equality. Officers endeavour to target groups and 
communities which have not previously had experience of international 
visits or exchanges, or have been under-represented in twin city 
activities. Applicants complete an equal opportunities monitoring form 
as part of the application process.  
 

7. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
None used 

 
8. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS  

 
Amye Robinson 
International Partnerships Officer 
ARobinson@aberdeencity.gov.uk 
01224 523749 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 94



 

 

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
COMMITTEE  Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure   
  
 
DATE    6th November 2012    
 
DIRECTOR   Gordon McIntosh    
 
TITLE OF REPORT Support for local employability training providers 
  
 
REPORT NUMBER: EPI/12/239 
       
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 

This report aims to highlight the needs and the potential benefits of 
supporting local employability training providers. 

 
2 RECOMMENDATION(S)  

1.  Officers within Employability, Skills and Community Enterprise 
further investigate and consult on the optimum means of supporting 
local employability training providers. 
2.  Officers submit a further report to committee once further 
investigation and consultation has been completed. 

  
3.     FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  

 
Further investigation and consultation into the 
development of a support mechanism for local 
employability training providers will have no 
additional financial resource implications on the 
service 

 
4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 

If officers participate in this piece of work, it will mean that there is 
adequate and appropriate training provision available on a local level 
which may have a positive impact on the ability of local businesses to 
attract appropriate skills to support their needs, and a potential 
decrease in numbers of long term dis-engaged people within our 
communities. 
 

5. BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 
  
With employability high on both the political and economic development 
agendas it is imperative that Aberdeen City Council ensures that we 
have robust employability support provision within the city that links 

Agenda Item 8.4

Page 95



 

 

with local employer and client needs and can address all aspects of 
disengagement. 
 
Current Situation 
Currently there are a number of local specialist employability service 
providers that work in isolation across the city.  Initial feedback from 
meetings with companies has identified that there are no clear 
communication channels between these companies, linkages or 
communication channels into and from the community planning 
framework are poor, which often excludes the evaluation of information 
obtained from working with local clients and businesses when strategic 
decisions are made.  Initial discussions with local employability training 
providers also highlighted a willingness to work closer together, to 
address the ever changing local employability and engagement 
landscape and strengthen their position when competing against 
national providers.  The need to strengthen local provision is further 
enforced with the introduction of Welfare reform. What they sought was 
an appropriate platform to bring their organisations together to aid 
meaningful exchange and development. 
 
Increasingly, employability contracts are awarded on a national basis, 
which requires high level financial robustness and a track record of 
large scale delivery, which eliminates many local providers from the 
tendering process and also eliminates appropriate provision based on 
local needs and knowledge. 
 
This system also encourages competition amongst local providers and 
this produces a barrier to partnership working and co-operative 
engagement within the employability providers community.  This can 
lead to duplication of and gaps in service provision, and a general lack 
of awareness of the service provision landscape. 
 
It must also be noted that more and more contracts are awarded on an 
outcome related basis, with payment not being made till many months 
after outcomes are achieved, which puts severe financial strain on the 
organisations. 
 
These administrative issues all have an impact on the breadth, depth 
and sustainability of services and this has an ultimate negative impact 
on the number of disengaged individuals within the city.   This is a 
particularly significant issue, since the current economic recession 
means that the level of disengagement within the youth population is 
already rising on both a local and national level. 
 
Furthermore, local businesses across all sectors are having increasing 
difficulties in recruiting appropriate staff, which will negatively impact on 
service delivery, growth, sustainability and ultimately business location 
in Aberdeen. 

Page 96



 

 

 Going Forward 
Officers within the ESCE service will further consult with other external 
agencies, local employability training providers and members of 
Aberdeen Works to highlight the concerns raised by local businesses 
and training providers to identify potential solutions that could create a 
platform for local employability training providers to work closer 
together. 
The formation of an appropriate platform should also ensure that a 
clear pipeline of employability support services is developed, which will 
engage with all sections of the population from schoolchildren through 
to those approaching retirement.  This will ensure that local needs on 
an individual and business level are met, and that a diverse range of 
employability options are promoted. 
The formation of any support platform should not duplicate the work of 
any existing forums or partnerships. 
 

 Potential Benefits 
The potential benefits of establishing an appropriate platform for local 
employability training providers include: 

o Sharing of information 
o Gaps in provision can be identified and addressed 
o Access to wider funding streams – explore funding opportunities 

and scope for collaborative bids 
o Shared knowledge of local provision 
o Improved pipeline progression 
o Wider skills and knowledge base 
o Facilitate increased partnership working 
o Central communication point 
o Development of cradle to grave provision 
o Coordination of  relationships 
o Improved alignment to business needs 
o Improved relationships with business community 

 
Initial discussions have already taken place with a number of 
employability training providers to identify if there was a willingness to 
participate if an appropriate platform were to be established.(Aberdeen 
Foyer, Pathways, SHMU, Enterprise North East, Opito, Cornerstone, 
GREC) and positive responses were received from all the above 
organisations. If approval to initiate further investigation and 
consultation is given then other local employability training providers 
will also be consulted.  Officers from Education Culture and Sport will 
also be included in this consultation. 
 
Reporting process 
 
All information gained during the consultation process will be shared 
with our external partners and Aberdeen Works, prior to appropriate 
proposals being submitted and a future report being submitted to 
Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure committee. 
 

Page 97



 

 

 
 

6. IMPACT 
The project contributes significantly and directly to the achievement of   
 
Single Outcome agreement (SOA) National Outcomes:  
1. We realise our full economic potential with more and better 

employment opportunities for our people 
2. We are better educated, more skilled and more successful 
 
Aberdeen the smarter City 
1. We will enhance the physical and emotional wellbeing of all our  

citizens by offering support and activities which promote 
independence, resilience, confidence and self-esteem 

2. Working with our third, public and private sector partners, we will 
provide opportunities for lifelong learning which will develop 
knowledge, skills and attributes of our citizens to enable them to 
meet the changing demands of the 21st century. 

 
3. Again, working with partners, we will create a City of Learning 

which will empower individuals to fulfill their potential and contribute 
to the economic, social and cultural wellbeing of our communities. 

 
4. We will aim to have a workforce across the city which has the skills 

and knowledge to sustain, grow and diversify the city economy. 
Equality and Human Rights implications 
 
A full equality and human rights impact assessment was not required, as this 
paper only seeks approval to investigate and further consult.  A full EHRI will 
be undertaken once potential solutions are in place.. 
  
7. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 None 
 
8. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS  

 
Heather Farquhar 
Senior Officer, Employability, Skills and Community Enterprise 
Tel: 523361 
Email: hfarquhar@aberdeencity.gov.uk 

 
 

Page 98



 

 

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
COMMITTEE    Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure  
 
DATE      2012  
 
DIRECTOR     Gordon McIntosh 
 
TITLE OF REPORT   West Huxterstone, Kingswells Masterplan 
 
REPORT NUMBER:       EPI/12/222 
 
 
1 PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 This report outlines the West Huxterstone, Kingswells Masterplan, 

prepared as a guide for the future development of land identified as 
Opportunity Site OP42 in the Aberdeen Local Development Plan (2012) 
and report on the results of public consultation.   

 
1.2 A summary document of the West Huxterstone, Kingswells Masterplan 

has been appended to this Committee Report.  The West Huxterstone, 
Kingswells Masterplan for site OP42 (September 2012) can be viewed 
by accessing the following link: 
 
www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/masterplanning 

 
1.3 A hard copy of the Masterplan is available in the Member’s Library, in 

the Planning and Sustainable Development service at Ground Floor 
North, Marischal College, or by contacting the Masterplanning, Design 
and Conservation team.   

 
2 RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 
2.1 It is recommended that the Committee: 
 

(a)  Adopt the West Huxterstone, Kingswells Masterplan as 
Supplementary Guidance subject to endorsement by the 
Scottish Government. 

 
2.2 Definition 

‘Supplementary Guidance’ (SG) – this is adopted and issued by a 
planning authority in connection with a Local Development Plan, as a 
result any such guidance will form part of the Development Plan. 
Before adoption, the SG must be publicised and a period for 
representations to be made specified, this includes the targeting of key 
consultees and stakeholders who may want the opportunity to 
comment. Following the specified consultation period and as a result of 
comments received, relevant changes will be made to the final 

Agenda Item 9.1

Page 99



 

 

document before reporting back to committee and subsequent 
submission to Scottish Ministers.  After 28 days have elapsed, the 
authority may then adopt the guidance unless Scottish Ministers have 
directed otherwise. 

 
3 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
3.1 There are no direct financial implications arising from this report outwith 

normal officer time to evaluate the Masterplan. The developers have 
met the cost of preparation of the Masterplan including all consultation 
and engagement.  The proposals will result in efficiencies in the 
determination of future planning applications related to the Masterplan, 
leading to a reduction in Council staff time to assess future detailed 
proposals. 

 
4 OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 There are no known property, legal or equipment implications arising 

from this report. 
 
4.2 The Masterplan reduces the risk of piecemeal and inappropriate 

development within the site, by setting out the policies, opportunities 
and constraints up front.   

 
4.3 Approving the Development Framework and Masterplan will contribute 

to efficiencies in determining future planning applications. By 
encouraging acceptable forms and uses of new development to be 
agreed publicly, it allows more informed decision making to be made 
earlier, saving time and resources for staff, applicants and the public.  

 
4.4 In accordance with the Aberdeen Local Development Plan, Appendix 4, 

Action Programme and the Infrastructure and Developer Contributions 
Manual, the Masterplan references how the development will address 
requirements for cumulative and local transport infrastructure; public 
transport along with walking and cycling. 

 
4.5 A Strategic Environmental Assessment has been undertaken on the 

West Huxterstone, Kingswells site as part of the preparation for the 
Aberdeen Local Development Plan.  

 
5 BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 
 
5.1 The Masterplan has been produced by Ryden on behalf of Stewart 

Milne Homes and Graham Homes and aims to produce a high quality 
and deliverable village expansion to the south east of Kingswells.  A 
multi disciplinary project team has contributed to the preparation of the 
masterplan, including Ryden (planning), Nicoll Russell Studios 
(architects) and Fairhursts (transportation). 

 
Site Description 

Page 100



 

 

 
5.2 The site is located to the north of the A944, an arterial route into the 

City from the west.    The site is generally low lying and rises from 
south to north.  The site is bounded to the east by green belt, to the 
west by Fairley Road, the Den Burn to the south and the Lang Stracht 
to the north. 

 
Policy 
 
5.3 The West Huxterstone, Kingswells Masterplan is intended to act as 

interim planning advice, pending the implementation of the process to 
ratify the Masterplan as Supplementary Guidance by the Scottish 
Government. 

 
5.4 The Masterplan has been prepared following the Council’s adopted 

Aberdeen Masterplanning Process and contributes to the Scottish 
Government and Aberdeen Local Development Plan policy aims of 
raising design quality in new development, through the 6 key qualities 
of creating successful places, namely – distinctive, welcoming, safe 
and pleasant, adaptable, easy to get to and move around, and 
resource efficient.  

 
5.5 The site is allocated for 120 houses in the Aberdeen Local 

Development Plan (2012).   The development is proposed over the 
period 2007-2016.  A contribution of 25% affordable housing is also 
required within this site.   

 

5.6 An assessment of the environmental impact of the Masterplan was 
made alongside the Aberdeen Local Development Plan. Since the 
adoption of the Local Development Plan there has been additional 
consultation undertaken, additional detail added and amendments 
made. To ensure that this is properly documented a Screening Report 
has been prepared and submitted to the SEA Gateway and the 
Consultation Authorities. All the Consultation Authorities have agreed 
that the Masterplan is unlikely to have significant environmental effects. 
If the recommendations are agreed a formal determination will be 
issued and advertised.  

 
Design Principles 
 
5.7 The Masterplan sets out a vision for the site as being an expansion to 

Kingswells.  West Huxterstone, Kingswells will be a place in which the 
houses, streets and outdoor spaces all combine to reflect the high 
standards and aspirations of not only the developers but also the 
Council and the community of Kingswells. 

 
5.8 The Masterplan provides a spatial framework, discusses landscape, 

connectivity and transport proposals and sets out a phasing scheme, 
all summarised in the appendix to this report. 

 

Page 101



 

 

5.9 The approach to development at West Huxterstone, Kingswells is 
based on: 

 
• Creating a unique environment which complements the existing 

character of the local area; 
• Integration with the existing neighbourhoods of Kingswells which 

are linked by a strategic landscape network; 
• Avoid skyline development by ensuring that buildings fit within a 

detailed landscape framework; 
• Safeguard and enhance the ecological habitat of the Den Burn; 

and 
• Connect the site in terms of pedestrian, cycle and vehicular 

traffic with new pathways between the housing and surrounding 
recreational areas. 

 
5.10 The location and topography of the site play an important role in the 

form, design and character of the development.  The site is split into 
four character areas: 

 
• Rural Lang Stracht; 
• Central; 
• The Denburn; and 
• Fairley Road. 
 
These are described in the appended summary document. 

 
5.11 Housing –25% affordable housing will be provided in accordance with 

the Aberdeen Local Development Plan.  Affordable housing will be 
integrated with private development areas and will reflect housing 
need.  The proposed mix of housing is described in the summary. 

 
Infrastructure  
 
5.12 Walking and Cycling – The Masterplan acknowledges that an east/ 

west link connecting the employment area to Kingswells and beyond to 
Northfield as well as links and extensions to the Westhill/ Aberdeen 
cycle route will be provided. 

 
5.13 Public Transport – There may be a need for extensions to existing 

services along with opportunities to integrate the Park and Ride 
services. 

 
5.14 Roads – There is a requirement for a new major junction from OP40 

West Hatton and Home Farm access to A944 and new road access 
within junction at Kingswells perimeter road.  There is also a need to 
upgrade the junctions at A944/ B9119 on approach to Westhill and 
A944 Kingswells roundabout.  The developer is in discussion with ACC 
and appropriate contributions will be agreed through the Transport 
Assessment process. 

 

Page 102



 

 

5.15 Health – the Masterplan acknowledges that there is a requirement for 
financial contributions to provide one additional GP and two additional 
dental chairs to serve both the Kingswells and Maidencraig 
developments.  This will be agreed through planning gain and a 
Section 75 legal agreement. 

 
5.16 Education – Developers are currently in discussion with ACC regarding 

capacity at Kingswells Primary School.  Appropriate contributions will 
be agreed at the planning application stage. 

 
Public Consultation 
 
5.17 Throughout the process the project team have worked with the local 

authority, statutory consultees and the local community.      
 
5.18 Design for the site has evolved with continued input from the 

community and key stakeholders.  Input from the community has 
informed the proposals.   Two community events took place during the 
Masterplanning Process on 5 March 2012 and 22 May 2012.  Please 
see Appendix 1 for a detailed summary of the issues raised and 
addressed at this stage. 

 
5.19 The public consultation arising from the Committee’s decision at their 

meeting on 11 September 2012 ran from 17 September to 15 October 
2012.  The following statutory consultees were included  

 
• Kingswells Community Council; 
• Aberdeen City and Shire Strategic Planning Authority; 
• Aberdeenshire Council Planning Authority; 
• Forestry Commission Scotland; 
• Aberdeen City and Shire Economic Future (ACSEF); 
• Scottish Water; 
• Scottish Environment Protection Agency (SEPA); 
• Scottish Natural Heritage (Grampian); 
• Historic Scotland; 
• Scottish Enterprise (Grampian); 
• Transport Scotland; 
• NHS Grampian; 
• NESTRANS; and 
• Aberdeen City and Shire’s Planning Gain team. 
 

5.20 Consultation responses were received from Historic Scotland, SEPA, 
Aberdeen City and Shire’s Planning Gain team, Kingswells Community 
Council (KCC), two individuals who are members of the Kingswells 
community and are also members of the Kingswells Primary School 
Parent Council and seven individuals from the Kingswells community. 

 
5.21 The main issues arising from consultation include: 
 

Page 103



 

 

• Education 
 
Concerns were raised by KCC, members of the Kingswells Primary 
School Parent Council and members of the Kingswells community 
regarding provision of primary education and it has been asked to 
relook the proposed phasing.  The current Aberdeen City Council 
consultation on the School Estates Strategy will inform the exact 
education provision in the Kingswells area and developer contributions 
to education will be determined once the conclusions to the 
consultation have been formed. 
 
The ratio used to determine an estimate of pupils per household was 
based on a house buyer’s survey.  The ratio will be looked at again in 
due course once the Council’s research team has received the 2011 
Census data. 
 

• Access and transport  
 
KCC and one individual object to any vehicular access to and from the 
Lang Stracht and think that two accesses into the development should 
be from Fairley Road.  It is stated that the Lang Stracht will be a 
designated bus lane soon and they wish it to remain a free flowing bus 
route, an access to local residents only and kept relatively traffic free as 
it is a popular route for walkers, cyclists and horse riders.  They also 
have concerns regarding visibility approaching the proposed access 
into the proposed development, the width and condition of the Lang 
Stracht and development detracting from the current rural setting.   
 
It is acceptable to take access from the Lang Stracht.  Visibility and 
junctions spacing requirements, along with land ownership issues have 
all meant that it has not been possible to gain two accesses from 
Fairley Road.  The access onto the Lang Stracht and Fairley Road will 
be designed to comply with Aberdeen City Council’s roads standards 
and upgrades to that road made where necessary.  The access to and 
from the Lang Stracht is secondary with right in and left out turn only to 
prevent vehicles turning right onto the Lang Stracht.  The majority of 
the traffic into the site is expected to be from Fairley Road.   
 
It is therefore not anticipated that there will be a significant increase in 
traffic along the Lang Stracht.  It is understood that the bus lane access 
will apply only to the A944 end of the Lang Stracht and have no impact 
on existing local access arrangements.  The access proposed from the 
Lang Stracht will not affect the flow of buses.  The Lang Stracht will 
remain as bus/emergency vehicle/cycle access only. 
 
Some comments were received that highlighted that the roads around 
Kingswells are already very busy.  It is stated that the additional 120 
homes will have an impact on traffic and will have a detrimental effect 
on Kingswells.   Fairhurst have been appointed as Transport 
Consultants and an initial assessment of transport in the area 

Page 104



 

 

demonstrates that the predicted peak period traffic movements from 
the development can be accommodated within available traffic capacity 
at local junctions and will have an imperceptible impact on the A944 
junction roundabout.  Development will be supported by the 
infrastructure required to sustain the development which will be 
identified through the Transport Assessment.    
 

• Internal road layout 
 
KCC object to the internal road layout because it reflects land 
ownership and there are concerns regarding piecemeal development.  
There are also concerns that the dead end road within the Stewart 
Milne land will lead to future development to the adjoining fields to the 
east.  The roads standards and visibility requirements have dictated the 
location of the access roads.  The layout of streets is informed by 
Designing Streets, a policy statement in Scotland for street design as 
well as the Kingswells Development Framework and the need to 
protect the GSN to the south.  It marks a change in the emphasis of 
street design towards place-making.  Some curves may be considered 
appropriate, however, Designing Streets states that layouts that use 
excessive or gratuitous curves should be avoided, as they are less 
efficient, reduce legibility and make access for pedestrians and cyclists 
less direct.  The masterplan road layout proposed contains some 
curves as a result of the consultation exercise and it is considered that 
is creates a balance between the KCC and planning guidance.  The 
masterplan does not consider the development of the land to the east 
of West Huxterstone and the suitability of this site is not an issue to be 
taken into consideration in the masterplan. 

 
• Green Space Network and the Denburn 

 
KCC has stated that the Green Space Network (GSN) must be 
protected and enhanced and that SUDS ponds should not be 
unattractive and lifeless dry basins.  The GSN will be enhanced as well 
as protected, with additional landscaping provided as appropriate.  A 
Landscape Consultant forms part of the design team who are 
developing proposals for the site.   Footpaths suitable for the size of the 
site will be incorporated.  The comment regarding the SUDS ponds is 
noted and engineers are looking at a solution. 
 
• Environment and Flooding 

 
SEPA have asked that the following issues are addressed prior to the 
submission of a planning application: foul and surface water drainage, 
pollution prevention and environmental management and protection of 
the water environment.  Contact will be made with those responsible in 
due course during the planning application stage.  The site will also be 
assessed for flood risk from all water sources as suggested by SEPA. 
 

Page 105



 

 

Another response highlighted that the south of the site is prone to 
flooding.  GSN and the development of SUDS will help buffer the 
development from the burn. 

 
• The Lang Stracht as a street 
 
KCC and one individual object to the concept of making the Lang 
Stracht a street.  Development on the Lang Stracht would be excluded 
from the rest of the development and would be out of keeping with the 
existing houses.  There are also concerns expressed that this kind of 
development would promote future development across the Lang 
Stracht.  In response, the requirement to make the Lang Stracht a 
Street arose from the Development Framework which requires that 
houses face onto the Lang Stracht.  The masterplan is bound by the 
requirements of this document.  The existing houses along the Lang 
Stracht currently face onto open fields and it is considered that this 
would be an attractive outlook for new residents of those properties.  
The masterplan does not consider the development of the land 
opposite and the suitability of this site is not an issue to be taken into 
consideration in the masterplan. 
 
KCC also state that if the Lang Stracht were to be made a street it 
would need a footpath to extend to Fairley Road and this may cause 
some land ownership issues.  The masterplan states that new 
pavements will be provided to connect to the existing network of paths 
and core paths. 

 
• House types 

 
KCC and one individual are concerned that more West One house 
types, starter homes, are proposed for the West Huxterstone site.  In 
response, the development of West Huxterstone will contain a variety 
of house types, not just West One sized properties.  This is to ensure a 
choice of house types across the development. House types will range 
from one bedroom up to five bedroom properties,  
thereby providing a range of  dwellings to meet a variety of needs.     
The West One sized properties will make up the affordable element of 
the site, which is a requirement of the Local Development Plan. 
 
With regards to KCC’s disappointment that there are no plans for 
bungalows for elderly or disabled people it must be reiterated that the 
exact mix and type has yet to be determined and will be addressed with 
the detailed planning applications that will be received in due course.   
 
• Affordable housing 

 
KCC has stated that affordable housing appears to be concentrated in 
one area of the masterplan site and assume that they will be in the 
form of the blocks of eight homes used in the West One development.  
The masterplan states that it is anticipated that these will be provided 

Page 106



 

 

on site and integrated throughout the development. The type, style and 
exact location will be discussed with Aberdeen City Council during the 
planning application process. 

 
• Size of development 

 
KCC has raised concerns on the final number of units that will be 
developed on the site.  The site is identified for 120 units and the layout 
is based on this number.  An adjoining landowner has demonstrated 
interest in developing their land that lies within the boundary for OP42.  
At the moment there is no finalised proposal and indication of unit 
numbers.  Exact numbers will be determined at the detailed planning 
application stage however over development of the site will be 
unacceptable. 
 
• Broadband and lack of facilities 

 
One individual raised concerns regarding slow broadband and the lack 
of food shopping facilities in the area.  With regards to broadband, this 
is noted and will be investigated as part of the planning application 
process but is, strictly speaking, not a material planning consideration.  
Regarding shopping facilities, a residential development of this size 
would not generate the demand for more convenience or comparison 
shopping facilities therefore there is no need for this development to 
contribute to shopping facilities.  The development is in close proximity 
to the existing neighbourhood centre which provides local shopping 
facilities. 
 
Another respondent raised concerns regarding the GP facilities and 
question how they will cope with more families in the area.  It has been 
identified that there is a requirement to extend Kingswells Health 
Centre to give space for one additional GP. 

 
• Consultation process 

 
KCC are unhappy with the consultation process because they 
interpreted the EP&I Committee decision from Tuesday 11 September 
2012 differently from officers.  KCC are also unhappy with the lack of 
confirmation that there was a public consultation, the duration of 
consultation and how the consultation was advertised on the Council’s 
web pages. 
 
Officers took from the Committee decision that they had been 
instructed to go out for public consultation and report back to the next 
EP&I Committee with the responses they received from the 
consultation. 
 
Following this Committee decision, consultation papers were issued on 
17 September.  Kingswells Community Council was issued a letter, 
stating that the consultation had begun and detailing where the 

Page 107



 

 

document could be found on the public pages of our website, as part of 
this process. 
 
Regarding the duration of the consultation a decision was made to 
consult for four weeks.  There is nowhere in legislation that stipulates 
how long consultation should be for masterplanning documents 
therefore officers have to make a decision on what is appropriate.  After 
discussion internally there was a decision that a four week consultation 
would be sufficient and this would also allow us to report to the next 
EP&I Committee.  

 
Masterplanning never use the ‘Current Consultations’ page to advertise 
consultation and have always used the 'Masterplanning Public 
Consultation' page.  This is something that we will raise with our IT 
department to see if a link from the current consultation page to our 
masterplanning page can be established to avoid any future confusion.  
 
Officers received a number of responses from members of the public.  
 
IMPACT 

 
5.22 The Masterplan promotes access to walking and cycling networks. 
 
5.23 The Masterplan contributes to the following Single Outcome Priorities: 

1 – We live in Scotland that is the most attractive place for doing 
business in Europe; 2. We realise our full economic potential with more 
and better employment opportunities for our people; 10. We live in well-
designed, sustainable places where we are able to access the 
amenities and services we need; 12 – We value and enjoy our built and 
natural environment and protect and enhance it for future generations. 

 
5.24 The proposal contributes to “Aberdeen – A Smarter City” in terms of 

providing a clean, safe and attractive streetscape and promote bio-
diversity and nature conservation, encouraging wider access to green 
space in our streets, parks and countryside, improving access to 
affordable housing in the private sectors by working with developers to 
maximize the effective use of developer contributions. 

 
5.25 The proposal is consistent with the Council’s Corporate Plan in 

particular delivering high levels of design from all development, 
maintaining an up-to-date planning framework, sustainable 
development and open space provision.  

 
5.26 The proposal is consistent with the Planning and Sustainable 

Development Service Plan, in particular engaging the community in the 
planning process, and the delivery of Masterplans/Development 
Frameworks in line with the Aberdeen Masterplanning Process.  

 

Page 108



 

 

5.27 An Equalities and Human Rights Impact Assessment has been 
prepared. In summary, many of the aims of the proposal will have 
positive benefits, including; 

 
Other (Housing) – Greater provision of affordable and family housing in 
Aberdeen as a result of development. 

 
Other (Health) – Improved access useable open spaces for leisure 
pursuits and opportunities for walking/cycling/exercise. 

 
6 BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
6.1 The West Huxterstone, Kingswells (August, 2012 issue) is a large 

document containing a lot of illustrative material and can be viewed by 
accessing the following link: 
http://thezone/PI/SL_stratlead_reports.asp  

 
6.2 Aberdeen Local Development Plan 2012 

http://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/nmsruntime/saveasdialog.asp?lID=422
78&sID=9484  
 

6.3 Aberdeen Masterplanning Process 2012 
http://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/nmsruntime/saveasdialog.asp?lID=317
82&sID=14394 
 

7 REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS 
 

Louise MacSween 
Planner 
lmacsween@aberdeencity.gov.uk 
01224 523326 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 109



 

 

Appendix 1 
 
Over the two consultation events 25 responses were received.  Some of the 
comments highlighted support for the open space, new school, quality of 
place and design.  Full details of the consultation are summarised on page 9 
and detailed in Appendix 1 and Appendix 2 of the Masterplan.  Comments 
raising opposition are summarised below with associated outcomes: 
 
Comment Response 
School and Facilities  
Concerned about the school and numbers 
of pupils.  Already a large waiting list for the 
nursery.  Will there be provision made for a 
new school primary or secondary.  Also 
concerned about the impact on other 
village facilities. 

The Local Development Plan indicates that 
contributions to the health centre are 
required and the exact requirements will be 
discussed with Aberdeen City Council. 

Concerned about the impact on public 
transport: perhaps bus service could be 
improved 

Any improvements to the bus service would 
be identified though the Transport 
Assessment which is currently being 
undertaken.  If improvements to the bus 
service are required, this will be discussed 
with Aberdeen City Council through the 
planning application process. 

If SMG were to take the extra 22 houses 
which were allocated to West One (72 
instead of 50) off the number of proposed 
houses for huxterstone, then the 
development numbers for Kingswells would 
be correct 

The West One site was initially identified as 
a mainstream housing site with a range of 
house types and sizes.  Due to the 
properties built on the site being all 
affordable housing, there was scope for a 
higher number of smaller houses.  It is for 
this reason that the number of houses 
increased.      

The development must integrate with the 
existing community and children from the 
development must go to school in 
Kingswells 

Noted.  Children from the development will 
go to Kingswells Primary.  Given that the 
settlement doesn’t have a secondary 
school, such pupils will have to go to a 
school outside of Kingswells.  However, 
this is the current situation with secondary 
school age children in the village.  The 
development will be fully integrated with the 
existing community and linkages provided 
to and from the site to allow this. 

Roads 
We are concerned about the increase in 
traffic. 

Fairhurst have been appointed as 
Transport Consultants and an initial 
assessment of transport in the area 
demonstrates that the predicted peak 
period traffic movements from the 
development can be accommodated within 
available traffic capacity at local junctions 
and will have an imperceptible impact on 
the A944 junction roundabout.  
Development will be supported by the 
infrastructure required to sustain the 
development which will be identified 
through the Transport Assessment.    

Concern re: speed limit: can this be 
reduced to 20mph especially concerned 
about safety of children. 

The speed limit in the surrounding streets 
is controlled by the Council and would be 
an issue for them to consider.  This will be 

Page 110



 

 

drawn to their attention. 
There is no site plan to show the detailed 
layout of the planned buildings.  No real 
opinion could be formed on traffic flow and 
impact. 

The material on display at the exhibition 
was a “work in progress” and the layout is 
constantly evolving.  An indicative road 
layout was identified and housing would be 
accessed from this and the open space.  
The masterplan sets the parameters for the 
preparation of a layout to accompany a 
planning application.  As such, the layout(s) 
for the site will be available for comment at 
the planning application stage, once 
amendments have been made in response 
to the consultation events.   

Concerned with the entrance onto the Lang 
Stracht and traffic on Fairley Road   
 
 

The access onto the Lang Stracht and 
Fairley Road will be designed to comply 
with Aberdeen City Council’s roads 
standards and upgrades to that road made 
where necessary.   
 
The Lang Stracht will be a secondary 
access with right in and left out turn only to 
prevent vehicles turning right onto the Lang 
Stracht.  The principal point of access will 
be from Fairley Road.  

Certain roads/roundabout issues to be 
addressed. 

The roads/roundabouts to be addressed 
will be determined through the Transport 
Assessment and any mitigation measures 
required will be provided.   

No further development until the lights at 
the roundabout is working from 7am to 7pm 
at the very least. 

The Transport Assessment has not 
indicated that this is an issue to be 
mitigated.  The timing of the lights would 
therefore be an issue for Aberdeen City 
Council to address.   

Very concerned about level of houses and 
traffic issues ie access to and from Old 
Skene Road. 

There is no direct access to the site from 
Old Skene Road.  It is not anticipated that 
the development will increase traffic on Old 
Skene Road as traffic to the development 
will turn off at Fairley Road.  The junction 
with the bypass will be assessed as part of 
the Transport Assessment and any 
mitigation measures required will be 
provided as part of the development.   

Infrastructure needed first before 
development of housing. 

Infrastructure required for the site will be 
provided in conjunction with the 
development. 

No road network infrastructure.  From 
discussions, the development will go ahead 
without improving the roads. 

The Transport Assessment will identify any 
improvements to be made in the 
surrounding area and they will be provided 
as part of the development of the site. 

No investing in reopening the old Lang 
Stracht road due to limited funding.  
Temporarily this is key for traffic flow. 

Some investment is being made in the 
Lang Stracht, however, this will not include 
re-opening it to general traffic.  There will 
be a secondary access to the site from the 
Lang Stracht and any improvements along 
this stretch provided as part of the 
development. 

Access to development along Fairley Road, 
cars already park along this road thus 
further road congestion. 

Due to the size of the development 
proposed, two points of access are 
required, with one being from Fairley Road.  
This will ensure adequate visibility is 

Page 111



 

 

provided.  It is not anticipated that this will 
increase the amount of cars parking along 
this road. 

Presumably access to utilities on Fairley 
Road will be required.  Can this road be 
resurfaced properly on completion of the 
work rather than “patched up” 

This is noted and will be taken into 
consideration.   

It would be good if the City would reopen 
the Lang Stracht Road – it should not be 
buses only 

The re-opening of the Lang Stracht would 
be the decision of Aberdeen City Council 
Roads Department.   

Concern that Lang Stracht might be re-
opened to general traffic – this will impede 
buses (already slow) and encourage rat-
running through Kingswells.  This section of 
the Lang Stracht is now often used by 
walkers, joggers and cyclists. 

The decision to re-open the Lang Stracht is 
a decision for Aberdeen City Council roads 
department.  The re-opening of the road to 
general traffic would not be required for this 
development, although the current access 
arrangement from the Lang Stracht would 
be required.   

Housing Numbers 
Concerned about actual number of houses 
to be built (will 120 become 140 due to a 
previous Stewart Milne development in 
Kingswells). 

The site is identified for 120 units and the 
layout will be based on this number.   
 
The previous proposal was identified in the 
Local Plan as a mainstream housing site, 
which would have contained a range of 
dwelling types and sizes.  However, it was 
altered to an affordable housing site which 
resulted in scope for a higher number of 
smaller units.   

Development to the east 
Would also be against future development 
of any further field to the east 
 
On the eastern boundary of the site, no 
features should be included which will 
enable the building of a future access road 
into fields to the east of the current site. 

There is no future development identified 
on land to the east within this masterplan.  
Any further development would require to 
go through the Local Development Plan 
process in the future and is therefore not 
guaranteed.   

The eastern boundary should have a more 
solid line of trees than shown on the 
strategic landscaping extract on the 
exhibition boards. 

This will be considered and landscaping 
provided as appropriate. 

Masterplanning Process 
Much of the development is set in stone The development is not set in stone, 

however, there has to be flexibility and 
understanding on both sides.  Some of the 
requirements for the site have been set by 
the Kingswells Development Framework, 
and the developer has to work within these 
requirements.   

The developer is not accurately reporting 
discussions with ACC 

As far as the developers are aware, they 
have been honest regarding discussions 
with Aberdeen City Council.  It is not the 
intention to provide misinformation to the 
Community Council. 

The developer appears to be considering 
areas of development not included in the 
masterplan area 

The masterplan does not include any land 
outwith the boundaries of the OP42 
designation in the Local Development Plan.  
Stewart Milne Homes have always been 
honest about the potential for future 
development to the east, but have made it 
clear that this would have to be promoted 

Page 112



 

 

through the next Local Development Plan 
and there are no guarantees that it would 
be identified for development by Aberdeen 
City Council. 

Conflicting answers given to the same 
question eg. House types 

The exact house types have yet to be 
decided.  It was highlighted at the public 
exhibition that a range will be provided on 
the site.  No further details are known at 
this time and the exact mix will be 
determined through the planning 
application process. 

Ryden have provided no plans or maps to 
discuss prior to public consultations 

The Community Council were invited to a 
councillor briefing before both of the public 
consultation events, to view the plans 
before the public.  Up until this event, there 
were no plans to provide as they were 
being worked up right until the last minute.  
The Community Council were given links to 
the website so that plans could be viewed 
after the events.   

Access 
KCC has been informed that road access 
and layout are only at the very early stages 
and no stipulations have been set by ACC.  
KCC want two accesses to be from Fairley 
Road.   
 
KCC strongly object to vehicular access 
from the Lang Stracht as the Lang Stracht 
will be a designated ‘bus lane’; visibility 
approaching the proposed access is poor; 
the Lang Stracht is unsuitable for traffic due 
to it narrow width and poor surface 
condition 

ACC Roads have agreed that it is 
acceptable to take access from the Lang 
Stracht.  Visibility and junctions spacing 
requirements, along with land ownership 
issues have all meant that it has not been 
possible to gain two accesses from Fairley 
Road.  The access to and from the Lang 
Stracht is secondary and the majority of the 
traffic into the site is expected to be from 
Fairley Road.  It is therefore not anticipated 
that there will be a significant increase in 
traffic along the Lang Stracht.   
 
It is understood that the bus lane access 
will apply only to the A944 end of the Lang 
Stracht and have no impact on existing 
local access arrangements.  The access 
proposed from the Lang Stracht will not 
affect the flow of buses. 

If access is provided along the Lang 
Stracht and a street is formed, this will 
have a huge impact on local residents and 
the way they use their homes.  Would the 
owners be asked to remove their fence? 

The masterplan does not propose any 
changes to the existing properties and 
homeowners will not be asked to remove 
their fences.   
The requirement to have houses facing the 
Lang Stracht and therefore the formation of 
a street is a requirement of the Kingswells 
Development Framework that ACC 
prepared.   

Access via north of main roundabout is not 
good. 

Roads issues are being fully investigated 
by the project team 

Internal Road 
KCC strongly objects to the internal road 
layout.  The “dead end” road leads to future 
development in the adjoining field and this 
is not acceptable.  The obvious layout is a 
main loop with some minor roads crossing 
the top.  The exact layout is difficult to 
determine if no information is provided on 
the house types. 

The northern access proposed by KCC is 
too close to the existing farm building.  
Visibility splays cannot be achieved and 
there is a requirement to be 60 metres 
south of this point.  To provide another 
access south of that would not achieve the 
required visibility. 
The layout also does not meet guidance 

Page 113



 

 

contained in Designing Streets which 
requires the avoidance of “layouts that use 
excessive or gratuitous curves” as they are 
less efficient, reduce legibility and make 
access for pedestrians and cyclists less 
direct.  The masterplan road layout 
proposed contains some curves as a result 
of the consultation exercise and it is 
considered that is creates a balance 
between the KCC and planning guidance.   
The layout as shown by KCC also 
encroaches into the GSN which would be 
unacceptable and sits too close to existing 
development to the north east and north 
west.  Again, this would not be acceptable 
to the Council. 

The layout proposed appears to reflect the 
ownership of the two parties 

The roads standards and visibility 
requirements have dictated the location of 
the access roads.  The layout also meets 
the requirements of Designing Streets 
Policy, the Kingswells Development 
Framework and the need to protect the 
GSN to the south.  The topography of the 
site has also been taken into consideration, 
as has the curves requested by KCC.  

Forming Streets 
KCC strongly objects to the concept of 
making the Lang Stracht a Street.  The 
houses facing the Lang Stracht would be 
excluded from the rest of the development 
and would be out of keeping with the 
existing houses.   
 
Proposed houses on the Lang Stracht 
would face onto open fields.  The area 
opposite the development site was 
proposed at the Main Issues stage of the 
LDP and was deemed as unsuitable.   

The requirement to make the Lang Stracht 
a Street arose from the Development 
Framework which requires that houses 
face onto the Lang Stracht.  The 
masterplan is bound by the requirements of 
this document.  The existing houses along 
the Lang Stracht currently face onto open 
fields and it is considered that this would be 
an attractive outlook for new residents of 
those properties.   
 
The masterplan does not consider the 
development of the land opposite and the 
suitability of this site is not an issue to be 
taken into consideration in the masterplan. 

The layout of the streets should avoid 
straight rows of housing, and should 
include a mix of house types and sizes in 
each street.  Curves are more interesting 
than straight lines and they should be used 
where possible. 
 
 
 

The layout of streets is informed by 
Designing Streets, a policy statement in 
Scotland for street design.  It marks a 
change in the emphasis of street design 
towards place-making.  Some curves may 
be considered appropriate, however, 
Designing Streets states that layouts that 
use excessive or gratuitous curves should 
be avoided, as they are less efficient, 
reduce legibility and make access for 
pedestrians and cyclists less direct.  A mix 
of house types and sizes in each street will 
be given consideration during the design 
and layout.  The indicative road layout in 
the Masterplan introduces curves in the 
layout.  

House Types 
KCC has concerns about the proposal for The decision to buy a particular style of 

Page 114



 

 

more West One house types.  home in a particular location is decision of 
the homeowner.  Stewart Milne Homes are 
providing first time buyers the opportunity 
to purchase a property on two levels at a 
competitive price.  Each purchaser is able 
to look at the show home before making 
their decision and is therefore made aware 
of the size and storage opportunities within 
the property.   
The development of Huxterstone will 
contain a variety of house types, not just 
West One sized properties.  This is to 
ensure a choice of house types across the 
development.  The West One sized 
properties will make up the affordable 
element of the site, which is a requirement 
of the Local Development Plan. 

KCC is disappointed that there is no plan 
for bungalows for elderly or disabled 
people.   

The exact mix and type has yet to be 
determined.   

I am concerned that the proposed 
development might interfere with the 
amenity of Manse which is located on Lang 
Stracht to the NE corner of the site.  Any 
development immediately adjacent to 
Manse should preferably be low rise – 1 
storey. 

The existing dwellings located within the 
boundary of the masterplan site have been 
considered in the preparation of the 
masterplan.  Strategic landscaping will be 
located adjacent the Manse and other 
properties, to ensure their amenity is 
protected. 

House styles should be in keeping with the 
area, with no gaudy colours.  House 
heights should be kept low – one and a half 
storeys would be best, but with some 
housing suitable for the elderly ie. 
Bungalows with easy access and no stairs 

This is noted.  It can be confirmed that a 
range of house types and styles will be 
provided on the site.  There are a range of 
house types in the vicinity, with the majority 
comprising two storeys.  Similarly, the 
majority of houses on this site will be two 
storey, however, consideration will be given 
to one and a half storey properties.  It is not 
anticipated that there will be any 
bungalows on the site.  The mix of 
properties is given careful consideration at 
the outset and the mix based on demand. 

The pitch of roofs should be similar to 
others in Kingswells (ie no flat roofs) with a 
mix of colours for roofing materials. 

None of the properties will have flat roofs 
and a range of roof colours will be taken 
into consideration.  Details will be 
discussed as part of any detailed planning 
application moving forward. 

GSN/SUDs 
SUDs ponds should not be unattractive and 
lifeless dry basins 

This is noted and engineers are looking at 
a solution  

The GSN area should be enhanced as well 
as protected, with no excessively wide 
paths included. 

The GSN will be enhanced as well as 
protected, with additional landscaping 
provided as appropriate.  A Landscape 
Consultant forms part of the design team 
who are developing proposals for the site.   
Footpaths suitable for the size of the site 
will be incorporated. 

Developer Contributions 
Developer contributions: pavement 
required on Fairley Road (right hand side) 
onto Kingswood Drive for residents to 
access village centre should be provided 
as part of developer contributions for the 

The exact details of developer contributions 
will be discussed with Aberdeen City 
Council’s Planning Gain Co-ordinator. 

Page 115



 

 

site; stonework to the village signed as per 
KCC plans could also be provided as part 
of developer contributions. 
Sustainable Energy  
Discussed suitability of the site for PV solar 
on roofs 

The provision of PV solar on roofs would 
be a decision for the individual household 
to make.  The developers will incorporate 
other sustainable principles in their 
proposals.   

Houses should be well insulated and the 
south-facing aspect of the site should be 
exploited as far as possible by 
incorporating solar panels. 

The houses will exceed current guidelines 
on insulation and the south facing aspect 
will be exploited as far as possible in their 
orientation.    Implementation of carbon 
reducing technologies will be discussed 
with the Council at the appropriate time.  
The construction industry widely promote 
the “fabric first” approach which in the first 
instance looks at how the construction of 
the product creates less need for energy 
consumption before adding energy 
generating technologies.  This primarily 
focuses on increased levels of insulation, 
air tightness and building orientation to 
maximise solar gain.  

Other 
Kingswells is currently very poorly served 
by internet connection.  What 
considerations/arrangement has been 
made in this development to ensure that 
the additional load on the already 
inadequate telephone internet service is 
not further compromised. 

This is noted and will be investigated as 
part of the planning application process.   

Need some play area as already no play 
areas at this end of Kingswells. 

The layout of the site will include areas of 
open space in line with Aberdeen City 
Council’s open space requirements.  The 
type of open space to be provided will be in 
line with the LDP requirements.   

Housing market falling due to saturation in 
demand, shops, schools etc improvements 

The housing numbers are based on the 
housing requirements identified in the 
Aberdeen and Aberdeenshire Structure 
Plan.  Aberdeen City Council are required 
to find appropriate locations for these 
housing numbers through the Local 
Development Plan and it is through this 
process that the site at Huxterstone has 
been identified.    

It sounds like the old story of profiteers 
gaining while the local community has to 
suffer.  A change of ethical standards 
would be greatly appreciated. 

There are many positive points arising as a 
result of this development.  The developers 
have appointed external consultants to 
investigate transport and landscaping 
matters in order to develop an attractive 
residential environment, with access to an 
improved green space network.  Mitigation 
measures will be provided to address any 
adverse impacts arising.   

The owners of Morven have a heritable and 
irredeemable servitude right from a sewer 
pipe going through the ground which we 
understand is for the proposed 
development.  We understand that the pipe 

This will be taken into consideration and 
fully investigated. 

Page 116



 

 

connects to the main sewer at a point on 
Fairley Road. 
Have a concern in connection with the 
proposed development regarding the mains 
water pressure in their property and they 
believe, generally in the Kingswells area. 

Mains water pressure will be fully 
considered during drainage investigations 
for the site.  It is not anticipated that the 
development of 120 homes will have a 
significant impact on this.  

All homes should have gardens with 
adequate space for homeowners to enjoy 
their property and the views available from 
the site.   
 
 

Where appropriate, homes will have 
gardens in order to enjoy the property.  In 
terms of a view, it should be understood 
that, due to the layout and orientation of 
individual properties, not every property will 
have the same view. However, the 
orientation of properties will be carefully 
considered and will be maximised to take 
advantage of available views. 

Adequate litter bins, dog bins and grit bins 
need to be included 

This will be considered through planning 
gain negotiations. 

There should be adequate car parking 
spaces for visitors 

Parking will be provided in accordance with 
Aberdeen City Council’s parking guidelines. 

Written assurances are needed that a 
Residents Association will be set up. 

Details of this will be agreed in due course 
with Aberdeen City Council. 

KCC want to retain the drystane dyke, with 
a break to provide access for 
footpath/cycles, but not vehicles.  Removal 
of the dyke destroys the rural character.  
Any stones from dykes within the 
development should be reused within the 
development to provide a sense of place, 
and rural character of the area. 

Stone dykes will be retained as far as is 
practical.  Access to vehicles is required 
from the Lang Stracht.  Any stones from 
dykes within the development will be 
reused where appropriate. 

Concerned that access/amenity should not 
be interfered with during building work etc 

Unfortunately there may be some 
disruption during building work, but this will 
be controlled and minimised as much as 
possible. 

 
 
Appendix 2 – Consultation Responses 
 
Please see separate document. 

Page 117



Page 118

This page is intentionally left blank



�
�

� �
 

������������������		

����������
 
 
 
 
 
 

��������	
���
��	
����
��	
�������

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�����������������������������	�����
��������������	��
���

�������������������	������		���	� �
!����
 ����	������

��	��������
���������
��"#�"���

�
��������������
��������

�������$#"$�

                                                                          

 

 

Page 119



  2 

��
�����
����
����	
�������
�
% ��� �	
�����  ��� ����� ��	��
���
	� ��	����� �� �������� 	&�  ��
��'���	��� !��������� �	
����(��
)� ����� 	�  �� ��� �  �� *���
��&	����	������������
��
	�������
���  �� �	
����+�  	,����+� &	�� ��
�	���
	���� ��������������������
	&�  �� ���+�  �� ��	
���� ����  ��
����� ���� 	�
	���� 	&�  ��
!���������  �� ����� �	
����� ���
 ��������	���	&���&����
�(�
�
% �����+� �����&������� �����������
-	
��� �����	����� ����+� �����
����	'������� �������� 	�  �� ,���
	&� ��������� ���� 	��  �� �.��+� ���
�������� �	��� ��	�  �� ���(� � % ��
����� ��� ��� ����	��� 	,���� ���+� ����
�'����� 	� ����	'������� /�
 �
����� 0"1� �
���2(� � )� ����� 	�  ��
���������	� �	&� ��	�����������	&�
3����,����� , �
 � 
������ ��	����
4����*����5	��(��
�
% ��!���������&	��	,��	��&�	�� ��
3����,����� �����	�����
�����,	�*+�, �
 �,���������������
 �� �	��
��� ��� $##6(� � )� �'�������
 	,� �� ����������� �����	����� 	&�
��	����"$#������
�����������	����
�������'����	��	�3����,����(���
�
�
������"7�3����,�����-	
��	�������

�

)� ��� ��������  ��  �� �	
�����
,���� &	���  �� ������ 	&�
������������� ������
�� 0��2� 	�
 �� ��������� -	
��� �����	�����
����(�
�
% �� ������� ����  ��� ,	�*���

�	����� 	�� ��� 	� ��	����� �� ,����
 	�� � 	�� ����	���� 	�  �� ���(��
% ��!���������  ��� ����� ��&	�����
������������	&����	��������
 ��
���
������(��)� ������	�����&����&�	��

	�������
	������	��������������
�������� ,� � ��������� ����
�	��
��(�����
�
% ��!����������	
�����������	��
������������
�	��+���
������7�

"( )��	��
�	��
$( �	��'�
8( �	�����
��	�� ����

9���������
�( )������
1( %�����	�������

����������
/( ��������� ���� �������

����
������
:( )�&�����
����
6( �����	�����	������	���
.( � �������������������
"#( �����	�������	
����
""( ��� ���)�&	����	��
�

% ��� �	
����� ������ �� ����&�
���
����	��	&� ��*�����&	����	�(�
�
�������$7�-	
��������	�����������'��
�
�

�

Page 120



  3 

 ��
�
�
�

% �� !��������� ��� �� ���� 	,�����
 �� ��������� 	&� ����	'������� "$#�
��,�  	���� ���  �� �������(� � 5	���+�
��������� ��&�����
���� ���� 	����
���
�� ,���� ���	� ��� ��	������ 	�

����� ��  �� � ;������ �����������
�����	����(���

�
% ��!��������������	��
 ����� ��
&	��	,���7�

�
• ��  �� � ;������ ��������
�'����	��  �� ,���� 
����� ��
���;��� �����	�����  ��

	���������  �� �'������

 ���
���	&� ���	
�������(�

�
• )������	�� 	&�  �� ���� ,� �
 �� �'������ ���� �	�� 		��+�
, �
 � ���� ���� ���*��� ��� ��
��

���&���������
������
����
&����,	�*(�

�
• % �� ��	����
�� 	&� �*������
�����	����������������� ��
���������� &�� ,� ��� �� ��������
�����
����&����,	�*(�

�
�
�
�������87�%	�	���� ��

• % �� ��&���������� ����
�� ��
����� 	&�  ��
�
	�	��
���  ����� 	&�  �� ����
����(�

�
• % ��
	���
�����	&� ���������
����� 	&� ���������� ����
�� �
����� ��&&�
� ,� � ��,�
�� ,���� 
	���
����  ��
 	������ ,� � ��
����	����
��������	��� ������(�

�
% �� ���������� 
	��������  ��
����	������� 
	��'+� ���� &������+�
�'�����������
����
	��'+��'������
	�������
������ ������������	&� ��
���� ��� �����������  �� �	��
����	������ ������ 	&� �����	�����
 ������&	�����������������	���(���

�
% ���� ���� �� ������ 	&�  	���� �����
������������� ����������� ��������
�	� �����
���� &������� 	&� ����
�����&�
��� ���	���
�� ,� ���  ��
���(� � �	��� ��*��� ��������  ��
&������ ����  ���� ���� ��*��� 	�  ��
�	� ��������(���	���,�����,�������
�������� , ���� ����	������ ����
�	��� ,���� ��� ������� 	� ������ ��,�
�	��� ,�����  �	�� 	��  ��
�����	����(�
�
��������7�����<���������

�

Page 121



  4 

% ����������������	� ���	� �����
�	� � ���� ���� ��� ��� ���	����
������� &������ , ��  ��� �����
������ ���� 
	��������	�� ���  ��
������� ��	
���+� �	 � ���  ��
�����
������ ��	�	����� ���� ���
�����	�� 	�  �� �	
��	�� 	&�
�����	����(�
���
% �� ���� ����� 
	����	�� ��=�
��� 	�
 �� ���� ,���� ��� �������� ����
����	���� , ���� ����	�����(� � % ��
���	��
�	��	&� �����
���������� ��
�>��� ������� ,����  ���� 	� 
�����
	���� ���
��, �
 �,���� �� ��
��  ��
,������  ����(� � �		�� ��,���� ���
��	������ 	� ���*�  �� ���� ����� 	�
 �� ����	������� ����� 	� ����	���
�

����&	�����(���
�
��� ��
 ��	�	��� ,��*� 	���� �����
 ��� ����� 
	������� , �
 �

	�
������ �� ��������	�������
��
	&� ���� ��'��� �	���� 	��  �� ���+�
, �
 � ,��� ��������� ���  ��
3����,����� �����	�����
�����,	�*(� � �� &�� ��� �������	��
,���� ��� ������*��� ��&	���
�����	����� 	� �������  ��� ���  ��

���(�
�
���9
	�	��
��� ����������,������	�
������*��� , �
 � 
	�&������  ��
���� �	��� �	� ���� ,� ��� ����
��������������	&�������(��)�����	�
������ ������ ���� ���	��� ������

	�������	�+� �	�� ��� �� ,� ��� ����
�	��
��� �����
���� 	�� ,�����&��
��������	�(� � % �� ���� 	&�
!�����
�����-	
���������5����������
�	
���� ����	'������� "*��
�	,�������	&� ���������������(�
�
% �������������������&�������������
	&� �
	�	��
��� ������(� � % �� �����
����	�������  �� ����� ,���� ���
�������������� ��
����	� �� �� ���

��*�������,� �  �� ���	���� �������
 �����	&� ������(���
�
9����	������� �� ��
������ ����
��	�	����  �	�� 	��  �� ���+�
��
�������  �� 
����	�� 	&� ��,�
,		�������������� ������	������
	&� �����������+�, �
 ����
	�������
,� � ���	���� ���� �	
��� �����
�	��
���(� � ��� ������ ��� ��	���������
,���� ������ ��� �� ������ 	&�  ����
����	������+�	� ������&��	&� ��
,���������(�
�
�� -����
���� ���� <������ ����������
,��� ���	� 
������� 	�� , �
 �  ���
��&	����� �����������(�

�
 �!!�����
���� ����
"�����!��
�
�
�� ������ 	&� 
	������	�� �'��
�����
 ���� ����� 
������� 	�� ���  ��
�����	�����	&� ��!��������(�
�
% ��� ��
������ �� ������� ,� �  ��
�	������� �	��
��?� %,	� �����
�

	������	�� �����+� ��
������� ��

	������� 
	��
��� ���� 
	��
���	��
����&���� ���	�� 	�  �� �����
� ����?�
���� �� ������� ,� �  �� ��=�
���
����	,���(�
�
)������  �� ��� ��� ��  ���� ������
 ���� ����� ����������� ���� ��
����	���� 	� ��
 � ��� 
	������� ���
�������'�"�����$�	&� ��!���������
�	
����(���
�
@ ���� �	������+�  �� ,�� ��� 	&�  ��
�	
��� 
	�������  ���� ����� �*���
	���	�������� ��
	��	����� ��	� ��
������� 	&�  �� �����������
�����	����(� � ��� �'������	��  ���
����� ��	������ , ����  ���  ��� �	�
������	������(���
�

Page 122



  5 

����
�
��
�
% �	�� � ������������������������
�

	������	�+� ��	�	����� ,����
�����	���(� ����������	&�����
������
������� ��!��������+�
	��������	�
	&� ��&	��	,���7�
�

• %�����	���� ��������� ����
��

���&�������	� ��������	&�
�	 � ������ ���� A�����B�
���
��(� � ��
 � ���
��� ������
 �� ���������� 	&�  ����

	������� ���� 	�  ��
���	
���	�� 	&� ������ ,� � ��
������	&����
�(�

• % �� �����	����� 	&�  �� ����
,���� ��� ������ 	�� �� ������� 	&�
������ ���
��� , �
 � ,���� ���
���*��� ��� �� ��,	�*� 	&�
�����
�����(� � % �� �	� ����
����� ,���� ��=	�� 
������� 	��
������� 	&� ����� 	� 
����� ��
�	��� 	���� A���*����B�
�����	����+� , ���� �������
� ����� ���� �������� ,���� ���
�������� ��	����  �� �������
���������	&� �����(�

• -����
������ ���� 	���� ���
��
��;��������� ,���� ���
�

	��	����� ���  �� 	�������
���	�+� ,� ��� , �
 �  ��
�������� � ��	�	� �� ,���� ��� 	�

����� A�����B� ���� A���
��B�
�� ��� ����	���(�

• % �� A�����B� ���� A���
��B�

������ ,���� ��� �������� ,� �
��	���� 	&�  	�����(� � ���������
������ ���� ��� ���	����

	��������	����� ������������
	&� ��

���&��� �����	�����
���� ,���� �������  �� 
����	��
	&���A����B(����

�
�
�
�

#��	
�$%���%
	�
�
��	��  ���� ����
������ ��������
�	��� &����  	�� �� , �
 � ,����

	��������� ���	���� ���  ��
�����	�����	&� �����+���
������7�
�

• 5����	�� 	&�  �� ���� �����
�������������
����,	�*(�

• �����	�� 	&� �� ��,� � �����
���� 	�  �� ���� 	� ��	�����
�
�������� ���� 	� �	&���  ��
�����	����(�

• 9� ��
����� 	&�  �� ��&&����
	� �����(�

• ��	����	�� 	&� ��� ����	������
������� 	&�  	������ , ����
���������;�����������
�������
���
�(�

• �� ������� 	&� ���*��� �����
�
���
��� 	� ���	,� ������ ���
��
	� &�	,�  �	�� �  ��  ���� 	&�
 �����(�

• 9�������

�������������
�������
���
��	� ���	� �

• ����
����� �� �
����� �

����
&�	�� �������� 5	��� ,� �
��
	������ �

���� &�	��  ��
-�������
 (�

• )������	��	&� ������,� ���
 �� 
	��'� 	&� 3����,����� ���
����&	�
����  �� ��������� ������
,� ���  �� ����	�������
�����	������ ��	���  ��
-���� ���
 (� � �����	�����
	� &�
�� 	�,����� ��  ����
�	���(�

• 5���&	�
����� 	&�  �� ������

 ���
��(�

• ����	�������� �
����� ����
���������  	���� �����

������������ ��������� ���
������	&�&������	���������

�
�
�

�

Page 123



  6 

$���	���
�����&���		�����
��
�
% �� !��������� 
	��������  ��
�'�������

�����	������� ����������
�����	�� 	�  �� ���+� ��
�������
���������� ���� 
�
��� �	���� ����

	��� �� �?� �����
� �����	��

	���
�	��?��	���
	���
�	��?�����
 ��
	���
�����	&� ������,� � ��
����	�����������(�
�
% ������,�������&�����
	���
���,� �
 �� ����	������� ����� ����  ��� ���

��
����	� ����

����	&� �����(���
�
%,	� �	���� 	&� �

���� ������	�	����
��� �

	����
�� ,� � �	��
���
����������(� � % �� ����� �

���� ���
&�	����������5	��+�,� �����
	������
�

����&�	�� ��-�������
 (��%,	�
�	���� 	&� �

���� &�	�� �������� 5	���
,��������������+� 	,����+�����	�
���������� ��;��������+� =��
�	��
���
���� ���� 
	�&������	��
��;��������+�  ��� ,��� �	�
�	������(� � �

���� &�	��  �� -����
���
 � ,���� ��� �� ��� � ��� ���� ��&�
	�� 
	�&������	�� 	� ���������

�	������� ���,����� ��	���  ��
-���� ���
 � ���	�� t ��
�����	������

���(���
�
% �� �

���� &�	�� �������� 5	���

	���������	� ��������	����������
	��	������ &	�� ��� ���C,��� ������
&�	�� , �
 � ��� ����������� 	&�
����������� ��
	������ ���	��
�

���� �	���� ���� �	� ,�����
���������	�����������������������

������&���������
 �����	������(���
�
�����	����� ,���� ��� ����	���� ���
 �� ��&�����
���� ��;������ 	�
�������  �� �����	����� �����&����
��� ��
�������  �	�� � �� %�����	��
����������0%�2(��% ���,���� �����&��
�� %������ ����� �����,	�*� 	� ���	,�
 �� ��������	�� 	&� �� 5����������
%������ ��
*� &	�� ����	���� ���
��������������	��
��� ���	�� 	� &����
	

����
��	&� �����(���
�
�%�� �	��
�� ,���� �����(� � ������� ,����
��� ,	�*��� 	�� ��  �� ���������
�����
��	������� ��������	��	�����
���
�&�
������	��������	�(�

�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�������17��

���������	���
�����
�

Page 124



  7 

�������������'�	�������������	�
�
% ������������ ��	������ �� 
	��'�
&	�� �����	����� ���� 	�������  ��
������������������������
������  ��
� 	������� &	��	,��� ����������������
�����
��	���&	�� �����(���
�
% �� ����� ������� 
	��������� ,����
 �� ���� ����+�  �� ������ ���
��
��,	�*+� 	�	���� �� 	&�  �� ���+�
�'��������	�������	� ���	� �����
�'�������	���,����(���
�
4��� 	&�  �� ����� ����� ,��� 	�
��������  �� ���� ,� ���  ��
�'������ ���� �	�� 		���  �	�� � ��
��

���&��� ������
� �����
����
��,	�*(� � % ��� ��	������ ���
���
���� �����
���� �����+�,� ���
, �
 �  	������ ,���� ��� �	
���+� �	�
 �� ������&���,� � ��
 ���
���
	&� ��,���������(�
�
������ ������������	&�  ������ &�	��
 �� ���+� �� ��������� �������
�	���	�+� 	&&������ �������� �	
����
�����	����� ���� �� ��
����� 	&�
������
� �����
������ ��� ��	�	���(��
-����
����,������,���� 
�� ��	�  ��
���� �� �� ������� 	&� �	���� ���	,����
���������� �

���� &�	��  �� ���� 	�
����� ���	��(� � % ���� ���
��� ����

	���������� ��� �� ,���� 	�

���������
����	����&����,	�*(���
�
����,�� ��������� ��� 	�����������
��	���  �� ������� �	������� 	�
�	&��� ���,�� 	&�  �� �����	�����
, ��� ���,��� &�	��  �� ���(��
-����
������ ��=�
��� 	� �'������
��	������� 	�  �� �	� � ,���� �������
 ����������������	�
��(���
�
% �� ������ ���
�� ��,	�*� 	�  ��
�	� ����������	����&������, �
 �
,���� ��� ��	�
��� ���� �� ��
��(��

������ 	&� 	���� ���
�� ,���� ���

	�
������� ����
������� ��	���  ��
����+� , �
 � ,���� ��������  �� �	
���

 ���
���	&� ������(� �4�������
��
,���� ��� ���*��� ��� �� ��,	�*� 	&�
&		�� �� , �
 � ,���� �������  ��
�������	�� 	&�  �� ���� ,� �  ��
,�����3����,���������(�
�
����� ����� ,���� �	&���  �� �����
�
���� ���� ��	����� ������� �������
,� ��� �������	����(���
�
% �� ������� ���� ���	�� 	&�  ��
�����	����� ,���� &�� ,� ���  ��
�����
���� &����,	�*� ���� ��,	�*�
	&� 	���� ���
�� 	��  �� ���� ����,����
��	����*�����������	����(�
�
�	������,��������,���&�	�� ������
����� ���� ������ ���
�� ��,	�*� 	�
�������  ���� ��	�
�	�(� � �	������
,���� &	��	,�  �� ������� ��� ������
	&�&������	��������(���
�
% �� !��������� ���� -����
����
���������� ��	����� &�� ��� ������� 	&�
 �� �����
������ ���� 	���� ���
���
��	�	���(������������������,����
��� �������� ,� � ���� ���������
�����
��	�0�2�&	�� ������	��'������
 	,�  �� ������� ���� ���	�� 	&�  ��
�'���������
���,����
	������� 	���
;�����������	����(���
�
�������/7�-����
�������

Page 125



  8 

'�	��������(����
�
�
% �� ������� 	�	���� �� 	&�  �� ����
,�������	,�&	�� �������	�����	�&��
��������� ��	�  �� �����
���+�
��	������ 	������ ��������� ��	�  ��
�*�����(���
�
�����,���� ���	� ��� �*��+�, �������
�	������+� 	����������  ���'���	&�
������(� � 9�
 �  	���� ,���� ��� �� ���
	,�� ����	������ �����+� , �
 � ,����
�� ��
�� 
	���
����� ���� 
����� ��
�	���
	 ���������	�(�
�
�����	����� ,���� 
	������� �
	�� �
�	�������� �	��
�� D����������
�����E� ���� D���������� ���
��E(��
���&�
���,�������� �����	���	�	��
���������� ���	���� ��� ����
����
�� �
���������(���
�
% ��	������	��	&���	�������,�������
��'������� 	� �*�� ��������� 	&�
���������� ���,�(� � �	������ 	��  ��
���������,���� &�
��  ������	�������
������ , ����  	������ ���  ��  ����
,���� ���������� &�
�� �	� (��
�����	�����,���� �	� ���� ��� ��
*�
	�� ��-�������
 ������;���������
 �� 3����,����� �����	�����
�����,	�*(���
�

�����	����� ,����  ���&	��� &�
��
	�,����� ��  ���� �	���� 	�
���������  ��� ,� �  ��
��
 ��
����� ������ 	&� �� D����E(��
% ��� &	��	,�� ���� ���
�
�+� �	�  ��
��	�	����� ������� ,� �  ����
����	�������+� 	&&������ ������� ����
� ���
���
	���
�����	� ���'������
�������(���
�
�	��� 
 ���
��� ������ ���� �����&����
��� ��!��������+���
������7�
�

• 5����� -���� ���
 � � ���
���
�����

• % ������������ ���
��������
• �������� ���
��������
• ��������5	���� ���
��������

�
% ��
 ���
�����������������������
���  �� ��
 ��
����� ������ 	&�  ��
��&&����� �����	����+� �� 	�� � ��
������ 	&� �������� ��������� ����
&���� ��� ,���� ��� ��	����� ����� ����

	 ����
��  �	�� 	��  ��
�����	����(���
�
% ��!�����������	������&�����������
	&� ��
 ���
��������(�
�
�������:7�� ���
���������

�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

Page 126



  9 

$%�� )����� (���� *
���%
�
 %����
���&����
�
% ��� ����� ,���� ��� 
 ���
������� ���
���������� 	&� �� �������� &		����� 	�
 	��� �������� &	���� �� ��� ����� 	&�
 ������	�� ��-�������
 (� ������
������ 	������,��������	
������� ���
�����, �
 �,���� ����
�� �		&� ��� ��
���� ��� ��� *������� ,� � �'������
 	�������� ������(�
�
�������67�-�������
 �������
����

$%�� ��
���� %����
���&����
�
% ��� ����� ��� 
 ���
������� ���  ��
���������� �����
���� ���*� ��������
�	� � �	� �  �	�� �  �� 
����� 	&�
 �����+� ��&��
�	��	&�, �
 ����	�
��	����� �� ���*� &�	��  �� ������
���
����,	�*� 	�  �� �	� � 	�  ��
���� 	&�  �� ���� ����  �� ��������
	&�3����,����(�
�
�������.7�-����
����-��*�������
����

)� ���	� ��	������ ��
����	����
	��	�������� ���  �� &	��� 	&� ��
,��*�����	��� �	�� � �����(��% ��
,����� ��	������ ������� 
	�������
&�	��  ������ ����� � ���
��� �����
��� 
	��������  �� ������ ���*(��
�,�������� 	����		*�  ��� ����� 	�
��
������ ������� ���������	�� ����
��&��(�
�
$%��'������� %����
���&����
�
% ��� ����� ��� �	������� ���  ��
���������
����,	�*� 	�  �� �	� �
, �
 ���	������ �������&	
����	���
	&�  �� ���� ���  �� &	��� 	&� 	����
���
����	��� ������(��% ��&��
�	��
	&�  ��� ���
�� ��� 	� ��	�����
��
����	���� 	��	�������� ���  ��
&	��� 	&� &		�� �� ��	���  �� ����+�
���*����	�&		�� ����	���� �����(���
�
��,� �����
������ ,���� �� ��
��  ���
����� ���� �� ����� ���*� ,���� ��	�����
	��	�������� &	�� 
 ������� 	� ��=	��
 �������(��
��
�������"#7�9�������	�������������
����

�
� ��������&�
���,���� ����
���� �
���
������� ���� ��
	������ ����������
�
����� ��� ������(���	�����	� ��
���� ,���� ��� ��	����� ��	���� ��

	������(�
�
�
�

Page 127



  10 

#�������)���� %����
���&����
�
% �� 	�����&�
������������5	���,����
��� 	&� �� �������� ��	�	��� 	&�  	���
&	���� ����, ���� ��	���  �� ����(��
% ��� ,���� &	������� &�
��  �� �����
����,���� ������� �� ������� ������� 	&�
��������� ���� ���������

	���������+�, �������
�
��+� ���
�������� ��*��� ���� &	����� ����
�������� &	������  ���� &�	��
�������(��% �� 	������� ��������	&�
 �� �����
�� ,���� ��� ����
��� 	�
����	���	�D���,��E�	��	�����(��
�
�������""7���������5	���������
�����

�
��� ����
����� ������� 
	�
��� ���

	������� ���  �� ���������� ���
����
�������	,(���
�
�
�

% �����	��,������*���&&�
��������	&�
 �� ����� ����  	������,���� ������ ���
&�		����
�� &�	�� ��� �;����� ������
	� "�#� �;����� ������ 	&&������ ��
������� 	&� �

	��	���	�� ����
�����+� �������� &�	�� 	��� 	� &����
����		����	������(�
�
!�������� ,���� ����� ���� ��
�����
��		 � ������+� ���� ��� � �������
���� �	��,	�*(� � 5		&�� ,���� 
	�����
	&�
	�
���������	��������&&�
������
�����&&������
	�	���(���
�
% �� �����	����� ��	�	�� �� A&����
�
&���B� ����	�
 �, �
 � �		*�� ��  	,�
 �� 
	����
�	�� 	&�  �� ��	�������

��� 
����� ����� ����� &	�� �������

	������	�� ��&	��� ������� ����
������� ���������� �
 �	�	����(��
% ������������� &	
�����	�� ��
�������
������� 	&� �������	�+� ���� �� �����
���� ��������� 	������	�� 	�
��'�������	��������(���
�
% �� ���������� ,���� ���� 
������
��������� 	&� �������������
��	�	��������������������	��
��(�
�
�
�������"$7�)���
�������������	�
���

�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

Page 128



  11 

% �� ����
����� ������� 
	�
��� ���
�*��� �� ���� &�� ��� ���  ��
��������	�� 	&� ��� ����
����� ��	
*�
���	��&	�� �����(���
�
�
�
�������"87�)���
�������	
*�-��	��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

��+��	
���
����
�
�����������)���
���������������
����������� >����� ���������
������� 0�>��2� ,���� ��� ��������
,� �������������������
��	�0�2�&	��
 �� ���(� � �� 
	����
�	�� �� 	��
�������,�������	����������������
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

� ����� ���&�
��� ,���� ����
�� ��&&�
�
������ ���� ��
	������ ����������
���	���(� � % �� ���� ��� ���*��� ��� ��
��,	�*� 	&� 	���� ���
�� ����
&		�� ����������������������	
����
,� ��� ��	�������
��	� ���	� (��
% ��� ��� �'�������� &�� ��� ���  ��
!����������	
����(���

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�����	�� 	������	������
�����	��
 �����(�
�
% �� !��������� ��	������ ������� 	&�
&	��� ���� ���&�
�� ,����
��&�����
���� &	��  �� ���(� � ��,����
,���� ��� ��������� ���� ��������� ���
�

	����
�� ,� � ���� ���
�
��
����
�(�
�
�
�
�
�
�

Page 129



  12 

'��������� ��
����
���	�
�
��������������	��
��� �	�� � ����
�
�	�� ��	������� ����
����  ��
��&�����
���� ��;��������� &	��  ��
���(� � ������� ���� ��	������ ���  ��
!��������(�
�
% �� ��	��� ���� ���� 	&�

	������	���,�������
	����������
,� �  �� �
���� ���� ����
� 	&�
�����	����� ��� ��;������ ���
�
	�� � �	�������� ���
�����
"F$#"$7�������������������(�
�
% �� ���
���� ������� 	&� ��&�����
����
��	����	�� ���� �����	����

	������	��� ��;������ &	��  ��
�����	����� ,���� ��� ������� ,� �
��������� ���� �	��
��� ����  ��
��������������	&&�
������
	������	��
,� �	 ������	�������
���(�
�
�&&	������� 	������,���������	������
��� �

	����
�� ,� �  �� ����	����
-	
��������	��������������,�������
���������  �	�� 	��  ��
�����	����(�
�
�%�	��������'��������
�
�����	����� ,���� ��� ��	������ ��� ��
������� 	&� � ����� ����  ��
!�����������	�������������
��	��	&�
, ��� ���,����������������(���

�
��������� �����
��	�0�2� &	��  �� ����
,���� ��� �

	�������� ��� �� ���������
���������	������� &�� ��� �������
	&�  	,�  �� ��	�	���� �����	�����
���� ����	����� ��&�����
���� ,����
�����	�����(�
�
'������!��
������		�
�
���=�
�	�����	���+� ��!���������
,���� ��
	��� �������������
������
�� ���� �� �������� ���������

	��������	�� ���  �� ���������	��
	&���������������
��	�0�2�,� ��� ��
�����
	��������� ��!��������(���
�
������������������
��	���,����
	�����
,� �  �� %	,�� ���� �	�����
��������� 0������
 �� 	&�
�����	�����20�
	����2�
5������	��� $##.� ���� , ����
����	������  �� ���C�����
��	��
�	������	�� 0���2� ��	
���� 	�������
���  �� ��������� �
� 0�
	����2� �
�
$##/(�
�
��������� �����
��	��+� , ����
��;������ ,���� ��� �������� ,� � ��
���� ���	�� ���������  �� �����
�

	������	�� 
������� 	�(� � % ��� ,����
��	����� ������
��  ��  ����  ���
����� ����	������ ����� &�	��
��*� 	�����+� ����	,����+�  �� �	
���

	������� ���� 	 ��� 
	�������
�������������� ���  �� ��������	��
	&�  �� ��	�	����(� � @ ����
������������ ����  ���� �������
, �
 �  ��� �	� ����� ���	����+�  ���
,������������
����(���
�
�
�
�
�������"�7�� ������
�

�
�

Page 130



  13 

#��
%�����+��!�
����
�
�	��&�� �����&	����	��
	��
7�
�
��������� ���� �����������
�����	�����
��������������	��
���
��������� ���� ��� ��	���� ��		��
�	� �
!����
 ����	������
��	��������
���������
��"#�"����
�
% �� !��������� ,��� ��������� ���
���	
���	�� ,� � ��������� ����
�	��
�������
�
5�����
�
�
��
	�� 5�������
����	��
�
�
�
���� ����

Page 131



Page 132

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 133



Page 134



Page 135



Page 136



Page 137



Page 138



Page 139



Page 140



Page 141



Page 142



Page 143



Page 144



Page 145



Page 146



Page 147



Page 148



Page 149



Page 150



Page 151



Page 152



Page 153



Page 154



Page 155



Page 156



Page 157



Page 158



Page 159



Page 160



Page 161



Page 162



Page 163



Page 164



Page 165



Page 166



Page 167



Page 168



Page 169



Page 170



Page 171



Page 172



Page 173



Page 174



Page 175



Page 176



Page 177



Page 178



Page 179



Page 180



Page 181



Page 182



Page 183



Page 184



Page 185



Page 186



Page 187



Page 188



Page 189



Page 190



 

 

 
ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 

 
 
COMMITTEE   Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure   
 
DATE     6 November 2012 
 
DIRECTOR    Gordon McIntosh 
 
TITLE OF REPORT  Loirston Development Framework 
 
REPORT NUMBER: EPI/12/200 
 
 
 
1 PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 This report outlines the Loirston Development Framework, prepared as 

a strategy for the future development of land identified in the Aberdeen 
Local Development Plan (ALDP) as OP77, OP80 and OP78.  

 
1.2 A summary document of the Development Framework is appended to 

this Committee Report.  The full Development Framework for Loirston 
(November 2012) is a large document containing a lot of illustrative 
material and can be viewed by accessing the following link: 

 
www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/masterplanning  
 

1.3 A hard copy of the full Development Framework is available in the 
Members’ Library (Town House), within the Planning and Sustainable 
Development Service at Ground Floor North, Marischal College, or by 
contacting the Masterplanning, Design and Conservation team.  

 
1.4 The Development Framework has been made available to the Nigg, 

Kincorth & Leggart and Cove & Altens community councils for 
information prior to this report being considered for public consultation. 

 
2 RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 
2.1 It is recommended that the Committee: 
 

(a) Approve the Loirston Development Framework as interim planning 
advice; and  

 
(b) Agree for officers to implement the process to ratify the 

Development Framework as Supplementary Guidance.  This will 
include a 4 week public consultation with results reported to 
Committee prior to submission to Scottish Government. 

 

Agenda Item 9.2

Page 191



 

 

2.2 Definitions 
 

‘Interim Planning Advice’ – this specifies that the Development 
Framework is in the public domain and available for the purposes of a 
formal City-wide consultation.  As such it becomes a material 
consideration in the determination of any planning application.  The 
duration of consultation will typically be 4 weeks, given that public 
engagement has taken place throughout the preparation of the 
Framework.  This allows responses to be collated and reported back in 
the next Committee cycle.  
 
‘Supplementary Guidance’ (SG) – this is adopted and issued by a 
planning authority in connection with a Local Development Plan, as a 
result any such guidance will form part of the Development Plan. 
Before adoption, the SG must be publicised and a period for 
representations to be made specified, this includes the targeting of key 
consultees and stakeholders who may want the opportunity to 
comment. Following the specified consultation period and as a result of 
comments received, relevant changes will be made to the final 
document before reporting back to Committee and subsequent 
submission to Scottish Ministers.  After 28 days have elapsed, the 
authority may then adopt the guidance unless Scottish Ministers have 
directed otherwise. 

 
3 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
3.1 The site is in multiple ownership, however, the largest two landowners, 

Hermiston and Aberdeen City Council have worked together to involve 
all interested parties throughout the masterplanning process.  A plan of 
the site ownership is shown in Section 2.2 (page 14) of the 
Development Framework.  The Framework has been developed 
‘landownership blind’ with regard to density, land use and character.  
However, where delivery of key infrastructure is critical, ownership has 
been considered to ensure proposals are pragmatic.  As such the 
Council has a financial interest in the planning designation and future 
development of the site. 

 
3.2 The developers have met the cost of preparing the Development 

Framework including all consultation and engagement work. 
 
4 OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 The Lochinch Farm Countryside Interpretation Centre is currently 

located within OP77.  Any options for its future and potential relocation 
will be considered through close engagement with Aberdeen City 
Council’s Asset Management Service and during detailed masterplan 
and planning application stages.  

 
4.2 The Development Framework reduces the risk of piecemeal and 

inappropriate development in the site area.  Mixed use development 

Page 192



 

 

and the efficient use of land will contribute towards the Council’s aim of 
promoting sustainable economic development. 

 
4.3 Approving the Development Framework will contribute to efficiencies in 

determining future planning applications and a reduction in Council 
staff time to assess future detailed proposals.  By encouraging 
acceptable forms and uses of new development to be agreed publicly, 
it allows more informed decision making to be made earlier, saving time 
and resources for staff, applicants and the public.  

 
4.4 The Development Framework contributes towards a higher rate of new 

house building in the City, including 25% affordable housing provision 
in accordance with the Aberdeen Local Development Plan (2012).  

 
4.5 In accordance with the Aberdeen Local Development Plan: Action 

Programme and the Infrastructure and Developer Contributions 
Manual, the Development Framework references how the development 
will seek to address requirements for cumulative and local transport 
infrastructure; public transport along with walking and cycling. 

 
4.6 A Strategic Environmental Assessment has been undertaken on the 

Loirston site as part of the preparation for the Aberdeen Local 
Development Plan.  

 
5 BACKGROUND / MAIN ISSUES 
 
5.1 The Development Framework has been produced by Optimised 

Environments Ltd. (OPEN) on behalf of Hermiston Securities and 
Aberdeen City Council and aims to produce a new residential 
community to the south of the City on land surrounding Loirston Loch.  
A multi disciplinary project team has contributed to the preparation of 
the Framework, consisting of: 

 
OPEN (Optimised Environments Ltd.) – Masterplanners 
Knight Frank – Planning Consultants 
Ironside Farrar – Environmental Consultants 
Transport Planning Ltd. - Transport Consultants 
Fairhurst Ltd. – Engineering Consultants 
Media House – Public Relations 
TPS Planning – Education Consultants. 

 
Site Description 
 
5.2 The Loirston site lies to the south of Aberdeen and on the border 

between the Aberdeen City and Aberdeenshire boundaries.  The A90 
Aberdeen-Dundee Trunk Road forms a boundary on the west side, 
while A956 (Wellington Road) both bisects the area to the south and 
forms an eastern boundary. 

 

Page 193



 

 

The site area falls into or abuts three Community Council catchments 
of Nigg, Kincorth and Leggart, and, Cove and Altens.  The nearest 
neighbourhood centre with retail and community facilities is located in 
Cove.  The site occupies an important strategic position within the 
context of Aberdeen City both as a gateway site and as a resource for 
open spaces such as Loirston Loch and Kincorth Hill.  The site covers 
a total area of 186 hectares.  

 
Evolving Context 
 
5.3 Section 2.3 (Page 15-16) of the Framework document details a number 

of existing proposals and consents are already in place within the 
masterplanning area.  For the purposes of this Development 
Framework these have been considered as fixed.  

 
• Aberdeen Western Peripheral Route (AWPR) 
• Aberdeen Football Club (AFC) stadium 
• Cove Rangers stadium and training pitches 
• Cove masterplan 
• Aberdeen Gateway Site 
• Balmoral Business Park 

 
5.4 Framework options – due to current uncertainty regarding the final 

location for a new Secondary School and the delivery of various 
football clubs’ proposals, a number of options to the ‘Baseline’ 
Framework have been developed which allow the Framework to 
accommodate various scenarios.  As final decisions on these various 
components are not expected prior to the completion of the 
Development Framework, these options show flexibility and allow 
future decisions on these to be taken account of.  Details of the options 
can be found in Section 5.20 (page 75-76) of the Framework 
document.   

 
5.5 It should be noted that for the purposes of the ‘Baseline Framework’, a 

slightly altered scheme for the AFC is proposed which reflects the 
current land deal between AFC and the landowner.  Although the 
Framework has suggested how elements could be altered for 
masterplanning the site as a whole, it is understood that such changes 
will have implications for planning permissions and legal agreements.  
An Option has been produced within Section 5.20 of the Framework 
illustrating how the baseline framework can be adjusted to 
accommodate the consented AFC layout with minor changes locally to 
specific development blocks.  

 
Policy Summary  
 
5.6 The Development Framework has been prepared following the 

Council’s adopted Aberdeen Masterplanning Process and contributes 
towards the Scottish Government and Aberdeen Local Development 
Plan policy aims of raising design quality through the 6 key qualities of 

Page 194



 

 

creating successful places, namely – distinctive, welcoming, safe and 
pleasant, adaptable, easy to get to and move around, and resource 
efficient.  

 
5.7 The Loirston site is identified in the Aberdeen Local Development Plan 

(2012) as Opportunity Site (OP77) for 1500 homes, 11 hectares of 
employment land, with the potential to accommodate a football or 
Community Stadium, and a Gypsy / Traveller site.  The housing 
provision is split into land release phases, 1100 homes proposed for 
the period up to 2016 and 400 homes up to 2023.  

 
5.8 The Local Development Plan also identifies land at Charleston (OP78) 

to the south Wellington Road for 20.5 hectares of employment land for 
the period 2024-2030; a 2 hectare extension to the existing 
employment site OP69 Aberdeen Gateway; and land at Calder Park 
OP80 for a new stadium and sports facilities for Cove Rangers Football 
Club. 

 
5.9 This proposal helps bring forward land for development in the early 

phases of the Local Development Plan and help meet the targets and 
objectives in the Structure Plan, including that development should 
generally be no less than 30 dwellings per hectare as an average 
across the whole site.  

 
Opportunity and Vision 
 
5.10 The vision is to create a highly desirable and sustainable mixed-use 

community which is built around a strong green space network and 
allows easy access to its surrounding resources.  The Development 
Framework details how the existing natural resources at Loirston offer 
the opportunity for an integrated new neighbourhood of Aberdeen.  
There is potential for high quality waterside development which 
enhances the edge of the loch whilst acting as a highly visible gateway 
to the City of Aberdeen.  The vision for Loirston is based around 5 key 
aspirations: 

 
1. A place tied to the existing landscape 
2. A place of green spaces 
3. A place of safe and green streets 
4. A place with a core density 
5. A place of distinctive character 

 
Design Principles 
 
5.11 The Framework sets out a number of key urban design principles, 

which have in turn informed the detailed proposals for the various 
character areas. 

 
1. Active frontages 
2. Internal block accessibility 

Page 195



 

 

3. Legible street layout 
4. Civic activities 
5. Relationship to open space 
6. Use of key gateway and corner features 
7. Integration with natural environment 
8. Variety of architecture 
9. Coherent public realm 

 
Character Areas 
 
5.12 The Framework identifies 8 ‘character areas’, as named below. Within 

the document (pages 58-65) each area has a detailed set of ‘key 
character aspects’; however a short description of each area has been 
provided in this Report.  Integration of these character areas is critical 
to the success of the overall development – particularly community 
integration (existing and new) and delivery of functional open space.   

 
Character Area Description  
Lochside Predominantly higher density residential with some 

potential for community and commercial uses at 
ground floor level. Area includes some employment 
uses allocated in the southern plots. 

Primary Street / 
Core Settlement 

Area is composed of development blocks which 
primarily front the Primary Street or Redmoss Road. 
Medium-high density residential with some 
commercial and local retail uses on ground floors 
fronting the Primary Street. 

Burnside Development blocks and areas which front onto the 
watercourse which runs into and out of Loirston 
Loch. Primarily employment, local retail and some 
medium density residential uses.  

Sports and 
buffer landscape 

Contains football proposal land and associated 
buffer landscapes. Potential for shared facilities 
between the sports facilities and any educational 
facilities which are determined to be delivered within 
the site. 

Hillside Area is centred on the lower south-facing slopes of 
Kincorth Hill consisting of low-density residential. A 
secondary core is located at the junction of 
Redmoss Road and the Primary Street with the 
opportunity for local retail and commercial uses in 
this location.  

A90 Area comprises the south-facing development 
blocks which face towards the A90. Predominantly 
low-density residential, plot for the Primary School, 
extensive SUDs and green space corridor. 

Existing 
residential and 
employment 

Adjacent to the A90 with existing residential and 
employment uses. Little significant residential 
development is expected in this area, although 
plans for individual dwellings are currently under 

Page 196



 

 

development in a number of locations within this 
strip. 

Charleston Identified within the ALDP as OP78 and allocated 
for future employment use. Detailed development 
has not yet been explored, although indicative 
access points and development parcels have been 
illustrated for the purposes of the Framework.  

 
Environment and Open Space 
 
5.13 Loirston Loch is a man-made water feature and designated a Local 

Nature Conservation Site (LNCS).  The Loch and LNCS boundary are 
important for nature conservation, the buffer strips helps to protect the 
water environment and the LNCS designation, plus the site has high 
landscape value, and therefore, has been safe-guarded within the 
Framework, including opportunities for improved public access.   

 
5.14 Whilst initial environmental studies suggest that potential environmental 

impacts can be avoided or minimised to an acceptable level through 
sensitive design, the proposed development requires that a statutory 
Environmental Impact Assessment is produced to support the Planning 
Permission in Principle application (PPiP), this will cover OP77 and part 
of OP80.  

 
5.15 The agricultural history of the site means there are a number of 

landscape features which will be retained in the development layouts, 
including field patterns and consumption dykes.  There is also the 
opportunity for landscape and channel improvements for the 
watercourses which enter and exit Loirston Loch.  

 
5.16 The Framework has been designed with reference to ACC’s Open 

Space Supplementary Guidance (March 2012). Section 5.4 of the 
Framework details how the key open spaces and their functions will be 
accommodated throughout the site.  This includes: 

 
Major Open Space Loirston Loch and associated open space 

(c.17 ha) 
Neighbourhood Open 
Space 

Landscape strip along A90. 
Deculverted/improved stream corridor to the 
watercourse entering the Loch. 
Landscape buffer to the stadium and open 
space around power lines. 

Local Open Spaces Local areas have been identified where there 
are landscape features which are to be 
integrated and retained into the development 
(e.g. consumption dykes) and areas 
appropriate for civic or public functions.  

 
 
 

Page 197



 

 

Relationship with Loirston Loch 
 
5.17 Loirston Loch is a significant part of the overall identity and landscape 

setting of the development.  The LNCS boundary defines the buffer 
from the Loch into which development blocks should not encroach.  
Although views to Kincorth Hill from Wellington Road across the Loch 
are limited due to both the existing topography and the shelterbelt 
planting along Redmoss Road, the Framework document provides 
guidance and a series of ‘design solutions’ for how the open space 
and built character should be considered.  Section 5.18 and 5.19 of the 
Framework document provides further detail. 

 
5.18 Design solutions 

• High quality architecture to reflect the desire to create a dramatic 
new gateway to the City. 

• Ensure sightlines to Loch are maintained. 
• Gable ends to Loch punctuated by ‘fingers’ of open space. 
• Limit development height beside the Loch and utilise a setback to 

upper floors. 
• Public access and environmental improvements within the LNCS 

boundary, utilising and extending the existing path network 
• Balance public access within sensitive areas.  
• Consider use of undercroft parking solutions where topography and 

infrastructure requirements allow.  
 
Housing 
 
5.19 The proposals for Loirston include a full range of housing types and 

sizes including: apartments and flats, terraced units, townhouses, semi-
detached and detached.  All respective developers will work with the 
Council and the registered social landlords to provide the required level 
of affordable housing in accordance with the Aberdeen Local 
Development Plan – being no less than 25% of the total number of 
units.  

 
5.20 There is a requirement for one Gypsy / Traveller site to be allocated in 

the Framework.  Several potential sites have been identified within 
OP77 for a Gypsy / Traveller site of around 0.5 hectares, following 
guidance contained within ACC’s Gypsy and Traveller Sites 
Supplementary Guidance (2010).  Please refer to pages 49 and 52 of 
the Framework document for further detail. Such a site could be either 
transit or permanent, with detailed aspects of design, location, delivery 
and phasing to be agreed with ACC through the Phase 1 
masterplanning process.  

 
Access and Connectivity 
 
5.21 Access to the Loirston site is primarily from Wellington Road with 

additional access from the proposed stadium junction, Redmoss Road 
and Wellington Circle.  A full Transport Assessment (TA) Scoping 

Page 198



 

 

Report has been prepared to accompany the Development Framework 
and should be referred to for specific details relating to access and 
connectivity.  A Transport Assessment Scoping Report has been 
submitted to Aberdeen City Council Roads and Transportation Officers 
for consideration and has informed the production of the Loirston 
Development Framework.  A full Transport Assessment (TA) is 
currently being prepared by the developers transport consultants to 
support a future Planning Permission in Principle (PPiP) which 
examines the current and future transport matters associated with the 
proposed development.  

 
5.22 The Framework document and the resulting development at Loirston is 

designed to provide the following: 
 
• Well-connected and permeable network of streets. 
• Integration with Core Path and existing path network, including 

aiding delivery of an aspirational Core Path.  
• Integration with surrounding cycle network and promote 

opportunities for cycling. 
• A clear hierarchy of streets which responds to different transport 

users. In order of decreasing vehicular traffic this includes (1) 
Entrance boulevard (2) Primary Street (3) Secondary Streets (4) 
Minor Streets.  

• A set of parameters and character for each street type (as 
mentioned above). 

• Accommodate frequent public transport through the site along the 
primary street corridor.  

• Two access points onto Wellington Road and explore the 
opportunity at Redmoss Road for a public transport/pedestrian/cycle 
connection. Although detailed vehicular access points are to be fully 
confirmed as part of the TA.  

• Contribution to Strategic Transport Fund to mitigate cumulative 
impact of development.  

 
Infrastructure 
 
5.23 Education provision – the ALDP Action Programme details the 

requirement to provide one new Primary School and potential to 
provide one new Secondary School.  The project team have marked 
provision for a Primary School within the Framework.   

 
5.24 The current position which the Scottish Government have agreed in 

principle would provide 2/3 funding for a single replacement school for 
Torry and Kincorth Academies.  The Council would identify a preferred 
site, considering all possible sites, before undertaking a statutory 
consultation exercise on any proposal.  A potential site for a Secondary 
School has been identified as an option in the Development Framework 
and will be reserved until a decision is made by ACC about the 
provision of secondary education in this area.  

 

Page 199



 

 

5.25 The detail and exact phasing of the school requirements for Loirston 
will also be informed by the Education Study which is currently being 
carried out by TPS Planning on behalf of the developers. 

 
5.26 Health care provision – the ALDP Action Programme details the 

requirement for an extension at Cove Bay Health Centre to support an 
additional 3 new GP’s, 2 new dental chairs, and 1 new Community 
Pharmacy within the new settlement.  These requirements will be 
funded from developer contributions and the phasing agreed with NHS 
Grampian.  

 
5.27 Water and drainage – a full list of requirements will be identified 

following completion of a detailed Drainage Impact Assessment and 
Scottish Water Development Impact Assessment which Hermiston 
Securities will commission.  A Drainage Strategy will also be prepared 
and submitted as part of the application for Planning Permission in 
Principle. 

 
5.28 Local retail, commercial and employment – the Framework identifies 

locations for local retail and commercial development along key routes 
and those which address civic spaces.  Such uses are separate to 
other ‘Employment’ allocations and are intended to provide support 
services appropriate for the new residential community, for example an 
‘express’ style local supermarket. Several development blocks are 
identified for Employment uses, specifically at the southern entrance 
from Wellington Road.  These sites will provide a range of types from 
commercial, leisure and offices uses. 

 
5.29 A detailed break down of the Infrastructure Requirements for the site 

can be found on pages 81-83 of the Development Framework. 
 
Phasing 
 
5.30 An indicative phasing strategy has been developed which details the 

delivery of the allocation in accordance with the ALDP 2012.  
 
Phase 1 
2007-2016 

400 units, access from Wellington 
Road, range of residential densities 
along Primary Street and Lochside 
improvements.  

Phase 2 
2007-2016 

400 units, landscape park along 
watercourse and primary school at 
end of phase.  

Phase 3  
2007-2016 

300 units, southern side to Redmoss 
Road complete and associated buffer 
landscaping.  

Phase 4 
2017-2023 

400 units, remaining plots to the north 
opened up.  

Beyond 2020 Charleston employment area (OP78). 
 

Page 200



 

 

Public Consultation and Involvement 
 
5.31 Throughout the design process for Loirston the project team have 

involved local people and stakeholders in the proposals.  The public 
consultation for both the Development Framework and an application 
for Planning Permission in Principle have been run in tandem to avoid 
duplication and confusion.  One major consultation event and separate 
meetings with the three Community Councils that represent the area 
(Nigg, Cove & Altens and Kincorth & Leggart) have taken place. 

 
5.32 Design for the site has evolved with continued input from the 

community.  Their input has been fundamental in shaping the 
proposals ensuring that they meet the aspirations for the site.  Events 
that took place during the masterplanning process for the sites include: 

 
• Local Development Plan: Development Options Consultation Event 

– 8 June 2009  
• Local Development Plan: Main Issues Report Consultation Event – 

18 November 2009 
• Joint Community Council meeting - 7 June 2012 
• Community Exhibition - 19 June 2012 
• Joint Community Council meeting follow up - 23 August 2012 

 
5.33 The main issues arising from consultation so far include:  
 

• Education, Community and Supporting Facilities 
 
Concerns were raised regarding provision of primary and secondary 
education and potential of joint campus on site should be considered.  
Comments were in favour of some form of retail provision and 
community faclities including leisure and open space, affordable and 
sheltered housing was considered essential, but the provision of a 
Gypsy/Traveller site was not favoured.  The project team are currently 
producing an Education Study, this along with close consultation with 
Aberdeen City Council will inform the exact education provision. 
 
• Transport and Infrastructure 
 
Concerns were raised about the impact of the development and traffic 
on the surrounding road network. Use of Redmoss Road and Nigg 
Road as bus only routes, and causeway across Loirston Loch were not 
favoured.  The need for a new access from the A90(T), safe pedestrian 
crossings of Wellington Road, better bus services and retention of 
existing path networks were also key concerns.  The project team are 
currently undertaking a detailed Transport Assessment, which will 
inform a detailed road layout and identification of transport 
infrastructure requirements.  The causeway proposal has been 
removed. 

 
 

Page 201



 

 

• Environment and Loirston Loch 
 
Concerns were raised about the impact of the development on wildlife, 
flora and fauna, and green corridors which link surrounding open space 
resources.  Concern was expressed regarding the visual impact of the 
development, impact on gateway to the City, the height and proximity 
of buildings on the edge of the Loch.  The importance of balancing 
accessibility, angling and wildlife preservation whilst retaining and 
enhancing as much of the natural character of the Loch was another 
key concern.  Support in principle was also raised for a community trust 
to be formed to help manage and protect the future of the Loch.  The 
project team have included a detailed section within the Framework on 
the relationship to the Loch (Section 5.18 and 5.19) and they have 
begun an Environmental Impact Assessment process to cover 
environmental issues in detail.  

 
• Football Stadium 
 
Concerns were raised about potential parking problems on matchdays 
and existing permission for Aberdeen Football Club Stadium 
prejudicing the masterplanning of the wider Loirston area.  Discussions 
are ongoing between the site developers and AFC regarding site 
acquisition and other details relating to provision of a stadium.  Details 
of controlled parking and access arrangements will form part of the 
Transport Assessment.  

 
5.34 Full details of the comments received for the engagement process and 

the responses made can be found on Pages 8-12 of the Development 
Framework. 

 
5.35 Pending approval of this report, the Loirston Development Framework 

will be the subject of statutory consultation.  The following list highlights 
those that will be consulted.  Please note that this is not an exhaustive 
list: 

 
• Nigg Community Council 
• Cove & Altens Community Council 
• Kincorth/Leggart Community Council 
• Kincorth Nature Reserve Management Committee 
• Aberdeen City and Shire Strategic Planning Authority 
• Aberdeenshire Council 
• Forestry Commission Scotland 
• Scottish Water 
• SEPA 
• Scottish Natural Heritage 
• Historic Scotland 
• Scottish Enterprise Grampian  
• Transport Scotland 
• NHS Grampian 

Page 202



 

 

• NESTRANS 
• Planning Gain 

 
5.36 The results of the statutory consultation will be reported to the 

Enterprise Planning and Infrastructure Committee in due course, 
including any recommended amendments to the Framework. 

 
5.37 It is important to note that engagement will continue throughout the 

development process, during detailed masterplan stages and any 
subsequent planning applications.  

 
6 IMPACT 
 
6.1 The proposal contributes to the following Single Outcome Priorities: 1 – 

We live in a Scotland that is the most attractive place for doing 
business in Europe; 2 – we realise our full economic potential with 
more and better employment opportunities for our people; 10.  We live 
in well-designed, sustainable places where we are able to access the 
amenities and services we need; 12 – We value and enjoy our built and 
natural environment and protect and enhance it for future generations. 

 
6.2 The proposal contributes to the 5 Year Business Plan in terms of 

objective – Communication and Community Engagement; sharing our 
plans and aspirations for the city, – delivering an up-to-date plan, – 
facilitating new development projects to improve Aberdeen’s living 
environment and, – support open space initiatives. 

 
6.3 The proposal contributes towards the Aberdeen City Council 

Administrations vision for Aberdeen: 2012 – 2017, particularly creating 
a City which is a great place to live, bring up a family, do business and 
visit. It specifically contributes to the follows objectives: Governance – 
encouraging citizens to participate in design and development; Living – 
improving opportunities for physical activity; Environment – energy 
efficient design and construction, attractive streetscapes and access to 
green space; Economy – improve access to range of affordable 
housing; Mobility – encourage cycling, walking and promoting a 
sustainable transport systems which reduce carbon emissions. 

 
6.4 The proposal is consistent with the Council’s Corporate Plan in 

particular with regard to delivering high levels of design from all 
development, maintaining an up-to-date planning framework, 
sustainable development and open space provision.  

 
6.5 The proposal is consistent with the Planning and Sustainable Service 

Plan, in particular engaging the community in the planning process, 
and the delivery of masterplans/development frameworks in line with 
The Aberdeen Masterplanning Process.  

 

Page 203



 

 

6.6 An Equalities and Human Rights Impact Assessment has been 
prepared. In summary, many of the aims of the proposal will have 
positive benefits, including; 
• Race – the proposals include the provision of a Gypsy Traveller site 

to improve access to facilities.  
• Younger – the proposals include the provision of Play Spaces for 

children.  
• Other (Housing) – greater provision of housing to meet the housing 

demand and affordable housing to meeting housing needs. 
• Other (Health) – improved access useable open spaces for leisure 

pursuits and opportunities for walking/cycling/exercise. 
 
7 BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
7.1 The Loirston Development Framework (November 2012) is a large 

document containing a lot of illustrative material and can be viewed by 
accessing the following link: 
www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/masterplanning  

 
7.2 Aberdeen Local Development Plan 2012 

http://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/nmsruntime/saveasdialog.asp?lID=422
78&sID=9484  

 
7.3 Aberdeen Masterplanning Process 2008 (article 22, Planning 

Committee Minute, 6/11/08) 
http://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/Planning/pla/pla_planningbriefs.asp  

 
8 REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS 
 
Rebecca Oakes 
Planner – Masterplanning, Design and Conservation 
� 01224 (52) 2241 
� roakes@aberdeencity.gov.uk 
 
 

Page 204



 
LOIRSTON

Development Framework 

 November 2012

SUMMARY

Page 205



Summary Document: Loirston Development Framework2

Introduction

The Loirston site occupies an important 
strategic position within the context 
of Aberdeen City both as a gateway 
site and as a resource for open spaces 
such as Loirston Loch and Kincorth 
Hill. The site offers an excellent 
location for development, with the 
potential to connect to and support 
existing surrounding communities 
whilst integrating with the distinctive 
landscape setting.

The Loirston masterplan area is 
located to the south of Aberdeen and 
is adjacent to the residential areas of 
Nigg, Cove and Charleston and in close 
proximity to the employment uses of 
Altens industrial estate. The relevant 
“Opportunity Site” boundaries cover a 
total area of c177 hectares.

The document is set out in the following 
sections which are summarised on the 
following pages:

Section 1: The Masterplan Process

Sets out the process which has been 
followed during the evolution of 
the Development Framework, the 
planning context, existing consents 
within the DF which are considered 
as “fixes” and details the consultation 
and engagement process which has 
been  undertaken along with recorded 
responses to comments. 

Section2: The Site

Describes the site, historic development 
and site analysis. A brief outline of 
the EIA and TA scoping process is 
presented.

Section 3: Opportunity and Vision

Details the potential of the site as a 
major gateway to the City and outlines 
the key principles which have been 
adopted for the DF. 

Section 4: Design Development

Illustrates the design progression from 
early sketches and options to material 
included in the public exhibition and 
more detailed testing of urban grain 
and character.

Section 5: The Development 
Framework 

Defines the various components of the 
DF and demonstrates how they address 
points of policy, landuse, movement, 
open space, urban design, character 
and design. Three-dimensional material 
sets out the aspirations for various 
character areas.

Section 6: Phasing and Delivery

Key principles of phasing and delivery 
are set out through indicative phasing 
diagrams and a matrix of infrastructure 
requirements.

Section 7: Appendices

Additionally, the following supporting 
information has been submitted 
in support of the Development 
Framework and should be read in 
tandem with this document:

Drainage Statement

Geo-environmental Desk Study

Traffic Assessment Scoping 

EIA Scoping

Loirston Development Framework: Summary

Page 206



3

Aberdeen Local Development Plan 
(ALDP) Opportunity Site

Legend

OP80

OP77

OP78

OP69

Development Framework Area

Page 207



Summary Document: Loirston Development Framework4

This section sets out the purpose 
of the Development Framework 
and sets out the planning context 
in terms of development plans, 
policy and other relevant guidance 
documents. The technical workshops 
with ACC stakeholders is described 
and the process of consultation with 
the Community is set out. A public 
exhibition was held in June 2012 and 
the relevant material and collated 
comments is recorded. The design team 
response to those comments is set out 
along with identification of how the 
proposals have changed to reflect the 
aspiration or specific requests made 
by the community. Several meetings 
have been held with the three involved 
Community Councils and the outcome 
of those meetings is noted.

Section 1: Masterplan 
process

Section 2 describes the site in detail 
and sets out the existing consents 
and relevant planning applications 
which fall within the Framework area. 
A number of these, including the 
proposals for Aberdeen Football Club 
and Cove Rangers Football Club, are 
considered as ‘fixes’ for the purpose of 
the Development Framework, and their 
current planning status and layout is 
recorded.

The Loirston site is located to the west 
of Cove Bay on the southern outskirts 
of Aberdeen City. It is bordered on the 
west side by the A90 and on the south-
east by the A956 (Wellington Road). 
To the west and south lies agricultural 
land. Immediately north of the site is 
Kincorth Hill, an area of scrub and a 
nature reserve, and beyond that the 
residential area of Kincorth. Bordering 
the site to the north-east is a small area 
of agricultural and recreational ground, 
and further to the north and north-east 
are the large Tullos, Nigg and Altens 
industrial estates.

Most of the site lies between 80 and 
90 metres above ordnance datum (m 
aod). The ground is generally fairly flat, 
sloping gently down towards Loirston 
Loch, but steepens upwards towards 
Kincorth Hill at the north end and Blue 
Hill to the south-west (outwith the site). 
There is an area of low-lying, marshy 
ground immediately to the west of 
the loch. Areas of boggy ground exist, 
particularly near to the loch. The main 
use of the site is as grazing land for 
cattle and sheep with some recreational 
uses.

Section 2: The site

Public exhibition, June 2012

Page 208



5

The historic development of the 
site is set out through text narrative 
associated with historic maps; key 
landscape elements such as Loirston 
Loch and Kincorth Hill are described 
and their key sensitivities noted along 
with the environmental principles to be 
adopted as the framework is developed 
in more detail. Other environmental 
considerations are summarised along 
with an overview of the Environmental 
Impact Assessment scoping process. 
This includes an outline of the approach 
to assessing impact on amongst other 
topics: land use; hydrology, drainage, 
flood risk and water quality; ecology, 
nature conservation and biodiversity; 

cultural heritage; noise and vibration; 
and traffic and transport. Initial studies 
suggest that potential environmental 
impacts can be avoided or minimised 
to an acceptable level through sensitive 
design.

Reference is made to the Transport 
Assessment scoping report which 
accompanies the DF and sets out the 
proposed approach to assessing impact 
on connectivity issues.

Finally, selected site panoramas are 
set out with key landscape elements 
identified along with relevant features 
in the immediate context.

View A: View from within embankment and site to loch from south-west extent of site

View B: To loch from Wellington Road

View C: To Blue Hill from location of proposed AFC junction at Wellington Road

existing shelter belt planting
logistics/haulage employment uses

existing watercourse

Wellington Road

Balmoral Business Parkconsumption dyke

Wellington Road

Blue Hill

existing residential property

existing embankment blocks views from Wellington 
Road

pylons on Kincorth Hill behind shelterbelt planting

Page 209



Summary Document: Loirston Development Framework6

The Loirston site sits in a key strategic 
location which has the potential to 
be a significant gateway to Aberdeen 
City making the Loirston site a highly 
visible edge of city location, integrated 
positively with important landscape 
resources such as Loirston Loch and 
Kincorth Hill. With future changes 
planned to the transport network 
around the site the area covered by the 
Framework will be bounded by two key 
routes into the city; these key arteries, 
coupled with the potential for a public 
transport route through the new 
development and the open aspect of 
the site due to the existing topography, 
make the Loirston site a highly visible 
edge of city location. 

Section 3: Opportunity and Vision

The existing landscape resources of 
Loirston Loch and Kincorth Hill offer 
a fantastic opportunity for a new 
neighbourhood that is fully integrated 
with its landscape setting and that 
is distinctive and appropriate to the 
surrounding context. The proximity to 
the city centre and key employment 
areas creates the potential for a unique 
and attractive waterside mixed-use 
development. By sensitively establishing 
a landscape framework from the outset 
around the existing resources, a strong 
green space network can be created, 
into which sustainable development 
neatly fits, offering easy access to the 
surrounding open spaces and existing 
communities. 

Indicative Framework block model

Illustrating key development principles

Page 210



7

The design team has used an iterative 
process to develop the Loirston 
Framework, based on an evolving 
understanding of the site and its 
technical parameters, the surrounding 
context and the aspirations of the key 
stakeholders. Consultation has been 
key, taking into account the views and 
expertise of the community, statutory 
consultees and ACC. Feedback 
received from these interactions 
has been assessed and integrated 
where appropriate in order to ensure 
the best outcome for the site and a 
Framework which can flexibly adapt 
and accommodate change in the future.

This section illustrates and records some 
of the outputs of this process, exploring 
through diagrams, plans and sketches 
the various paths that were followed on 
the way to establishing a concept and 
baseline that could be tested technically 
and with stakeholders. 

Section 4: Design development

Testing the open space network connections

Sketches in support of early visualisations for the loch.

Page 211



Summary Document: Loirston Development Framework8

The Framework has evolved from 
a careful study and analysis of the 
Loirston site and its context within 
Nigg, Cove and Charleston. It has taken 
into account the prime strategic nature 
of the site and the potential for it to 
develop as a gateway to the City over 
time, as well as being a place in its 
own right. The Framework establishes 
a flexible structure which is in line 
with the timing and allocations set out 
within the ALDP and allows for future 
detailed proposals to come forward in 
due course. 

In line with the Aberdeen City 
Council ‘Masterplanning Process’ the 
Development Framework sets out a 
vision and a spatial Framework for 
the way in which the Loirston area will 
be developed. This section illustrates 
through concept diagrams how the 
framework has been structured in 
relation to existing landscape features, 
landform and orientation, views, spatial 
experience and connections. 

Detailed diagrams set out the proposals 
for access and connectivity relating to 
existing and proposed core paths and 
cycle networks along with vehicular 
movements which follow the principles 
of ‘Designing Streets’ Policy Statement 
for Scotland. Two main junctions are 
proposed for access from Wellington 
Road supported by two other 
connections at Redmoss Road and 
Wellington Circle. 

The requirements for usable, well-
designed open space as set out in ACC’s 

Section 5: The Development Framework

Open Space Supplementary Guidance 
is clearly illustrated through a series of 
diagrams which identify relevant types 
and categories by use and area. 

Landuse and density principles illustrate 
how and where 1500 residential units 
and 11 hectares of Employment land 
would be accommodated on the site and 
ranges of applicable storey heights are 
indicated. A strategy of taller buildings 
around the Loch has been identified to 
maximise the opportunity to create a 
gateway development which is visible 
across the water on approach to the 
city. 

An initial assessment of the required 
surface water strategy is described 
along with a description of current 
topography and landform. Indicative 
character areas have been identifed 
across the framework and two- and 
three-dimensional material has been 
developed to illustrate the  proposed 
approaches and relevant urban design 
principles. A section relating to the 
specific sensitivities of the lochside 
area shows how the next steps in detail 
design should consider building heights, 
setbacks, environmental improvements 
and access arrangements. 

Finally, due to the current uncertainty 
regarding both the final location for a 
new Secondary School and the delivery 
of the various football club’s proposals, 
a number of options to the ‘Baseline’ 
Framework have been developed which 
allow the Framework to accommodate 
various scenarios.

Page 212



9

Development Framework
1:8000 @ A3

0m 100m N 200m 300m 400m 500m 

Development blocks

Existing development

Streets

Indicative location for new junction

Major connection to surrounding road network

Other connection to surrounding road network

Core path (existing and improved)

Core path AP3

General path network

Major Open Space

Neighbourhood Open Space

Local Open Space

Indicative SUDS location

Primarily continuous frontage

Mixed frontage

Key buildings/corners for orientation, landmarks and urban 

character.

Suggested development block internal access.

Legend

AFC

Cove Rangers

Loirston Development Framework

Page 213



Summary Document: Loirston Development Framework10

Potential for landmark buildings 
at key corners

ings

Environmentally sensitive area 
protected and enhanced

Buildings arranged as ‘fingers’ 
towards Loch

Play zone

Public access along existing 
and extended path system on 
lochside which is suitable for 
cyclists.

Open spaces link north from 
lochside into development

Block A3 gables may return 
to create ‘bookend’ to 
development. Pedestrian 
permeability from front to back 
should be retained.

ings ings

Potential for building line 
to push forward to edge of 
Framework block to slow traffic

s ar

Urban design principles of lochside area

Concept plan for lochside area illustrating key principles

Page 214



11

The last section of the Framework 
presents indicative phasing diagrams 
and associated principles which are 
devised to the create a logical sequence 
of development and an appropriate 
build-up of the place. A matrix describing 
an outline delivery strategy identifies 
the key infrastructure requirements 
and the parties to be involved in their 
delivery at later stages.

Section 6: Phasing and Delivery

Illustration of opportunity and potential for lochside area

Indicative phasing

Page 215



Page 216



 

 

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
COMMITTEE    Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure  
 
DATE      6 November 2012  
 
DIRECTOR     Gordon McIntosh 
 
TITLE OF REPORT  Maidencraig Masterplan 
 
REPORT NUMBER:       EPI/12/198 
 
 
1 PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 This report outlines the Maidencraig Masterplan, prepared as a guide 

for the future development of land identified as Opportunity Sites OP43 
Maidencraig South East and OP44 Maidencraig North East in the 
adopted Aberdeen Local Development Plan (ALDP).   

 
1.2 A summary document of the Maidencraig Masterplan is appended to 

this Committee Report.  The full Maidencraig Masterplan for sites OP43 
and OP44 (September 2012) is a large document containing a lot of 
illustrative material and can be viewed by accessing the following link: 
 
www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/masterplanning 

 
1.3 A hard copy of the Masterplan is available in the Member’s Library or 

within the Planning and Sustainable Development service at Ground 
Floor North, Marischal College, or by contacting the Masterplanning, 
Design and Conservation team.   

 
1.4 The Masterplan has been made available to the Mastrick, 

Sheddocksley and Summerhill and Kingswells community councils for 
information prior to this report being considered for public consultation. 

 
2 RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 
2.1 It is recommended that the Committee: 
 

(a) Approve the Maidencraig Masterplan as interim planning advice; 
and 

 
(b) Agree for officers to implement the process to ratify the Masterplan 

as Supplementary Guidance. This will include a 4 week public 
consultation with results reported to committee prior to submission 
to Scottish Government. 

 

Agenda Item 9.3

Page 217



 

 

2.2 Definitions 
 ‘Interim Planning Advice’ – this specifies that the Masterplan is in the 
public domain and available for the purposes of a formal City-wide 
consultation.  As such it becomes a material consideration in the 
determination of any planning application.  The duration of consultation 
will typically be 4 weeks, given that public engagement has taken place 
throughout the preparation of the Framework.  This allows responses to 
be collated and reported back in the next committee cycle.  

 
‘Supplementary Guidance’ (SG) – this is adopted and issued by a 
planning authority in connection with a Local Development Plan, as a 
result any such guidance will form part of the Development Plan. 
Before adoption, the SG must be publicised and a period for 
representations to be made specified, this includes the targeting of key 
consultees and stakeholders who may want the opportunity to 
comment. Following the specified consultation period and as a result of 
comments received, relevant changes will be made to the final 
document before reporting back to committee and subsequent 
submission to Scottish Ministers.  After 28 days have elapsed, the 
authority may then adopt the guidance unless Scottish Ministers have 
directed otherwise. 
 

3 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
3.1 Aberdeen City Council owns an area of land to the north of the site 

identified in fig 74 on page 54 of the Masterplan.  As such the Council 
has a financial interest in the planning designation and future 
development of the site. 

 
3.2 The developers have met the cost of preparation of the Masterplan 

including all consultation and engagement.  The proposals will result in 
efficiencies in the determination of future planning applications related 
to the Masterplan, leading to a reduction in Council staff time to assess 
future detailed proposals. 

 
4 OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 The Masterplan will reduce the risk of piecemeal and inappropriate 

development in the site area.  Mixed use development and the efficient 
use of land will contribute towards the Council’s aim of promoting 
sustainable development. 

 
4.2 Approving the Masterplan will contribute to efficiencies in determining 

future planning applications. By encouraging acceptable forms and 
uses of new development to be agreed publicly, it allows more 
informed decision making to be made earlier, saving time and 
resources for staff, applicants and the public.  

 
4.3 In accordance with the Local Development Plan, Appendix 4, The 

Action Programme and the Infrastructure and Developer Contributions 

Page 218



 

 

Manual, the Masterplan explicitly references how the development will 
address requirements for cumulative and local transport infrastructure; 
public transport along with walking and cycling. 

 
4.4 A Strategic Environmental Assessment has been undertaken on both 

Maidencraig sites as part of the preparation for the proposed Aberdeen 
Local Development Plan.  

 
5 BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 
 
5.1 The Maidencraig Masterplan has been produced by Bancon 

Developments and aims to create a vibrant, welcoming, attractive and 
sustainable community which is safe and easy to move around in.  A 
multi disciplinary team has been assembled to produce the Masterplan 
including Bancon (planning and development), Archial (design and 
architecture) and David Wilson Associates (landscape). 

 
Site Description 
 
5.2 Maidencraig North East (OP44) and Maidencraig South East (OP43) 

are located to the north and south of the Lang Stracht (A944) 
respectively.  Situated adjacent to Sheddocksley on the western edge 
of the City, OP44 has a gradual slope from the north of the site down to 
the A944.  The southern site (OP43) is next to Summerhill and is much 
more undulating in nature with the land dropping steeply at the south 
into Den of Maidencraig.   

 
Policy 
 
5.3 The Masterplan has been prepared following the Council’s adopted 

Aberdeen Masterplanning Process and contributes to the Scottish 
Government and Aberdeen Local Development Plan policy aims of 
raising design quality in new development, through the 6 key qualities 
of creating successful places, namely – distinctive, welcoming, safe 
and pleasant, adaptable, easy to get to and move around, and 
resource efficient.  

 
5.4 The sites are allocated for 450 homes on OP43 and 300 homes on 

OP44 in the Aberdeen Local Development Plan - a total of 750 homes.  
There is no specific employment allocation associated with either site.  
Both sites are proposed within the first period of the plan, 2007-2016.  
A contribution of 25% affordable housing is required within this site and 
discussions will take place between the Councils housing service and 
other appropriate bodies.  Discussions are ongoing with Registered 
Social Landlords.   

 
Design Principles 
 
5.5 The Maidencraig Masterplan establishes a vision for the site, providing 

a comprehensive spatial framework, integrating landuse, housing, 

Page 219



 

 

landscape and transport proposals and setting out a clear phasing 
scheme.    

 
5.6 The Masterplan aims to create a sense of place, confirming a number 

of existing environmental, historical and cultural features will be 
retained.  Development will also respond to its surroundings and the 
local identity, creating a series of distinct character areas connected by 
an integrated network of streets, paths and spaces. 

 
5.7 The topography of the site is key to shaping the design and layout of 

the development and defining the character areas.  This is particularly 
apparent in the sections that provide detail on how the development will 
relate to the Den of Maidencraig, the woodland to the north, the 
existing communities to the east and Dobbies to the west.  The location 
and shape of the site play an important role in the form, design and 
character of the development. 

 
Character Areas 
The masterplan promotes three distinct character areas –  
 
5.8 Area A (page 39 of the Masterplan document) 

Maidencraig North East, bounded by Sheddocksley, woodland to the 
north, Dobbies Garden Centre and the Lang Stracht.  This area is 
made up of a variety of house types, including a large provision of 
affordable housing to the eastern edge of the site.  A commercial zone 
with uses complementary to a residential area has been included with 
the potential for offices, small shop units etc below flats.  There will be 
pedestrian and cycle connections and the bus route loops through this 
part of the site.  Details on Area A can be found on pages 39-44 of the 
Masterplan. 

 
5.9 Area B (page 45 of the Masterplan document) 

The western section of OP43 bounded to the north by the Lang Stracht, 
the west by the switch back, south by the Den of Maidencraig and the 
east by a group of existing properties and a landscaped gulley.  This 
area is lower density in response to the landscape, containing mainly 
semi detached and detached properties, 1 – 2 storeys in height.  
Courtyards and areas of open space help to draw the landscaping into 
the site to soften the edge of the development and integrate it into the 
landscape.  Details on Area B can be found on pages 45 and 46 of the 
Masterplan. 

 
5.10 Area C (page 47 of the Masterplan document) 

Area C is bounded by the gulley to the west, to the south by the Den of 
Maidencraig, to the east open space between the site and Summerhill 
and the Lang Stracht to the north.  This area has a number of existing 
properties within it that have been incorporated in the proposed layout 
of the site with a mix of house types.  There is also a small area of 
commercial development located on the ground floor of two of the units 
in the flatted development.  This area has a number of courtyards that 

Page 220



 

 

open up onto the Den of Maidencraig, bringing the landscape into the 
development and softening the southern boundary of the site.  Details 
on Area C can be found on pages 47 to 51 of the Masterplan. 
 

5.11 Within the masterplan density has also been carefully considered.  
Higher density development is located around the bus routes and core 
areas.  Lower density development is located closer to the periphery 
providing a more sensitive approach adjacent to the rural edges of the 
site.   

 
Environment and Open Space 
 
5.12 The vision for the site is a successfully integrated green network 

through the site which brings the surrounding landscape into it.  The 
key principles for the site can be viewed on page 18 concept plan in the 
Masterplan (fig 17).  The north - south green connections linking the 
Den of Maidencraig with the woodland and core paths to the north are 
very important and figure prominently in the masterplan.   

 
5.13 The Masterplan has carefully considered the landscape network 

around the two Maidencraig sites and how they can be linked to 
produce a strong green space network.  A representation of the 
Masterplan’s proposed green space network can be viewed on pages 
27 and 28 of the document.  This shows that there will be a greater 
amount and better connected spaces than the Local Development Plan 
proposed.  

 
5.14 The majority of existing trees and hedges on the site have been 

incorporated into the proposed masterplan.  Detailed surveys and 
landscape plans will be required as part of the planning application 
process.  

 
5.15 Open space provision will also be included within the site as part of the 

requirement of the Local Development Plan.  Details of this can be 
found on page 29 of the Masterplan document. 

 
Housing 
 
5.16 The developer aims to provide a high quality living environment that will 

meet housing need and demand, providing a mix of house sizes types 
and tenures.  

 
5.17 The Masterplan promotes 25% affordable housing in accordance with 

the Aberdeen Local Development Plan.  Work is ongoing with the 
council and affordable housing providers to deliver the right product. 
The affordable housing will be integrated with private development 
areas and will be of a design that does not differentiate them.  
Affordable housing provision is included within the first phase of 
development and in particular phase 1b is 100% affordable housing.   

 

Page 221



 

 

5.18 The developer is committed to sustainable house design having 
developed house types that utilise the best timber frame technology to 
minimise energy consumption.  Consideration has also been given to 
aspect, orientation and maximising solar gain.  The courtyards at the 
end of the streets allow light to permeate into the streets.  The housing 
layout has also been considered to avoid overshadowing. 

 
Access and Connectivity 
 
5.19 The Masterplan considers in detail the needs of pedestrians, cyclists 

and public transport users as well as cars.   
 
5.20 There are a number of core paths throughout both the sites.  Core Path 

AP45 to the north connects the site to Sheddocksley.  Details of the 
footpaths and core paths are indicated on pages 20 and 21 of the 
Masterplan.  These support maximum permeability for the site in 
accordance with Designing Streets.   

 
5.21 Concerns were raised by members of the community in relation to 

further connections to Sheddocksley.  Pedestrian connections are 
essential for the connectivity and permeability of the site, including 
access to school, particularly through the proposed woodland belt on 
the east of the northern site.  The exact details of these pedestrian 
connections will be a matter for detailed assessment as part of the 
planning application process, but the requirement has been included in 
the Masterplan. 

 
5.22 Connections to the existing cycle network along the A944 are provided. 
 
5.23 The two sites are fragmented by the Lang Stracht (A944).  Careful 

consideration has been given to ensuring they are as successfully 
connected to each other as possible. The central core area provides a 
strong framework to encourage north-south movement of people.  This 
junction will be fully signalised and will incorporate pedestrian 
crossings.  Consideration has also been given to the entrance to both 
sites to provide a sense of arrival and welcome.  Two further junctions 
are proposed to access the sites, one to the east and one to the west 
adjacent to the bus gate.  These junctions will be left in - left out only. 

 
5.24 The primary street through the site provides a bus route serving the 

site.  The bus route can be seen in detail on page 21 of the Masterplan.  
This will be an extension to the number 23 service with a left in to the 
southern half of the site and a left out to the northern part creating a 
new loop link.  

 
5.25 The development will be made up of a strong street hierarchy with a 

primary street including a bus route, green links, secondary streets and 
minor streets.  Examples of how these may look can be found on 
pages 32- 35 of the Masterplan document. 

 

Page 222



 

 

Infrastructure 
 
5.26 Health – Off site contribution proposed by the Infrastructure 

Requirements.  The developers have noted the concerns of the 
community about provision and have begun discussions with NHS 
Grampian. The masterplan is flexible enough to provide onsite facilities 
should this be NHS Grampians preferred option. 

 
5.27 Transport – The road access strategy for Maidencraig requires three 

accessed off the Lang Stracht (A944).  The eastern and western 
junctions will both be left in- left out and the central junction at Dobbies 
will be fully signalised including a pedestrian crossing.  

 
5.28 Education – Discussions need to take place with education and no 

school is required on site under the infrastructure requirements.  If once 
the school review has taken place a school is required on the site there 
is enough flexibility within the masterplan to provide a school in later 
phases of the development.  The developer will continue discussions 
with Education in relation to this issue. 

 
5.29 A detailed break down of the Infrastructure Requirements for the site 

can be found on pages 56 and 57 of the Masterplan. 
 
Phasing 
 
5.30 The sites are both allocated within the first period for development 

(2007-2016) as set out within the Local Development Plan.   Details of 
phasing can be seen on the diagram on page 54 of the Masterplan. 

 
Public consultation    
 
5.31 Design for the site has evolved with continued input from the 

community.  Their input has been fundamental in shaping the 
proposals ensuring that they meet the aspirations for the site.  Events 
that took place during the masterplanning process for the sites include: 

 
• Presentation to Mastrick, Sheddocksley and Summerhill 

Community Council early 2009. 
• LDP development bids exhibition 4 June 2009 
• End June 2009 Kingswells Community discussions. 
• Meeting with Mastrick and Sheddocksley and Summerhill 

Community Councils to discuss 8th February 2012. 
• Community exhibition – 29 March 2012 – 30 March 2012. 

 
5.32 The main issues arising from consultation so far include:  
 

• Traffic concerns,  
 
Concerns were raised about the impact on the road network from 
the traffic generated by 750 houses.   The developer confirmed that 

Page 223



 

 

they will carry out a detailed Transport Assessment as part of the 
planning application process.  The Masterplan also includes good 
pedestrian and cycle connections as well as a bus route to provide 
options other than the car.  
 
• Education, 
 
Concern was raised by the community on the distances pupils 
would have to travel to school.  The Masterplan that is adaptable so 
that if a school is required onsite it could be accommodated in either 
OP43 or OP44. 
 
• Impact on wildlife, 
 
Concern was raised about the potential impact the development 
could have on the wildlife within the site.  The masterplan ensures 
connection of habitats through two north - south corridors.  There 
will also be significant landscaping throughout the site.  A phase 1 
habitats survey will be carried out in support of any planning 
application.  
 
• Provision of community facilities/health care/ nurseries. 
 
The requirement for the a contribution to health care facilities in 
Kingswells raised concerns with the local community, due to limited 
public transport access.  The developer is currently in discussion 
with NHS Grampian and the Masterplan has capacity to 
accommodate healthcare facilities onsite should this be the best 
solution.  

 
Full details of the comments received for the engagement process and 
the responses made can be found in Appendix 6.1 of the Masterplan.   

 
5.33 Pending approval of this report, the Maidencraig Masterplan will be the 

subject of statutory consultation.  The following list highlights those 
expected to be consulted.  Please note that this is not an exhaustive 
list: 

 
• Mastrick, Sheddocksley and Summerhill Community Council 
• Kingswells Community Council  
• Aberdeen City and Shire Strategic Development Planning Authority 
• Aberdeenshire Council 
• Forestry Commission Scotland 
• Scottish Water 
• SEPA 
• Scottish Natural Heritage 
• Historic Scotland 
• Scottish Enterprise Grampian  
• Transport Scotland 

Page 224



 

 

• NHS Grampian 
• NESTRANS 
• Planning Gain 

 
5.34 The results of the statutory consultation will be reported to the 

Enterprise Planning and Infrastructure Committee in due course, 
including any recommended amendments to the masterplan. 

 
5.35 It is important to note that engagement will continue throughout the 

development process and any subsequent planning applications.  
 
5.36 Discussions will take place between the developer and other relevant 

bodies, including NHS, education and bus providers prior to the 
submission of a planning application. 

 
5.37 A transport assessment is currently being produced and will be 

submitted to support an application for Planning Permission in 
Principle. 

 
6 IMPACT 
 
6.1 The Masterplan contributes to the following Single Outcome Priorities: 

1 – We live in a Scotland that is the most attractive place for doing 
business in Europe; 2. We realise our full economic potential with more 
and better employment opportunities for our people; 10. We live in well-
designed, sustainable places where we are able to access the 
amenities and services we need; 12 – We value and enjoy our built and 
natural environment and protect and enhance it for future generations. 

 
6.2 The proposal contributes to the 5 year Business Plan in terms of 

working with our partners to attract visitors, workers and investment to 
protect the economic future of the city, encouraging the growth of local 
businesses through support of existing business sectors and 
development of new sectors and facilitating new development projects 
to improve Aberdeen’s living and working environment. 

 
6.3 The proposal contributes towards the Aberdeen City Council 

Administrations vision for Aberdeen: 2012 – 2017, particularly creating 
a City which is a great place to live, bring up a family, do business and 
visit. It specifically contributes to the follows objectives: Governance – 
encouraging citizens to participate in design and development; Living – 
improving opportunities for physical activity; Environment – energy 
efficient design and construction, attractive streetscapes and access to 
green space; Economy – improve access to range of affordable 
housing; Mobility – encourage cycling, walking and promoting a 
sustainable transport systems which reduce carbon emissions. 

 
6.4 The proposal is consistent with the Council’s Corporate Plan in 

particular delivering high levels of design from all development, 

Page 225



 

 

maintaining an up-to-date planning framework, sustainable 
development and open space provision.  

 
6.5 The proposal is consistent with the Planning and Sustainable 

Development Service Plan, in particular engaging the community in the 
planning process, and the delivery of Masterplans in line with the 
Aberdeen Masterplanning Process.  

 
6.6 An Equalities and Human Rights Impact Assessment has been 

prepared. In summary, many of the aims of the proposal will have 
positive benefits, including; 

 
• Older – smaller house types including bungalows are included in 

proposals, and the design team have also expressed a willingness 
to consider other options to suit older people with the Council’s 
housing team.  

• Younger – the proposals include the provision of Play Spaces for 
children.  

• Other (Housing) – greater provision of affordable and family housing 
in Aberdeen as a result of development. 

• Other (Health) – improved access useable open spaces for leisure 
pursuits and opportunities for walking/cycling/exercise. 

 
7 BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
7.1 The Maidencraig Masterplan (September 2012) is a large document 

containing a lot of illustrative material and can be viewed by accessing 
the following link: 
http://thezone/PI/SL_stratlead_reports.asp 

 
7.2 Aberdeen Local Development Plan 2012 

http://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/Planning/ldp/pla_local_development_pl
an.asp 
 

7.3 Aberdeen Masterplanning Process  
http://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/nmsruntime/saveasdialog.asp?lID=317
82&sID=14394 
 

8 REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS 
 

Laura Robertson  
Senior Planner – Masterplanning, Design and Conservation 
� 01224 (52) 2246 
� larobertson@aberdeencity.gov.uk 
 

Page 226



 

 

Page 227



1 Context 

1.1 The Site 

The proposed development area is made up of two parcels of land, identified in the Local 
Development Plan as OP43 – Maidencraig south east, and OP44 – Maidencraig north east.  
The two areas are bisected by the A944 (Lang Stracht) Road.   

Maidencraig South East totals 29.8 hectares, is bounded by the A944 to the North and west, 
Summerhill to the East, and the Den of Maidencraig Local Nature Reserve to the South. 

Maidencraig North East totals 22.8 hectares.  The A944 bounds the South of the site, 
Sheddocksley lies to the East, woodland lines the North boundary, and to the West is the 

Dobbies Garden Centre. 

Both sites slope gently South, with the Maidencraig South East site becoming steeper 
towards the Denburn and the Local Nature Reserve.  The aerial photograph below shows the 

site (outlined in red) in context, along with listed buildings and tree preservation orders 
marked in yellow.  The woodland to the north, and the Den of Maidencraig Local Nature 

Reserve to the south are shaded white. 

Maidencraig masterplan area. 

Page 228



1.2 Local Development Plan 

The Aberdeen Local Development Plan, adopted on the 29th February 2012, aims to 

implement the broad growth strategy set out in the Structure Plan. 
 

Site OP 43 Maidencraig SE is programmed to deliver 450 homes by 2016, while site OP 44 

Maidencraig NE should provide 300 homes in the same time period.  The Local Developmen  
Plan does not allocate employment land on the Maidencraig site.  These allocations are 

confirmed on the Proposals Map. 

Aberdeen Local Development Plan zoning map excerpt 
 

1.3 Site Analysis Summary 

A detailed analysis of the site has been carried out.  The opportunities and constraints to the 

development have been identified, as have the existing services and facilities.  The following 

key points have been identified to inform the design and layout.   

 Open sloping and irregular site, facing south and east 

 Views to Local Nature Reserve and beyond 

 A944 runs between the two site areas. 

 Site abuts the existing urban edge which is quite ‘hard’ to the north of the Lang 

Stracht but more organic to the south of the road presumably due to the difficult 
contours. 

 Wayleave through southern section of site for drainage from garden centre. 

 Denburn forms the meandering southern edge of site. 

 Existing field boundaries suggest a natural ‘grain’ to the landscape 

 Sections of the site adjacent to the Denburn slope so steeply that development is 

precluded. 

 Desirability of links to Sheddocksley 

Page 229



 Proposed Green Space Network around site 

 Existing buildings on the site are generally small scale and traditional in character. 

 Minimal vegetation due to agricultural/horticultural use with trees and shrubs 
restricted to property and field boundaries. 

 Footpath (part of core path network) passes east/west through the north of the site. 

 Proximity to wider footpath & cycle network 

 Road access limited to the A944 corridor 

 Public Transport available and actively promoted 

 

  

Page 230



2 The Vision for the Masterplan 
 

Our Vision is to harness the advantages identified in the analysis to produce a vibrant, 
welcoming, attractive and  sustainable community which is safe and easy to move around, 
while minimising the segregation which the Lang Stracht tends to impose. 
 

The development will be highly landscaped – echoing and absorbing the surrounding 

landscape (of the Northern woodland, the Green Space Network, and the Den of 
Maidencraig), and highly sustainable, with a mix of uses and good connections to walking, 
cycling and public transport routes.  Within this over!arching framework we will develop 

three distinct character areas containing attractive residential neighbourhoods where 

families can live, work and play.   
 

We are looking to deliver this Vision by adopting the concept shown below.  This concept 
diagram suggests linking the new community to the major environmental assets and areas 
of recreational open space which lie to the north (the woodland) and south (the Den of 
Maidencraig) of the site, and maintaining ready north – south connectivity by introducing 

three pedestrian and vehicular connections associated with broad wildlife corridors, so that 
the connectivity is visual as well as physical.   
 

 
Concept plan 

Page 231



3 Developing the Masterplan 

3.1 Over Arching Principles 

The masterplan has been developed to encourage less reliance on private car use, and a 

modal shift towards walking, cycling and public transport use.  The area is well served by 

existing footpath and cycle routes, as well as a range of bus services.  The masterplan 

ensures that the development will utilise and enhance these wherever possible to do so, 
and offer the greatest possible opportunity for residents to use an alternative to the car.  It 
is proposed to extend the First Bus 23 service to loop through the site, offering a frequent 
(10 minute) service to Aberdeen City Centre.   

Proposed extension to the First Group 23 service, and the other existing First Bus services. 

Convenient access is proposed to alternative existing bus routes, such as the First Bus 11 

service, and the Stagecoach X17/N17 service that run along Queen’s Road to the south.  
Walking and cycling routes have been carefully designed into the masterplan, and the 

principles of Designing Streets adopted to seek to reduce traffic speeds and prioritise 

pedestrians and cyclists. 

The site will be accessed by three principle junctions.  Upon completion of the plan, the east 
and west junctions will operate as left!in/left!out only arrangements, with the central 
junction fully signalised to allow access in all directions.  Pedestrian crossing points have 

Page 232



been designed into the plan to mitigate the barrier that the A944 creates between the north 

and south parts of the development. 

The Council’s Action Programme does not require a school on the site, and allocates pupils 

from the development to existing schools in the area.  However, to m intain flexibility, the  

masterplan could provide land for a school in the future, should one be required, in place of 
housing ! in either the north or the south.  Similarly land can be made available to provide 

health care facilities on site if required.  Discussions are ongoing with NHS Grampian and the 

Council in this regard. 

The site sits between areas identified in the Local Development Plan as Green Space 

Network.  These are valuable areas for wildlife habitats, ecology and informal recreation.  
The masterplan seeks to ensure these areas are not fragmented, by providing additional 
landscaped corridors between the established areas of Green Space Network. 

Green Space Network remaining after development of the site. 

The masterplan has been carefully designed to utilise the existing topography, with the 

minimum amount of alteration to the levels required.  The steepest parts of the site have 

been avoided, both in the interests of sustainability and visual impact.  Considerable areas 

of landscape planting are proposed around the site to aid its visual integration with the 

surrounding area. 

Page 233



The principles set out in Designing Places and Designing Streets have been adopted as 
central to the design process.  With regard to the urban design and to the street design, the 

masterplan is distinctive, safe and pleasant, easy to move around in, welcoming, adaptable 

and resource efficient. 

The development is also designed to be highly sustainable, with modern house construction 

techniques incorporated into attractive designs with traditional proportions.  Various 
measures to reduce the carbon emissions of the development have been explored, and the 

most suitable solution will be identified through the detailed planning process. 

3.2 The Three Character Areas 

Three distinct character areas have been identified on the Concept Plan.  These are as 
follows: ! 

Area A sits to the North of the Lang Stracht, and is identified as site OP44 in the Local 
Development Plan, suitable for 300 houses. The image below shows woodland to the North, 
and areas of Green Space Network both to the east and west of the area. The layout exploits 
this relationship and by drawing the landscape into the scheme, opening up ready access to 

this resource and providing attractive views, and settings for the residents. 
 

Area A 

Page 234



Area B forms the western section of Local Development Plan site OP43, to the south of the 

A944 Lang Stracht.  The Denburn runs along the southern side of the site in a deep gulley.  
 

The image below shows the Den of Maidencraig running to the south and south west of the 

area.  The layout exploits this relationship in 2 ways. Firstly by drawing the landscape into 

the residential area through a series of landscaped courtyards on the south side. There are 

no gardens backing on to this boundary (so no long line of fences facing the Den), and the 

courtyards will be designed to maximise these attractive views – including gable windows. 
Secondly by opening the whole of the south!western boundary (where there are no houses 
on the Den side of the road) up to the Den. 
 

Area B 

 

Area C forms the eastern part of Local Development Plan site OP43. Sloping from north west 
down to the south east and the Den of Maidencraig Local Nature Reserve. A group of 
existing houses adjoining a stream and a deep gulley mark the western boundary of this 
area.  It was logical to strengthen this wildlife corridor by adding a swathe of Green Space 

Network on its eastern edge to improve screening, landscape setting, and avoid 

undermining the character which the houses currently enjoy. 
 

The steep slopes of the Den of Maidencraig define the southern boundary of the area, and 

the layout responds to this by drawing the greenery into the housing area through 

landscaped courtyards. None of the houses in this area back on to the Den (to avoid long 

lines of garden fencing) and the courtyards are designed to maximise views – including the 

inclusion of gable windows where appropriate.  

Page 235



Area C 

 

Overall, the masterplan has been developed to provide a sustainable community that 
responds appropriately to the landscape and the surrounding residential communities, 
whilst providing the opportunity for new services and facilities which will benefit the 

existing population as well as the new residents. 
 

 
The masterplan 

Page 236



4 Delivering the Masterplan 

The main report considers in detail the phasing and delivery of the Maidencraig masterplan, 
including the required facilities and infrastructure set out in the Council’s Action 

Programme.  It also identifies specific strategies for the disposal of foul and surface water 

drainage, provision of servicing to the site and the incorporation of affordable housing into 

the development.  The phasing plan is shown below, identifying the pattern of 
development, from east to west. 

Phasing diagram (above) and associated numbers (below) 

Phase Number of Units Number of Affordable Units 

Phase 1a 88 22

Phase 1b 78 78

Phase 2a c. 131 c. 35

Phase 2b c. 138 

Phase 3a c. 88 c. 23

Phase 3b c. 114 c. 19

Phase 4 c. 104 c. 11

Phase 5 c. 78 c. 16

Totals c. 816 

(330 North and 486 South) 
c. 204

Page 237



5 Conclusion 

In conclusion therefore, the masterplan report details the proposals for a highly sustainable, 
attractive, and distinctive development on the western edge of Aberdeen.  The proposals 
are deliverable, and are flexible enough to ensure that requirements for education and/or 
healthcare facilities can be accommodated in due course if required.  The masterplan is 
respectful of the sensitive areas that bound the site to the north and south, and to the 

established residential communities to the east.  Below are some artists impressions of the 

development. 

Left – an image from 

the eastern edge of 
phase 1b, with the 

landscape buffer on the 

right between the 

housing and the 

existing Sheddocksley 

area. 

 

 

 

Right – residential 
courtyards are designed 

to open out into the 

principle open space 

areas such as the Den of 
Maidencraig to the 

south of the site. 
 

 

 

Left – the principle bus route 

through the site will be 

appropriately traffic calmed, 
and will provide safe and 

convenient facilities for 
pedestrians and cyclists.  
Landscape planting will 
create an attractive and safe 

character. 

Page 238



 

 

 
 

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
COMMITTEE   Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure  
   
 
DATE     6 November 2012   
 
DIRECTOR    Gordon McIntosh   
 
TITLE OF REPORT  Adoption of Masterplans, Planning Briefs and 

Development Frameworks as Supplementary 
Guidance in support of the Aberdeen Local 
Development Plan   

 
REPORT NUMBER:  EPI/12/203 
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to outline the results of this six week 

consultation period, and where appropriate the results of the 
consultation that was carried out alongside the Proposed Local 
Development Plan, by presenting a summary of the representations 
received on each document, officers’ responses to these 
representations and to detail any resulting action from this.  A summary 
of this information is attached at Appendix 1 of this report.  Appendix 1 
contains summarised versions of representations received.  Full, un-
summarised copies of representations are available on request from 
the Local Development Plan Team. 

 
 
2. RECOMMENDATION(S)  
  
2.1 It is recommended that the Committee: 
  

a) Note the representations received on the draft Supplementary 
Guidance documents; 

b)  Approve officers’ responses to representations received on the 
draft Supplementary Guidance documents; and 

c) Agree, where appropriate for officers to send the requested 
Supplementary Guidance documents to be ratified by the 
Scottish Government and 

d) Agree, where appropriate that the requested Supplementary 
Guidance documents remain as Local Planning Advice and do 
not get sent to the Scottish Government for ratification 

 
 

Agenda Item 9.4

Page 239



 

 

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
3.1 There are no direct financial implications arising from this report.  Any 

future publication costs can be met through existing budgets. 
 

4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 This is the continuation of a significant piece of work that has involved 

and will impact upon many other council services, public bodies, the 
business and development industries and the citizens of Aberdeen.  An 
Action Programme has been prepared to consider the implementation 
of the Aberdeen Local Development Plan and Supplementary 
Guidance.   

 
4.2 The progression of these Supplementary Guidance documents will 

provide a clear framework for decision making, allowing comprehensive 
guidance for both applicants and officers, thereby making a significant 
contribution towards the Council’s aim of promoting and achieving 
sustainable development. Detailed area-based Supplementary 
Guidance also has value in reducing officer time spent on pre-
application discussions. 

 
5. BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 
 
5.1 The Planning etc. (Scotland) Act 2006 paragraph 22 (1) states that a 

planning authority may adopt and issue guidance in connection with a 
local development plan.  During the preparation of the Aberdeen Local 
Development Plan (ALDP 2012) Aberdeen City Council prepared a 
number of draft Supplementary Guidance (SG) documents in support 
of the ALDP.  Following examination, the Aberdeen Local Development 
Plan was adopted on 29 February 2012 with a number of 
Supplementary Guidance documents adopted in the months following.  
It is intended that further tranches of approved Supplementary 
Guidance will be forwarded to Scottish Ministers in due course for 
adoption, whilst other Supplementary Guidance documents will be 
reported to Committee as they come forward. 

 
5.2 This committee report relates to 12 draft SG documents 

(Masterplans/Planning Briefs/Development Frameworks) which have 
recently been subject to a public consultation.  The draft documents 
were subject to a six week public consultation period which ran from 
16th July to 27th August 2012, some of these documents have also 
been consulted on as part of the Proposed Local Development Plan.   

 
5.3 These 12 draft SG consist of either new Masterplans/Development 

Frameworks/Planning Briefs which have been prepared as a 
requirement of the ALDP or are existing Masterplans/Development 
Frameworks/Masterplans which were carried over from the previous 
Aberdeen Local Plan (2008) to the ALDP.  These 12 draft SG 
documents are: 

Page 240



 

 

- Bon Accord Baths Planning Brief; 
- Cove Charette Report and Masterplan; 
- Dyce Drive Planning Brief; 
- Foresterhill Development Framework; 
- Fire Station Site, North Anderson Drive Planning Brief; 
- Greenferns Development Framework and Masterplan; 
- Kingswells Development Framework; 
- Murcar Development Framework; 
- Pinewood Hazledene Planning Brief; 
- Aberdeen Harbour Development Framework; 
- Kingswells Development Framework and Phase One Masterplan 

(OP40) and 
- Kingswells Prime Four Business Park (Phase Two and Three) 

 
5.4 Due to the size of all of the draft documents, hard copies have not been 

attached to this report but are available at request from the Local 
Development Plan team.  Full copies of the draft documents can also 
be accessed from  
http://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/planning_environment/planning/local_d
evelopment_plan/pla_aldp_committee_reports.asp 

 
5.5 For the SG an assessment of the environmental impact was made 

alongside the ALDP. Since the adoption of the Plan there has been 
additional consultation undertaken, additional detail added and 
amendments made. Therefore, these documents will have to go 
through the Strategic Environmental Assessment Process. Given the 
assessment made at the Plan level and the mitigation incorporated into 
the Plan there would be no likely significant effect as a result of the SG. 
To ensure that this is properly documented a Screening report has 
been prepared and submitted to the SEA Gateway and the 
Consultation Authorities. In the case that any unforeseen issues are 
raised any affected SG will be reported back to committee. 

 
5.6 The existing Masterplans/Planning Briefs/Development Frameworks 

were previously agreed by Council under the 2008 Aberdeen Local 
Plan or in some cases even earlier than this.  The policies in these 
Plans and Briefs required to be updated in order to bring them up to 
date with current national, regional and local policy documents. 

 
5.7 At the Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure Committee on 31st 

January 2012 it was agreed that officers should update existing 
Masterplans and Planning Briefs and complete adoption procedures 
without reporting to Committee for approval.  However, should the 
content of the Plans or Briefs require an alteration to their content, 
officers were instructed to report these back to Committee for approval.  
Please see Appendix 2 for a copy of this Committee Minute (para 26). 

 
5.8 During the consultation period, representations were received on some 

of these existing documents which related to their content and so these 

Page 241



 

 

existing Masterplans/Planning Briefs/Development Framework have 
been brought back to this Committee for approval. 

 
5.9 Following analysis of the representations received during the 

consultation, 9 of these draft documents are now proposed for adoption 
as supplementary guidance to the ALDP.  Each document is named 
and detailed below with a summary of any amendments that have been 
made to the document either as a result of representations received 
during the public consultation period or by officers to provide greater 
clarity.   

 
Adopt as Supplementary Guidance to the ALDP 
5.10 Cove Charette Report and Masterplan 
 

Stewart Milne Homes and Scotia Homes jointly commissioned the 
Princes Foundation for the Built Environment and Urban Design 
Associates to conduct a participatory planning process involving Cove 
Community Council and Aberdeen City Council which aimed to develop 
the most appropriate neighbourhood form for land that was zoned in 
the ALDP for residential development.  This document reports this 
process and presents a Masterplan which covers OP72: Cove and 
OP75: Stationfields, Cove.  A total of three representations were 
received, one from Scottish Environmental Protection Agency (SEPA) 
and two from members of the general public.  The issues raised 
through these representations were not felt to require any amendments 
to be made to the document. 

 
5.11 Foresterhill Development Framework 

This Development Framework covers an area currently zoned as 
‘Existing Community Facilities’ in the Local Development Plan.  It 
proposes a long-term strategy for the future development of the 
Foresterhill Campus.  One representation was received from SEPA.  
The issues raised through this representation were not felt to require 
any amendments to be made to the document. 

 
5.12 Fire Station Site, North Anderson Drive Planning Brief 

This Planning Brief provides guidance for the future development of the 
Fire Station Site on North Anderson Drive.  This Brief covers an area 
currently zoned as ‘Residential’ in the Local Development Plan.  One 
representation was received from Mastrick, Sheddocksley and 
Summerhill Community Council.  The issues raised through this 
representation were not felt to require any amendments to be made to 
the document. 

 
5.13 Greenferns Development Framework and Masterplan 

The Greenferns Development Framework covers both OP39: 
Greenferns and OP45: Greenferns and sets out a 2-dimensional spatial 
framework for the way in which these sites should be developed.  The 
Greenferns Masterplan covers only site OP39: Greenferns.  One 
representation was received from SEPA.  The issues raised through 

Page 242



 

 

this representation were not felt to require any amendments to be 
made to the document. 

 
5.14 Kingswells Development Framework 

This Development Framework covers OP41: Kingswells C and OP42 
Kingswells D and West Huxterstone.  It sets out a guide for the 
preparation of a masterplan for a new, attractive, high quality, and 
sustainable residential development.  A total of three representations 
were received, two from SEPA and one from Kingswells Community 
Council.  The first representation from SEPA resulted in the addition of 
a paragraph to the document regarding existing water features within 
and around the site and the pressures which apply to these features. 
The second representation from SEPA did not require any changes to 
be made.  Some of the issues raised through the Kingswells 
Community Council representation resulted in some minor text 
changes being required to be made to the document. 

 
5.15 Pinewood Hazledene Planning Brief 

This Planning Brief covers OP52: Hazledene and OP57: Pinewood.  
The major component of the Brief is the creation of a residential 
development but the proposals also incorporate community facilities, 
neighbourhood shopping, community open space and a network of 
pedestrian and cycle paths.  One representation was received from 
GVA Grimley on behalf of Dobbies Garden Centre.  The issues raised 
through this representation were not felt to require any amendments to 
be made to the document. 

 
5.16 Aberdeen Harbour Development Framework 

This Development Framework was prepared by Aberdeen Harbour 
Board following engagement with Aberdeen City Council. The 
Framework explores how the Harbour and the City can develop in 
partnership over the next 20 years.  One representation was received 
from SEPA.  The issues raised through this representation were not felt 
to require any amendments to be made to the document. 
 

5.17  The Aberdeen Harbour Development Framework has been subject to a 
Habitats Regulation Assessment (HRA).  According to Article 6(3) and 
6(4) of the Habitats Directive (92/43/EEC) any formally adopted 
Supplementary Guidance which would be likely to have a significant 
effect on an identified European Site shall be subject to an ‘appropriate 
assessment’ of its implications, also known as a Habitats Regulations 
Appraisal.  The aim of the assessment was to assess the likely impacts 
of the Aberdeen Harbour Development Framework against the 
conservation objectives of the River Dee Special Area of Conservation 
(SAC) and the Moray Firth SAC.  The screening process identified that 
some of the Framework proposals or objectives would be likely to have 
significant effects on the qualifying interests of the River Dee SAC and 
Moray Firth SAC, either in isolation or cumulatively. However, the 
Appraisal also suggested a number of mitigation measures.  The 
inclusion of these mitigation measures (page 65 of the document) and 

Page 243



 

 

the potential need for further specific project-based assessment would 
ensure that the Framework would have no adverse affect on the 
integrity of the River Dee SAC and the Moray Firth SAC.  
 

5.18 Kingswells Development Framework and Phase One Masterplan 
(OP40) 
This Development Framework and Phase One Masterplan was 
prepared by Drum Property Group to guide development of a new 
employment destination to the West of Kingswells.   This document 
covers OP40: West Hatton and Home Farm, Kingswells.  One 
representation was received from SEPA.  The issues raised through 
this representation were not felt to require any amendments to be 
made to the document. 

 
5.19 Kingswells Prime Four Business Park (Phase Two and Three) 

This Masterplan was also prepared by Drum Property Group and 
represents further detailed information on Phases Two and Three of 
OP40: West Hatton and Home Farm, Kingswells.  One representation 
was received from Kingswells Community Council.  Some of the issues 
raised through this representation resulted in some minor text changes 
being required to be made to the document. 
 

 
5.20 Following analysis of the representations received during the 

consultation period and the status of each document in terms of its 
connection to the ALDP, 3 of these documents are proposed to be kept 
as Local Planning Advice.  Each of these documents is named and 
detailed below along with the reason for not adopting it as SG to the 
ALDP. 

 
Keep as Local Planning Advice and do not take forward as 
Supplementary Guidance to the ALDP 
 
5.21 Bon Accord Baths Planning Brief 

This Planning Brief was approved by Council in October 2009 and 
covers the Bon Accord Bath site, which was declared surplus to 
Council requirements in 2008.   This Brief sets out the planning 
framework that will guide the development process.  No 
representations were received on this document during the consultation 
process.  This document cannot be adopted as SG to the ALDP as 
there is no definitive link between this document and the ALDP.  Under 
the Town and Country Planning (Development Planning) (Scotland) 
Regulations 2008 SG may only deal with the provision of further 
information or detail in respect of the policies or proposals set out in 
that Plan and only deal with those matters which are expressly 
identified in a statement contained in the plan.  It is therefore 
recommended that this document is not sent to the Scottish 
Government for ratification as SG to the ALDP, but instead remains as 
a Local Planning Advice document.  Local Planning Advice can still be 
used as a material planning consideration during the determination of 

Page 244



 

 

planning applications; however, it does not carry as much weight as the 
ALDP or its associated SG. 

 
5.22 Dyce Drive Planning Brief 

This Planning Brief was approved by Council in March 2004 and covers 
an area of land to the south west of Aberdeen Airport.  A total of four 
representations were received during the consultation period, three 
from a member of the public and one from Miller Developments.  This 
Brief was written prior to the adoption of both the Aberdeen Local Plan 
2008 and the Aberdeen Local Development Plan 2012.  It covers part 
of the site now zoned as OP32: Dyce Drive in the ALDP, but does not 
show the full extent of surrounding development and allocations and 
does not represent the up to date boundary of OP33:A96 Park and 
Rides site.  This Brief requires to be updated to bring it in line with the 
current land zonings and allocations.  It is therefore recommended that 
this document is not sent to the Scottish Government for ratification as 
SG to the ALDP, but instead remains as a Local Planning Advice 
document until such time as it is revisited and updated.  The need to 
update this document would not affect any current Planning 
Applications. Local Planning Advice can still be used as a material 
planning consideration during the determination of planning 
applications; however, it does not carry as much weight as the ALDP or 
its associated SG. 

 
5.23 Murcar Development Framework 

This Planning Brief was approved by Council in June 2008 and covers 
an area of land to the north east of Bridge of Don.  Two representations 
were received during the consultation period, one from Montagu Evans 
on behalf of Buccleauch Property and one from Paull and Williamsons 
on behalf of Stewart Milne Homes.  This Brief was written prior to the 
adoption of the Aberdeen Local Development Plan 2012. It covers 
OP4: Findlay Farm, Murcar, OP3: Berryhill, Murcar and part of OP2: 
Murcar, but does not show the full extent of surrounding development 
and allocations.  This Brief requires to be updated to bring it in line with 
the current land zonings and allocations.  It is therefore recommended 
that this document is not sent to the Scottish Government for 
ratification as SG to the ALDP, but instead remains as a Local Planning 
Advice document until such time as it is revisited and updated.  Local 
Planning Advice can still be used as a material planning consideration 
during the determination of planning applications; however, it does not 
carry as much weight as the ALDP or its associated SG. 

 
6. IMPACT 
 
6.1 The Local Development Plan and associated Supplementary Guidance 

contribute to the following Single Outcome Priorities: 
1 – We live in a Scotland that is the most attractive place for doing 
business in Europe; 2. We realise our full economic potential with more 
and better employment opportunities for our people; 10. We live in well 
designed, sustainable places where we are able to access the 

Page 245



 

 

amenities and services we need; 12 – We value and enjoy our built and 
natural environment and protect and enhance it for future generations. 

 
6.2 The Local Development Plan and associated Supplementary Guidance 

supports the Council’s Corporate Plan, in particular the aim of 
delivering high levels of design from all development, maintaining an up 
to date planning framework, promoting sustainable development and 
ensuring an appropriate open space provision.   

 
6.3 The Local Development Plan and associated Supplementary Guidance 

contribute to “Aberdeen – A Smarter City” in terms of providing a clean, 
safe and attractive streetscape and by promoting biodiversity and 
nature conservation, encouraging wider access to green space in our 
streets, parks and countryside, improving access to affordable housing 
in the private sectors by working with developers to maximize the 
effective use of developer contributions. 

 
6.4 The proposal is consistent with the Planning and Sustainable 

Development Service Plan, in particular engaging the community in the 
planning process, and the delivery of Masterplans/Development 
Frameworks in line with the Aberdeen Masterplanning Process. 

6.5 Given the wide range of policy areas the Aberdeen Local Development 
Plan and associated Supplementary Guidance covers, an Equality and 
Human Rights Impact Assessment was carried out on the Proposed 
Plan, it showed that there will be some positive impacts of the Plan on 
a range of equalities groups.  The Equality and Human Rights Impact 
Assessment is available to view on the City Council’s website at 
http://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/Planning/ldp/pla_aldp_tech_appendix.a
sp or a hard copy can be obtained from the Local Development Plan 
Team. 

 
7. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
• Appendix 1 - Summary of representations received, officers’ responses 

and any resulting amendments 
• Appendix 2 – Minute from the Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure 

Committee (31st January 2012) 
 
Aberdeen Local Development Plan  
http://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/nmsruntime/saveasdialog.asp?lID=42278&sI
D=9484 
 
Aberdeen Local Development Plan –Action Programme  
http://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/planning_environment/planning/local_develop
ment_plan/pla_aldp_action_programme.asp 
 
Aberdeen City and Shire Strategic Development Planning Authority: Aberdeen 
City and Shire Structure Plan 
http://www.aberdeencityandshire-
sdpa.gov.uk/nmsruntime/saveasdialog.asp?lID=423&sID=149 

Page 246



 

 

 
Planning etc. (Scotland) Act 2006 
http://www.opsi.gov.uk/legislation/scotland/acts2006/asp_20060017_en_1 
 
Scottish Planning Series: Planning Circular 1/2009: Development Planning 
http://www.scotland.gov.uk/Resource/Doc/261030/0077887.pdf 
 
The Town and Country Planning (Development Planning) (Scotland) 
Regulations 2008 
http://www.opsi.gov.uk/legislation/scotland/ssi2008/ssi_20080426_en_1 
 
 
8. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS  

Kathryn Hossack 
Planner 
khossack@aberdeencity.gov.uk 
01224 523733 

Page 247



Page 248

This page is intentionally left blank



Ap
pe
nd
ix 
1 –
 Su

mm
ary
 of
 R
ep
res
en
tat
ion
s 

Su
pp

lem
en
tar

y 
Gu

ida
nc
e 

Re
sp
on

de
nt 

Su
mm

ary
 of

 
Re

pr
es
en
tat
ion

 
Of
fic
ers

 R
es
po

ns
e 

Am
en
dm

en
ts 

ma
de
 as

 a 
res

ult
 of

 
Re

pr
es
en
tat
i

on
 

Ac
tio

n 

Ex
ist
ing

 M
as
ter

pla
ns
/Pl

an
nin

g B
rie

fs/
De

ve
lop

me
nt 

Fr
am

ew
or
ks
 

Bo
n A

cc
ord

 Ba
ths
 

Pla
nn
ing
 Br
ief
 

No
 

rep
res
en
tat
ion
s  

rec
eiv
ed
 

N/
A 

Th
is 
Pla

nn
ing
 Br
ief
 

wa
s a
pp
rov
ed
 by
 

Co
un
cil 
in 
Oc
tob
er 

20
09
 an
d c
ov
ers
 th
e 

Bo
n A

cc
ord

 Ba
th 
sit
e, 

wh
ich
 w
as
 de
cla
red

 
su
rpl
us
 to
 C
ou
nc
il 

req
uir
em
en
ts 
in 
20
08
.   

Th
is 
do
cu
me
nt 
ca
nn
ot 

be
 ad
op
ted
 as
 SG

 to
 

the
 AL

DP
 as
 th
ere

 is
 

no
 de
fin
itiv
e l
ink
 

be
tw
ee
n t
his
 do
cu
me
nt 

an
d t
he
 AL

DP
.  U

nd
er 

the
 To

wn
 an
d C

ou
ntr
y 

Pla
nn
ing
 

(D
ev
elo
pm
en
t 

Pla
nn
ing
) (S

co
tla
nd
) 

Re
gu
lat
ion
s 2
00
8 S

G 
ma
y o
nly
 de
al 
wit
h t
he
 

pro
vis
ion
 of
 fu
rth
er 

inf
orm

ati
on
 or
 de
tai
l in
 

res
pe
ct 
of 
the
 po
lici
es
 

or 
pro

po
sa
ls 
se
t o
ut 
in 

N/
A 

Ke
ep
 as
 

Lo
ca
l 

Pla
nn
ing
 

Ad
vic
e  

Page 249



Ap
pe
nd
ix 
1 –
 Su

mm
ary
 of
 R
ep
res
en
tat
ion
s 

tha
t P
lan
 an
d o
nly
 de
al 

wit
h t
ho
se
 m
att
ers
 

wh
ich
 ar
e e
xp
res
sly
 

ide
nti
fie
d i
n a
 

sta
tem

en
t c
on
tai
ne
d i
n 

the
 pl
an
.  I
t is
 th
ere

for
e 

rec
om
me
nd
ed
 th
at 
thi
s 

do
cu
me
nt 
is 
no
t s
en
t to
 

the
 Sc

ott
ish
 

Go
ve
rnm

en
t fo
r 

rat
ific
ati
on
 as
 SG

 to
 

the
 AL

DP
, b
ut 
ins
tea
d 

rem
ain
s a
s a
 Lo
ca
l 

Pla
nn
ing
 Ad

vic
e 

do
cu
me
nt.
 

Co
ve
 C
ha
rre
tte
 

Re
po
rt a

nd
 

Ma
ste
rpl
an
 

W
im
 

Go
nw
ele
eu
w 

Ob
jec
t to
 an
y d
ev
elo
pm
en
t 

of 
ho
us
ing
 in
 th
e L
oir
sto
n 

Gr
ee
n a
rea

 ne
xt 
to 

Ea
rns
hu
gh
 ro
ad
. If
 an
yth
ing
 

sit
e s
ho
uld
 be
 us
ed
 fo
r 

rec
rea

tio
n. 

Th
e C

ha
rre
tte
 co
ve
rs 

tw
o d
ist
inc
tiv
e a
rea

s i
n 

Co
ve
, o
ne
 cl
os
e t
o 

Lo
irs
ton
 Lo
ch
 an
d t
he
 

oth
er 
clo
se
 to
 th
e 

rai
lwa

y l
ine
. T
he
re 
is 
a 

co
nc
ep
tua
l d
raw

ing
 on
 

pa
ge
 7 
of 
the
 

do
cu
me
nt 
hig
hli
gh
tin
g 

ho
w 
a p
rop

os
ed
 lin
k 

ma
y b
e a
ch
iev
ed
 

be
tw
ee
n t
he
se
 ar
ea
s 

an
d t
he
 ex
ist
ing
 

de
ve
lop
ed
 ar
ea
 w
hic
h 

us
es
 Lo
irs
ton
 G
ree

n. 
Lo
irs
ton
 G
ree

n i
s n
ot 

No
 

am
en
dm
en
ts 

req
uir
ed
. 

Se
nd
 to
 

Sc
ott
ish
 

Go
vt 
for
 

rat
ific
ati
on
 

Page 250



Ap
pe
nd
ix 
1 –
 Su

mm
ary
 of
 R
ep
res
en
tat
ion
s 

an
 ar
ea
 fo
r 

de
ve
lop
me
nt 
wit
hin
 th
e 

Ch
are

tte
 do
cu
me
nt 

an
d i
s z
on
ed
 as
 ur
ba
n 

gre
en
 sp
ac
e a
nd
 gr
ee
n 

sp
ac
e n
etw

ork
 w
ith
in 

the
 Ab

erd
ee
n L
oc
al 

De
ve
lop
me
nt 
Pla

n. 
Co
ve
 C
ha
rre
tte
 

Re
po
rt a

nd
 

Ma
ste
rpl
an
 

SE
PA
 

Th
is 
are

a i
s i
n p
rox
im
ity
 to
 

Lo
ris
ton
 Lo
ch
 an
d t
he
 Ea

st 
Tu
llo
s B

urn
 (a
lth
ou
gh
 bo
th 

are
 ou
tw
ith
 th
e b
ou
nd
ary
 of
 

the
 C
ha
rre
tte
). T

he
 Ea

st 
Tu
llo
s B

urn
 is
 in
 a 
ve
ry 
po
or 

co
nd
itio
n d
ue
 to
 pr
es
su
res
 

fro
m 
he
av
y m

od
ific
ati
on
s, 

dif
fus
e a
nd
 po
int
 so
urc
e 

po
llu
tio
n. 
Th
e C

ha
rre
tte
 

pro
vid
es
 lit
tle
 co
nte
xt 
in 

ter
ms
 of
 th
e w

ate
r 

en
vir
on
me
nt 
wit
hin
 th
e 

bo
un
da
ry 
of 
the
 si
tes
 an
d i
n 

the
 su
rro
un
din
g a
rea

. It
 is
 

req
ue
ste
d t
ha
t th
e C

ha
rre
tte
 

do
cu
me
nt 
be
 am

en
de
d t
o 

tak
e a
cc
ou
nt 
of 
the
 ex
ist
ing
 

wa
ter
 fe
atu
res
 w
ith
in 
an
d 

aro
un
d t
he
 si
te 
an
d t
he
 

pre
ss
ure

s w
hic
h a
pp
ly 
to 

the
se
 fe
atu
res
, a
nd
 to
 di
rec
t 

de
ve
lop
ers
 to
 lo
ok
 fo
r 

Th
e c
om
me
nts
 ra
ise
d 

wo
uld
 be
 m
ore

 su
ita
bly
 

ad
dre

ss
ed
 th
rou

gh
 th
e 

pla
nn
ing
 ap
pli
ca
tio
n 

pro
ce
ss
. T
he
 C
ov
e 

Ch
arr
ett
e d
isc
us
se
d 

tw
o a
rea

s w
ith
in 
Co
ve
. 

Pa
rt A

 si
ts 
clo
se
 to
 

Lo
ist
on
 Lo
ch
 an
d P

art
 

B c
los
e t
o t
he
 ra
ilw
ay
 

lin
e. 
At 
pre

se
nt 
pa
rt A

 
is 
su
bje
ct 
to 
thr
ee
 

pla
nn
ing
 ap
pli
ca
tio
ns
 

wh
ich
 co
ve
r th

e s
ite
. 

SE
PA
 ha
ve
 be
en
 

co
ns
ult
ed
 on
 th
es
e 

pla
nn
ing
 ap
pli
ca
tio
ns
 

an
d h
av
e o
utl
ine
d i
n 

the
ir r
es
po
ns
e a
 

nu
mb
er 
of 
co
nd
itio
ns
 

tha
t w
ou
ld 
be
 re
qu
ire
d 

to 
sa
tis
fy 
iss
ue
s 

co
nc
ern

ing
 w
ate
r 

No
 

am
en
dm
en
ts 

req
uir
ed
. 

Se
nd
 to
 

Sc
ott
ish
 

Go
vt 
for
 

rat
ific
ati
on
 

Page 251



Ap
pe
nd
ix 
1 –
 Su

mm
ary
 of
 R
ep
res
en
tat
ion
s 

op
po
rtu
nit
ies
 to
 pr
ote
ct 
an
d 

im
pro

ve
 th
e w

ate
rbo

die
s. 

Pa
rt o

f th
e a
rea

 co
ve
red

 by
 

the
 C
ov
e C

ha
rre
tte
 lie
s i
n 

clo
se
 pr
ox
im
ity
 to
 a 
lice

ns
ed
 

lan
dfi
ll s
ite
 w
hic
h i
s k
no
wn
 

to 
be
 ac
tiv
ely
 pr
od
uc
ing
 

ga
s, 
alt
ho
ug
h t
he
 do
cu
me
nt 

hig
hli
gh
ts 
tha
t a
 w
as
te 

ma
na
ge
me
nt 
lice

nc
e i
s s
till 

in 
pla
ce
, w
e r
eq
ue
st 
tha
t th
e 

im
pli
ca
tio
ns
 of
 th
is 
be
 

cla
rifi
ed
. W

e r
ec
om
me
nd
 

tha
t th
e C

ha
rre
tte
 do
cu
me
nt 

be
 am

en
de
d t
o c
lar
ify
 th
at 
a 

W
as
te 
Ma
na
ge
me
nt 

Lic
en
ce
 is
 st
ill i
n p
lac
e o
ve
r 

pa
rt o

f th
e s
ite
 an
d a
ny
 

de
ve
lop
me
nt 
mu
st 
be
 

pre
ce
de
d b
y s
uit
ab
le 

rem
ed
iat
ion
 an
d g
as
 ris
k 

as
se
ss
me
nts
. 

bo
die
s a
nd
 th
e 

pro
xim

ity
 to
 th
e l
an
dfi
ll 

sit
e. 

Co
ve
 C
ha
ret
te 

Re
po
rt a

nd
 

Ma
ste
rpl
an
 

Gr
ah
am
 Jo
hn
 

Ma
ck
ie 

I a
m 
sa
d t
o s
ee
 th
e p
lan
s 

for
 th
e v
as
t n
um
be
r o
f 

ho
us
es
 w
hic
h a
re 
to 
be
 bu
ilt 

dir
ec
tly
 ac
ros
s f
rom

 m
y 

ho
us
e. 
 Th

is 
wil
l o
bli
ter
ate
 

the
 be
au
tifu
l v
iew

s f
rom

 m
y 

win
do
ws
, b
loc
k d
ay
lig
ht,
 

inc
rea

se
 no
ise
 tra

ffic
 an
d 

Th
e C

ha
ret
te 
Pr
oc
es
s 

an
d t
he
 et
ho
s o
f th
e 

mo
de
rn 
pla
nn
ing
 

sy
ste
m 
pro

po
se
 to
 

inc
rea

se
 th
e d
es
ign
 

qu
ali
ty 
of 
ne
w 

de
ve
lop
me
nts
. P
ag
e 

32
 of
 th
e C

ha
ret
te 

No
 

am
en
dm
en
ts 

req
uir
ed
. 

Se
nd
 to
 

Sc
ott
ish
 

Go
vt 
for
 

rat
ific
ati
on
 

Page 252



Ap
pe
nd
ix 
1 –
 Su

mm
ary
 of
 R
ep
res
en
tat
ion
s 

po
llu
tio
n. 
 I w

ou
ld 
be
 w
illin

g 
to 
su
pp
ort
 th
e m

as
ter
pla
n i
f 

the
 fo
llo
win

g c
on
ce
rns
 w
ere

 
up
he
ld:
 dy
ke
s, 
he
dg
ero

ws
, 

tre
es
 re
tai
ne
d. 
 R
ea
so
na
ble
 

op
en
 sp
ac
e b
etw

ee
n r
oa
ds
 

an
d f
irs
t ro

w 
of 
he
dg
es
.  F

or 
pri
va
cy
 ne
w 
ho
us
es
 bu
ilt 

en
d o
n t
o r
oa
d a
nd
 w
he
n 

de
ve
lop
ers
 ar
e g
ive
n t
he
 go
 

ah
ea
d t
he
re 
wil
l b
e n
o l
as
t 

mi
nu
te 
ch
an
ge
s t
o t
he
 

ma
ste
rpl
an
. 

do
cu
me
nt 
sta
tes
 

‘na
tur
al 
fea
tur
es
 ar
e 

pro
tec
ted
 an
d 

ce
leb
rat
ed
, w
he
re 

po
ss
ibl
e, 
by
 cr
aft
ing
 

un
iqu
e s
pa
ce
s a
rou

nd
 

the
m.
 Th

e 
co
ns
um
pti
on
 dy
ke
 is
 

on
e e
xa
mp
le 
of 
thi
s’.
 

Ot
he
r fe

atu
res
 of
 th
e 

are
a w

hic
h a
dd
 to
 th
e 

ch
ara

cte
r a
re 
like

ly 
to 

be
 re
tai
ne
d a
nd
 

en
ha
nc
ed
. O
pe
n s
pa
ce
 

req
uir
em
en
ts 
are

 al
so
 

sta
ted
 in
 po
licy

 w
ith
in 

the
 lo
ca
l d
ev
elo
pm
en
t 

pla
n. 
Iss
ue
s r
eg
ard

ing
 

los
s o
f d
ay
 lig
ht,
 tra

ffic
 

no
ise
 an
d p
oll
uti
on
 

wo
uld
 be
 ex
am
ine
d i
n 

a p
lan
nin
g a
pp
lica

tio
n 

ho
we
ve
r a
s t
he
 

ob
jec
tiv
e i
s t
o c
rea

te 
su
sta
ina
ble
 

co
mm

un
itie
s i
t is
 

ex
pe
cte
d t
ha
t th
e 

inc
rea

se
 in
 tra

ffic
 

mo
ve
me
nt 
an
d 

the
ref
ore

 po
llu
tio
n 

wo
uld
 no
t in
cre
as
e 

Page 253



Ap
pe
nd
ix 
1 –
 Su

mm
ary
 of
 R
ep
res
en
tat
ion
s 

sig
nif
ica
ntl
y. 
A 

pla
nn
ing
 ap
pli
ca
tio
n 

sti
ll h
as
 to
 be
 

su
bm
itte
d f
or 

de
ve
lop
me
nt 
ev
en
 if 

the
re 
is 
a m

as
ter
pla
n 

for
 th
e s
ite
.  I
t is
 

ex
pe
cte
d t
ha
t th
e 

pla
nn
ing
 ap
pli
ca
tio
n 

wo
uld
 ha
ve
 re
ga
rd 
to 

the
 m
as
ter
pla
n b
ut 
it i
s 

sti
ll p
os
sib
le 
tha
t m
ino
r 

dif
fer
en
ce
 co
uld
 oc
cu
r 

be
tw
ee
n t
he
 

ma
ste
rpl
an
 an
d 

pla
nn
ing
 ap
pli
ca
tio
n. 

Dy
ce
 D
riv
e 

Pla
nn
ing
 Br
ief
 

Gr
ae
me
 St
ew
art
 
Re
ga
rdi
ng
 Se

cti
on
 18
.1:
 

're
ins
tat
em
en
t o
f th
e 

foo
tbr
idg
e a
cro
ss
 D
yc
e 

Dr
ive
.' T
his
 w
ou
ld 
pre

se
nt 

fur
the
r s
ec
uri
ty 
iss
ue
s, 

Es
ca
pe
 ro
ute
s f
or 
bu
rgl
ars
, 

etc
. G
ree

nb
urn

 C
ott
ag
e 

res
ide
nts
 et
 al
, w
ou
ld 

req
uir
e t
o b
e i
nv
olv
ed
 in
 

de
sig
n p
roc
es
s f
rom

 ea
rlie
st 

po
ss
ibl
e s
tag
e. 

Th
is 
Br
ief
 w
as
 w
ritt
en
 

pri
or 
to 
the
 ad
op
tio
n o
f 

bo
th 
the
 Ab

erd
ee
n 

Lo
ca
l P
lan
 20
08
 an
d 

the
 Ab

erd
ee
n L
oc
al 

De
ve
lop
me
nt 
Pla

n 
20
12
.  T

his
 Br
ief
 

co
ve
rs 
pa
rt o

f th
e s
ite
 

no
w 
zo
ne
d a
s O

P3
2: 

Dy
ce
 D
riv
e i
n t
he
 

AL
DP
, b
ut 
do
es
 no
t 

sh
ow
 th
e f
ull
 ex
ten
t o
f 

su
rro
un
din
g 

de
ve
lop
me
nt 
an
d 

all
oc
ati
on
s a
nd
 do
es
 

No
 

am
en
dm
en
ts 

cu
rre
ntl
y 

req
uir
ed
. 

Ke
ep
 as
 

Lo
ca
l 

Pla
nn
ing
 

Ad
vic
e 

Page 254



Ap
pe
nd
ix 
1 –
 Su

mm
ary
 of
 R
ep
res
en
tat
ion
s 

no
t re

pre
se
nt 
the
 up
 to
 

da
te 
bo
un
da
ry 
of 

OP
33
:A9

6 P
ark
 an
d 

Rid
es
 si
te.
  T
his
 Br
ief
 

req
uir
es
 to
 be
 up
da
ted
 

to 
bri
ng
 it 
in 
lin
e w

ith
 

the
 cu
rre
nt 
lan
d 

zo
nin
gs
 an
d 

all
oc
ati
on
s. 
 It 
is 

the
ref
ore

 
rec
om
me
nd
ed
 th
at 
thi
s 

do
cu
me
nt 
is 
no
t s
en
t to
 

the
 Sc

ott
ish
 

Go
ve
rnm

en
t fo
r 

rat
ific
ati
on
 as
 SG

 to
 

the
 AL

DP
, b
ut 
ins
tea
d 

rem
ain
s a
s a
 Lo
ca
l 

Pla
nn
ing
 Ad

vic
e 

do
cu
me
nt 
un
til 
su
ch
 

tim
e a
s i
t is
 re
vis
ite
d 

an
d u
pd
ate
d. 
Th
e n
ee
d 

to 
up
da
te 
thi
s 

do
cu
me
nt 
wo
uld
 no
t 

aff
ec
t a
ny
 cu
rre
nt 

Pla
nn
ing
 Ap

pli
ca
tio
ns
. 

 Th
e P

lan
nin
g B

rie
f 

su
gg
es
ts 
tha
t, g
ive
n 

the
 ex
ist
en
ce
 of
 a 

Rig
ht 
of 
W
ay
 th
rou

gh
 

pa
rt o

f th
e s
ite
, it
 w
ill 

Page 255



Ap
pe
nd
ix 
1 –
 Su

mm
ary
 of
 R
ep
res
en
tat
ion
s 

be
 ap
pro

pri
ate
 to
 

inv
es
tig
ate
 w
ay
s t
o 

im
pro

ve
 an
d e
nh
an
ce
 

thi
s l
ink
. T
his
 m
ay
 

inc
lud
e t
he
 

rei
ns
tat
em
en
t o
f th
e 

foo
tbr
idg
e a
cro
ss
 D
yc
e 

Dr
ive
, b
ut 
fur
the
r s
tud
y 

wil
l b
e n
ec
es
sa
ry 
to 

de
ter
mi
ne
 th
e b
es
t 

me
an
s o
f in
teg
rat
ing
 

the
 ro
ute
 w
ith
 th
e 

pro
po
se
d 

de
ve
lop
me
nt.
 Th

e 
ex
ac
t n
atu
re 
of 
an
y 

en
ha
nc
em
en
ts 
to 
the
 

rou
te 
sh
ou
ld 
tak
e i
nto
 

ac
co
un
t th
e d
es
ira
bil
ity
 

of 
cre
ati
ng
 a 
sa
fe 
an
d 

se
cu
re 
rou

te.
 

Dy
ce
 D
riv
e 

Pla
nn
ing
 Br
ief
 

Gr
ae
me
 St
ew
art
 
Re
ga
rdi
ng
 Se

cti
on
 16
.1:
 

'Th
e i
nte
rna

l d
ist
rib
uto
r 

roa
ds
 (e
xc
lud
ing
 th
e n
ew
 

sp
ine
 ro
ad
, w
hic
h w

ill 
pro

vid
e a
cc
es
s t
o t
he
 

Air
po
rt 

Te
rm
ina
l) s
ho
uld
 

dis
co
ura

ge
 th
rou

gh
 tra

ffic
, 

ex
ce
pti
ng
 pu
bli
c t
ran

sp
ort
.' 

W
ou
ld 
thi
s b
e r
ed
ire
cte
d 

thr
ou
gh
 R
ow
ett
 N
ort
h, 

Th
is 
Br
ief
 w
as
 w
ritt
en
 

pri
or 
to 
the
 ad
op
tio
n o
f 

bo
th 
the
 Ab

erd
ee
n 

Lo
ca
l P
lan
 20
08
 an
d 

the
 Ab

erd
ee
n L
oc
al 

De
ve
lop
me
nt 
Pla

n 
20
12
.  T

his
 Br
ief
 

co
ve
rs 
pa
rt o

f th
e s
ite
 

no
w 
zo
ne
d a
s O

P3
2: 

Dy
ce
 D
riv
e i
n t
he
 

AL
DP
, b
ut 
do
es
 no
t 

No
 

am
en
dm
en
ts 

cu
rre
ntl
y 

req
uir
ed
. 

Ke
ep
 as
 

Lo
ca
l 

Pla
nn
ing
 

Ad
vic
e 

Page 256



Ap
pe
nd
ix 
1 –
 Su

mm
ary
 of
 R
ep
res
en
tat
ion
s 

Gr
ee
nb
urn

 C
ott
ag
e a
nd
 

oth
er 
res
ide
nti
al 
dw
ell
ing
s?
 

Gr
ee
nb
urn

 C
ott
ag
e 

res
ide
nts
 et
 al
, w
ou
ld 

req
uir
e t
o b
e i
nv
olv
ed
 in
 

de
sig
n p
roc
es
s f
rom

 ea
rlie
st 

po
ss
ibl
e s
tag
e. 
 Ag

ree
 w
ith
 

de
ns
ity
 fig
ure

s. 
 

sh
ow
 th
e f
ull
 ex
ten
t o
f 

su
rro
un
din
g 

de
ve
lop
me
nt 
an
d 

all
oc
ati
on
s a
nd
 do
es
 

no
t re

pre
se
nt 
the
 up
 to
 

da
te 
bo
un
da
ry 
of 

OP
33
:A9

6 P
ark
 an
d 

Rid
es
 si
te.
  T
his
 Br
ief
 

req
uir
es
 to
 be
 up
da
ted
 

to 
bri
ng
 it 
in 
lin
e w

ith
 

the
 cu
rre
nt 
lan
d 

zo
nin
gs
 an
d 

all
oc
ati
on
s. 
 It 
is 

the
ref
ore

 
rec
om
me
nd
ed
 th
at 
thi
s 

do
cu
me
nt 
is 
no
t s
en
t to
 

the
 Sc

ott
ish
 

Go
ve
rnm

en
t fo
r 

rat
ific
ati
on
 as
 SG

 to
 

the
 AL

DP
, b
ut 
ins
tea
d 

rem
ain
s a
s a
 Lo
ca
l 

Pla
nn
ing
 Ad

vic
e 

do
cu
me
nt 
un
til 
su
ch
 

tim
e a
s i
t is
 re
vis
ite
d 

an
d u
pd
ate
d. 

 Dis
co
ura

gin
g t
hro

ug
h 

tra
ffic
 on
 in
ter
na
l 

dis
trib
uto
r ro

ad
s i
s 

go
od
 pr
ac
tic
e t
o a
vo
id 

cre
ati
ng
 'ra
t-ru

ns
' a
nd
 

Page 257



Ap
pe
nd
ix 
1 –
 Su

mm
ary
 of
 R
ep
res
en
tat
ion
s 

mi
nim

ise
 tra

ffic
 le
ve
ls 

on
 lo
ca
l ro
ad
s. 
It i
s n
ot 

int
en
de
d t
ha
t a
ny
 

ma
jor
 tra

ffic
 w
ou
ld 
be
 

red
ire
cte
d t
hro

ug
h t
he
 

Ro
we
tt N

ort
h (
OP

28
). 

Dy
ce
 D
riv
e 

Pla
nn
ing
 Br
ief
 

Gr
ae
me
 St
ew
art
 
Ro
ad
 tra

ffic
 co
ng
es
tio
n 

wo
uld
 be
 be
tte
r e
as
ed
 

thr
ou
gh
 a 
ch
oic
e o
f 

alt
ern

ati
ve
 ro
ute
s/e
xit
 

po
int
s, 
rat
he
r th

an
 an
 

up
gra

de
d s
ing
le 
rou

te.
 

Th
is 
Br
ief
 w
as
 w
ritt
en
 

pri
or 
to 
the
 ad
op
tio
n o
f 

bo
th 
the
 Ab

erd
ee
n 

Lo
ca
l P
lan
 20
08
 an
d 

the
 Ab

erd
ee
n L
oc
al 

De
ve
lop
me
nt 
Pla

n 
20
12
.  T

his
 Br
ief
 

co
ve
rs 
pa
rt o

f th
e s
ite
 

no
w 
zo
ne
d a
s O

P3
2: 

Dy
ce
 D
riv
e i
n t
he
 

AL
DP
, b
ut 
do
es
 no
t 

sh
ow
 th
e f
ull
 ex
ten
t o
f 

su
rro
un
din
g 

de
ve
lop
me
nt 
an
d 

all
oc
ati
on
s a
nd
 do
es
 

no
t re

pre
se
nt 
the
 up
 to
 

da
te 
bo
un
da
ry 
of 

OP
33
:A9

6 P
ark
 an
d 

Rid
es
 si
te.
  T
his
 Br
ief
 

req
uir
es
 to
 be
 up
da
ted
 

to 
bri
ng
 it 
in 
lin
e w

ith
 

No
 

am
en
dm
en
ts 

cu
rre
ntl
y 

req
uir
ed
. 

Ke
ep
 as
 

Lo
ca
l 

Pla
nn
ing
 

Ad
vic
e 

Page 258



Ap
pe
nd
ix 
1 –
 Su

mm
ary
 of
 R
ep
res
en
tat
ion
s 

the
 cu
rre
nt 
lan
d 

zo
nin
gs
 an
d 

all
oc
ati
on
s. 
 It 
is 

the
ref
ore

 
rec
om
me
nd
ed
 th
at 
thi
s 

do
cu
me
nt 
is 
no
t s
en
t to
 

the
 Sc

ott
ish
 

Go
ve
rnm

en
t fo
r 

rat
ific
ati
on
 as
 SG

 to
 

the
 AL

DP
, b
ut 
ins
tea
d 

rem
ain
s a
s a
 Lo
ca
l 

Pla
nn
ing
 Ad

vic
e 

do
cu
me
nt 
un
til 
su
ch
 

tim
e a
s i
t is
 re
vis
ite
d 

an
d u
pd
ate
d. 

 It i
s a
ck
no
wle

dg
ed
 th
at 

no
 si
ng
le 
tra
ns
po
rt 

me
as
ure

 w
ill b

e 
su
ffic
ien
t to
 ad
dre

ss
 

co
ng
es
tio
n i
n t
he
 ar
ea
. 

Th
e p
rop

os
ed
 sp
ine
 

roa
d b
etw

ee
n t
he
 A9

6 
an
d t
he
 ai
rpo

rt t
erm

ina
l 

is 
on
e o
f a
 nu
mb
er 
of 

me
as
ure

s, 
inc
lud
ing
 

de
live

ry 
of 
the
 A9

6 
Pa
rk 
an
d R

ide
 fa
cili
ty,
 

the
 Ab

erd
ee
n w

es
ter
n 

Pe
rip
he
ral
 R
ou
te 
an
d 

im
pro

ve
d p
ub
lic 

Page 259



Ap
pe
nd
ix 
1 –
 Su

mm
ary
 of
 R
ep
res
en
tat
ion
s 

tra
ns
po
rt f
ac
iliti
es
, 

wh
ich
 re
pre

se
nt 
an
 

int
eg
rat
ed
 pa
ck
ag
e 

int
en
de
d t
o 

co
lla
bo
rat
ive
ly 
rel
iev
e 

tra
ffic
 co
ng
es
tio
n. 

  

Dy
ce
 D
riv
e 

Pla
nn
ing
 Br
ief
 

Mi
lle
r 

De
ve
lop
me
nts
 

W
elc
om
e t
he
 de
cis
ion
 of
 

Ab
erd

ee
n C

ity
 C
ou
nc
il t
o 

ca
rry
 ov
er 
the
 pr
ov
isio

ns
 of
 

the
 ap
pro

ve
d D

yc
e D

riv
e 

Pla
nn
ing
 Br
ief
 (2
00
4) 
int
o 

the
 ne
w 
LD
P. 
 H
ow
ev
er,
 

the
re 
is 
co
nc
ern

 of
 th
e 

wo
rdi
ng
 of
 Po

licy
 BI
2 i
n t
he
 

ne
w 
pla
n, 
wh
ich
 st
ate
s t
ha
t 

wit
hin
 ar
ea
s d
es
ign
ate
d a
s 

'Sp
ec
ial
ist
 Em

plo
ym
en
t 

Ar
ea
s',
 on
ly 
Cla

ss
 4 

Bu
sin
es
s u
se
s s
ha
ll b
e 

pe
rm
itte
d. 
Th
is 
is 
a 

sig
nif
ica
nt 
de
pa
rtu
re 
fro
m 

the
 ap
pro

ve
d P

lan
nin
g 

Br
ief
, w
hic
h a
llo
ca
tes
 ou
r 

Dy
ce
 D
riv
e s
ite
 fo
r a
 (C
las
s 

4) 
Bu
sin
es
s P

ark
 w
ith
 

as
so
cia
ted
 C
las
s 5
 & 
6 

us
es
.  C

om
pa
nie
s w

an
t to
 

Th
is 
Br
ief
 w
as
 w
ritt
en
 

pri
or 
to 
the
 ad
op
tio
n o
f 

bo
th 
the
 Ab

erd
ee
n 

Lo
ca
l P
lan
 20
08
 an
d 

the
 Ab

erd
ee
n L
oc
al 

De
ve
lop
me
nt 
Pla

n 
20
12
.  T

his
 Br
ief
 

co
ve
rs 
pa
rt o

f th
e s
ite
 

no
w 
zo
ne
d a
s O

P3
2: 

Dy
ce
 D
riv
e i
n t
he
 

AL
DP
, b
ut 
do
es
 no
t 

sh
ow
 th
e f
ull
 ex
ten
t o
f 

su
rro
un
din
g 

de
ve
lop
me
nt 
an
d 

all
oc
ati
on
s a
nd
 do
es
 

no
t re

pre
se
nt 
the
 up
 to
 

da
te 
bo
un
da
ry 
of 

OP
33
:A9

6 P
ark
 an
d 

Rid
es
 si
te.
  T
his
 Br
ief
 

req
uir
es
 to
 be
 up
da
ted
 

to 
bri
ng
 it 
in 
lin
e w

ith
 

No
 

am
en
dm
en
ts 

cu
rre
ntl
y 

req
uir
ed
. 

Ke
ep
 as
 

Lo
ca
l 

Pla
nn
ing
 

Ad
vic
e 

Page 260



Ap
pe
nd
ix 
1 –
 Su

mm
ary
 of
 R
ep
res
en
tat
ion
s 

int
eg
rat
e t
he
ir o
ffic
e 

fun
cti
on
s w

ith
 co
ve
red

 
sto
rag

e a
nd
 ya
rd 
are

as
.  

Th
is 
is 
no
rm
all
y t
he
 ca
se
 

ev
en
 w
ith
 he
ad
qu
art
er 

fun
cti
on
s a
nd
 is
 ev
ide
nc
ed
 

in 
the
 re
qu
ire
me
nts
 of
 

co
mp
an
ies
 w
ho
 ha
ve
 

loo
ke
d a
t th
e D

yc
e D

riv
e 

are
a i
n r
ec
en
t y
ea
rs.
  T
o 

rem
ov
e t
he
 'a
nd
 an
cill
ary
 

Cla
ss
 5 
& 6

 us
es
' p
res
en
ts 

a s
eri
ou
s t
hre

at 
to 
the
 

via
bil
ity
 of
 th
e p
rop

os
ed
 

Bu
sin
es
s P

ark
 an
d w

e 
wo
uld
 st
ron

gly
 re
qu
es
t th
at 

the
 LD

P r
ein
sta
tes
 th
e 

ori
gin
al 
Pla

nn
ing
 Br
ief
 

wo
rdi
ng
. W

e a
re 
ful
ly 

su
pp
ort
ive
 of
 th
e C

ou
nc
il's
 

as
pir
ati
on
s f
or 
thi
s a
rea

 
wh
ich
, w
ith
 th
e n
ew
 D
yc
e 

Dr
ive
 Li
nk
 R
oa
d, 
wil
l fo
rm
 

an
 im
po
rta
nt 
an
d v
isib

le 
ga
tew

ay
 be
tw
ee
n t
he
 

air
po
rt, 
the
 AW

PR
 an
d t
he
 

Cit
y b
ut 
thi
s a
sp
ira
tio
n 

sh
ou
ld 
sti
ll b
e a
ch
iev
ab
le 

thr
ou
gh
 po
lici
es
 w
hic
h s
ee
k, 

for
 ex
am
ple
, to
 lo
ca
te 
the
 

mo
re 
att
rac
tiv
e o
ffic
e 

the
 cu
rre
nt 
lan
d 

zo
nin
gs
 an
d 

all
oc
ati
on
s. 
 It 
is 

the
ref
ore

 
rec
om
me
nd
ed
 th
at 
thi
s 

do
cu
me
nt 
is 
no
t s
en
t to
 

the
 Sc

ott
ish
 

Go
ve
rnm

en
t fo
r 

rat
ific
ati
on
 as
 SG

 to
 

the
 AL

DP
, b
ut 
ins
tea
d 

rem
ain
s a
s a
 Lo
ca
l 

Pla
nn
ing
 Ad

vic
e 

do
cu
me
nt 
un
til 
su
ch
 

tim
e a
s i
t is
 re
vis
ite
d 

an
d u
pd
ate
d. 

 Th
e B

rie
f in
dic
ate
s t
ha
t 

de
ve
lop
me
nt 
wil
l 

ge
ne
ral
ly 
be
 re
str
ict
ed
 

to 
tho
se
 fa
llin
g w

ith
in 

cla
ss
 4 
of 
the
 us
e 

cla
ss
es
 or
de
r, b

ut 
tha
t 

oth
er 
us
es
 (s
uc
h a
s 

cla
ss
es
 5 
an
d 6
, fo
r 

ex
am
ple
) w
ou
ld 
be
 

pe
rm
itte
d w

he
re 
'th
ey
 

are
 ne
ce
ss
ary
 an
d 

ma
int
ain
 th
e r
eq
uir
ed
 

hig
h q
ua
lity
 

en
vir
on
me
nt'
. T
he
 

'sp
ec
ial
ist
 em

plo
ym
en
t' 

Page 261



Ap
pe
nd
ix 
1 –
 Su

mm
ary
 of
 R
ep
res
en
tat
ion
s 

fun
cti
on
s a
lon
g t
he
 Li
nk
 

Ro
ad
 co
rrid

or,
 w
ith
 an
y 

as
so
cia
ted
 fa
cili
tie
s f
ac
ing
 

int
ern

all
y i
nto
 th
e p
ark
. 

de
sig
na
tio
n e
xp
res
se
s 

a s
im
ila
r s
en
tim
en
t, 

alb
eit
 in
 di
ffe
ren

t 
ter
ms
, w
ith
 an
 

em
ph
as
is 
on
 cl
as
s 4
 

us
es
, b
ut 
an
 

ac
kn
ow
led
ge
me
nt 
tha
t 

an
cill
ary
 fa
cili
tie
s m

ay
 

be
 pe
rm
itte
d w

he
re 
it 

ca
n b
e d
em
on
str
ate
d 

tha
t th
ey
 w
ou
ld 

en
ha
nc
e t
he
 at
tra
cti
on
 

an
d s
us
tai
na
bil
ity
 of
 

the
 ar
ea
 fo
r b
us
ine
ss
 

inv
es
tm
en
t. 

Fo
res
ter
hil
l 

De
ve
lop
me
nt 

Fra
me
wo
rk 

SE
PA
 

No
 de
tai
led
 co
mm

en
ts 
to 

ma
ke
 on
 th
e d
oc
um
en
t a
nd
 

no
te 
tha
t m
uc
h o
f th
e w

ork
 

is 
un
de
rw
ay
, b
ut 
wo
uld
 

hig
hli
gh
t th
e i
ss
ue
s s
et 
ou
t 

in 
Ap
pe
nd
ix 
1 (
of 
SE
PA
’s 

rep
res
en
tat
ion
) a
s b
ein
g 

us
efu
l fo
r a
ny
 pr
op
os
als
 

co
mi
ng
 fo
rw
ard

 as
 pa
rt o

f 
sta
ge
 2 
of 
the
 pr
oje
ct.
  

Co
mm

en
ts 
no
ted
. 

No
 

am
en
dm
en
ts 

req
uir
ed
. 

Se
nd
 to
 

Sc
ott
ish
 

Go
vt 
for
 

rat
ific
ati
on
 

Fir
e S

tat
ion
 Si
te,
 

No
rth
 An

de
rso
n 

Dr
ive
 Pl
an
nin
g B

rie
f  
Ma
str
ick
, 

Sh
ed
do
ck
sle
y 

an
d S

um
me
rhi
ll 

Co
mm

un
ity
 

Co
un
cil 

W
e r
ec
og
nis
e t
he
 re
ce
nt 

co
ns
tru
cti
on
 of
 a 
ne
w 
Fir
e 

Sta
tio
n o
n t
his
 si
te 
bu
t h
av
e 

co
nc
ern

s r
eg
ard

ing
 th
e 

fut
ure

 of
 th
e r
es
t o
f th
is 
sit
e, 

sh
ou
ld 
Gr
am
pia
n F

ire
 & 

Sh
ou
ld 
the
 Fi
re 

Se
rvi
ce
 de
cid
e t
o d
o 

so
me
thi
ng
 di
ffe
ren

t 
wit
h t
he
 si
te 
the
n w

e 
wo
uld
 ag
ree

 th
at 
the
 

Br
ief
 m
ay
 ne
ed
 to
 be
 

No
 

am
en
dm
en
ts 

req
uir
ed
. 

Se
nd
 to
 

Sc
ott
ish
 

Go
vt 
for
 

rat
ific
ati
on
 

Page 262



Ap
pe
nd
ix 
1 –
 Su

mm
ary
 of
 R
ep
res
en
tat
ion
s 

Re
sc
ue
 Se

rvi
ce
 de
cid
e t
o 

rel
oc
ate
 its
 he
ad
qu
art
ers
 at
 

an
y f
utu
re 
da
te.
 

W
e w

ou
ld 
we
lco
me
 a 

rev
iew

 of
 th
is 
Pla

nn
ing
 

Br
ief
. T
he
 ex
ist
en
ce
 of
 a 

ne
w 
Fir
e S

tat
ion
 on
 si
te 
wa
s 

no
t e
nv
isa
ge
d w

he
n t
he
 

ori
gin
al 
bri
ef 
wa
s d
raw

n u
p 

an
d t
he
 su
ita
bil
ity
 of
 

ho
us
ing
 co
-lo
ca
ted
 on
 th
is 

sit
e w

ou
ld 
ne
ed
 to
 be
 

ca
ref
ull
y c
on
sid
ere

d i
n l
igh
t 

of 
thi
s. 
In 
ad
dit
ion
, th
e 

pro
po
se
d s
ite
 la
yo
ut 
wo
uld
 

req
uir
e t
o b
e u
pd
ate
d w

ith
 

reg
ard

 to
 pr
ox
im
ity
 of
 

bu
ild
ing
s a
nd
 ch
an
ge
d 

ac
ce
ss
 ar
ran

ge
me
nts
.  

W
e w

ou
ld 
we
lco
me
 ha
vin
g 

ap
pro

pri
ate
 in
pu
t in
to 
the
 

pro
ce
ss
 on
 be
ha
lf o
f th
e 

wid
er 
co
mm

un
ity
 an
d i
n 

ad
dit
ion
 to
 th
os
e w

ho
 liv
e i
n 

clo
se
 pr
ox
im
ity
 to
 th
e s
ite
. 

rev
isit
ed
. H
ow
ev
er,
 w
e 

are
 no
t a
wa
re 
of 
an
y 

pla
ns
 th
e F

ire
 Se

rvi
ce
 

ha
ve
 fo
r th

is 
sit
e s
inc
e 

the
ir d
ec
isio

n t
o r
em
ain
 

the
re.
 To

 am
en
d t
he
 

Br
ief
 w
e w

ou
ld 
ne
ed
 to
 

kn
ow
 fo
r in
sta
nc
e, 
if 

the
 Fi
re 
Se
rvi
ce
 

wis
he
d t
o r
em
ain
 on
 

pa
rt o

f th
e s
ite
 or
 no
t. 

In 
the
 ab
se
nc
e o
f a
ny
 

pa
rtic
ula
r d
ev
elo
pm
en
t 

pre
ss
ure

 w
e w

ou
ld 
no
t 

wis
h t
o r
ev
isit
 th
e B

rie
f 

at 
thi
s t
im
e. 
If h
ow
ev
er,
 

the
 Br
ief
 is
 re
vis
ite
d i
n 

fut
ure

 th
en
 

co
ns
ult
ati
on
 w
ith
 th
e 

wid
er 
co
mm

un
ity
 

wo
uld
 be
 re
qu
ire
d. 

Gr
ee
nfe
rns
 

De
ve
lop
me
nt 

Fra
me
wo
rk 
an
d 

Ma
ste
rpl
an
 

SE
PA
 

Th
e B

uc
ks
 Bu

rn 
run

s a
lon
g 

no
rth
ern

 bo
un
da
ry 
of 
OP

45
 

an
d i
s a
t m
od
era

te 
sta
tus
 

be
ca
us
e o
f a
lte
rat
ion
s t
o 

Th
e e
xis
tin
g 

Gr
ee
nfe
rns
 M
as
ter
pla
n 

wh
ich
 w
as
 ap
pro

ve
d 

by
 Ab

erd
ee
n C

ity
 

No
 

am
en
dm
en
ts 

req
uir
ed
. 

Se
nd
 to
 

Sc
ott
ish
 

Go
vt 
for
 

rat
ific
ati
on
 

Page 263



Ap
pe
nd
ix 
1 –
 Su

mm
ary
 of
 R
ep
res
en
tat
ion
s 

be
ds
 an
d b
an
ks
 an
d d
iffu
se
 

po
llu
tio
n. 
It i
s n
ote
d t
ha
t S
G 

9.5
 M
as
ter
pla
n f
or 

Gr
ee
nfe
rns
 m
ak
es
 no
 cl
ea
r 

ref
ere

nc
e t
o w

ate
r fe

atu
res
. 

It i
s r
eq
ue
ste
d t
ha
t th
e 

Ma
ste
rpl
an
 be
 am

en
de
d t
o 

tak
e a
cc
ou
nt 
of 
the
 ex
ist
ing
 

wa
ter
 fe
atu
res
 w
ith
in 
the
 

sit
e a
nd
 th
e p
res
su
res
 

wh
ich
 ap
ply
 to
 th
es
e 

fea
tur
es
, a
nd
 to
 di
rec
t 

de
ve
lop
ers
 to
 lo
ok
 fo
r 

op
po
rtu
nit
ies
 to
 pr
ote
ct 
an
d 

im
pro

ve
 th
e w

ate
rbo

die
s. 

Co
un
cil 
in 
Ja
nu
ary
 

20
10
 co
ve
rs 
on
ly 
sit
e 

OP
39
 G
ree

nfe
rns
 

(re
sid
en
tia
l o
pp
ort
un
ity
 

to 
pro

vid
e 1
20
 ho
me
s).
  

Sit
e O

P4
5 G

ree
nfe
rns
 

wh
ich
 SE

PA
 re
fer
 to
 in
 

the
ir r
ep
res
en
tat
ion
 is
 

co
ve
red

 by
 th
e 

Gr
ee
nfe
rns
 

De
ve
lop
me
nt 

Fra
me
wo
rk,
 w
hic
h w

as
 

als
o a
pp
rov
ed
 by
 

Ab
erd

ee
n C

ity
 C
ou
nc
il 

in 
Ja
nu
ary
 20
10
.  T

he
 

De
ve
lop
me
nt 

Fra
me
wo
rk 
se
ts 
ou
t a
 

ba
se
lin
e o
r 2
-

dim
en
sio
na
l s
pa
tia
l 

fra
me
wo
rk,
 fo
r th

e w
ay
 

in 
wh
ich
 O
P3
9 a
nd
 

OP
45
 sh
ou
ld 
be
 

de
ve
lop
ed
.  T

he
 

De
ve
lop
me
nt 

Fra
me
wo
rk 
ma
ke
s 

sp
ec
ific
 re
fer
en
ce
 to
 

the
 Bu

ck
s B

urn
 as
 an
 

ex
ist
ing
 fe
atu
re 
tha
t 

sh
ou
ld 
be
 re
tai
ne
d 

(pa
ge
 53
) a
nd
 st
ate
s 

tha
t "T

hro
ug
ho
ut 
the
 

Page 264



Ap
pe
nd
ix 
1 –
 Su

mm
ary
 of
 R
ep
res
en
tat
ion
s 

pro
ce
ss
 of
 de
ve
lop
ing
 

a f
ram

ew
ork
 fo
r 

Gr
ee
nfe
rns
 it 
ha
s b
ee
n 

the
 ai
m 
to 
pro

vid
e t
he
 

hig
he
st 
qu
ali
ty 
pla
ce
 to
 

live
, s
up
po
rte
d b
y t
he
 

hig
he
st 
en
vir
on
me
nta
l 

as
pir
ati
on
s. 
In 
the
 

co
nte
xt 
of 
thi
s, 
on
e o
f 

the
 m
ain
 el
em
en
ts 
ha
s 

be
en
 to
 en
ha
nc
e a
nd
 

pro
tec
t th
e B

uc
ks
 Bu

rn 
co
rrid

or,
 ut
ilis
ing
 its
 

po
ten
tia
l a
s a
n 

en
vir
on
me
nta
l ro
ute
, 

su
pp
ort
ing
 en
ha
nc
ed
 

ec
olo
gic
al 
an
d h
ab
ita
t 

ac
tiv
ity
, w
hil
e b
rin
gin
g 

it l
ite
ral
ly 
to 
the
 

do
ors
tep
 of
 th
e 

inh
ab
ita
nts
 of
 

Gr
ee
nfe
rns
" (p

ag
e 8
0).
  

An
y f
utu
re 
Ma
ste
rpl
an
 

tha
t is
 de
ve
lop
ed
 fo
r 

OP
45
 G
ree

nfe
rns
 w
ill 

co
mp
ly 
wit
h t
his
 

De
ve
lop
me
nt 

Fra
me
wo
rk 
an
d w

ill 
tak
e a
cc
ou
nt 
of 

ex
ist
ing
 w
ate
r fe

atu
res
.  

Page 265



Ap
pe
nd
ix 
1 –
 Su

mm
ary
 of
 R
ep
res
en
tat
ion
s 

Kin
gs
we
lls 

De
ve
lop
me
nt 

Fra
me
wo
rk 

SE
PA
 

Th
e D

en
 Bu

rn,
 w
hic
h i
s i
n 

clo
se
 pr
ox
im
ity
 to
 th
e s
ite
, is
 

at 
po
or 
ec
olo
gic
al 
po
ten
tia
l 

sit
e d
ue
 to
 se
wa
ge
 po
llu
tio
n 

an
d w

ate
rco
urs
e 

mo
dif
ica
tio
ns
. K
ing
sw
ell
s 

de
ve
lop
me
nts
 m
ay
 al
so
 

im
pa
ct 
on
 Bu

ck
s B

urn
 w
hic
h 

are
 at
 m
od
era

te 
ec
olo
gic
al 

sta
tus
 be
ca
us
e o
f c
ulv
ert
ing
 

an
d d
iffu
se
 po
llu
tio
n. 
W
hil
e 

the
 Su

pp
lem

en
tar
y 

Gu
ida
nc
e d
oe
s h
igh
lig
ht 
the
 

ne
ed
 fo
r d
ev
elo
pm
en
t 

pro
po
sa
ls 
to 
no
t c
au
se
 

de
trim

en
t to
 w
ate
r q
ua
lity
 or
 

ec
olo
gy
 in
 ge
ne
ral
 te
rm
s, 

we
 re
qu
es
t th
at 
it b
e 

ex
pa
nd
ed
 to
 ta
ke
 ac
co
un
t o
f 

the
 ex
ist
ing
 w
ate
r fe

atu
res
 

wit
hin
 an
d a
rou

nd
 th
e s
ite
 

an
d t
he
 pr
es
su
res
 w
hic
h 

ap
ply
 to
 th
es
e f
ea
tur
es
, a
nd
 

to 
dir
ec
t d
ev
elo
pe
rs 
to 
loo
k 

for
 op
po
rtu
nit
ies
 to
 pr
ote
ct 

an
d i
mp
rov
e t
he
 w
ate
r 

en
vir
on
me
nt.
 

Th
is 
pa
rag

rap
h w

as
 

ad
de
d i
nto
 th
e 

do
cu
me
nt 
pri
or 
to 
the
 

lat
es
t ro

un
d o
f 

co
ns
ult
ati
on
.   

No
 

am
en
dm
en
ts 

req
uir
ed
. 

Se
nd
 to
 

Sc
ott
ish
 

Go
vt 
for
 

rat
ific
ati
on

 

Page 266



Ap
pe
nd
ix 
1 –
 Su

mm
ary
 of
 R
ep
res
en
tat
ion
s 

Kin
gs
we
lls 

De
ve
lop
me
nt 

Fra
me
wo
rk 

SE
PA
 

W
elc
om
e t
he
 re
co
gn
itio
n o
f 

the
 N
ort
h B

urn
 of
 R
ub
isla

w 
as
 an
 im
po
rta
nt 
fea
tur
e f
or 

the
 si
te 
an
d w

elc
om
e t
he
 

pro
po
sa
ls 
to 
ret
ain
 an
d 

en
ha
nc
e t
he
 Bu

rn 
in 
the
 

vic
ini
ty 
of 
the
 si
te.
 W
e n
ote
 

fro
m 
Se
cti
on
 5.
21
 of
 th
e 

do
cu
me
nt 
tha
t fo
ul 
dra

ina
ge
 

wil
l b
e d
ire
cte
d t
o t
he
 pu
bli
c 

se
we
r a
nd
 su
rfa
ce
 w
ate
rs 

wil
l b
e d
isp
os
ed
 of
 vi
a 

SU
DS
. 

Co
mm

en
ts 
no
ted
. 

No
 

am
en
dm
en
ts 

req
uir
ed
. 

Se
nd
 to
 

Sc
ott
ish
 

Go
vt 
for
 

rat
ific
ati
on
 

Kin
gs
we
lls 

De
ve
lop
me
nt 

Fra
me
wo
rk 

Kin
gs
we
lls 

Co
mm

un
ity
 

Co
un
cil 

Pa
ge
 3 
1.1
  

Sit
e “
A”
. T
his
 si
te 
ha
s n
ow
 

be
en
 fu
lly 
de
ve
lop
ed
 by
 

Ba
rra
tts
 w
ith
 33
 ho
us
es
. It
 is
 

no
w 
co
mp
let
ed
 (N
ew
ton
). 

 Sit
e “
D”
 an
d “
E”
. T
his
 si
te 
is 

no
 lo
ng
er 
an
 op
po
rtu
nit
y 

sit
e (
OP

41
) a
s i
t is
 in
 th
e 

mi
ds
t o
f b
ein
g d
ev
elo
pe
d 

wit
h 7
2 h
ou
se
s b
y S

tew
art
 

Mi
lne
 G
rou

p (
W
es
t O
ne
). 

 Sit
e “
B”
 is
 in
 th
e m

ids
t o
f a
 

ma
ste
r p
lan
nin
g p
roc
es
s f
or 

12
0 h
ou
se
s (
Hu
xte
rst
on
e).
 

 Sit
e “
C”
 (T
he
 Fa

irle
y R

oa
d 

Th
e D

ev
elo
pm
en
t 

Fra
me
wo
rk 
wa
s w

ritt
en
 

in 
20
08
 to
 he
lp 
inf
orm

 
the
 pr
ep
ara

tio
n o
f 

fut
ure

 M
as
ter
pla
ns
 fo
r 

the
 va
rio
us
 si
tes
 in
 

Kin
gs
we
lls 
by
 se
ttin
g 

ou
t th
e b
roa

d 
pri
nc
ipl
es
 th
at 
ne
ed
 to
 

be
 co
ns
ide
red

 w
ith
in 

the
 M
as
tep
lan
s. 
Th
es
e 

su
bs
eq
ue
nt 

Ma
ste
rpl
an
s p
rov
ide
 

mo
re 
de
tai
led
 

inf
orm

ati
on
 to
 gu
ide
 

an
d s
ha
pe
 

de
ve
lop
me
nt.
  It
 is
 no
t 

fel
t to
 be
 ne
ce
ss
ary
 to
 

Re
mo
ve
 

ref
ere

nc
e t
o a
 

mo
bil
e l
ibr
ary
 

se
rvi
ce
 on
 

pa
ge
 3.
 

 Th
e r
efe
ren

ce
 

to 
a y
ou
th 

fac
ility

 on
 

pa
ge
 6 
wil
l b
e 

rem
ov
ed
 an
d 

the
 se
nte
nc
e 

wil
l b
e 

am
en
de
d t
o 

rea
d, 
“Th

e o
ld 

pri
ma

ry 
sc
ho
ol 

is 
no
w 
be
ing
 

us
ed
 by
 

Se
nd
 to
 

Sc
ott
ish
 

Go
vt 
for
 

rat
ific
ati
on
 

Page 267



Ap
pe
nd
ix 
1 –
 Su

mm
ary
 of
 R
ep
res
en
tat
ion
s 

Ol
d S

ch
oo
l p
lay
ing
 fie
ld)
 

sh
ou
ld 
no
t b
e d
es
ign
ate
d a
s 

Re
sid
en
tia
l H
1 i
n t
he
 

Ab
erd

ee
n L
oc
al 

De
ve
lop
me
nt 
Pla

n. 
KC
C 

ha
ve
 in
sti
ga
ted
 a 
lan
d 

se
arc
h w

hic
h i
s i
nc
on
clu
siv
e 

an
d c
om
pli
ca
ted
 an
d t
he
 

fie
ld 
ma
y w

ell
 ha
ve
 th
ree

 
lan
do
wn
ers
 an
d p
art
ly 
be
 ‘in
 

tru
st’
. D
ev
elo
pe
r 

Co
ntr
ibu
tio
n h
as
 be
en
 

ag
ree

d f
or 
the
 fie
ld 
fro
m 

pla
nn
ing
 ga
in 
fro
m 
sit
e “
D”
 

an
d “
E”
. T
he
 fie
ld 
is 
to 
be
 

fla
tte
ne
d a
nd
 dr
ain
ed
 fo
r 

co
mm

un
ity
 re
cre
ati
on
al 
an
d 

sp
ort
ing
 us
e. 
Th
is 
sit
e 

sh
ou
ld 
no
w 
be
 re
-

de
sig
na
ted
 to
 pr
ote
ct 
thi
s 

va
lua
ble
 co
mm

un
ity
 as
se
t. 

 Pa
ge
 3 
1.2
 

Th
e m

ob
ile
 lib
rar
y s
erv
ice
 

ha
s n
ow
 be
en
 di
sc
on
tin
ue
d 

thr
ou
gh
ou
t th
e c
ity
, a
nd
 

the
ref
ore

, K
ing
sw
ell
s. 

 Pa
ge
 6 
5.4
 

“Th
e o

ld 
pri
ma

ry 
sc
ho
ol 
is 

cu
rre
ntl
y u

se
d a

s a
 yo
uth

 

up
da
te 
the
 

De
ve
lop
me
nt 

Fra
me
wo
rk 
to 
ref
lec
t 

ev
olv
ing
 si
te 
sta
tus
 as
 

the
 M
as
ter
pla
ns
 

inc
orp

ora
te 
the
 

pri
nc
ipl
es
 se
t o
ut 
wit
hin
 

the
 Fr
am
ew
ork
.  I
t is
 

im
po
rta
nt 
to 
ke
ep
 al
l o
f 

the
 op
po
rtu
nit
y s
ite
s 

(w
he
the
r th

ey
 ar
e n
ow
 

de
ve
lop
ed
 or
 no
t) t
o 

sh
ow
 th
e o
rig
ina
l 

sc
op
e o
f th
e 

De
ve
lop
me
nt 

Fra
me
wo
rk.
 

 Th
e H

1 R
es
ide
nti
al 

zo
nin
g o
f S
ite
 C
 is
 

ap
pro

pri
ate
 an
d 

ref
lec
ts 
the
 si
tes
 

po
sit
ion
 w
ith
in 
an
 

ex
ist
ing
 re
sid
en
tia
l 

are
a. 
 Po

licy
 H
1 a
llo
ws
 

for
 th
e d
ev
elo
pm
en
t o
f 

ap
pro

pri
ate
 

co
mp
lim
en
tar
y u
se
s 

su
ch
 as
 co
mm

un
ity
 

rec
rea

tio
na
l a
nd
 

sp
ort
ing
 as
 lo
ng
 as
 th
e 

pro
po
sa
l c
om
pli
es
 w
ith
 

Ad
ve
ntu

re 
Ab
erd

ee
n.”
 

 Re
fer
en
ce
s t
o 

bu
s r
ou
tes
 w
ill 

be
 up
da
ted
 in
 

ac
co
rda

nc
e 

wit
h t
he
 Fi
rst
 

Bu
s r
ev
iew

. 
  

Page 268



Ap
pe
nd
ix 
1 –
 Su

mm
ary
 of
 R
ep
res
en
tat
ion
s 

fac
ility

.” T
his
 bu
ild
ing
 w
as
 

tak
en
 ov
er 
an
d r
en
ov
ate
d 

by
 AC

C’s
 “A
dv
en
tur
e 

Ab
erd

ee
n” 
in 
20
09
. T
he
 

yo
uth
 gr
ou
p w

as
 th
en
 m
ad
e 

“ho
me
les
s” 
an
d d
isb
an
de
d. 

 Pa
ge
 7 
5.1

4 
“N
ew
 bu

ild
ing
s s
ho
uld
 be

 
de
sig
ne
d t
o h

av
e a

 
de
sig
ne
d r
ela
tio
ns
hip
 w
ith
 

ex
ist
ing
 bu

ild
ing
s. 
Th
ey
 

sh
ou
ld 
no
t tu

rn 
the

ir b
ac
ks
 

or 
lea
ve
 bl
an
k f
ac
ad
es
 to
 

tho
se
 on

 O
ld 
Sk
en
e R

oa
d 

an
d F

air
ley
 R
oa
d a

nd
 

sh
ou
ld 
be
 de

sig
ne
d t
o r
ela
te 

to 
a s
tre
et,
 w
ith
 

cle
ar 
de
fin
itio
n b

etw
ee
n 

pu
bli
c a
nd
 pr
iva
te 
sp
ac
e” 

KC
C 
wo
uld
 lik
e t
o p
oin
t o
ut 

tha
t o
n t
he
 no
rth
 of
 Si
te 
B, 

(H
ux
ter
sto
ne
) th

e 
es
tab
lish

ed
 ho
us
es
 al
on
g 

the
 La
ng
 St
rac
ht 
ha
ve
 th
eir
 

ba
ck
s t
o t
he
 ro
ad
. A
ny
 

ho
us
es
 pl
an
ne
d f
or 
Sit
e B

 
sh
ou
ld 
fol
low

 th
is 

pre
ce
de
nt.
 N
ew
 ho
us
es
 

wo
uld
 be
 in
clu
siv
e t
o t
he
 

sit
e o
nly
 by
 fa
cin
g a
n i
nn
er 

oth
er 
po
lici
es
 in
 th
e 

Lo
ca
l D
ev
elo
pm
en
t 

Pla
n. 

 Th
e r
efe
ren

ce
 to
 

mo
bil
e l
ibr
ary
 se
rvi
ce
 

wil
l b
e r
em
ov
ed
. 

 Th
e r
efe
ren

ce
 to
 a 

yo
uth
 fa
cili
ty 
wil
l b
e 

am
en
de
d t
o r
ea
d, 
“Th

e 
old
 pr
im
ary

 sc
ho
ol 
is 

no
w 
be
ing
 us
ed
 by

 
Ad
ve
ntu

re 
Ab
erd

ee
n.”
 

 It i
s i
mp
ort
an
t th
at 

dw
ell
ing
s f
ron

t o
nto
 

str
ee
ts 
to 
pro

vid
e 

ac
tiv
e f
ron

tag
es
.  

Ac
tiv
e f
ron

tag
es
 

pro
mo
te 
a s
afe
r a
nd
 

live
lie
r p
lac
e t
ha
t 

be
ne
fits
 th
e w

ho
le 

co
mm

un
ity
. 

 Re
fer
en
ce
s t
o b
us
 

rou
tes
 w
ill b

e u
pd
ate
d 

in 
ac
co
rda

nc
e w

ith
 th
e 

Fir
st 
Bu
s r
ev
iew

. 
 Co
re 
Pa
th 
31
 is
 

Page 269



Ap
pe
nd
ix 
1 –
 Su

mm
ary
 of
 R
ep
res
en
tat
ion
s 

roa
d w

ith
in 
the
 de
ve
lop
me
nt 

rat
he
r th

an
 se
gre

ga
ted
 by
 

fac
ing
 ou
tw
ard

s t
o t
he
 La
nd
 

Str
ac
ht.
 

 Pa
ge
 11
 6.
5 

Kin
gs
we
lls 
is 
cu
rre
ntl
y 

se
rve
d b
y t
he
 nu
mb
er 
14
 

bu
s s
erv
ice
 on
ly 
an
d n
ot 
as
 

sta
ted
 14
/14
A. 
(Th

e n
um
be
r 

14
 is
 to
 be
 re
pla
ce
d b
y t
he
 

nu
mb
er 
11
 in
 

Se
pte
mb
er 
20
12
.)  
Th
e 

nu
mb
er 
14
 bu
s s
erv
ice
 is
 a 

ha
lf h
ou
rly
 se
rvi
ce
 du
rin
g 

the
 da
y a
nd
 ho
url
y i
n t
he
 

ev
en
ing
s -
 no
t a
s s
tat
ed
 

“op
era

tes
 at
 a 
fre
qu
en
cy
 of
 

on
ce
 ev
ery

 15
 m
inu
tes
 

Mo
nd
ay
 to
 Sa

tur
da
y d
uri
ng
 

the
 da

yti
me

, w
ith
 th
e 1

4A
 

su
pp
lem

en
tin
g t
he
 Pa

rk 
an
d 

Rid
e s

erv
ice
 du

rin
g p

ea
k 

tim
es
 gi
vin
g 8

 bu
se
s p
er 

ho
ur.
”  T

he
re 
is 
no
 lo
ng
er 
a 

40
 A 
bu
s s
erv
ice
 fro

m 
the
 

Pa
rk 
an
d R

ide
.  T

he
re 
is 
no
 

lon
ge
r a
 90
2 w

ee
ke
nd
 ni
gh
t 

bu
s s
erv
ice
. 

 Pa
ge
 10
 6.
2 

de
sig
na
ted
 as
 a 
Co
re 

Pa
th 
in 
Ab
erd

ee
n C

ity
 

Co
un
cil’
s C

ore
 Pa

th 
Pla

n (
20
09
) a
nd
 it 
is 

the
ref
ore

 ap
pro

pri
ate
 

for
 it 
to 
be
 re
fer
en
ce
d 

in 
the
 D
ev
elo
pm
en
t 

Fra
me
wo
rk.
 

   

Page 270



Ap
pe
nd
ix 
1 –
 Su

mm
ary
 of
 R
ep
res
en
tat
ion
s 

Co
re 
Pa
th 
31
 ha
s n
o 

pa
ve
me
nt 
at 
ea
st 
sid
e o
f th
e 

no
rth
 en
d o
f F
air
ley
 R
oa
d t
o 

ac
ce
ss
 vi
lla
ge
 ce
ntr
e a
nd
 

bu
s s
top
. 

Mu
rca
r 

De
ve
lop
me
nt 

Fra
me
wo
rk 

Mo
nta
gu
 Ev

an
s 

LL
P o

n b
eh
alf
 of
 

Bu
cc
leu
ch
 

Pr
op
ert
y 

Pr
ev
iou
s r
efe
ren

ce
s t
o t
he
 

Sc
ien
ce
 an
d E

ne
rgy
 Pa

rk 
sh
ou
ld 
be
 up
da
ted
 to
 

Ab
erd

ee
n E

ne
rgy
 Pa

rk.
 

 W
e a
re 
ke
en
 to
 en
su
re 
tha
t 

the
 la
nd
sc
ap
ing
 to
 be
 

pro
vid
ed
 is
 ap
pro

pri
ate
 fo
r 

the
 de
ve
lop
me
nt 
an
d t
ha
t a
 

lan
ds
ca
pe
 m
as
ter
pla
n i
s 

ag
ree

d a
nd
 fa
ir t
o a
ll 

pa
rtie
s. 
 Th

e b
ala
nc
e o
f 

lan
ds
ca
pe
 m
as
ter
pla
nn
ing
 

sh
ou
ld 
no
t b
e l
eft
 to
 th
e e
nd
 

to 
be
 pr
ov
ide
d b
y t
he
 fin
al 

de
ve
lop
me
nt.
 

 In 
5.3
 th
ere

 is
 re
fer
en
ce
 to
 

the
 R
ep
ort
ers
 

rec
om
me
nd
ati
on
s, 
fol
low

ing
 

the
 Lo
ca
l P
lan
 In
qu
iry
, fo
r 

“ex
ten
siv
e l
an
ds
ca
pin
g 

Th
is 
Br
ief
 w
as
 w
ritt
en
 

pri
or 
to 
the
 ad
op
tio
n o
f 

the
 Ab

erd
ee
n L
oc
al 

De
ve
lop
me
nt 
Pla

n 
20
12
. T
his
 Br
ief
 

co
ve
rs 
OP

4: 
Fin
dla
y 

Fa
rm
, M
urc
ar,
 O
P3
: 

Be
rry
hil
l, M

urc
ar 
an
d 

pa
rt o

f O
P2
: M
urc
ar,
 

bu
t d
oe
s n
ot 
sh
ow
 th
e 

ful
l e
xte
nt 
of 

su
rro
un
din
g 

de
ve
lop
me
nt 
an
d 

all
oc
ati
on
s. 
 Th

is 
Br
ief
 

req
uir
es
 to
 be
 up
da
ted
 

to 
bri
ng
 it 
in 
lin
e w

ith
 

the
 cu
rre
nt 
lan
d 

zo
nin
gs
 an
d 

all
oc
ati
on
s. 
 It 
is 

the
ref
ore

 
rec
om
me
nd
ed
 th
at 

thi
s d
oc
um
en
t is
 no
t 

No
 

am
en
dm
en
ts 

cu
rre
ntl
y 

req
uir
ed
. 

Ke
ep
 as
 

Lo
ca
l 

Pla
nn
ing
 

Ad
vic
e 

Page 271



Ap
pe
nd
ix 
1 –
 Su

mm
ary
 of
 R
ep
res
en
tat
ion
s 

wit
hin
 th
e n
ort
he
rn 

bo
un
da
ry 
of 
OP

94
 Be

rry
hil
l” 

alt
ho
ug
h a
pa
rt f
rom

 ar
ea
s 

as
so
cia
ted
 w
ith
 th
e a
cc
es
s 

roa
d, 
thi
s h
as
 no
t b
ee
n 

ref
lec
ted
 in
 th
e i
nd
ica
tiv
e 

Fra
me
wo
rk 
Pla

n. 
 It 
ha
s n
ot 

be
en
 ac
co
mm

od
ate
d w

ith
in 

the
 la
nd
sc
ap
e m

as
ter
pla
n 

rel
ati
ve
 to
 Ap

pli
ca
tio
n R

ef.
 

12
10
31
 ei
the
r.  
Th
e 

ref
ere

nc
ed
 Pa

rkl
an
d B

uff
er 

to 
the
 w
es
t a
pp
ea
rs 
to 
be
 

ac
co
mm

od
ate
d i
n t
he
 

fra
me
wo
rk 
pla
n. 

 Ot
he
r is
su
es
 to
 be
 

ac
co
mm

od
ate
d i
nc
lud
e t
he
 

bu
ffe
r to

 th
e g
olf
 co
urs
e a
nd
 

ret
en
tio
n o
f e
xis
tin
g p
lan
tin
g 

an
d n
atu
ral
 fe
atu
res
.  T

he
 

ind
ica
tiv
e p
lan
 sh
ou
ld 
aim

 to
 

pro
vid
e a
 m
ore

 co
he
ren

t 
lan
ds
ca
pe
 st
ruc
tur
e i
n o
rde

r 
to 
as
sis
t in
 en
su
rin
g a
 

co
he
ren

t la
nd
sc
ap
e 

ma
ste
rpl
an
 ac
ros
s t
he
 

wh
ole
 si
te.
 

 Su
pp
ort
 th
e r
eq
uir
em
en
t fo
r 

ha
bit
at 
su
rve
ys
 to
 be
 

se
nt 
to 
the
 Sc

ott
ish
 

Go
ve
rnm

en
t fo
r 

rat
ific
ati
on
 as
 SG

 to
 

the
 AL

DP
, b
ut 
ins
tea
d 

rem
ain
s a
s a
 Lo
ca
l 

Pla
nn
ing
 Ad

vic
e 

do
cu
me
nt 
un
til 
su
ch
 

tim
e a
s i
t is
 re
vis
ite
d 

an
d u
pd
ate
d. 
  

 Th
e i
ss
ue
s r
ais
ed
 

thr
ou
gh
 th
is 

rep
res
en
tat
ion
 w
ill b

e 
tak
en
 in
to 

co
ns
ide
rat
ion
 du
rin
g 

an
y 

red
raf
tin
g/u
pd
ati
ng
 

wo
rk 
tha
t ta
ke
s p
lac
e 

on
 th
e D

ev
elo
pm
en
t 

Fra
me
wo
rk 
in 
the
 

fut
ure

. 
 

Page 272



Ap
pe
nd
ix 
1 –
 Su

mm
ary
 of
 R
ep
res
en
tat
ion
s 

co
ns
ist
en
t a
cro
ss
 th
e w

ho
le 

fra
me
wo
rk 
sit
e, 
giv
en
 th
e 

int
en
tio
n i
s t
o c
rea

te 
a 

gre
en
 ne
tw
ork
.   

 W
e a
gre

e t
ha
t th
e 

fra
me
wo
rk 
sit
e s
ho
uld
 be
 

de
ve
lop
ed
 in
 ac
co
rda

nc
e 

wit
h t
he
 pr
inc
ipl
es
 of
 

su
sta
ina
bil
ity
.  I
t w
ill b

e 
im
po
rta
nt 
to 
ap
pre

cia
te 
ho
w 

thi
s m

ay
 af
fec
t th
e 

de
live

rab
ility

, c
os
t p
lan
 an
d 

co
ns
tru
cti
on
 ph
as
ing
 ac
ros
s 

the
 si
te.
 

 Bu
cc
leu
ch
 Pr
op
ert
y a
re 

cu
rre
ntl
y w

ork
ing
 up
 a 

ma
ste
rpl
an
 fo
r th

eir
 fu
tur
e 

ex
pa
ns
ion
 la
nd
, w
hic
h w

ill 
inc
lud
e a
 ph
as
ing
 pl
an
, in
 

ac
co
rda

nc
e w

ith
 pr
ev
iou
s 

co
nd
itio
ns
 re
lat
ive
 to
 th
eir
 

lan
d. 
 Th

e p
ha
sin
g o
f th
e 

va
rio
us
 si
tes
 w
ill a

lso
 be
 an
 

im
po
rta
nt 
pla
nn
ing
 

co
ns
ide
rat
ion
.  T

he
 

int
erc
on
ne
cti
vit
y o
f ro

ad
, 

pe
de
str
ian
 an
d c
yc
le 

ac
ce
ss
, la
nd
sc
ap
ing
 an
d 

se
rvi
ce
s w

ill a
ll r
eq
uir
e t
o b
e 

Page 273



Ap
pe
nd
ix 
1 –
 Su

mm
ary
 of
 R
ep
res
en
tat
ion
s 

ca
ref
ull
y p
ha
se
d a
nd
 

ag
ree

me
nt 
rea

ch
ed
 

be
tw
ee
n t
he
 re
sp
ec
tiv
e l
an
d 

ow
ne
rs 
an
d A

be
rde

en
 C
ity
 

Co
un
cil.
 

 A g
ree

n t
rav
el 
str
ate
gy
 

sh
ou
ld 
be
 de
ve
lop
ed
 fo
r th

e 
ma
ste
rpl
an
 si
te.
  

Cla
rifi
ca
tio
n i
s s
ou
gh
t o
n t
he
 

req
uir
em
en
ts 
to 
ex
ten
d b
us
 

se
rvi
ce
s a
nd
 th
e p
rov
isio

n 
of 
a b
us
 ga
te 
lin
k. 
 H
ow
 w
ill 

thi
s i
mp
ac
t o
n t
he
 Be

rry
hil
l 

Fa
rm
 an
d F

inl
ay
 Fa

rm
 

lan
ds
? 

 W
e n
ote
 th
at 
the
 m
ain
 

ve
hic
ula
r a
cc
es
s t
o t
he
 si
te 

wo
uld
 be
 fro

m 
the
 M
urc
ar 

Ro
un
da
bo
ut.
  It
 is
 

en
vis
ag
ed
 th
at 
the
re 
wil
l b
e 

thr
ou
gh
 ac
ce
ss
 be
tw
ee
n t
he
 

Mu
rca
r a
nd
 Pa

rkw
ay
 

Ro
un
da
bo
uts
, li
mi
ted
 to
 

pu
bli
c t
ran

sp
ort
 on
ly.
  T
he
 

pre
vio
us
 ap
pro

va
l to
 ex
ten
d 

the
 Sc

ien
ce
 an
d E

ne
rgy
 

Pa
rk 
wa
s a
pp
rov
ed
 on
 th
at 

ba
sis
. 

 

Page 274



Ap
pe
nd
ix 
1 –
 Su

mm
ary
 of
 R
ep
res
en
tat
ion
s 

Bu
cc
leu
ch
 Pr
op
ert
y a
re 

cu
rre
ntl
y w

ork
ing
 up
 a 

ma
ste
rpl
an
 fo
r th

eir
 fu
tur
e 

ex
pa
ns
ion
 la
nd
, to
 th
e n
ort
h 

of 
the
 ex
ist
ing
 En

erg
y P

ark
.  

W
e w

ish
 to
 re
se
rve
 ou
r 

po
sit
ion
 on
 co
nn
ec
tiv
ity
 

be
tw
ee
n t
he
 Be

rry
hil
l F
arm

 
lan
d a
nd
 Fi
nla
y F
arm

 la
nd
 

un
til 
su
ch
 tim

es
 as
 fu
rth
er 

dis
cu
ss
ion
s h
av
e t
ak
en
 

pla
ce
 an
d a
gre

em
en
t 

rea
ch
ed
 on
 an
 ap
pro

pri
ate
 

lin
k b
etw

ee
n t
he
 tw
o s
ite
s. 
 

Th
e l
oc
ati
on
 of
 th
e l
ink
 ro
ad
 

wil
l n
ee
d t
o b
e a
gre

ed
 in
 

ord
er 
to 
int
erc
on
ne
ct 
the
 

tw
o m

as
ter
pla
ns
 

se
am
les
sly
.  T

he
 

co
nn
ec
tin
g r
oa
d b
etw

ee
n 

Fin
lay
 Fa

rm
 an
d B

err
yh
ill 

Fa
rm
 la
nd
s, 
as
 id
en
tifi
ed
 

wit
hin
 Fi
gu
re 
3, 
is 
the
ref
ore

 
for
 in
dic
ati
ve
 pu
rpo

se
s o
nly
. 

 
Po
ten
tia
l lin

ka
ge
s a
cro
ss
 

the
 fra

me
wo
rk 
are

a s
ho
uld
 

be
 de
ve
lop
ed
 an
d t
rav
el 

co
rrid

ors
 ag
ree

d. 
 

Th
e f
ram

ew
ork
 do
cu
me
nt 

Page 275



Ap
pe
nd
ix 
1 –
 Su

mm
ary
 of
 R
ep
res
en
tat
ion
s 

sh
ou
ld 
be
 up
da
ted
 in
 or
de
r 

to 
co
ns
ide
r h
ow
 th
e d
e-

tru
nk
ing
 of
 th
e A

90
 w
ill 

aff
ec
t th
e d
ev
elo
pm
en
t.  
W
ill 

an
 ad
dit
ion
al 
ac
ce
ss
 po
int
 

be
 pr
om
ote
d t
o s
erv
e t
he
 

ce
ntr
al 
are

a o
f  C

lov
erh

ill 
Fa
rm
?  
Cla

rifi
ca
tio
n i
s 

so
ug
ht 
on
 ho
w 
thi
s m

ay
 

im
pa
ct 
/ in
for
m 
the
 

str
ate
gie
s d
ev
elo
pe
d f
or 

tra
ve
l lin

ks
, e
nv
iro
nm
en
tal
 

an
d l
an
ds
ca
pin
g a
sp
ec
ts 
for
 

the
 fra

me
wo
rk 
sit
e. 
   

Pa
rk 
an
d R

ide
 pr
op
os
als
 

sh
ou
ld 
be
 up
da
ted
 an
d 

cla
rifi
ed
 fo
r th

e m
as
ter
pla
n 

sit
e. 
 It 
wil
l b
e i
mp
ort
an
t to
 

un
de
rst
an
d t
he
 im
pa
cts
 

ari
sin
g f
rom

 a 
Pa
rk 
an
d 

Rid
e f
ac
ility

 be
ing
 

de
ve
lop
ed
 on
 th
e s
ite
, 

inc
lud
ing
 w
alk
ing
 di
sta
nc
es
 

 It w
ill b

e i
mp
ort
an
t to
 en
su
re 

co
ns
ist
en
cy
 be
tw
ee
n t
he
 

Co
un
cil’
s C

ore
 Pa

ths
 Pl
an
 

an
d t
he
 pr
op
os
ed
 fo
otp
ath
s 

an
d c
yc
le 
rou

tes
 w
ith
in 
the
 

Mu
rca
r a
rea

.  I
t s
ho
uld
 be
 

po
ss
ibl
e t
o p
rov
ide
 th
e 

Page 276



Ap
pe
nd
ix 
1 –
 Su

mm
ary
 of
 R
ep
res
en
tat
ion
s 

as
pir
ati
on
al 
pa
th 

co
nn
ec
tio
ns
 co
nta
ine
d 

wit
hin
 th
e C

ore
 Pa

ths
 Pl
an
 

ac
ros
s t
he
 Fr
am
ew
ork
 si
te.
    

 Th
e p
rov
isio

n o
f s
tra
teg
ic 

uti
lity
 up
gra

de
s s
ho
uld
 be
 

tak
en
 in
to 
ac
co
un
t w
ith
 th
e 

rou
tes
 an
d s
erv
ice
 pr
ov
isio

n 
ca
lcu
lat
ed
 fo
r th

e w
ho
le 
of 

the
 m
as
ter
pla
n s
ite
 an
d 

en
ab
led
 in
 su
ch
 as
 w
ay
 as
 

to 
av
oid
 un
ne
ce
ss
ary
 co
st.
 

 Dr
ain
ag
e f
rom

 th
e w

ide
r 

de
ve
lop
me
nt 
ma
y r
eq
uir
e t
o 

pa
ss
 th
rou

gh
 th
e F

inl
ay
 

Fa
rm
 si
te.
  W

e w
ou
ld 
no
t 

wis
h t
o s
ter
ilis
e p
art
s o
f th
e 

sit
e d
ue
 to
 dr
ain
ag
e 

wa
yle
av
es
 or
 co
rdo

n 
sa
nit
air
e r
eq
uir
em
en
ts 
for
 

thi
rd 
pa
rtie
s. 

 Bu
cc
leu
ch
 Pr
op
ert
y a
nd
 

Sc
ott
ish
 En

ter
pri
se
 w
ill s

ee
k 

to 
en
su
re 
a f
air
 an
d 

co
ns
ist
en
t a
pp
roa

ch
 to
 an
y 

pla
nn
ing
 re
str
ict
ion
s t
o b
e 

ap
pli
ed
 ac
ros
s t
he
 

fra
me
wo
rk 
sit
e. 
 W
hil
st 

Page 277



Ap
pe
nd
ix 
1 –
 Su

mm
ary
 of
 R
ep
res
en
tat
ion
s 

res
ea
rch
 an
d d
ev
elo
pm
en
t 

us
es
 w
ill c

on
tin
ue
 to
 m
ak
e 

an
 im
po
rta
nt 
co
ntr
ibu
tio
n t
o 

the
 fu
tur
e d
ev
elo
pm
en
t o
f 

the
 Ab

erd
ee
n E

ne
rgy
 Pa

rk 
an
d a
ss
oc
iat
ed
 ex
pa
ns
ion
 

lan
d t
o t
he
 no
rth
, it
 w
ill b

e 
es
se
nti
al 
to 
en
su
re 
tha
t 

res
tric
tio
ns
 on
 us
e a
re 

rea
so
na
ble
 an
d d
o n
ot 

ob
str
uc
t o
r h
ind
er 
fut
ure

 
inv
es
tm
en
t o
pp
ort
un
itie
s 

Mu
rca
r 

De
ve
lop
me
nt 

Fra
me
wo
rk 

Pa
ul 
an
d 

W
illia
ms
on
s o
n 

be
ha
lf o
f 

Ste
wa
rt M

iln
e 

Ho
me
s 

Th
e S

G 
do
es
 no
t ta
ke
 in
to 

ac
co
un
t a
ny
 ot
he
r a
llo
ca
ted
 

sit
es
 in
 th
e a
rea

.  T
he
 SG

 
sh
ou
ld 
co
nta
in 
a 

req
uir
em
en
t fo
r th

e 
pre

pa
rat
ion
 of
 a 
joi
nt 

De
ve
lop
me
nt 
Fra

me
wo
rk 
in 

co
nju
nc
tio
n w

ith
 O
P2
5 a
nd
 

Sit
e R

ef 
2/0
2 M

un
du
rno

 
sh
ou
ld 
be
 in
clu
de
d. 
 SG

 
sh
ou
ld 
be
 th
e m

os
t u
p t
o 

da
te 
gu
ida
nc
e a
nd
 re
fle
ct 

the
 al
loc
ati
on
s i
n t
he
 LD

P i
n 

du
e c
ou
rse
.  A

 de
ve
lop
me
nt 

fra
me
wo
rk 
wo
uld
 he
lp 

de
live

r b
ett
er 
ph
as
ed
 

de
ve
lop
me
nt.
 

Th
e S

G 
sh
ou
ld 
be
 up
da
ted
 

Th
is 
Br
ief
 w
as
 w
ritt
en
 

pri
or 
to 
the
 ad
op
tio
n o
f 

the
 Ab

erd
ee
n L
oc
al 

De
ve
lop
me
nt 
Pla

n 
20
12
. T
his
 Br
ief
 

co
ve
rs 
OP

4: 
Fin
dla
y 

Fa
rm
, M
urc
ar,
 O
P3
: 

Be
rry
hil
l, M

urc
ar 
an
d 

pa
rt o

f O
P2
: M
urc
ar,
 

bu
t d
oe
s n
ot 
sh
ow
 th
e 

ful
l e
xte
nt 
of 

su
rro
un
din
g 

de
ve
lop
me
nt 
an
d 

all
oc
ati
on
s. 
 Th

is 
Br
ief
 

req
uir
es
 to
 be
 up
da
ted
 

to 
bri
ng
 it 
in 
lin
e w

ith
 

the
 cu
rre
nt 
lan
d 

zo
nin
gs
 an
d 

all
oc
ati
on
s. 
 It 
is 

No
 

am
en
dm
en
ts 

cu
rre
ntl
y 

req
uir
ed
. 

Ke
ep
 as
 

Lo
ca
l 

Pla
nn
ing
 

Ad
vic
e 

Page 278



Ap
pe
nd
ix 
1 –
 Su

mm
ary
 of
 R
ep
res
en
tat
ion
s 

to 
inc
orp

ora
te 
an
d r
efl
ec
t 

the
 ot
he
r a
llo
ca
tio
ns
 in
 th
e 

Pla
n. 

the
ref
ore

 
rec
om
me
nd
ed
 th
at 

thi
s d
oc
um
en
t is
 no
t 

se
nt 
to 
the
 Sc

ott
ish
 

Go
ve
rnm

en
t fo
r 

rat
ific
ati
on
 as
 SG

 to
 

the
 AL

DP
, b
ut 
ins
tea
d 

rem
ain
s a
s a
 Lo
ca
l 

Pla
nn
ing
 Ad

vic
e 

do
cu
me
nt 
un
til 
su
ch
 

tim
e a
s i
t is
 re
vis
ite
d 

an
d u
pd
ate
d. 
  

 Th
e i
ss
ue
s r
ais
ed
 

thr
ou
gh
 th
is 

rep
res
en
tat
ion
 w
ill b

e 
tak
en
 in
to 

co
ns
ide
rat
ion
 du
rin
g 

an
y 

red
raf
tin
g/u
pd
ati
ng
 

wo
rk 
tha
t ta
ke
s p
lac
e 

on
 th
e D

ev
elo
pm
en
t 

Fra
me
wo
rk 
in 
the
 

fut
ure

. 
 

Page 279



Ap
pe
nd
ix 
1 –
 Su

mm
ary
 of
 R
ep
res
en
tat
ion
s 

Pin
ew
oo
d 

Ha
zle
de
ne
 

Pla
nn
ing
 Br
ief
 

GV
A G

rim
ley
 

Ltd
 on
 be
ha
lf o
f 

Do
bb
ies
 G
ard

en
 

Ce
ntr
es
 LL
P 

Th
is 
SG

 sh
ou
ld 
co
nti
nu
e t
o 

rec
og
nis
e a
ll a
va
ila
ble
 

op
po
rtu
nit
ies
 to
 lin
k t
he
 tw
o 

are
as
 (H
az
led
en
e/ 

Pin
ew
oo
d a
nd
 Fo

rm
er 

Do
bb
ies
 G
ard

en
 C
en
tre
) fo

r 
pe
de
str
ian
s a
nd
 cy
clis

ts.
  

Th
is 
wo
uld
 be
 

ad
va
nta
ge
ou
s t
o t
he
 fu
tur
e 

de
ve
lop
me
nt 
of 
bo
th 
are

as
. 

Gi
ve
n t
ha
t th
e s
ite
s a
t 

Pin
ew
oo
d a
nd
 

Ha
zle
de
ne
 bo
th 
no
w 

ha
ve
 pl
an
nin
g 

pe
rm
iss
ion
, w
e d
o n
ot 

int
en
d t
o r
ev
isit
 th
e 

ex
ist
ing
 pl
an
nin
g b
rie
f. 

Th
ere

for
e t
he
 lin
ka
ge
s 

me
nti
on
ed
 in
 th
e b
rie
f 

rem
ain
 un
ch
an
ge
d. 

           

No
 

am
en
dm
en
ts 

req
uir
ed
. 

Se
nd
 to
 

Sc
ott
ish
 

Go
vt 
for
 

rat
ific
ati
on
 

Ne
w 
Ma

ste
rp
lan

s/P
lan

nin
g B

rie
fs/
De

ve
lop

me
nt 

Fr
am

ew
or
ks
 

Page 280



Ap
pe
nd
ix 
1 –
 Su

mm
ary
 of
 R
ep
res
en
tat
ion
s 

Ab
erd

ee
n H

arb
ou
r 

De
ve
lop
me
nt 

Fra
me
wo
rk 

SE
PA
 

W
e h
av
e a
lre
ad
y p
rov
ide
d 

co
mm

en
ts 
du
rin
g t
he
 

pre
pa
rat
ion
 of
 th
e 

Fra
me
wo
rk 
an
d w

e a
re 

ple
as
ed
 to
 no
te 
tha
t m
an
y 

of 
the
 su
gg
es
tio
ns
 m
ad
e 

pre
vio
us
ly 
by
 SE

PA
 ha
ve
 

be
en
 in
co
rpo

rat
ed
 in
to 
the
 

do
cu
me
nt.
 Th

ere
 is
 st
ill 

sc
op
e f
or 
the
 na
tur
al 

en
vir
on
me
nt 
(pa

rtic
ula
rly
 

the
 w
ate
r e
nv
iro
nm
en
t) t
o 

be
 fu
rth
er 
em
ph
as
ise
d, 
for
 

ex
am
ple
 by
 hi
gh
lig
hti
ng
 th
at 

the
 R
ive
r D
ee
 m
ay
 be
 

pro
tec
ted
 no
t ju
st 
as
 a 

Sp
ec
ial
 Ar
ea
 of
 

Co
ns
erv
ati
on
 bu
t a
lso
 in
 

ord
er 
to 
me
et 
the
 

req
uir
em
en
ts 
of 
the
 EC

 
W
ate
r F
ram

ew
ork
 D
ire
cti
ve
 

to 
en
su
re 
tha
t a
ll 

wa
ter
bo
die
s r
ea
ch
 go
od
 

ec
olo
gic
al 
sta
tus
 by
 a 
se
t 

de
ad
lin
e, 
an
d b
y 

hig
hli
gh
tin
g t
he
 pr
es
su
res
 

an
d i
mp
ac
ts 
tha
t a
re 

inf
lue
nc
ing
 th
e s
tat
us
 of
 th
e 

mo
uth
 of
 th
e R

ive
r D
ee
 

(in
clu
din
g t
he
 ha
rbo

ur 
are

a).
 

 

Co
mm

en
t n
ote
d. 

No
 

am
en
dm
en
ts 

req
uir
ed
. 

Se
nd
 to
 

Sc
ott
ish
 

Go
vt 
for
 

rat
ific
ati
on
 

Page 281



Ap
pe
nd
ix 
1 –
 Su

mm
ary
 of
 R
ep
res
en
tat
ion
s 

Kin
gs
we
lls 

De
ve
lop
me
nt 

Fra
me
wo
rk 
an
d 

Ph
as
e O

ne
 

Ma
ste
rpl
an
 (O
P4
0) 

SE
PA
 

Ple
as
ed
 to
 no
te 
tha
t C
ult
s 

Bu
rn 
ha
s b
ee
n i
de
nti
fie
d a
s 

an
 im
po
rta
nt 
fea
tur
e f
or 
the
 

sit
e a
nd
 w
elc
om
e t
he
 

pro
po
sa
ls 
to 
ret
ain
 an
d 

en
ha
nc
e t
he
 Bu

rn 
in 
the
 

vic
ini
ty 
of 
the
 si
te 
thr
ou
gh
 

the
 cr
ea
tio
n o
f a
n o
pe
n 

sp
ac
e b
uff
er 
str
ip 
ex
ten
din
g 

alo
ng
 th
e b
urn

 co
rrid

or.
 W
e 

we
lco
me
 th
e r
ec
og
nit
ion
 of
 

the
 ne
ed
 fo
r a
 Fl
oo
d R

isk
 

As
se
ss
me
nt 
(FR

A)
 to
 be
  

un
de
rta
ke
n, 
thi
s s
ho
uld
 

inf
orm

 th
e d
es
ign
 an
d l
ay
ou
t 

of 
the
 si
te.
 N
ote
 fro

m 
Se
cti
on
 5 
of 
the
 do
cu
me
nt 

tha
t fo
ul 
dra

ina
ge
 w
ill b

e 
dir
ec
ted
 to
 th
e p
ub
lic 
se
we
r 

an
d s
urf
ac
e w

ate
rs 
wil
l b
e 

su
bje
ct 
to 
2 l
ev
els
 of
 

tre
atm

en
t fo
r ro

ad
s a
nd
 a 

sin
gle
 le
ve
l fo
r ro

of 
run

 of
f, 

an
d t
ha
t a
n i
nd
ica
tio
n t
ha
t 

po
nd
s/b
as
ins
 w
ill b

e 
inc
orp

ora
ted
 in
to 
the
 

dra
ina
ge
 st
rat
eg
y w

ith
in 

are
as
 of
 op
en
 sp
ac
e. 
Th
is 
is 

in 
pri
nc
ipl
e a
cc
ep
tab
le 
to 

SE
PA
 as
 it 
wo
uld
 pr
ov
ide
 

the
 re
qu
ire
d 2
 le
ve
ls 
of 

Co
mm

en
t n
ote
d. 

No
 

am
en
dm
en
ts 

req
uir
ed
. 

Se
nd
 to
 

Sc
ott
ish
 

Go
vt 
for
 

rat
ific
ati
on

 

Page 282



Ap
pe
nd
ix 
1 –
 Su

mm
ary
 of
 R
ep
res
en
tat
ion
s 

SU
DS
 tre

atm
en
t fo
r th

is 
typ
e o
f d
ev
elo
pm
en
t.  
W
e 

ha
ve
 al
rea

dy
 pr
ov
ide
d 

ad
vic
e o
n a
 pr
e-a

pp
lica

tio
n 

en
qu
iry
 (C
ou
nc
il R

ef 
P1
20
34
0, 
SE
PA
 R
ef 

PC
S/1

19
10
4) 
for
 pa
rt o

f th
is 

sit
e. 

Kin
gs
we
lls 
Pr
im
e 

Fo
ur 
Bu
sin
es
s P

ark
 

(P
ha
se
 Tw

o a
nd
 

Th
ree

) 

Kin
gs
we
lls 

Co
mm

un
ity
 

Co
un
cil 

Su
mm

ary
 D
oc
um

en
t: 

It i
s n
ote
d t
ha
t th
ere

 is
 a 

90
m 
ba
nd
 of
 G
SN
 in
clu
din
g 

an
 op
en
 se
ttin
g t
o t
he
 

Co
ns
um
pti
on
 D
yk
e, 
an
d a
 

12
0m
 no
 bu
ild
 zo
ne
. 

Kin
gs
we
lls 
Co
mm

un
ity
 is
 

co
nc
ern

ed
 ab
ou
t th
e 

ap
pe
ara

nc
e o
f th
e 

de
ve
lop
me
nt 
wh
en
 vi
ew
ed
 

fro
m 
the
 no
rth
. T
he
 

co
mm

un
ity
 w
as
 gi
ve
n 

as
su
ran

ce
s t
ha
t th
e 

de
ve
lop
me
nt 
wo
uld
 be
 

sc
ree

ne
d a
nd
 w
ou
ld 
ha
ve
 

mi
nim

al 
vis
ua
l im

pa
ct.
 It 

wo
uld
 ap
pe
ar 
tha
t th
e 9
0m
 

op
en
 se
ttin
g l
im
its
 th
e 

sc
ree

nin
g t
ha
t w
as
 

pro
mi
se
d. 
If t
his
 is
 th
e c
as
e 

the
n t
he
 12
0m
 no
 bu
ild
 

zo
ne
 sh
ou
ld 
be
 ex
ten
de
d t
o 

en
su
re 
tha
t p
rom

ise
s m

ad
e 

Su
mm

ary
 D
oc
um

en
t: 

Du
rin
g t
he
 

Ex
am
ina
tio
n i
nto
 th
e 

Ab
erd

ee
n L
oc
al 

De
ve
lop
me
nt 
Pla

n t
he
 

Re
po
rte
r s
tat
ed
, “T

o 
the
 no
rth
, th
is 

de
ve
lop
me
nt 
wo
uld
 be
 

co
nta
ine
d w

ith
in 
the
 

lin
e o
f th
e l
arg

e 
co
ns
um
pti
on
 dy
ke
.  I
t 

is 
a s
ch
ed
ule
d 

mo
nu
me
nt 
an
d b
oth
 it 

an
d i
ts 
im
me
dia
te 

se
ttin
g s
ho
uld
 be
 

sa
feg
ua
rde

d. 
 Th

is 
ca
n 

be
 se
cu
red

 th
rou

gh
 th
e 

gre
en
 sp
ac
e n
etw

ork
 

de
sig
na
tio
n w

hic
h r
un
s 

alo
ng
 ei
the
r s
ide
 of
 it.
  

Th
e e
xte
nt 
of 
the
 gr
ee
n 

sp
ac
e n
etw

ork
 sh
ow
n 

on
 th
e p
rop

os
als
 m
ap
 

Re
mo
ve
 

‘wh
ere

 
po
ss
ibl
e’ 
fro
m 

se
nte
nc
e a
t 

Pa
rt 4

B. 
De
sig
n 

Pr
inc
ipl
es
 an
d 

se
nte
nc
e a
t 

Pa
rt 4

.B.
1.3
 

Co
nte
xt.
 

 Re
fer
en
ce
s t
o 

bu
s r
ou
tes
 w
ill 

be
 up
da
ted
 in
 

ac
co
rda

nc
e 

wit
h t
he
 Fi
rst
 

Bu
s r
ev
iew

. 
 

Se
nd
 to
 

Sc
ott
ish
 

Go
vt 
for
 

rat
ific
ati
on

 

Page 283



Ap
pe
nd
ix 
1 –
 Su

mm
ary
 of
 R
ep
res
en
tat
ion
s 

to 
the
 co
mm

un
ity
 ca
n b
e 

ful
fille

d. 
Th
e s
ign
ific
an
t d
ev
iat
ion
 

fro
m 
the
 Fr
am
ew
ork
 is
 no
t 

ac
ce
pta
ble
 to
 th
e 

co
mm

un
ity
. T
he
 m
as
ter
pla
n 

sh
ou
ld 
no
t b
e a
pp
rov
ed
 un
til 

co
mm

un
ity
 is
su
es
 ar
e 

ad
dre

ss
ed
. 

 De
sig

n P
rin

cip
les

: 
KC
C 
req

ue
st 
the
 fo
llo
win

g 
tex
t c
ha
ng
e i
n s
ec
tio
n P

art
 

4B
. D
es
ign
 

Pr
inc
ipl
es
. 

Bu
ild
ing

s m
us
t, w

he
re 

po
ss
ibl
e, 
be
 se

t w
ith

in 
the

 
lan

ds
ca
pe
 an

d b
e 

sy
mp

ath
eti
c t
o t

he
 ru

ral
 

se
ttin

g a
nd

 th
e W

es
t 

Ha
tto

n W
oo

dla
nd

. 
KC
C 
is 
co
nc
ern

ed
 th
at 
the
 

ph
ras
e ‘
wh
ere

 po
ss
ibl
e’ 

all
ow
s t
he
 de
ve
lop
er 
too
 

mu
ch
 le
ew
ay
. T
he
re 
is 
no
 

arg
um
en
t in
to 
wh
at 
is 

po
ss
ibl
e. 
Th
is 
is 
pu
rel
y 

su
bje
cti
ve
. 

   

is 
ind
ica
tiv
e, 
an
d i
ts 

pre
cis
e e
xte
nt 
wil
l b
e 

co
nfi
rm
ed
 th
rou

gh
 th
e 

su
bs
eq
ue
nt 
ma
ste
r 

pla
nn
ing
 pr
oc
es
s.”
  

His
tor
ic 
Sc
otl
an
d h
av
e 

int
im
ate
d t
ha
t th
ey
 do
 

no
t w
an
t la
nd
sc
ap
ing
 

rig
ht 
up
 to
 th
e 

co
ns
um
pti
on
 dy
ke
 an
d 

thi
s i
s r
efl
ec
ted
 in
 th
e 

ph
as
e 2
 an
d 3
 

ma
ste
rpl
an
.   

 De
sig

n P
rin

cip
les

: 
W
e a
gre

e t
ha
t th
e 

ph
ras
e ‘
wh
ere

 
po
ss
ibl
e’ 
sh
ou
ld 
be
 

rem
ov
ed
 fro

m 
the
 te
xt 

at 
Pa
rt 4

B. 
De
sig
n 

Pr
inc
ipl
es
. 

          

Page 284



Ap
pe
nd
ix 
1 –
 Su

mm
ary
 of
 R
ep
res
en
tat
ion
s 

Pa
rt 
4B

. In
dic

ati
ve
 

Ma
ste

rp
lan

 
KC
C 
wo
uld
 be
 op
po
se
d t
o 

the
 us
e o
f H
 sh
ap
ed
 

bu
ild
ing
s o
n t
he
 no
rth
ern

 
bo
un
da
ry 
of 
the
 

de
ve
lop
me
nt 
as
 it 

co
ntr
av
en
es
 th
e p
rin
cip
le 

“B
uil
din

gs
 m
us
t b

e 
br
ok
en
 do

wn
 w
he
re 

po
ss
ibl
e i
nto

 sm
all
er 

blo
ck
s, 
an
d g

ab
les

 
or
ien

tat
ed
 N
or
th 

/ S
ou
th.

 “ 
Th
e g
rou

pin
g o
f b
uil
din
gs
 in
 

‘Cl
us
ter
s’ 
in 
the
 Fr
am
ew
ork
 

do
cu
me
nt 
is 
mu
ch
 m
ore

 
ac
ce
pta
ble
 to
 th
e 

co
mm

un
ity
 th
an
 th
e u
se
 in
 

the
 M
as
ter
pla
n w

he
re 
the
 

us
e m

ak
es
 it 
im
po
ss
ibl
e t
o 

so
fte
n t
he
 vi
su
al 
im
pa
ct 

fro
m 
the
 no
rth
. T
he
 de
ns
ity
 

of 
bu
ild
ing
 on
 th
e n
ort
he
rn 

bo
un
da
ry 
is 
too
 hi
gh
 an
d 

mu
st 
be
 re
du
ce
d t
o p
rov
ide
 

an
 ac
ce
pta
ble
 so
lut
ion
 fo
r 

thi
s s
en
sit
ive
 ar
ea
. 

Th
e m

as
ter
pla
n s
ho
uld
 be
 

ch
an
ge
d a
cc
ord

ing
ly,
 an
d 

sh
ou
ld 
ma
ke
 a 

de
tai
led
 3D

 m
od
el 
sh
ow
ing
 

Pa
rt 
4B

. In
dic

ati
ve
 

Ma
ste

rp
lan

 
Th
e b
uil
din
g l
ay
ou
t 

sh
ow
n i
n t
he
 

ma
ste
rpl
an
 is
 m
ore

 
de
tai
led
 th
at 
the
 

‘Cl
us
ter
s’ 
sh
ow
n i
n t
he
 

De
ve
lop
me
nt 

Fra
me
wo
rk 
an
d s
ho
ws
 

the
 re
lat
ion
sh
ips
 

be
tw
ee
n b
uil
din
gs
.  

De
tai
led
 3D

 m
od
els
 

an
d l
an
ds
ca
pe
 an
d 

vis
ua
l im

pa
ct 

as
se
ss
me
nts
, in
clu
din
g 

lon
g d
ist
an
ce
 vi
ew
s 

fro
m 
the
 no
rth
 w
ill b

e 
pro

vid
ed
 as
 pa
rt o

f th
e 

Pla
nn
ing
 Ap

pli
ca
tio
n 

pro
ce
ss
.   

           

Page 285



Ap
pe
nd
ix 
1 –
 Su

mm
ary
 of
 R
ep
res
en
tat
ion
s 

the
 vi
su
al 
im
pa
ct 
a 

req
uir
em
en
t o
f a
ny
 

pla
nn
ing
 ap
pli
ca
tio
n f
or 

de
ve
lop
me
nt 
in 
thi
s a
rea

. 
 Ex

ist
ing

 Fe
atu

res
: 

KC
C 
is 
co
nc
ern

ed
 th
at 

de
sp
ite
 th
e a
gre

em
en
t th
at 

Ph
as
e 1
 w
ou
ld 
ma
int
ain
 

tre
e b

elt
s t
he
 Pl
an
nin
g 

Au
tho
rity
 al
low

ed
 th
e m

as
s 

de
str
uc
tio
n o
f e
xis
tin
g t
ree

 
be
lt a
lon
g t
he
 A9

44
 an
d h
as
 

ap
pro

ve
d a
 bo
ule
va
rd 

de
vo
id 
of 
tre
es
.  K

CC
 is
 

ex
tre
me
ly 
co
nc
ern

ed
 th
at 

the
 pl
an
nin
g s
ys
tem

 ca
n 

pe
rm
it t
he
 w
ho
les
ale
 

de
str
uc
tio
n o
f 8
0 t
ree

s i
n a
 

se
ns
itiv
e a
rea

 w
he
n t
he
 

Fra
me
wo
rk 
cle
arl
y o
pp
os
es
 

su
ch
 an
 ac
tio
n. 
Tre

es
 

rem
ov
ed
 by
 th
e c
on
str
uc
tio
n 

pro
ce
ss
 ne
ed
 to
 be
 

rep
lac
ed
 ne
arb

y. 
Th
is 
als
o 

sh
ou
ld 
ret
ros
pe
cti
ve
ly 
ap
ply
 

to 
Ph
as
e 1
. 

 Ph
as
ing

: 
KC
C 
is 
co
nc
ern

ed
 w
ith
 th
e 

pro
po
se
d p
ha
sin
g s
tra
teg
y. 

 Ex
ist
ing

 Fe
atu

res
: 

Th
e f
orm

ati
on
 of
 th
e 

ve
hic
ula
r a
cc
es
s t
o t
he
 

bu
sin
es
s p
ark
 of
f th
e 

A9
44
 du
al 
ca
rria

ge
wa
y 

res
ult
ed
 in
 th
e l
os
s o
f a
 

nu
mb
er 
of 
tre
es
 al
on
g 

the
 ro
ad
 fro

nta
ge
.  T

he
 

De
ve
lop
me
nt 

Fra
me
wo
rk 

ac
kn
ow
led
ge
s t
ha
t 

so
me
 tre

e r
em
ov
al 

wo
uld
 be
 re
qu
ire
d t
o 

for
m 
the
 m
ain
 ac
ce
ss
 

int
o t
he
 si
te.
 Th

is 
los
s 

of 
tre
es
 w
as
 cl
ea
rly
 se
t 

ou
t in
 th
e p
lan
nin
g 

ap
pli
ca
tio
n r
ep
ort
 

(11
16
53
) th

at 
wa
s 

ap
pro

ve
d a
t 

Co
mm

itte
e o
n 2
2n
d 

Ma
rch
 20
12
.   
Th
e l
os
s 

of 
tre
es
 w
ill b

e 
mi
tig
ate
d t
hro

ug
h t
he
 

pla
nti
ng
 of
 ne
w 
tre
es
 

ac
ros
s t
he
 si
te.
 

 Ph
as
ing

: 
Ab
erd

ee
n C

ity
 C
ou
nc
il 

ha
s n
o c
on
tro
l o
ve
r th

e 

Page 286



Ap
pe
nd
ix 
1 –
 Su

mm
ary
 of
 R
ep
res
en
tat
ion
s 

“T
he
re 

wi
ll b

e n
o 

de
fin

itiv
e s

eq
ue
nc
e t
o 

the
se
 ph

as
es
. P

ha
se
 

Th
ree

 co
uld

 w
ell
 be

 
de
ve
lop

ed
 ea

rlie
r t
ha
n 

Ph
as
e T

wo
. F
ur
the

rm
or
e 

the
 se

qu
en
ce
 of
 

de
ve
lop

me
nt 
wi
thi

n P
ha
se
 

Tw
o w

ill 
be
 de

ter
mi
ne
d b

y 
op

era
tor

 de
ma

nd
” 

Th
e p
rov
isio

n o
f P
ha
se
 Tw

o 
– t
he
 hu
b i
s i
mp
ort
an
t a
s i
t 

pro
vid
es
 fa
cili
tie
s a
ll P
ha
se
s 

rel
y u
po
n. 
De
lay
ing
 th
e 

de
ve
lop
me
nt 
of 
thi
s w

ou
ld 

no
t b
e s
ee
n i
n a
 go
od
 lig
ht.
 

KC
C 
req

ue
st 
tha
t th
is 

se
cti
on
 is
 re
-w
ord

ed
 to
 

en
su
re 
tha
t P
ha
se
 Tw

o i
s 

de
ve
lop
ed
 in
 co
nju
nc
tio
n 

wit
h o
the
r p
ha
se
s. 

Fu
rth
erm

ore
 

“T
he
 Ph

as
ing

 St
rat

eg
y 

all
ow

s f
or
 th

is,
 an

d d
oe
s 

no
t r
eq
uir

e i
nd

ivi
du

al 
Ph

as
es
 to

 be
 co

mp
let
ed
 

pr
ior

 to
 de

ve
lop

me
nt 

co
mm

en
cin

g o
n a

no
the

r 
Ph

as
e. 
Th

ro
ug

ho
ut 

the
 

de
ve
lop

me
nt 

of 
the

 si
te,
 

op
po

rtu
nit

ies
 m
us
t b
e 

ma
rke
t c
on
dit
ion
s 

wit
hin
 th
e d
ev
elo
pm
en
t 

ind
us
try
.  W

e w
ou
ld 

ex
pe
ct 
Ph
as
e 2
 to
 be
 

de
ve
lop
ed
 al
on
gs
ide
 or
 

be
for
e P

ha
se
 3 
bu
t w
e 

do
 no
t h
av
e p
ow
ers
 to
 

ins
ist
 up
on
 it.
  T
he
 

wh
ole
 si
te 
is 
all
oc
ate
d 

for
 de
ve
lop
me
nt 
wit
hin
 

the
 Ab

erd
ee
n L
oc
al 

De
ve
lop
me
nt 
Pla

n u
p 

to 
the
 pe
rio
d e
nd
ing
 

20
23
.  T

he
 ph
as
ing
 

sh
ow
n i
n t
he
 

ma
ste
rpl
an
 is
 

ind
ica
tiv
e, 
ho
we
ve
r, w

e 
ha
ve
 no
 re
as
on
 at
 th
is 

mo
me
nt 
in 
tim
e t
o 

ex
pe
ct 
oth
er 
tha
n w

ha
t 

is 
su
gg
es
ted
. 

          

Page 287



Ap
pe
nd
ix 
1 –
 Su

mm
ary
 of
 R
ep
res
en
tat
ion
s 

ap
pr
op

ria
tel
y m

an
ag
ed
 to

 
en
su
re 

the
y a

re 
no

t 
pr
eju

dic
ial
 to

 ov
era

ll 
gr
ow

th.
” 

KC
C 
ac
ce
pt 
tha
t P
ha
se
 3 

ca
n s
tar
t b
efo
re 
Ph
as
e 2
 is
 

co
mp
let
e, 
bu
t th
ey
 

wo
uld
 be
 co
nc
ern

ed
 if 

Ph
as
e 4
 st
art
ed
 be
for
e 

Ph
as
e 3
 w
as
 su
bs
tan
tia
lly 

co
mp
let
e. 
Ch
err
y p
ick
ing
 

pri
me
 lo
ca
tio
ns
 sh
ou
ld 
be
 

av
oid
ed
, a
nd
 go
od
 de
sig
n 

sh
ou
ld 
en
su
re 
tha
t a
ll ‘s

ite
s’ 

are
 de
ve
lop
ed
 to
 th
eir
 be
st 

ad
va
nta
ge
. 

De
ve
lop
me
nt 
ha
rd 
up
 to
 th
e 

an
cie
nt 
wo
od
lan
d i
s n
ot 

ac
ce
pta
ble
, a
nd
 

GS
N 
bu
ffe
rs 
sh
ou
ld 
be
 

inc
lud
ed
 in
 th
is 
se
ns
itiv
e 

are
a. 

 De
tai
led

 M
as
ter

pla
n: 

“A
 ke

y c
on

sid
era

tio
n w

ill 
be
 to

 en
su
re 

the
 

de
ve
lop

me
nt 

is 
no

t 
iso

lat
ed
 fr
om

 th
e e

xis
tin

g 
co
mm

un
ity
 of

 
Ki
ng

sw
ell
s.”

 
Th
e c
on
ce
pt 
of 
iso
lat
ion
 

                       De
tai
led

 M
as
ter

pla
n: 

Su
sta
ina
ble
 

co
mm

un
itie
s r
ely
 on
 

en
su
rin
g t
ha
t th
ere

 ar
e 

lin
ka
ge
s b
etw

ee
n 

ex
ist
ing
 se
ttle
me
nts
 

an
d n
ew
 

de
ve
lop
me
nts
.  W

e 

Page 288



Ap
pe
nd
ix 
1 –
 Su

mm
ary
 of
 R
ep
res
en
tat
ion
s 

sh
ou
ld 
no
t b
e i
nte
rpr
ete
d a
s 

‘in
teg
rat
ion
’. K

CC
 

ag
ree

 th
at:
 

“In
ste

ad
, th

e p
ro
po

sa
ls 

sh
ou

ld 
off

er 
a s

us
tai
na
ble

 
de
ve
lop

me
nt 

so
lut

ion
, 

inc
or
po

rat
ing

 in
to 

the
 

Pa
rk 

a n
um

be
r o

f k
ey
 

loc
al 
fac

ilit
ies

 w
hic

h a
re 

cu
rre

ntl
y l
ac
kin

g.”
 

Th
e d
ev
elo
pm
en
t m
us
t b
e 

su
sta
ina
ble
 on
 its
 ow

n a
nd
 

sh
ou
ld 
no
t re

ly 
on
 

Kin
gs
we
lls 
to 
pro

vid
e 

fac
iliti
es
 fo
r th

e 
de
ve
lop
me
nt 
wh
ere

 th
e u
se
 

wo
uld
 be
 

de
trim

en
tal
 to
 ex
ist
ing
 

us
ers
, a
nd
 pr
ov
isio

n o
f o
n-

sit
e f
ac
iliti
es
 w
ou
ld 
be
 

su
sta
ina
ble
. 

 4.B
.1.
3 C

on
tex

t: 
“B
oth

 Ph
as
es
 Tw

o a
nd

 
Th

ree
, w

he
re 

po
ss
ibl
e, 

res
pe
ct 
thi

s p
rin

cip
le.
 

Wi
thi

n ‘
the

 H
ub

’ a
rea

 of
 

Ph
as
e T

wo
 th

e a
im
 sh

ou
ld 

be
 to

 en
co
ur
ag
e l
ive

ly 
sp
ac
es
 at
 pe

de
str

ian
 le
ve
l 

an
d a

 m
ixt
ur
e o

f a
cti
vit
ies

 

wo
uld
 ex
pe
ct 
the
 tw
o 

to 
be
 m
utu
all
y 

su
pp
ort
ive
.  

                   4.B
.1.
3 C

on
tex

t: 
W
e a
gre

e t
ha
t th
e 

ph
ras
e ‘
wh
ere

 
po
ss
ibl
e’ 
sh
ou
ld 
be
 

rem
ov
ed
 fro

m 
the
 te
xt 

at 
Pa
rt 4

.B.
1.3
 

Co
nte
xt.
 

  

Page 289



Ap
pe
nd
ix 
1 –
 Su

mm
ary
 of
 R
ep
res
en
tat
ion
s 

an
d u

se
s w

hic
h w

ill 
en
co
ur
ag
e t
he
 H
ub

 to
 be

 
us
ed
 an

d u
se
ab
le 
ou

tw
ith

 
the

 op
era

tin
g h

ou
rs 

of 
the

 B
us
ine

ss
 Pa

rk”
 

Th
e u
se
 of
 th
e p
hra

se
 

‘wh
ere

 po
ss
ibl
e’ 
lea
ve
s t
he
 

de
ve
lop
er 
too
 m
uc
h 

lee
wa
y a
nd
 sh
ou
ld 
be
 

rem
ov
ed
 – 
thi
s i
s a
 ge
ne
ral
 

co
mm

en
t th
rou

gh
ou
t th
e 

do
cu
me
nt.
 

 4.B
.1.
5 S

pa
ce
s: 

Th
e c
on
ce
pt 
of 
gro

up
ing
 

bu
ild
ing
s i
n c
los
ely
 sp
ac
ed
 

clu
mp
s g
oe
s a
ga
ins
t 

the
 pr
inc
ipl
e o
f le
ss
en
ing
 

the
 vi
su
al 
im
pa
ct 
of 
the
 

bu
ild
ing
s b
y b
uil
din
g 

ga
ble
 on
 N
ort
h /
 So

uth
 

ori
en
tat
ion
s. 
Se
e a
lso
 Pa

rt 
4B
. In
dic
ati
ve
 M
as
ter
pla
n. 

 Gr
ee
n S

pa
ce
 N
etw

or
k: 

KC
C 
is 
ex
tre
me
ly 

co
nc
ern

ed
 ab
ou
t th
e U

-tu
rn 

tha
t h
as
 ta
ke
n p
lac
e s
inc
e 

the
y d
isc
us
se
d t
he
 m
ain
 

iss
ue
s w

ith
 th
e d
ev
elo
pm
en
t 

an
d a
gre

em
en
t o
n 

             4.B
.1.
5 S

pa
ce
s: 

Th
is 
iss
ue
 ha
s a
lre
ad
y 

be
en
 ad
dre

ss
ed
 

thr
ou
gh
 th
e r
es
po
ns
e 

to 
pa
rt 4

.B 
Ind
ica
tiv
e 

Ma
ste
rpl
an
 co
mm

en
ts.
 

     Gr
ee
n S

pa
ce
 

Ne
tw
or
k: 

Th
is 
iss
ue
 ha
s a
lre
ad
y 

be
en
 ad
dre

ss
ed
 

thr
ou
gh
 th
e r
es
po
ns
e 

to 
the
 Su

mm
ary
 

Do
cu
me
nt 
an
d P

art
 

Page 290



Ap
pe
nd
ix 
1 –
 Su

mm
ary
 of
 R
ep
res
en
tat
ion
s 

ac
ce
pta
ble
 m
itig
ati
ng
 

str
ate
gie
s w

as
 re
ac
he
d. 
Th
e 

co
mm

un
ity
 re
qu
ire
me
nt 
tha
t 

the
 de
ve
lop
me
nt 
sh
ou
ld 

ha
ve
 m
ini
ma
l v
isu
al 
im
pa
ct 

wh
en
 vi
ew
ed
 fro

m 
the
 no
rth
 

ha
s b
ee
n r
em
ov
ed
 fro

m 
the
 

ma
ste
rpl
an
. T
he
 ru
ral
 

se
ttin
g w

ill b
e t
ota
lly 
los
t if
 

bu
ild
ing
s a
re 
no
t s
cre
en
ed
 

fro
m 
vie
w.
 Th

e s
ett
ing
 of
 th
e 

co
ns
um
pti
on
 dy
ke
 w
ill b

e 
co
mp
rom

ise
d i
f b
uil
din
gs
 

ov
erl
oo
k t
he
 dy
ke
 – 
ev
en
 

fro
m 
a d
ist
an
ce
 of
 12
0-

20
0m
. 

 Co
mm

un
ity
 is
su
es
 ne
ed
 to
 

be
 ad
dre

ss
ed
 an
d t
he
 

ma
ste
rpl
an
 ne
ed
s t
o i
de
nti
fy 

a s
tra
teg
y f
or 
sc
ree

nin
g 

bu
ild
ing
s f
rom

 vi
ew
 fro

m 
the
 

no
rth
. 

Th
e M

as
ter
pla
n s
ho
uld
 

inc
lud
e a
 re
qu
ire
me
nt 
tha
t a
 

de
tai
led
 3D

 m
od
el 
sh
ow
ing
 

the
 vi
su
al 
im
pa
ct 
of 

de
ve
lop
me
nt 
in 
thi
s a
rea

 is
 

pro
vid
ed
 w
ith
 pl
an
nin
g 

ap
pli
ca
tio
n. 

 

4.B
 In
dic
ati
ve
 

Ma
ste
rpl
an
 co
mm

en
ts.
 

                             

Page 291



Ap
pe
nd
ix 
1 –
 Su

mm
ary
 of
 R
ep
res
en
tat
ion
s 

Bu
ild
ing

 H
eig

hts
: 

“B
uil
din

gs
 w
ith

in 
the

 
no

rth
ern

 ex
ten

t o
f th

e 
No

rth
ern

 Zo
ne
 w
ill 
be
 

res
tri
cte

d t
o t
wo

 st
or
ey
s, 

wh
ere

as
 th

e s
ou

the
rn
 

ex
ten

t o
f th

is 
Zo

ne
 m
ay
 

ac
co
mm

od
ate

 sl
igh

tly
 

tal
ler

 bu
ild
ing

s. 
Wi

th 
the

 
ex
ce
pti

on
 of

 th
e 

La
nd

ma
rk 

Bu
ild
ing

s 
wi
thi

n t
he
 H
ub

, b
uil
din

gs
 

in 
the

 C
en
tra

l Z
on

e w
ill 

ge
ne
ral

ly 
be
 th

ree
 st
or
ey
. 

Wh
ere

 to
po

gr
ap
hy
 al
low

s, 
ad
dit

ion
al 
top

 flo
or
s o

f 
bu

ild
ing

s c
ou

ld 
be
 tr
ea
ted

 
as
 ‘p
en
tho

us
es
’ w

hic
h 

co
uld

 be
 ac

hie
ve
d b

y 
rec

es
se
d w

all
s a

nd
 

lig
htw

eig
ht 

ma
ter

ial
s. 

As
 a 
ge
ne
ral

 pr
inc

ipl
e a

ll 
bu

ild
ing

s m
us
t 

de
mo

ns
tra

te 
tha

t th
ey
 ar

e 
sy
mp

ath
eti
c t
o s

ett
ing

 
an
d r

ela
te 
to 

the
 sc

ale
 of

 
su
rro

un
din

g l
an
ds
ca
pe
 

fea
tur

es
.” 

KC
C 
req

ue
st 
tha
t a
ll 

bu
ild
ing
 in
clu
din
g t
he
 

“La
nd
ma
rk 
Bu
ild
ing
s” 

 Bu
ild
ing

 H
eig

hts
: 

Th
e m

as
ter
pla
n 

alr
ea
dy
 st
ate
s t
ha
t a
s a
 

ge
ne
ral
 ru
le 
all
 

bu
ild
ing
s m

us
t 

de
mo
ns
tra
te 
tha
t th
ey
 

are
 sy
mp
ath
eti
c t
o 

se
ttin
g a
nd
 re
lat
e t
o 

the
 sc
ale
 of
 

su
rro
un
din
g l
an
ds
ca
pe
 

fea
tur
es
.  T

his
 is
 

cle
arl
y s
tat
ed
 in
 th
e 

‘Bu
ild
ing
 H
eig
hts
’ 

se
cti
on
. 

KC
C’s

 st
ate
me
nt 

su
gg
es
tin
g t
ha
t th
e 

cu
rre
nt 
wo
rdi
ng
 of
 th
e 

ma
ste
rpl
an
 gi
ve
s t
he
 

de
ve
lop
er 
a “
fre
eh
an
d” 

to 
do
 an
yth
ing
 is
 

co
ntr
ad
ict
ory
.  T

he
 

ve
ry 
fac
t th
at 
the
 

ma
ste
rpl
an
 st
ate
s 

wh
ere

 la
nd
ma
rk 

bu
ild
ing
s s
ho
uld
 be
 

loc
ate
d p
rov
ide
s c
lar
ity
 

on
 th
e s
itin
g o
f s
uc
h 

bu
ild
ing
s. 

Th
e r
eq
ue
st 
for
 a 

de
tai
led
 3D

 m
od
el 
ha
s 

Page 292



Ap
pe
nd
ix 
1 –
 Su

mm
ary
 of
 R
ep
res
en
tat
ion
s 

sh
ou
ld 
be
 sy
mp
ath
eti
c t
o 

se
ttin
g a
nd
 re
lat
e t
o t
he
 

sc
ale
 of
 su
rro
un
din
g 

lan
ds
ca
pe
 fe
atu
res
.  

“T
he
 hu

b h
as
 al
rea

dy
 

be
en
 id
en
tifi

ed
 as

 a 
su
ita
ble

 lo
ca
tio

n f
or
 

‘la
nd

ma
rk 

bu
ild
ing

s’.
 In
 

thi
s r

eg
ard

 a 
zo
ne
 ha

s 
be
en
 id
en
tifi

ed
 w
ith

in 
the

 
Hu

b w
he
re 

bu
ild
ing

s o
f 

so
me

 pr
om

ine
nc
e c

ou
ld 

be
 lo
ca
ted

.  T
he
se
 fe
atu

re 
bu

ild
ing

s w
ill 
ac
t a
s f
oc
al 

po
int

s f
or
 th

e 
de
ve
lop

me
nt.

” T
he
 

de
ve
lop
er 
ha
s o
bv
iou
sly
 

so
me
 id
ea
s a
bo
ut 
thi
s a
nd
 

the
se
 ha
ve
 no
t b
ee
n s
ha
red

 
wit
h t
he
 co
mm

un
ity
. K
CC

 
ob
jec
t to
 th
e a
bo
ve
 w
ord

ing
 

as
 it 
giv
es
 th
e d
ev
elo
pe
r a
 

fre
eh
an
d t
o d
o a
ny
thi
ng
. 

 Th
e m

as
ter
pla
n n
ee
ds
 to
 

off
er 
the
 co
mm

un
ity
 so
me
 

sa
feg
ua
rds
 ov
er 
wh
at 
is 

de
ve
lop
ed
. T
he
 M
as
ter
pla
n 

sh
ou
ld 
inc
lud
e a
 

req
uir
em
en
t th
at 
a d
eta
ile
d 

3D
 m
od
el 
sh
ow
ing
 th
e 

alr
ea
dy
 be
en
 

ad
dre

ss
ed
 th
rou

gh
 th
e 

res
po
ns
e t
o P

art
 4.
B 

Ind
ica
tiv
e M

as
ter
pla
n 

co
mm

en
ts.
  

                          

Page 293



Ap
pe
nd
ix 
1 –
 Su

mm
ary
 of
 R
ep
res
en
tat
ion
s 

vis
ua
l im

pa
ct 
of 

de
ve
lop
me
nt 
in 
thi
s a
rea

 is
 

pro
vid
ed
 w
ith
 pl
an
nin
g 

ap
pli
ca
tio
n. 

 Th
e ‘
fea

tur
e z

on
e’:
 

KC
C 
ha
s c
on
ce
rns
 ab
ou
t 

the
 im
pa
ct 
pro

mi
ne
nt 

bu
ild
ing
s i
n t
he
 fe
atu
re 
zo
ne
 

wil
l h
av
e o
n t
he
 ad
jac
en
t 

ho
me
s. 
Th
e a
rea

 is
 hi
gh
er 

tha
n t
he
 ho
me
s a
nd
 

dis
tan
ce
 is
 re
qu
ire
d t
o a
vo
id 

im
po
sin
g o
n t
he
 ne
arb

y 
ho
me
s. 
Th
e b
uil
din
gs
 ca
n 

be
 pr
om
ine
nt 
fro
m 
wit
hin
 

the
 de
ve
lop
me
nt,
 bu
t s
ho
uld
 

no
t b
e p
rom

ine
nt 
on
 th
e 

lan
ds
ca
pe
. If
 th
is 
is 
no
t 

po
ss
ibl
e t
he
n t
he
 H
ub
 co
uld
 

be
 m
ov
ed
 to
 a 
mo
re 

su
ita
ble
 lo
ca
tio
n w

ith
in 
the
 

de
ve
lop
me
nt 
wh
ere

 m
ore

 
pro

mi
ne
nt 
bu
ild
ing
s c
an
 be
 

ac
co
mm

od
ate
d. 

 Th
e s
ign
ific
an
t c
ha
ng
e 

be
tw
ee
n t
he
 Fr
am
ew
ork
 

an
d t
he
 M
as
ter
pla
n i
s n
ot 

ac
ce
pta
ble
 to
 th
e 

co
mm

un
ity
 an
d f
urt
he
r 

     Th
e ‘
fea

tur
e z

on
e’:
 

W
e a
gre

e t
ha
t 

bu
ild
ing
s s
ho
uld
 be
 

int
eg
rat
ed
 w
ith
in 
the
 

lan
ds
ca
pe
, p
art
icu
lar
ly 

wh
en
 vi
ew
ed
 fro

m 
ou
tw
ith
 th
e s
ite
.  W

e 
wo
uld
 no
t re

co
mm

en
d 

the
 lo
ca
tio
n o
f th
e H

ub
 

be
ing
 m
ov
ed
 as
 it’
s 

cu
rre
nt 
po
sit
ion
 is
 at
 

the
 en
d o
f th
e 

bo
ule
va
rd 
en
tra
nc
e, 

thi
s i
s t
he
 m
os
t lo
gic
al 

po
sit
ion
 to
 pr
ov
ide
 a 

foc
al 
po
int
 be
tw
ee
n t
he
 

bu
sin
es
s p
ark
 an
d 

Kin
gs
we
lls.
 As

 st
ate
d 

in 
the
 re
sp
on
se
 to
 th
e 

Bu
ild
ing
 H
eig
hts
 

co
mm

en
ts,
 th
e 

ma
ste
rpl
an
 al
rea

dy
 

sta
tes
 th
at 
as
 a 

ge
ne
ral
 ru
le 
all
 

bu
ild
ing
s m

us
t 

de
mo
ns
tra
te 
tha
t th
ey
 

Page 294



Ap
pe
nd
ix 
1 –
 Su

mm
ary
 of
 R
ep
res
en
tat
ion
s 

co
ns
ult
ati
on
 is
 re
qu
ire
d 

be
for
e t
he
 M
as
ter
pla
n c
an
 

be
 ag
ree

d. 
 Ac

ce
ss
: 

“It
 re

co
gn

ise
d t

ha
t a
 

se
co
nd

 ac
ce
ss
 in
to 

the
 

Pr
im
e F

ou
r s

ite
 w
ill 

req
uir

e t
o b

e c
on

sid
ere

d 
as
 th

e d
ev
elo

pm
en
t 

pr
og

res
se
s. 
Th

is 
ac
ce
ss
 

co
uld

 be
 ta
ke
n f

ro
m 
the

 
ea
st 
(as

 in
dic

ate
d 

ad
jac

en
t), 

or
 fr
om

 th
e 

so
uth

 or
 w
es
t w

hic
h 

wo
uld

 be
 in
ve
sti
ga
ted

 vi
a 

a s
ep
ara

te 
ma

ste
rp
lan

nin
g e

xe
rci

se
 

for
 Ph

as
e F

ou
r. A

 
Tr
an
sp
or
t A

ss
es
sm

en
t 

wi
ll b

e u
nd

ert
ak
en
, a
nd

 
wi
ll b

e a
ss
es
se
d b

y 
Ab

erd
ee
n C

ity
 C
ou

nc
il a

s 
Ro

ad
s A

uth
or
ity
 vi
a 

su
bs
eq
ue
nt 

pla
nn
ing

 
ap
pli
ca
tio

ns
.” 
 

KC
C 
ca
n s
ee
 th
e a
dv
an
tag
e 

of 
ha
vin
g a
n a
cc
es
s t
o t
he
 

Hu
b f
rom

 th
e H

om
e F

arm
 

tra
ck
 as
 sh
ow
n, 
bu
t w
ou
ld 

ha
ve
 se
rio
us
 co
nc
ern

s i
f 

are
 sy
mp
ath
eti
c t
o 

se
ttin
g a
nd
 re
lat
e t
o 

the
 sc
ale
 of
 

su
rro
un
din
g l
an
ds
ca
pe
 

fea
tur
es
. 

Th
e m

as
ter
pla
n h
as
 

rig
htf
ull
y d
ev
elo
pe
d 

an
d e
vo
lve
d a
s 

pla
nn
ing
 de
cis
ion
s 

ha
ve
 be
en
 m
ad
e a
nd
 

as
 de
ve
lop
me
nt 
ha
s 

tak
en
 pl
ac
e. 
 Th

e 
co
mm

un
ity
 ha
s b
ee
n 

ap
pro

pri
ate
ly 
co
ns
ult
ed
 

at 
all
 of
 th
es
e s
tag
es
. 

  Ac
ce
ss
: 

As
 al
rea

dy
 st
ate
d i
n 

the
 m
as
tep
rla
n t
ex
t 

un
de
r th

e ‘
Ac
ce
ss
’ 

se
cti
on
, th
e s
ec
on
d 

ac
ce
ss
 w
ou
ld 
be
 

co
ns
ide
red

 as
 th
e 

de
ve
lop
me
nt 

pro
gre

ss
es
 an
d w

ou
ld 

be
 fu
lly 
inv
es
tig
ate
d 

thr
ou
gh
 a 
se
pa
rat
e 

Ma
ste
rpl
an
nin
g 

ex
erc
ise
 an
d T

ran
sp
ort
  

As
se
ss
me
nt.
 

Page 295



Ap
pe
nd
ix 
1 –
 Su

mm
ary
 of
 R
ep
res
en
tat
ion
s 

thi
s a
cc
es
s c
ou
ld 
be
 us
ed
 

by
 th
e w

ide
r d
ev
elo
pm
en
t. 

Ac
ce
ss
 to
 Ph

as
e 3
 an
d 4
 

sh
ou
ld 
be
 fro

m 
the
 A9

44
 or
 

to 
the
 w
es
t. T

he
 m
as
ter
pla
n 

sh
ou
ld 
ide
nti
fy 
tha
t 

ad
dit
ion
al 
ac
ce
ss
 co
uld
 be
 

pro
vid
ed
 an
d w

ill b
e s
ub
jec
t 

to 
a s
ep
ara

te 
ma
ste
rpl
an
nin
g e
xe
rci
se
 

an
d T

ran
sp
ort
 As

se
ss
me
nt 

wh
en
 ne
ce
ss
ary
. T
he
 

cu
rre
nt 
wo
rdi
ng
 su
gg
es
ts 

tha
t th
e H

om
e F

arm
 ac
ce
ss
 

ha
s b
ee
n s
ub
jec
t to
 a 

ma
ste
rpl
an
 an
d h
as
 so
me
 

lev
el 
of 
ac
ce
pta
nc
e –
 th
is 

ha
s n
ot 
be
en
 di
sc
us
se
d w

ith
 

the
 co
mm

un
ity
. 

 4B
.3.
4 P

ub
lic
 Tr

an
sp
or
t 

Co
nn

ec
tio

ns
: 

Th
e m

as
ter
pla
n t
ak
e n
o 

ac
co
un
t o
f th
e r
ec
en
t 

ch
an
ge
s t
o t
he
 Pa

rk 
an
d 

Rid
e b
us
 se
rvi
ce
 w
hic
h n
o 

lon
ge
r c
on
ne
cts
 Ki
ng
sw
ell
s 

to 
Ab
erd

ee
n a
s t
he
 se
rvi
ce
 

is 
ter
mi
na
ted
 at
 AR

I. T
he
 

ne
ed
 to
 ch
an
ge
 bu
s i
s a
 

ma
jor
 di
sin
ce
nti
ve
 to
 us
ing
 

                    4B
.3.
4 P

ub
lic
 

Tr
an
sp
or
t 

Co
nn

ec
tio

ns
: 

W
e a
gre

e t
ha
t it
 w
ou
ld 

be
 ap
pro

pri
ate
 to
 

up
da
te 
the
 m
as
tep
lan
 

to 
ref
lec
t th
e r
ec
en
t 

ch
an
ge
s i
n b
us
 

se
rvi
ce
s w

hic
h h
av
e 

be
en
 im
ple
me
nte
d b
y 

Fir
st 
Bu
s. 
 W
e w

ill b
e 

Page 296



Ap
pe
nd
ix 
1 –
 Su

mm
ary
 of
 R
ep
res
en
tat
ion
s 

the
 P&

R 
se
rvi
ce
. 

 4.B
.1.
6 L

an
ds
ca
pe
 

Tr
ea
tm
en
ts:
 

Th
e l
ist
 of
 tre

e t
yp
es
 sh
ou
ld 

inc
lud
e s
om
e e
ve
rgr
ee
n 

typ
es
. It
 is
 al
so
 no
ted
 th
at 

bir
ch
 tre

es
 at
 D
ob
bie
s h
av
e 

no
t w
ork
ed
 w
ell
 w
ith
 m
an
y 

lea
fle
ss
 tre

es
. 

 Co
nc
lus

ion
: 

Th
e p
rop

os
ed
 M
as
ter
pla
n 

rep
res
en
ts 
a s
ign
ific
an
t 

de
via
tio
n f
rom

 th
e 

Fra
me
wo
rk 
do
cu
me
nt.
 Th

e 
co
mm

un
ity
 ha
s n
ot 
be
en
 

inv
olv
ed
 in
 ag
ree

ing
 th
e 

de
via
tio
ns
 an
d t
he
ir v
iew

s 
ha
ve
 be
en
 su
bs
tan
tia
lly 

rem
ov
ed
 fro

m 
the
 pr
op
os
ed
 

Ma
ste
rpl
an
. T
his
 is
 

un
ac
ce
pta
ble
, a
nd
 th
e 

Ma
ste
rpl
an
 sh
ou
ld 
no
t 

be
 ap
pro

ve
d u
nti
l it
 

ad
dre

ss
es
 co
mm

un
ity
 

co
nc
ern

s e
xp
res
se
d 

thr
ou
gh
ou
t th
is 
do
cu
me
nt 

wh
eth
er 
the
y a
re 
hig
hli
gh
ted
 

or 
no
t. 

loo
kin
g f
or 

op
po
rtu
nit
ies
 to
 en
su
re 

tha
t th
ere

 is
 a 
dir
ec
t 

se
rvi
ce
 to
/fro

m 
Kin

gs
we
lls 
Pa
rk 
an
d 

Rid
e t
o t
he
 C
ity
 

Ce
ntr
e. 
 Th

is 
ma
y o
nly
 

be
 ac
hie
va
ble
 on
ce
 al
l 

de
ve
lop
me
nt 
is 
in 

pla
ce
 in
 or
de
r to

 
ac
hie
ve
 cr
itic
al 
ma
ss
. 

 4.B
.1.
6 L

an
ds
ca
pe
 

Tr
ea
tm
en
ts:
 

Th
e e
xa
mp
le 
sp
ec
ies
 

list
 co
nta
ine
d w

ith
in 
the
 

ma
ste
rpl
an
 m
ak
es
 

ref
ere

nc
e t
o ‘
Sc
ots
 

Pin
e’ 
wh
ich
 is
 an
 

ev
erg

ree
n t
ree

. 
 Co

nc
lus

ion
: 

As
 pr
ev
iou
sly
 st
ate
d i
n 

the
 re
sp
on
se
 to
 th
e 

Fe
atu
re 
Zo
ne
 

co
mm

en
ts,
 th
e 

ma
ste
rpl
an
 ha
s 

rig
htf
ull
y d
ev
elo
pe
d 

an
d e
vo
lve
d a
s 

pla
nn
ing
 de
cis
ion
s 

ha
ve
 be
en
 m
ad
e a
nd
 

Page 297



Ap
pe
nd
ix 
1 –
 Su

mm
ary
 of
 R
ep
res
en
tat
ion
s 

as
 de
ve
lop
me
nt 
ha
s 

tak
en
 pl
ac
e. 
 Th

e 
co
mm

un
ity
 ha
s b
ee
n 

ap
pro

pri
ate
ly 
co
ns
ult
ed
 

at 
all
 of
 th
es
e s
tag
es
.  

Th
is 
rou

nd
 of
 

co
ns
ult
ati
on
 w
hic
h w

e 
are

 cu
rre
ntl
y 

res
po
nd
ing
 to
 is
 

an
oth
er 
ex
am
ple
 of
 

co
ns
ult
ati
on
.  T

he
 

vie
ws
 of
 al
l 

res
po
nd
en
ts 
are

 ta
ke
n 

int
o a
cc
ou
nt,
 

res
po
nd
ed
 to
 an
d 

inf
lue
nc
e t
he
 fin
al 

jud
gm
en
ts 
tha
t th
e 

Co
un
cil 
mu
st 
ma
ke
.  

Ge
ne
ral
 C
om
me
nts
  Tra

ns
po
rt 

Sc
otl
an
d 

Ph
as
ing
 sh
ou
ld 
tak
e i
nto
 

ac
co
un
t d
eli
ve
ry 
tim
es
ca
les
 

of 
inf
ras
tru
ctu
re 
inc
lud
ing
 

the
 Ab

erd
ee
n W

es
ter
n 

Pe
rip
he
ral
 R
ou
te 
(A
WP

R)
 

an
d o
the
r c
riti
ca
l 

inf
ras
tru
ctu
re 
su
ch
 as
 th
e 

Th
ird
 D
on
 C
ros
sin
g. 

 A s
ign
ific
an
t a
mo
un
t o
f 

de
ve
lop
me
nt 
ha
s b
ee
n 

co
ns
en
ted
 re
ce
ntl
y a
nd
 a 

nu
mb
er 
of 
pre

-ap
pli
ca
tio
n 

It i
s a
gre

ed
 th
at 

ph
as
ing
 sh
ou
ld 
tak
e 

de
live

ry 
tim
es
ca
les
 of
 

inf
ras
tru
ctu
re 
int
o 

ac
co
un
t a
nd
 th
is 

sh
ou
ld 
be
 re
fle
cte
d i
n 

all
 do
cu
me
nta
tio
n a
s i
t 

is 
de
ve
lop
ed
 or
 

up
da
ted
. 

Th
e a
pp
rop

ria
te 
lev
el 

of 
an
aly
sis
 

de
mo
ns
tra
tin
g t
he
 

like
ly 
im
pa
cts
 on
 th
e 

No
 

am
en
dm
en
ts 

req
uir
ed
. 

N/
A 

Page 298



Ap
pe
nd
ix 
1 –
 Su

mm
ary
 of
 R
ep
res
en
tat
ion
s 

dis
cu
ss
ion
s a
re 
on
go
ing
. 

Th
is 
de
ve
lop
me
nt 
wil
l 

fur
the
r im

pa
ct 
on
 an
 al
rea

dy
 

sig
nif
ica
ntl
y c
on
str
ain
ed
 

tru
nk
 ro
ad
 ne
tw
ork
. T
his
 

iss
ue
 ha
s b
ee
n d
isc
us
se
d a
t 

len
gth
 at
 a 
nu
mb
er 
of 

me
eti
ng
s b
etw

ee
n 

Tra
ns
po
rt S

co
tla
nd
 an
d t
he
 

Co
un
cil 
in 
the
 la
st 
few

 
mo
nth
s. 
Go
ing
 fo
rw
ard

 an
 

an
aly
tic
al 
ap
pro

ac
h i
s 

ne
ed
ed
 to
 de
ter
mi
ne
 w
ha
t 

lev
el 
of 
de
ve
lop
me
nt 
ca
n b
e 

ac
co
mm

od
ate
d i
n a
dv
an
ce
 

of 
the
 AW

PR
, a
nd
 ot
he
r 

cri
tic
al 
tra
ns
po
rt 

inf
ras
tru
ctu
re,
 be
for
e t
he
 

cu
rre
nt 
tru
nk
 ro
ad
 ne
tw
ork
 

pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 be
co
me
s 

un
ac
ce
pta
ble
. G
ive
n t
he
 

pre
ss
ure

s a
re 
no
t li
mi
ted
 to
 

the
 tru

nk
 ro
ad
, 

co
ns
ide
rat
ion
 of
 th
e 

pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 of
 th
e l
oc
al 

roa
d n
etw

ork
 w
ill a

lso
 be
 

im
po
rta
nt.
 Th

e o
utc
om
e o
f 

thi
s e
xe
rci
se
 sh
ou
ld 
be
 

ref
lec
ted
 in
 th
e p
lan
nin
g 

bri
efs
, d
ev
elo
pm
en
t 

fra
me
wo
rks
 an
d 

ag
ree

d e
xte
nt 
of 
the
 

loc
al 
roa

d w
hic
h i
s 

im
pa
cte
d m

us
t b
e 

pro
vid
ed
 in
 ea
ch
 

do
cu
me
nt,
 as
 ag
ree

d 
thr
ou
gh
 di
sc
us
sio
n 

wit
h T

ran
sp
ort
 

Sc
otl
an
d a
nd
 

Ab
erd

ee
n C

ity
 C
ou
nc
il, 

wit
h r
efe
ren

ce
 an
d 

co
mm

itm
en
t to
 th
e 

ap
pro

pri
ate
 St
rat
eg
ic 

Tra
ns
po
rt F

un
d (
ST
F) 

co
ntr
ibu
tio
n w

he
re 

the
re 
is 
a n
ee
d t
o 

mi
tig
ate
 cu
mu
lat
ive
 

im
pa
ct 
on
 th
e 

reg
ion
all
y s
tra
teg
ic 

roa
d n
etw

ork
. 

            

Page 299



Ap
pe
nd
ix 
1 –
 Su

mm
ary
 of
 R
ep
res
en
tat
ion
s 

ma
ste
rpl
an
s. 
W
e w

ou
ld 

we
lco
me
 an
 ea
rly
 m
ee
tin
g 

on
 th
is 
ma
tte
r. 

 Th
e d
eta
il c
on
tai
ne
d w

ith
in 

so
me
 of
 th
e d
oc
um
en
ts 
is 

ou
t o
f d
ate
 an
d s
om
e h
av
e 

be
en
 su
pe
rse
de
d b
y 

pla
nn
ing
 co
ns
en
ts 
or 

su
bs
eq
ue
nt 
tra
ns
po
rt 

stu
die
s. 
It i
s a
pp
rec
iat
ed
 

tha
t th
es
e d
oc
um
en
ts 
wil
l 

be
co
me
 da
ted
 re
lat
ive
ly 

qu
ick
ly,
 ho
we
ve
r fo

r s
ite
s 

wit
h c
on
se
nts
, th
ey
 sh
ou
ld 

be
 up
da
ted
 to
 re
fle
ct 
the
 

tra
ns
po
rta
tio
n r
eq
uir
em
en
ts 

wit
hin
 th
e c
on
dit
ion
s. 
Fo
r 

ex
am
ple
 D
yc
e D

riv
e, 

Sto
ne
yw
oo
d, 
Da
vid
so
n’s
 

Mi
ll, 
Mu
rca
r (p

art
 th
ere

of)
 

an
d R

ob
ert
 G
ord

on
 

Un
ive
rsi
ty 
ha
ve
 al
l b
ee
n 

co
ns
en
ted
. 

 Re
fer
en
ce
 to
 th
e S

tru
ctu
re 

Pla
n S

up
ple
me
nta
ry 

Gu
ida
nc
e o
n t
he
 St
rat
eg
ic 

Tra
ns
po
rt F

un
d 

(S
TF
) is
 w
elc
om
ed
. 

Ho
we
ve
r, a

 re
vie
w 
sh
ou
ld 

    Th
e a
cti
on
 pl
an
 sh
ou
ld 

be
 up
da
ted
 re
gu
lar
ly 

an
d w

he
re 

do
cu
me
nta
tio
n i
s 

rev
isit
ed
, o
r th

e n
ex
t 

lev
el 
of 
de
tai
l is
 

req
uir
ed
 eg
 vi
a 

pla
nn
ing
 ap
pli
ca
tio
ns
 

ari
sin
g f
rom

 
Ma
ste
rpl
an
s, 
the
n t
he
 

mo
st 
up
 to
 da
te 

po
sit
ion
 sh
ou
ld 
be
 

ref
lec
ted
. 

        All
 do
cu
me
nta
tio
n i
s 

req
uir
ed
 to
 re
fle
ct 
the
 

ST
F p

oli
cy
. W

he
re 
an
 

ex
em
pti
on
 or
 re
du
cti
on
 

is 
req

ue
ste
d f
or 

co
ns
ide
rat
ion
 a 

Page 300



Ap
pe
nd
ix 
1 –
 Su

mm
ary
 of
 R
ep
res
en
tat
ion
s 

be
 un
de
rta
ke
n t
o e
ns
ure

 
tha
t th
e S

TF
 is
 lis
ted
 as
 a 

req
uir
em
en
t in
 al
l 

Su
pp
lem

en
tar
y G

uid
an
ce
 

do
cu
me
nts
 w
he
re 
the
 ST

F 
is 
to 
be
 ap
pli
ed
. T
his
 is
 of
 

pa
rtic
ula
r im

po
rta
nc
e g
ive
n 

the
se
 do
cu
me
nts
 ar
e t
o b
e 

sta
tut
ory
.  I
t is
 cr
itic
al 
tha
t 

the
 ST

F i
s a
pp
lie
d 

tra
ns
pa
ren

tly
 an
d 

co
ns
ist
en
tly
. T
he
 co
nc
ern

 is
 

tha
t s
ho
uld
 th
e G

uid
an
ce
 

no
t b
e a
pp
lie
d a
nd
 

co
ntr
ibu
tio
ns
 ar
e w

aiv
ed
 on
 

a c
as
e b
y c
as
e b
as
is,
 th
is 

ris
ks
 th
e e
me
rge

nc
e o
f a
 

fun
din
g g
ap
. T
his
 in
 tu
rn 

ha
s c
on
se
qu
en
ce
s f
or 

de
live

ry 
of 
the
 id
en
tifi
ed
 

inf
ras
tru
ctu
re 
co
nta
ine
d 

wit
hin
 th
e S

TF
, in
clu
din
g 

tho
se
 re
lat
ing
 to
 th
e t
run

k 
roa

d. 
Sh
ou
ld 
thi
s s
itu
ati
on
 

ari
se
 Tr
an
sp
ort
 Sc

otl
an
d w

ill 
ne
ed
 to
 re
vis
it t
he
 ap
pro

ac
h 

to 
ad
dre

ss
ing
 th
e 

tra
ns
po
rta
tio
n i
mp
ac
ts 
of 

de
ve
lop
me
nt.
 

W
he
re 
ful
l S
TF
 

co
ntr
ibu
tio
ns
 ar
e n
ot 

pro
ce
ss
 is
 no
w 
in 

pla
ce
, w
hic
h i
nc
lud
es
 

Tra
ns
po
rt S

co
tla
nd
, to
 

co
lle
cti
ve
ly 
ag
ree

 or
 

oth
erw

ise
 w
he
re 

ex
em
pti
on
 or
 re
du
cti
on
 

is 
ap
pro

pri
ate
. A
lso
, 

the
 po
licy

 id
en
tifi
es
 

pro
ce
ss
es
 fo
r re

po
rtin
g 

de
ve
lop
me
nt 
pro

gre
ss
 

an
d t
he
 ap
pli
ca
tio
n o
f 

thi
s p
oli
cy
 an
d t
he
 

ou
tco
me
s. 

 

Page 301



Ap
pe
nd
ix 
1 –
 Su

mm
ary
 of
 R
ep
res
en
tat
ion
s 

so
ug
ht,
 Tr
an
sp
ort
 Sc

otl
an
d 

ma
y t
ak
e t
he
 vi
ew
 th
at 
it 

wo
uld
 be
 m
ore

 ap
pro

pri
ate
 

to 
se
ek
 no
 ne
t d
etr
im
en
t 

mi
tig
ati
on
 to
 th
e t
run

k r
oa
d 

for
 ne
w 
all
oc
ati
on
s t
ha
t a
re 

to 
be
 pr
om
ote
d i
n a
dv
an
ce
 

of 
the
 AW

PR
. It
 is
 lik
ely
 th
at 

the
 tra

ns
po
rt r
eq
uir
em
en
ts 

for
 th
e a
llo
ca
tio
ns
 w
ou
ld 

ch
an
ge
 an
d w

ou
ld 
ne
ed
 to
 

be
 re
fle
cte
d i
n t
he
 Pl
an
nin
g 

Br
ief
s, 
De
ve
lop
me
nt 

Fra
me
wo
rks
 an
d 

Ma
ste
rpl
an
s. 

Ge
ne
ral
 C
om
me
nts
 
Sp
ort
 Sc

otl
an
d 

Inc
lud
e t
he
 fo
llo
win

g  
‘ca
tch
 

all
’ c
om
me
nts
: 

 Th
e P

itc
he
s S

tra
teg
y a
nd
 

Le
isu
re 
As
se
t re

vie
w 
tha
t is
 

cu
rre
ntl
y b
ein
g u
nd
ert
ak
en
 

sh
ou
ld 
be
 re
fer
en
ce
d. 

 Th
e r
eq
uir
em
en
ts 
of 
the
 

SP
P (
sp
ec
ific
all
y p
ara

gra
ph
 

15
6) 
in 
rel
ati
on
 to
 th
e l
os
s o
f 

ou
tdo
or 
sp
ort
s a
rea

s s
ho
uld
 

be
 re
fer
en
ce
d. 

It w
ou
ld 
no
t b
e 

ap
pro

pri
ate
 to
 m
ak
e 

ref
ere

nc
e i
n t
he
 

Ma
ste
rpl
an
 do
cu
me
nts
 

to 
the
 Pi
tch
es
 St
rat
eg
y 

an
d L
eis
ure

 As
se
t 

rev
iew

 as
 th
is 
ha
s n
ot 

ye
t b
ee
n c
om
ple
ted
.   

 Th
e r
eq
uir
em
en
ts 
of 

Sc
ott
ish
 Pl
an
nin
g 

Po
licy

 (S
PP
) a
re 

cle
arl
y s
tat
ed
 an
d i
t is
 

no
t n
ec
es
sa
ry 
for
 th
is 

Na
tio
na
l P
oli
cy
 to
 be
 

rep
ea
ted
 in
 Lo
ca
l 

No
 

am
en
dm
en
ts 

req
uir
ed
. 

N/
A 

Page 302



Ap
pe
nd
ix 
1 –
 Su

mm
ary
 of
 R
ep
res
en
tat
ion
s 

Po
licy

 do
cu
me
nts
.  

 

Page 303



Page 304

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 2 – Extract from E,P&I Committee Minute (31st January 2012) 
 

ENTERPRISE, PLANNING AND INFRASTRUCTURE COMMITTEE 
31 January 2012 

 
 
EXISTING MASTERPLANS AND PLANNING BRIEFS 
 
26. The Committee heard from the Convener who drew Members’ attention to 
a number of existing Masterplans and Planning Briefs. She explained that the 
existing Plans and Briefs had previously been agreed by the Council under the 
2008 Aberdeen Local Plan, albeit some even pre-date that Plan. The policies in 
these Plans and Briefs require to be updated to reflect the latest SPP, Structure 
Plan and new Local Development Plan which was anticipated to be adopted on 
29 February, 2012. She explained that other than the policy updates, officers did 
not intend on making any changes to the contents, development requirements or 
any planned layouts or other matters contained in the Plans and/or Briefs. 
However, in order to meet Scottish Government requirements officers were 
required to consult on the updated Plans and/or Briefs for a minimum six week 
period and send them to the Scottish Government before the Council could adopt 
them. As officers on this occasion simply intend on updating the policies rather 
than changing their content, now sought authority to make these changes and to 
go through the adoption procedures without bringing them before the Committee. 
In the event that issues were raised which merited further change to the content 
of the Briefs, these would indeed be referred back to the Committee for 
consideration. 
 
Finally, the Convener detailed the Plans/Briefs affected, namely:- 
• Balgownie Centre 
• Bon Accord Centre 
• Broadford Works 
• Cattofield Reservoir 
• Cornhill Hospital 
• Cove Charette 
• Davidsons Mill 
• Denburn and Woolmanhill 
• Dyce Drive 
• Fire Station North Anderson Drive 
• Forresterhill 
• Greenferns Masterplan 
• Greenferns Development Framework 
• Hillhead Campus 
• Kingswells Development Framework 
• Murcar 
• Oakbank 
• Pinewood and Hazledene 

Page 305



• Robert Gordons University 
• Urquhart Road 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to authorise officers to update the existing Masterplans and Planning Briefs and 
to complete the adoption procedures without reporting to Committee for approval.  
However, should the content of the Plans or Briefs require an alteration to their 
content, these should be reported to the Committee for approval. 

Page 306



 

 

 
ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 

 
 
COMMITTEE   Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure   
 
DATE     6 November 2012   
 
DIRECTOR    Gordon McIntosh   
 
TITLE OF REPORT  Adoption of draft Supplementary Guidance to the 

Local Development Plan   
 
REPORT NUMBER:  EPI/12/204 
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 The Planning etc. (Scotland) Act 2006 paragraph 22 (1) states that a 

planning authority may adopt and issue guidance in connection with a 
local development plan.  During the preparation of the Aberdeen Local 
Development Plan (ALDP 2012) Aberdeen City Council prepared a 
number of draft Supplementary Guidance (SG) documents in support 
of the ALDP. Following examination, the Aberdeen Local Development 
Plan was adopted on 29 February 2012 with a number of 
Supplementary Guidance documents adopted in the months following.  
It is intended that further tranches of approved Supplementary 
Guidance will be forwarded to Scottish Ministers in due course for 
adoption, whilst other Supplementary Guidance documents will be 
reported to Committee as they come forward. 

 
1.2 This committee report relates to 4 draft Supplementary Guidance 

documents which have recently been subject to public consultation 
which was agreed at the Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure 
Committee on 31st May 2012 (Agenda item 23).  The draft 
Supplementary Guidance documents were subject to a six week public 
consultation period which ran from 19th June to 31st July 2012.  The 4 
draft Supplementary Guidance documents consist of: 

 
- Infrastructure and Developer Contributions Manual (Appendix 1),  
- Bats and Development (Appendix 2),  
- Children’s Nurseries and Sports Facilities (Appendix 3), and  
- Gypsy and Travellers Sites (Appendix 4). 
 
All documents have been prepared in relation to the ALDP. These 
documents (appendices 1 to 4) are available to view on the Council’s 
website at:  
http://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/planning_environment/planning/local_d
evelopment_plan/pla_aldp_committee_reports.asp  

 

Agenda Item 9.5

Page 307



 

 

1.3 At the Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure Committee on 31st May 
2012 the representations received from the previous consultation in 
2010 were noted, the officers responses to those representations were 
approved and permission was given for the documents to be consulted 
upon.  The consultation period has now concluded and all 
representations received taken into account.  The representations, 
officer’s responses and subsequent changes made to the documents 
are available to see in Appendix 5.  The changes made to the 
documents are minor and relate only to matters of clarification, 
formatting and to update the guidance where necessary.  The 
alterations do not change the policy direction of the documents and the 
context remains the same.  This report presents to Committee the 
representations received, officer responses and subsequent 
alterations. In addition to this the documents are also presented as 
appendices.   

 
2. RECOMMENDATION(S)  

  
2.1 It is recommended that the Committee: 
 

(a) Note the representations received on the draft Supplementary 
Guidance documents  concerned with the consultation 
undertaken; 

 
(b) Approve officers’ responses to representations received on the 

draft Supplementary Guidance documents; 
 

(c) Approve the revised draft ‘Infrastructure & Developer 
Contributions Manual’ Supplementary Guidance, ‘Children's 
Nurseries and Sports Facilities’ Supplementary Guidance, ‘Gypsy 
and Traveller Sites’ draft Supplementary Guidance and draft 
Supplementary Guidance document – ‘Bats and Development’ to 
allow officers to submit the documents to Scottish Ministers for 
ratification as Supplementary Guidance to the Aberdeen Local 
Development Plan. 

 
3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
3.1 There are no direct financial implications arising from this report.  Any 

future publication costs can be met through existing budgets. 
 

4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 This is the continuation of a significant piece of work that has involved 

and will impact upon many other council services, public bodies, the 
business and development industries and the citizens of Aberdeen.  An 
Action Programme has been prepared to consider the implementation 
of the Aberdeen Local Development Plan and Supplementary 
Guidance.   

 

Page 308



 

 

4.2 The progression of these Supplementary Guidance documents will 
provide a clear framework for decision making, allowing comprehensive 
guidance for both applicants and officers, thereby making a significant 
contribution towards the Council’s aim of promoting and achieving 
sustainable development. Detailed topic-based Supplementary 
Guidance also has value in reducing officer time spent on pre-
application discussions. 

 
5. BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 
 
5.1 The 4 documents that are proposed for ratification by Scottish Ministers 

as Supplementary Guidance are named and detailed below with a 
summary of any amendments that have been made to the document, 
either as a result of representations received during the public 
consultation period or by officers to provide greater clarity.  Please see 
Appendix 5 for a table outlining a summary of the representations 
received the responses to these and any other minor amendments 
officers have made. 

 
Infrastructure and Developer Contributions Manual 
 

5.2 The aim of the ‘Infrastructure and Developer Contributions Manual’ 
Supplementary Guidance is to provide clear guidance to all 
stakeholders, in particular the development industry, on the 
infrastructure and developer contributions likely to be required to 
support development from an early stage in the preparation of the LDP. 
10 representations were received.  The comments received came from 
Turnberry Planning, Dundas & Wilson CS LLP, Turley Associates, 
Scottish Enterprise, Aberdeenshire Council, Aberdeen City Council, 
Scottish Water, SEPA, SportScotland and SNH.  The comments 
ranged from wholesale disagreement with the idea of the Manual to 
minor amendments requested to the text.  Following detailed analysis 
of all the responses changes have since been made to the 
Infrastructure and Developer Contributions Manual.  

 
Bats and Development 
 

5.3 The aim of the ‘Bats and Development’ Supplementary Guidance is to 
provide information that will be needed for developers and planning 
officers so that they can consider the effects of planning and 
development on bats which are a European Protected Species.  
Changes have been made to provide further clarity to all potential user 
groups of the guidance, whilst the policy direction has remained as 
before.   

 
Children’s Nurseries and Sports Facilities 

 
5.4 The aim of the 'Children's Nurseries and Sports Facilities' 

Supplementary Guidance is to provide clear guidance for developers 
and planning officers so that they can ascertain the main 

Page 309



 

 

considerations involved in assessing the change of use of any land or 
building into a Children's Nursery or Sports Facility'. One 
representation was received in relation to this document from 
Sportscotland.  This, the officer response, and amendment can be 
seen in Appendix 5. 

 
 Gypsy and Travellers Sites 
 
5.5 The aim of the ‘Gypsy and Travellers Sites Supplementary Guidance is 

to provide guidance on the provision of new Gypsy and Traveller sites 
in identified areas and how these are expected to be delivered.  The 
Guidance also sets out the policy on how applications for private sites 
are to be dealt with and what facilities would be expected for 
permanent site and halting sites. Two responses were received form 
Turnberry Planning and Aberdeenshire Council. Changes made to the 
document have been to provide further clarity to the information 
currently displayed in the guidance. 

 
6. IMPACT 
 
6.1 The Local Development Plan and associated Supplementary Guidance 

contribute to the following Single Outcome Priorities: 
1 – We live in a Scotland that is the most attractive place for doing  
business in Europe; 2. We realise our full economic potential with more 
and better employment opportunities for our people; 10. We live in well 
designed, sustainable places where we are able to access the 
amenities and services we need; 12 – We value and enjoy our built and 
natural environment and protect and enhance it for future generations. 

 
6.2 The Local Development Plan and associated Supplementary Guidance 

supports the Council’s Corporate Plan, in particular the aim of 
delivering high levels of design from all development, maintaining an up 
to date planning framework, promoting sustainable development and 
ensuring an appropriate open space provision.   

 
6.3 The Local Development Plan and associated Supplementary Guidance 

contribute to “Aberdeen – A Smarter City” in terms of providing a clean, 
safe and attractive streetscape and by promoting biodiversity and 
nature conservation, encouraging wider access to green space in our 
streets, parks and countryside, improving access to affordable housing 
in the private sectors by working with developers to maximize the 
effective use of developer contributions. 

 
6.4 The proposal is consistent with the Planning and Sustainable 

Development Service Plan, in particular engaging the community in the 
planning process, and the delivery of Masterplans/Development 
Frameworks in line with the Aberdeen Masterplanning Process. 

 
6.5 Given the wide range of policy areas the Aberdeen Local Development 

Plan and associated Supplementary Guidance covers, an Equality and 

Page 310



 

 

Human Rights Impact Assessment was carried out on the Proposed 
Plan, it showed that there will be some positive impacts of the Plan on 
a range of equalities groups.  The Equality and Human Rights Impact 
Assessment is available to view on the City Council’s website at 
http://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/Planning/ldp/pla_aldp_tech_appendix.a
sp or a hard copy can be obtained from the Local Development Plan 
Team. 

 
7. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Appendices 1 to 4 are available on the Council’s Website at: 
http://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/planning_environment/planning/local_develop
ment_plan/pla_aldp_committee_reports.asp  
 
Appendix 1 - Infrastructure and Developer Contributions Manual 
Appendix 2 - Bats and Development 
Appendix 3 - Children’s Nurseries and Sports Facilities 
Appendix 4 Gypsy and Travellers Sites  
 
Appendix 5 - Summary of representations received, officers’ responses and a 
list of all other minor amendments 
 
Aberdeen Local Development Plan  
http://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/nmsruntime/saveasdialog.asp?lID=42278&sI
D=9484 
 
Aberdeen Local Development Plan –Action Programme  
http://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/planning_environment/planning/local_develop
ment_plan/pla_aldp_action_programme.asp 
 
Aberdeen City and Shire Strategic Development Planning Authority: Aberdeen 
City and Shire Structure Plan 
http://www.aberdeencityandshire-
sdpa.gov.uk/nmsruntime/saveasdialog.asp?lID=423&sID=149 
 
Planning etc. (Scotland) Act 2006 
http://www.opsi.gov.uk/legislation/scotland/acts2006/asp_20060017_en_1 
 
Scottish Planning Series: Planning Circular 1/2009: Development Planning 
http://www.scotland.gov.uk/Resource/Doc/261030/0077887.pdf 
 
The Town and Country Planning (Development Planning) (Scotland) 
Regulations 2008 
http://www.opsi.gov.uk/legislation/scotland/ssi2008/ssi_20080426_en_1 
 
8. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS  

 
Ross Maclennan 
Planner 
rmaclennan@aberdeencity.gov.uk 
01224 523325 

Page 311



Page 312

This page is intentionally left blank



  AP
PE

ND
IX 

5: 
Su

pp
lem

en
tar

y G
uid

an
ce
 C
on

su
lta
tio

n 
Re

sp
on

de
nts

, R
ep
res

en
tat
ion

s, 
Re

sp
on

se
s a

nd
 C
ha
ng
es
 

 
- 

Inf
ras

tru
ctu

re 
& D

ev
elo

pe
r C

on
trib

uti
on

s M
an

ua
l 

- 
Ba

ts 
& D

ev
elo

pm
en

t 
- 

Ch
ild

ren
’s 

Nu
rse

rie
s &

 Sp
ort

s F
ac

iliti
es

 
- 

Gy
ps

y a
nd

 Tr
av

ell
er 

Sit
es

 
 

Page 313



Re
sp
on

de
nt 

 
Su

mm
ary

 of
 co

mm
en
t  

Re
sp
on

se
 to

 co
mm

en
t 

Ch
an
ge
s (
if a

ny
) 

  
2

Inf
ras

tru
ctu

re 
& 
De

ve
lop

er 
Co

ntr
ibu

tio
ns
 M
an
ua
l 

 
Sp

or
t S

co
tla
nd

  
1. 

W
elc

om
es

 th
e p

rov
isio

n o
f th

e 
gu

ida
nc

e 
2. 

Re
sp

on
de

nt 
fee

ls 
tha

t s
po

rts
 fa

cili
tie

s 
co

uld
 be

 pl
ac

ed
 un

de
r “O

pe
n S

pa
ce

 
an

d G
ree

n N
etw

ork
” o

r “C
om

mu
nit

y 
Fa

cili
tie

s”.
 Th

ey
 w

ou
ld 

like
 th

is 
to 

be
 

cla
rifi

ed
. 

3. 
Th

ere
 is

 re
fer

en
ce

 to
 in

do
or 

an
d 

ou
tdo

or 
sp

ort
s f

ac
iliti

es
 bu

t n
o c

lea
r 

ind
ica

tio
n o

f w
ha

t th
is 

me
an

s f
or 

de
ve

lop
me

nts
. S

om
e n

ew
 

de
ve

lop
me

nt 
ma

y r
es

ult
 in

 ne
w 

sp
ort

s 
fac

iliti
es

 be
ing

 ne
ed

ed
 w

he
re 

ex
ist

ing
 

on
es

 ar
e a

t c
ap

ac
ity

. 
4. 

Re
sp

on
de

nt 
ma

ke
s a

wa
re 

tha
t 

Co
un

cil 
is 

cu
rre

ntl
y u

pd
ati

ng
 Pi

tch
 

Str
ate

gy
 an

d l
oo

kin
g a

t in
do

or 
sp

ort
s 

fac
iliti

es
 st

rat
eg

y. 
Co

mp
let

ion
 of

 th
es

e 
stu

die
s s

ho
uld

 pr
ov

ide
 cl

ari
ty 

to 
fut

ure
 

req
uir

em
en

ts 
an

d r
efe

ren
ce

 to
 th

is 
ma

y b
e u

se
ful

. 

1. 
No

ted
. 

 2, 
3. 

 Ou
tdo

or 
Sp

ort
s A

rea
s a

re 
co

ve
red

 w
ith

in 
the

 
Inf

ras
tru

ctu
re 

an
d D

ev
elo

pe
r C

on
trib

uti
on

s M
an

ua
l a

t 
pre

se
nt 

in 
the

 se
cti

on
 on

 “O
pe

n S
pa

ce
 an

d G
ree

n 
Sp

ac
e N

etw
ork

”.  
Ou

tdo
or 

Sp
ort

s A
rea

s a
re 

de
fin

ed
 

wit
hin

 th
e O

pe
n S

pa
ce

 Su
pp

lem
en

tar
y G

uid
an

ce
 

(S
G)

 as
 be

ing
 ‘n

atu
ral

 or
 ar

tifi
cia

l s
urf

ac
es

 us
ed

 fo
r 

sp
ort

 an
d r

ec
rea

tio
n, 

for
 ex

am
ple

 pl
ay

ing
 fie

lds
, 

pit
ch

es
, te

nn
is 

co
urt

s, 
bo

wli
ng

 gr
ee

ns
, a

thl
eti

cs
 

tra
ck

s a
nd

 w
ate

r s
po

rts
 fa

cili
tie

s.’
 

 In 
thi

s s
ec

tio
n t

he
 op

en
 sp

ac
e r

eq
uir

em
en

ts 
for

 ne
w 

res
ide

nti
al 

de
ve

lop
me

nt 
are

 se
t o

ut 
an

d h
ow

 th
e 

op
en

 sp
ac

e r
eq

uir
ed

 w
ill b

e c
alc

ula
ted

. 
 Ov

era
ll t

he
 ch

ara
cte

r o
f S

po
rts

 Fa
cili

tie
s i

n g
en

era
l 

me
an

s t
ha

t th
e t

op
ic 

is 
co

ve
red

 by
 bo

th 
se

cti
on

s 
‘O

pe
n S

pa
ce

 an
d G

ree
n N

etw
ork

’ a
nd

 ‘C
om

mu
nit

y 
Fa

cili
tie

s’.
  O

utd
oo

r S
po

rts
 Ar

ea
s a

re 
de

fin
ed

 w
ith

in 
the

 O
pe

n S
pa

ce
 SG

 an
d r

eq
uir

em
en

ts 
for

 ne
w 

or 
up

gra
de

d f
ac

iliti
es

 ar
e a

lso
 de

sc
rib

ed
 w

ith
in 

thi
s 

do
cu

me
nt.

 Th
ere

for
e t

he
 lo

gic
al 

pla
ce

 to
 be

 lo
ca

ted
 

wa
s i

n t
he

 m
ain

 ‘O
pe

n S
pa

ce
 an

d G
ree

n N
etw

ork
’ 

se
cti

on
.   

 Ind
oo

r F
ac

iliti
es

 ar
e a

lso
 im

po
rta

nt 
an

d i
t is

 fe
lt t

ha
t 

the
y a

re 
be

st 
co

ve
red

 w
ith

in 
the

 C
om

mu
nit

y 
Fa

cili
tie

s s
ec

tio
n o

f th
e d

oc
um

en
t a

s t
he

 ge
ne

ral
 

na
tur

e o
f in

do
or 

fac
iliti

es
 ar

e c
ov

ere
d w

ith
in 

2,3
 

 So
me

 ad
dit

ion
al 

wo
rdi

ng
 

ha
s b

ee
n a

dd
ed

 to
 th

e 
se

cti
on

 on
 O

pe
n S

pa
ce

 
an

d G
ree

n S
pa

ce
 

Ne
tw

ork
 fo

r c
lar

ity
. 

Page 314



Re
sp
on

de
nt 

 
Su

mm
ary

 of
 co

mm
en
t  

Re
sp
on

se
 to

 co
mm

en
t 

Ch
an
ge
s (
if a

ny
) 

  
3

Co
mm

un
ty 

Fa
cili

tie
s s

uc
h a

s a
n i

nd
oo

r h
all

 th
en

 it 
se

em
s l

og
ica

l th
at 

the
y r

em
ain

 cl
as

sif
ied

 in
 th

at 
se

cti
on

.   
 Th

e u
pg

rad
ing

 of
 In

do
or 

Fa
cili

tie
s a

re 
als

o c
ov

ere
d 

alo
ng

sid
e O

utd
oo

r F
ac

iliti
es

 w
ith

in 
the

 ‘O
pe

n S
pa

ce
 

an
d G

ree
n S

pa
ce

 N
etw

ork
’ s

ec
tio

n. 
 Th

is 
aim

s t
o 

pro
vid

e f
lex

ibi
lity

 sh
ou

ld 
the

 si
ze

 or
 vi

ab
ility

 of
 a 

de
ve

lop
me

nt 
me

an
 th

at 
the

 op
en

 sp
ac

e p
rov

ide
d 

wo
uld

 be
 of

 lim
ite

d f
un

cti
on

 an
d u

se
ful

ne
ss

, a
nd

 
wh

ere
 th

ere
 is

 al
rea

dy
 ad

eq
ua

te 
pro

vis
ion

 in
 th

e 
su

rro
un

din
g a

rea
, th

en
 co

ntr
ibu

tio
ns

 to
wa

rds
 th

e 
im

pro
ve

me
nt 

of 
qu

ali
ty 

an
d a

cc
es

sib
ility

 of
 

su
rro

un
din

g o
pe

n s
pa

ce
s m

ay
 be

 m
ore

 ap
pro

pri
ate

 
ins

tea
d. 

Th
is 

ma
y a

llo
w 

co
ntr

ibu
tio

ns
 to

 up
gra

de
 of

 
dif

fer
ing

 fa
cili

tie
s s

uc
h a

s I
nd

oo
r F

ac
iliti

es
. 

 
4. 

It h
as

 be
en

 no
ted

 th
at 

the
 Pi

tch
 St

rat
eg

y i
s c

urr
en

tly
 

be
ing

 up
da

ted
 an

d m
em

be
rs 

of 
the

 D
ev

elo
pm

en
t 

Pla
n T

ea
m 

ha
ve

 ha
d d

isc
us

sio
ns

 re
ga

rdi
ng

 th
is.

 
  

Tu
rn
be
rry

 
Pla

nn
ing

  
1. 

W
elc

om
e t

he
 pr

od
uc

tio
n o

f th
is 

gu
ida

nc
e h

ow
ev

er 
the

 re
sp

on
de

nt 
fee

ls 
the

 gu
ida

nc
e r

eq
uir

es
 fu

rth
er 

de
ve

lop
me

nt.
 

Th
e r

es
po

nd
en

t s
tat

es
 th

at 
the

 
gu

ida
nc

e m
us

t b
e a

ss
es

se
d a

ga
ins

t 
the

 te
sts

 in
 C

irc
ula

r 1
/20

10
. 

 Sc
ale

 &
 Ti
me

 Te
st 

 Re
sp

on
de

nt 
ha

s t
wo

 ke
y c

on
ce

rns
: 

1) 
Be

lie
ve

s t
he

 le
ve

l o
f in

fra
str

uc
tur

e 

1. 
No

te 
the

 re
sp

on
de

nts
 co

mm
en

ts 
reg

ard
ing

 
we

lco
mi

ng
 th

e g
uid

an
ce

 ho
we

ve
r w

e d
o n

ot 
fee

l th
at 

the
 gu

ida
nc

e r
eq

uir
es

 fu
rth

er 
de

ve
lop

me
nt.

 Th
e 

gu
ida

nc
e h

as
 pr

ev
iou

sly
 be

en
 th

rou
gh

 co
ns

ult
ati

on
 

alo
ng

sid
e t

he
 Pr

op
os

ed
 Pl

an
 an

d t
he

 pr
inc

ipl
es

 an
d 

me
ch

an
ism

 of
 th

e g
uid

an
ce

 ha
s b

ee
n r

ati
fie

d b
y 

Re
po

rte
rs 

at 
ex

am
ina

tio
n. 

Th
e g

uid
an

ce
 ha

s n
ow

 
be

en
 th

rou
gh

 fu
rth

er 
co

ns
ult

ati
on

 an
d i

t is
 ou

r 
op

ini
on

 th
at 

the
 gu

ida
nc

e i
s c

om
ple

te.
 

 
No

tes
 th

at 
the

 re
sp

on
de

nt 
sta

tes
 th

at 
the

 gu
ida

nc
e 

mu
st 

be
 as

se
ss

ed
 ag

ain
st 

the
 te

sts
 in

 C
irc

ula
r 

     
 

Page 315



Re
sp
on

de
nt 

 
Su

mm
ary

 of
 co

mm
en
t  

Re
sp
on

se
 to

 co
mm

en
t 

Ch
an
ge
s (
if a

ny
) 

  
4

an
d c

on
trib

uti
on

s a
re 

ex
ce

ss
ive

 
es

pe
cia

lly 
wit

h e
xis

tin
g a

nd
 em

erg
ing

 
S7

5 a
nd

 St
rat

eg
ic 

Tra
ns

po
rt F

un
d 

an
d f

ort
hc

om
ing

 w
ate

r in
fra

str
uc

tur
e 

fun
d. 

 R
es

po
nd

en
t q

ue
sti

on
s h

ow
 

as
kin

g f
or 

fur
the

r d
ev

elo
pe

r 
co

ntr
ibu

tio
ns

 on
 to

p o
f th

e p
rev

iou
s 

do
es

 no
t re

pre
se

nt 
“at

tem
pts

 to
 

ex
tra

ct 
ex

ce
ss

ive
 co

ntr
ibu

tio
ns

…
” a

s 
sta

ted
 in

 C
irc

ula
r 1

/20
10

. T
he

 
res

po
nd

en
t c

on
tin

ue
s b

y w
riti

ng
 th

at 
the

 re
qu

ire
me

nts
 se

t o
ut 

in 
SG

 
ap

pe
ar 

arb
itra

ry 
an

d c
on

ce
ive

d i
n 

iso
lat

ion
 of

 th
e S

TF
 an

d w
ate

r 
inf

ras
tru

ctu
re 

fun
d. 

Th
ey

 fe
el 

tha
t th

e 
Gu

ida
nc

e i
s p

as
sin

g r
es

po
ns

ibi
lity

 on
 

to 
the

 de
ve

lop
ers

. 
 2) 

Th
e p

rop
os

al 
for

 th
e c

um
ula

tiv
e f

un
d 

su
gg

es
ts 

tha
t a

dd
itio

na
l fu

nd
s m

ay
 

be
 so

ug
ht 

to 
up

gra
de

 th
e e

xis
tin

g 
inf

ras
tru

ctu
re 

wh
ich

 C
irc

ula
r 1

/20
10

 
for

bid
s. 

Re
sp

on
de

nt 
be

lie
ve

s t
ha

t 
wit

ho
ut 

fur
the

r d
eta

ils 
of 

thi
s 

req
uir

em
en

t th
en

 it 
sh

ou
ld 

be
 

rem
ov

ed
 fro

m 
the

 do
cu

me
nt.

 
 Re

lat
ion

sh
ip 
to 

Pr
op
os
ed
 

De
ve
lop

me
nt 

 La
ck

 of
 pr

ec
isio

n a
rou

nd
 th

e p
urp

os
e o

f 
so

me
 of

 th
e c

on
trib

uti
on

s a
nd

 ex
ac

t 
sc

he
me

s a
nd

 in
fra

str
uc

tur
e t

ha
t w

ill b
e 

1/2
01

0. 
 In

 id
en

tify
ing

 in
fra

str
uc

tur
e r

eq
uir

em
en

ts 
an

d f
orm

ula
e f

or 
de

ve
lop

er 
co

ntr
ibu

tio
ns

 w
e h

av
e 

tak
en

 ac
co

un
t o

f th
e t

es
ts 

co
nta

ine
d i

n C
irc

ula
r 

1/2
01

0. 
 W

e c
on

sid
er 

tha
t th

e p
rop

os
ed

 ap
pro

ac
h t

o 
pla

nn
ing

 an
d d

eli
ve

rin
g i

nfr
as

tru
ctu

re 
is 

ap
pro

pri
ate

 
an

d c
om

pli
es

 w
ith

 Sc
ott

ish
 Pl

an
nin

g P
oli

cy
 an

d t
he

 
co

rre
sp

on
din

g f
ive

 te
sts

 co
nta

ine
d w

ith
in 

Cir
cu

lar
 

1/2
01

0 P
lan

nin
g A

gre
em

en
ts.

  
 Th

e n
ee

d f
or 

ne
w 

or 
im

pro
ve

d i
nfr

as
tru

ctu
re 

ha
s 

be
en

 id
en

tifi
ed

 fo
llo

win
g d

eta
ile

d a
na

lys
is 

of 
the

 
ca

pa
cit

y o
f e

xis
tin

g s
erv

ice
s t

o c
op

e w
ith

 ad
dit

ion
al 

de
ve

lop
me

nt,
 as

 w
ell

 as
 th

e f
ore

ca
ste

d i
mp

ac
t o

f 
de

ve
lop

me
nts

 ba
se

d o
n t

he
 in

for
ma

tio
n a

va
ila

ble
 at

 
tha

t ti
me

. A
s s

uc
h, 

the
se

 re
qu

ire
me

nts
 ar

e 
ne

ce
ss

ary
 in

 pl
an

nin
g t

erm
s t

o m
ak

e d
ev

elo
pm

en
t 

ac
ce

pta
ble

, a
nd

 to
 av

oid
 an

y d
etr

im
en

tal
 im

pa
ct 

on
 

se
rvi

ce
s a

nd
 in

fra
str

uc
tur

e. 
 In 

ad
dit

ion
 to

 th
is,

 it 
wa

s t
he

 op
ini

on
 of

 th
e R

ep
ort

er 
in 

the
 R

ep
ort

ers
 Ex

am
ina

tio
n R

ep
ort

 th
at 

the
 

Co
un

cil’
s a

pp
roa

ch
 to

 th
is 

co
mp

lex
 is

su
e i

s 
ap

pro
pri

ate
 an

d c
on

for
ms

 w
ith

 gu
ida

nc
e i

n C
irc

ula
r 

4/1
99

8, 
Cir

cu
lar

 1/
20

09
 an

d C
irc

ula
r 1

/20
10

 
(A

be
rde

en
 LD

P E
xa

mi
na

tio
n R

ep
ort

 pa
ge

 40
7, 

pa
rag

rap
h 2

6.)
 

 Sc
ale

 &
 Ti
me

 Te
st 

 1 &
 2)

 
Th

e i
de

nti
fic

ati
on

 of
 in

fra
str

uc
tur

e r
eq

uir
em

en
ts 

rel
ate

d t
o n

ew
 de

ve
lop

me
nt 

in 
the

 Lo
ca

l 
De

ve
lop

me
nt 

Pla
n (

LD
P)

 ha
s b

ee
n b

as
ed

 on
 th

e 

Page 316



Re
sp
on

de
nt 

 
Su

mm
ary

 of
 co

mm
en
t  

Re
sp
on

se
 to

 co
mm

en
t 

Ch
an
ge
s (
if a

ny
) 

  
5

de
live

red
 le

av
es

 th
e S

G 
ex

po
se

d o
n t

he
 

iss
ue

 of
 th

e r
ela

tio
ns

hip
 of

 so
me

 of
 th

es
e 

co
ntr

ibu
tio

ns
 to

 th
e d

ev
elo

pm
en

t. S
TF

 
an

d G
ree

n S
pa

ce
 N

etw
ork

 co
ntr

ibu
tio

ns
 

in 
pa

rtic
ula

r a
re 

un
foc

us
se

d o
n t

he
 

ab
ov

e. 
 M

an
y o

f th
e r

eq
uir

em
en

ts 
are

 
ba

se
d o

n t
he

 ap
pli

ca
tio

n o
f a

 fo
rm

ula
 

wit
ho

ut 
reg

ard
 to

 th
e c

urr
en

t u
sa

ge
 of

 
fac

iliti
es

 in
 th

e a
rea

 an
d w

he
the

r th
ere

 is
 

a n
ee

d f
or 

ne
w 

fac
iliti

es
. T

he
 re

sp
on

de
nt 

be
lie

ve
s t

ha
t u

nle
ss

 gr
ea

ter
 cl

ari
ty 

is 
pro

vid
ed

 th
en

 th
e S

G 
wil

l c
on

tra
ve

ne
 

Cir
cu

lar
 1/

20
10

 w
hic

h s
tat

es
 th

at 
pla

nn
ing

 
ag

ree
me

nts
 sh

ou
ld 

no
t b

e u
se

d t
o 

ad
dre

ss
 ex

ist
ing

 de
fic

ien
cie

s o
r to

 
ac

hie
ve

 w
ide

r p
lan

nin
g o

bje
cti

ve
s t

ha
t a

re 
un

rel
ate

d t
o t

he
 de

ve
lop

me
nt 

in 
qu

es
tio

n. 
 

Th
e r

es
po

nd
en

t a
lso

 w
rite

s t
ha

t fu
rth

er 
de

tai
l is

 re
qu

ire
d o

n w
ha

t w
ill b

e t
ak

en
 

int
o a

cc
ou

nt 
in 

co
ns

ide
rin

g c
um

ula
tiv

e 
im

pa
ct.

 Is
 th

is 
jus

t w
ith

in 
Ma

ste
rpl

an
 

Zo
ne

s o
r is

 it 
wid

er,
 in

 w
hic

h c
as

e t
he

 lin
k 

to 
inf

ras
tru

ctu
re 

be
co

me
s t

oo
 te

nu
ou

s t
o 

co
mp

ly 
wit

h t
he

 te
sts

 in
 th

e C
irc

ula
r. 

 Re
as
on

ab
len

es
s T

es
t 

 Th
e S

G 
do

es
 no

t p
rov

ide
 en

ou
gh

 cl
ari

ty 
on

 th
e o

bli
ga

tio
ns

 of
 th

e C
ou

nc
il a

nd
 

sta
tut

ory
 au

tho
riti

es
 su

ch
 as

 
NE

ST
RA

NS
/Sc

ott
ish

 W
ate

r e
tc.

  T
he

 SG
 

sh
ow

s n
o a

pp
are

nt 
lin

k b
etw

ee
n a

llo
win

g 
de

ve
lop

me
nt 

to 
pro

ce
ed

 an
d d

eli
ve

ry 
of 

fol
low

ing
 pr

inc
ipl

es
: 

- a
ss

es
sin

g t
he

 sp
are

 ca
pa

cit
y o

f e
xis

tin
g 

se
rvi

ce
s/f

ac
iliti

es
/in

fra
str

uc
tur

e a
nd

 th
eir

 ab
ility

 to
 

ac
co

mm
od

ate
 ne

w 
de

ve
lop

me
nt;

  
- m

ea
su

rin
g t

he
 lik

ely
 im

pa
ct 

of 
ne

w 
de

ve
lop

me
nt 

on
 

the
se

 se
rvi

ce
s i

n d
iffe

ren
t a

rea
s o

f th
e C

ity
; a

nd
  

- id
en

tify
ing

 w
he

re 
ne

w 
inf

ras
tru

ctu
re,

 or
 

im
pro

ve
me

nts
 to

 ex
ist

ing
 in

fra
str

uc
tur

e, 
wo

uld
 be

 
req

uir
ed

 to
 m

itig
ate

 th
e i

mp
ac

t o
f n

ew
 de

ve
lop

me
nt.

  
 

Th
is 

wo
rk 

wa
s c

arr
ied

 ou
t in

 pa
rtn

ers
hip

 w
ith

 
co

lle
ag

ue
s f

rom
 ac

ros
s A

be
rde

en
 C

ity
 C

ou
nc

il a
nd

 
ke

y a
ge

nc
ies

 in
vo

lve
d i

n t
he

 pl
an

nin
g a

nd
 de

live
ry 

of 
inf

ras
tru

ctu
re,

 th
rou

gh
 th

e A
be

rde
en

 Fu
tur

e 
Inf

ras
tru

ctu
re 

Re
qu

ire
me

nts
 fo

r S
erv

ice
s G

rou
p. 

Th
is 

pro
ce

ss
 le

d t
o t

he
 id

en
tifi

ca
tio

n o
f in

fra
str

uc
tur

e 
sp

ec
ifie

d i
n t

he
 LD

P a
s b

ein
g r

eq
uir

ed
 to

 su
pp

ort
 

pa
rtic

ula
r d

ev
elo

pm
en

ts 
ac

ros
s t

he
 C

ity
. T

he
 

inf
orm

ati
on

 ga
the

red
 w

as
 pu

bli
sh

ed
 as

 a 
list

 of
 

inf
ras

tru
ctu

re 
req

uir
em

en
ts 

in 
the

 Pr
op

os
ed

 an
d 

Ad
op

ted
 Pl

an
s, 

wh
ich

 se
rve

d t
o s

ha
re 

inf
orm

ati
on

 
wit

h t
he

 de
ve

lop
me

nt 
ind

us
try

 an
d o

the
r c

on
su

lte
es

 
as

 so
on

 as
 po

ss
ibl

e i
n t

he
 pl

an
 pr

ep
ara

tio
n p

roc
es

s. 
 

 In 
all

 ca
se

s, 
the

 pr
ec

ise
 le

ve
l o

f in
fra

str
uc

tur
e 

req
uir

em
en

ts 
an

d d
ev

elo
pe

r c
on

trib
uti

on
s w

ill n
ee

d 
to 

be
 ag

ree
d w

ith
 th

e C
ou

nc
il a

nd
 ot

he
r s

tat
uto

ry 
ag

en
cie

s t
hro

ug
h t

he
 m

as
ter

pla
nn

ing
 an

d p
lan

nin
g 

ap
pli

ca
tio

n p
roc

es
se

s. 
 An

y i
nfr

as
tru

ctu
re 

or 
fin

an
cia

l 
co

ntr
ibu

tio
ns

 so
ug

ht 
wil

l b
e p

rop
ort

ion
ate

 to
 th

e 
im

pa
ct 

of 
de

ve
lop

me
nt 

an
d a

lso
 ta

ke
 ac

co
un

t o
f th

e 
ca

pa
cit

y o
f e

xis
tin

g s
erv

ice
s a

nd
 in

fra
str

uc
tur

e. 
  

 

Page 317



Re
sp
on

de
nt 

 
Su

mm
ary

 of
 co

mm
en
t  

Re
sp
on

se
 to

 co
mm

en
t 

Ch
an
ge
s (
if a

ny
) 

  
6

inf
ras

tru
ctu

re.
  In

 pa
rtic

ula
r it

 is
 no

t c
lea

r 
wh

en
 or

 ho
w 

the
se

 ag
en

cie
s w

ou
ld 

inv
es

t 
co

ntr
ibu

tio
ns

 in
 a 

tim
es

ca
le 

tha
t s

ati
sfi

es
 

the
 re

qu
ire

me
nts

 of
 th

e p
riv

ate
 se

cto
r 

de
ve

lop
er.

 Th
e r

es
po

nd
en

t’s
 m

ain
 

co
nc

ern
 is

 th
e d

ev
elo

pm
en

t w
ou

ld 
pro

ce
ed

 w
ith

 no
 ce

rta
int

y o
r c

lar
ity

 as
 to

 
wh

en
 th

e n
ec

es
sa

ry 
inf

ras
tru

ctu
re 

fac
iliti

es
 w

ill b
e d

eli
ve

red
 an

d b
y w

ho
m.

 
Th

e r
es

po
nd

en
t s

ug
ge

sts
 th

at 
thi

s i
ss

ue
 

wo
uld

 be
 re

so
lve

d s
ho

uld
 th

e S
G 

loo
k a

t 
the

 ro
le 

an
d r

es
po

ns
ibi

lity
 of

 th
e C

ou
nc

il 
in 

dra
ftin

g a
nd

 m
on

ito
rin

g t
he

 ag
ree

me
nt,

 
an

d c
ruc

ial
ly 

rep
ort

ing
 ba

ck
 to

 
co

ntr
ibu

tor
s. 

 Th
e r

es
po

nd
en

t th
ink

s t
ha

t 
the

 SG
 sh

ou
ld 

inc
lud

e a
 st

ate
me

nt 
em

ph
as

isin
g d

ire
ct 

pro
vis

ion
/de

live
ry 

of 
inf

ras
tru

ctu
re 

by
 th

e d
ev

elo
pe

r a
nd

 th
at 

the
 ex

ten
t o

f d
ire

ctl
y d

eli
ve

red
 

inf
ras

tru
ctu

re 
wil

l b
e t

ak
en

 in
to 

ac
co

un
t in

 
de

ter
mi

nin
g c

on
trib

uti
on

s u
nd

er 
the

 
dif

fer
en

t c
ate

go
rie

s. 
 Tr
an
sp
or
t In

fra
str

uc
tur

e 
 Re

sp
on

de
nt 

fee
ls 

tha
t th

e i
nc

lus
ion

 of
 th

e 
ST

F i
n t

he
 SG

 ra
ise

s a
 nu

mb
er 

of 
iss

ue
s. 

 
On

e i
ss

ue
 w

as
 th

at 
the

 or
igi

na
l 

co
ns

ult
ati

on
 un

de
rta

ke
n b

y t
he

 SD
PA

 
wa

s n
ot 

res
po

ns
ive

 to
 m

an
y o

f th
e 

co
nc

ern
s r

ais
ed

, a
nd

 th
at 

the
se

 ar
e 

eq
ua

lly 
ap

pli
ca

ble
 to

 th
is 

inc
arn

ati
on

.   
 

Ma
ste

rpl
an

s w
ill n

ee
d t

o d
em

on
str

ate
 ho

w 
su

pp
ort

ing
 in

fra
str

uc
tur

e w
ill b

e d
eli

ve
red

, a
lon

g w
ith

 
the

 ph
as

es
 of

 de
ve

lop
me

nt 
pro

po
se

d, 
an

d p
rov

ide
 

ap
pro

pri
ate

 ev
ide

nc
e t

o s
up

po
rt a

ny
 re

qu
es

t b
y a

 
de

ve
lop

er 
to 

div
erg

e f
rom

 th
e i

nfr
as

tru
ctu

re 
ide

nti
fie

d. 
Fo

r e
xa

mp
le,

 th
is 

co
uld

 be
 as

 a 
res

ult
 of

 a 
ch

an
ge

 in
 th

e s
ca

le 
an

d/o
r im

pa
ct 

of 
de

ve
lop

me
nt 

pro
po

se
d f

rom
 th

e a
llo

ca
tio

n i
n t

he
 LD

P. 
Su

bs
eq

ue
nt 

pla
nn

ing
 ap

pli
ca

tio
ns

 w
ill n

ee
d t

o r
efl

ec
t th

e a
gre

ed
 

ma
ste

rpl
an

 an
d m

itig
ati

on
 m

ea
su

res
, a

nd
 de

ve
lop

er 
co

ntr
ibu

tio
ns

 w
ill b

e f
ina

lise
d t

hro
ug

h a
 Pl

an
nin

g 
Ag

ree
me

nt.
 Th

is 
wil

l e
ns

ure
 th

at 
inf

ras
tru

ctu
re 

req
uir

em
en

ts 
an

d d
ev

elo
pe

r c
on

trib
uti

on
s a

re 
ne

ce
ss

ary
 an

d p
rop

ort
ion

ate
 to

 m
itig

ate
 th

e i
mp

ac
t o

f 
de

ve
lop

me
nt.

  It
 sh

ou
ld 

als
o e

ns
ure

 th
at 

inf
ras

tru
ctu

re 
pro

vis
ion

 an
d d

ev
elo

pe
r c

on
trib

uti
on

s 
do

 no
t u

nd
uly

 re
str

ict
 th

e i
mp

lem
en

tat
ion

 of
 

de
ve

lop
me

nt 
pro

po
sa

ls 
or 

aff
ec

t th
e v

iab
ility

 of
 

de
ve

lop
me

nt,
 w

hil
st 

en
su

rin
g t

ha
t n

ew
 de

ve
lop

me
nt 

wil
l b

e a
cc

om
pa

nie
d b

y a
n a

pp
rop

ria
te 

lev
el 

of 
se

rvi
ce

s t
o s

up
po

rt n
ew

 co
mm

un
itie

s. 
 

Th
e p

rin
cip

les
 ou

tlin
ed

 ab
ov

e a
re 

ref
lec

ted
 in

 th
e 

for
mu

lae
 fo

r d
ev

elo
pe

r c
on

trib
uti

on
s i

de
nti

fie
d i

n t
he

 
Inf

ras
tru

ctu
re 

an
d D

ev
elo

pe
r C

on
trib

uti
on

s M
an

ua
l.  

 
Th

e C
ou

nc
il w

ill n
ot 

be
 se

ek
ing

 co
ntr

ibu
tio

ns
 to

 
res

olv
e e

xis
tin

g i
na

de
qu

ac
ies

.   
 Th

e C
ou

nc
il’s

 ap
pro

ac
h r

ec
og

nis
es

 th
at 

inf
ras

tru
ctu

re 
is 

ne
ce

ss
ary

 to
 m

itig
ate

 th
e i

mp
ac

t o
f 

de
ve

lop
me

nt 
an

d t
ha

t w
ith

ou
t th

e n
ec

es
sa

ry 
inf

ras
tru

ctu
re 

de
ve

lop
me

nt 
wo

uld
 no

t fu
nc

tio
n 

Page 318



Re
sp
on

de
nt 

 
Su

mm
ary

 of
 co

mm
en
t  

Re
sp
on

se
 to

 co
mm

en
t 

Ch
an
ge
s (
if a

ny
) 

  
7

Th
e S

G 
als

o g
ive

s t
he

 im
pre

ss
ion

 th
at 

the
 

ini
tia

tiv
es

 lis
ted

 as
 St

rat
eg

ic 
Tra

ns
po

rt 
Inf

ras
tru

ctu
re 

are
 cl

ea
rly

 de
fin

ed
. 

Ho
we

ve
r it

 is
 th

e r
es

po
nd

en
ts 

un
de

rst
an

din
g t

ha
t th

es
e s

ch
em

es
 ha

ve
 

on
ly 

be
en

 id
en

tifi
ed

 at
 co

nc
ep

tua
l le

ve
l to

 
da

te.
 Th

is 
me

an
s t

ha
t th

ere
 ca

n b
e n

o 
ce

rta
int

y a
bo

ut 
the

 ad
eq

ua
cy

 of
 fin

al 
pro

po
sa

ls 
to 

de
live

r th
e b

en
efi

t b
ein

g 
ide

nti
fie

d, 
no

r a
bo

ut 
the

 co
sts

 at
trib

ute
d 

to 
the

ir i
mp

lem
en

tat
ion

. 
 Th

ere
 is

 no
 cl

ea
r d

efi
nit

ion
 be

tw
ee

n 
‘St

rat
eg

ic’ 
an

d ‘
Lo

ca
l’ m

ea
su

res
. T

his
 is

 
pa

rtic
ula

rly
 si

gn
ific

an
t fo

r th
e l

arg
er 

sc
ale

 
pro

jec
ts 

on
 w

hic
h m

uc
h o

f th
e L

DP
 re

lie
s. 

By
 de

fin
itio

n m
an

y o
f th

es
e p

roj
ec

ts 
ha

ve
 

dir
ec

t im
pa

cts
 on

 th
e S

tra
teg

ic 
ne

tw
ork

s. 
Mi

tig
ati

on
 of

 im
pa

cts
 re

qu
ire

s 
mo

dif
ica

tio
ns

 to
 th

es
e n

etw
ork

s, 
in 

so
me

 
ca

se
s i

nv
olv

ing
 lo

ca
tio

ns
 id

en
tifi

ed
 

thr
ou

gh
 C

um
ula

tiv
e T

ran
sp

ort
 Ap

pra
isa

l 
(C

TA
) p

roc
es

s a
s r

eq
uir

ing
 St

rat
eg

ic 
int

erv
en

tio
n. 

Th
ere

 is
 cu

rre
ntl

y n
o s

et 
pro

ce
du

re 
to 

ide
nti

fy 
the

 di
sti

nc
tio

n i
n 

the
se

 ci
rcu

ms
tan

ce
s. 

 It a
pp

ea
rs 

the
 C

ou
nc

il h
as

 no
t ta

ke
n 

co
ns

ide
rat

ion
 of

 ho
w 

ph
as

ed
 

de
ve

lop
me

nt 
ca

n b
e i

mp
lem

en
ted

 ah
ea

d 
of 

sig
nif

ica
nt 

inf
ras

tru
ctu

re 
up

gra
de

s. 
Th

e 
CT

A a
na

lys
is 

as
su

me
s t

ha
t th

is 
inf

ras
tru

ctu
re 

is 
in 

pla
ce

 w
hil

st 
the

 LD
P 

eff
ec

tiv
ely

. It
 is

 th
ere

for
e n

ec
es

sa
ry 

to 
ide

nti
fy 

inf
ras

tru
ctu

re 
req

uir
em

en
ts.

 By
 id

en
tify

ing
 th

es
e 

ea
rly

 in
 th

e p
lan

 pr
ep

ara
tio

n p
roc

es
s, 

an
d a

pp
lyin

g 
tho

se
 to

 sp
ec

ific
 si

tes
 an

d/o
r g

rou
ps

 of
 si

tes
, c

os
ts 

for
 in

fra
str

uc
tur

e p
rov

isio
n c

an
 be

 fa
cto

red
 in

to 
lan

d 
co

sts
 an

d s
ha

red
 m

ore
 eq

uit
ab

ly,
 th

ere
by

 av
oid

ing
 

an
y d

isp
rop

ort
ion

ate
 co

st 
to,

 or
 af

fec
tin

g t
he

 vi
ab

ility
 

of,
 sp

ec
ific

 de
ve

lop
me

nts
. T

he
 re

qu
ire

me
nt 

to 
pre

pa
re 

Ma
ste

rpl
an

s w
ill p

rov
ide

 de
ve

lop
ers

 w
ith

 th
e 

op
po

rtu
nit

y t
o d

em
on

str
ate

 ho
w 

de
ve

lop
me

nt 
an

d 
ac

co
mp

an
yin

g i
nfr

as
tru

ctu
re 

wil
l b

e d
eli

ve
red

.  
 

Th
e R

ep
ort

ers
 Ex

am
ina

tio
n R

ep
ort

 to
 th

e A
be

rde
en

 
LD

P s
ets

 ou
ts 

tha
t th

e b
eli

ef 
is 

tha
t th

e C
ou

nc
il’s

 
ap

pro
ac

h h
as

 in
vo

lve
d w

ork
ing

 w
ith

 in
fra

str
uc

tur
e 

pro
vid

ers
, o

the
r lo

ca
l a

uth
ori

tie
s a

nd
 co

ns
ult

ee
s a

nd
 

the
y f

ou
nd

 th
at 

a r
ob

us
t a

ss
es

sm
en

t o
f in

fra
str

uc
tur

e 
req

uir
em

en
ts,

 th
e f

un
din

g i
mp

lica
tio

ns
 an

d t
he

 
tim

es
ca

les
 in

vo
lve

d h
as

 be
en

 un
de

rta
ke

n. 
 

 Th
e R

ep
ort

 co
nti

nu
es

 th
at 

wit
ho

ut 
inv

es
tm

en
t in

 
inf

ras
tru

ctu
re 

the
 le

ve
l o

f d
ev

elo
pm

en
t p

rop
os

ed
 

wo
uld

 pu
t a

n u
na

cc
ep

tab
le 

bu
rde

n o
n e

xis
tin

g 
fac

iliti
es

 an
d c

om
mu

nit
ies

 an
d w

ou
ld 

no
t p

rov
ide

 an
 

ap
pro

pri
ate

 le
ve

l o
f s

erv
ice

s t
o s

up
po

rt t
he

 ne
w 

co
mm

un
itie

s. 
 

 Th
e R

ep
ort

er 
fin

ds
 th

at 
the

 lis
t o

f c
on

trib
uti

on
s 

rel
ate

s i
n s

ca
le 

an
d k

ind
 to

 th
e p

rop
os

ed
 

de
ve

lop
me

nts
 an

d d
o n

ot 
reg

ard
 th

em
 as

 ex
ce

ss
ive

. 
Th

e R
ep

ort
er 

als
o n

ote
s t

he
 co

un
cil’

s a
ss

ert
ion

 th
at 

it 
ha

s t
ak

en
 in

to 
ac

co
un

t th
e c

ap
ac

ity
 of

 ex
ist

ing
 

se
rvi

ce
s i

n i
ts 

ca
lcu

lat
ion

s a
nd

 w
ill n

ot 
be

 se
ek

ing
 

Page 319



Re
sp
on

de
nt 

 
Su

mm
ary

 of
 co

mm
en
t  

Re
sp
on

se
 to

 co
mm

en
t 

Ch
an
ge
s (
if a

ny
) 

  
8

req
uir

es
 de

live
ry 

of 
de

ve
lop

me
nt 

in 
ad

va
nc

e o
f it

 pr
ov

isio
n. 

 W
e a

re 
co

nc
ern

ed
 th

at 
thi

s w
ill o

nly
 le

ad
 to

 
req

ue
sts

 fro
m 

Of
fic

ers
 fo

r fu
rth

er 
co

nv
en

tio
na

l n
etw

ork
-w

ide
 as

se
ss

me
nt 

wh
ich

 de
fea

ts 
the

 ob
jec

tiv
e o

f th
e S

TF
 

pro
ce

du
re,

 an
d p

ote
nti

all
y w

ill d
ela

y 
de

ve
lop

me
nt 

an
d t

he
ref

ore
 th

e f
low

 of
 

co
ntr

ibu
tio

ns
 to

 ST
F. 

 Th
e r

es
po

nd
en

t b
eli

ev
es

 th
at 

the
 ST

F 
pe

na
lise

s m
ixe

d d
ev

elo
pm

en
ts.

 Th
e L

DP
 

en
co

ura
ge

s s
us

tai
na

ble
 ne

w 
co

mm
un

itie
s 

ye
t th

e S
TF

 is
 ap

pli
ed

 to
 bo

th 
res

ide
nti

al 
an

d c
om

me
rci

al 
de

ve
lop

me
nt 

wit
hin

 a 
de

ve
lop

me
nt.

  T
his

 di
sc

ou
rag

es
 

de
ve

lop
ers

 fro
m 

pro
vid

ing
 bo

th 
em

plo
ym

en
t a

nd
 re

sid
en

tia
l u

se
s o

n a
 

sit
e. 

 Fin
all

y t
he

 re
sp

on
de

nt 
be

lie
ve

s t
ha

t th
e 

cu
rre

nt 
dra

ft o
f th

e S
G 

do
es

 no
t p

rov
ide

 
as

su
ran

ce
s t

o d
ev

elo
pe

rs 
tha

t th
eir

 
co

ntr
ibu

tio
n w

ill b
e u

se
d d

ire
ctl

y f
or 

the
ir 

sit
e i

f im
ple

me
nta

tio
n w

ill b
e m

an
ag

ed
 by

 
a N

ES
TR

AN
S c

om
mi

tte
e a

nd
 th

at 
the

 
inf

ras
tru

ctu
re 

wil
l b

e i
mp

lem
en

ted
 w

ith
in 

the
 re

qu
ire

d t
im

es
ca

le 
to 

de
live

r a
 

de
ve

lop
me

nt 
pro

po
sa

l. 
 Th

e R
es

po
nd

en
t re

co
mm

en
ds

 th
at:

 
1) 

Th
e C

ou
nc

il d
em

on
str

ate
s t

ha
t th

e S
G 

co
nfo

rm
s t

o c
irc

ula
r 1

/20
10

 an
d 

co
ntr

ibu
tio

ns
 to

 re
so

lve
 ex

ist
ing

 in
ad

eq
ua

cie
s a

nd
 is

 
sa

tis
fie

d w
ith

 th
is.

  
 Th

e R
ep

ort
er 

co
nc

lud
es

 th
at 

he
 be

lie
ve

s t
he

 pr
oc

es
s 

ca
rrie

d o
ut 

by
 th

e c
ou

nc
il t

o i
de

nti
fy 

the
 in

fra
str

uc
tur

e 
req

uir
ed

 to
 im

ple
me

nt 
the

 le
ve

l o
f d

ev
elo

pm
en

t 
pro

po
se

d i
n t

he
 st

ruc
tur

e p
lan

 to
 be

 ro
bu

st.
  

  Th
e C

ity
 an

d A
be

rde
en

sh
ire

 C
ou

nc
il, 

in 
pa

rtn
ers

hip
 w

ith
 

NE
ST

RA
NS

, T
ran

sp
ort

 Sc
otl

an
d a

nd
 th

e S
tra

teg
ic 

De
ve

lop
me

nt 
Pla

n T
ea

m 
ha

ve
 ex

plo
red

 op
tio

ns
 fo

r 
de

live
rin

g s
tra

teg
ic 

inf
ras

tru
ctu

re 
as

 de
ve

lop
me

nt 
co

me
s 

for
wa

rd 
for

 im
ple

me
nta

tio
n a

cro
ss

 th
e r

eg
ion

. 
 Cu

mu
lat

ive
 Tr

an
sp

ort
 Ap

pra
isa

l (C
TA

) d
em

on
str

ate
s 

tha
t n

ew
 de

ve
lop

me
nt 

ac
ros

s t
he

 no
rth

-ea
st 

wil
l h

av
e a

n 
im

pa
ct 

on
 tra

ns
po

rt i
nfr

as
tru

ctu
re 

an
d t

ha
t m

ov
em

en
ts 

rel
y o

n a
 ne

tw
ork

 of
 ro

ad
, ra

il a
nd

 pu
bli

c t
ran

sp
ort

 w
ith

 a 
hig

h d
eg

ree
 of

 in
ter

de
pe

nd
en

cy
 be

tw
ee

n t
he

 tw
o c

ou
nc

il 
are

as
. A

 pa
ck

ag
e o

f d
efi

ne
d t

ran
sp

ort
 pr

oje
cts

 ar
e 

ide
nti

fie
d b

y t
he

 C
TA

 to
 m

itig
ate

 th
e i

mp
ac

ts 
of 

ne
w 

de
ve

lop
me

nt.
  T

he
 pu

rpo
se

 of
 th

e S
tra

teg
ic 

Tra
ns

po
rt 

Fu
nd

 (S
TF

), a
s s

et 
ou

t in
 th

e S
up

ple
me

nta
ry 

Pla
nn

ing
 

Gu
ida

nc
e d

oc
um

en
t ‘D

eli
ve

rin
g I

de
nti

fie
d P

roj
ec

ts 
Th

rou
gh

 a 
Str

ate
gic

 Tr
an

sp
ort

 Fu
nd

’, i
s t

o p
rov

ide
 a 

me
ch

an
ism

 fo
r s

ec
uri

ng
 co

ntr
ibu

tio
ns

 fro
m 

de
ve

lop
me

nt 
to 

fun
d t

he
 de

live
ry 

of 
the

 in
fra

str
uc

tur
e n

ee
de

d t
o 

su
pp

ort
 de

ve
lop

me
nt.

   
   Th

e p
roj

ec
ts 

inc
lud

e r
oa

d a
nd

 pu
bli

c t
ran

sp
ort

 
int

erv
en

tio
ns

 in
 a 

va
rie

ty 
of 

loc
ati

on
s w

he
re 

the
 

cu
mu

lat
ive

 im
pa

ct 
of 

ne
w 

ho
us

ing
 an

d e
mp

loy
me

nt 
us

es
 

Page 320



Re
sp
on

de
nt 

 
Su

mm
ary

 of
 co

mm
en
t  

Re
sp
on

se
 to

 co
mm

en
t 

Ch
an
ge
s (
if a

ny
) 

  
9

sh
ou

ld 
be

 su
bje

cte
d t

o a
n a

ss
es

sm
en

t 
of 

its
 cu

mu
lat

ive
 im

pa
ct 

on
 

de
ve

lop
me

nt 
wh

en
 ac

co
un

tin
g f

or 
ST

F a
nd

 th
e f

ort
hc

om
ing

 w
ate

r 
inf

ras
tru

ctu
re 

fun
d; 

2) 
Th

e r
efe

ren
ce

 to
 th

e w
ate

r c
um

ula
tiv

e 
im

pa
ct 

mo
de

l is
 re

mo
ve

d g
ive

n t
ha

t 
no

 de
tai

l h
as

 be
en

 ad
va

nc
ed

 at
 th

is 
sta

ge
, 

3) 
Gr

ea
ter

 pr
ec

isio
n i

s p
rov

ide
d a

s t
o 

ho
w 

ge
ne

ric
 co

ntr
ibu

tio
ns

 w
ill b

e 
ap

pli
ed

 to
 th

e d
ire

ct 
be

ne
fit 

of 
the

 si
te,

 
4) 

Dir
ec

t p
rov

isio
n b

y t
he

 de
ve

lop
er 

sh
ou

ld 
be

 re
co

gn
ise

d a
s t

he
 pr

efe
rre

d 
rou

te 
rat

he
r th

at 
co

ntr
ibu

tio
ns

, 
5) 

Pr
oto

co
ls 

an
d p

roc
ed

ure
s f

or 
ne

go
tia

tin
g, 

mo
nit

ori
ng

 an
d r

ep
ort

ing
 

S7
5 a

gre
em

en
ts 

sh
ou

ld 
be

 in
clu

de
d 

wit
hin

 th
e d

oc
um

en
t; 

6) 
Fu

rth
er 

dis
cu

ss
ion

s n
ee

d t
o t

ak
e 

pla
ce

 ar
ou

nd
 th

e a
dm

ini
str

ati
on

 an
d 

im
ple

me
nta

tio
n o

f S
TF

. 
 

is 
like

ly 
to 

ca
us

e i
nc

rea
se

d c
on

ge
sti

on
. B

y s
ha

rin
g t

he
 

fin
an

cia
l b

urd
en

 w
ide

ly 
ac

ros
s t

he
 re

gio
n, 

no
 on

e 
de

ve
lop

me
nt 

wil
l b

e l
iab

le 
for

 th
e c

os
t o

f a
 sp

ec
ific

 
str

ate
gic

 pr
oje

ct 
or 

de
lay

ed
 by

 its
 im

ple
me

nta
tio

n. 
By

 
be

ing
 up

fro
nt 

ab
ou

t th
e m

ec
ha

nis
m 

for
 m

ak
ing

 
co

ntr
ibu

tio
ns

, d
ev

elo
pe

rs 
wil

l h
av

e g
rea

ter
 ce

rta
int

y o
ve

r 
str

ate
gic

 tra
ns

po
rt r

eq
uir

em
en

ts.
 

 All
 de

ve
lop

me
nts

, re
ga

rdl
es

s o
f S

tra
teg

ic 
Tra

ns
po

rt 
Fu

nd
 (S

TF
) re

qu
ire

me
nts

, w
ill b

e a
ss

es
se

d i
n t

erm
s o

f 
the

ir i
mp

ac
t o

n t
he

 lo
ca

l tr
an

sp
ort

 ne
tw

ork
 an

d m
ay

 be
 

req
uir

ed
 to

 m
itig

ate
 th

es
e i

mp
ac

ts.
   

 De
ve

lop
me

nts
 m

ay
 be

 re
qu

ire
d t

o m
ak

e a
n a

pp
rop

ria
te 

co
ntr

ibu
tio

n t
ow

ard
s o

ne
 or

 se
ve

ral
 of

 th
e m

itig
ati

on
 

me
as

ure
s o

utl
ine

d i
n t

he
 In

fra
str

uc
tur

e a
nd

 D
ev

elo
pe

r 
Co

ntr
ibu

tio
ns

 M
an

ua
l o

r a
ny

 ot
he

r m
ea

su
re 

tha
t th

e 
Co

un
cil 

de
em

 to
 be

 ap
pro

pri
ate

.   
 Ov

era
ll t

he
 C

ou
nc

il d
o n

ot 
co

ns
ide

r th
e i

nfr
as

tru
ctu

re 
req

uir
em

en
ts 

to 
be

 ex
ce

ss
ive

.  T
he

 ST
F h

as
 be

en
 

de
vis

ed
 th

rou
gh

 tra
ns

po
rt m

od
ell

ing
 to

 as
se

ss
 th

e 
cu

mu
lat

ive
 im

pa
ct 

of 
de

ve
lop

me
nt 

pro
po

se
d a

nd
 th

e 
sc

ale
 of

 st
rat

eg
ic 

tra
ns

po
rt i

nte
rve

nti
on

s l
ike

ly 
to 

be
 

req
uir

ed
 to

 su
pp

ort
 th

is 
de

ve
lop

me
nt.

  F
urt

he
r 

co
ntr

ibu
tio

ns
 as

 st
ate

d w
ith

in 
the

 M
an

ua
l w

ill b
e 

ide
nti

fie
d t

hro
ug

h n
eg

oti
ati

on
 w

ith
 th

e C
ou

nc
il. 

 Re
lat
ion

sh
ip 
to 

Pr
op
os
ed
 D
ev
elo

pm
en
t 

 All
 de

ve
lop

me
nt 

sit
es

 w
ill h

av
e t

o p
rov

ide
 th

e 
inf

ras
tru

ctu
re 

an
d d

ev
elo

pe
r c

on
trib

uti
on

s n
ec

es
sa

ry 
to 

mi
tig

ate
 th

e i
mp

ac
t o

f d
ev

elo
pm

en
t. T

he
 ne

ed
 fo

r n
ew

 or
 

Page 321



Re
sp
on

de
nt 

 
Su

mm
ary

 of
 co

mm
en
t  

Re
sp
on

se
 to

 co
mm

en
t 

Ch
an
ge
s (
if a

ny
) 

  
10

 

im
pro

ve
d i

nfr
as

tru
ctu

re 
ha

s b
ee

n i
de

nti
fie

d f
oll

ow
ing

 
de

tai
led

 an
aly

sis
 of

 th
e c

ap
ac

ity
 of

 ex
ist

ing
 se

rvi
ce

s t
o 

co
pe

 w
ith

 ad
dit

ion
al 

de
ve

lop
me

nt,
 as

 w
ell

 as
 th

e 
for

ec
as

ted
 im

pa
ct 

of 
de

ve
lop

me
nts

 ba
se

d o
n t

he
 

inf
orm

ati
on

 av
ail

ab
le 

at 
tha

t ti
me

. A
s s

uc
h, 

the
se

 
req

uir
em

en
ts 

are
 ne

ce
ss

ary
 in

 pl
an

nin
g t

erm
s t

o m
ak

e 
de

ve
lop

me
nt 

ac
ce

pta
ble

, a
nd

 to
 av

oid
 an

y d
etr

im
en

tal
 

im
pa

ct 
on

 se
rvi

ce
s a

nd
 in

fra
str

uc
tur

e. 
 Th

e R
ep

ort
er 

to 
the

 Ex
am

ina
tio

n R
ep

ort
 to

 th
e 

Ab
erd

ee
n L

DP
 ha

s a
lso

 no
ted

 th
at 

the
 co

un
cil’

s 
ap

pro
ac

h h
as

 in
vo

lve
d w

ork
ing

 w
ith

 in
fra

str
uc

tur
e 

pro
vid

ers
, o

the
r lo

ca
l a

uth
ori

tie
s a

nd
 co

ns
ult

ee
s a

nd
 

fou
nd

 th
at 

a r
ob

us
t a

ss
es

sm
en

t o
f in

fra
str

uc
tur

e 
req

uir
em

en
ts,

 th
e f

un
din

g i
mp

lica
tio

ns
 an

d t
he

 
tim

es
ca

les
 in

vo
lve

d w
as

 un
de

rta
ke

n. 
 

 Cir
cu

lar
 1/

20
10

 – 
Pla

nn
ing

 ag
ree

me
nts

, re
co

mm
en

ds
 

tha
t m

eth
od

s a
nd

 ex
ac

t le
ve

ls 
of 

co
ntr

ibu
tio

ns
 sh

ou
ld 

be
 

inc
lud

ed
 in

 su
pp

lem
en

tar
y g

uid
an

ce
.  T

he
 R

ep
ort

er 
to 

the
 Ex

am
ina

tio
n R

ep
ort

 is
 of

 th
e o

pin
ion

 th
at 

the
 co

un
cil 

ha
s a

tte
mp

ted
 to

 do
 th

is.
   H

e c
on

tin
ue

s t
ha

t h
e f

ee
ls 

tha
t o

pp
ort

un
itie

s f
or 

dis
cu

ss
ion

 ab
ou

t th
e p

rec
ise

 ne
ed

 
for

 in
fra

str
uc

tur
e a

nd
 th

e p
roc

es
s f

or 
de

live
ry 

are
 al

so
 

ide
nti

fie
d a

nd
 no

tes
 th

at 
in 

ce
rta

in 
ins

tan
ce

s f
urt

he
r w

ork
 

is 
req

uir
ed

 to
 fin

ali
se

 th
e m

ec
ha

nis
ms

 or
 pr

ec
ise

 
co

sti
ng

s i
nv

olv
ed

 pa
rtic

ula
rly

 w
ith

 re
ga

rd 
to 

the
 

cu
mu

lat
ive

 im
pa

ct 
of 

pro
po

sa
ls.

 C
on

tra
ry 

to 
so

me
 of

 th
e 

arg
um

en
ts 

pu
t fo

rw
ard

 th
e R

ep
ort

er 
do

es
 no

t re
ga

rd 
thi

s 
as

 a 
fat

al 
fla

w 
in 

the
 co

un
cil’

s a
pp

roa
ch

 an
d w

rite
s t

ha
t 

giv
en

 th
e e

arl
y s

tag
e o

f d
ev

elo
pm

en
t o

n m
an

y o
f th

e 
sit

es
 pr

op
os

ed
 it 

is 
ine

vit
ab

le 
tha

t th
e e

xa
ct 

lev
el 

of 
co

ntr
ibu

tio
ns

 m
ay

 ch
an

ge
 th

rou
gh

 tim
e. 

 

Page 322



Re
sp
on

de
nt 

 
Su

mm
ary

 of
 co

mm
en
t  

Re
sp
on

se
 to

 co
mm

en
t 

Ch
an
ge
s (
if a

ny
) 

  
11

 

 In 
rel

ati
on

 to
 th

e S
TF

, th
e a

pp
roa

ch
 ta

ke
n b

y b
oth

 
Ab

erd
ee

n C
ity

 an
d A

be
rde

en
sh

ire
 C

ou
nc

ils 
ref

lec
ts 

the
 

go
ve

rnm
en

t g
uid

an
ce

 se
t o

ut 
in 

Cir
cu

lar
 1/

20
10

 
Pla

nn
ing

 Ag
ree

me
nts

 (p
ara

gra
ph

 18
) w

hic
h s

tat
es

 th
at:

  
“P

lan
nin

g a
gre

em
en

ts 
mu

st 
be

 re
lat

ed
 in

 sc
ale

 an
d k

ind
 to

 
the

 pr
op

os
ed

 de
ve

lop
me

nt.
 In

 as
se

ss
ing

 an
y c

on
trib

uti
on

s 
pla

nn
ing

 au
tho

riti
es

 m
ay

 ta
ke

 in
to 

ac
co

un
t th

e c
um

ula
tiv

e 
im

pa
ct 

of 
de

ve
lop

me
nt 

ov
er 

tim
e. 

Th
e e

ffe
ct 

of 
su

ch
 

inf
ras

tru
ctu

re 
inv

es
tm

en
t m

ay
 be

 to
 co

nfe
r s

om
e w

ide
r 

co
mm

un
ity

 be
ne

fit 
bu

t c
on

trib
uti

on
s s

ho
uld

 al
wa

ys
 be

 
pro

po
rtio

na
te 

to 
the

 sc
ale

 of
 th

e p
rop

os
ed

 de
ve

lop
me

nt.
” 

 In 
ad

dit
ion

 to
 th

is 
the

 C
um

ula
tiv

e T
ran

sp
ort

 Ap
pra

isa
l 

tak
es

 ac
co

un
t o

f th
e c

ap
ac

ity
 of

 th
e t

ran
sp

ort
 ne

tw
ork

 to
 

ac
co

mm
od

ate
 ne

w 
de

ve
lop

me
nt 

an
d p

rov
ide

s e
vid

en
ce

 
tha

t a
 nu

mb
er 

of 
tra

ns
po

rt-r
ela

ted
 m

itig
ati

on
 m

ea
su

res
 

are
 re

qu
ire

d b
ut 

ca
n n

ot 
be

 at
trib

ute
d t

o t
he

 im
pa

cts
 of

 
sp

ec
ific

 de
ve

lop
me

nts
. O

n t
his

 ba
sis

, th
e S

tra
teg

ic 
De

ve
lop

me
nt 

Pla
nn

ing
 Au

tho
rity

, b
oth

 co
un

cils
 an

d k
ey

 
pa

rtn
ers

 to
ok

 a 
joi

nt 
de

cis
ion

 to
 fin

d a
 m

ec
ha

nis
m 

for
 

ap
ply

ing
 th

e c
os

ts 
of 

the
se

 cu
mu

lat
ive

 ite
ms

 of
 

inf
ras

tru
ctu

re 
to 

ne
w 

de
ve

lop
me

nt 
all

oc
ate

d t
hro

ug
h t

he
 

str
uc

tur
e p

lan
 an

d s
ub

se
qu

en
t L

DP
s. 

Fu
nd

am
en

tal
ly,

 
thi

s a
pp

roa
ch

 se
ek

s t
o e

ns
ure

 th
at 

de
ve

lop
me

nt 
in 

the
 

fut
ure

 do
es

 no
t h

av
e a

 de
trim

en
tal

 im
pa

ct 
on

 th
e 

tra
ns

po
rt n

etw
ork

. 
 W
he

re 
de

ve
lop

me
nts

 ar
e b

ein
g b

rou
gh

t fo
rw

ard
 fo

r 
im

ple
me

nta
tio

n t
hro

ug
h m

as
ter

pla
n a

nd
 pl

an
nin

g 
ap

pli
ca

tio
ns

, th
e C

ou
nc

il w
ill d

isc
us

s w
ith

 de
ve

lop
ers

 th
e 

ex
ac

t le
ve

l o
f c

on
trib

uti
on

 an
d s

ca
le 

of 
int

erv
en

tio
n 

req
uir

ed
 to

 m
itig

ate
 an

y i
mp

ac
ts.

  S
uc

h d
isc

us
sio

n w
ill 

be
 in

for
me

d b
y m

ore
 de

tai
led

 in
for

ma
tio

n s
ub

mi
tte

d b
y 

Page 323



Re
sp
on

de
nt 

 
Su

mm
ary

 of
 co

mm
en
t  

Re
sp
on

se
 to

 co
mm

en
t 

Ch
an
ge
s (
if a

ny
) 

  
12

 

the
 de

ve
lop

er,
 to

 en
su

re 
tha

t a
ny

 co
ntr

ibu
tio

ns
 so

ug
ht 

are
 di

rec
tly

 re
lat

ed
 to

 th
e i

mp
ac

t o
f th

e d
ev

elo
pm

en
t. 

 All
 de

ve
lop

me
nt 

sit
es

, w
he

the
r li

ste
d o

r n
ot 

wit
hin

 th
e 

Ma
ste

rpl
an

 Zo
ne

s t
ab

le 
wit

hin
 th

e M
an

ua
l, L

DP
 or

 
Ac

tio
n P

rog
ram

me
, w

ill h
av

e t
o p

rov
ide

 th
e n

ec
es

sa
ry 

inf
ras

tru
ctu

re 
an

d d
ev

elo
pe

r c
on

trib
uti

on
s n

ec
es

sa
ry 

to 
mi

tig
ate

 th
e i

mp
ac

t o
f d

ev
elo

pm
en

t.  
 

 Re
as
on

ab
len

es
s T

es
t 

 Th
e n

ee
d f

or 
ne

w 
or 

im
pro

ve
d i

nfr
as

tru
ctu

re 
ha

s b
ee

n 
ide

nti
fie

d f
oll

ow
ing

 de
tai

led
 an

aly
sis

 of
 th

e c
ap

ac
ity

 of
 

ex
ist

ing
 se

rvi
ce

s t
o c

op
e w

ith
 ad

dit
ion

al 
de

ve
lop

me
nt,

 
as

 w
ell

 as
 th

e f
ore

ca
ste

d i
mp

ac
t o

f d
ev

elo
pm

en
ts 

ba
se

d 
on

 th
e i

nfo
rm

ati
on

 av
ail

ab
le 

at 
tha

t ti
me

. A
s s

uc
h, 

the
se

 
req

uir
em

en
ts 

are
 ne

ce
ss

ary
 in

 pl
an

nin
g t

erm
s t

o m
ak

e 
de

ve
lop

me
nt 

ac
ce

pta
ble

, a
nd

 to
 av

oid
 an

y d
etr

im
en

tal
 

im
pa

ct 
on

 se
rvi

ce
s a

nd
 in

fra
str

uc
tur

e. 
 

 W
hil
st 

the
 C

ou
nc

il r
ec

og
nis

es
 th

ere
 ar

e c
ha

lle
ng

es
 to

 
de

live
rin

g i
nfr

as
tru

ctu
re 

in 
the

 cu
rre

nt 
fin

an
cia

l c
lim

ate
, it

 
wil

l b
e i

mp
ort

an
t fo

r th
e C

ou
nc

il t
o w

ork
 cl

os
ely

 w
ith

 th
e 

de
ve

lop
me

nt 
ind

us
try

 to
 fin

d s
olu

tio
ns

 to
 de

live
rin

g 
de

ve
lop

me
nt 

an
d t

he
 ne

ce
ss

ary
 in

fra
str

uc
tur

e t
o 

mi
tig

ate
 an

y i
mp

ac
ts.

 Th
e C

ou
nc

il c
an

 ut
ilis

e 
me

ch
an

ism
s t

o s
pre

ad
 co

sts
 th

rou
gh

 st
ag

ed
 pa

ym
en

ts 
wh

ere
 ap

pro
pri

ate
, a

nd
 w

e a
re 

ex
plo

rin
g o

pp
ort

un
itie

s 
for

 up
-fro

nt 
fun

din
g. 

 Th
e R

ep
ort

er 
to 

the
 Ex

am
ina

tio
n R

ep
ort

 to
 th

e 
Ab

erd
ee

n L
DP

 no
tes

 th
at 

in 
lin

e w
ith

 th
e s

tru
ctu

re 
pla

n 
sp

ati
al 

str
ate

gy
 th

e l
oc

al 
de

ve
lop

me
nt 

pla
n p

rop
os

es
 

Page 324



Re
sp
on

de
nt 

 
Su

mm
ary

 of
 co

mm
en
t  

Re
sp
on

se
 to

 co
mm

en
t 

Ch
an
ge
s (
if a

ny
) 

  
13

 

ma
jor

 de
ve

lop
me

nt 
wit

hin
 th

e A
be

rde
en

 C
ity

 ar
ea

. T
his

 
wil

l re
qu

ire
 a 

ne
tw

ork
 of

 ne
w 

inf
ras

tru
ctu

re 
su

ch
 as

 
roa

ds
, p

ub
lic 

tra
ns

po
rt a

nd
 se

we
rs 

tog
eth

er 
wit

h s
oc

ial
 

inf
ras

tru
ctu

re 
su

ch
 as

 sc
ho

ols
, d

oc
tor

’s 
su

rge
rie

s, 
de

nti
sts

, o
pe

n s
pa

ce
 an

d o
the

r c
om

mu
nit

y f
ac

iliti
es

. 
W
ith

ou
t in

ve
stm

en
t in

 th
is 

inf
ras

tru
ctu

re 
the

 le
ve

l o
f 

de
ve

lop
me

nt 
pro

po
se

d w
ou

ld 
pu

t a
n u

na
cc

ep
tab

le 
bu

rde
n o

n e
xis

tin
g f

ac
iliti

es
 an

d c
om

mu
nit

ies
 an

d w
ou

ld 
no

t p
rov

ide
 an

 ap
pro

pri
ate

 le
ve

l o
f s

erv
ice

s t
o s

up
po

rt 
the

 ne
w 

co
mm

un
itie

s. 
At 

the
 sa

me
 tim

e a
 nu

mb
er 

of 
tra

ns
po

rt r
ela

ted
 pr

oje
cts

 to
 im

pro
ve

 th
e r

eg
ion

al 
tra

ns
po

rt n
etw

ork
 ar

e b
ein

g d
ev

elo
pe

d b
y t

he
 co

un
cil 

in 
pa

rtn
ers

hip
 w

ith
 ot

he
r k

ey
 ag

en
cie

s a
nd

 Ab
erd

ee
ns

hir
e 

Co
un

cil.
 Th

es
e s

ch
em

es
 ar

e n
ot 

ex
pe

cte
d t

o b
e s

ub
jec

t 
to 

de
ve

lop
er 

co
ntr

ibu
tio

ns
 bu

t w
ill b

rin
g s

ign
ific

an
t 

be
ne

fits
 to

 th
e t

ran
sp

ort
 in

fra
str

uc
tur

e o
f th

e e
nti

re 
str

uc
tur

e p
lan

 ar
ea

.  
 W
hil
e a

ck
no

wle
dg

ing
 th

e c
on

ce
rns

 ab
ou

t th
e i

mp
ac

t o
n 

the
 vi

ab
ility

 of
 de

ve
lop

me
nts

 du
e t

o t
he

 ex
tra

 ex
pe

ns
e 

wh
ich

 w
ill b

e i
nc

urr
ed

, S
co

ttis
h P

lan
nin

g P
oli

cy
 (S

PP
) 

cle
arl

y r
ec

og
nis

es
 in

 pa
rag

rap
h 1

6 t
ha

t in
ve

stm
en

t in
 

inf
ras

tru
ctu

re 
ma

y b
e r

eq
uir

ed
 as

 a 
co

ns
eq

ue
nc

e o
f 

ex
ist

ing
 un

de
r p

rov
isio

n a
nd

/or
 pl

an
ne

d g
row

th.
 Th

e 
str

uc
tur

e p
lan

 st
ate

s i
n p

ara
gra

ph
 5.

7 t
ha

t c
on

sid
era

ble
 

inv
es

tm
en

t in
 ex

ist
ing

 an
d n

ew
 in

fra
str

uc
tur

e w
ill b

e 
req

uir
ed

 in
 or

de
r to

 m
ain

tai
n t

he
 qu

ali
ty 

of 
life

 in
 

co
mm

un
itie

s g
ive

n t
he

 le
ve

l o
f g

row
th 

wh
ich

 it 
pro

po
se

s. 
Pa

rag
rap

h 5
.8 

co
nfi

rm
s t

ha
t d

ev
elo

pe
rs 

wil
l h

av
e t

o 
ac

ce
pt 

the
 ne

ed
 fo

r c
on

trib
uti

on
s t

ow
ard

s n
ec

es
sa

ry 
inf

ras
tru

ctu
re,

 se
rvi

ce
s a

nd
 fa

cili
tie

s w
ith

in 
the

ir o
wn

 si
te 

as
 w

ell
 as

 ex
tra

 co
ntr

ibu
tio

ns
 in

 ca
se

s w
he

re 
the

ir 
de

ve
lop

me
nt 

ha
s w

ide
r e

ffe
cts

.  

Page 325



Re
sp
on

de
nt 

 
Su

mm
ary

 of
 co

mm
en
t  

Re
sp
on

se
 to

 co
mm

en
t 

Ch
an
ge
s (
if a

ny
) 

  
14

 

 Th
e l

oc
al 

de
ve

lop
me

nt 
pla

n e
mp

ha
sis

es
 th

e n
ee

d f
or 

de
ve

lop
ers

 to
 ta

ke
 in

to 
ac

co
un

t th
e l

ike
ly 

req
uir

em
en

t fo
r 

a c
on

trib
uti

on
 w

he
n p

rep
ari

ng
 an

d c
os

tin
g p

rop
os

als
 

an
d e

arl
y d

isc
us

sio
n w

ith
 th

e c
ou

nc
il is

 en
co

ura
ge

d. 
Th

e 
pro

po
se

d s
up

ple
me

nta
ry 

gu
ida

nc
e s

tat
es

 th
at 

the
 

pre
cis

e l
ev

el 
of 

inf
ras

tru
ctu

re 
pro

vis
ion

 an
d d

ev
elo

pe
r 

co
ntr

ibu
tio

n r
eq

uir
ed

 fro
m 

an
y d

ev
elo

pm
en

t w
ill b

e 
ag

ree
d w

ith
 th

e c
ou

nc
il in

 co
ns

ult
ati

on
 w

ith
 ot

he
r 

sta
tut

ory
 ag

en
cie

s. 
It g

oe
s o

n t
o s

ay
 th

at 
the

 in
ten

tio
n 

ha
s b

ee
n t

o a
vo

id 
de

ter
rin

g d
ev

elo
pm

en
t b

y m
ak

ing
 

un
rea

so
na

ble
 de

ma
nd

s a
nd

 to
 se

ek
 in

fra
str

uc
tur

e o
r 

de
ve

lop
er 

co
ntr

ibu
tio

ns
 w

hic
h a

re 
pro

po
rtio

na
te 

to 
the

 
de

ve
lop

me
nt 

pro
po

se
d. 

 
 Th

e R
ep

ort
er 

co
ns

ide
rs 

tha
t th

e c
ou

nc
il’s

 ap
pro

ac
h 

inc
lud

es
 am

ple
 op

po
rtu

nit
ies

 at
 bo

th 
the

 m
as

ter
pla

nn
ing

 
an

d p
lan

nin
g a

pp
lica

tio
n s

tag
es

 fo
r n

eg
oti

ati
on

s t
o t

ak
e 

pla
ce

 to
 en

su
re 

tha
t th

e c
os

t im
pli

ca
tio

ns
 as

 a 
res

ult
 of

 
inf

ras
tru

ctu
re 

req
uir

em
en

ts 
do

 no
t u

nn
ec

es
sa

rily
 im

pe
de

 
the

 ef
fec

tiv
e d

eli
ve

ry 
of 

sit
es

.  
 Tr
an
sp
or
t In

fra
str

uc
tur

e 
 Th

e p
roj

ec
ts 

are
 id

en
tifi

ed
 at

 th
e h

igh
 le

ve
l, a

s a
re 

the
 

es
tim

ate
s, 

wh
ich

 w
ill b

e s
ub

jec
t to

 re
vie

w 
as

 pe
r th

e 
po

licy
 an

d d
eta

ile
d a

ss
es

sm
en

t. T
his

 is
 co

ns
ist

en
t w

ith
 

oth
er 

str
ate

gie
s w

he
re 

hig
h l

ev
el 

pro
jec

ts 
are

 id
en

tifi
ed

 
at 

an
 ea

rly
 st

ag
e, 

an
d t

hro
ug

h f
urt

he
r a

ss
es

sm
en

t w
ill 

be
 re

fin
ed

 an
d s

ub
jec

t to
 pr

oc
es

se
s s

uc
h a

s 
co

ns
ult

ati
on

. T
he

 C
um

ula
tiv

e I
mp

ac
t A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
do

cu
me

nt 
giv

es
 th

e a
pp

rop
ria

te 
lev

el 
of 

de
tai

l a
t th

is 
sta

ge
, a

nd
 fo

llo
win

g a
gre

em
en

t o
n p

rio
riti

sa
tio

n, 
wil

l 

Page 326



Re
sp
on

de
nt 

 
Su

mm
ary

 of
 co

mm
en
t  

Re
sp
on

se
 to

 co
mm

en
t 

Ch
an
ge
s (
if a

ny
) 

  
15

 

the
n b

e s
ub

jec
t to

 th
e m

ore
 de

tai
led

 as
se

ss
me

nt 
an

d 
de

ve
lop

me
nt.

 
 Th

e t
ran

sp
ort

 as
se

ss
me

nt 
pro

ce
ss

 w
ill a

ss
ist

 in
 

ide
nti

fyi
ng

 th
e d

iffe
ren

ce
s b

etw
ee

n t
he

 lo
ca

l a
nd

 
str

ate
gic

 im
pa

cts
. 

 Th
e p

rio
riti

sa
tio

n p
roc

es
s w

hic
h i

s c
urr

en
tly

 on
-go

ing
 w

ill 
se

ek
 to

 de
live

r th
e S

TF
 in

 ac
co

rda
nc

e w
ith

 th
e p

ac
e o

f 
de

live
ry 

of 
LD

P d
ev

elo
pm

en
t - 

be
ari

ng
 in

 m
ind

 bo
th 

wil
l 

tak
e s

ev
era

l y
ea

rs 
to 

bu
ild

 ou
t. I

nfo
rm

ati
on

 ha
s t

he
ref

ore
 

alr
ea

dy
 be

en
 so

ug
ht 

fro
m 

the
 de

ve
lop

me
nt 

ind
us

try
 to

 
inf

orm
 th

is 
pro

ce
ss

. T
he

 Tr
an

sp
ort

 As
se

ss
me

nt 
an

d 
mo

re 
de

tai
led

 ph
as

ing
 of

 de
ve

lop
me

nt 
via

 
ma

ste
rpl

an
nin

g a
nd

 su
bs

eq
ue

nt 
pla

nn
ing

 ap
pli

ca
tio

ns
 

wil
l h

elp
 in

for
m 

the
 le

ve
l o

f tr
an

sp
ort

 in
fra

str
uc

tur
e w

hic
h 

mu
st 

be
 in

 pl
ac

e f
or 

the
 de

ve
lop

me
nt,

 an
d w

ha
t w

ill b
e 

pro
gre

ss
ed

 in
 pa

ral
lel

 by
 th

e l
oc

al 
au

tho
riti

es
 in

 te
rm

s o
f 

de
live

ry 
of 

the
 ST

F. 
 ST

F c
on

trib
uti

on
s a

re 
for

 th
e c

um
ula

tiv
e i

mp
ac

t 
me

as
ure

s -
 no

t s
pe

cif
ica

lly 
for

 in
fra

str
uc

tur
e p

rox
im

al 
to 

the
ir d

ev
elo

pm
en

t. T
he

 po
licy

 al
so

 ou
tlin

es
 th

e 
go

ve
rna

nc
e o

f th
e S

TF
 w

hic
h w

ill b
e t

ran
sp

are
nt 

an
d 

rep
ort

ed
 re

gu
lar

ly.
  T

his
, in

 ad
dit

ion
 to

 th
e p

rio
riti

sa
tio

n 
pro

ce
ss

 w
hic

h i
s c

urr
en

tly
 on

-go
ing

, w
ill a

ll b
e s

ub
jec

t to
 

co
ns

ult
ati

on
 an

d r
eg

ula
r re

vie
w 

aft
er 

ag
ree

me
nt.

 
 1) 

    
Th

e t
ran

sp
ort

 cu
mu

lat
ive

 im
pa

ct 
as

se
ss

me
nt 

for
 

the
 ST

F h
as

 al
rea

dy
 be

en
 un

de
rta

ke
n. 

2) 
  R

efe
ren

ce
 to

 a 
po

ten
tia

l C
um

ula
tiv

e F
un

d w
ill 

rem
ain

 as
 th

is 
is 

an
 op

tio
n w

hic
h i

s c
urr

en
tly

 be
ing

 
inv

es
tig

ate
d a

nd
 m

ay
 pr

ov
e a

 us
efu

l to
ol 

in 
the

 fu
tur

e. 

Page 327



Re
sp
on

de
nt 

 
Su

mm
ary

 of
 co

mm
en
t  

Re
sp
on

se
 to

 co
mm

en
t 

Ch
an
ge
s (
if a

ny
) 

  
16

 

3) 
    

Th
e S

TF
 lo

ok
s t

o d
ea

l w
ith

 th
e c

um
ula

tiv
e i

mp
ac

t 
of 

all
 de

ve
lop

me
nt.

 
4) 

    
Dir

ec
t p

rov
isio

n b
y t

he
 de

ve
lop

er 
sh

ou
ld 

be
 

rec
og

nis
ed

 as
 th

e p
ref

err
ed

 ro
ute

 ra
the

r th
at 

co
ntr

ibu
tio

ns
, th

e r
ea

so
n w

e a
re 

do
ing

 th
e S

TF
 is

 th
at 

thi
s r

ou
te 

ha
sn

t w
ork

ed
 pa

rtic
ula

rly
 w

ell
 in

 th
e p

as
t to

 
de

al 
wit

h c
um

ula
tiv

e i
mp

ac
t o

f d
ev

elo
pm

en
t 

5&
6) 

    
Pr

oto
co

ls 
an

d p
roc

ed
ure

s f
or 

ne
go

tia
tin

g, 
mo

nit
ori

ng
 an

d r
ep

ort
ing

 S7
5 a

gre
em

en
ts 

sh
ou

ld 
be

 
inc

lud
ed

 w
ith

in 
the

 do
cu

me
nt;

 ST
F i

s n
ot 

a n
eg

oti
ati

on
 - 

it i
s a

bo
ut 

mi
tig

ati
ng

 th
e a

ctu
al 

im
pa

cts
 of

 de
ve

lop
me

nt 
on

 th
e s

tra
teg

ic 
tra

ns
po

rt n
etw

ork
, p

rot
oc

ols
 an

d 
pro

ce
du

res
 re

 th
e l

eg
al 

ag
ree

me
nts

 ar
e i

n p
lac

e a
nd

 ar
e 

be
ing

 re
fin

ed
 as

 w
e c

on
tin

ue
, a

s I
 sa

id 
be

for
e t

he
 

go
ve

rna
nc

e a
nd

 tra
ns

pa
ren

cy
 of

 th
e S

TF
 w

ill b
e 

rep
ort

ed
 re

gu
lar

ly 
via

 N
ES

TR
AN

S 
 

Du
nd

as
 &
 

Wi
lso

n o
n b

eh
alf
 

of 
AS

DA
 St

or
es
 

1. 
Ge

ne
ral

ly 
su

pp
ort

 th
e r

ole
 of

 
de

ve
lop

er 
co

ntr
ibu

tio
ns

 an
d t

hin
k t

ha
t 

the
y a

re 
ap

pro
pri

ate
 w

he
re 

co
ntr

ibu
tio

ns
 ar

e s
ou

gh
t to

 ad
dre

ss
 

the
 im

pa
cts

 of
 th

e p
rop

os
ed

 
de

ve
lop

me
nt.

 
2. 

In 
ter

ms
 of

 th
e S

TF
, th

e r
es

po
nd

en
t 

wo
uld

 lik
e i

t to
 cl

ea
rly

 st
ate

 th
at 

ST
F 

co
ntr

ibu
tio

ns
 w

ill o
nly

 be
 so

ug
ht 

fro
m 

ne
wly

 al
loc

ate
d s

ite
s a

nd
 w

ind
fal

l 
sit

es
 w

he
n t

he
 re

lev
an

t c
rite

rio
n s

et 
ou

t in
 th

e S
G 

is 
sa

tis
fie

d. 
3. 

Th
e r

es
po

nd
en

t w
ou

ld 
su

pp
ort

 a 
cle

are
r re

co
gn

itio
n o

f th
e p

rin
cip

le 
se

t 
ou

t in
 Po

licy
 I1

 an
d t

he
 te

sts
 fro

m 
Cir

cu
lar

 1/
20

10
 in

 al
l s

ec
tio

ns
. 

1. 
W
elc

om
e t

he
 co

mm
en

ts 
ma

de
 su

pp
ort

ing
 th

e r
ole

 of
 

de
ve

lop
er 

co
ntr

ibu
tio

ns
 an

d t
he

 m
an

ua
l. 

2. 
Pr

oc
es

s f
or 

ide
nti

fyi
ng

 op
po

rtu
nit

y s
ite

s w
ith

in 
the

 
LD

P t
ha

t w
ill c

on
trib

ute
 to

wa
rds

 th
e S

TF
: 

- 
If t

he
 ap

pli
ca

tio
n s

ite
 w

as
 al

loc
ate

d i
n t

he
 20

08
 Lo

ca
l 

Pla
n, 

str
ate

gic
 co

ntr
ibu

tio
ns

 w
ou

ld 
no

t b
e r

eq
uir

ed
, 

un
les

s a
n a

lte
rna

tiv
e u

se
 or

 la
rge

r s
ca

le 
of 

de
ve

lop
me

nt 
is 

pro
po

se
d w

hic
h g

en
era

tes
 a 

gre
ate

r 
tra

ns
po

rt i
mp

ac
t th

an
 th

at 
an

tic
ipa

ted
 fro

m 
the

 20
08

 
Lo

ca
l P

lan
 al

loc
ati

on
. In

 th
at 

ca
se

, th
e p

rec
ise

 le
ve

l 
of 

Str
ate

gic
 Tr

an
sp

ort
 C

on
trib

uti
on

s w
ou

ld 
ne

ed
 to

 
be

 id
en

tifi
ed

 in
 or

de
r to

 m
itig

ate
 th

e w
ide

r im
pa

ct 
of 

the
 de

ve
lop

me
nt 

on
 th

e t
ran

sp
ort

 ne
tw

ork
. 

- 
Fo

r a
ny

 ne
w 

de
ve

lop
me

nts
 al

loc
ate

d f
or 

the
 fir

st 
tim

e 
in 

the
 Lo

ca
l D

ev
elo

pm
en

t P
lan

, th
es

e s
ite

s w
ou

ld 
ma

ke
 a 

str
ate

gic
 tra

ns
po

rt c
on

trib
uti

on
 ba

se
d o

n t
he

 

                

Page 328



Re
sp
on

de
nt 

 
Su

mm
ary

 of
 co

mm
en
t  

Re
sp
on

se
 to

 co
mm

en
t 

Ch
an
ge
s (
if a

ny
) 

  
17

 

4. 
Th

e S
G 

sh
ou

ld 
rec

og
nis

e t
ha

t a
 ne

ed
 

for
 ne

w 
or 

im
pro

ve
d s

erv
ice

s, 
fac

iliti
es

 
or 

inf
ras

tru
ctu

re,
 re

lat
ing

 di
rec

tly
 to

 
the

 pr
op

os
ed

 de
ve

lop
me

nt,
 m

us
t b

e 
cle

arl
y i

de
nti

fie
d b

efo
re 

co
ntr

ibu
tio

ns
 

are
 so

ug
ht.

 
5. 

Re
sp

on
de

nt 
thi

nk
s t

ha
t b

ull
et 

po
int

 
tw

o a
nd

 th
ree

 of
 th

e G
en

era
l 

Pr
inc

ipl
es

 fo
r A

ll D
ev

elo
pm

en
t c

ou
ld 

be
 in

ter
pre

ted
 as

 su
gg

es
tin

g t
ha

t a
ll 

de
ve

lop
me

nt 
wil

l a
uto

ma
tic

all
y h

av
e 

an
 im

pa
ct 

on
 ex

ist
ing

 se
rvi

ce
s w

hic
h 

wil
l re

qu
ire

 to
 be

 m
itig

ate
d b

y w
ay

 of
 

de
ve

lop
er 

co
ntr

ibu
tio

ns
.  T

he
 

su
gg

es
tio

n i
s t

o i
nc

lud
e t

he
 w

ord
s 

“w
he

re 
im

pa
cts

 re
qu

irin
g m

itig
ati

on
 

ha
ve

 be
en

 cl
ea

rly
 id

en
tifi

ed
” a

t th
e 

en
d o

f th
e s

ec
on

d a
nd

 th
ird

 bu
lle

t 
po

int
s w

ou
ld 

giv
e r

ec
og

nit
ion

 to
 th

e 
req

uir
em

en
t fo

r d
ev

elo
pe

r 
co

ntr
ibu

tio
ns

 to
 be

 ne
ce

ss
ary

 to
 

mi
tig

ate
 th

e i
mp

ac
ts 

of 
the

 
de

ve
lop

me
nt 

to 
wh

ich
 th

ey
 re

lat
e. 

6. 
Re

sp
on

de
nt 

we
lco

me
s e

arl
y 

en
ga

ge
me

nt.
   

7. 
Re

sp
on

de
nt 

we
lco

me
s t

he
 in

cre
as

ed
 

us
e o

f d
raf

t h
ea

ds
 of

 te
rm

s f
or 

Se
cti

on
 

75
 ag

ree
me

nts
 pr

ior
 to

 co
mm

itte
e 

me
eti

ng
s t

o r
ed

uc
e t

he
 lik

eli
ho

od
 of

 
len

gth
y n

eg
oti

ati
on

s p
os

t c
om

mi
tte

e 
an

d a
llo

w 
the

 de
cis

ion
 no

tic
e t

o b
e 

iss
ue

d i
n a

 tim
ely

 m
an

ne
r. 

8. 
Re

sp
on

de
nt 

no
tes

 th
at 

ap
art

 fro
m 

the
 

co
rre

sp
on

din
g s

tan
da

rds
 fo

r h
ou

sin
g a

nd
 

em
plo

ym
en

t la
nd

 se
t o

ut 
in 

the
 Su

pp
lem

en
tar

y 
Pla

nn
ing

 G
uid

an
ce

 ‘D
eli

ve
ry 

Ide
nti

fie
d P

roj
ec

ts 
Th

rou
gh

 a 
Str

ate
gic

 Tr
an

sp
ort

 Fu
nd

’. 
3. 

W
e c

on
sid

er 
tha

t th
e p

rop
os

ed
 ap

pro
ac

h t
o p

lan
nin

g 
an

d d
eli

ve
rin

g i
nfr

as
tru

ctu
re 

is 
ap

pro
pri

ate
 an

d 
co

mp
lie

s w
ith

 Sc
ott

ish
 Pl

an
nin

g P
oli

cy
 an

d t
he

 
co

rre
sp

on
din

g f
ive

 te
sts

 co
nta

ine
d w

ith
in 

Cir
cu

lar
 

1/2
01

0 P
lan

nin
g A

gre
em

en
ts.

  
 

In 
ide

nti
fyi

ng
 in

fra
str

uc
tur

e r
eq

uir
em

en
ts 

an
d 

for
mu

lae
 fo

r d
ev

elo
pe

r c
on

trib
uti

on
s w

e h
av

e t
ak

en
 

ac
co

un
t o

f th
e t

es
ts 

co
nta

ine
d i

n C
irc

ula
r 1

/20
10

.  
 Cir

cu
lar

 1/
20

10
 – 

Pla
nn

ing
 ag

ree
me

nts
, 

rec
om

me
nd

s t
ha

t m
eth

od
s a

nd
 ex

ac
t le

ve
ls 

of 
co

ntr
ibu

tio
ns

 sh
ou

ld 
be

 in
clu

de
d i

n s
up

ple
me

nta
ry 

gu
ida

nc
e. 

 Th
e R

ep
ort

er 
to 

the
 Ex

am
ina

tio
n R

ep
ort

 
is 

of 
the

 op
ini

on
 th

at 
the

 co
un

cil 
ha

s a
tte

mp
ted

 to
 do

 
thi

s. 
   

 Th
e R

ep
ort

er 
to 

the
 R

ep
ort

ers
 Ex

am
ina

tio
n R

ep
ort

 to
 

the
 Ab

erd
ee

n L
DP

 al
so

 co
nc

lud
es

 th
at 

he
 be

lie
ve

s 
the

 pr
oc

es
s c

arr
ied

 ou
t b

y t
he

 co
un

cil 
to 

ide
nti

fy 
the

 
inf

ras
tru

ctu
re 

req
uir

ed
 to

 im
ple

me
nt 

the
 le

ve
l o

f 
de

ve
lop

me
nt 

pro
po

se
d i

n t
he

 st
ruc

tur
e p

lan
 to

 be
 

rob
us

t.  
 Th

ere
for

e i
t is

 be
lie

ve
d t

ha
t a

 cl
ea

r re
co

gn
itio

n h
as

 
be

en
 gi

ve
n t

o t
he

 pr
inc

ipl
es

 se
t o

ut 
in 

Po
licy

 I1
 an

d 
all

 th
e t

es
ts 

fro
m 

Cir
cu

lar
 1/

20
10

. 
 

4. 
Th

e i
de

nti
fic

ati
on

 of
 in

fra
str

uc
tur

e r
eq

uir
em

en
ts 

                                 

Page 329



Re
sp
on

de
nt 

 
Su

mm
ary

 of
 co

mm
en
t  

Re
sp
on

se
 to

 co
mm

en
t 

Ch
an
ge
s (
if a

ny
) 

  
18

 

ST
F t

he
 gu

ida
nc

e d
oe

s n
ot 

no
te 

a 
tim

e l
im

it f
or 

wh
ich

 co
ntr

ibu
tio

ns
 w

ill 
be

 he
ld.

 Th
ey

 w
ou

ld 
like

 an
 ex

tra
 

bu
lle

t p
oin

t w
ith

in 
the

 gu
ida

nc
e s

tat
ing

 
thi

s a
nd

 w
ou

ld 
we

lco
me

 a 
sh

ort
 tim

e 
pe

rio
d o

f ti
me

 w
hic

h w
ou

ld 
be

 m
ore

 
ap

pro
pri

ate
 to

 en
su

re 
tha

t th
e 

de
ve

lop
er 

co
ntr

ibu
tio

n i
s a

ss
oc

iat
ed

 
cle

arl
y w

ith
 th

e i
mp

ac
ts 

of 
the

 re
lev

an
t 

de
ve

lop
me

nt 
an

d t
hu

s s
ati

sfy
ing

 th
e 

tes
ts 

of 
the

 C
irc

ula
r. 

9. 
Co

re 
Pa

ths
 N

etw
ork

 
Th

e r
es

po
nd

en
t fe

els
 th

at 
it i

s u
nfa

ir 
an

d t
he

re 
is 

no
 ju

sti
fic

ati
on

 pr
ov

ide
d 

as
 to

 w
hy

 fo
od

 re
tai

lin
g i

s a
ss

ign
ed

 
the

 hi
gh

es
t w

eig
hti

ng
 fa

cto
r fo

r 
co

ntr
ibu

tio
n t

ow
ard

s C
ore

 Pa
th 

Ne
tw

ork
. T

he
 re

sp
on

de
nt 

wo
uld

 
ex

pe
ct 

to 
se

e t
he

 ju
sti

fic
ati

on
 fo

r th
is 

wit
hin

 th
e d

oc
um

en
t. 

 
10

. D
ev

elo
pm

en
t V

iab
ility

 
Re

sp
on

de
nt 

we
lco

me
s t

he
 co

nti
nu

ed
 

an
d i

mp
rov

ed
 co

lla
bo

rat
ion

 an
d f

ee
l 

tha
t v

iab
ility

 to
 de

ve
lop

me
nt 

is 
cri

tic
al 

to 
its

 de
live

ry.
 Th

e r
es

po
nd

en
t w

rite
s 

the
 w

he
n s

ee
kin

g d
ev

elo
pe

r 
co

ntr
ibu

tio
ns

 th
e C

ou
nc

il n
ee

ds
 to

 
tak

e w
ide

r p
res

su
res

 an
d v

iab
ility

 
as

se
ss

me
nts

 in
to 

ac
co

un
t to

 en
su

re 
tha

t A
be

rde
en

 re
ma

ins
 a 

co
mp

eti
tiv

e 
loc

ati
on

 in
 w

hic
h d

ev
elo

pe
rs 

are
 ke

en
 

to 
inv

es
t. T

he
 co

mm
itm

en
t in

 th
e S

G 

rel
ate

d t
o n

ew
 de

ve
lop

me
nt 

in 
the

 Lo
ca

l 
De

ve
lop

me
nt 

Pla
n (

LD
P)

 ha
s b

ee
n b

as
ed

 on
 th

e 
fol

low
ing

 pr
inc

ipl
es

: 
- 

as
se

ss
ing

 th
e s

pa
re 

ca
pa

cit
y o

f e
xis

tin
g 

se
rvi

ce
s/f

ac
iliti

es
/in

fra
str

uc
tur

e a
nd

 th
eir

 ab
ility

 to
 

ac
co

mm
od

ate
 ne

w 
de

ve
lop

me
nt;

  
- 

me
as

uri
ng

 th
e l

ike
ly 

im
pa

ct 
of 

ne
w 

de
ve

lop
me

nt 
on

 
the

se
 se

rvi
ce

s i
n d

iffe
ren

t a
rea

s o
f th

e C
ity

; a
nd

  
- 

ide
nti

fyi
ng

 w
he

re 
ne

w 
inf

ras
tru

ctu
re,

 or
 

im
pro

ve
me

nts
 to

 ex
ist

ing
 in

fra
str

uc
tur

e, 
wo

uld
 be

 
req

uir
ed

 to
 m

itig
ate

 th
e i

mp
ac

t o
f n

ew
 de

ve
lop

me
nt.

  
 

Th
is 

wo
rk 

wa
s c

arr
ied

 ou
t in

 pa
rtn

ers
hip

 w
ith

 
co

lle
ag

ue
s f

rom
 ac

ros
s A

be
rde

en
 C

ity
 C

ou
nc

il a
nd

 
ke

y a
ge

nc
ies

 in
vo

lve
d i

n t
he

 pl
an

nin
g a

nd
 de

live
ry 

of 
inf

ras
tru

ctu
re,

 th
rou

gh
 th

e A
be

rde
en

 Fu
tur

e 
Inf

ras
tru

ctu
re 

Re
qu

ire
me

nts
 fo

r S
erv

ice
s G

rou
p. 

Th
is 

pro
ce

ss
 le

d t
o t

he
 id

en
tifi

ca
tio

n o
f in

fra
str

uc
tur

e 
sp

ec
ifie

d i
n t

he
 LD

P a
s b

ein
g r

eq
uir

ed
 to

 su
pp

ort
 

pa
rtic

ula
r d

ev
elo

pm
en

ts 
ac

ros
s t

he
 C

ity
. T

he
 

inf
orm

ati
on

 ga
the

red
 w

as
 pu

bli
sh

ed
 as

 a 
list

 of
 

inf
ras

tru
ctu

re 
req

uir
em

en
ts 

in 
the

 Pr
op

os
ed

 an
d 

Ad
op

ted
 Pl

an
, w

hic
h s

erv
ed

 to
 sh

are
 in

for
ma

tio
n w

ith
 

the
 de

ve
lop

me
nt 

ind
us

try
 an

d o
the

r c
on

su
lte

es
 as

 
so

on
 as

 po
ss

ibl
e i

n t
he

 pl
an

 pr
ep

ara
tio

n p
roc

es
s. 

 
 

In 
all

 ca
se

s, 
the

 pr
ec

ise
 le

ve
l o

f in
fra

str
uc

tur
e 

req
uir

em
en

ts 
an

d d
ev

elo
pe

r c
on

trib
uti

on
s w

ill n
ee

d 
to 

be
 ag

ree
d w

ith
 th

e C
ou

nc
il a

nd
 ot

he
r s

tat
uto

ry 
ag

en
cie

s t
hro

ug
h t

he
 m

as
ter

pla
nn

ing
 an

d p
lan

nin
g 

ap
pli

ca
tio

n p
roc

es
se

s. 
 An

y i
nfr

as
tru

ctu
re 

or 
fin

an
cia

l 
co

ntr
ibu

tio
ns

 so
ug

ht 
wil

l b
e p

rop
ort

ion
ate

 to
 th

e 
im

pa
ct 

of 
de

ve
lop

me
nt 

an
d a

lso
 ta

ke
 ac

co
un

t o
f th

e 

                                 

Page 330



Re
sp
on

de
nt 

 
Su

mm
ary

 of
 co

mm
en
t  

Re
sp
on

se
 to

 co
mm

en
t 

Ch
an
ge
s (
if a

ny
) 

  
19

 

to 
tre

ati
ng

 fin
an

cia
l v

iab
ility

 as
 an

 
es

se
nti

al 
ele

me
nt 

in 
the

 de
ter

mi
na

tio
n 

of 
pla

nn
ing

 ap
pli

ca
tio

ns
 is

 th
ere

for
e 

we
lco

me
d. 

Th
e r

es
po

nd
en

t w
ou

ld 
like

 
the

 SG
 to

 cl
ea

rly
 st

ate
 th

at 
the

 
Co

un
cil’

s r
ev

iew
 of

 de
ve

lop
me

nt 
via

bil
ity

 w
ill b

e u
nd

ert
ak

en
 on

 a 
co

nfi
de

nti
al 

ba
sis

. 
 

ca
pa

cit
y o

f e
xis

tin
g s

erv
ice

s a
nd

 in
fra

str
uc

tur
e. 

 
Th

e R
ep

ort
ers

 Ex
am

ina
tio

n R
ep

ort
 to

 th
e A

be
rde

en
 

LD
P s

ets
 ou

ts 
tha

t th
e b

eli
ef 

is 
tha

t th
e C

ou
nc

il’s
 

ap
pro

ac
h h

as
 in

vo
lve

d w
ork

ing
 w

ith
 in

fra
str

uc
tur

e 
pro

vid
ers

, o
the

r lo
ca

l a
uth

ori
tie

s a
nd

 co
ns

ult
ee

s a
nd

 
the

y f
ind

 th
at 

a r
ob

us
t a

ss
es

sm
en

t o
f in

fra
str

uc
tur

e 
req

uir
em

en
ts,

 th
e f

un
din

g i
mp

lica
tio

ns
 an

d t
he

 
tim

es
ca

les
 in

vo
lve

d h
as

 be
en

 un
de

rta
ke

n. 
 

 Th
e R

ep
ort

 co
nti

nu
es

 th
at 

wit
ho

ut 
inv

es
tm

en
t in

 
inf

ras
tru

ctu
re 

the
 le

ve
l o

f d
ev

elo
pm

en
t p

rop
os

ed
 

wo
uld

 pu
t a

n u
na

cc
ep

tab
le 

bu
rde

n o
n e

xis
tin

g 
fac

iliti
es

 an
d c

om
mu

nit
ies

 an
d w

ou
ld 

no
t p

rov
ide

 an
 

ap
pro

pri
ate

 le
ve

l o
f s

erv
ice

s t
o s

up
po

rt t
he

 ne
w 

co
mm

un
itie

s. 
 

 Th
e R

ep
ort

er 
fin

ds
 th

at 
the

 lis
t o

f c
on

trib
uti

on
s 

rel
ate

s i
n s

ca
le 

an
d k

ind
 to

 th
e p

rop
os

ed
 

de
ve

lop
me

nts
 an

d d
o n

ot 
reg

ard
 th

em
 as

 ex
ce

ss
ive

. 
Th

e R
ep

ort
er 

als
o n

ote
s t

he
 co

un
cil’

s a
ss

ert
ion

 th
at 

it 
ha

s t
ak

en
 in

to 
ac

co
un

t th
e c

ap
ac

ity
 of

 ex
ist

ing
 

se
rvi

ce
s i

n i
ts 

ca
lcu

lat
ion

s a
nd

 w
ill n

ot 
be

 se
ek

ing
 

co
ntr

ibu
tio

ns
 to

 re
so

lve
 ex

ist
ing

 in
ad

eq
ua

cie
s a

nd
 is

 
sa

tis
fie

d w
ith

 th
is.

  
 Th

e R
ep

ort
er 

co
nc

lud
es

 th
at 

he
 be

lie
ve

s t
he

 pr
oc

es
s 

ca
rrie

d o
ut 

by
 th

e c
ou

nc
il t

o i
de

nti
fy 

the
 in

fra
str

uc
tur

e 
req

uir
ed

 to
 im

ple
me

nt 
the

 le
ve

l o
f d

ev
elo

pm
en

t 
pro

po
se

d i
n t

he
 st

ruc
tur

e p
lan

 to
 be

 ro
bu

st.
  

   

                                 

Page 331



Re
sp
on

de
nt 

 
Su

mm
ary

 of
 co

mm
en
t  

Re
sp
on

se
 to

 co
mm

en
t 

Ch
an
ge
s (
if a

ny
) 

  
20

 

5. 
Po

int
 5 

ha
s b

ee
n n

ote
d a

nd
 th

e s
ec

tio
n o

n G
en

era
l 

Pr
inc

ipl
es

 fo
r A

ll D
ev

elo
pm

en
t re

arr
an

ge
d f

or 
cla

rity
. 

6. 
Sim

ila
rly

 to
 th

e r
es

po
nd

en
t th

e w
ho

le 
eth

os
 of

 th
e 

LD
P a

nd
 as

so
cia

ted
 Su

pp
lem

en
tar

y G
uid

an
ce

 ha
s 

be
en

 fo
r e

arl
y e

ng
ag

em
en

t a
nd

 th
is 

is 
so

me
thi

ng
 

wh
ich

 w
e w

ill l
oo

k t
o c

on
tin

ue
 w

ith
. 

7. 
No

ted
 

8. 
W
ith

in 
the

 cu
rre

nt 
ve

rsi
on

 of
 th

e I
nfr

as
tru

ctu
re 

an
d 

De
ve

lop
er 

Co
ntr

ibu
tio

ns
 M

an
ua

l th
ere

 is
 no

 tim
e l

im
it 

giv
en

 to
 ho

w 
lon

g t
he

 C
ou

nc
il w

ill h
old

 co
ntr

ibu
tio

ns
 

tow
ard

s m
itig

ati
on

 m
ea

su
res

.   
 C

ert
ain

 m
itig

ati
on

 
me

as
ure

s, 
su

ch
 as

 th
e d

ev
elo

pm
en

t o
f S

ch
oo

ls,
 m

ay
 

req
uir

e a
n u

nk
no

wn
 tim

e f
ram

e f
or 

co
lle

cti
on

 of
 

de
ve

lop
er 

co
ntr

ibu
tio

ns
 as

 ite
ms

 su
ch

 as
 th

is 
ten

d t
o 

be
 de

ve
lop

ed
 ov

er 
a l

on
g p

eri
od

 of
 tim

e. 
 An

y 
ho

ldi
ng

 of
 de

ve
lop

er 
co

ntr
ibu

tio
ns

 w
ill b

e w
ith

in 
the

 
ter

ms
 of

 C
irc

ula
r 1

/20
10

 – 
ne

ce
ss

ary
, s

erv
ing

 a 
pu

rpo
se

, re
lat

ed
 to

 th
e d

ev
elo

pm
en

t, i
n s

ca
le 

an
d 

kin
d a

nd
 re

as
on

ab
le.

 
9. 

Fo
od

 re
tai

lin
g h

as
 th

e h
igh

es
t w

eig
hti

ng
 fa

cto
r w

he
n 

ca
lcu

lat
ing

 C
ore

 Pa
th 

Ne
tw

ork
 co

ntr
ibu

tio
ns

.  T
he

 
rea

so
nin

g b
eh

ind
 th

is 
is 

tha
t th

e m
eth

od
olo

gy
 ta

ke
s 

ac
co

un
t o

f u
se

 fa
cto

rs,
 w

he
re 

at 
on

e e
nd

 of
 th

e s
ca

le 
the

re 
is 

a w
are

ho
us

e f
or 

ex
am

ple
 w

ith
 a 

we
igh

tin
g 

fac
tor

 or
 0.

05
. T

his
 w

eig
hti

ng
 re

fle
cts

 a 
wa

reh
ou

se
 

op
era

tio
n w

he
re 

the
re 

is 
like

ly 
to 

be
 a 

sm
all

 nu
mb

er 
of 

sta
ff u

sin
g t

he
 fa

cili
ty.

  A
t th

e o
the

r e
nd

 of
 th

e 
sc

ale
 is

 a 
su

pe
rm

ark
et 

wh
ich

 ha
s a

 w
eig

hti
ng

 fa
cto

r 
of 

1. 
Th

is 
is 

be
ca

us
e a

 su
pe

rm
ark

et 
em

plo
ys

 a 
co

ns
ide

rab
le 

am
ou

nt 
of 

sta
ff a

nd
 al

so
 at

tra
cts

 an
 

ev
en

 gr
ea

ter
 am

ou
nt 

of 
cu

sto
me

rs 
wh

ich
 is

 re
fle

cte
d 

in 
the

 w
eig

hti
ng

 fa
cto

r.  
Th

e r
ea

so
nin

g b
eh

ind
 th

is 
wil

l b
e a

dd
ed

 to
 th

e d
oc

um
en

t to
 pr

ov
ide

 gr
ea

ter
 

5. 
Th

e s
ec

tio
n o

n 
Ge

ne
ral

 Pr
inc

ipl
es

 fo
r 

All
 D

ev
elo

pm
en

t h
as

 
be

en
 am

en
de

d f
or 

cla
rity

. T
he

 bu
lle

t 
po

int
s h

av
e b

ee
n 

rem
ov

ed
 an

d s
om

e 
wo

rds
 ad

de
d f

or 
fur

the
r c

lar
ity

. 
          9. 

Th
e r

ea
so

nin
g b

eh
ind

 
the

 C
ore

 Pa
th 

Ne
tw

ork
 

co
ntr

ibu
tio

n c
alc

ula
tio

ns
 

wil
l b

e a
dd

ed
 to

 th
e 

do
cu

me
nt 

to 
pro

vid
e 

gre
ate

r c
lar

ity
. 

        

Page 332



Re
sp
on

de
nt 

 
Su

mm
ary

 of
 co

mm
en
t  

Re
sp
on

se
 to

 co
mm

en
t 

Ch
an
ge
s (
if a

ny
) 

  
21

 

cla
rity

. 
 10

. W
e w

elc
om

e t
he

 po
sit

ive
 re

sp
on

se
 re

ga
rdi

ng
 th

e 
inc

lus
ion

 of
 th

e s
ec

tio
n o

n D
ev

elo
pm

en
t V

iab
ility

. 
 

All
 pa

rtie
s s

ho
uld

 be
 aw

are
 of

 th
e p

rov
isio

ns
 of

 th
e 

Fre
ed

om
 of

 In
for

ma
tio

n A
ct 

an
d E

nv
iro

nm
en

tal
 

Inf
orm

ati
on

 R
eg

ula
tio

ns
 an

d a
lso

 m
ind

ful
 of

 an
y 

co
nfl

ict
s o

f in
ter

es
t th

at 
co

uld
 ta

int
 th

eir
 ad

vic
e. 

 
Th

ere
for

e t
he

 C
ou

nc
il c

an
 co

nfi
rm

 th
at 

the
 re

vie
w 

of 
de

ve
lop

me
nt 

via
bil

ity
 w

ill b
e u

nd
ert

ak
en

 on
 a 

co
nfi

de
nti

al 
ba

sis
 sh

ou
ld 

the
 fo

llo
win

g t
ex

t b
e 

inc
lud

ed
 w

ith
in 

ea
ch

 de
ve

lop
me

nt 
via

bil
ity

 
su

bm
iss

ion
. 

 
“Th

is 
via

bil
ity

 re
po

rt i
s p

rov
ide

d o
n a

 co
nfi

de
nti

al 
ba

sis
 to

 th
e C

ou
nc

il. 
We

 th
ere

for
e r

eq
ue

st 
tha

t th
e 

rep
ort

 sh
ou

ld 
no

t b
e d

isc
los

ed
 to

 an
y t

hir
d p

art
ies

 
(ot

he
r th

an
 co

ns
ult

an
ts 

ins
tru

cte
d b

y t
he

 C
ou

nc
il t

o 
rev

iew
 th

is 
rep

ort
) u

nd
er 

the
 Fr

ee
do

m 
of 

Inf
orm

ati
on

 
Ac

t 2
00

0 (
se

cti
on

s 4
1 a

nd
 43

(2)
) o

r u
nd

er 
the

 
En

vir
on

me
nta

l In
for

ma
tio

n R
eg

ula
tio

ns
.” 

 

  10
. In

clu
de

 te
xt 

to 
se

t o
ut 

tha
t th

e r
ev

iew
 of

 
De

ve
lop

me
nt 

Via
bil

ity
 w

ill 
be

 un
de

rta
ke

n o
n a

 
co

nfi
de

nti
al 

ba
sis

 sh
ou

ld 
the

 co
rre

ct 
sta

tem
en

t b
e 

inc
lud

ed
. S

tat
em

en
t to

 
inc

lud
e h

as
 be

en
 ad

de
d. 

  

Tu
rle

y 
As

so
cia

tes
 on

 
be
ha
lf o

f 
Sa

ins
bu

ry’
s 

Su
pe
rm

ark
ets

 

1. 
Ge

ne
ral

 Pr
inc

ipl
es
 

Th
e r

es
po

nd
en

t w
ou

ld 
like

 th
e G

en
era

l 
Pr

inc
ipl

es
 of

 th
e m

an
ua

l to
 re

fer
 

sp
ec

ific
all

y t
o t

he
 fiv

e p
oli

cy
 te

sts
 se

t o
ut 

in 
the

 C
irc

ula
r 1

/20
10

. 
 2. 

De
ve
lop

me
nt 

Via
bil
ity
 

Th
e r

es
po

nd
en

t s
up

po
rts

 th
e a

pp
roa

ch
 

tak
en

 to
 th

e c
on

sid
era

tio
n o

f 
de

ve
lop

me
nt 

via
bil

ity
 w

he
n d

ete
rm

ini
ng

 

1. 
No

tes
 th

at 
the

 re
sp

on
de

nt 
wo

uld
 lik

e t
he

 G
en

era
l 

Pr
inc

ipl
es

 of
 th

e m
an

ua
l to

 sp
ec

ific
all

y r
efe

r to
 th

e 
fiv

e t
es

ts 
se

t o
ut 

in 
Cic

ula
r 1

/20
10

.  W
e c

on
sid

er 
tha

t 
the

 pr
op

os
ed

 ap
pro

ac
h t

o p
lan

nin
g a

nd
 de

live
rin

g 
inf

ras
tru

ctu
re 

is 
ap

pro
pri

ate
 an

d c
om

pli
es

 w
ith

 
Sc

ott
ish

 Pl
an

nin
g P

oli
cy
 an

d t
he

 co
rre

sp
on

din
g f

ive
 

tes
ts 

co
nta

ine
d w

ith
in 

Cir
cu

lar
 1/

20
10

 Pl
an

nin
g 

Ag
ree

me
nts

.  
 

In 
ide

nti
fyi

ng
 in

fra
str

uc
tur

e r
eq

uir
em

en
ts 

an
d 

 

Page 333



Re
sp
on

de
nt 

 
Su

mm
ary

 of
 co

mm
en
t  

Re
sp
on

se
 to

 co
mm

en
t 

Ch
an
ge
s (
if a

ny
) 

  
22

 

de
ve

lop
er 

co
ntr

ibu
tio

ns
. 

 3. 
Co

re 
Pa

ths
 N
etw

or
k 

Re
sp

on
de

nt 
qu

es
tio

ns
 w

he
the

r a
 

co
ntr

ibu
tio

n t
ow

ard
s t

he
 co

re 
pa

th 
ne

tw
ork

 is
 ap

pro
pri

ate
 in

 al
l 

cir
cu

ms
tan

ce
s a

nd
 in

 pa
rtic

ula
r w

he
re 

the
 

de
ve

lop
me

nt 
is 

no
t e

nh
an

cin
g o

r li
nk

ing
 

in 
to 

it. 
 Re

qu
es

t th
at 

the
 se

co
nd

 cr
ite

rio
n f

or 
de

ter
mi

nin
g i

f a
 co

ntr
ibu

tio
n i

s r
eq

uir
ed

 is
 

am
en

de
d t

o t
he

 fo
llo

win
g: 

“W
he

re 
the

re 
is 

no
 pr

ov
isio

n o
f c

ore
 pa

ths
 

or 
lin

ks
 to

 th
e C

ore
 Pa

th 
Ne

tw
ork

, 
de

ve
lop

ers
 w

ill m
ay

 (d
ep

en
din

g o
n t

he
 

pa
rtic

ula
r c

irc
um

sta
nc

es
 of

 th
e c

as
e) 

be
 

req
uir

ed
 to

 m
ak

e a
 fin

an
cia

l c
on

trib
uti

on
 

at 
a r

ate
 of

 £3
71

 pe
r d

we
llin

g o
r p

er 
ho

us
e e

qu
iva

len
t fo

r n
on

-re
sid

en
tia

l 
de

ve
lop

me
nts

.” 
 Th

e r
es

po
nd

en
t s

ee
ks

 cl
ari

ty 
on

 th
e 

Co
un

cil’
s j

us
tifi

ca
tio

n f
or 

ap
ply

ing
 

we
igh

tin
gs

 in
 th

e c
alc

ula
tio

n o
f c

ore
 pa

th 
co

ntr
ibu

tio
ns

. H
ow

 ha
ve

 th
e i

nd
ivid

ua
l 

sit
e u

sa
ge

 w
eig

hti
ng

 fa
cto

rs 
be

en
 

ca
lcu

lat
ed

? I
t is

 un
cle

ar 
as

 to
 w

hy
 fo

od
 

ret
ail

 ha
s t

he
 hi

gh
es

t w
eig

hti
ng

 fa
cto

r. 
In 

ca
lcu

lat
ing

 th
e c

ore
 pa

th 
co

ntr
ibu

tio
n, 

the
 m

an
ua

l s
tat

es
 th

at 
an

 in
div

idu
al 

sit
e 

us
ag

e w
eig

hti
ng

 fa
cto

r (W
F) 

is 
the

n 
ap

pli
ed

 to
 re

fle
ct 

the
 pr

ob
ab

le 
oc

cu
pa

tio
n 

for
mu

lae
 fo

r d
ev

elo
pe

r c
on

trib
uti

on
s w

e h
av

e t
ak

en
 

ac
co

un
t o

f th
e t

es
ts 

co
nta

ine
d i

n C
irc

ula
r 1

/20
10

. 
 Th

e n
ee

d f
or 

ne
w 

or 
im

pro
ve

d i
nfr

as
tru

ctu
re 

ha
s 

be
en

 id
en

tifi
ed

 fo
llo

win
g d

eta
ile

d a
na

lys
is 

of 
the

 
ca

pa
cit

y o
f e

xis
tin

g s
erv

ice
s t

o c
op

e w
ith

 ad
dit

ion
al 

de
ve

lop
me

nt,
 as

 w
ell

 as
 th

e f
ore

ca
ste

d i
mp

ac
t o

f 
de

ve
lop

me
nts

 ba
se

d o
n t

he
 in

for
ma

tio
n a

va
ila

ble
 at

 
tha

t ti
me

. A
s s

uc
h, 

the
se

 re
qu

ire
me

nts
 ar

e 
ne

ce
ss

ary
 in

 pl
an

nin
g t

erm
s t

o m
ak

e d
ev

elo
pm

en
t 

ac
ce

pta
ble

, a
nd

 to
 av

oid
 an

y d
etr

im
en

tal
 im

pa
ct 

on
 

se
rvi

ce
s a

nd
 in

fra
str

uc
tur

e. 
 Cir

cu
lar

 1/
20

10
 – 

Pla
nn

ing
 ag

ree
me

nts
, 

rec
om

me
nd

s t
ha

t m
eth

od
s a

nd
 ex

ac
t le

ve
ls 

of 
co

ntr
ibu

tio
ns

 sh
ou

ld 
be

 in
clu

de
d i

n s
up

ple
me

nta
ry 

gu
ida

nc
e. 

 Th
e R

ep
ort

er 
to 

the
 Ex

am
ina

tio
n R

ep
ort

 
is 

of 
the

 op
ini

on
 th

at 
the

 co
un

cil 
ha

s a
tte

mp
ted

 to
 do

 
thi

s. 
   

 Th
e R

ep
ort

er 
to 

the
 R

ep
ort

ers
 Ex

am
ina

tio
n R

ep
ort

 to
 

the
 Ab

erd
ee

n L
DP

 al
so

 co
nc

lud
es

 th
at 

he
 be

lie
ve

s 
the

 pr
oc

es
s c

arr
ied

 ou
t b

y t
he

 co
un

cil 
to 

ide
nti

fy 
the

 
inf

ras
tru

ctu
re 

req
uir

ed
 to

 im
ple

me
nt 

the
 le

ve
l o

f 
de

ve
lop

me
nt 

pro
po

se
d i

n t
he

 st
ruc

tur
e p

lan
 to

 be
 

rob
us

t.  
 Th

ere
for

e i
t is

 be
lie

ve
d t

ha
t a

 cl
ea

r re
co

gn
itio

n h
as

 
be

en
 gi

ve
n t

o t
he

 pr
inc

ipl
es

 se
t o

ut 
in 

Po
licy

 I1
 an

d 
all

 th
e t

es
ts 

fro
m 

Cir
cu

lar
 1/

20
10

. 
 

2. 
W
e w

elc
om

e t
he

 co
mm

en
ts 

ma
de

 re
ga

rdi
ng

 th
e 

De
ve

lop
me

nt 
Via

bil
ity

 se
cti

on
 of

 th
e M

an
ua

l. 

Page 334



Re
sp
on

de
nt 

 
Su

mm
ary

 of
 co

mm
en
t  

Re
sp
on

se
 to

 co
mm

en
t 

Ch
an
ge
s (
if a

ny
) 

  
23

 

lev
el 

of 
the

 si
te.

 Th
e C

ou
nc

il s
ho

uld
 

de
fin

e w
ha

t p
rob

ab
le 

oc
cu

pa
tio

n m
ea

ns
 

as
 th

is 
is 

no
t c

lea
r in

 th
e m

an
ua

l. 
 Th

e r
es

po
nd

en
t w

ou
ld 

like
 fu

rth
er 

inf
orm

ati
on

 as
 to

 ho
w 

the
 C

ou
nc

il h
av

e 
ca

lcu
lat

ed
 th

e £
37

1 p
er 

dw
ell

ing
 

eq
uiv

ale
nt.

 

3. 
En

ha
nc

em
en

t o
f, o

r li
nk

s i
nto

 th
e C

ore
 Pa

th 
Ne

tw
ork

 
are

 ap
pro

pri
ate

 an
d i

n p
art

icu
lar

 w
he

re 
a 

de
ve

lop
me

nt 
is 

no
t c

urr
en

tly
 lin

kin
g i

n t
o, 

or 
en

ha
nc

ing
 th

e c
ore

 pa
th 

ne
tw

ork
 th

is 
is 

ev
en

 m
ore

 
cru

cia
l.  

Co
ntr

ibu
tio

ns
 w

ill b
e s

ou
gh

t to
 en

ab
le 

off
 si

te 
im

pro
ve

me
nts

.  P
oli

cy
 N

E9
 Ac

ce
ss

 an
d I

nfo
rm

al 
Re

cre
ati

on
 se

ts 
ou

t th
at 

de
ve

lop
me

nt’
s s

ho
uld

 
inc

lud
e n

ew
 or

 im
pro

ve
d p

rov
isio

n f
or 

pu
bli

c a
cc

es
s, 

pe
rm

ea
bil

ity
 an

d/o
r li

nk
s t

o g
ree

n s
pa

ce
 fo

r 
rec

rea
tio

n a
nd

 ac
tiv

e t
rav

el.
 Fu

rth
er 

gu
ida

nc
e w

ith
in 

the
 Tr

an
sp

ort
 an

d A
cc

es
sib

ility
 an

d O
pe

n S
pa

ce
 SG

 
ad

d w
eig

ht 
to 

thi
s. 

Th
is 

is 
co

nv
ey

ed
 by

 th
e a

bil
ity

 to
 

ac
ce

ss
, m

ov
e a

rou
nd

 an
d t

hro
ug

h t
he

 bu
ilt 

an
d 

na
tur

al 
en

vir
on

me
nt 

by
 w

alk
ing

 an
d c

yc
lin

g i
s a

 
ma

jor
 co

ntr
ibu

tor
 to

 qu
ali

ty 
of 

life
 an

d, 
in 

pa
rtic

ula
r, 

an
 in

div
idu

al’
s a

bil
ity

 to
 fre

ely
 ac

ce
ss

 th
e s

erv
ice

s 
an

d f
ac

iliti
es

 th
ey

 ne
ed

 w
ith

ou
t u

sin
g a

 ve
hic

le.
 N

ew
 

de
ve

lop
me

nt 
wil

l b
e r

eq
uir

ed
 to

 pr
ote

ct 
an

d e
nh

an
ce

 
ex

ist
ing

 ac
ce

ss
 rig

hts
 in

clu
din

g c
ore

 pa
ths

, ri
gh

ts 
of 

wa
y a

nd
 pa

ths
 w

ith
in 

the
 w

ide
r n

etw
ork

. 
 

Gu
ida

nc
e c

on
tin

ue
s t

ha
t n

ew
 de

ve
lop

me
nt 

mu
st 

be
 

pe
rm

ea
ble

 to
 w

alk
ers

 an
d c

yc
list

s a
nd

 sh
ou

ld 
en

su
re 

tha
t n

ew
 ro

ute
s a

re 
pla

nn
ed

 in
 ac

co
rda

nc
e w

ith
 th

e 5
 

C’s
 – 

co
nn

ec
ted

, c
on

ve
nie

nt,
 co

mf
ort

ab
le,

 co
nv

ivia
l 

an
d c

on
sp

icu
ou

s –
 as

 re
fer

red
 to

 in
 th

e A
be

rde
en

 
Lo

ca
l T

ran
sp

ort
 St

rat
eg

y 2
00

8 -
 20

12
. 

 Co
nn

ec
tin

g o
ur 

urb
an

 an
d r

ura
l g

ree
n s

pa
ce

s t
o e

ac
h 

oth
er 

an
d t

o t
he

 co
mm

un
itie

s a
rou

nd
 th

em
, o

ffe
rs 

a 
wid

e r
an

ge
 of

 so
cia

l, h
ea

lth
, e

co
no

mi
c a

nd
 

en
vir

on
me

nta
l b

en
efi

ts.
 G

ree
n n

etw
ork

s c
an

 pr
ov

ide
 an

 
en

ha
nc

ed
 se

ttin
g f

or 
de

ve
lop

me
nt 

an
d o

the
r la

nd
 us

es
 

an
d o

pp
ort

un
itie

s f
or 

ou
tdo

or 
rec

rea
tio

n, 
na

tur
e 

Page 335



Re
sp
on

de
nt 

 
Su

mm
ary

 of
 co

mm
en
t  

Re
sp
on

se
 to

 co
mm

en
t 

Ch
an
ge
s (
if a

ny
) 

  
24

 

co
ns

erv
ati

on
, la

nd
sc

ap
e e

nh
an

ce
me

nt 
an

d p
rov

idi
ng

 a 
se

ns
e o

f p
lac

e a
nd

 lo
ca

l d
ist

inc
tiv

en
es

s. 
 Th

ere
for

e i
t is

 
co

ns
ide

red
 th

at 
it w

ou
ld 

no
t b

e a
pp

rop
ria

te 
to 

ma
ke

 th
e 

su
gg

es
ted

 ch
an

ge
. 

 
Fo

od
 re

tai
lin

g h
as

 th
e h

igh
es

t w
eig

hti
ng

 fa
cto

r w
he

n 
ca

lcu
lat

ing
 C

ore
 Pa

th 
Ne

tw
ork

 co
ntr

ibu
tio

ns
.  T

he
 

rea
so

nin
g b

eh
ind

 th
is 

is 
tha

t th
e m

eth
od

olo
gy

 ta
ke

s 
ac

co
un

t o
f u

se
 fa

cto
rs,

 w
he

re 
at 

on
e e

nd
 of

 th
e s

ca
le 

the
re 

is 
a w

are
ho

us
e f

or 
ex

am
ple

 w
ith

 a 
we

igh
tin

g 
fac

tor
 or

 0.
05

. T
his

 w
eig

hti
ng

 re
fle

cts
 a 

wa
reh

ou
se

 
op

era
tio

n w
he

re 
the

re 
is 

like
ly 

to 
be

 a 
sm

all
 nu

mb
er 

of 
sta

ff u
sin

g t
he

 fa
cili

ty.
  A

t th
e o

the
r e

nd
 of

 th
e 

sc
ale

 is
 a 

su
pe

rm
ark

et 
wh

ich
 ha

s a
 w

eig
hti

ng
 fa

cto
r 

of 
1. 

Th
is 

is 
be

ca
us

e a
 su

pe
rm

ark
et 

em
plo

ys
 a 

co
ns

ide
rab

le 
am

ou
nt 

of 
sta

ff a
nd

 al
so

 at
tra

cts
 an

 
ev

en
 gr

ea
ter

 am
ou

nt 
of 

cu
sto

me
rs 

wh
ich

 is
 re

fle
cte

d 
in 

the
 w

eig
hti

ng
 fa

cto
r.  

Th
e r

ea
so

nin
g b

eh
ind

 th
is 

wil
l b

e a
dd

ed
 to

 th
e d

oc
um

en
t to

 pr
ov

ide
 gr

ea
ter

 
cla

rity
. 

 Th
e £

37
1 p

er 
dw

ell
ing

 eq
uiv

ale
nt 

is 
ca

lcu
lat

ed
 

thr
ou

gh
 th

e c
os

t o
f a

 ra
ng

e o
f p

as
t s

ch
em

es
 an

d t
he

 
av

era
ge

 pa
th 

len
gth

s. 
  

Sc
ott

ish
 

En
ter

pr
ise

  
1. 

Re
sp

on
de

nt 
bro

ad
ly 

we
lco

me
s t

he
 

gu
ida

nc
e a

nd
 w

elc
om

es
 th

e o
pe

nn
es

s a
s 

go
od

 pl
an

nin
g p

rac
tic

e, 
pro

vid
ed

 a 
fle

xib
le 

ap
pro

ac
he

d i
s a

do
pte

d a
nd

 
pla

nn
ing

 ap
pli

ca
tio

ns
 ar

e n
ot 

de
lay

ed
. 

 2. 
Fle

xib
le 
Ap

pr
oa
ch
 

Co
nc

ern
ed

 th
at 

if d
oc

um
en

t b
ec

om
es

 to
o 

pre
sc

rip
tiv

e i
n i

ts 
ap

pli
ca

tio
n t

he
n 

1. 
Re

sp
on

se
 is

 w
elc

om
ed

 fro
m 

the
 re

sp
on

de
nt.

  T
he

 
Co

un
cil 

wil
l e

nd
ea

vo
ur 

to 
co

nti
nu

e t
o p

rog
res

s 
pla

nn
ing

 ap
pli

ca
tio

ns
 w

ith
in 

the
 se

t ti
me

sc
ale

s. 
 Th

e 
Ma

nu
al 

sh
ou

ld 
he

lp 
to 

ha
ste

n t
he

 pr
oc

es
s w

he
re 

the
 

pu
rpo

se
 is

 to
 pr

ov
ide

 cl
ea

r, o
pe

n a
nd

 tra
ns

pa
ren

t 
up

fro
nt 

inf
orm

ati
on

 th
at 

wil
l a

llo
w 

de
ve

lop
ers

 an
d 

sta
ke

ho
lde

rs 
to 

se
e w

ha
t re

qu
ire

me
nts

 sh
ou

ld 
be

 
tak

en
 in

to 
ac

co
un

t fr
om

 an
 ea

rly
 st

ag
e w

he
n 

pre
pa

rin
g a

nd
 co

sti
ng

 pr
op

os
als

. 

         

Page 336



Re
sp
on

de
nt 

 
Su

mm
ary

 of
 co

mm
en
t  

Re
sp
on

se
 to

 co
mm

en
t 

Ch
an
ge
s (
if a

ny
) 

  
25

 

de
ve

lop
ers

 an
d i

nw
ard

 in
ve

sto
rs 

co
uld

 be
 

dis
co

ura
ge

d f
rom

 pu
rsu

ing
 pl

an
nin

g 
ap

pli
ca

tio
ns

, p
art

icu
lar

ly 
on

 si
tes

 w
hic

h 
are

 co
ns

tra
ine

d b
y i

na
de

qu
ate

 
inf

ras
tru

ctu
re.

 R
es

po
nd

en
t re

qu
es

ts 
a 

fle
xib

le 
ap

pro
ac

h w
he

n a
pp

lyin
g t

he
 

po
licy

 in
 pr

ac
tic

e. 
 3. 

De
ve
lop

me
nt 

Via
bil
ity
 

Re
sp

on
de

nt 
no

tes
 an

d w
elc

om
es

 th
e 

pro
ce

ss
 ou

tlin
ed

 fo
r a

ss
es

sin
g 

de
ve

lop
me

nt 
via

bil
ity

.  R
es

po
nd

en
t w

ou
ld 

like
 th

e a
pp

lica
nt 

an
d a

dv
iso

rs 
to 

rem
ain

 
inv

olv
ed

 in
 di

sc
us

sio
ns

 to
 en

su
re 

tha
t 

the
re 

is 
no

 m
is-

int
erp

ret
ati

on
 of

 
inf

orm
ati

on
 or

 as
su

mp
tio

ns
. 

 W
elc

om
e t

he
 fa

ct 
tha

t in
co

me
 (in

clu
din

g 
vo

id 
pe

rio
ds

 et
c) 

wil
l b

e b
as

ed
 on

 
co

mp
ara

ble
 ev

ide
nc

e. 
Re

sp
on

de
nt 

req
ue

st 
tha

t re
ali

sti
c a

dju
stm

en
ts 

are
 

ma
de

 to
 re

fle
ct 

cu
rre

nt 
ec

on
om

ic 
co

nd
itio

ns
 in

 pa
rtic

ula
r lo

ca
lise

d m
ark

et 
an

d p
hy

sic
al 

fac
tor

s w
hic

h m
ay

 ne
ed

 to
 

be
 ta

ke
n a

cc
ou

nt 
of 

ag
ain

st 
ma

rke
t ra

tes
.   

 Re
sp

on
de

nt 
req

ue
sts

 th
at 

a f
lex

ibl
e 

ap
pro

ac
h i

s a
do

pte
d f

or 
rea

ss
es

sin
g 

fin
an

ce
 co

sts
 on

 a 
reg

ula
r b

as
is.

  In
 th

e 
cu

rre
nt 

clim
ate

 bo
rro

win
g c

os
ts 

an
d 

len
din

g c
rite

ria
 ar

e s
ub

jec
t to

 ab
rup

t 
ch

an
ge

 an
d c

an
 ha

ve
 a 

big
 im

pa
ct 

on
 

via
bil

ity
. 

2. 
In 

all
 ca

se
s, 

the
 pr

ec
ise

 le
ve

l o
f in

fra
str

uc
tur

e 
req

uir
em

en
ts 

an
d d

ev
elo

pe
r c

on
trib

uti
on

s w
ill n

ee
d 

to 
be

 ag
ree

d w
ith

 th
e C

ou
nc

il a
nd

 ot
he

r s
tat

uto
ry 

ag
en

cie
s t

hro
ug

h t
he

 m
as

ter
pla

nn
ing

 an
d p

lan
nin

g 
ap

pli
ca

tio
n p

roc
es

se
s. 

  
Th

e m
as

ter
pla

nn
ing

 an
d p

lan
nin

g a
pp

lica
tio

n 
pro

ce
ss

es
, a

nd
 pa

rtic
ula

rly
 te

ch
nic

al 
as

se
ss

me
nts

 
pre

se
nte

d t
o t

he
 C

ou
nc

il d
uri

ng
 th

es
e s

tag
es

, w
ill 

pro
vid

e a
n o

pp
ort

un
ity

 fo
r v

eri
fic

ati
on

 of
 im

pa
cts

 of
 

de
ve

lop
me

nt 
an

d m
itig

ati
on

 m
ea

su
res

 pr
op

os
ed

 an
d 

wil
l in

for
m 

the
 ne

go
tia

tio
n o

f P
lan

nin
g A

gre
em

en
ts.

 
Th

is 
ap

pro
ac

h w
ill e

ns
ure

 th
at 

an
y i

nfr
as

tru
ctu

re 
req

uir
em

en
ts 

an
d P

lan
nin

g A
gre

em
en

ts 
are

 in
 sc

ale
 

an
d k

ind
 w

ith
 th

e p
rop

os
ed

 de
ve

lop
me

nt.
 

 Th
e R

ep
ort

ers
 R

ep
ort

 to
 th

e E
xa

mi
na

tio
n o

f th
e 

Ab
erd

ee
n L

DP
 no

tes
 th

at 
wit

ho
ut 

inv
es

tm
en

t in
 

inf
ras

tru
ctu

re 
the

 le
ve

l o
f d

ev
elo

pm
en

t p
rop

os
ed

 
wo

uld
 pu

t a
n u

na
cc

ep
tab

le 
bu

rde
n o

n e
xis

tin
g 

fac
iliti

es
 an

d c
om

mu
nit

ies
 an

d w
ou

ld 
no

t p
rov

ide
 an

 
ap

pro
pri

ate
 le

ve
l o

f s
erv

ice
s t

o s
up

po
rt t

he
 ne

w 
co

mm
un

itie
s. 

 
 Th

e R
ep

ort
er 

fin
ds

 th
at 

the
 lis

t o
f c

on
trib

uti
on

s 
rel

ate
s i

n s
ca

le 
an

d k
ind

 to
 th

e p
rop

os
ed

 
de

ve
lop

me
nts

 an
d d

oe
s n

ot 
reg

ard
 th

em
 as

 
ex

ce
ss

ive
. T

he
 R

ep
ort

er 
als

o n
ote

s t
he

 co
un

cil’
s 

as
se

rtio
n t

ha
t it

 ha
s t

ak
en

 in
to 

ac
co

un
t th

e c
ap

ac
ity

 
of 

ex
ist

ing
 se

rvi
ce

s i
n i

ts 
ca

lcu
lat

ion
s a

nd
 w

ill n
ot 

be
 

se
ek

ing
 co

ntr
ibu

tio
ns

 to
 re

so
lve

 ex
ist

ing
 

ina
de

qu
ac

ies
 an

d i
s s

ati
sfi

ed
 w

ith
 th

is.
  

 

                                 

Page 337



Re
sp
on

de
nt 

 
Su

mm
ary

 of
 co

mm
en
t  

Re
sp
on

se
 to

 co
mm

en
t 

Ch
an
ge
s (
if a

ny
) 

  
26

 

 4. 
Pla

nn
ing

 Ti
me

sc
ale

s 
Re

sp
on

de
nt 

req
ue

sts
 th

at 
thi

s p
roc

es
s 

do
es

 no
t h

ind
er 

or 
de

lay
 th

e p
lan

nin
g 

pro
ce

ss
, a

nd
 w

e t
rus

t th
is 

do
cu

me
nt 

wil
l 

as
sis

t a
nd

 sp
ee

d u
p a

pp
lica

tio
ns

 an
d t

he
 

as
se

ss
me

nt 
of 

de
ve

lop
er’

s c
on

trib
uti

on
s 

in 
pa

rtic
ula

r. 
 Re

sp
on

de
nt 

req
ue

sts
 th

at 
the

 3r
d  p

art
y 

dis
pu

te 
res

olu
tio

n p
roc

es
s s

tep
 is

 
ide

nti
fie

d a
s a

 m
ea

su
re 

of 
las

t re
so

rt a
t 

the
 en

d o
f th

e f
low

ch
art

.  R
es

po
nd

en
t 

fee
ls 

tha
t it

 is
 a 

us
efu

l d
iag

ram
, h

ow
ev

er 
the

re 
is 

a r
isk

 it 
se

nd
s o

ut 
the

 w
ron

g 
me

ss
ag

e t
ha

t th
e d

isp
ute

 re
so

lut
ion

 ro
ute

 
wil

l b
e t

ak
e t

oo
 ea

rly
 or

 au
tom

ati
ca

lly 
an

d 
the

 ov
era

ll p
roc

es
s i

s a
t ri

sk
 of

 be
ing

 
int

erp
ret

ed
 as

 un
du

ly 
co

stl
y a

nd
 tim

e 
co

ns
um

ing
. 

 5. 
Ad

dit
ion

al 
Co

mm
en
ts 

Re
qu

es
t th

at 
de

ve
lop

er 
co

ntr
ibu

tio
ns

 ar
e 

he
ld 

an
d u

se
d w

ith
in 

a s
ho

rte
r m

ore
 

rea
so

na
ble

 pe
rio

d u
p t

o a
 po

ten
tia

l 
ma

xim
um

 of
 10

 ye
ars

. T
his

 w
ill 

en
co

ura
ge

 th
e C

ou
nc

il t
o s

pe
nd

 th
e 

co
ntr

ibu
tio

n w
ith

in 
a t

im
es

ca
le 

wh
ere

 th
e 

de
ve

lop
me

nt 
an

d t
he

 co
mm

un
ity

 ca
n 

me
an

ing
ful

ly 
be

ne
fit 

fro
m 

the
 

inf
ras

tru
ctu

re 
co

mi
ng

 fo
rw

ard
. 

 To
 as

sis
t a

nd
 m

ak
e r

ea
din

g o
f th

e 

Th
e R

ep
ort

er 
co

nc
lud

es
 th

at 
he

 be
lie

ve
s t

he
 pr

oc
es

s 
ca

rrie
d o

ut 
by

 th
e c

ou
nc

il t
o i

de
nti

fy 
the

 in
fra

str
uc

tur
e 

req
uir

ed
 to

 im
ple

me
nt 

the
 le

ve
l o

f d
ev

elo
pm

en
t 

pro
po

se
d i

n t
he

 st
ruc

tur
e p

lan
 to

 be
 ro

bu
st.

 
 

3. 
W
e w

elc
om

e t
he

 po
sit

ive
 re

sp
on

se
 to

 th
e 

De
ve

lop
me

nt 
Via

bil
ity

 se
cti

on
 of

 th
e S

G.
  V

iab
ility

 
ap

pra
isa

ls,
 if 

req
uir

ed
, w

ill b
e l

ed
 by

 a 
qu

ali
fie

d 
ind

ep
en

de
nt 

pra
cti

tio
ne

r a
nd

 su
ita

bly
 qu

ali
fie

d 
su

rve
yo

r.  
Pr

ofe
ss

ion
als

 co
nd

uc
tin

g s
uc

h w
ork

 w
ill 

ha
ve

 th
e k

no
wle

dg
e a

nd
 re

as
on

ing
 to

 as
se

ss
 th

e 
via

bil
ity

 of
 a 

sit
e r

efl
ec

tin
g t

he
 cu

rre
nt 

ec
on

om
ic 

co
nd

itio
ns

 lo
ca

lly 
an

d n
ati

on
all

y. 
 3. 

In 
rel

ati
on

 to
 th

e r
eq

ue
st 

fro
m 

the
 re

sp
on

de
nt 

for
 a 

fle
xib

le 
ap

pro
ac

h t
o b

e a
do

pte
d f

or 
rea

ss
es

sin
g 

fin
an

ce
 co

sts
 on

 a 
reg

ula
r b

as
is 

the
 M

an
ua

l d
oe

s 
sta

tes
 th

at 
the

 pr
ec

ise
 le

ve
l o

f in
fra

str
uc

tur
e 

req
uir

em
en

ts 
an

d d
ev

elo
pe

r c
on

trib
uti

on
s w

ill n
ee

d 
to 

be
 ag

ree
d w

ith
 th

e C
ou

nc
il a

nd
 ot

he
r s

tat
uto

ry 
ag

en
cie

s t
hro

ug
h t

he
 m

as
ter

pla
nn

ing
 an

d p
lan

nin
g 

ap
pli

ca
tio

n p
roc

es
se

s. 
 In

 re
lat

ion
 to

 Se
cti

on
 75

 
ag

ree
me

nts
, th

ere
 is

 sc
op

e f
or 

va
ria

tio
n o

f th
es

e 
ag

ree
me

nts
 un

de
r th

e P
lan

nin
g e

tc.
 (S

co
tla

nd
) A

ct 
20

06
. 

 4. 
Th

e C
ou

nc
il w

ill e
nd

ea
vo

ur 
to 

co
nti

nu
e t

o p
rog

res
s 

pla
nn

ing
 ap

pli
ca

tio
ns

 w
ith

in 
the

 se
t ti

me
sc

ale
s. 

 Th
e 

Co
un

cils
 ap

pro
ac

h t
o t

he
 pl

an
nin

g a
nd

 de
live

ry 
of 

inf
ras

tru
ctu

re 
ha

s b
ee

n o
pe

n a
nd

 tra
ns

pa
ren

t.  
Th

e 
aim

 is
 to

 pr
ov

ide
 cl

ea
r g

uid
an

ce
 to

 al
l s

tak
eh

old
ers

, 
in 

pa
rtic

ula
r th

e d
ev

elo
pm

en
t in

du
str

y, 
on

 th
e 

inf
ras

tru
ctu

re 
req

uir
ed

 to
 su

pp
ort

 de
ve

lop
me

nt.
  It

 is
 

                                 

Page 338



Re
sp
on

de
nt 

 
Su

mm
ary

 of
 co

mm
en
t  

Re
sp
on

se
 to

 co
mm

en
t 

Ch
an
ge
s (
if a

ny
) 

  
27

 

do
cu

me
nt 

ea
sie

r th
ere

 sh
ou

ld 
be

 a 
ref

ere
nc

e i
n t

he
 ba

ck
 of

 th
e M

an
ua

l w
hic

h 
pro

vid
es

 lin
ks

 to
 al

l th
e r

ele
va

nt 
rel

ate
d 

do
cu

me
nts

 w
he

re 
av

ail
ab

le.
 

 Re
sp

on
de

nt 
we

lco
me

s t
he

 co
lla

bo
rat

ive
 

ap
pro

ac
h t

ak
en

 to
 th

e p
rep

ara
tio

n o
f th

is 
do

cu
me

nt.
 

ho
pe

d t
ha

t b
y p

rov
idi

ng
 th

is 
inf

orm
ati

on
 ea

rly
 an

d u
p 

fro
nt 

wil
l h

elp
 to

 st
rea

ml
ine

 th
e p

roc
es

s. 
 

 
Th

ird
 pa

rty
 di

sp
ute

 re
so

lut
ion

 is
 on

e o
f th

e f
ina

l s
tep

s 
wit

hin
 th

e f
low

ch
art

 re
lat

ing
 to

 D
ev

elo
pm

en
t V

iab
ility

.  
It i

s o
ur 

op
ini

on
 th

at 
the

re 
are

 se
ve

ral
 st

ep
s a

nd
 

op
po

rtu
nit

ies
 fo

r d
isc

us
sio

n w
ith

 de
ve

lop
me

nt 
ma

na
ge

me
nt 

an
d p

lan
nin

g g
ain

 of
fic

ers
 to

 ta
ke

 pl
ac

e 
be

for
e a

 th
ird

 pa
rty

 is
 br

ou
gh

t in
 to

 try
 an

d r
es

olv
e a

 
dis

pu
te.

  T
he

 di
sp

ute
 re

so
lut

ion
 ro

ute
 w

ill n
ot 

be
 

tak
en

 au
tom

ati
ca

lly 
an

d e
ve

ry 
op

po
rtu

nit
y w

ill b
e 

giv
en

 to
 di

sc
us

s a
ny

 is
su

es
 ar

isin
g. 

Via
bil

ity
 

As
se

ss
me

nts
 ar

e t
ho

ug
ht 

of 
as

 go
od

 pr
ac

tic
e a

nd
 

ha
ve

 be
en

 ad
op

ted
 as

 su
ch

 by
 pr

ofe
ss

ion
al 

bo
die

s 
RT

PI 
an

d R
IC

S. 
 

5. 
W
e w

elc
om

e t
he

 su
gg

es
tio

n t
ha

t a
 re

fer
en

ce
 se

cti
on

 
sh

ou
ld 

be
 in

clu
de

d a
t th

e b
ac

k o
f th

e d
oc

um
en

t.  
Th

is 
wil

l b
e a

dd
ed

 to
 th

e d
oc

um
en

t b
efo

re 
pu

bli
ca

tio
n. 

 
W
ith

in 
the

 cu
rre

nt 
ve

rsi
on

 of
 th

e I
nfr

as
tru

ctu
re 

an
d 

De
ve

lop
er 

Co
ntr

ibu
tio

ns
 M

an
ua

l th
ere

 is
 no

 tim
e l

im
it 

giv
en

 to
 ho

w 
lon

g t
he

 C
ou

nc
il w

ill h
old

 co
ntr

ibu
tio

ns
 

tow
ard

s m
itig

ati
on

 m
ea

su
res

.   
 C

ert
ain

 m
itig

ati
on

 
me

as
ure

s, 
su

ch
 as

 th
e d

ev
elo

pm
en

t o
f S

ch
oo

ls,
 m

ay
 

req
uir

e a
n u

nk
no

wn
 tim

e f
ram

e f
or 

co
lle

cti
on

 of
 

de
ve

lop
er 

co
ntr

ibu
tio

ns
 as

 ite
ms

 su
ch

 as
 th

is 
ten

d t
o b

e 
de

ve
lop

ed
 ov

er 
a l

on
g p

eri
od

 of
 tim

e. 
 An

y h
old

ing
 of

 
de

ve
lop

er 
co

ntr
ibu

tio
ns

 w
ill b

e w
ith

in 
the

 te
rm

s o
f 

Cir
cu

lar
 1/

20
10

 – 
ne

ce
ss

ary
, s

erv
ing

 a 
pu

rpo
se

, re
lat

ed
 

to 
the

 de
ve

lop
me

nt,
 in

 sc
ale

 an
d k

ind
 an

d r
ea

so
na

ble
. 

                5. 
Ad

dit
ion

 of
 a 

ref
ere

nc
e s

ec
tio

n t
o 

the
 re

ar 
of 

the
 

do
cu

me
nt.

 

Page 339



Re
sp
on

de
nt 

 
Su

mm
ary

 of
 co

mm
en
t  

Re
sp
on

se
 to

 co
mm

en
t 

Ch
an
ge
s (
if a

ny
) 

  
28

 

Ab
erd

ee
ns
hir

e 
Co

un
cil
  

1. 
Re

sp
on

de
nt 

rec
og

nis
es

 th
e 

im
po

rta
nc

e o
f, a

nd
 su

pp
ort

s t
he

 
pro

vis
ion

 of
, c

lea
r g

uid
an

ce
 to

 
sta

ke
ho

lde
rs 

on
 th

e m
eth

od
olo

gy
 

us
ed

 to
 id

en
tify

 in
fra

str
uc

tur
e 

req
uir

em
en

ts.
 

2. 
Re

sp
on

de
nt 

fee
ls 

tha
t b

y i
de

nti
fyi

ng
 

sp
ec

ific
 fig

ure
s w

ith
in 

the
 do

cu
me

nt 
tha

t th
ey

 w
ill b

ec
om

e o
ut 

of 
da

te 
qu

ick
ly.

 Th
is 

co
uld

 be
 re

me
die

d b
y 

sta
tin

g t
ha

t u
p-t

o-d
ate

 fig
ure

s a
re 

av
ail

ab
le 

via
 co

nta
ct 

wit
h P

lan
nin

g 
Ga

in.
 

3. 
Re

sp
on

de
nt 

be
lie

ve
s t

ha
t th

e f
orm

at 
of 

the
 do

cu
me

nt 
ma

ke
s i

t d
iffi

cu
lt t

o 
ide

nti
fy 

the
 to

pic
 ar

ea
s a

nd
 th

at 
the

re 
se

em
ed

 to
 be

 a 
co

ns
ide

rab
le 

am
ou

nt 
of 

co
nte

xtu
al 

inf
orm

ati
on

 da
tin

g b
ac

k 
a n

um
be

r o
f y

ea
rs.

 
4. 

Re
sp

on
de

nt 
be

lie
ve

s t
ha

t th
e S

G 
co

nta
ins

 a 
du

pli
ca

tio
n o

f in
for

ma
tio

n t
o 

tha
t w

ith
in 

the
 LD

P w
hic

h c
ou

ld 
be

 
rem

ov
ed

 an
d r

ep
lac

ed
 w

ith
 cr

os
s-

ref
ere

nc
ing

 to
 re

du
ce

 th
e s

ize
 of

 th
e 

do
cu

me
nt.

 

1. 
W
e w

elc
om

e t
he

 co
mm

en
ts 

ma
de

 su
pp

ort
ing

 th
e 

pro
vis

ion
 of

 cl
ea

r g
uid

an
ce

 to
 st

ak
eh

old
ers

 to
 id

en
tify

 
inf

ras
tru

ctu
re 

req
uir

em
en

ts.
 

 2. 
W
ith

in 
the

 se
cti

on
 ‘M

eth
od

olo
gy

 fo
r In

fra
str

uc
tur

e 
Re

qu
ire

me
nts

 an
d D

ev
elo

pe
r C

on
trib

uti
on

s’ 
it s

tat
es

 
tha

t “A
ny

 co
sts

 fo
r in

fra
str

uc
tur

e w
ill b

e r
ev

iew
ed

 
an

nu
all

y a
nd

 ad
jus

ted
 ac

co
rdi

ng
 to

 an
 ag

ree
d 

ind
ex

ati
on

.” I
de

nti
fyi

ng
 fig

ure
s e

arl
y a

llo
ws

 
sta

ke
ho

lde
rs 

an
d t

he
 de

ve
lop

me
nt 

ind
us

try
 to

 ge
t a

n 
ide

a o
f li

ke
ly 

co
sts

 an
d p

lan
 ac

co
rdi

ng
ly.

  
 

Pa
rag

rap
hs

 23
 an

d 2
9 o

f C
irc

ula
r 1

/20
10

 Pl
an

nin
g 

Ag
ree

me
nts

 st
ate

 th
at 

inf
ras

tru
ctu

re 
req

uir
em

en
ts 

sh
ou

ld 
be

 se
t o

ut 
wit

hin
 th

e L
DP

 an
d a

ss
oc

iat
ed

 
Ac

tio
n P

rog
ram

me
.  P

oli
cy

 I1
 al

so
 st

ate
s t

ha
t “t

he
 

lev
el 

of 
pro

vis
ion

 w
ill b

e c
om

me
ns

ura
te 

to 
the

 sc
ale

 
an

d i
mp

ac
t o

f d
ev

elo
pm

en
t”. 

Po
licy

 I1
 in

clu
de

s a
 

cro
ss

-re
fer

en
ce

 to
 th

e I
nfr

as
tru

ctu
re 

an
d D

ev
elo

pe
r 

Co
ntr

ibu
tio

ns
 M

an
ua

l, w
hic

h i
s p

ub
lish

ed
 as

 
Su

pp
lem

en
tar

y G
uid

an
ce

 to
 th

e L
DP

.  I
n c

om
pli

an
ce

 
wit

h C
irc

ula
r 1

/20
10

 th
e L

DP
 (a

t A
pp

en
dix

 4)
 an

d 
Ac

tio
n P

rog
ram

me
 lis

t it
em

s f
or 

wh
ich

 co
ntr

ibu
tio

ns
 

are
 lik

ely
 to

 be
 so

ug
ht 

an
d, 

alo
ng

sid
e, 

the
 

Su
pp

lem
en

tar
y G

uid
an

ce
 is

 in
ten

de
d t

o p
rov

ide
 as

 
mu

ch
 in

for
ma

tio
n a

s p
os

sib
le 

on
 th

e c
on

trib
uti

on
s 

like
ly 

to 
be

 so
ug

ht 
thr

ou
gh

 co
nd

itio
ns

 an
d/o

r 
Pla

nn
ing

 Ag
ree

me
nts

. In
 al

l c
as

es
, th

e p
rec

ise
 le

ve
l 

of 
inf

ras
tru

ctu
re 

req
uir

em
en

ts 
an

d d
ev

elo
pe

r 
co

ntr
ibu

tio
ns

 w
ill n

ee
d t

o b
e a

gre
ed

 w
ith

 th
e C

ou
nc

il 
an

d o
the

r s
tat

uto
ry 

ag
en

cie
s t

hro
ug

h t
he

 
ma

ste
rpl

an
nin

g a
nd

 pl
an

nin
g a

pp
lica

tio
n p

roc
es

se
s. 

 

 

Page 340



Re
sp
on

de
nt 

 
Su

mm
ary

 of
 co

mm
en
t  

Re
sp
on

se
 to

 co
mm

en
t 

Ch
an
ge
s (
if a

ny
) 

  
29

 

3. 
W
e d

o n
ot 

be
lie

ve
 th

at 
the

 fo
rm

at 
of 

the
 do

cu
me

nt 
ma

ke
s i

t d
iffi

cu
lt t

o i
de

nti
fy 

the
 to

pic
 ar

ea
s. 

 Ea
ch

 
are

a i
s h

ea
de

d c
lea

rly
 fo

r e
xa

mp
le 

“S
ch

oo
ls”

 an
d 

“C
om

mu
nit

y F
ac

iliti
es

”.  
Pa

ge
s a

nd
 pa

rag
rap

h 
nu

mb
ers

 ha
ve

 no
w 

be
en

 ad
de

d t
o t

he
 do

cu
me

nt 
as

 
thi

s w
as

 an
 ov

ers
igh

t fr
om

 th
e c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
do

cu
me

nt.
  T

he
 co

nte
xtu

al 
inf

orm
ati

on
 is

 im
po

rta
nt 

as
 it 

se
ts 

wh
ere

 th
e S

G 
do

cu
me

nt 
sit

s i
n r

ela
tio

n t
o 

the
 LD

P a
nd

 pl
an

nin
g s

ys
tem

. 
4. 

W
e r

ec
og

nis
e t

ha
t th

ere
 ar

e s
ho

rt p
ara

gra
ph

s o
f 

inf
orm

ati
on

 th
at 

are
 si

mi
lar

 to
 in

for
ma

tio
n g

ive
n i

n t
he

 
LD

P, 
ho

we
ve

r it
 is

 fe
lt t

ha
t th

ey
 ar

e i
mp

ort
an

t in
 

se
ttin

g o
ut 

wh
at 

the
 do

cu
me

nt 
is 

try
ing

 to
 ac

hie
ve

 
an

d w
ill t

he
ref

ore
 be

 re
tai

ne
d. 

 It 
is 

no
t th

ou
gh

t 
be

ne
fic

ial
 to

 re
mo

ve
 th

is 
inf

orm
ati

on
 an

d i
ts 

rem
ov

al 
wo

uld
 no

t s
ho

rte
n t

he
 do

cu
me

nt 
dra

ma
tic

all
y. 

Ab
erd

ee
n C

ity
 

Co
un

cil
  

1. 
Pa

ge
 9 

an
d b

us
 pa

ss
es

 se
cti

on
 - t

he
 

tex
t n

am
es

 of
 th

e b
us

 op
era

tor
s 

sh
ou

ld 
be

 ch
an

ge
d. 

Co
uld

 th
e w

ord
ing

 
in 

bo
th 

se
cti

on
s r

ec
og

nis
e t

ha
t th

es
e 

are
 th

e C
ity

’s 
tw

o m
ain

 op
era

tor
s b

ut 
the

re 
are

 sm
all

er 
op

era
tor

s o
ut 

the
re 

too
 – 

sm
all

er 
bu

s o
pe

rat
ors

 m
ay

 no
t 

ne
ce

ss
ari

ly 
off

er 
an

nu
al 

bu
s p

as
se

s a
t 

the
 m

om
en

t b
ut 

the
y m

ay
 of

fer
 si

mi
lar

 
du

rat
ion

 pa
ss

es
 an

d m
ay

 go
 on

 to
 

off
er 

an
nu

al 
in 

the
 fu

tur
e a

nd
 it 

wo
uld

 
be

 in
ap

pro
pri

ate
 to

 ex
clu

de
 th

es
e 

po
ss

ibi
litie

s. 
  

1. 
Co

mm
en

t h
as

 be
en

 ta
ke

n o
nb

oa
rd 

an
d t

he
 na

me
 

an
d w

ord
ing

 ar
ou

nd
 th

e b
us

 op
era

tor
s c

ha
ng

ed
 to

 
ref

lec
t th

at 
Fir

st 
Bu

s a
nd

 St
ag

ec
oa

ch
 ar

e t
he

 tw
o 

ma
in 

op
era

tor
s b

ut 
the

re 
are

 sm
all

er 
op

era
tor

s 
pre

se
nt 

too
. 

1. 
Se

nte
nc

e h
as

 be
en

 
ch

an
ge

d t
o r

ec
og

nis
e 

tha
t F

irs
t B

us
 an

d 
Sta

ge
co

ac
h a

re 
the

 
ma

in 
op

era
tor

s, 
ho

we
ve

r a
lso

 no
te 

tha
t 

the
re 

are
 ot

he
r s

ma
lle

r 
op

era
tor

s p
res

en
t 

wit
hin

 th
e C

ity
. 

Page 341



Re
sp
on

de
nt 

 
Su

mm
ary

 of
 co

mm
en
t  

Re
sp
on

se
 to

 co
mm

en
t 

Ch
an
ge
s (
if a

ny
) 

  
30

 

Sc
ott

ish
 W

ate
r  

Th
e r

es
po

nd
en

t c
lar

ifie
s s

ev
era

l p
oin

ts 
wit

hin
 th

e w
ate

r s
ec

tio
n o

f th
e S

G.
 

   1. 
At 

pre
se

nt 
wa

ter
 an

d d
rai

na
ge

 
inf

ras
tru

ctu
re 

is 
no

t fu
nd

ed
 vi

a 
De

ve
lop

er 
Co

ntr
ibu

tio
ns

 an
d t

his
 po

int
 

sh
ou

ld 
be

 m
ad

e c
lea

rer
. 

 
Str

ate
gic

 as
se

ts 
are

 te
rm

ed
 as

 Pa
rt 4

 
As

se
ts.

 Sc
ott

ish
 W

ate
r is

 fu
nd

ed
 to

 
up

gra
de

 Pa
rt 4

 As
se

ts 
wh

en
 th

ere
 is

 
gro

wt
h r

eq
uir

em
en

t, i
nit

iat
ed

 by
 a 

de
ve

lop
me

nt 
me

eti
ng

 ou
r 5

 G
row

th 
Cr

ite
ria

. 
 2. 

Th
e l

oc
al 

bu
lk 

inf
ras

tru
ctu

re,
 su

ch
 as

 
tru

nk
 m

ain
s a

nd
 tru

nk
 se

we
rs,

 w
ate

r 
se

rvi
ce

 re
se

rvo
irs

 an
d s

om
e S

UD
S 

are
 Pa

rt 3
 As

se
ts.

 Sh
ou

ld 
the

se
 

As
se

ts 
req

uir
e t

o b
e u

pg
rad

ed
 as

 th
e 

res
ult

 of
 ne

w 
de

ve
lop

me
nt 

the
n t

he
 

res
po

ns
ibi

lity
 w

ill b
e w

ith
 th

e 
De

ve
lop

er,
 ho

we
ve

r th
ey

 w
ill b

e 
en

titl
ed

 to
 a 

Re
as

on
ab

le 
Co

st 
Co

ntr
ibu

tio
n f

rom
 Sc

ott
ish

 W
ate

r. 
 3. 

Th
e r

es
po

nd
en

t p
rov

ide
s a

 sl
igh

t 
ch

an
ge

 to
 th

e w
ate

r s
ec

tio
n t

ex
t w

ith
in 

the
 SG

. 

1, 
2 &

 3.
  S

co
ttis

h W
ate

r h
av

e p
rov

ide
d a

 re
wo

rde
d 

W
ate

r s
ec

tio
n w

hic
h c

lar
ifie

s a
ll t

he
 po

int
s w

hic
h t

he
y 

ha
ve

 hi
gh

lig
hte

d. 
 W

ate
r s

ec
tio

n h
as

 be
en

 re
wr

itte
n 

to 
cla

rify
 th

e r
ole

 of
 Sc

ott
ish

 W
ate

r a
nd

 w
ha

t w
ill b

e 
ex

pe
cte

d i
n t

erm
s o

r In
fra

str
uc

tur
e a

nd
 D

ev
elo

pe
r 

Co
ntr

ibu
tio

ns
. 

  

W
ate

r a
nd

 D
rai

na
ge

 
se

cti
on

 ha
s b

ee
n 

am
en

de
d t

o r
efl

ec
t th

e 
co

mm
en

ts 
fro

m 
Sc

ott
ish

 
W
ate

r. T
his

 co
nte

xt 
an

d 
dir

ec
tio

n o
f th

e s
ec

tio
n 

ha
s n

ot 
ch

an
ge

d a
nd

 th
e 

am
en

dm
en

ts 
pro

vid
e 

fur
the

r c
lar

ity
. 

Sc
ott

ish
 N
atu

ral
 

He
rit
ag
e  

1. 
Ge

ne
ral

ly 
su

pp
ort

 th
e p

rod
uc

tio
n o

f 
thi

s g
uid

an
ce

. 
2. 

Th
e r

es
po

nd
en

t w
elc

om
es

 th
e c

lea
r 

sta
tem

en
t th

at 
gre

en
sp

ac
e i

s a
 

1. 
W
elc

om
e t

he
 su

pp
ort

 fo
r th

e d
oc

um
en

t fr
om

 th
e 

res
po

nd
en

t. 
2. 

Th
e s

ug
ge

ste
d r

ew
ord

ing
 of

 th
e l

as
t s

en
ten

ce
 of

 th
e 

firs
t p

ara
gra

ph
 re

lat
ing

 to
 G

ree
n S

pa
ce

 N
etw

ork
 on

 

  2. 
Th

e f
ina

l s
en

ten
ce

 w
ill 

be
 re

wo
rde

d t
o r

ea
d: 

Page 342



Re
sp
on

de
nt 

 
Su

mm
ary

 of
 co

mm
en
t  

Re
sp
on

se
 to

 co
mm

en
t 

Ch
an
ge
s (
if a

ny
) 

  
31

 

fun
da

me
nta

l p
art

 of
 th

e C
ity

’s 
inf

ras
tru

ctu
re 

fro
m 

the
 1s

t  p
ara

gra
ph

 
of 

pa
ge

 19
.  H

ow
ev

er 
the

 re
sp

on
de

nt 
fee

ls 
tha

t th
ere

 is
 al

so
 a 

fun
cti

on
 of

 
gre

en
sp

ac
e m

iss
ing

 fro
m 

the
 

se
nte

nc
e. 

 Th
e p

hra
se

 sh
ou

ld 
be

 re
-

wr
itte

n t
o r

ea
d t

he
 fo

llo
win

g: 
“…

pro
vid

ing
 an

 en
ha

nc
ed

 se
ttin

g f
or 

de
ve

lop
me

nt,
 op

po
rtu

nit
ies

 fo
r 

ad
ap

tin
g t

o c
lim

ate
 ch

an
ge

, a
 fa

cili
ty 

for
 th

e p
eo

ple
 liv

ing
 or

 w
ork

ing
 in

 th
e 

de
ve

lop
me

nts
 an

d t
o h

elp
 th

e C
ou

nc
il 

me
et 

its
 bi

od
ive

rsi
ty 

du
ty.

” 
 It i

s t
ho

ug
ht 

tha
t th

e s
ug

ge
ste

d 
ad

dit
ion

 em
ph

as
ise

s t
he

 im
po

rta
nc

e 
of 

the
 co

nn
ec

ted
ne

ss
 of

 th
e h

ab
ita

ts 
tha

t c
om

es
 fro

m 
the

 ne
tw

ork
, ra

the
r 

tha
n j

us
t th

e h
ab

ita
ts 

on
 th

eir
 ow

n. 
 

3. 
Re

sp
on

de
nt 

rec
om

me
nd

s t
ha

t th
e 

fin
al 

se
nte

nc
e o

f th
e s

ec
on

d 
pa

rag
rap

h i
s a

me
nd

ed
 to

 re
ad

 “S
uc

h 
mi

tig
ati

on
 an

d e
nh

an
ce

me
nt 

me
as

ure
s…

” 
 

4. 
It i

s s
ug

ge
ste

d t
ha

t th
e f

ou
rth

 bu
lle

t 
po

int
 is

 am
en

de
d t

o r
ea

d “
str

ate
gic

 
ha

bit
at 

ne
tw

ork
s, 

wil
dli

fe 
co

rrid
ors

 an
d 

ha
bit

at 
de

ve
lop

me
nt 

pro
jec

t.” 
 5. 

Fin
all

y t
he

 re
sp

on
de

nt 
as

ks
 if 

the
 

Co
un

cil 
for

es
ee

s a
ny

 si
tua

tio
ns

 w
he

re 

pa
ge

 20
 is

 ac
ce

pta
ble

 an
d t

he
 m

an
ua

l w
ill b

e a
lte

red
 

to 
ref

lec
t. 

3. 
Th

e s
ug

ge
ste

d a
me

nd
me

nt 
ha

s b
ee

n c
on

sid
ere

d 
an

d a
da

pte
d t

o f
it t

he
 ne

ed
s o

f th
e d

oc
um

en
t.  

Th
e 

res
po

nd
en

t s
ou

gh
t th

e f
ina

l s
en

ten
ce

 of
 th

e s
ec

on
d 

pa
rag

rap
h t

o r
ea

d “
Su

ch
 m

itig
ati

on
 an

d 
en

ha
nc

em
en

t m
ea

su
res

…
” H

ow
ev

er 
it i

s t
ho

ug
ht 

mo
re 

ap
pro

pri
ate

 th
at 

the
 se

nte
nc

e r
ea

ds
 as

 “S
uc

h 
mi

tig
ati

on
 an

d/o
r e

nh
an

ce
me

nt 
me

as
ure

s…
” 

4. 
Th

e s
ug

ge
ste

d a
me

nd
me

nt 
to 

the
 fo

urt
h b

ull
et 

po
int

 
on

 pa
ge

 20
 to

 re
ad

 “s
tra

teg
ic 

ha
bit

at 
ne

tw
ork

s, 
wil

dli
fe 

co
rrid

ors
 an

d h
ab

ita
t d

ev
elo

pm
en

t p
roj

ec
t” i

s 
ac

ce
pte

d a
nd

 w
ill b

e c
ha

ng
ed

 w
ith

in 
the

 do
cu

me
nt.

 
5. 

Th
ere

 ar
e p

ote
nti

all
y s

itu
ati

on
s w

he
re 

str
ate

gic
 

lan
ds

ca
pin

g w
ou

ld 
be

 on
 su

ch
 a 

sc
ale

 w
he

re 
it w

ou
ld 

req
uir

e d
ev

elo
pe

r c
on

trib
uti

on
s. 

Th
e s

tra
teg

ic 
lan

ds
ca

pin
g w

ou
ld 

ha
ve

 to
 be

 re
lat

ed
 to

 th
e 

de
ve

lop
me

nt 
an

d s
ett

ing
 of

 th
e s

ite
 in

 co
nte

xt 
to 

the
 

su
rro

un
din

g a
rea

.  I
n t

his
 si

tua
tio

n i
t w

ou
ld 

be
 a 

pa
rt 

of 
the

 G
ree

n S
pa

ce
 N

etw
ork

 an
d w

ou
ld 

no
t re

qu
ire

 
its

 ow
n s

ep
ara

te 
ca

teg
ory

 in
 th

e m
an

ua
l. 

“pr
ov

idi
ng

 an
 

en
ha

nc
ed

 se
ttin

g f
or 

de
ve

lop
me

nt,
 

op
po

rtu
nit

ies
 fo

r 
ad

ap
tin

g t
o c

lim
ate

 
ch

an
ge

, a
 fa

cili
ty 

for
 

the
 pe

op
le 

livi
ng

 or
 

wo
rki

ng
 in

 th
e 

de
ve

lop
me

nts
 an

d t
o 

he
lp 

the
 C

ou
nc

il m
ee

t 
its

 bi
od

ive
rsi

ty 
du

ty”
 

 
Ad

dit
ion

al 
tex

t is
 in

 
ita

lics
. 

 
3. 

Ad
dit

ion
 of

 “…
an

d/o
r 

en
ha

nc
em

en
t 

me
as

ure
s…

” 
4. 

Am
en

d f
ou

rth
 bu

lle
t 

po
int

 on
 pa

ge
 20

 to
 

rea
d “

str
ate

gic
 ha

bit
at 

ne
tw

ork
s, 

wil
dli

fe 
co

rrid
ors

 an
d h

ab
ita

t 
de

ve
lop

me
nt 

pro
jec

t” 

Page 343



Re
sp
on

de
nt 

 
Su

mm
ary

 of
 co

mm
en
t  

Re
sp
on

se
 to

 co
mm

en
t 

Ch
an
ge
s (
if a

ny
) 

  
32

 

str
ate

gic
 la

nd
sc

ap
ing

 w
ou

ld 
be

 on
 

su
ch

 a 
sc

ale
 th

at 
it w

ou
ld 

req
uir

e 
de

ve
lop

er 
co

ntr
ibu

tio
ns

. If
 so

, w
ou

ld 
tha

t b
e p

art
 of

 th
e g

ree
n s

pa
ce

 
ne

tw
ork

 or
 re

qu
ire

 a 
se

pa
rat

e 
ca

teg
ory

 in
 th

e m
an

ua
l? 

SE
PA

  
 

1. 
W
e h

av
e n

o a
dd

itio
na

l c
om

me
nts

 to
 

ma
ke

 to
 th

os
e p

rev
iou

sly
 m

ad
e i

n 
rel

ati
on

 to
 th

e I
nfr

as
tru

ctu
re 

an
d 

De
ve

lop
er 

Co
ntr

ibu
tio

ns
 M

an
ua

l. W
e 

su
pp

ort
 th

e r
ec

og
nit

ion
 in

 th
e L

DP
 

an
d s

up
po

rtin
g d

oc
um

en
ts 

of 
the

 
ne

ed
 to

 co
ns

ide
r in

fra
str

uc
tur

e 
de

live
ry 

at 
an

 ea
rly

 st
ag

e. 
 

 

1. 
Co

mm
en

ts 
we

lco
me

d a
nd

 no
ted

. 
 

 Ba
ts 
& 
De

ve
lop

me
nt 

Su
pp

lem
en
tar

y G
uid

an
ce
 

 SN
H 

Pe
rm

itte
d d

ev
elo

pm
en

t 
Th

e r
ec

en
t e

xp
an

sio
n o

f h
ou

se
ho

lde
r 

pe
rm

itte
d d

ev
elo

pm
en

t ri
gh

ts 
me

an
s t

ha
t 

a l
ot 

of 
de

ve
lop

me
nt 

in 
ho

us
es

 th
at 

co
uld

 
aff

ec
t b

ats
 w

ill n
ow

 be
 pe

rm
itte

d 
de

ve
lop

me
nt,

 so
 th

ere
 is

 no
 di

rec
t ro

le 
for

 
the

 pl
an

nin
g a

uth
ori

ty.
 W

e r
ec

om
me

nd
 

tha
t a

 su
b-h

ea
din

g c
ou

ld 
be

 ad
de

d a
bo

ut 
'Pe

rm
itte

d D
ev

elo
pm

en
t W

ork
s' a

nd
 th

en
 

the
 po

int
 m

ad
e t

ha
t e

ve
n i

f p
rop

os
ed

 
wo

rks
 (e

.g.
 al

ter
ati

on
 or

 ex
ten

sio
n o

f a
 

dw
ell

ing
 ho

us
e) 

are
 pe

rm
itte

d 
de

ve
lop

me
nt,

 th
e s

am
e p

rin
cip

les
 of

 th
is 

su
pp

lem
en

tar
y g

uid
an

ce
 sh

ou
ld 

be
 

fol
low

ed
, a

nd
 th

at 
if i

t is
 su

sp
ec

ted
 th

at 

Ag
ree

d. 
  

Ch
an

ge
 m

ad
e.  

Page 344



Re
sp
on

de
nt 

 
Su

mm
ary

 of
 co

mm
en
t  

Re
sp
on

se
 to

 co
mm

en
t 

Ch
an
ge
s (
if a

ny
) 

  
33

 

wo
rks

 co
uld

 no
t p

roc
ee

d w
ith

ou
t a

n 
off

en
ce

 be
ing

 co
mm

itte
d, 

SN
H 

sh
ou

ld 
be

 
co

nta
cte

d p
rio

r to
 co

mm
en

ce
me

nt.
 

SN
H 

Ba
ts 

an
d L

eg
isla

tio
n (

se
cti

on
 3)

 
It i

s a
lso

 an
 of

fen
ce

 to
 de

lib
era

tel
y o

r 
rec

kle
ss

ly 
dis

tur
b a

 ba
t w

hil
e m

igr
ati

ng
 or

 
hib

ern
ati

ng
. 

Ag
ree

d. 
  

Ch
an

ge
 m

ad
e. 

SN
H 

Ba
ts 

an
d L

ice
ns

ing
 (s

ec
tio

n 4
) 

SN
H 

is 
no

w 
the

 m
ain

 lic
en

sin
g a

uth
ori

ty 
for

 ba
ts 

for
 al

l p
urp

os
es

. W
e r

ec
om

me
nd

 
tha

t th
e t

ex
t is

 am
en

de
d t

o r
efl

ec
t th

is,
 fo

r 
ins

tan
ce

, b
y r

em
ov

ing
 th

e s
ec

on
d 

se
nte

nc
e. 

Th
es

e c
ha

ng
es

 w
ere

 al
rea

dy
 m

ad
e. 

No
 ch

an
ge

s m
ad

e. 

SN
H 

W
e r

ec
om

me
nd

 th
at 

the
 te

xt 
on

 th
e f

irs
t 

lice
ns

ing
 te

st 
is 

am
en

de
d s

o t
ha

t th
e 

se
co

nd
 se

nte
nc

e r
ea

ds
 ‘F

or 
ex

am
ple

, a
 

lice
nc

e m
ay

 be
 gr

an
ted

 …
.’. 

Th
is 

is 
be

ca
us

e t
he

re 
are

 ot
he

r p
urp

os
es

 fo
r 

wh
ich

 lic
en

ce
s f

or 
ba

ts 
ca

n b
e g

ran
ted

. 

Ag
ree

d. 
  

Ch
an

ge
 m

ad
e.  

SN
H 

Ba
ts 

an
d L

an
d U

se
 Pl

an
nin

g (
se

cti
on

 5)
 

In 
tab

le 
1 i

t w
ou

ld 
be

 us
efu

l to
 cl

ari
fy 

tha
t 

‘pr
ior

ity
’ s

pe
cie

s r
efe

rs 
to 

the
 U

KB
AP

, a
s 

thi
s m

ea
ns

 so
me

thi
ng

 ve
ry 

dif
fer

en
t 

un
de

r th
e H

ab
ita

ts 
Dir

ec
tiv

e. 

Ag
ree

d. 
  

Ch
an

ge
 m

ad
e.  

SN
H 

Es
tab

lish
ing

 if 
a s

urv
ey

 w
ill b

e r
eq

uir
ed

 
(se

cti
on

 7)
 

Th
e g

uid
an

ce
 on

 w
he

n a
 su

rve
y m

ay
 be

 
req

uir
ed

 is
 no

t p
rec

ise
 an

d s
o c

ou
ld 

be
 

op
en

 to
 in

ter
pre

tat
ion

. It
 is

 no
t c

lea
r h

ow
 

the
 co

un
cils

 G
IS 

wo
uld

 be
 us

ed
 to

 he
lp 

de
cid

e i
f a

 su
rve

y i
s r

eq
uir

ed
, n

or 
wh

at 
oth

er 
fac

tor
s w

ou
ld 

be
 ta

ke
n i

nto
 ac

co
un

t. 
It i

s a
lso

 un
cle

ar 
wh

at 
is 

me
an

t b
y ‘

clo
se

’ 

Ag
ree

d. 
Mo

st 
ch

an
ge

s w
ere

 m
ad

e p
rio

r to
 th

e 
co

ns
ult

ati
on

 pe
rio

d. 
  L

ea
vin

g o
ut 

the
 re

fer
en

ce
 to

 20
0 

me
tre

s a
s t

he
re 

is 
a s

ep
ara

te 
flo

wc
ha

rt w
hic

h r
efe

rs 
to 

GI
S l

ay
ers

 in
dic

ati
ng

 fre
sh

wa
ter

 an
d o

the
r re

lev
an

t 
ha

bit
ats

.   

Ch
an

ge
s m

ad
e.  

Page 345



Re
sp
on

de
nt 

 
Su

mm
ary

 of
 co

mm
en
t  

Re
sp
on

se
 to

 co
mm

en
t 

Ch
an
ge
s (
if a

ny
) 

  
34

 

to 
fre

sh
wa

ter
 an

d o
the

r h
ab

ita
ts.

 Ba
ts 

wil
l 

for
ag

e a
t le

as
t 2

00
m 

fro
m 

the
ir r

oo
st 

an
d 

so
 ro

os
ts 

co
uld

 be
 th

is 
dis

tan
ce

, o
r m

ore
, 

fro
m 

the
se

 ha
bit

ats
. In

 Ab
erd

ee
n, 

the
 

co
rrid

ors
 of

 th
e r

ive
rs 

De
e a

nd
 D

on
 ar

e 
so

me
 of

 th
e k

ey
 ar

ea
s w

he
re 

ba
t ro

os
ts 

are
 m

ore
 fre

qu
en

tly
 fo

un
d. 

Th
e g

uid
an

ce
 in

 its
 cu

rre
nt 

for
m 

co
uld

 
lea

d t
o i

t b
ein

g a
pp

lie
d i

nc
on

sis
ten

tly
 an

d 
ca

us
e c

on
fus

ion
 am

on
gs

t d
ev

elo
pe

rs 
an

d 
pla

nn
ers

. T
his

 m
igh

t re
su

lt i
n s

itu
ati

on
s 

wh
ere

 it 
is 

de
cid

ed
 at

 a 
rel

ati
ve

ly 
lat

e 
sta

ge
 in

 th
e p

lan
nin

g p
roc

es
s t

ha
t a

 ba
t 

su
rve

y i
s r

eq
uir

ed
, re

su
ltin

g i
n a

 de
lay

 to
 

the
 pl

an
nin

g d
ec

isio
n. 

W
e r

ec
om

me
nd

 
ma

kin
g i

t c
lea

rer
 w

he
n a

 su
rve

y w
ill, 

ma
y 

or 
wil

l n
ot 

be
 re

qu
ire

d. 
W
e h

av
e a

lre
ad

y 
pro

vid
ed

 a 
su

gg
es

ted
 ap

pro
ac

h t
o y

ou
r 

en
vir

on
me

nta
l p

lan
ne

r in
 an

 em
ail

 on
 6 

Ju
ne

 20
12

 (c
op

y a
tta

ch
ed

) a
nd

 
un

de
rst

an
d t

ha
t th

is 
se

cti
on

 of
 th

e 
gu

ida
nc

e i
s c

urr
en

tly
 be

ing
 am

en
de

d. 
Ple

as
e n

ote
 th

at 
we

 ar
e a

wa
re 

of 
a r

ec
en

t 
ca

se
 w

he
re 

a b
at 

roo
st 

wa
s f

ou
nd

 in
 a 

ca
stl

e o
n a

 se
a c

liff
 an

d s
o w

hil
e b

ats
 ar

e 
no

t g
en

era
lly 

fou
nd

 by
 th

e s
ea

, th
is 

is 
no

t 
alw

ay
s t

he
 ca

se
. 

Sim
ila

rly
 ba

t ro
os

ts 
are

 no
w 

so
me

tim
es

 
fou

nd
 in

 tre
es

 of
 le

ss
 th

an
 1m

 gi
rth

. 
SN

H 
Su

rve
y s

tan
da

rds
 (s

ec
tio

n 8
) 

Fo
r p

ara
gra

ph
 9,

 be
gin

nin
g ‘

If w
int

er 
su

rve
ys

…
’ w

e r
ec

om
me

nd
 it 

is 
am

en
de

d 
to 

rea
d ‘

fur
the

r s
urv

ey
’ ra

the
r th

an
 ‘a

 

Ag
ree

d. 
  

Ch
an

ge
s m

ad
e. 

Page 346



Re
sp
on

de
nt 

 
Su

mm
ary

 of
 co

mm
en
t  

Re
sp
on

se
 to

 co
mm

en
t 

Ch
an
ge
s (
if a

ny
) 

  
35

 

fur
the

r s
urv

ey
’ a

s s
om

eti
me

s m
ore

 th
an

 
on

e a
dd

itio
na

l s
urv

ey
 is

 re
qu

ire
d. 

It m
ay

 be
 he

lpf
ul 

to 
pro

vid
e l

ink
s t

o t
he

 
gu

ida
nc

e r
efe

rre
d t

o i
n t

his
 se

cti
on

: 
Ba

t M
itig

ati
on

 G
uid

eli
ne

s: 
htt

p:/
/pu

bli
ca

tio
ns

.na
tur

ale
ng

lan
d.o

rg.
uk

/p
ub

lica
tio

n/6
90

46
 

Ba
t S

urv
ey

s G
oo

d P
rac

tic
e G

uid
eli

ne
s: 

htt
p:/

/w
ww

.ba
ts.

org
.uk

/pa
ge

s/b
ats

urv
ey

g
uid

e.h
tm

l 
SN

H 
On

ce
 a 

su
rve

y i
s c

om
ple

te 
(se

cti
on

 10
) 

Th
e s

ec
on

d b
ull

et 
po

int
 m

igh
t b

e w
ord

ed
 

mo
re 

cle
arl

y a
s ‘

If a
 su

rve
y h

as
 be

en
 

co
nd

uc
ted

 du
rin

g t
he

 w
int

er 
(ou

tw
ith

 m
id-

Ma
y t

o m
id-

Au
gu

st)
 an

d h
as

 re
po

rte
d 

su
ita

ble
 ha

bit
at 

for
 ba

ts 
bu

t n
o e

vid
en

ce
 

of 
ba

ts 
ha

s b
ee

n f
ou

nd
…

’ 
Th

e f
ou

rth
 bu

lle
t p

oin
t s

ay
s t

ha
t w

he
re 

a 
dir

ec
t im

pa
ct 

on
 ba

ts 
ca

nn
ot 

be
 av

oid
ed

, 
the

 de
ve

lop
er 

wil
l b

e a
dv

ise
d t

o a
pp

ly 
for

 
a l

ice
nc

e f
rom

 SN
H.

 It 
ma

y b
e h

elp
ful

 to
 

se
t o

ut 
mo

re 
ac

cu
rat

ely
 th

e r
ole

 of
 th

e 
co

un
cil.

 W
e t

he
ref

ore
 re

co
mm

en
d 

am
en

din
g t

his
 bu

lle
t p

oin
t to

 re
ad

: w
he

re 
a d

ire
ct 

im
pa

ct 
on

 ba
ts 

ca
nn

ot 
be

 
av

oid
ed

, th
e c

ou
nc

il w
ill o

nly
 gr

an
t 

pla
nn

ing
 pe

rm
iss

ion
 if 

it i
s s

ati
sfi

ed
 th

at 
all

 th
ree

 te
sts

 fo
r a

 EP
S l

ice
nc

e c
an

 be
 

me
t, a

nd
 it 

wo
uld

 th
en

 re
mi

nd
 th

e 
ap

pli
ca

nt 
of 

the
 ne

ed
 to

 ap
ply

 fo
r a

 
lice

nc
e f

rom
 SN

H 
pri

or 
to 

an
y 

co
mm

en
ce

me
nt 

of 
wo

rks
. 

Ag
ree

d. 
  

Se
e n

ex
t s

ec
tio

n f
or 

ch
an

ge
s m

ad
e. 

Page 347



Re
sp
on

de
nt 

 
Su

mm
ary

 of
 co

mm
en
t  

Re
sp
on

se
 to

 co
mm

en
t 

Ch
an
ge
s (
if a

ny
) 

  
36

 

SN
H 

SN
H 

su
gg

es
ted

 ap
pro

ac
h f

or 
wh

en
 ba

t 
su

rve
ys

 ar
e r

eq
uir

ed
 

Bu
ilt 
St
ru
ctu

res
 

Su
rve

y w
ill u

su
all

y b
e r

eq
uir

ed
 fo

r 
de

mo
litio

n/a
lte

rat
ion

 of
: 

� 
un

de
rgr

ou
nd

 an
d o

the
r s

tru
ctu

res
 su

ch
 

as
 tu

nn
els

, k
iln

s, 
ce

lla
rs,

 ic
e h

ou
se

s a
nd

 
for

tifi
ca

tio
ns

 w
hic

h c
an

 pr
ov

ide
 

hib
ern

ati
on

s s
ite

s w
ith

 st
ab

le 
tem

pe
rat

ure
s; 

an
d/o

r 
� 
bu

ild
ing

s o
r o

the
r s

tru
ctu

res
 w

ith
 kn

ow
n 

ba
t ro

os
ts 

or 
wh

ere
 ba

ts 
are

 kn
ow

n t
o b

e 
pre

se
nt;

 an
d/o

r 
� 
bu

ild
ing

s o
r o

the
r s

tru
ctu

res
 w

ith
in 

the
 

are
a s

ho
wn

 on
 th

e C
ou

nc
il’s

 G
IS 

wh
ere

 
ba

ts 
ha

ve
 be

en
 no

ted
 in

 th
e c

ity
; a

nd
/or

 
� 
bu

ild
ing

s o
r o

the
r s

tru
ctu

res
 w

ith
in 

20
0m

 of
 fre

sh
wa

ter
 an

d w
etl

an
d h

ab
ita

ts 
su

ch
 as

 riv
ers

, b
urn

s, 
po

nd
s o

r w
et 

gra
ss

lan
d o

r fr
om

 w
oo

dla
nd

, h
ed

ge
row

s 
an

d/o
r li

ne
s o

f tr
ee

s. 
 Th

e b
uil

din
gs

 th
at 

ma
y s

up
po

rt b
at 

roo
sts

 
inc

lud
e t

rad
itio

na
l s

ton
e a

nd
 sl

ate
 

bu
ild

ing
s w

ith
 an

 in
tac

t o
r a

lm
os

t in
tac

t 
roo

f s
tru

ctu
re 

(eg
 ch

urc
he

s, 
ste

ad
ing

s, 
mi

ll b
uil

din
gs

) a
nd

 al
so

 an
y c

on
sta

ntl
y 

he
ate

d b
uil

din
gs

 su
ch

 as
 ho

us
es

, n
urs

ing
 

ho
me

s, 
sc

ho
ols

 an
d s

wim
mi

ng
 po

ols
. 

Ot
he

r s
tru

ctu
res

 su
ch

 as
 br

idg
es

 ca
n a

lso
 

co
nta

in 
ba

t ro
os

ts.
 

Su
rve

ys
 m

ay
 be

 re
qu

ire
d f

or:
 

� 
Bu

ild
ing

s a
nd

 ot
he

r s
tru

ctu
res

 m
ore

 

Ha
ve

 ta
ke

n o
n s

om
e o

f th
e s

ug
ge

sti
on

s b
ut 

no
t a

ll o
f 

the
m.

  It
 is

 fe
lt t

ha
t s

om
e o

f th
e s

ug
ge

sti
on

s a
re 

sti
ll  

va
gu

e a
nd

 co
uld

 le
ad

 to
 m

isin
ter

pre
tat

ion
.   

                              

So
me

 ch
an

ge
s m

ad
e. 

                                

Page 348



Re
sp
on

de
nt 

 
Su

mm
ary

 of
 co

mm
en
t  

Re
sp
on

se
 to

 co
mm

en
t 

Ch
an
ge
s (
if a

ny
) 

  
37

 

tha
n 2

00
m 

fro
m 

su
ita

ble
 ha

bit
ats

 w
he

re 
the

re 
is 

ev
ide

nc
e t

o s
ug

ge
st 

the
y m

ay
 be

 
pre

se
nt.

 
Su

rve
ys

 w
ill n

ot 
be

 re
qu

ire
d f

or:
 

� 
bu

ild
ing

s i
n a

 ve
ry 

ex
po

se
d l

oc
ati

on
 by

 
the

 se
a w

ith
 no

 su
ita

ble
 fo

rag
ing

 ha
bit

at 
wit

hin
 1k

m 
 Tr
ee
s 

Su
rve

ys
 m

ay
 be

 re
qu

ire
d f

or 
de

ve
lop

me
nts

 pr
op

os
ing

 tre
e w

ork
 (fe

llin
g 

or 
lop

pin
g) 

of:
 

� 
old

 an
d v

ete
ran

 tre
es

 ol
de

r th
an

 
10

0y
ea

rs;
 an

d/o
r 

� 
tre

es
 w

ith
 ob

vio
us

 ho
le,

 cr
ac

ks
 or

 
ca

vit
ies

; a
nd

/or
 

� 
tre

es
 w

ith
 a 

gir
th 

gre
ate

r th
an

 1m
 at

 
ch

es
t h

eig
ht.

 
 No

te 
tha

t tr
ee

s o
the

r th
an

 th
es

e c
an

 
so

me
tim

es
 co

nta
in 

ba
t ro

os
ts.

 Yo
un

g 
pla

nta
tio

ns
 of

 co
nif

ers
 ar

e n
ot 

like
ly 

to 
ha

ve
 ba

t ro
os

ts.
 Tr

ee
s a

re 
mo

re 
like

ly 
to 

be
 us

ed
 by

 ba
ts 

if t
he

y a
re 

lin
ke

d b
y o

the
r 

tre
es

 or
 he

dg
ero

ws
 to

 w
oo

dla
nd

 or
 ot

he
r 

ha
bit

at 
su

ita
ble

 fo
r b

ats
. 

 

So
me

 su
gg

es
ted

 ch
an

ge
s h

ere
 ha

ve
 al

rea
dy

 be
en

 
ca

rrie
d o

ut,
 w

hil
e o

the
rs 

ha
ve

 no
w 

be
en

 m
ad

e. 
 

      Ch
an

ge
s r

ela
tin

g t
o t

ree
s a

lre
ad

y m
ad

e. 
   

So
me

 ne
w 

ch
an

ge
s 

ma
de

. 

SE
PA

 
W
e h

av
e n

o a
dd

itio
na

l c
om

me
nts

 to
 

ma
ke

 to
 th

os
e p

rev
iou

sly
 m

ad
e i

n r
ela

tio
n 

to 
the

 In
fra

str
uc

tur
e a

nd
 D

ev
elo

pe
r 

Co
ntr

ibu
tio

ns
 M

an
ua

l (S
EP

A R
ef:

 
PC

S/1
10

08
5).

 W
e s

up
po

rt t
he

 re
co

gn
itio

n 
in 

the
 LD

P a
nd

 su
pp

ort
ing

 do
cu

me
nts

 of
 

Co
mm

en
ts 

no
ted

. 
No

 ch
an

ge
s r

eq
uir

ed
. 

  
 

Page 349



Re
sp
on

de
nt 

 
Su

mm
ary

 of
 co

mm
en
t  

Re
sp
on

se
 to

 co
mm

en
t 

Ch
an
ge
s (
if a

ny
) 

  
38

 

the
 ne

ed
 to

 co
ns

ide
r in

fra
str

uc
tur

e 
de

live
ry 

at 
an

 ea
rly

 st
ag

e. 

His
tor

ic 
Sc

otl
an

d 
W
hil
e w

elc
om

ing
 th

e p
rep

ara
tio

n o
f th

is 
gu

ida
nc

e I
 ca

n c
on

firm
 th

at 
we

 ha
ve

 no
 

de
tai

led
 co

mm
en

ts 
to 

off
er 

on
 th

is 
oc

ca
sio

n. 

Co
mm

en
ts 

no
ted

. 
No

 ch
an

ge
s r

eq
uir

ed
. 

Ba
t C

on
se

rva
tio

n 
Tru

st 
(B

CT
) 

Lik
e t

he
 us

e o
f p

ho
tos

 bu
t h

av
e a

 m
ino

r 
su

gg
es

tio
n. 

Fo
r im

pro
ve

me
nt 

Us
e 4

 
ph

oto
s t

o i
llu

str
ate

;  
1.B

at 
Ha

bit
at 

 
2.R

oo
sts

 – 
tra

dit
ion

al 
bu

ild
ing

s  
3.R

oo
sts

 – 
mo

de
rn 

bu
ild

ing
s  

4.B
ats

  
 EG

  
1. 

Go
od

 ba
t h

ab
ita

t ( 
wa

ter
 an

d 
wo

od
lan

d/ 
pa

rk/
 ga

rde
ns

/ ri
pa

ria
n 

wo
od

lan
d )

 in
 ab

erd
ee

n  
2.A

 tra
dit

ion
al/

 po
sh

 pr
op

ert
y t

ha
t is

 a 
roo

st 
 

 3.A
 m

od
ern

 co
un

cil 
es

tat
e t

yp
e 

en
vir

on
me

nt 
( g

rea
t fo

r p
ipi

str
ell

es
)  

4 B
ats

 in
 ro

os
t ( 

us
e p

ho
to 

on
 R

HS
 ) 

Do
 no

t h
av

e a
cc

es
s t

o s
uc

h p
ho

tos
, p

lus
, it

 is
 fe

lt t
ha

t 
the

se
 ph

oto
s w

ou
ld 

no
t a

dd
 an

y f
urt

he
r v

alu
e t

o t
he

 
gu

ida
nc

e. 
 Ad

din
g t

his
 nu

mb
er 

of 
ph

oto
s w

ou
ld 

als
o 

ma
ke

 th
e g

uid
an

ce
 qu

ite
 a 

lar
ge

 do
cu

me
nt.

 

No
 ch

an
ge

s r
eq

uir
ed

. 

Ba
t C

on
se

rva
tio

n 
Tru

st 
(B

CT
) 

Su
gg

es
t it

em
s 6

 an
d 7

 sh
ou

ld 
be

 
“sw

ap
pe

d” 
so

 Es
tab

lish
ing

 if 
a s

urv
ey

 is
 

req
uir

ed
 co

me
s a

s i
tem

 6 
an

d i
de

nti
fyi

ng
 

roo
sts

 is
 7.

 

Se
cti

on
 8 

‘su
rve

y s
tan

da
rds

’ a
nd

 se
cti

on
 9 

‘m
ini

mu
m 

su
rve

y d
eta

ils’
 et

c, 
na

tur
all

y f
oll

ow
s s

ec
tio

n 7
 

‘es
tab

lish
ing

 if 
a s

urv
ey

 is
 re

qu
ire

d. 
 Th

ere
for

e, 
it i

s f
elt

 
tha

t th
ere

 is
 no

 va
lue

 in
 sw

ap
pin

g s
ec

tio
n 6

 an
d 7

 
aro

un
d. 

    
 

No
 ch

an
ge

s r
eq

uir
ed

. 

Page 350



Re
sp
on

de
nt 

 
Su

mm
ary

 of
 co

mm
en
t  

Re
sp
on

se
 to

 co
mm

en
t 

Ch
an
ge
s (
if a

ny
) 

  
39

 

Ba
t C

on
se

rva
tio

n 
Tru

st 
(B

CT
) 

Su
gg

es
t in

clu
din

g a
 se

nte
nc

e t
o s

ay
 w

ho
 

the
 gu

ida
nc

e i
s a

im
ed

 at
. 

Ag
ree

d. 
  

Se
nte

nc
e n

ow
 ad

de
d t

o 
int

rod
uc

tio
n. 

Ba
t C

on
se

rva
tio

n 
Tru

st 
(B

CT
) 

Lis
a K

ell
y t

his
 is

 fin
e f

or 
ac

tiv
ity

 su
rve

ys
 

bu
t I’

m 
no

t s
ure

 w
ha

t to
 sa

y a
bo

ut 
ide

nti
fyi

ng
 hi

be
rna

cu
la.

 M
y p

rob
lem

 is
 

tha
t a

 w
int

er 
su

rve
y m

ay
 N

OT
 sh

ow
 ba

ts 
us

ing
 a 

str
uc

tur
e b

ut 
a w

ee
k l

ate
r th

e b
ats

 
ma

y b
e t

he
re.

 Is
 it 

be
tte

r to
 id

en
tify

 
po

ten
tia

l w
int

er 
sit

es
 in

 su
mm

er 
an

d 
as

su
me

 ba
ts 

mi
gh

t b
e t

he
re 

in 
win

ter
, 

rat
he

r th
an

 as
k d

ev
elo

pe
rs 

to 
wa

it f
or 

a 
win

ter
 su

rve
y w

hic
h d

oe
s n

ot 
fin

d b
ats

 
us

ing
 th

e s
ite

 at
 th

e t
im

e ?
??

 

Th
e g

uid
an

ce
 do

es
 no

t s
ug

ge
st 

tha
t d

ev
elo

pe
rs 

wa
it f

or 
win

ter
 su

rve
ys

 bu
t o

nly
 su

gg
es

ts 
the

m 
if s

um
me

r 
su

rve
ys

 ca
nn

ot 
be

 ca
rrie

d o
ut 

an
d t

ha
t th

ere
 is

 ac
ce

ss
 to

 
all

 pa
rts

 of
 th

e b
uil

din
g. 

 If 
a w

int
er 

su
rve

y h
as

 to
 be

 
co

nd
uc

ted
, th

en
 it 

is 
sta

ted
 th

at 
fur

the
r s

um
me

r s
urv

ey
s 

ma
y b

e r
eq

uir
ed

 if 
the

 ev
ide

nc
e i

s i
nc

on
clu

siv
e o

r th
ere

 
is 

po
ten

tia
l fo

r b
ats

.  T
ha

t s
aid

, a
 ne

w 
se

nte
nc

e h
as

 
be

en
 ad

de
d s

tat
ing

 th
at 

if a
 su

mm
er 

su
rve

y s
ug

ge
st 

po
ss

ibl
e e

vid
en

ce
 of

 a 
hib

ern
ati

on
 ro

os
t, t

he
n f

urt
he

r 
win

ter
 su

rve
ys

 w
ill b

e r
eq

uir
ed

.  C
ha

ng
es

 m
ad

e. 

Ch
an

ge
s m

ad
e. 

Ba
t C

on
se

rva
tio

n 
Tru

st 
(B

CT
) 

Inc
lud

e N
att

ere
r’s

 ba
t in

 se
cti

on
 2.

 
Ag

ree
d. 

  
Ch

an
ge

 m
ad

e. 
  

Ba
t C

on
se

rva
tio

n 
Tru

st 
(B

CT
) 

Se
cti

on
 3 

–  
Do

 w
e n

ee
d t

he
 w

ord
 “w

ild
 “in

? 
Th

e i
nc

lus
ion

 of
 th

e w
ord

 ‘w
ild

’ h
elp

s t
o d

ist
ing

uis
h 

be
tw

ee
n w

ild
 an

d c
ap

tiv
e b

ats
. 

No
 ch

an
ge

 m
ad

e. 

Ba
t C

on
se

rva
tio

n 
Tru

st 
(B

CT
) 

Se
cti

on
 3 

-  
Su

gg
es

t a
dd

ing
 – 

Ba
ts 

wil
l ro

os
t in

 a 
va

rie
ty 

of 
str

uc
tur

es
 in

clu
din

g; 
tre

es
, 

ca
ve

s, 
roc

k f
ac

es
, b

rid
ge

s a
nd

 bu
ild

ing
s 

bo
th 

old
 an

d m
od

ern
.  P

erh
ap

s p
ut 

thi
s 

tex
t in

 a 
bo

x t
o m

ak
e i

t s
tan

d o
ut.

 
   

Th
is 

is 
co

ve
red

 in
 se

cti
on

 6 
‘Id

en
tify

ing
 Ba

t R
oo

sts
’.  

 
No

 ch
an

ge
s r

eq
uir

ed
.  

Ba
t C

on
se

rva
tio

n 
Tru

st 
(B

CT
) 

Se
cti

on
 3 

– 
Pe

rha
ps

 illu
str

ate
 w

ith
 pi

ctu
res

 of
 su

ita
ble

 
sit

es
; tr

ee
, b

rid
ge

, m
od

ern
 bu

ild
ing

 Eg
 

Do
 no

t fe
el 

tha
t th

is 
wo

uld
 ad

d v
alu

e t
o t

his
 se

cti
on

 
wh

ich
 co

ve
rs 

‘Ba
ts 

an
d L

eg
isla

tio
n’.

   
No

 ch
an

ge
s r

eq
uir

ed
. 

Page 351



Re
sp
on

de
nt 

 
Su

mm
ary

 of
 co

mm
en
t  

Re
sp
on

se
 to

 co
mm

en
t 

Ch
an
ge
s (
if a

ny
) 

  
40

 

sc
ho

ol 
an

d a
n o

lde
r tr

ad
itio

na
l p

rop
ert

y. 

Ba
t C

on
se

rva
tio

n 
Tru

st 
(B

CT
) 

Se
cti

on
 5 

– 
Ch

ec
k w

ith
 Li

sa
 an

d K
ell

y –
 D

oe
s i

t h
av

e 
to 

be
 a 

roo
st?

 I s
us

pe
ct 

so
 bu

t w
an

t to
 

ch
ec

k –
 w

ou
ld 

the
 us

e o
f th

e a
rea

 as
 a 

for
ag

ing
 si

te 
of 

co
mm

uti
ng

 ro
ute

 co
un

t a
 

ma
ter

ial
 co

ns
ide

rat
ion

 ( a
lbe

it w
ith

 le
ss

 
pro

tec
tio

n )
? 

Th
e u

se
 of

 an
 ar

ea
 as

 a 
for

ag
ing

 si
te 

or 
co

mm
uti

ng
 

rou
te 

is 
no

t a
 m

ate
ria

l c
on

sid
era

tio
n. 

 Se
cti

on
 3 

cle
arl

y 
sta

tes
 w

ha
t is

 in
clu

de
d i

n t
he

 la
w.

   
No

 ch
an

ge
s r

eq
uir

ed
.   

Ba
t C

on
se

rva
tio

n 
Tru

st 
(B

CT
) 

Se
cti

on
 5 

- 
Su

gg
es

t u
sin

g t
he

 Pl
an
nin

g a
nd

 
de
ve
lop

me
nt 

for
 ba

t s
ur
ve
ys
 fro

m 
the

 
BC

T B
at 

su
rve

ys
 – 

Go
od

 pr
ac

tis
e 

Gu
ide

lin
es

 as
 a 

too
l fo

r id
en

tify
ing

 w
he

n a
 

ba
t s

urv
ey

 sh
ou

ld 
be

 ca
rrie

d o
ut.

 

Th
is 

is 
co

ve
red

 in
 se

cti
on

 7 
‘Es

tab
lish

ing
 if 

a S
urv

ey
 is

 
Re

qu
ire

d’ 
wh

ich
 ta

ilo
rs 

va
rio

us
 gu

ida
nc

e i
nto

 co
nc

ise
 

gu
ida

nc
e f

or 
an

 ur
ba

n e
nv

iro
nm

en
t.  

Re
fer

en
ce

 to
 th

is 
gu

ida
nc

e h
as

 no
w 

be
en

 m
ad

e i
n s

ec
tio

n 8
 ‘S

urv
ey

 
Sta

nd
ard

s’.
   

No
 ch

an
ge

s r
eq

uir
ed

.   

Ba
t C

on
se

rva
tio

n 
Tru

st 
(B

CT
) 

Se
cti

on
 5 

–  
An

d m
us

t s
ho

w 
ho

w 
FC

S w
ill b

e 
sa

feg
ua

rde
d. 

Lo
ca

l a
uth

ori
tie

s a
re 

no
t th

e r
eg

ula
tor

s f
or 

fel
lin

g. 
 FC

S 
reg

ula
tes

 th
eir

 ow
n w

ork
.   

No
 ch

an
ge

s r
eq

uir
ed

. 

Ba
t C

on
se

rva
tio

n 
Tru

st 
(B

CT
) 

All
 re

sid
en

t b
at 

sp
ec

ies
 (in

 th
e A

be
rde

en
 

are
a) 

are
 id

en
tifi

ed
 as

 “s
pe

cie
s o

f 
pri

nc
ipa

l im
po

rta
nc

e “
un

de
r th

e N
atu

re 
Co

ns
erv

ati
on

 Ac
t (S

co
tla

nd
) 2

00
4. 

 
Als

o u
nd

er 
thi

s a
ct 

loc
al 

an
d r

eg
ion

al 
au

tho
riti

es
 ha

ve
 a 

du
ty 

to 
fur

the
r th

e 
co

ns
erv

ati
on

 of
 bi

od
ive

rsi
ty 

so
 fa

r a
s i

s 
co

ns
ist

en
t w

ith
 th

e p
rop

er 
ex

erc
ise

 of
 

tho
se

 fu
nc

tio
ns

 

Th
is 

is 
alr

ea
dy

 co
ve

red
 un

de
r th

e N
atu

ral
 H

eri
tag

e 
gu

ida
nc

e a
nd

 th
e C

ou
nc

il’s
 N

atu
re 

Co
ns

erv
ati

on
 

Str
ate

gy
 20

10
-20

15
.  T

his
 in

for
ma

tio
n w

ou
ld 

no
t a

dd
 

an
y f

urt
he

r v
alu

e t
o t

his
 gu

ida
nc

e. 
  

No
 ch

an
ge

s r
eq

uir
ed

.  

Ba
t C

on
se

rva
tio

n 
Tru

st 
(B

CT
) 

Ad
d N

att
ere

r’s
 Ba

t to
 Ta

ble
 1.

   
  

Ag
ree

d. 
  

Ch
an

ge
 m

ad
e. 

  

Page 352



Re
sp
on

de
nt 

 
Su

mm
ary

 of
 co

mm
en
t  

Re
sp
on

se
 to

 co
mm

en
t 

Ch
an
ge
s (
if a

ny
) 

  
41

 

Ba
t C

on
se

rva
tio

n 
Tru

st 
(B

CT
) 

Ad
d t

o T
ab

le 
1 -

 SP
I: s

pe
cie

s o
f p

rin
cip

al 
Im

po
rta

nc
e (

on
 Sc

ott
ish

 bi
od

ive
rsi

ty 
list

. 
Ag

ree
d. 

 
Ch

an
ge

 m
ad

e. 
  

Ba
t C

on
se

rva
tio

n 
Tru

st 
(B

CT
) 

‘Th
e L

oc
al 

Pla
nn

ing
 Au

tho
rity

 sh
ou

ld 
req

ue
st 

a b
at 

su
rve

y t
o e

sta
bli

sh
 th

e 
im

pa
cts

 on
 ba

ts 
be

for
e t

he
 pl

an
nin

g 
ap

pli
ca

tio
n i

s d
ete

rm
ine

d.’
   

Ex
ce

lle
nt 

tha
t th

is 
is 

ma
de

 so
 cl

ea
r. 

Co
mm

en
t n

ote
d. 

No
 ch

an
ge

s r
eq

uir
ed

. 

Ba
t C

on
se

rva
tio

n 
Tru

st 
(B

CT
) 

Se
cti

on
 6 

–  
Str

es
s t

ha
t b

ats
 us

e a
 va

rie
ty 

of 
roo

sts
, 

dif
fer

en
t ro

os
ts 

in 
win

ter
 an

d s
um

me
r. I

n 
ad

dit
ion

 th
ey

 w
ill u

se
 bo

th 
mo

de
rn 

an
d 

old
/ tr

ad
itio

na
l b

uil
din

gs
 or

 st
ruc

tur
es

. 

Th
is 

is 
co

ve
red

 in
 se

cti
on

 6 
an

d a
lso

 in
 se

cti
on

s 2
 un

de
r 

‘G
en

era
l In

for
ma

tio
n a

bo
ut 

Ba
ts’

 an
d 7

 ‘E
sta

bli
sh

ing
 if 

a 
Su

rve
y i

s R
eq

uir
ed

’.  
 

No
 ch

an
ge

s r
eq

uir
ed

.   

Ba
t C

on
se

rva
tio

n 
Tru

st 
(B

CT
) 

Se
cti

on
 6 

–  
Ca

uti
on

 – 
dro

pp
ing

s m
ay

 N
OT

 be
 vi

sib
le 

ev
en

 w
ith

 la
rge

 nu
mb

er 
of 

ba
ts.

 Pi
pis

tre
lle

 
ba

ts 
in 

pa
rtic

ula
r m

ay
 us

e t
iny

 sp
ac

es
 eg

 
be

tw
ee

n s
lat

es
/ ti

les
 an

d s
ark

ing
. T

he
ir 

dro
pp

ing
s m

ay
 no

t b
e v

isib
le 

ins
ide

 a 
roo

f 
sp

ac
e a

nd
 th

inl
y s

ca
tte

red
 ou

tsi
de

 a 
str

uc
tur

e o
r to

o h
igh

 up
 on

 a 
wa

ll t
o b

e 
no

tic
ed

. 

Th
is 

is 
co

ve
red

 fu
rth

er 
on

 th
is 

se
cti

on
.   

No
 ch

an
ge

s r
eq

uir
ed

.   

Ba
t C

on
se

rva
tio

n 
Tru

st 
(B

CT
) 

Se
cti

on
 6 

-  
De

let
e “

wh
ere

 lig
ht 

en
ter

s” 
I th

ink
 th

is 
is 

a 
typ

o. 
BL

E b
ats

 w
ill r

oo
st 

in 
sp

ac
es

 th
at 

are
 qu

ite
 lig

ht 
bu

t th
is 

is 
no

t a
 

pre
req

uis
ite

.
 

Ag
ree

d. 
  

Ch
an

ge
 m

ad
e. 

  

Ba
t C

on
se

rva
tio

n 
Tru

st 
(B

CT
) 

Se
cti

on
 6 

las
t p

ara
gra

ph
 - S

ug
ge

st 
pu

ttin
g t

he
 te

xt 
in 

bo
ld 

als
o i

n a
 bo

x –
 to

 
ma

ke
 it 

sta
nd

 ou
t. 

Th
is 

se
cti

on
 is

 al
rea

dy
 in

 bo
ld.

   
No

 ch
an

ge
s r

eq
uir

ed
.   

Page 353



Re
sp
on

de
nt 

 
Su

mm
ary

 of
 co

mm
en
t  

Re
sp
on

se
 to

 co
mm

en
t 

Ch
an
ge
s (
if a

ny
) 

  
42

 

Ba
t C

on
se

rva
tio

n 
Tru

st 
(B

CT
) 

Se
cti

on
 6 

-  
Su

gg
es

t a
dd

ing
 a 

dia
gra

m 
to 

sh
ow

 th
e 

ac
tua

l s
ize

 / d
im

en
sio

ns
 of

 a 
ga

p t
ha

t a
 

Pip
ist

rel
le 

ba
t c

ou
ld 

us
e a

s a
n e

ntr
y/e

xit
 

po
int

 in
to 

a r
oo

st.
  

Dr
aw

 to
rpe

do
 sh

ap
e 2

cm
 w

ide
 by

 1c
m 

hig
h. 

Try
ing

 to
 ke

ep
 th

is 
gu

ida
nc

e a
s b

rie
f a

nd
 co

nc
ise

 as
 

po
ss

ibl
e. 

 Ad
din

g f
urt

he
r in

for
ma

tio
n w

ou
ld 

ma
ke

 th
e 

gu
ida

nc
e t

oo
 lo

ng
, p

lus
 do

n’t
 th

ink
 th

at 
thi

s w
ou

ld 
ad

d 
va

lue
 to

 th
e g

uid
an

ce
.   

 

No
 ch

an
ge

s r
eq

uir
ed

.   
 

Ba
t C

on
se

rva
tio

n 
Tru

st 
(B

CT
) 

Se
cti

on
 7 

–  
Se

e B
CT

 tri
gg

er 
list

 fo
r fu

rth
er 

inf
o. 

Lin
ks

 to
 th

e B
CT

 gu
ida

nc
e i

s a
lre

ad
y o

n s
ec

tio
n 8

, p
lus

 
thi

s s
ec

tio
n h

as
 a 

mo
re 

co
nc

ise
 tri

gg
er 

list
 de

ve
lop

ed
 fo

r 
the

 ur
ba

n A
be

rde
en

 C
ity
.   

No
 ch

an
ge

s r
eq

uir
ed

.   

Ba
t C

on
se

rva
tio

n 
Tru

st 
(B

CT
) 

Se
cti

on
 7 

–  
Bu

ild
ing

s w
hic

h a
re 

in 
a v

ery
 ex

po
se

d 
loc

ati
on

 by
 th

e s
ea

 w
ith

 no
 su

ita
ble

 
for

ag
ing

 ha
bit

at 
wit

hin
 1k

m 
are

 un
like

ly 
to 

be
 us

ed
 by

 ba
ts 

an
d w

ill n
ot 

req
uir

e a
 

su
rve

y. 
 Ch

ec
k –

 no
t s

ure
 ab

ou
t th

is 
at 

all
.  

I re
all

y d
on

’t k
no

w 
if t

his
 is

 tru
e o

r n
ot.

 
W
ou

ld 
ba

ts 
us

e a
n i

ce
 ho

us
e /

 fis
hin

g 
sta

tio
n a

s a
 hi

be
rna

tio
n s

ite
 if 

it l
ac

ke
d 

go
od

 fe
ed

ing
 ha

bit
at 

bu
t h

ad
 su

ita
ble

 
tem

p a
nd

 hu
mi

dit
y f

or 
hib

ern
ati

on
?  

Ba
ts 

wil
l fe

ed
 ov

er 
se

aw
ee

d. 

Ag
ree

d. 
 SN

H 
ha

ve
 re

ce
ntl

y r
ep

ort
ed

 th
at 

a b
at 

roo
st 

wa
s f

ou
nd

 in
 a 

ca
stl

e b
y t

he
 se

a. 
  

Th
is 

se
nte

nc
e h

as
 no

w 
be

en
 re

mo
ve

d. 
  

Ba
t C

on
se

rva
tio

n 
Tru

st 
(B

CT
) 

Se
cti

on
 7 
- R

em
em

be
r, b

ats
 ca

n b
e 

fou
nd

 in
 an

y s
tru

ctu
re 

an
d/o

r b
uil
din

g 
bo

th 
old

 an
d n

ew
 if 
it i
s i
n t

he
 co

rre
ct 

en
vir
on

me
nt!

 
YE

S –
 su

gg
es

t p
utt

ing
 th

is 
in 

a b
ox

 an
d i

n 
ev

en
 bi

gg
er 

typ
e. 

Th
is 

se
cti

on
 is

 al
rea

dy
 in

 bo
ld.

  D
o n

ot 
thi

nk
 pu

ttin
g i

n a
 

bo
x i

n b
igg

er 
fon

t s
ize

 w
ou

ld 
ad

d a
ny

 va
lue

 to
 th

e 
gu

ida
nc

e. 
  

No
 ch

an
ge

s r
eq

uir
ed

.  

Ba
t C

on
se

rva
tio

n 
Tru

st 
(B

CT
) 

Se
cti

on
 8 

- b
. B

at 
Su

rve
ys

 G
oo

d P
rac

tic
e 

Gu
ide

lin
es

 – 
Ba

t C
on

se
rva

tio
n T

rus
t. 

 
Po

int
 no

ted
.   

No
 ch

an
ge

 re
qu

ire
d. 

Page 354



Re
sp
on

de
nt 

 
Su

mm
ary

 of
 co

mm
en
t  

Re
sp
on

se
 to

 co
mm

en
t 

Ch
an
ge
s (
if a

ny
) 

  
43

 

(no
te 

no
w 

on
 ed

itio
n 2

 , J
uly

 20
12

)  

Ba
t C

on
se

rva
tio

n 
Tru

st 
(B

CT
) 

Se
cti

on
 8 

- F
or 

ho
us

eh
old

er 
ap

pli
ca

tio
ns

 
an

d o
the

r s
ma

ll s
ca

le 
de

ve
lop

me
nts

 su
ch

 
as

 st
ea

din
g c

on
ve

rsi
on

s, 
win

ter
 su

rve
ys

 
ma

y b
e a

cc
ep

tab
le 

to 
rul

e o
ut 

the
 

pre
se

nc
e o

f b
ats

 bu
t th

es
e w

ill o
nly

 be
 

ac
ce

pte
d w

he
re 

all
 re

lev
an

t p
art

s o
f th

e 
bu

ild
ing

 ca
n b

e a
de

qu
ate

ly 
ins

pe
cte

d. 
 NO

!! 
No

te 
a W

int
er 

su
rve

y M
AY

 co
nfi

rm
 

the
 pr

es
en

ce
 of

 ba
ts 

/ u
se

 of
 th

e b
uil

din
g 

as
 a 

ba
t ro

os
t b

ut 
it c

an
no

t b
e r

eli
ed

 on
 to

 
sh

ow
 ba

ts 
wil

l n
ot 

be
 pr

es
en

t in
 su

mm
er 

. 

Th
e C

ou
nc

il is
 sa

tis
fie

d t
ha

t th
e g

uid
an

ce
 st

ipu
lat

es
 th

at 
it r

eq
uir

es
 co

nfi
rm

ati
on

 th
at 

the
re 

is 
ac

ce
ss

 to
 al

l p
art

s o
f 

the
 bu

ild
ing

s b
efo

re 
ag

ree
ing

 to
 a 

win
ter

 su
rve

y. 
 Th

e 
gu

ida
nc

e g
oe

s o
n t

o s
ay

 th
at 

if f
ind

ing
s a

re 
inc

on
clu

siv
e 

or 
the

re 
is 

po
ten

tia
l fo

r b
ats

, th
e C

ou
nc

il w
ill r

eq
ue

st 
fur

the
r s

urv
ey

s i
n t

he
 su

mm
er 

mo
nth

s. 
 Th

is 
is 

als
o 

rep
ea

ted
 in

 Se
cti

on
 10

.   

No
 ch

an
ge

s r
eq

uir
ed

. 

Ba
t C

on
se

rva
tio

n 
Tru

st 
(B

CT
) 

Se
cti

on
 8,

 D
iag

ram
 1 

–  
 Ad

d t
o t

ex
t,   

for
 ac

tiv
e b

ats
 .  

Hib
ern

ati
on

 su
rve

ys
 – 

fro
m 

Oc
tob

er 
to 

Ma
rch

. 

Th
is 

gu
ida

nc
e f

oc
us

es
 on

 th
e b

es
t ti

me
 to

 su
rve

y f
or 

ba
t 

ac
tiv

ity
 w

hic
h i

s d
uri

ng
 th

e s
um

me
r m

on
ths

.  H
ow

ev
er,

 
ref

ere
nc

e t
o t

he
 be

st 
tim

e t
o s

urv
ey

 fo
r h

ibe
rna

tio
n 

roo
sts

 ha
s b

ee
n i

nc
lud

ed
 in

 th
e m

ain
 te

xt 
of 

se
cti

on
 8 

an
d b

elo
w 

the
 Ba

t A
cti

vit
y C

ale
nd

ar.
  It

 ha
s a

lso
 be

en
 

ad
de

d t
o S

ec
tio

n 1
 – 

Int
rod

uc
tio

n. 
  

Ch
an

ge
s m

ad
e. 

  

Ba
t C

on
se

rva
tio

n 
Tru

st 
(B

CT
) 

Se
cti

on
 9 

- M
ini

mu
m 

Su
rve

y D
eta

ils 
 No

te 
– s

ee
 Te

mp
lat

e p
28

, B
CT

 Ba
t 

su
rve

y =
 go

od
 pr

ac
tic

e g
uid

eli
ne

s. 

Re
fer

en
ce

 to
 th

is 
lite

rat
ure

 is
 al

rea
dy

 in
clu

de
d i

n S
ec

tio
n 

8. 
  

No
 ch

an
ge

s r
eq

uir
ed

.  

Ba
t C

on
se

rva
tio

n 
Tru

st 
(B

CT
) 

Se
cti

on
 9 

– M
ini

mu
m 

Su
rve

y 
Re

qu
ire

me
nts

 – 
ite

m 
2. 

 Ad
d ‘

/s’
 to

 th
e w

ord
 ‘s

urv
ey

’. 

Do
es

n’t
 ad

d a
ny

 fu
rth

er 
va

lue
 to

 se
nte

nc
e. 

 W
he

the
r 

the
re 

is 
on

e o
r m

ore
 su

rve
y c

on
du

cte
d, 

the
 in

str
uc

tio
n i

s 
the

 sa
me

.   
Ch

an
ge

 no
t re

qu
ire

d. 
  

Ba
t C

on
se

rva
tio

n 
Tru

st 
(B

CT
) 

Se
cti

on
 9 

– M
ini

mu
m 

Su
rve

y 
Re

qu
ire

me
nts

 – 
ite

m 
4. 

 Ad
d t

o s
en

ten
ce

 – 
‘(In

clu
din

g t
im

ing
s /

 

Ag
ree

d. 
  

Ch
an

ge
 m

ad
e. 

Page 355



Re
sp
on

de
nt 

 
Su

mm
ary

 of
 co

mm
en
t  

Re
sp
on

se
 to

 co
mm

en
t 

Ch
an
ge
s (
if a

ny
) 

  
44

 

sta
ge

s)’
  

Ba
t C

on
se

rva
tio

n 
Tru

st 
(B

CT
) 

Se
cti

on
 9 

– M
ini

mu
m 

Su
rve

y 
Re

qu
ire

me
nts

 – 
ite

m 
6. 

 Ad
d t

o s
en

ten
ce

 – 
‘gr

id 
ref

ere
nc

e/s
, 

ph
oto

s’ 
 

Ite
m 

14
 al

rea
dy

 m
en

tio
ns

 ph
oto

gra
ph

s b
ut 

no
t g

rid
 

ref
ere

nc
es

.  W
ill a

dd
 gr

id 
ref

ere
nc

es
 to

 ite
m 

14
.   

 
Ch

an
ge

 m
ad

e. 

Ba
t C

on
se

rva
tio

n 
Tru

st 
(B

CT
) 

Se
cti

on
 9 

– M
ini

mu
m 

Su
rve

y 
Re

qu
ire

me
nts

 – 
ite

m 
7. 

 Ad
d t

o s
en

ten
ce

 – 
‘( F

iel
d s

urv
ey

s’,
 ro

os
t 

su
rve

ys
, a

cti
vit

y s
urv

ey
s)’

  

Th
e C

ou
nc

il d
oe

s n
ot 

wa
nt 

to 
sp

ec
ify

 ei
the

r a
cti

vit
y, 

fie
ld 

or 
roo

st 
su

rve
ys

, b
ut 

a g
en

era
l s

urv
ey

 th
at 

co
ve

rs 
all

.   
No

 ch
an

ge
s r

eq
uir

ed
.   

Ba
t C

on
se

rva
tio

n 
Tru

st 
(B

CT
) 

Se
cti

on
 9 

– M
ini

mu
m 

Su
rve

y 
Re

qu
ire

me
nts

 – 
ite

m 
10

. 
 Ad

d t
o s

en
ten

ce
 – 

‘Eq
uip

me
nt 

us
ed

’.  

Th
is 

is 
alr

ea
dy

 co
ve

red
 in

 ite
m 

8. 
  

No
 ch

an
ge

s r
eq

uir
ed

.  

Ba
t C

on
se

rva
tio

n 
Tru

st 
(B

CT
) 

Se
cti

on
 9 

– M
ini

mu
m 

Su
rve

y 
Re

qu
ire

me
nts

 – 
ite

m 
11

. 
 Ad

d t
o s

en
ten

ce
 – 

‘an
d /

’    

Ag
ree

d. 
  

Ch
an

ge
 m

ad
e.  

Ba
t C

on
se

rva
tio

n 
Tru

st 
(B

CT
) 

Se
cti

on
 9 

– M
ini

mu
m 

Su
rve

y 
Re

qu
ire

me
nts

 – 
ite

m 
12

. 
 Ad

d t
o b

ull
et 

po
int

s -
  

Fo
rag

ing
 ar

ea
s –

 sa
feg

ua
rd 

/ e
nh

an
ce

  
Fli

gh
t li

ne
s -

 sa
feg

ua
rd 

/ e
nh

an
ce

  

Dis
ag

ree
.  L

oc
al 

au
tho

riti
es

 do
 no

t b
y l

aw
 ha

ve
 to

 
pro

tec
t fo

rag
ing

 ar
ea

s o
f fl

igh
t li

ne
s. 

 Lo
ca

l a
uth

ori
tie

s 
are

 co
nc

ern
ed

 w
ith

 ba
ts 

an
d b

at 
roo

sts
. 

  

No
 ch

an
ge

s r
eq

uir
ed

.   

Ba
t C

on
se

rva
tio

n 
Tru

st 
(B

CT
) 

Se
cti

on
 9 

– M
ini

mu
m 

Su
rve

y 
Re

qu
ire

me
nts

 
 Ad

d ‘
su

mm
ary

’ a
t th

e e
nd

 of
 se

cti
on

. 

Alt
ho

ug
h t

his
 do

es
 no

t c
on

sti
tut

e m
ini

mu
m 

su
rve

y 
de

tai
ls,

 it 
is 

us
efu

l to
 ha

ve
 an

d w
ill i

nc
lud

e t
his

 in
 th

e 
gu

ida
nc

e. 
  

Ch
an

ge
s m

ad
e. 

  

Page 356



Re
sp
on

de
nt 

 
Su

mm
ary

 of
 co

mm
en
t  

Re
sp
on

se
 to

 co
mm

en
t 

Ch
an
ge
s (
if a

ny
) 

  
45

 

Ba
t C

on
se

rva
tio

n 
Tru

st 
(B

CT
) 

Se
cti

on
 10

 – 
Se

co
nd

 bu
lle

t p
oin

t. 
 Re

mo
ve

 th
e w

ord
 ‘p

rob
ab

ly’.
   

Ag
ree

d. 
  

Ch
an

ge
 m

ad
e. 

  

Ba
t C

on
se

rva
tio

n 
Tru

st 
(B

CT
) 

Se
cti

on
 11

 – 
Co

nd
itio

ns
 or

 ob
lig

ati
on

s 
 Ad

d t
o b

ull
et 

po
int

s 
‘Re

str
ict

ion
s/p

res
cri

pti
on

s o
n l

igh
tin

g’ 

Ag
ree

d. 
  

Ch
an

ge
 m

ad
e. 

  

Ba
t C

on
se

rva
tio

n 
Tru

st 
(B

CT
) 

Se
cti

on
 12

 – 
W
ha

t y
ou

 ca
n d

o t
o H

elp
 

Ba
ts 

 Ad
d t

o s
en

ten
ce

 – 
‘Ba

t b
ox

es
 ca

n a
lso

 be
 

bu
ilt 

int
o w

all
s o

r ro
of 

sp
ac

es
.’ 

Th
is 

se
cti

on
 al

rea
dy

 su
gg

es
ts 

pla
cin

g b
at 

bo
xe

s i
n 

bu
ild

ing
s p

lus
 ba

t b
ric

ks
 an

d s
lat

es
 w

hic
h w

ill a
llo

w 
ba

ts 
int

o t
he

 ro
of 

sp
ac

e. 
  

No
 ch

an
ge

s r
eq

uir
ed

.   

Ra
ch

ae
l T

hw
ait

es
 

P 8
 N

ot 
su

re 
it’s

 a 
go

od
 id

ea
 to

 pr
ov

ide
 

too
 m

uc
h i

nfo
rm

ati
on

 w
hic

h w
ill h

elp
 

rem
ov

e e
vid

en
ce

... 
I d

o k
no

w 
thi

s h
as

 ha
pp

en
ed

. A
lth

ou
gh

 
thi

s w
ou

ld 
he

lp 
the

 ap
pli

ca
nt 

de
ter

mi
ne

 
the

 ne
ed

 fo
r a

 su
rve

y, 
it m

ay
 al

so
 gi

ve
 

the
m 

the
 op

po
rtu

nit
y t

o r
em

ov
e i

t p
rio

r to
 

a s
urv

ey
.  

As
 w

ell
 as

 de
ve

lop
ers

, th
is 

inf
orm

ati
on

 is
 re

qu
ire

d b
y 

ca
se

 of
fic

ers
 de

ter
mi

nin
g a

pp
lica

tio
ns

. T
his

 in
for

ma
tio

n 
as

sis
ts 

the
 C

ou
nc

il in
 fu

lfill
ing

 its
 le

ga
l o

bli
ga

tio
n f

or 
EP

S 
an

d p
art

icu
lar

ly 
ba

ts.
  B

oth
 pl

an
ne

rs 
an

d 
de

ve
lop

ers
/ho

me
ow

ne
rs 

ne
ed

 to
 be

 in
for

me
d o

f th
e l

aw
 

an
d w

ha
t is

 re
qu

ire
d a

s p
er 

the
 la

w 
wh

en
 it 

co
me

s t
o 

ba
ts.

  If
 a 

de
ve

lop
er 

or 
ho

me
ow

ne
r c

ho
os

es
 to

 re
mo

ve
 

ev
ide

nc
e o

f b
ats

 pr
ior

 to
 a 

req
ue

st 
for

 pl
an

nin
g 

pe
rm

iss
ion

, th
e c

ou
nc

il c
an

no
t b

e h
eld

 re
sp

on
sib

le 
for

 
an

y u
nla

wf
ul 

ac
tio

n t
ak

en
 by

 th
em

.  I
f c

au
gh

t, t
ho

se
 

res
po

ns
ibl

e w
ill b

e d
ea

lt w
ith

 by
 th

e a
pp

rop
ria

te 
au

tho
rity

 ac
co

rdi
ng

 to
 th

e l
aw

.   

No
 ch

an
ge

s r
eq

uir
ed

.   

Ra
ch

ae
l T

hw
ait

es
 

P 8
 an

d 1
0. 

 I d
ou

bt 
the

re 
wo

uld
 be

 m
an

y 
wh

o w
ou

ld 
ca

rry
 ou

t a
 su

rve
y u

nle
ss

 
sp

ec
ific

all
y a

sk
ed

 to
 do

 so
 by

 th
e C

ou
nc

il.  
Th

is 
inf

orm
ati

on
 he

lps
 ca

se
 of

fic
ers

 un
de

rst
an

d w
ha

t is
 

req
uir

ed
 in

 a 
ba

t s
urv

ey
 an

d w
ha

t th
ey

 sh
ou

ld 
do

 ne
xt 

on
ce

 it 
ha

s b
ee

n r
ec

eiv
ed

.  I
t a

lso
 in

for
ms

 de
ve

lop
ers

 
an

d h
om

eo
wn

ers
 of

 th
e p

roc
es

s. 
  

No
 ch

an
ge

s r
eq

uir
ed

.  

Ra
ch

ae
l T

hw
ait

es
 

Mi
nim

um
 su

rve
y r

eq
uir

em
en

ts 
do

 no
t 

str
ict

ly 
ad

he
re 

to 
tho

se
 in

 BC
T’s

 Ba
t 

Su
rve

ys
 G

oo
d P

rac
tic

e G
uid

eli
ne

s, 
as

 
the

se
 re

co
mm

en
d t

ha
t a

ll o
f th

e r
oo

f 
sh

ou
ld 

be
 se

en
 at

 al
l ti

me
s (

p6
1 o

f th
e 

As
 st

ate
d, 

thi
s i

s t
he

 ‘m
ini

mu
m’

 re
qu

ire
me

nts
 re

qu
es

ted
 

by
 th

e C
ou

nc
il. 

 Th
ere

 is
 re

fer
en

ce
 to

 th
e B

CT
’s 

Ba
t 

Su
rve

y G
oo

d P
rac

tic
e G

uid
eli

ne
s f

or 
mo

re 
de

tai
led

 
req

uir
em

en
ts.

   G
ive

n t
ha

t th
is 

is 
an

 op
ini

on
 an

d o
ne

 th
at 

is 
no

t s
ha

red
 by

 al
l s

urv
ey

ors
.  

No
 ch

an
ge

s r
eq

uir
ed

. 

Page 357



Re
sp
on

de
nt 

 
Su

mm
ary

 of
 co

mm
en
t  

Re
sp
on

se
 to

 co
mm

en
t 

Ch
an
ge
s (
if a

ny
) 

  
46

 

2n
d e

dit
ion

). T
his

 is
 of

ten
 no

t a
ch

iev
ed

 
wh

ere
 on

ly 
on

e i
nd

ivid
ua

l c
arr

ies
 ou

t th
e 

su
rve

y. 
Ho

we
ve

r, t
his

 is
 an

 op
ini

on
 no

t 
sh

are
d b

y a
ll s

urv
ey

ors
.  

Ra
ch

ae
l T

hw
ait

es
 

BC
T’s

 Ba
t S

urv
ey

s G
oo

d P
rac

tic
e 

Gu
ide

lin
es

 - A
lso

 re
co

mm
en

ds
 th

at 
2 o

r 3
 

(su
rve

ys
) s

ho
uld

 be
 ca

rrie
d o

ut 
at 

dif
fer

en
t ti

me
s o

f th
e s

um
me

r (p
 62

/63
). 

Th
is 

is 
rar

ely
 do

ne
 in

 Ab
erd

ee
ns

hir
e a

nd
 

the
 pr

ac
tic

al 
an

d f
ina

nc
ial

 co
ns

eq
ue

nc
es

 
are

 ob
vio

us
, h

ow
ev

er,
 ba

ts 
do

 us
e a

 
nu

mb
er 

of 
roo

sts
 an

d t
he

ir u
se

 ca
n b

e 
mi

ss
ed

 by
 a 

sin
gle

 vi
sit

. 

Th
e c

ou
nc

il d
oe

s n
ot 

req
ue

st 
as

 st
an

da
rd 

2 o
r 3

 su
rve

ys
 

thr
ou

gh
ou

t th
e s

um
me

r a
s t

his
 w

ou
ld 

ad
d f

urt
he

r d
ela

ys
 

to 
the

 pl
an

nin
g p

roc
es

s. 
 Th

at 
sa

id,
 if 

no
 ba

ts 
ha

ve
 be

en
 

fou
nd

 bu
t th

ere
 is

 en
ou

gh
 ev

ide
nc

e t
o s

ug
ge

st 
tha

t b
ats

 
ma

y b
e t

he
re 

at 
a d

iffe
ren

t ti
me

, th
en

 th
e C

ou
nc

il w
ill 

req
ue

st 
a f

urt
he

r s
urv

ey
 as

 no
ted

 in
 Se

cti
on

 8 
an

d 
rep

ea
ted

 in
 Se

cti
on

 10
.   

No
 ch

an
ge

s r
eq

uir
ed

.   

Ra
ch

ae
l T

hw
ait

es
 

P 1
2. 

I’m
 al

wa
ys

 ba
ng

ing
 on

 ab
ou

t th
is,

 
bu

t it
 m

ay
 be

 ap
pro

pri
ate

 to
 us

e t
he

 te
rm

 
‘po

ten
tia

l’ w
he

n d
ea

lin
g w

ith
 w

int
er 

su
rve

ys
 ra

the
r th

an
 in

co
nc

lus
ive

. 
Ev

ide
nc

e o
f b

ats
 is

 no
t a

lwa
ys

 pr
es

en
t 

wh
en

 ba
ts 

us
e h

ard
 to

 fin
d s

pa
ce

s. 
Th

is 
ag

ain
 is

 an
 ar

ea
 w

hic
h n

ot 
all

 su
rve

yo
rs 

ag
ree

 up
on

. 

Th
is 

is 
ac

tua
lly 

pa
ge

 10
.  A

gre
ed

.   
Ch

an
ge

 m
ad

e.  

 Ch
ild
ren

’s 
Nu

rse
rie

s a
nd

 Sp
or
ts 
Fa
cil
itie

s 
Sp

or
t S

co
tla
nd

 – 
Lo

rra
ine

 Jo
ne
s 

Th
e r

es
po

nd
en

t p
rev

iou
sly

 m
ad

e 
co

mm
en

t in
 re

lat
ion

 to
 th

is 
SG

 in
 th

e 
co

nte
xt 

of 
the

 LD
P. 

 As
 no

ted
 at

 th
at 

tim
e, 

it i
s c

on
sid

ere
d t

ha
t th

e w
ord

ing
 of

 th
e S

G 
is 

lar
ge

ly 
co

ve
red

 w
ith

in 
the

 po
lici

es
 of

 
the

 LD
P i

tse
lf. 

 Al
so

, it
 is

 ou
r v

iew
 th

at 
the

 
wo

rdi
ng

 of
 th

e g
uid

an
ce

 is
 un

du
ly 

ne
ga

tiv
e. 

 Sp
ort

s f
ac

iliti
es

 ar
e a

 vi
tal

 pa
rt 

of 
the

 lif
e i

n v
illa

ge
s, 

tow
ns

 an
d c

itie
s a

nd
 

Alt
ho

ug
h t

he
 tw

o s
ub

jec
ts 

ap
pe

ar 
un

rel
ate

d, 
bo

th 
are

 
co

nc
ern

ed
 w

ith
 pr

ote
cti

ng
 th

e l
oc

al 
en

vir
on

me
nt 

an
d 

res
ide

nti
al 

am
en

ity
. B

ec
au

se
 of

 th
is 

we
 w

ou
ld 

wis
h t

o 
ret

ain
 th

e S
up

ple
me

nta
ry 

Gu
ida

nc
e a

s i
t is

. 
 A f

urt
he

r s
en

ten
ce

 w
ill b

e a
dd

ed
 to

 th
e G

uid
an

ce
 w

hic
h 

wil
l m

ak
e r

efe
ren

ce
 to

 th
e p

os
itiv

e c
on

trib
uti

on
 w

hic
h 

sp
ort

s f
ac

iliti
es

 m
ak

e t
o t

he
 qu

ali
ty 

of 
life

 in
 Ab

erd
ee

n. 
 

Th
e f

urt
he

r s
en

ten
ce

 
‘Sp

ort
s F

ac
iliti

es
 ar

e a
 

vit
al 

pa
rt o

f li
fe 

in 
vill

ag
es

, to
wn

s a
nd

 ci
tie

s 
an

d c
an

 m
ak

e a
 po

sit
ive

 
co

ntr
ibu

tio
n t

o t
he

 qu
ali

ty 
of 

life
 to

 th
e c

itiz
en

s o
f 

Ab
erd

ee
n.’

 H
as

 be
en

 
ad

de
d t

o t
he

 G
uid

an
ce

. 

Page 358



Re
sp
on

de
nt 

 
Su

mm
ary

 of
 co

mm
en
t  

Re
sp
on

se
 to

 co
mm

en
t 

Ch
an
ge
s (
if a

ny
) 

  
47

 

wh
ile

 w
e a

pp
rec

iat
e t

ha
t th

ere
 ar

e 
am

en
ity

 an
d o

the
r p

lan
nin

g 
co

ns
ide

rat
ion

s w
hic

h n
ee

d c
on

sid
era

tio
n 

in 
rel

ati
on

 to
 th

eir
 lo

ca
tio

n, 
the

se
 ap

pe
ar 

to 
be

 co
ve

red
 in

 ot
he

r p
art

s o
f P

lan
.   

Re
fer

en
ce

 is
 m

ad
e t

o t
he

 Pi
tch

 St
rat

eg
y. 

 
Th

is 
is 

cu
rre

ntl
y b

ein
g r

ev
ise

d a
nd

 it 
wo

uld
 m

ak
e s

en
se

 to
 in

clu
de

 re
fer

en
ce

 to
 

the
 ‘u

pd
ate

d’ 
Pit

ch
 St

rat
eg

y. 
In 

co
nc

lus
ion

, w
e w

ou
ld 

req
ue

st 
tha

t a
 

mo
re 

po
sit

ive
 fo

rm
 of

 w
ord

ing
 is

 us
ed

 in
 

thi
s S

G,
 or

 th
at 

an
 ad

dit
ion

al 
se

nte
nc

e i
s 

co
nta

ine
d w

ith
in 

it w
hic

h m
ak

es
 re

fer
en

ce
 

to 
the

 po
sit

ive
 co

ntr
ibu

tio
n w

hic
h s

po
rts

 
fac

iliti
es

 m
ak

e t
o t

he
 qu

ali
ty 

of 
life

 in
 th

e 
LD

P a
rea

. 

 

 Gy
ps
y a

nd
 Tr

av
ell
er 

Sit
es
 Su

pp
lem

en
tar

y G
uid

an
ce
 

 Ch
ris

 Pa
ttis

on
 

Tu
rn
be
rry

 
Pla

nn
ing

 
W
e m

ak
e t

he
 po

int
 th

at 
sp

ec
ify

ing
 

de
tai

led
 re

qu
ire

me
nts

 ar
ou

nd
 th

e d
eli

ve
ry 

of 
su

ch
 si

tes
, o

fte
n i

n a
bs

olu
te 

ter
ms

, is
 

co
un

ter
-in

tui
tiv

e w
he

re 
few

 si
tes

 ha
ve

 
be

en
 de

live
red

 in
 pr

ev
iou

s y
ea

rs 
wh

en
 

the
 ap

pro
ac

h h
as

 be
en

 le
ss

 rig
oro

us
. 

It i
s i

mp
ort

an
t th

at 
pla

nn
ing

 au
tho

riti
es

 id
en

tify
 su

ita
ble

 
loc

ati
on

s f
or 

me
eti

ng
 th

e n
ee

ds
 of

 G
yp

sie
s a

nd
 

Tra
ve

lle
rs.

 Th
rou

gh
 re

se
arc

h u
nd

ert
ak

en
 th

e s
ite

s 
ide

nti
fie

d w
ou

ld 
de

live
r th

e m
ini

mu
m 

req
uir

em
en

t. T
his

 
po

licy
 is

 co
nta

ine
d i

n t
he

 Ad
op

ted
 Ab

erd
ee

n L
oc

al 
De

ve
lop

me
nt 

Pla
n a

nd
 th

rou
gh

 th
e e

xa
mi

na
tio

n i
nto

 th
e 

Pla
n t

he
 R

ep
ort

ers
 ag

ree
d t

ha
t th

e a
pp

roa
ch

 w
as

 
rea

so
na

ble
 an

d a
pp

rop
ria

te.
 

No
 C

ha
ng

es
 ar

e 
su

gg
es

ted
. 

Ch
ris

 Pa
ttis

on
 

Tu
rn
be
rry

 
Pla

nn
ing

 
Th

e p
rov

isio
n i

s l
ike

ly 
to 

be
 a 

ba
rrie

r to
 

the
 de

live
ry 

of 
sit

es
. In

ste
ad

, a
 m

ore
 

pra
gm

ati
c a

nd
 fle

xib
le 

ap
pro

ac
h n

ee
ds

 to
 

be
 ad

op
ted

 if 
the

 flo
w 

of 
sit

es
 w

hic
h n

ee
d 

to 
pro

vid
e o

n s
ite

 pr
ov

isio
n s

ho
uld

 be
.  

Th
e l

arg
er 

de
ve

lop
me

nt 
sit

es
 w

ere
 ch

os
en

 to
 co

ntr
ibu

te 
tow

ard
s t

he
 de

ve
lop

me
nt 

of 
Gy

ps
y a

nd
 Tr

av
ell

er 
sit

es
 

as
 th

e i
mp

ac
t o

n d
eli

ve
rab

ility
 w

ill b
e m

ini
mi

se
d. 

If t
he

re 
are

 al
ter

na
tiv

e p
rop

os
als

 th
at 

de
live

r th
e r

eq
uir

ed
 

pro
vis

ion
 th

es
e w

ill b
e c

on
sid

ere
d e

ith
er 

thr
ou

gh
 th

e 

No
 C

ha
ng

es
 ar

e 
su

gg
es

ted
. 

Page 359



Re
sp
on

de
nt 

 
Su

mm
ary

 of
 co

mm
en
t  

Re
sp
on

se
 to

 co
mm

en
t 

Ch
an
ge
s (
if a

ny
) 

  
48

 

Ma
ste

rpl
an

nin
g P

roc
es

s o
r D

ev
elo

pm
en

t M
an

ag
em

en
t 

pro
ce

ss
. 

Ch
ris

 Pa
ttis

on
 

Tu
rn
be
rry

 
Pla

nn
ing

 
Inc

lud
e t

he
 fo

llo
win

g a
t P

ara
gra

ph
 1.

7: 
“Th

is 
Gu

ida
nc

e p
rov

ide
s a

 fra
me

wo
rk 

thr
ou

gh
 w

hic
h G

yp
sy

/Tr
av

ell
er 

sit
es

 ca
n 

be
 lo

ca
ted

, d
ev

elo
pe

d a
nd

 m
an

ag
ed

, b
ut 

su
cc

es
sfu

l d
eli

ve
ry 

is 
a k

ey
 pr

ior
ity

 an
d 

the
 ov

era
rch

ing
 po

licy
 fra

me
wo

rk 
an

d 
de

tai
led

 pr
ov

isio
ns

 of
 th

is 
Gu

ida
nc

e 
sh

ou
ld 

be
 se

en
 in

 th
is 

co
nte

xt.
” 

Th
e p

urp
os

e o
f p

oli
cy

 H
6, 

H7
 an

d t
he

 Su
pp

lem
en

tar
y 

Gu
ida

nc
e i

s t
o a

ss
ist

 in
 th

e s
uc

ce
ss

ful
 de

live
ry 

of 
sit

es
 

for
 G

yp
sie

s a
nd

 Tr
av

ell
ers

. A
dd

itio
na

l te
xt 

ha
s b

ee
n 

inc
lud

ed
 at

 pa
rag

rap
h 1

.5 
to 

ma
ke

 th
is 

cle
ar.

 

Ins
ert

 th
e f

oll
ow

ing
 te

xt:
 

Th
ere

for
e, 

the
 su

cc
es

sfu
l 

de
live

ry 
of 

Gy
ps

y a
nd

 
Tra

ve
lle

r S
ite

s t
hro

ug
h 

the
 Lo

ca
l D

ev
elo

pm
en

t 
Pla

n i
s a

 ke
y p

rio
rity

.  
 

Ch
ris

 Pa
ttis

on
 

Tu
rn
be
rry

 
Pla

nn
ing

 
W
e s

ug
ge

st 
tha

t p
ara

gra
ph

 2.
2 o

f th
e 

Gu
ida

nc
e i

s a
me

nd
ed

 to
 m

ak
e i

t c
lea

r 
tha

t th
e n

atu
re 

of 
the

 co
ntr

ibu
tio

n f
rom

 
the

 LD
P s

ite
s w

ill b
e r

ev
iew

ed
 at

 th
e t

im
e 

a p
lan

nin
g a

pp
lica

tio
n i

s m
ad

e, 
ha

vin
g 

reg
ard

 to
 th

e u
p t

o d
ate

 po
sit

ion
 ac

ros
s 

the
 C

ity
. 

Th
e p

rov
isio

n o
f G

yp
sy

 an
d T

rav
ell

er 
sit

es
 is

 an
 on

go
ing

 
iss

ue
 th

at 
req

uir
es

 to
 be

 ad
dre

ss
ed

. T
he

re 
is 

no
 

alt
ern

ati
ve

 st
rat

eg
y t

ha
t w

ill d
eli

ve
r a

dd
itio

na
l p

itc
he

s i
n 

Ab
erd

ee
n C

ity
. If

 th
ere

 is
 a 

ch
an

ge
 in

 ci
rcu

ms
tan

ce
s 

the
n t

he
 ta

ke
n i

nto
 ac

co
un

t w
he

n t
he

 pl
an

 is
 re

vie
we

d. 
It 

is 
ou

tw
ith

 th
e s

co
pe

 of
 Su

pp
lem

en
tar

y G
uid

an
ce

 to
 

ma
ke

 ch
an

ge
s t

o t
his

 po
licy

 re
qu

ire
me

nt.
 

No
 C

ha
ng

es
 ar

e 
su

gg
es

ted
. 

Ch
ris

 Pa
ttis

on
 

Tu
rn
be
rry

 
Pla

nn
ing

 
W
ho

 or
 ho

w 
the

 si
te 

wil
l b

e m
an

ag
ed

 w
ill 

be
 de

live
red

 in
 no

t d
isc

us
se

d. 
It i

s 
as

su
me

d t
ha

t th
e l

an
d r

eq
uir

ed
 fo

r th
e 

pit
ch

es
 w

ill b
e t

ran
sfe

rre
d t

o t
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

or 
a r

eg
ist

ere
d s

oc
ial

 la
nd

lor
d w

ho
 w

ill 
tak

e f
orw

ard
 th

e p
rop

os
al 

in 
ac

co
rda

nc
e 

wit
h t

he
 gu

ida
nc

e. 
 

It w
ou

ld 
mo

st 
like

ly 
be

 th
e r

es
po

ns
ibi

lity
 of

 th
e C

ou
nc

il, 
bu

t th
ere

 m
ay

 be
 a 

reg
ist

ere
d s

oc
ial

 la
nd

lor
d t

ha
t w

ou
ld 

be
 in

ter
es

ted
 in

 su
ch

 a 
pro

jec
t.  

To
 cl

ari
fy 

ad
dit

ion
al 

inf
orm

ati
on

 ha
s b

ee
n 

pro
vid

ed
 at

 Pa
rag

rap
h 

2.3
. 

Ch
ris

 Pa
ttis

on
 

Tu
rn
be
rry

 
Pla

nn
ing

 
Gr

ea
ter

 cl
ari

ty 
on

 th
e i

ss
ue

 of
 lo

ng
 te

rm
 

ma
na

ge
me

nt 
is 

req
uir

ed
, p

art
icu

lar
ly 

in 
res

pe
ct 

of 
tem

po
rar

y h
alt

ing
 si

tes
 w

hic
h 

are
 po

ten
tia

lly 
su

sc
ep

tib
le 

to 
ab

us
e a

nd
 

as
 su

ch
 w

ill i
mp

ac
t o

n t
he

 su
rro

un
din

g 
de

ve
lop

me
nt.
 

It i
s a

 re
qu

ire
me

nt 
of 

Po
licy

 H
6 –

 G
yp

sy
 an

d T
rav

ell
er 

Ca
rav

an
 Si

tes
 th

at 
it c

an
 be

 de
mo

ns
tra

ted
 th

at 
the

 si
te 

wil
l b

e p
rop

erl
y m

an
ag

ed
. 

To
 m

ak
e i

t c
lea

r th
at 

thi
s 

is 
a r

eq
uir

em
en

t o
n n

ew
 

sit
es

 pa
rag

rap
h 2

.3 
ma

ke
s i

t c
lea

r th
at 

sit
es

 
wil

l n
ee

d t
o m

ee
t th

e 
cri

ter
ia 

in 
Po

licy
 H

6. 

Page 360



Re
sp
on

de
nt 

 
Su

mm
ary

 of
 co

mm
en
t  

Re
sp
on

se
 to

 co
mm

en
t 

Ch
an
ge
s (
if a

ny
) 

  
49

 

Ab
erd

ee
ns
hir

e 
Co

un
cil
 

Th
e s

up
ple

me
nta

ry 
gu

ida
nc

e p
rov

ide
s a

 
cle

ar 
sta

tem
en

t o
f th

e p
roc

es
s o

f 
ide

nti
fyi

ng
 su

ita
ble

 si
tes

 an
d 

req
uir

em
en

ts 
tha

t n
ee

d t
o b

e c
on

sid
ere

d. 
 

Th
is 

is 
No

ted
. 

No
 C

ha
ng

es
 ar

e 
su

gg
es

ted
. 

Ab
erd

ee
ns
hir

e 
Co

un
cil
 

W
hil
st 

it i
s f

or 
Ab

erd
ee

n C
ity

 to
 de

cid
e t

he
 

cri
ter

ia 
for

 ne
w 

sit
es

 an
d s

ite
 

ma
na

ge
me

nt 
(us

ing
 G

oo
d P

rac
tis

e g
uid

e 
as

 a 
ba

sis
) w

ith
in 

the
 lo

ca
l a

uth
ori

ty 
bo

un
da

ry 
it a

pp
ea

rs 
to 

be
 qu

ite
 

pre
sc

rip
tiv

e i
n p

lac
es

 an
d i

t m
igh

t b
e 

dif
fic

ult
 fo

r n
ew

 si
tes

 to
 co

mp
ly 

wit
h a

ll o
f 

the
 re

qu
ire

me
nts

. 
 Bo

th 
Ab

erd
ee

n C
ity

 an
d A

be
rde

en
sh

ire
 

sh
ou

ld 
be

 co
ns

ist
en

t w
ith

 th
e l

ev
el 

of 
pro

vis
ion

 re
co

mm
en

de
d w

ith
in 

the
 

res
pe

cti
ve

 LD
Ps

 fo
r g

yp
sy

 an
d t

rav
ell

er 
sit

es
. T

he
 su

pp
lem

en
tar

y g
uid

an
ce

 se
ek

s 
a h

igh
er 

lev
el 

of 
pro

vis
ion

 w
ith

in 
Ab

erd
ee

n C
ity

 th
an

 is
 be

ing
 so

ug
ht 

wit
hin

 
Ab

erd
ee

ns
hir

e. 

Th
e l

ev
el 

of 
pro

vis
ion

 w
ill v

ary
 gr

ea
tly

 de
pe

nd
ing

 on
 th

e 
typ

e o
f s

ite
 th

at 
is 

to 
be

 pr
ov

ide
d. 

In 
the

 ci
rcu

ms
tan

ce
s 

tha
t a

 pe
rm

an
en

t s
ite

 is
 to

 be
 de

ve
lop

ed
 it 

is 
co

ns
ide

red
 

ap
pro

pri
ate

 th
at 

hig
he

r s
tan

da
rds

 ar
e e

xp
ec

ted
. T

he
 

ex
pe

cta
tio

n w
ou

ld 
be

 fo
r a

ny
 ne

w 
pe

rm
an

en
t s

ite
s t

o b
e 

int
eg

rat
ed

 w
ith

 th
e l

oc
al 

co
mm

un
ity

 an
d p

rov
ide

 gr
ea

ter
 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 se
rvi

ce
s a

nd
 fa

cili
tie

s. 
Fo

r th
e t

em
po

rar
y 

ha
ltin

g s
ite

s a
 th

e s
erv

ice
s e

xp
ec

ted
 w

ill n
ot 

be
 th

e 
sa

me
 an

d t
he

se
 ha

ve
 be

en
 am

en
de

d t
o e

ns
ure

 th
at 

the
y 

are
 co

ns
ist

en
t w

ith
 th

e a
pp

roa
ch

 be
ing

 ta
ke

n b
y 

Ab
erd

ee
ns

hir
e C

ou
nc

il. 

Th
e s

erv
ice

s a
nd

 fa
cili

tie
s 

req
uir

ed
 fo

r h
alt

ing
 si

tes
 

de
tai

led
 at

 pa
rag

rap
h 

3.1
6 h

as
 be

en
 am

en
de

d. 
Th

e r
eq

uir
em

en
t fo

r 
wa

ste
 w

ate
r fa

cili
tie

s a
s a

 
mi

nim
um

 ha
s b

ee
n 

rem
ov

ed
. 

Ab
erd

ee
ns
hir

e 
Co

un
cil
 

It i
s c

lea
r w

ha
t le

ve
l o

f c
on

trib
uti

on
 is

 
req

uir
ed

 fro
m 

the
 si

tes
 lis

ted
 un

de
r P

oli
cy

 
H7

 e.
g. 

eq
uiv

ale
nt 

of 
ap

pro
x 1

5 
aff

ord
ab

le 
ho

us
ing

 un
its

. H
ow

ev
er,

 fu
rth

er 
cla

rity
 is

 su
gg

es
ted

 w
ith

 re
ga

rd 
to 

the
 

me
tho

d o
f c

on
trib

uti
on

 fo
r th

e s
ite

s 
(G

ree
nfe

rns
 an

d C
ou

nte
ss

we
lls)

 w
hic

h 
are

 to
 pr

ov
ide

 of
f s

ite
 e.

g. 
is 

a c
om

mu
ted

 
su

m 
for

 th
e e

qu
iva

len
t o

f 1
5 a

ffo
rda

ble
 

ho
us

ing
 un

its
 be

ing
 so

ug
ht?

 

Fo
r s

ite
s w

he
re 

the
 de

live
ry 

is 
to 

be
 of

f-s
ite

 it 
is 

ex
pe

cte
d t

ha
t a

 co
mm

ute
d p

ay
me

nt 
eq

uiv
ale

nt 
to 

15
 

aff
ord

ab
le 

un
its

 is
 m

ad
e t

ow
ard

s t
he

 pr
ov

isio
n o

f G
yp

sy
 

an
d T

rav
ell

er 
sit

es
. 

 

To
 cl

ari
fy 

thi
s p

oin
t m

ak
e 

it c
lea

r th
at 

thi
s i

s a
 

req
uir

em
en

t o
n n

ew
 si

tes
 

pa
rag

rap
h 2

.3 
ma

ke
s i

t 
cle

ar 
tha

t s
ite

s w
ill n

ee
d 

to 
me

et 
the

 cr
ite

ria
 in

 
Po

licy
 H

6. 
  

 
 

Page 361



Page 362

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
COMMITTEE   Enterprise, Planning & Infrastructure   
 
DATE     6 November 2012 
 
DIRECTOR    Gordon McIntosh  
 
TITLE OF REPORT  Supplementary Guidance:  Wind Turbine 

Development in Aberdeen City 
 
REPORT NUMBER: EPI/12/217 
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 The Planning etc. (Scotland) Act 2006 paragraph 22 (1) states that a 

planning authority may adopt and issue guidance in connection with a 
local development plan.   

 
1.2 The purpose of this report is to obtain Committee approval to consult 

on Supplementary Guidance to provide further detail on applications for 
Wind Turbines. A copy of the Supplementary Guidance is contained in 
Appendix 1. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATION(S)  

  
2.1  It is recommended that the Committee: 
 

(a) Approve the draft Wind Turbines Supplementary Guidance 
document for a six week public consultation. 

 
(b) Agree that following completion of the relevant consultation, any 

comments received and subsequent amendments to the draft 
Guidance be presented to a future meeting of this Committee. 

 
3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  

 
3.1 There are no direct financial implications arising from this report, other 

than costs incurred through consultation and publicity related to the 
proposed guidance. Any such expenses incurred can be met through 
existing budgets. The implication for the priority based budgeting is 
positive. Detailed topic-based guidance has value in reducing officer 
time spent on pre-application discussions, and will therefore prove 
beneficial in reducing costs. This relates to PBB option EPI PSD02 - 
Rationalise planning application management.  

 
4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 

Agenda Item 9.6

Page 363



 

 

4.1 There are no known legal or equipment implications arising from this 
report. 
 

4.2 As a major landowner in the city, proposals for the development of land 
and assets owned by Aberdeen City Council will be subject to 
assessment in line with the principles and standards set out in the 
guidance, where applicable. 
 

4.3 The progression of the guidance document will provide a clear 
framework for decision making, allowing comprehensive guidance for 
both applicants and officers, thereby making a significant contribution 
towards the Council’s aim of promoting and achieving sustainable 
development.  
 

4.4 The proposed Supplementary Guidance on Wind Turbines will provide 
clear instruction on the level of information that is required with 
planning applications for wind turbines. The document also gives map 
based guidance on the known environmental and safety constraints to 
the development of wind turbines. This does not guarantee that 
planning permission will be refused within these areas, or that planning 
permission will be approved out with these areas. The guidance will 
work towards helping to achieve the Scottish Government’s target of for 
40% of Scotland’s electricity to be generated from renewable sources 
by 2020. This will help to mitigate the impact of Climate Change, and 
provide long term environmental benefits to Aberdeen City and beyond.  

 
5. BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 

 
5.1 This Supplementary Guidance was reported to Enterprise, Planning 

and Infrastructure Committee on 15 November 2011 for public 
consultation. At this point in time it was considered that there would be 
no requirement to undertake a full strategic environmental assessment 
of the Supplementary Guidance. However, following consultation with 
the consultation authorities it was recommended that a strategic 
environmental assessment would be required. This process, to-date, 
has involved consultation on a Scoping Report and carrying out a 
strategic environmental assessment of the Guidance and producing an 
Environmental Report. Through this assessment three specific impacts 
on the environment have been identified and mitigation measures are 
required to be incorporated into the Supplementary Guidance. The 
changes made to the guidance are the reason that it is being reported 
to Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure for a second time. 

 
5.2 Through the environmental assessment it was identified that there is 

the potential for the Guidance to: 
• impact on birds from designated sites close to Aberdeen, namely, Loch 

of Skene and the Ythan  
• impact on bats, a European Protected Species 
• impact on peat land and the loss of carbon as a result of development 

 

Page 364



 

 

5.3 Mitigation measures have been incorporated into a revised 
Supplementary Guidance to minimise the environmental impact. A 
copy of the full Environmental Report is available  

 
5.4 A copy of the Environmental Report can be viewed online at: 

http://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/planning_environment/planning/local_d
evelopment_plan/pla_aldp_committee_reports.asp  

 
6. IMPACT 

 
6.1 The Local Development Plan and associated Supplementary Guidance 

contribute to the following Single Outcome Priorities: 1 – We live in a 
Scotland that is the most attractive place for doing business in Europe; 
2. We realise our full economic potential with more and better 
employment opportunities for our people; 10. We live in well designed, 
sustainable places where we are able to access the amenities and 
services we need; 12 – We value and enjoy our built and natural 
environment and protect and enhance it for future generations. 

 
6.2 The Local Development Plan and associated Supplementary Guidance 

supports the Council’s Corporate Plan, in particular the aim of 
delivering high levels of design from all development, maintaining an up 
to date planning framework, promoting sustainable development.   

 
6.3 The Local Development Plan and associated Supplementary Guidance 

contribute to “Aberdeen – A Smarter City” and the Smarter 
Environment by maximising the use of low carbon technology and 
materials and increase energy efficiency and introduce carbon 
reduction measures in our processes and our housing and non housing 
assets to reduce our carbon footprint, save money and to bring people 
out of fuel poverty. 

 
6.4 The proposal is consistent with the Planning and Sustainable 

Development Service Plan, in particular Adoption of Supplementary 
Guidance to Local Development Plan and production of Technical 
Advice Notes 

 
6.1 An equalities and human rights impact assessment (EHRIA) has been 

carried out in relation to the proposed Supplementary Guidance 
documents, with the results included as Appendix 3 to this report. 

 
7. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

• Aberdeen Local Development Plan – Proposed Plan 
http://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/Planning/ldp/pla_aldp_document_map.
asp 
 

• Appendix 1 - Supplementary Guidance: Wind Turbine Development in 
Aberdeen City  

Page 365



 

 

• Appendix 2 – Environmental Report (available online at: 
http://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/planning_environment/planning/local_d
evelopment_plan/pla_aldp_committee_reports.asp  

 
• Appendix 3 – Equalities and human rights impact assessment 
 

 
 

8. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS  
 
Daniel Harrington 
Senior Planner 
dharrington@aberdeencity.gov.uk 
01224 523329 

Page 366



 

  

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Draft Supplementary Guidance 
 
Topic: Wind Turbine Development 
in Aberdeen City 
 
November 2012 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 367



 

  

1. Introduction 
The development of renewable energy technologies, on all scales, is 
supported by Aberdeen City Council. A positive approach to renewable 
developments will help to meet the Scottish Governments target for 40% of 
Scotland’s electricity to be generated from renewable sources by 2020. 
Renewable technologies are becoming more common place within Scotland, 
and the range of technologies available includes wind power, solar power, 
heat pumps and biomass boilers. The guidance in this document focuses on 
wind power renewable energy technologies. Scotland has a good wind 
resource which should be taken advantage of however this should not be 
achieved at the detriment of built and natural heritage or air safety. There 
needs to be a balance between a commitment to conserve and enhanced our 
built and natural heritage, and supporting and promoting the growth of 
renewable energy generating developments.  
 
2. Aim of the document 
The aim of this document is to provide concise information and guidance to 
assist in the positive planning for wind powered renewable energy 
developments of different scales in Aberdeen. This guidance highlights the 
key issues that must be considered when planning for wind energy 
developments. Planning for wind energy development is complex. Variables in 
site location, turbine heights, styles and scale of development make it difficult 
to provide certainty on definitive solutions for wind turbine developments 
without detailed assessment and appraisal.  
 
The document is divided into two distinct parts. The first part outlines the level 
of information that will be required with each application to ensure a well 
informed decision can be made. This list is not exhaustive but does outline the 
main considerations that need to be addressed with any application. The 
second part of the guidance is map based and highlights areas with Aberdeen 
City Council’s boundary where wind turbine development may be significantly 
constrained.  
 
3. What this guidance covers 
The typical wind energy renewable generating technologies proposed in 
Aberdeen are likely to fall within the micro-renewable category. The term 
micro-renewable is used to describe a non-commercial renewable energy 
development, which provides heat and/or electricity to a single end user, be it 
a single dwelling house, office or community facility. Permitted development 
rights are in place for the installation, alteration or replacement of a free 
standing wind turbine within the curtilage of a dwelling. For further guidance 
on this please contact the Planning and Sustainable Development 
Department. 
 
This document gives guidance for both micro-renewable and renewable 
energy turbine developments. Please see appendix 1 for further guidance on 
definitions of micro-renewable and renewable energy developments. The 
material considerations planning officers will regard when determining or 
recommending a wind turbine application are consistent no matter what the 
scale of the application is; however, the level of detail required for each 

Page 368



 

  

application is dependent on what is proposed and a number of other material 
considerations, as outlined below. 
 
 
4. Information to be submitted with any planning application for 

wind turbine developments 
In determining applications for one or more wind turbines Aberdeen City 
Council will expect the supporting information each application to address the 
issues listed below. Further information such as an Environmental Impact 
Assessment may be required. If more than two turbines are proposed, or if 
turbines are more than 15m in height, they are classed as Schedule 2 
developments under the Environmental Assessment Regulations. It is then a 
matter for Aberdeen City Council to decide whether the turbines are likely to 
have significant environmental effects and therefore require an Environmental 
Impact Assessment screening option. It is strongly recommended that 
applicants submit a request for a screening opinion before any such 
application is submitted to avoid delay in determining the subsequent 
application.  
 
Aberdeen City Council is required to consult the British Aviation Authority, 
National Air Traffic Services and Ministry of Defence on all applications for 
wind turbines. The Civil Aviation Authority also required to be consulted if the 
turbine is over 90 meters. Applicants are encouraged to submit a Wind Farm 
Developers Proforma with their application. The proforma can be found at 
http://www.bwea.com/docs/developers_proforma.doc  
A copy is also attached in appendix 2 of this guidance.  
 
As a design principle, it is desirable that, where a wind energy development 
already exists nearby, a similar scale and design of turbine should be 
proposed in any new developments. This however is heavily dependent on 
topographical features and other material considerations outlined below.  
 
4.1 Technical information 
The detail and specification of the proposed wind turbine(s) will need to be 
provided. Detail will need to be given of the: 

• type of turbine proposed, 
• rated generating capacity of the turbine, 
• materials and  colour of the wind turbine components,   
• foundations material, depth and size, 
• separation distances between turbines (if more than 1 turbine 
proposed), 

• ancillary equipment/structures (if proposed),  
• construction and operational access requirements including details of 
access tracks, transmission cable routes and borrow pits,  

• proposals for decommissioning, and 
• landscaping works proposed. 

 
4.2 Planning statement  
The following documents set the baseline policy on which applications will be 
judged. This does not form an exhaustive list. A planning statement needs to 

Page 369



 

  

be submitted with the planning application which evaluates the proposal 
against the following documents: 

• Scottish Planning Policy 
• Aberdeen City and Shire Strategic Development Plan 
• Aberdeen City Council Local Development Plan 
• Scottish Government’s Planning Advice Note 45 Annex  
• Scottish Government’s Specific Advice Sheet - onshore wind turbines 
• Scottish Natural Heritage’s Siting and designing wind farms in the 
landscape 

• Aberdeen City Councils Supplementary Guidance on Wind Turbine 
Developments 

 
4.3 Ecological assessment 
The impacts of proposed turbines on wildlife, habitats, ecosystems and 
biodiversity will need to be considered. Ecological assessments of proposed 
wind turbine sites will need to: 

• outline any natural heritage designations for the site or that may 
immediately adjoin it such as Special Protection Areas, Special Areas 
of Conservation, Sites of Special Scientific Interest, Local Nature 
Reserves and Local Nature Conservation Sites. 

• classify and evaluate the natural habitat and species, 
• assess the potential affect(s) on protected species including bats and 
birds; 

• classify and evaluate the agricultural context, 
• outline any hydrological impacts, 
• evaluate the impact of a wind turbine(s) on these, and 
• discuss the scope of mitigation on the possible and proposed impacts. 

 
4.4 Landscape assessment 
The key natural heritage issue relating to turbines is likely to be that of 
landscape particularly in rural areas and on the urban edge. The ability of the 
landscape to absorb development often depends on the features of the 
landscape. This can also be influenced by careful siting and design. A 
cautious approach is necessary in relation to landscapes which are rare or 
highly valued. Aberdeen City Council’s Technical Appendix on Landscape 
Characteristics is available on the Aberdeen City Council website from the link 
below: 
(http://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/nmsruntime/saveasdialog.asp?lID=31730&sI
D=14344).  
Applicants must: 

• consider the character of the landscape, and outline if the proposed 
site is a ridge, hill, valley, coastal area and the vegetation present, 

• evaluate the landscape on quality, value and scale terms, 
• consider the impact of the wind turbine(s) on the landscape, 
• consider the cumulative impact of the proposed application with regard 
to wind turbines that are already in existence or where planning 
permission has been approved. This will include proposed and 
approved turbines located in Aberdeenshire. 

 
4.5 Visual assessment 

Page 370



 

  

A visual assessment should be submitted. This assessment should be 
carefully scoped so that it is appropriate to the size and scale of the 
development and the likelihood of significant landscape and visual impacts, 
including cumulative effects. The assessment should include: 

• a viewpoint analysis,  
• determination of the zone of theoretical visibility of the proposed 
development,  

• evaluation of the visual impact,  
• the scope for mitigation of those impacts, and  
• details of the location, visual impact and the restoration of borrow pits, 
• consider the cumulative impact of the proposed application with regard 
to wind turbines that are already in existence or where planning 
permission has been approved. This will include proposed and 
approved turbines located in Aberdeenshire. 

 
Evaluation of impacts should include consideration of alternative siting for the 
turbine(s) (as well as alternative colouring), borrow pits and ancillary 
equipment. Represented viewpoints of the proposal should cover both long 
and short range visibility and presentation by ‘photomontage’ or 
‘videomontage’ is recommended.  
 
Individual circumstances will dictate the optimum position for wind turbines. 
This will be influenced by the size of the installation and its surrounding 
environment. The potential siting of wind turbines close to, on, or integrated 
with buildings means special attention must be given to the need to protect 
amenity.  
 
4.6 Noise assessment 
There are two distinct types of noise sources within a wind turbine, the 
mechanical noise produced by the gearbox, generator and other parts of the 
drive train; and the aerodynamic noise produced by the passage of the blades 
through the air. The level of detail required will depend on the scale of the 
proposal and the separation distance between wind turbines and noise 
sensitive properties. A noise assessment is not required for systems which 
are less than 20m to the hub and/or less than 32m to the tip of the blade. 
 
A noise assessment will have to take into account: 

• the individual effects of both the noise sources, 
• the cumulative effects of both the noise sources, 
• the character and sensitivities of the area (including the prevailing 
winds,  landform and particularly noise sensitive receptors such as 
dwellings). 

 
.4.7 Shadow flicker assessment  
Shadow flicker is the term used to describe the impact of shadows cast by 
rotating wind turbine blades through constrained openings, such as the 
windows of neighbouring properties. The small diameter and likely location of 
micro–renewable turbines greatly reduces the probability of shadow flicker. 
For larger turbines, shadow flicker can be mitigated by simple measures. 
These range from planting tree belts between the affected window and the 

Page 371



 

  

turbines through to shutting down the turbines during periods when shadow 
flicker could theoretically occur. 
 
An assessment of potential shadow flicker and shadow throw throughout the 
year should be provided for all dwellings within a 10 rotor diameter of the 
proposed location of the wind turbine. 
 
4.8 Ice throw 
Turbines, under special meteorological conditions, may be covered by ice. If a 
wind turbine operates in icing conditions, two types of risks may occur if the 
rotor blades collect ice. The fragments from the rotor may be thrown off from 
the operating turbine due to aerodynamic and centrifugal forces or they may 
fall from the turbine when it is shut down or idling without power production. 
When icing occurs the turbines’ own vibration sensors are likely to detect the 
imbalance and inhibit the operation of machines.  
 
Locating turbines a safe distance from any occupied structure, road, or public 
use area will mitigate the risk of ice throw. Warning signage may be a useful 
precaution.  
 
4.9 Built and cultural heritage assessment 
Any built and cultural heritage assets will have to be noted, and an 
assessment of any known or potential impacts carried out. Assets which need 
to be considered are: 

• archaeological sites, 
• listed buildings, 
• conservation areas, 
• historic gardens, 
• designated landscapes, and 
• local sites of cultural importance. 

 
There may be opportunity to site micro wind turbines in conservation areas or 
within the curtilage of listed buildings. It will not normally be possible to site 
turbines on scheduled ancient monuments and it will be difficult to site then on 
listed buildings. Care must be taken to ensure respect it paid to the site and 
setting and to important views and vistas to and from these buildings, 
monuments and sites. It is important that consideration is given to assets 
outwith Aberdeen that may affect their setting. 
 
4.10 Tourism and countryside access assessment 
The draw of Scotland as a tourist destination is well known. Turbine 
developments will need to assess any visual and amenity impacts on tourist 
and recreational facilities or tourism and countryside access.  
 
Assessment will need to include the impacts on: 

• core path network,  
• footpaths,  
• cycleways,  
• bridleways, and  
• public paths. 

Page 372



 

  

4.11 Public safety 
To inform the potential public safety risk of a wind turbine development an 
informal risk assessment of the proposed development should be submitted. 
This should take particular account of  

• proximity of surrounding buildings and roads, and  
• risk of injury to humans through catastrophic equipment failure or ice 
throw.  

 
4.12 Electro-magnetic interference (aviation and communication) 
The British Aviation Authority, Civil Aviation Authority and Ministry of Defence 
should be consulted on proposed wind turbines in accordance with their 
guidance ‘Wind energy and aviation interim guidelines’, please see 
 http://www.bwea.com/pdf/Wind-Energy-and-aviation-interim-guidelines.pdf 
 
These bodies will in turn consult other organisations that could have an 
interest in wind turbine proposals in terms of flight paths, radar and navigation 
aids, television and radio transmissions. Details of possible adverse effects 
and appropriate measures to alleviate effects should be submitted with the 
application.  
 
The proforma in Appendix 1 of this document was compiled by the Civil 
Aviation Authority, the Ministry of Defence, the National Air Traffic Service and 
the British Wind Energy Association to assist in the processing and 
assessment of wind turbine applications and applicants are encouraged to 
complete it.  
 
4.13 Wind regime 
The power produced by wind turbines depends on two key factors – the 
strength of the wind, and the area swept by the rotor. Assessing whether a 
particular site will harness sufficient wind power usually entails using historical 
meteorological date, with annual mean wind speed data available from the 
Meteorological Office, and obtaining information from anemometers on site.  
  
The applicant must demonstrate that the proposal is viable. It needs to be 
shown that there is enough wind speed and this can reasonably be predicted 
after monitoring the site. For micro-renewable turbines evidence and data 
from four months of monitoring will be required. Renewable turbines will 
require a longer monitoring period; typically 12 months will be necessary.  
 
4.14 Grid network 
Access to the power electricity transmission and distribution system is 
required for commercial wind turbines. Micro-renewable turbines can be 
connected to the grid. Detail would be required on the proposed grid 
connection or supply to local user, if relevant.  
 
4.15 Peat Land 
Peat land is an important habitat and acts as a carbon sink and the 
development of wind turbines on peat land will result in the loss of carbon. To 
ensure that the carbon balance savings of the scheme is maximised 
developments should be designed to minimise soil disturbance when building 
roads and tracks, turbine bases and other infrastructure.  

Page 373



 

  

 
4.16 Other issues 
A number of other issues will need to be considered when proposing 
development.  These include: 
- community consultation for renewable energy developments, 
- local employment/business considerations, 
- any associated community benefits, and  
- cumulative impacts. 
 
5. Map of constrained areas for wind turbine 
development 
The following maps highlight areas the following information:  
 
- Special Areas of Conservation 
- Sites of Special Scientific Interest 
- Local Nature Reserves 
- Local Nature Conservation Sites 
- Scheduled Ancient Monuments 
- Gardens and Designated Landscapes 
- Bog land, Heath land and Fens 
- Areas of Local Landscape Significance – Primary Landscapes 
- Airport Safety Exclusion Zone 

 
It is important to note that this map does not identify areas of search and there 
is not a presumption in favour of those areas free from the identified 
constraints. 
 
These must be considered as constraints to the development of wind turbine 
developments. In these areas proposals will be required to demonstrate that 
the proposed development offers exceptional benefits and that these 
outweigh any adverse environmental impacts. There is no available 
information on areas within the Radar Exclusion Zone and the impact of wind 
turbines on air safety is assessed by the relevant bodies, these being the 
British Airports Authority, the National Air Traffic Services, the Ministry of 
Defence and in some instances the Civil Aviation Authority.  
 
 

Page 374



 

  

P
age 375



 

  

 
For further information please see: 
Scottish Planning Policy 
Aberdeen City and Shire Strategic Development Plan 
Aberdeen Local Development Plan 
Scottish Government’s Planning Advice Note 45 Annex 
Scottish Government’s Specific Advice Sheet - onshore wind turbines 
Scottish Natural Heritage’s ‘Siting and designing wind farms in the landscape’ 
Scottish Natural Heritage’s ‘Natural Heritage assessment of small scale wind 
energy projects which do not require formal Environmental Impact 
Assessment’ 
Scottish Natural Heritage - Micro renewables and the natural heritage - 
Guidance Note. October 2009 
Scottish Natural Heritage  - Windfarm impacts on birds guidance 
Natural England Technical Information Note TIN051 - Bats and onshore wind 
turbines Interim guidance 
The British Wind Energy Association ‘Wind energy and aviation interim 
guidelines’ 
 

Page 376



 

  

APPENDIX 1: Micro-Renewable and Renewable Energy Developments 
 
To clarify the distinction between micro-renewable and renewable wind 
turbine technology is it helpful to classify turbines depending on the size and 
number proposed in one development.  
 
Classification Description Approximate 

hub 
height/blade 
diameter 

Single micro-
renewable 

A single turbine which produces less than 
0.05MW capacity for the production of 
electricity. 

<20m to hub 
and/or <32m to 
tip 

Cluster micro-
renewable 

A cluster of turbines which produce less 
than 0.05MW capacity for the production of 
electricity. 

<20m to hub 
and/or <32m to 
tip 

Single 
renewable  

1 turbine of installed capacity between 
0.05MW and less than 3MW 

20-40m to hub 
and/or 32-65m 
to tip 

Cluster 
renewable  

2-3 turbines or installed capacity between 
3MW and less than 6MW 

>40m+ to hub 
and/or > 65+ tip 

Small scale 
renewable 

4-10 turbines or installed capacity between 
6MW and less than 16 MW 

>40m+ to hub 
and/or > 65+ tip 

Medium scale 
renewable 

11-20 turbines or installed capacity 
between 16MW and less than 31MW 

>40m+ to hub 
and/or > 65+ tip 

Large scale 
renewable 

21 or more turbines or installed capacity 
greater than 31MW 

>40m+ to hub 
and/or > 65+ tip  

 
To date most applications have fallen within the single micro-renewable, 
cluster micro-renewable or single renewable category.  
 
 

Page 377



 

  

APPENDIX 2: WIND FARM DEVELOPERS APPLICATION PROFORMA:  
 Civil Aviation & 

Ministry of Defence Safeguarding 
 

NOTICE TO WIND FARM DEVELOPERS 
Please submit a completed application form for all new or revised onshore and 
offshore wind farm plans.  This form has been compiled in consultation with the 
British Wind Energy Association.  Its purpose is to standardise the information 
provided and to expedite the assessment of your proposed wind farm development.  
Assessment is made against air safety and defence interests, through evaluation of the 
possible effects on air traffic systems, defence systems and low flying needs.  
 
NOTICE TO PLANNING AUTHORITIES 
This form has been compiled with the assistance of the Civil Aviation Authority 
(CAA), the Ministry of Defence (MOD), the National Air Traffic Service (NATS) and 
the British Wind Energy Association (BWEA), to assist in the processing and 
assessment of wind farm applications.  It is important that copies of this form are 
forwarded within the planning consultation process.  This will help these 
organisations trace their records of any earlier consultations, as well as provide them 
with the relevant information for their assessments. 
 
WHAT TO DO WITH THIS FORM 
Please provide as much detail as possible by filling in the shaded areas.  If the 
specific turbine and/or exact positions have yet to be established then fill in the likely 
turbine size (hub height, rotor diameter) and boundary points as a minimum. On 
completion send copies to both the following addresses. 
 
deopsnorth-lmswind@de.mod.uk  windfarms@caa.co.uk  
or - or - 
St George’s House  Directorate of Airspace Policy 
Kingston Road K6 Gate 3 
Sutton Coldfield CAA House 
B75 7RL 45-49 Kingsway 
 London, WC2B 6TE 
 
It is important that a copy of this form is retained for inclusion with subsequent 
planning applications at the same site. If no application has been made prior to a 
planning application, please include a completed form in your planning application. 
 

Wind Farm Name 
 

Also known as:  
 
Developers reference  
Application identification No.  
 
Related/previous applications   
(at or near this site): 
Provide reference names or numbers 

 
 
 

Page 378



 

  

 
 

Developer Information 
Company name:  

 

Address:  
 
 

 

Contact:  
 

Telephone:  
 

Facsimile:  
 

e-mail:  
 

Relevant Wind Turbine Details 
Wind turbine manufacturer:  

 

Wind turbine model:  
 

Wind farm generation 
capacity (MW) 

 Number of turbines  
 

Blade manufacturer  
 

Number of blades  
 

Rotor diameter  Meters 
 

Rotation speed (or range)  Rpm 
 

Blade material including lightning 
conductors 

 
 

 

Wind turbine hub height  Metres 
 

Tower design (* delete as required)  * Tubular  * Lattice 
 

Tower base diameter/dimensions  Metres 
 

Tower top diameter/dimensions  Metres 
 

 
Comments 

Are there any details or uncertainties that may be helpful to add ? 

Page 379



 

  

 
 
 
 

Turbine Locations 
Please provide as much information as you can. The position and height above sea level of 
every machine if available, the site boundary if not. The height above sea level is the above 
ordinance datum (AOD) used to specify all heights on OS maps. Please note grid references 
and latitude/longitude and must be included. For co-ordinate conversion: www.gps.gov.uk  
An Ordinance Survey (OS) map, or maritime chart, should be submitted with this pro-forma, 
showing locations of proposed turbine/turbines or scheme boundaries.  Please number the 
turbines or boundary points on the map, to correlate with the information provided below. 
Copy this page as necessary to account for all turbines or boundary points, or attach an 
excel spreadsheet with wind turbine coordinate information. 
Wind farm 
Name & Address: 

 
 
 
 

 
Turbine no.  Height AOD (m) of tower base  
Grid Reference 100 km square letter(s) identifier   
Easting (10 m)      Northing (10 m)     

 Degrees Minutes Seconds 
Latitude       
Longitude       
 Turbine no.  Height AOD (m) of tower base  
Grid Reference  100 km square letter(s) identifier   
Easting (10 m)      Northing (10 m)     

 Degrees Minutes Seconds 
Latitude       
Longitude       
 Turbine no.  Height AOD (m) of tower base  
Grid Reference  100 km square letter(s) identifier   
Easting (10 m)      Northing (10 m)     

 Degrees Minutes Seconds 
Latitude       
Longitude       
 Turbine no.  Height AOD (m) of tower base  
Grid Reference  100 km square letter(s) identifier   

Page 380



 

  

Easting (10 m)      Northing (10 m)     
 Degrees Minutes Seconds 

Latitude       
Longitude       
CONTACT US 
 
Please get in contact if you wish to discuss your proposal with us: 
Planning and Sustainable Development 
Enterprise, Planning & Infrastructure 
Aberdeen City Council 
Business Hub 4 
Ground Floor North 
Marischal College 
Broad Street 
Aberdeen 
AB10 1AB 
Tel: 01224 523470 
Fax: 01224 636181 
Email pi@aberdeencity.gov.uk 

Page 381



Page 382

This page is intentionally left blank



Equality and Human Rights Impact Assessment – the Form. 

 1 V4 – 13 July 2010 
 

 
 

 
 
Equality and Human Rights Impact 
Assessment - the Form 
 
 
There are separate guidance notes to accompany this form – “Equality and Human 
Rights Impact Assessment – the Guide.”  Please use these guidance notes as you 
complete this form.  Throughout the form, proposal refers to policy, strategy, plan, 
procedure or report. 
 
 
STEP 1: Identify essential information 
 
 
1. Committee Report No. 
 
 
2. Name of proposal. 
 
 
3. Officers completing this form. 
 
Name Designation Service Directorate 
 
Daniel Harrington 
 
 
 
 

 
Senior Planner 

 
Planning & 
Sustainable 
Development 

 
Enterprise, Planning & 
Infrastructure 

 
 
4. Date of Impact Assessment. 
 
 
5.    When is the proposal next due for review? 
 
 
6. Committee Name. 
 
 
7. Date the Committee is due to meet.  
 

Continual review 

4 October 2012 

Supplementary Guidance: Wind turbine developments in 
Aberdeen City. 
 

EPI/12/217 

Enterprise, Planning & Infrastructure  

6 November 2012 

Page 383



Equality and Human Rights Impact Assessment – the Form. 

 2 V4 – 13 July 2010 
 

 
8. Identify the Lead Council Service and who else is involved in the delivery of this 

proposal.  (for example other Council services or partner agencies) 
 
 
The intended proposal document is to be used primarily by officers within the Council’s 
Planning & Sustainable Development Service as an important tool in the assessment 
and determination of planning applications. The guidance contained within the document 
may also be of use to other Council services when considering improvements/alterations 
to Council-owned residential property.  
 
9.  Please summarise this Equality and Human Rights Impact Assessment, (EHRIA).  
This must include any practical actions you intend to take / have taken to reduce, 
justify or remove any adverse negative impacts (if necessary continue on blank 
sheet of paper).  Please return to this question after completing EHRIA. 
 
There are no negative impacts outlined as a result of the EHRIA.  
 
10.  Where will you publish the results of the Equality and Human Rights Impact 
Assessment?  Tick all that apply. 
 
� Summary of EHRIA will be published in committee report under section “Equality 
Impact Assessment” 

� Full EHRIA will be attached to the committee report as an appendix 
� Summary of EHRIA to be published on Council website within relevant service 
pages 

 
STEP 2: Outline the aims of the proposal 
 
11. What are the main aims of the proposal? 
 
The purpose of this supplementary guidance document is to provide further information 
and detail in respect of policies set out in the Local Development Plan, in accordance 
with the Scottish Government’s intention that the Local Development Plan itself focuses 
on vision, the spatial strategy, overarching and other key policies, and proposals. 
 
Subject to any representations received and amendments made as a result of the 
consultation process, it is intended that this documents be subsequently adopted as a 
technical advice note. 
 
The progression of the technical advice note will provide a clear framework for decision 
making, allowing comprehensive guidance for applicants and thereby making a 
significant contribution towards the Council’s aim of promoting and achieving sustainable 
development.  
 
 
12.  Who will benefit most from the proposal? 
 
 
Residents and businesses in Aberdeen, including stakeholders who have been involved 
in the preparation of the Aberdeen Local Development Plan – the development industry, 
key agencies, citizens, Council planning officers and other Council services. 
 
 

Page 384



Equality and Human Rights Impact Assessment – the Form. 

 3 V4 – 13 July 2010 
 

13. Tell us if and how the proposal will increase equality of opportunity by permitting 
positive action to redress disadvantage? 

 
 
The document provides all citizens with the opportunity to contribute to the preparation 
of supplementary guidance on the development of wind turbines in Aberdeen. As part of 
the modernisation of the planning system in Scotland, public consultation plays a vital 
role in the preparation of development plans, meaning that people’s involvement can 
make a real difference to the content of the plan. There is no known disadvantage to any 
equality target groups or related equality strands, though the consultation process allows 
all parts of society equal opportunity to engage with the preparation of this guidance and 
to make representations accordingly. 
 
The consultation process will enable local communities, groups and individuals influence 
the content of the document and have their say in the design of our built environment.   
 
 
 
14. What impact will the proposal have on promoting good relations and wider 

community cohesion? 
 
 
The supplementary guidance is intended to form a part of the Aberdeen Local 
Development Plan on its eventual adoption. The Proposed Plan and its accompanying 
documents set out Aberdeen City Council’s vision for the growth and development of the 
city. The opportunity to make representations on that vision allows citizens to influence 
the way in which their city will grow over time. It is hoped that this will foster a sense of 
belonging and involvement in those who have engaged with the process.  
 
The consultation proposed for this document do not exclude or disadvantage any 
particular group or part of society. Documents are made available through a range of 
media sources, and representations can be accepted in a number of ways. 
 
 
STEP 3: Gather and consider evidence 
15. What evidence is there to identify any potential positive or negative impacts in 

terms of consultation, research officer knowledge and experience, equality 
monitoring data, user feedback and other? 

 
STEP 4:  Assess likely impacts on equality strands 
 
16. Which, if any, equality target groups and others could be affected positively or 

negatively by this proposal?  Place the symbol in the relevant box. 
 
(Positive +, neutral 0, - negative) 
 
Equality Target Group 
Race* 0 Disability 0 Gender** 0 
LGB*** 0 Belief 0 Younger 0 

Information from external sources indicates that proposal for wind farms prove 
contentious. There have been no planning applications for wind farms within Aberdeen 
City. Previous planning applications for single turbines within Aberdeen City have either 
drawn no objections or a low number of objections.   
 

Page 385



Equality and Human Rights Impact Assessment – the Form. 

 4 V4 – 13 July 2010 
 

Older 0 Others e.g. 
poverty 

0  
 
*  Race includes Gypsies/Travellers 
 
** Gender includes women, men, Transgender 
 
*** LGB: Lesbian, Gay and Bisexual 
 
17. Please detail the potential positive and/or negative impacts on the groups you 
have highlighted above?  Detail the impacts and describe the groups affected. 
 
Positive impacts 
The publication of Technical Advice is an 
invitation for all groups to engage with 
planning issues within Aberdeen. Once 
we publish the Supplementary Guidance 
there will be a chance for everyone to 
make comments on the documents.  
 

Negative Impacts 
(describe groups affected) 
 

 
STEP 5: Apply the three key assessment tests for compliance assurance 
 
18. Does this policy/procedure have the potential to interfere with an individual’s 

rights as set out in the Human Rights Act 1998?  State which rights might be 
affected by ticking the appropriate box(es) and how.  If you answer “no”, go to 
question 22. 

 
� Article 3 – Right not to be subjected to torture, inhumane or degrading treatment or 
punishment 
� Article 6 – Right to a fair and public hearing 
� Article 8 – Right to respect for private and family life, home and correspondence 
� Article 10 – freedom of expression 
� Other article not listed above 
 
How? 
 
 

 
 
Legality 
 
19. Where there is a potential negative impact is there a legal basis in the relevant 

domestic law? 
 
 
 

 
Legitimate aim 

Page 386



Equality and Human Rights Impact Assessment – the Form. 

 5 V4 – 13 July 2010 
 

 
20. Is the aim of the policy a legitimate aim being served in terms of the relevant 

equality legislation or the Human Rights Act? 
 
 

 
Proportionality 
 
21. Is the impact of the policy proportionate to the legitimate aim being pursued?  Is it 

the minimum necessary interference to achieve the legitimate aim? 
 
 
 
 
 
STEP 6: Monitor and review 
 
22. How will you monitor the implementation of the proposal?  (For example, 

customer satisfaction questionnaires) 
 
The impact of the supplementary guidance will be monitored through the planning 
application process 
 
 

Page 387



Equality and Human Rights Impact Assessment – the Form. 

 6 V4 – 13 July 2010 
 

 
23. How will the results of this impact assessment and any further monitoring be 

used to develop the proposal? 
 
Where necessary, the Supplementary Guidance will be updated to take into account 
feedback from monitoring. 
 
 
 
STEP 7 SIGN OFF 
 
The final stage of the EHRIA is formally to sign off the document as being a 
complete, rigorous and robust assessment. 
 
Person(s) completing the impact assessment. 
 
Name Date Signature 
Daniel Harrington 
 
 
 

4 October 2012 Daniel 
Harrington 

 
Quality check: document has been checked by 
 
Name Date Signature 
 
Andrew Brownrigg 
 
 

 
4 October 2012 

 

 
 
Head of Service (Sign-off) 
 
Name Date Signature 
Maggie Bochel 
 

4 October 2011 
 Maggie 

Bochel 
 
Now – 
Please send an electronic copy of your completed EHRIA - without signatures - 
together with the proposal to: 
 
Equalities Team 
Customer Service and Performance 
Corporate Governance 
Aberdeen City Council 
Business Hub 13 
Second Floor North 
Marischal College 
Broad Street 
Aberdeen 
AB10 1AB 
 
Telephone 01224 523039  Email sandrab@aberdeencity.gov.uk 
 

Page 388



 

 

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 
 
COMMITTEE   Enterprise, Planning & Infrastructure  
  
DATE     06 November 2012   
 
DIRECTOR    Gordon McIntosh    
 
TITLE OF REPORT  Technical Advice Note: The Repair and 

Replacement of Windows and Doors  
 
REPORT NUMBER:  EPI/12/189 
 
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to obtain Committee approval for a revised 

draft of Technical Advice on the Repair and Replacement of Windows 
and Doors to be issued for a six week period of public consultation.  A 
copy of the revised draft is available as Appendix 1 to this Report. 

 
 
2. RECOMMENDATION(S)  

  
 It is recommended that the Committee: 
 

(a) Approve the Repair and Replacement of Windows and Doors 
Technical Advice Note document for a six week public 
consultation period. 

 
(b) Agree that, following completion of the public consultation, any 

comments received and subsequent amendments to the draft 
advice be presented to a future meeting of the Committee. 

 
 

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
3.1 There are no direct financial implications arising from this report with 

the exception of costs which may be incurred through the consultation 
and publicity of the proposed advice. Any such expenses can be met 
through existing budgets.  

 
3.2 The implication for the Priority Based Budgeting is positive. Detailed 

topic-based advice has value in reducing officer time spent on pre-
application discussions, and will therefore prove beneficial in reducing 
cost.  

 
 

Agenda Item 9.7

Page 389



 

 

 
4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 There are no known legal or equipment implications arising from this 

report. 
 
4.2 As a major landowner in the city, proposals for the development of land 

and assets owned by Aberdeen City Council will, where this is 
applicable, be subject to assessment in line with the principles and 
standards set out in the Technical Advice Note. 

 
 
5. BACKGROUND / MAIN ISSUES 

 
5.1 The Technical Advice Note has been prepared in support of the 

Aberdeen Local Development Plan (LDP) (2012).  The TAN provides a 
means for Officers to assess applications for the repair and 
replacement of windows and doors within Aberdeen.  Technical Advice 
Notes do not carry the same weight as Supplementary Guidance but 
are still treated as material considerations in the decision making 
process. The TAN also provides general guidance and best practice 
advice for members of the public.   

 
5.2 At present, two Technical Advice Notes contain advice on this subject, 

the ‘Replacement Windows and Doors’ and ‘The Repair and 
Replacement of Timber Sash and Case Windows’.  These two TANs 
have been merged to form this comprehensive Technical Advice Note 
on ‘The Repair and Replacement of Windows and Doors’. 

 
5.3 A previous version of the Technical Advice Note was subject to a public 

consultation exercise in late 2011 / early 2012.  Comments on this 
previous version of the TAN were reviewed in early 2012.  The revised 
draft of the TAN has been prepared to take into account the comments 
raised, and also takes into account changes to legislation and local 
planning policy guidance. 

 
o With regards new legislation, the revised TAN has been 

prepared in the context of The Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) (Scotland) Amendment Order 
2011 which came into force on 06 February 2012 and altered 
the permitted development rights of houses and flats with 
regards modifications to their properties, such as the 
replacement of windows and doors.   

 
o With regards new local guidance, the revised TAN has been 

prepared in the context of the Householder Development Guide 
which was formally adopted as Supplementary Guidance to the 
Aberdeen Local Development Plan on 27 August 2012. 

 

Page 390



 

 

5.4 The purpose of the TAN is to provide information on when planning 
permission and any other permissions (such as Listed Building 
Consent and/or Building Warrant) will be required with respect to the 
repair and replacement of windows and doors. The TAN is relevant to 
every residential property in the City, including flatted properties, and 
includes specific sections on Listed Building and properties within 
Conservation Areas. 

 
5.5 Where any permission(s) are required, the TAN provides clear 

information on when the repair of windows and doors will be expected, 
and in which circumstances replacement may be acceptable.  Where 
replacement is proposed, the TAN gives clear advice on what is 
deemed to be acceptable through both pictorial descriptions and text.   
 

5.6 The progression of the TAN will provide a clear framework for decision 
making and allow comprehensive guidance for both applicants and 
officers. Implementation and enforcement of the TAN will ensure that 
there is a consistent approach relating to windows and doors within 
those areas where consent is required. 
 
 

6. IMPACT 
 

6.1 The Technical Advice Note contributes to “Aberdeen – The Smarter 
City” Vision by promoting Aberdeen as a great place to live and visit.  It 
contributes to the Smarter Environment priorities by promoting energy 
efficiency measures and attractive street and townscapes. 

 
6.2 The proposal also contributes to the following Single Outcome 

Agreement priorities:  
 

1. We live in Scotland that is the most attractive place for doing 
business in Europe 

10. We live in well-designed, sustainable places where we are 
able to access the amenities and services we need; 

12.  We value and enjoy our built and natural environment and 
protect and enhance it for future generations. 

14.  We reduce the local and global environmental impact of our 
consumption and production. 

15. Our public services are high quality, continually improving, 
efficient and responsive to local people’s needs. 

 
6.3 The proposal is consistent with the Council’s Corporate Plan in 

particular delivering high levels of design from all development and 
maintaining an up-to-date planning framework. The TAN also meets 
the vision of the Community Plan in promoting a strong image of the 
City and a sense of civic pride. 

 

Page 391



 

 

6.4 The proposal supports the Council’s 5 year Business Plan in terms of 
protecting and enhancing our high quality natural and built 
environment. 

 
6.5 The proposal is consistent with the Planning and Sustainable 

Development Service Plan, in particular promoting a customer focused 
service by engaging the community in the planning process. 

 
6.6 An equalities and human rights impact assessment (EHRIA) has been 

carried out in relation to the proposed Technical Advice Note, with the 
results included as Appendix 2 to this report. 

 
6.7 An assessment of the environmental impact of the Technical Advice 

Note was made alongside the Aberdeen Local Development Plan. 
Since the adoption of the Local Development Plan there has been 
additional consultation undertaken, additional detail added and 
amendments made. Therefore, this document will have to go through 
the Strategic Environmental Assessment Process. Given the 
assessment made at the Plan level, and the scope of the document, 
there would be no likely significant effect as a result of the Technical 
Advice.  To ensure that this is properly documented a Screening 
Report has been prepared and submitted to the SEA Gateway and the 
Consultation Authorities. In the case that any unforseen issues are 
raised this will be reported back to Committee. 

 
 
7. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

• Aberdeen Local Development Plan 
http://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/nmsruntime/saveasdialog.asp?lID=422
78&sID=9484  

 
• Appendix 1 – Technical Advice Note: The Repair and Replacement of 

Windows and Doors 
 
• Appendix 2 – Equalities and Human Rights Impact Assessment 

 
 
8. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS  

 
Claire McArthur 
Senior Planner 
CMcArthur@aberdeencity.gov.uk 
01224 523098 

Page 392



TT
ee
cc hh

nn
ii cc

aa ll
AA

dd
vv ii

cc ee
NN

oo
tt ee

TT
hh ee

RR
ee pp

aa
ii rr

aa
nn

dd
RR

ee
pp

ll aa
cc ee

mm
ee

nn
tt oo

ff
WW

ii nn
dd oo

ww
ss

aa
nn

dd
DD

oo oo
rr ss

P
la

nn
in

g
an

d
S

us
ta

in
ab

le
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

E
nt

er
pr

is
e,

P
la

nn
in

g
an

d
In

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

A
be

rd
ee

n
C

ity
C

ou
nc

il
B

us
in

es
s

H
ub

4,
G

ro
un

d
F

lo
or

N
or

th
M

ar
is

ch
al

C
ol

le
ge

B
ro

ad
S

tr
ee

t
A

be
rd

ee
n

A
B

10
1A

B
T

el
ep

ho
ne

:0
12

24
52

34
70

F
ax

:0
12

24
52

31
80

E
m

ai
l:

pi
@

ab
er

de
en

ci
ty

.g
ov

.u
k

Page 393



��
��
��

��

�	

�
��
��

�
��
��

�
�	

��
��
��
��

�
��

�
��

��
��

�
�	

�
��

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
��

��
�
��

��
��
�

�
�	

�
�

�

��
�
��

��
��

��
�

 	
!�
��
��

"
�#�

��
��
$�
��

��
�%
��
��
�
�
��
��

��
�
&
��
��

�
��
��

�'
()
��
��
#�
��

��
�#

*
*	

+�
)�

��
$,

)�
��
��

��
�
+�

)#
��
�-

��
�

.
/	


�
��
��
��
�
�
�0

��
�
"#
��
��
��

,
)
&
#�

�.
1	

(
-
-
��
�
��

��
��
2
�
��

��
�

#�
"�

�
��
�)

��
�#
�
�
��

��
�

�3
.	

�
��

��
�
��

�
�4
�

��
�3
	

5
#�
��
��
�

��
��
	

6
��
��

�
+�

��
��
�

�*

�
))

��
��
4
�

7�
�'
��
��
��

�#
(
�%
��

�/
�
))

��
��
4
�

"
�#�

��
�
��

��
��
#

�'
��
-
��
��
�

�1

Page 394



T
ec

hn
ic

al
A

dv
ic

e
N

ot
e:

T
he

R
ep

ai
r

an
d

R
ep

la
ce

m
en

to
fW

in
do

w
s

an
d

D
oo

rs
1

1.
In
tr
o
d
u
ct
io
n

T
hi

s
is

on
e

in
a

se
rie

s
of

T
ec

h
n
ic
al

A
d
vi
ce

N
o
te
s

(T
A

N
s)

pr
od

uc
ed

by
A

be
rd

ee
n

C
ity

C
ou

nc
il

to
he

lp
ex

pl
ai

n
th

e
C

ou
nc

il�
s

po
lic

ie
s

on
va

rio
us

as
pe

ct
of

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ti

n
th

e
C

ity
an

d
w

ho
to

co
nt

ac
tf

or
fu

rt
he

r
in

fo
rm

at
io

n
an

d
ad

vi
ce

.

T
hi

s
T

A
N

ad
dr

es
se

s
th

e
R
ep

ai
r
an

d
R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t
o
f
W
in
d
o
w
s
an

d
D
o
o
rs

an
d

ap
pl

ie
s

to
al

l p
ro

pe
rt

ie
s

in
th

e
C

ity
.I

t:

�
pr

ov
id

es
ad

vi
ce

an
d

gu
id

an
ce

to
re

si
de

nt
s

an
d

de
ve

lo
pe

rs
w

ho
ar

e
co

ns
id

er
in

g
th

e
re

pa
ir

or
re

pl
ac

em
en

to
fw

in
do

w
s

or
do

or
s;

�
pr

ov
id

es
ad

vi
ce

on
w

he
th

er
an

y
ap

pr
ov

al
s

ar
e

re
qu

ire
d

be
fo

re
un

de
rt

ak
in

g
w

or
ks

(e
.g

.
P

la
nn

in
g

P
er

m
is

si
on

,
Li

st
ed

B
ui

ld
in

g
C

on
se

nt
,

B
ui

ld
in

g
W

ar
ra

nt
),

an
d

ho
w

to
ap

pl
y

fo
r

th
es

e
ap

pr
ov

al
s;

�
is

a
�m

at
er

ia
l

co
ns

id
er

at
io

n�
an

d
w

ill
as

si
st

O
ffi

ce
rs

w
ith

in
A

be
rd

ee
n

C
ity

C
ou

nc
il

in
de

te
rm

in
in

g
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
,

�
ex

pl
ai

ns
w

hy
w

in
do

w
s,

do
or

s
an

d
do

or
w

ay
s

ar
e

im
po

rt
an

t
fe

at
ur

es
of

tr
ad

iti
on

al
bu

ild
in

gs
;

�
ou

tli
ne

s
th

e
C

ou
nc

il�
s

ex
pe

ct
at

io
ns

fo
r

pr
op

er
tie

s
w

hi
ch

ar
e

Li
st

ed
B

ui
ld

in
gs

an
d

/
or

w
ith

in
a

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n
A

re
a.

;
�

pr
ov

id
es

�b
es

t
pr

ac
tic

e�
gu

id
an

ce
on

su
ita

bl
e

re
pl

ac
em

en
t

w
in

do
w

s
an

d
do

or
s

w
he

re
re

pa
ir

is
no

ta
n

op
tio

n
an

d,
�

ad
vi

se
s

on
m

ea
su

re
s

to
en

ha
nc

e
th

e
ef

fic
ie

nc
y

an
d

se
cu

rit
y

of
ol

de
r

w
in

do
w

s
an

d
do

or
s

w
ith

ou
th

av
in

g
to

re
pl

ac
e

th
em

.

A
F

ur
th

er
R

ea
di

ng
lis

t
is

pr
ov

id
ed

at
th

e
re

ar
of

th
e

gu
id

e
(S

ec
tio

n
11

),
al

on
g

w
ith

a
G

lo
ss

ar
y

(S
ec

tio
n

10
)

to
ex

pl
ai

n
te

rm
s

w
hi

ch
m

ay
no

t
be

fa
m

ili
ar

.
T

he
T

A
N

do
es

no
t

in
cl

ud
e

gu
id

an
ce

on
ne

w
do

rm
er

w
in

do
w

s,
as

th
is

is
co

ve
re

d
se

pa
ra

te
ly

w
ith

in
th

e
H

ou
se

ho
ld

er
D

ev
el

op
m

en
tG

ui
de

S
up

pl
em

en
ta

ry
G

ui
da

nc
e,

av
ai

la
bl

e
at

:
w

w
w

.a
be

rd
ee

nc
ity

.g
ov

.u
k/

lo
ca

ld
ev

el
op

m
en

tp
la

n.
W

in
do

w
s,

do
or

s
an

d
do

or
w

ay
s

ca
n

be
im

po
rt

an
t

fe
at

ur
es

of
a

bu
ild

in
g

w
hi

ch
ar

e
im

po
rt

an
tt

o
pr

ot
ec

t

Page 395



T
ec

hn
ic

al
A

dv
ic

e
N

ot
e:

T
he

R
ep

ai
r

an
d

R
ep

la
ce

m
en

to
fW

in
do

w
s

an
d

D
oo

rs
2

2.
T
h
in
ki
n
g
A
b
o
u
t
C
h
an

g
e

T
he

re
ar

e
a

nu
m

be
r

of
re

as
on

s
w

hy
ow

ne
rs

m
ig

ht
co

ns
id

er
re

pl
ac

in
g

th
ei

r
w

in
do

w
s

or
do

or
s,

ho
w

ev
er

th
e

m
os

t
co

m
m

on
re

as
on

s
ar

e
ge

ne
ra

lly
to

do
w

ith
co

nc
er

ns
ov

er
he

at
lo

ss
,

so
un

d
pr

oo
fin

g,
se

cu
rit

y
an

d
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
.

T
he

ge
ne

ra
l

as
su

m
pt

io
n

is
th

at
th

es
e

ty
pe

s
of

is
su

es
ca

n
on

ly
be

re
so

lv
ed

by
co

m
pl

et
el

y
re

pl
ac

in
g

or
ig

in
al

w
in

do
w

s
an

d
do

or
s

w
ith

so
m

et
hi

ng
ne

w
�
su
ch

as
ne
w

�d
ou
bl
e
gl
az
in
g�
.

T
hi
s
is

ho
w
ev
er

of
te
n
un
ne

ce
ss
ar
y,
an
d
ca
n
be

ex
tr
em

el
y
co
st
ly
an

d
un

su
st
ai
na
bl
e.

B
el
ow

ar
e
a
nu

m
be

r
of

qu
es
tio
ns

to
co
ns
id
er

be
fo
re

de
ci
di
ng

w
he

th
er

re
pl
ac
in
g
yo
ur

w
in
do

w
s
or

do
or
s
is
rig
ht
fo
r
yo
u:

�
D
o
m
y
w
in
do

w
s
or

do
or
s
ac
tu
al
ly
ne
ed

re
pl
ac
in
g
or

w
ou

ld
it
be

m
or
e
co
st
ef
fe
ct
iv
e
an
d

su
st
ai
na

bl
e
to

re
pa

ir
th
em

?

�
H
ow

ol
d
ar
e
m
y
ex
is
tin
g
w
in
do

w
s
or

do
or
s?

A
re

th
ey

of
lo
ca
l
or

hi
st
or
ic

va
lu
e
or

in
te
re
st
?
D
o
th
ey

ad
d
va
lu
e
to
m
y
ho
us
e?

�
A
re

th
er
e
up

gr
ad

es
w
hi
ch

ca
n
be

m
ad
e
to

m
y
ex
is
tin
g
w
in
do

w
s
to

ad
dr
es
s
he
at

lo
ss
,

so
un
d
pr
oo
fin
g
an

d
se
cu
rit
y?

�
C
an

an
y
pa
rt
s
of

m
y
ex
is
tin
g
w
in
do

w
s
or

do
or
s
be

re
cy
cl
ed

or
re
us
ed

if
th
ey

ca
nn

ot
be

re
pa
ire

d?

�
W
ill
ne
w
w
in
do

w
s
or

do
or
s
re
al
ly
re
su
lt
in
le
ss

m
ai
nt
en
an

ce
?

�
H
ow

lo
ng

w
ill
it
ta
ke

fo
r
an

y
sa
vi
ng

s
in

m
y
he
at
in
g
co
st
s
to

pa
y
fo
r
th
e
co
st

of
ne

w
un
its
,a

nd
ho

w
lo
ng

w
ill
th
e
ne

w
un

its
la
st
?

R
ep

ai
r

of
sa

sh
&

ca
se

w
in

do
w

s
ca

n
of

te
n

be
m

uc
h

ch
ea

pe
r

th
an

re
pl

ac
em

en
t

Page 396



T
ec

hn
ic

al
A

dv
ic

e
N

ot
e:

T
he

R
ep

ai
r

an
d

R
ep

la
ce

m
en

to
fW

in
do

w
s

an
d

D
oo

rs
3

3.
W
h
y
D
o
W
e
N
ee
d
to

M
an

ag
e
C
h
an

g
e?

W
in

do
w

s,
do

or
s

an
d

do
or

w
ay

s
ar

e
di

st
in

ct
iv

e
fe

at
ur

es
of

a
bu

ild
in

g
w

hi
ch

ca
n

of
te

n
te

ll
us

a
lo

t
ab

ou
t

lo
ca

l
hi

st
or

y
an

d
so

ci
al

ch
an

ge
.

In
ar

ea
s

of
A

be
rd

ee
n

w
he

re
bu

ild
in

gs
ha

ve
lit

tle
de

co
ra

tio
n,

tr
ad

iti
on

al
w

in
do

w
s

ca
n

m
ak

e
an

im
po

rt
an

t
co

nt
rib

ut
io

n
to

a
bu

ild
in

g�
s

ar
ch

ite
ct

ur
al

in
te

re
st

.

C
ha

ng
es

to
w

in
do

w
s

an
d

do
or

s
w

hi
ch

ar
e

w
el

l
m

an
ag

ed
ca

n
m

ak
e

a
po

si
tiv

e
co

nt
rib

ut
io

n
to

th
e

de
si

gn
an

d
ap

pe
ar

an
ce

of
a

bu
ild

in
g

an
d

to
th

e
qu

al
ity

an
d

ch
ar

ac
te

r
of

th
e

su
rr

ou
nd

in
g

ar
ea

.
In

ap
pr

op
ria

te
ch

an
ge

s
ca

n
ho

w
ev

er
ha

ve
a

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
ne

ga
tiv

e
im

pa
ct

on
th

e
ch

ar
ac

te
r

or
ap

pe
ar

an
ce

of
a

bu
ild

in
g

w
hi

ch
,

w
he

n
re

pe
at

ed
ov

er
tim

e,
ca

n
di

lu
te

th
e

ap
pe

al
of

w
id

er
ar

ea
s.

F
or

Li
st

ed
B

ui
ld

in
gs

an
d

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n
A

re
as

in
ap

pr
op

ria
te

ch
an

ge
ca

n
be

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
ly

da
m

ag
in

g,
an

d
m

ay
re

su
lt

in
dr

op
s

in
pr

op
er

ty
va

lu
es

.
U

na
ut

ho
ris

ed
ch

an
ge

m
ay

al
so

le
ad

to
le

ga
le

nf
or

ce
m

en
ta

ct
io

n.

T
o
ch

ec
k
is

yo
u
r
p
ro
p
er
ty

is
a
L
is
te
d
B
u
ild

in
g
,v
is
it
:
w
w
w
.h
is
to
ri
c-
sc

o
tl
an

d
.g
o
v.
u
k/
h
is
to
ri
ca

n
d
lis
te
d
b
u
ild

in
g
s.

T
o
ch

ec
k
if
yo

u
liv
e
w
it
h
in

a
C
o
n
se

rv
at
io
n
A
re
a,

vi
si
t:
w
w
w
.a
b
er
d
ee

n
ci
ty
.g
o
v.
u
k/
m
as

te
rp
la
n
n
in
g
.

In
ap

pr
op

ria
te

ch
an

ge
ca

n
ne

ga
tiv

el
y

af
fe

ct
st

re
et

s
an

d
w

id
er

ar
ea

s
as

w
el

la
s

in
di

vi
du

al
bu

ild
in

gs

Page 397



T
ec

hn
ic

al
A

dv
ic

e
N

ot
e:

T
he

R
ep

ai
r

an
d

R
ep

la
ce

m
en

to
fW

in
do

w
s

an
d

D
oo

rs
4

4.
D
o
IN

ee
d
C
o
n
se
n
t?

In
so

m
e

in
st

an
ce

s
th

e
am

en
dm

en
t

or
re

pl
ac

em
en

t
of

w
in

do
w

s
an

d
do

or
s

is
co

nt
ro

lle
d

by
pl

an
ni

ng
le

gi
sl

at
io

n
an

d
pe

rm
is

si
on

is
re

qu
ire

d
be

fo
re

un
de

rt
ak

in
g

an
y

w
or

ks
.

T
h
is

d
ia
g
ra
m

sh
o
u
ld

h
el
p
yo

u
to

w
o
rk

o
u
t
w
h
et
h
er

o
r
n
o
t
p
er
m
is
si
o
n

w
o
u
ld

b
e
re
q
u
ir
ed

fo
r
yo

u
r
p
ro
p
o
sa

l.

If
yo

ur
pr

op
os

al
s

ar
e

fo
r

an
ex

ac
tr

ep
lic

a
of

an
ex

is
tin

g
w

in
do

w
or

do
or

th
en

co
ns

en
t

m
ay

no
t

be
re

qu
ire

d
if

th
e

pr
op

os
al

s
m

at
ch

th
e

ex
is

tin
g

in
ev

er
y

w
ay

.
T

hi
s

is
di

sc
us

se
d

fu
rt

he
r

in
S

ec
tio

n
5.

If
yo

u
ar

e
un

su
re

w
he

th
er

co
ns

en
t

w
ou

ld
be

re
qu

ire
d

yo
u

sh
ou

ld
al

w
ay

s
ch

ec
k

w
ith

th
e

C
ou

nc
il�

s
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

M
an

ag
em

en
t

S
ec

tio
n

fir
st

,
as

un
au

th
or

is
ed

w
or

ks
ca

n
le

ad
to

co
st

ly
en

fo
rc

em
en

ta
ct

io
n.

Page 398



T
ec

hn
ic

al
A

dv
ic

e
N

ot
e:

T
he

R
ep

ai
r

an
d

R
ep

la
ce

m
en

to
fW

in
do

w
s

an
d

D
oo

rs
5

4.
1

B
u
ild

in
g
R
eg

u
la
ti
o
n
s

B
ui

ld
in

g
R

eg
ul

at
io

ns
ex

is
t

to
pr

ot
ec

t
th

e
pu

bl
ic

an
d

fo
r

re
pl

ac
em

en
t

w
in

do
w

s
an

d
do

or
s

co
ve

r
as

pe
ct

s
su

ch
as

ve
nt

ila
tio

n,
sa

fe
ty

fr
om

co
lli

si
on

,s
af

e
cl

ea
ni

ng
,p

re
ve

nt
io

n
of

fa
lls

,t
he

rm
al

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

an
d

m
ea

ns
of

es
ca

pe
.

T
he

re
is

no
ne

ed
to

ob
ta

in
B

ui
ld

in
g

W
ar

ra
nt

ap
pr

ov
al

fo
r

re
pl

ac
in

g
yo

ur
w

in
do

w
s

or
do

or
s,

bu
tt

he
w

or
k

yo
u

un
de

rt
ak

e
sh

ou
ld

m
ee

t
th

e
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
of

th
e

B
ui

ld
in

g
R

eg
ul

at
io

ns
,a

nd
th

e
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y

fo
r

co
m

pl
ia

nc
e

re
st

s
w

ith
th

e
ow

ne
r.

T
hi

s
gu

id
an

ce
ap

pl
ie

s
w

he
th

er
or

no
tt

he
ne

w
w

in
do

w
or

do
or

is
to

be
th

e
sa

m
e

st
yl

e
an

d
m

at
er

ia
la

s
th

e
ex

is
tin

g.

R
ep

ai
rs

to
an

ex
is

tin
g

w
in

do
w

ar
e

sl
ig

ht
ly

di
ffe

re
nt

an
d

ca
n

be
co

m
pl

et
ed

to
re

tu
rn

th
e

w
in

do
w

to
th

e
or

ig
in

al
st

an
da

rd
w

ith
ou

t
th

e
ne

ed
fo

r
th

e
re

pa
ire

d
w

in
do

w
m

ee
tin

g
cu

rr
en

ts
ta

nd
ar

ds
e.

g.
re

pl
ac

in
g

th
e

ci
ll.

It
is

re
co

gn
is

ed
th

at
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e
w

ith
al

lB
ui

ld
in

g
R

eg
ul

at
io

ns
m

ay
be

di
ffi

cu
lt

in
bu

ild
in

gs
th

at
ha

ve
ex

is
tin

g
hi

st
or

ic
al

fe
at

ur
es

or
ar

e
Li

st
ed

.
F

ur
th

er
ad

vi
ce

on
re

la
xa

tio
ns

ca
n

be
so

ug
ht

fr
om

th
e

B
ui

ld
in

g
S

ta
nd

ar
ds

T
ea

m
at

01
22

4
52

34
70

or
pi

@
ab

er
de

en
ci

ty
.g

ov
.u

k.

F
ur

th
er

gu
id

an
ce

on
B

ui
ld

in
g

R
eg

ul
at

io
ns

ca
n

be
fo

un
d

in
A

pp
en

di
x

2.

Page 399



T
ec

hn
ic

al
A

dv
ic

e
N

ot
e:

T
he

R
ep

ai
r

an
d

R
ep

la
ce

m
en

to
fW

in
do

w
s

an
d

D
oo

rs
6

5.
L
is
te
d
B
u
ild

in
g
s,
C
o
n
se
rv
at
io
n
A
re
as

an
d
O
th
er

A
re
as

o
f
S
p
ec
ia
lC

o
n
tr
o
l

5.
1

L
is
te
d
B
u
ild

in
g
s

In
A

be
rd

ee
n,

Li
st

ed
B

ui
ld

in
gs

ra
ng

e
fr

om
gr

an
d

vi
lla

s
on

Q
ue

en
s

R
oa

d,
to

te
ne

m
en

t
bl

oc
ks

on
R

os
em

ou
nt

V
ia

du
ct

an
d

fis
he

rm
en

�s
co

tta
ge

s
at

F
oo

td
ee

.
E

ac
h

Li
st

ed
B

ui
ld

in
g

ha
s

its
ow

n
ch

ar
ac

te
r

an
d

st
yl

e,
be

it
in

di
vi

du
al

ly
,o

r
as

pa
rt

of
a

w
id

er
gr

ou
p

of
bu

ild
in

gs
.

A
ll

Li
st

ed
B

ui
ld

in
gs

ar
e

pr
ot

ec
te

d,
no

t
ju

st
th

os
e

in
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n

A
re

as
,

an
d

al
l

el
ev

at
io

ns
of

a
Li

st
ed

B
ui

ld
in

g
ar

e
pr

ot
ec

te
d,

re
ga

rd
le

ss
of

th
e

C
at

eg
or

y
of

Li
st

in
g.

Li
st

ed
B

ui
ld

in
g

C
on

se
nt

w
ill

al
w

ay
s

be
re

qu
ire

d
fo

r
th

e
al

te
ra

tio
n

or
re

pl
ac

em
en

t
of

w
in

do
w

s
or

do
or

s
in

Li
st

ed
B

ui
ld

in
gs

.
In

so
m

e
in

st
an

ce
s

re
pa

irs
to

tr
ad

iti
on

al
w

in
do

w
s

an
d

do
or

s
us

in
g

th
e

or
ig

in
al

m
at

er
ia

ls
(�

lik
e

fo
r

lik
e"

)
m

ay
no

t
re

qu
ire

Li
st

ed
B

ui
ld

in
g

C
on

se
nt

.
F

or
pr

op
os

al
s

no
t

to
re

qu
ire

co
ns

en
t

th
ey

m
us

t
in

cl
ud

e
ex

ac
t

re
pl

ic
at

io
n

of
th

e
op

en
in

g
m

et
ho

d
an

d
m

at
er

ia
ls

.
F

or
w

in
do

w
s

th
ey

m
us

t
al

so
in

cl
ud

e
ex

ac
t

de
ta

ils
of

as
tr

ag
al

di
m

en
si

on
s

an
d

pr
of

ile
s,

fix
in

g
of

gl
as

s
an

d
th

e
re

us
e

of
hi

st
or

ic
gl

as
s

w
he

re
th

is
co

nt
rib

ut
es

to
a

bu
ild

in
g�

s
ch

ar
ac

te
r.

In
co

ns
id

er
in

g
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
fo

r
Li

st
ed

B
ui

ld
in

g
C

on
se

nt
,

th
e

C
ou

nc
il

is
re

qu
ire

d
by

la
w

to
:

��
ha

ve
sp

ec
ia

l
re

ga
rd

to
th

e
de

si
ra

bi
lit

y
of

pr
es

er
vi

ng
th

e
bu

ild
in

g
or

its
se

tti
ng

or
an

y
fe

at
ur

es
of

sp
ec

ia
l

ar
ch

ite
ct

ur
al

or
hi

st
or

ic
in

te
re

st
w

hi
ch

it
po

ss
es

se
s�

(P
la

nn
in

g
(L

is
te

d
B

ui
ld

in
gs

an
d

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n
A

re
as

)
(S

co
tla

nd
)

A
ct

19
97

).
If

th
e

Li
st

ed
B

ui
ld

in
g

is
si

tu
at

ed
in

a
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n

A
re

a,
or

is
pa

rt
of

a
fla

tte
d

pr
op

er
ty

,P
la

nn
in

g
P

er
m

is
si

on
m

ay
al

so
be

re
qu

ire
d.

It
is

re
co

m
m

en
de

d
th

at
yo

u
ch

ec
k

w
ith

th
e

C
ou

nc
il�

s
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

M
an

ag
em

en
t

se
ct

io
n

pr
io

r
to

un
de

rt
ak

in
g

an
y

w
or

ks
to

re
ce

iv
e

co
nf

irm
at

io
n

as
to

w
he

th
er

an
y

co
ns

en
ts

w
ou

ld
be

re
qu

ire
d.

B
ui

ld
in

g
m

ay
ex

hi
bi

ta
va

rie
ty

of
w

in
do

w
si

ze
s

an
d

gl
az

in
g

pa
tte

rn
s.

T
hi

s
ca

n
pr

ov
id

e
im

po
rt

an
te

vi
de

nc
e

of
th

e
hi

st
or

y
of

th
e

bu
ild

in
g

an
d

co
nt

rib
ut

e
to

its
ch

ar
ac

te
r

an
d

in
te

re
st

Page 400



T
ec

hn
ic

al
A

dv
ic

e
N

ot
e:

T
he

R
ep

ai
r

an
d

R
ep

la
ce

m
en

to
fW

in
do

w
s

an
d

D
oo

rs
7

O
rig

in
al

or
hi

st
or

ic
w

in
do

w
s,

do
or

s
an

d
do

or
w

ay
s

in
Li

st
ed

B
ui

ld
in

gs
m

us
t

be
re

pa
ire

d
an

d
re

st
or

ed
ra

th
er

th
an

re
pl

ac
ed

.
O

nl
y

in
ex

ce
pt

io
na

lc
irc

um
st

an
ce

s
w

ill
re

pl
ac

em
en

t
w

in
do

w
s

an
d

do
or

s
be

pe
rm

itt
ed

,
an

d
th

es
e

re
pl

ac
em

en
ts

m
us

t
m

at
ch

th
e

or
ig

in
al

s
in

te
rm

s
of

ap
pe

ar
an

ce
an

d
m

at
er

ia
l

as
fa

r
as

is
re

as
on

ab
ly

po
ss

ib
le

.
C

on
se

nt
to

re
pl

ac
e

or
ig

in
al

w
in

do
w

s
or

do
or

s
on

Li
st

ed
B

ui
ld

in
gs

w
ill

on
ly

be
gi

ve
n

w
he

n
it

ca
n

be
de

m
on

st
ra

te
d

to
th

e
sa

tis
fa

ct
io

n
of

th
e

C
ou

nc
il

th
at

th
ey

ar
e

be
yo

nd
ec

on
om

ic
re

pa
ir,

an
d

ev
id

en
ce

of
th

is
w

ill
be

re
qu

ire
d

as
pa

rt
of

an
y

ap
pl

ic
at

io
n.

T
hi

s
ev

id
en

ce
sh

ou
ld

ta
ke

th
e

fo
rm

of
a

P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l
S

ur
ve

y,
fu

rt
he

r
de

ta
ils

on
w

hi
ch

ar
e

pr
ov

id
ed

in
A

pp
en

di
x

1.

5.
2

C
o
n
se

rv
at
io
n
A
re
as

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n
A

re
as

ar
e

ar
ea

s
of

th
e

C
ity

w
hi

ch
ha

ve
be

en
de

si
gn

at
ed

by
th

e
C

ou
nc

il
fo

r
th

ei
r

sp
ec

ia
l

ar
ch

ite
ct

ur
al

or
hi

st
or

ic
in

te
re

st
.

A
be

rd
ee

n
ha

s
11

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n
A

re
as

w
ith

in
th

e
C

ity
B

ou
nd

ar
y,

w
hi

ch
in

cl
ud

e
ar

ea
s

su
ch

as
O

ld
A

be
rd

ee
n,

F
er

ry
hi

ll
an

d
R

os
em

ou
nt

/W
es

tb
ur

n.
A

pp
ra

is
al

s
of

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n
A

re
as

in
A

be
rd

ee
n

ar
e

av
ai

la
bl

e
at

w
w

w
.a

be
rd

ee
nc

ity
.g

ov
.u

k/
m

as
te

rp
la

nn
in

g.

E
ve

n
if

yo
ur

bu
ild

in
g

is
no

t
Li

st
ed

,
if

it
is

in
a

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n
A

re
a

yo
u

w
ill

re
qu

ire
P

la
nn

in
g

P
er

m
is

si
on

to
al

te
r

or
re

pl
ac

e
w

in
do

w
s

or
do

or
s

ot
he

r
th

an
on

a
lik

e
fo

r
lik

e
ba

si
s,

as
de

sc
rib

ed
in

S
ec

tio
n

5.
1.

T
hi

s
re

qu
ire

m
en

t
ap

pl
ie

s
to

bo
th

m
od

er
n

an
d

ol
de

r,
tr

ad
iti

on
al

,p
ro

pe
rt

ie
s.

In
co

ns
id

er
in

g
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
fo

r
P

la
nn

in
g

P
er

m
is

si
on

in
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n

A
re

as
,

th
e

C
ou

nc
il

is
re

qu
ire

d
by

la
w

to
pa

y
sp

ec
ia

la
tte

nt
io

n
�t

o
th

e
de

si
ra

bi
lit

y
of

pr
es

er
vi

ng
or

en
ha

nc
in

g
th

e
ch

ar
ac

te
r

or
ap

pe
ar

an
ce

of
th

at
ar

ea
�.

(P
la

nn
in

g
(L

is
te

d
B

ui
ld

in
gs

an
d

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n
A

re
as

)
(S

co
tla

nd
)

A
ct

19
97

).
F
or

Li
st

ed
B

ui
ld

in
gs

w
ith

in
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n

A
re

as
,

P
la

nn
in

g
P

er
m

is
si

on
w

ill
be

re
qu

ire
d

in
ad

di
tio

n
to

Li
st

ed
B

ui
ld

in
g

C
on

se
nt

.
F
or

bu
ild

in
gs

w
hi

ch
ar

e
lo

ca
te

d
w

ith
in

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n
A

re
as

(b
ut

ar
e

no
tL

is
te

d
B

ui
ld

in
gs

),
th

e
C

ou
nc

il�
s

pr
ef

er
en

ce
is

fo
r
or

ig
in

al
w

in
do

w
s

an
d

do
or

s
to

be
re

pa
ire

d
an

d
re

st
or

ed
w

he
re

ve
r
po

ss
ib

le
.

D
et

ai
ls

of
th

e
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n

A
re

as
in

A
be

rd
ee

n
ca

n
be

fo
un

d
on

th
e

C
ou

nc
il�

s
w

eb
si

te
,

w
w

w
.a

be
rd

ee
nc

ity
.g

ov
.u

k.

Page 401



T
ec

hn
ic

al
A

dv
ic

e
N

ot
e:

T
he

R
ep

ai
r

an
d

R
ep

la
ce

m
en

to
fW

in
do

w
s

an
d

D
oo

rs
8

5.
3

O
th
er

A
re
as

o
f
S
p
ec
ia
lC

o
n
tr
o
l

P
er

m
itt

ed
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t
rig

ht
s

ex
is

t
th

ro
ug

ho
ut

th
e

C
ity

so
th

at
sm

al
la

lte
ra

tio
ns

to
pr

op
er

tie
s,

su
ch

as
re

pl
ac

in
g

w
in

do
w

s
or

do
or

s,
ca

n
be

un
de

rt
ak

en
w

ith
ou

tt
he

ne
ed

fo
r

so
m

e
pe

rm
is

si
on

s.

B
ur

nb
an

ks
an

d
K

in
gs

w
el

ls

In
B

ur
nb

an
ks

V
ill

ag
e

an
d

K
in

gs
w

el
ls

th
e

C
ity

C
ou

nc
il

ha
s

ta
ke

n
th

e
de

ci
si

on
to

re
m

ov
e

th
es

e
P

er
m

itt
ed

D
ev

el
op

m
en

tR
ig

ht
s

vi
a

an
A

rt
ic

le
4

D
ire

ct
io

n,
an

d
so

pl
an

ni
ng

pe
rm

is
si

on
fo

r
re

pl
ac

in
g

or
am

en
di

ng
w

in
do

w
s

/d
oo

rs
in

th
es

e
ar

ea
s

w
ill

be
re

qu
ire

d.

T
he

ge
ne

ra
lp

re
fe

re
nc

e
w

ill
be

fo
r

or
ig

in
al

or
hi

st
or

ic
w

in
do

w
s

an
d

do
or

s
in

ar
ea

s
co

ve
re

d
by

an
A

rt
ic

le
4

D
ire

ct
io

n
to

be
re

pa
ire

d
an

d
re

st
or

ed
w

he
re

ve
r

po
ss

ib
le

.
W

he
re

th
er

e
is

no
or

ig
in

al
or

hi
st

or
ic

fa
br

ic
to

be
re

ta
in

ed
th

en
an

y
as

se
ss

m
en

t
of

re
pl

ac
em

en
t

pr
op

os
al

s
w

ill
pr

in
ci

pa
lly

be
ba

se
d

on
st

yl
in

g/
ty

pe
,m

at
er

ia
ls

an
d

co
lo

ur
in

g.

F
la

ts

If
yo

u
liv

e
in

a
fla

tte
d

pr
op

er
ty

,
pl

an
ni

ng
pe

rm
is

si
on

w
ill

be
re

qu
ire

d
if

yo
u

in
te

nd
to

al
te

r
th

e
di

m
en

si
on

s
of

an
ex

is
tin

g
w

in
do

w
or

do
or

op
en

in
g.

Page 402



T
ec

hn
ic

al
A

dv
ic

e
N

ot
e:

T
he

R
ep

ai
r

an
d

R
ep

la
ce

m
en

to
fW

in
do

w
s

an
d

D
oo

rs
9

6.
R
ep

ai
r,
U
p
g
ra
d
e
an

d
R
ep

la
ce
m
en

t

6.
1

R
et
ai
n
an

d
R
ep

ai
r

If
yo

u
ar

e
co

ns
id

er
in

g
ne

w
w

in
do

w
s

or
do

or
s,

it
is

fir
st

w
or

th
ch

ec
ki

ng
w

he
th

er
re

pl
ac

in
g

yo
ur

ex
is

tin
g

w
in

do
w

s/
do

or
s

w
ou

ld
be

ap
pr

op
ria

te
,

or
in

de
ed

ne
ce

ss
ar

y.
W

in
do

w
s

an
d

do
or

s
ca

n
al

m
os

t
al

w
ay

s
be

im
pr

ov
ed

by
be

in
g

re
pa

ire
d,

ev
en

if
th

ey
ar

e
in

ve
ry

po
or

co
nd

iti
on

.
R

ep
ai

r
is

al
so

pr
ef

er
re

d
in

te
rm

s
of

su
st

ai
na

bi
lit

y
as

it
re

du
ce

s
th

e
re

qu
ire

m
en

tf
or

ne
w

ra
w

m
at

er
ia

ls
an

d
en

er
gy

.

T
ra

di
tio

na
lW

in
do

w
s

an
d

D
oo

rs

T
he

re
pa

ir
of

or
ig

in
al

w
in

do
w

s
an

d
do

or
s

is
th

e
be

st
m

ea
ns

of
sa

fe
gu

ar
di

ng
th

e
hi

st
or

ic
ch

ar
ac

te
r

of
a

tr
ad

iti
on

al
bu

ild
in

g,
an

d
in

m
ai

nt
ai

ni
ng

th
e

vi
su

al
ch

ar
ac

te
r

of
w

id
er

ar
ea

s.
R

ep
ai

r
w

ill
al

w
ay

s
be

pr
om

ot
ed

ov
er

re
pl

ac
em

en
t,

as
ne

w
,

m
od

er
n

un
its

w
ill

ve
ry

ra
re

ly
be

ca
pa

bl
e

of
m

at
ch

in
g

th
e

ch
ar

ac
te

r
an

d
vi

su
al

in
te

re
st

of
th

e
un

its
to

be
re

pl
ac

ed
.

T
ra

di
tio

na
lw

in
do

w
s

ar
e

ne
ar

ly
al

w
ay

s
tim

be
r

sa
sh

an
d

ca
se

an
d

ar
e

fo
un

d
in

a
va

rie
ty

of
fo

rm
s

th
at

re
fle

ct
ch

an
gi

ng
gl

as
s

te
ch

no
lo

gy
an

d
ar

ch
ite

ct
ur

al
fa

sh
io

n.
T

im
be

r
sa

sh
an

d
ca

se
w

in
do

w
s

ar
e

a
re

co
gn

is
ed

fe
at

ur
e

of
A

be
rd

ee
n�

s
tr

ad
iti

on
al

bu
ild

in
gs

,
an

d
ar

e
ge

ne
ra

lly
of

a
st

ra
ig

ht
fo

rw
ar

d
de

si
gn

an
d

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n,

m
ea

ni
ng

th
at

th
ey

ca
n

us
ua

lly
be

ea
si

ly
re

pa
ire

d.

C
ur

ve
d

co
rn

er
w

in
do

w
s

an
d

re
ct

an
gu

la
r

�ly
in

g�
pa

ne
s

of
gl

as
s

ar
e

fe
at

ur
es

w
hi

ch
ar

e
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

ly
sp

ec
ia

lt
o

A
be

rd
ee

n
m

us
ta

lw
ay

s
be

re
ta

in
ed

.

E
xa

m
pl

es
of

re
ct

an
gu

la
r

pa
ne

s
an

d
cu

rv
ed

gl
as

s

Page 403



T
ec

hn
ic

al
A

dv
ic

e
N

ot
e:

T
he

R
ep

ai
r

an
d

R
ep

la
ce

m
en

to
fW

in
do

w
s

an
d

D
oo

rs
10

T
ra

di
tio

na
l

ex
te

rn
al

do
or

s
an

d
do

or
w

ay
s

ar
e

us
ua

lly
of

so
lid

tim
be

r
fr

am
e

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n

w
ith

in
se

t
pa

ne
lli

ng
re

ta
in

ed
by

m
ou

ld
in

gs
.

T
hr

ou
gh

ou
t

th
e

18
th

an
d

19
th

ce
nt

ur
ie

s
pa

ne
lle

d
do

or
s

be
ca

m
e

st
an

da
rd

fo
r

th
e

m
ai

n
en

tr
an

ce
of

m
os

t
ty

pe
s

of
bu

ild
in

g.
In

A
be

rd
ee

n
th

is
w

as
ty

pi
ca

lly
re

fle
ct

ed
in

4,
5

an
d

6
pa

ne
lv

ar
ie

tie
s

in
a

nu
m

be
r

of
di

ffe
re

nt
co

nf
ig

ur
at

io
ns

.
A

go
od

jo
in

er
sh

ou
ld

be
ab

le
to

tr
ea

tm
os

tf
au

lts
w

ith
tr

ad
iti

on
al

do
or

s,
an

d
ag

ai
n

re
pa

ir
sh

ou
ld

be
le

ss
ex

pe
ns

iv
e

th
an

re
pl

ac
em

en
t.

T
ra

di
tio

na
lw

in
do

w
s

an
d

do
or

s
ar

e
ex

tr
em

el
y

du
ra

bl
e

an
d

w
he

n
pr

op
er

ly
m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d
ca

n
la

st
fo

r
ce

nt
ur

ie
s

-
m

an
y

in
A

be
rd

ee
n

ar
e

al
re

ad
y

w
el

l
ov

er
10

0
ye

ar
s

ol
d.

In
co

nt
ra

st
,

so
m

e
m

od
er

n
w

in
do

w
s

ca
n

ne
ed

re
pl

ac
in

g
af

te
r

ju
st

20
ye

ar
s.

T
ra

di
tio

na
lw

in
do

w
s

an
d

do
or

s
ar

e
ge

ne
ra

lly
m

ad
e

fr
om

go
od

qu
al

ity
,d

ur
ab

le
,t

im
be

r
fr

om
m

at
ur

e
tr

ee
s

w
hi

ch
is

of
a

m
uc

h
be

tte
r

qu
al

ity
th

an
tim

be
r

w
hi

ch
is

ge
ne

ra
lly

ec
on

om
ic

al
ly

av
ai

la
bl

e
to

da
y

fr
om

su
st

ai
na

bl
e

so
ur

ce
s.

It
th

er
ef

or
e

m
ak

es
se

ns
e

to
re

ta
in

an
d

re
pa

ir
or

ig
in

al
w

in
do

w
s,

do
or

s
an

d
do

or
w

ay
s

ra
th

er
th

an
to

re
pl

ac
e

th
em

w
ith

ne
w

tim
be

r
w

hi
ch

m
ay

no
t

la
st

as
lo

ng
an

d
m

ay
be

m
or

e
su

sc
ep

tib
le

to
de

ca
y.

O
rig

in
al

or
hi

st
or

ic
w

in
do

w
s,

do
or

s
an

d
do

or
w

ay
s

in
Li

st
ed

B
ui

ld
in

gs
m

us
tb

e
re

pa
ire

d
an

d
re

st
or

ed
ra

th
er

th
an

re
pl

ac
ed

.
O

nl
y

in
ex

ce
pt

io
na

l
ci

rc
um

st
an

ce
s

w
ill

re
pl

ac
em

en
t

w
in

do
w

s
an

d
do

or
s

be
pe

rm
itt

ed
,

an
d

th
es

e
re

pl
ac

em
en

ts
m

us
t

m
at

ch
th

e
or

ig
in

al
s

in
te

rm
s

of
ap

pe
ar

an
ce

an
d

m
at

er
ia

la
s

fa
r

as
is

re
as

on
ab

ly
po

ss
ib

le
.

F
or

bu
ild

in
gs

w
hi

ch
ar

e
lo

ca
te

d
w

ith
in

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n
A

re
as

,
th

e
C

ou
nc

il�
s

pr
ef

er
en

ce
is

al
so

fo
r

or
ig

in
al

w
in

do
w

s
an

d
do

or
s

to
be

re
pa

ire
d

an
d

re
st

or
ed

w
he

re
ve

r
po

ss
ib

le
.

O
rig

in
al

do
or

iro
nm

on
ge

ry
su

ch
as

le
tte

rb
ox

es
,

do
or

kn
oc

ke
rs

an
d

ha
nd

le
s

sh
ou

ld
be

re
ta

in
ed

an
d

re
us

ed
w

he
re

ve
r

po
ss

ib
le

,
as

sh
ou

ld
or

ig
in

al
w

in
do

w
fit

tin
gs

su
ch

as
co

rd
cl

am
ps

,s
as

h
lif

ts
,s

as
h

fa
st

en
er

s
an

d
ho

ok
s.

4
pa

ne
lle

d
do

or
w

ith
as

so
ci

at
ed

do
or

iro
nm

on
ge

ry
/f

ur
ni

tu
re

Page 404



T
ec

hn
ic

al
A

dv
ic

e
N

ot
e:

T
he

R
ep

ai
r

an
d

R
ep

la
ce

m
en

to
fW

in
do

w
s

an
d

D
oo

rs
11

6.
2

U
p
g
ra
d
in
g
T
ra
d
it
io
n
al
W
in
d
o
w
s
an

d
D
o
o
rs

R
ep

la
ci

ng
ex

is
tin

g
�s

in
gl

e
gl

az
ed

�
tim

be
r

w
in

do
w

s
an

d
or

ig
in

al
tim

be
r

do
or

s
w

ith
ne

w
�d

ou
bl

e
gl

az
ed

�
w

in
do

w
s

an
d

uP
V

C
/

co
m

po
si

te
do

or
s

is
of

te
n

pr
om

ot
ed

as
a

m
ea

ns
of

fig
ht

in
g

he
at

lo
ss

,
dr

au
gh

ts
,

du
st

in
gr

es
s

an
d

pr
ov

id
in

g
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
to

so
un

d
in

su
la

tio
n

an
d

se
cu

rit
y.

T
ra

di
tio

na
l

w
in

do
w

s
an

d
do

or
s

ca
n

ho
w

ev
er

be
up

gr
ad

ed
at

a
lo

w
er

co
st

to
br

in
g

th
es

e
sa

m
e

be
ne

fit
s,

w
hi

ls
ts

til
lr

et
ai

ni
ng

th
e

or
ig

in
al

fe
at

ur
es

an
d

st
yl

e
w

hi
ch

gi
ve

s
ch

ar
ac

te
r

to
yo

ur
bu

ild
in

g.

E
ne

rg
y

E
ffi

ci
en

cy

B
y

th
e

na
tu

re
of

th
ei

r
co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n
m

an
y

ol
de

r
bu

ild
in

gs
ar

e
pr

on
e

to
he

at
lo

ss
th

ro
ug

h
cr

ac
ks

an
d

ga
ps

w
hi

ch
de

ve
lo

p
as

bu
ild

in
g

el
em

en
ts

m
ov

e
an

d
se

ttl
e

ov
er

tim
e.

A
lth

ou
gh

th
is

na
tu

ra
ls

et
tle

m
en

t
he

lp
s

to
pr

op
er

ly
ve

nt
ila

te
th

e
bu

ild
in

g,
of

te
n

th
es

e
dr

au
gh

ts
re

su
lt

in
he

at
lo

ss
w

hi
ch

ca
n

be
un

co
m

fo
rt

ab
le

fo
r

oc
cu

pi
er

s.

D
ra

ug
ht

s
ar

ou
nd

ol
de

r
w

in
do

w
s

an
d

do
or

s
(in

cl
ud

in
g

ke
y

ho
le

s
an

d
le

tte
r

bo
xe

s)
ca

n
be

a
so

ur
ce

of
ai

r
le

ak
ag

e,
an

d
d
ra
u
g
h
t-

p
ro
o
fi
n
g

is
on

e
of

th
e

be
st

w
ay

s
to

im
pr

ov
e

co
m

fo
rt

an
d

re
du

ce
en

er
gy

us
e,

w
ith

lit
tle

or
no

ch
an

ge
to

a
bu

ild
in

g�
s

ap
pe

ar
an

ce
.

D
ra

ug
ht

-p
ro

of
in

g
si

m
pl

y
m

ea
ns

bl
oc

ki
ng

up
an

y
un

w
an

te
d

ga
ps

w
hi

ch
le

t
co

ld
ai

r
in

an
d

w
ar

m
ai

r
ou

t.
K

ee
pi

ng
w

ar
m

ai
r

in
th

e
bu

ild
in

g
m

ea
ns

le
ss

en
er

gy
sp

en
t

he
at

in
g

it,
th

er
ef

or
e

sa
vi

ng
yo

u
m

on
ey

.
A

nu
m

be
r

of
dr

au
gh

t-
pr

oo
fin

g
m

ea
su

re
s

ar
e

w
id

el
y

av
ai

la
bl

e
fr

om
D

IY
st

or
es

an
d

ca
n

be
fit

te
d

re
la

tiv
el

y
ch

ea
pl

y.

D
ra

ug
ht

-p
ro

of
in

g
ca

n
al

so
im

pr
ov

e
no

is
e

in
su

la
tio

n,
re

du
ce

du
st

in
gr

es
s

an
d

m
ak

e
sa

sh
an

d
ca

se
w

in
do

w
s

ea
si

er
to

sl
id

e
up

an
d

do
w

n.
C

ur
ta

in
s

lin
ed

w
ith

a
la

ye
r

of
he

av
y

m
at

er
ia

lc
an

al
so

he
lp

re
du

ce
he

at
lo

ss
fr

om
a

ro
om

an
d

cu
td

ra
ug

ht
s.

T
ra

di
tio

na
l

tim
be

r
do

or
s

ar
e

ge
ne

ra
lly

ve
ry

ef
fe

ct
iv

e
in

re
ta

in
in

g
w

ar
m

ai
r

w
ith

in
a

bu
ild

in
g,

ho
w

ev
er

ad
di

tio
na

l
in

su
la

tio
n

m
at

er
ia

l
ca

n
be

ad
de

d
to

th
e

pa
ne

ls
on

th
e

in
do

or
si

de
of

th
e

do
or

to
en

ha
nc

e
th

e
ef

fe
ct

an
d

fig
ht

ad
di

tio
na

l
he

at
lo

ss
w

hi
ls

t
st

ill
m

ai
nt

ai
ni

ng
th

e
ch

ar
ac

te
r

of
th

e
do

or
fr

om
th

e
ou

ts
id

e.
D

ra
ug

ht
-p

ro
of

in
g

st
rip

s
ca

n
be

ea
si

ly
ap

pl
ie

d
to

in
te

rio
r

si
de

of
ex

te
rn

al
do

or

Page 405



T
ec

hn
ic

al
A

dv
ic

e
N

ot
e:

T
he

R
ep

ai
r

an
d

R
ep

la
ce

m
en

to
fW

in
do

w
s

an
d

D
oo

rs
12

W
he

re
in

st
al

lin
g

dr
au

gh
t-

pr
oo

fin
g

to
tr

ad
iti

on
al

w
in

do
w

s
is

di
ffi

cu
lt,

se
co

n
d
ar
y

g
la
zi
n
g

sy
st

em
s

ca
n

be
a

go
od

al
te

rn
at

iv
e.

S
ec

on
da

ry
gl

az
in

g
co

ns
is

ts
of

an
ad

di
tio

na
lp

an
e

of
gl

as
s

fit
te

d
on

th
e

in
si

de
of

th
e

ex
is

tin
g

w
in

do
w

fr
am

e
w

hi
ch

ca
n

be
re

m
ov

ed
du

rin
g

su
m

m
er

m
on

th
s

an
d

fo
r

cl
ea

ni
ng

.
P

ro
vi

di
ng

si
m

ila
r

in
su

la
tio

n
va

lu
es

to
do

ub
le

gl
az

in
g,

it
ca

n
al

so
re

du
ce

du
st

in
gr

es
s,

pr
ov

id
e

go
od

no
is

e
in

su
la

tio
n,

an
d

be
an

ex
tr

a
se

cu
rit

y
m

ea
su

re
.

S
ec

on
da

ry
gl

az
in

g
de

si
gn

sh
ou

ld
se

ek
to

be
as

di
sc

re
et

as
po

ss
ib

le
,

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
ly

in
Li

st
ed

B
ui

ld
in

gs
,w

ith
sm

al
lf

ra
m

es
co

nc
ea

le
d

fr
om

vi
ew

.
M

ee
tin

g
ra

ils
an

d
fr

am
es

sh
ou

ld
be

as
sm

al
l

in
se

ct
io

n
as

po
ss

ib
le

to
al

lo
w

th
em

to
be

di
sg

ui
se

d
be

hi
nd

ex
is

tin
g

ra
ils

.
If

se
co

nd
ar

y
gl

az
in

g
is

in
st

al
le

d,
th

e
or

ig
in

al
w

in
do

w
s

sh
ou

ld
no

t
be

dr
au

gh
t-

pr
oo

fe
d

to
he

lp
av

oi
d

co
nd

en
sa

tio
n.

F
or

m
or

e
in

fo
rm

at
io

n
ab

ou
t

im
pr

ov
in

g
en

er
gy

ef
fic

ie
nc

y
in

tr
ad

iti
on

al
pr

op
er

tie
s

a
nu

m
be

r
of

H
is

to
ric

S
co

tla
nd

�s
pu

bl
ic

at
io

ns
ar

e
in

cl
ud

ed
in

th
e

F
ur

th
er

R
ea

di
ng

Li
st

at
th

e
en

d
of

th
is

do
cu

m
en

t(
S

ec
tio

n
11

).

S
ec

ur
ity

T
o

im
pr

ov
e

th
e

se
cu

rit
y

of
tr

ad
iti

on
al

sa
sh

an
d

ca
se

w
in

do
w

s
ad

di
tio

na
l

sa
sh

lo
ck

s
ca

n
ea

si
ly

be
fit

te
d

to
th

e
m

ee
tin

g
ra

ils
to

im
pr

ov
e

th
e

se
cu

rit
y

of
th

e
w

in
do

w
w

he
n

cl
os

ed
.

T
im

be
r

bl
oc

ks
an

d
/

or
sa

sh
st

op
s

ca
n

al
so

be
fit

te
d

to
re

st
ric

t
th

e
si

ze
of

op
en

in
gs

.

A
dd

iti
on

al
se

cu
rit

y
m

ea
su

re
s

on
do

or
s

ca
n

al
so

be
ea

si
ly

in
co

rp
or

at
ed

w
ith

ou
t

af
fe

ct
in

g
th

e
ch

ar
ac

te
r

of
a

do
or

,
fo

r
ex

am
pl

e
ex

tr
a

m
or

tic
e

lo
ck

s,
rim

lo
ck

s
or

bo
lts

.

S
ec

on
da

ry
gl

az
in

g
sh

ou
ld

se
ek

to
be

as
di

sc
re

et
as

po
ss

ib
le

Page 406



T
ec

hn
ic

al
A

dv
ic

e
N

ot
e:

T
he

R
ep

ai
r

an
d

R
ep

la
ce

m
en

to
fW

in
do

w
s

an
d

D
oo

rs
13

6.
3

R
ep

la
ci
n
g
W
in
d
o
w
s
an

d
D
o
o
rs

T
he

m
os

t
ap

pr
op

ria
te

w
in

do
w

s
an

d
do

or
s

fo
r

a
pr

op
er

ty
ar

e
lik

el
y

to
be

th
os

e
w

hi
ch

w
er

e
or

ig
in

al
ly

de
si

gn
ed

fo
r

it.
In

st
an

ce
s

w
ill

ho
w

ev
er

ex
is

t
w

he
re

or
ig

in
al

fe
at

ur
es

w
ill

ha
ve

de
te

rio
ra

te
d

to
su

ch
a

st
at

e
th

at
re

pl
ac

em
en

t
is

th
e

on
ly

vi
ab

le
op

tio
n.

C
om

pl
et

e
re

pl
ac

em
en

t
of

tr
ad

iti
on

al
w

in
do

w
s

an
d

do
or

s
sh

ou
ld

ho
w

ev
er

on
ly

be
co

nt
em

pl
at

ed
w

he
re

th
e

fe
at

ur
es

to
be

re
pl

ac
ed

ha
ve

de
te

rio
ra

te
d

be
yo

nd
ec

on
om

ic
re

pa
ir,

i.e
.i

tw
ou

ld
be

un
vi

ab
le

to
re

pa
ir

an
d

re
pl

ac
em

en
ti

s
th

e
on

ly
op

tio
n

re
m

ai
ni

ng
.

T
he

fo
llo

w
in

g
pr

in
ci

pl
es

ar
e

es
pe

ci
al

ly
re

le
va

nt
w

he
re

P
la

nn
in

g
P

er
m

is
si

on
or

Li
st

ed
B

ui
ld

in
g

C
on

se
nt

is
re

qu
ire

d,
bu

ts
ho

ul
d

al
so

be
co

ns
id

er
ed

as
�b

es
tp

ra
ct

ic
e�

fo
r

al
lp

ro
pe

rt
ie

s
th

ro
ug

ho
ut

th
e

C
ity

,e
ve

n
w

he
n

co
ns

en
ti

s
no

tr
eq

ui
re

d.

W
in

do
w

s

W
he

re
th

er
e

is
no

al
te

rn
at

iv
e

to
re

pl
ac

em
en

t,
ne

w
w

in
do

w
s

sh
ou

ld
be

se
ns

iti
ve

ly
re

pl
ac

ed
in

an
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
lly

se
ns

iti
ve

w
ay

w
hi

ch
is

in
ke

ep
in

g
w

ith
th

e
ch

ar
ac

te
r

of
th

e
or

ig
in

al
bu

ild
in

g
an

d
th

e
qu

al
ity

of
its

de
si

gn
.

T
he

or
ig

in
al

pr
op

or
tio

ns
of

w
in

do
w

op
en

in
gs

sh
ou

ld
be

re
ta

in
ed

to
en

su
re

th
e

ar
ch

ite
ct

ur
al

in
te

gr
ity

of
th

e
bu

ild
in

g
is

no
t

co
m

pr
om

is
ed

.
W

he
re

an
y

or
ig

in
al

gl
az

in
g

su
rv

iv
es

,
ev

er
y

ef
fo

rt
sh

ou
ld

be
m

ad
e

to
re

ta
in

or
to

sa
lv

ag
e

as
m

uc
h

as
po

ss
ib

le
fo

r
re

-u
se

.

T
he

re
la

tiv
e

pr
op

or
tio

ns
of

th
e

up
pe

r
an

d
lo

w
er

sa
sh

es
of

ne
w

w
in

do
w

s
in

Li
st

ed
B

ui
ld

in
gs

m
us

tb
e

th
e

sa
m

e
as

in
th

e
or

ig
in

al
w

in
do

w
s,

as
sh

ou
ld

th
e

si
ze

of
tim

be
r

se
ct

io
ns

.
R

ep
la

ce
m

en
t

w
in

do
w

s
sh

ou
ld

be
fit

te
d

in
th

e
sa

m
e

pl
an

e,
be

m
ad

e
up

fr
om

tim
be

r
se

ct
io

ns
of

th
e

sa
m

e
pr

of
ile

an
d

di
m

en
si

on
s,

an
d

ha
ve

th
e

m
ee

tin
g

ra
ils

in
th

e
sa

m
e

po
si

tio
n.

G
en

er
al

ly
,

w
he

n
th

e
w

in
do

w
is

fu
lly

cl
os

ed
,t

he
vi

si
bl

e
pa

rt
of

th
e

sa
sh

st
ile

s,
to

p
ra

il
an

d
m

ee
tin

g
ra

ils
sh

ou
ld

be
of

a
si

m
ila

r
w

id
th

/
de

pt
h.

W
he

re
th

er
e

is
no

ex
is

tin
g

or
ig

in
al

m
od

el
on

w
hi

ch
to

ba
se

a
re

pl
ic

a,
bo

tto
m

ra
ils

sh
ou

ld
be

at
le

as
t7

5m
m

de
ep

an
d

25
m

m
de

ep
er

th
an

th
e

m
ee

tin
g

ra
ils

,
on

el
ev

at
io

n.
N

o
m

or
e

th
an

20
-

25
m

m
of

th
e

sa
sh

bo
x

sh
ou

ld
be

vi
si

bl
e

in
th

e
w

in
do

w
op

en
in

g,
th

e
re

m
ai

nd
er

be
in

g
co

nc
ea

le
d

be
hi

nd
th

e
m

as
on

ry
w

in
do

w
ch

ec
k.

S
as

h
&

ca
se

w
in

do
w

ill
us

tr
at

io
n

Page 407



T
ec

hn
ic

al
A

dv
ic

e
N

ot
e:

T
he

R
ep

ai
r

an
d

R
ep

la
ce

m
en

to
fW

in
do

w
s

an
d

D
oo

rs
14

F
ac

to
ry

m
ad

e
st

an
da

rd
w

in
do

w
s,

w
he

th
er

in
tim

be
r,

al
um

in
iu

m
,

ga
lv

an
is

ed
st

ee
l,

pl
as

tic
(u

P
V

C
)

or
a

co
m

po
si

te
ar

e
al

m
os

t
al

w
ay

s
da

m
ag

in
g

to
th

e
ch

ar
ac

te
r

an
d

ap
pe

ar
an

ce
of

hi
st

or
ic

bu
ild

in
gs

an
d

w
ill

no
t

be
ap

pr
op

ria
te

fo
r

Li
st

ed
B

ui
ld

in
gs

.
In

Li
st

ed
B

ui
ld

in
gs

jo
in

er
-m

ad
e

tim
be

r
re

pl
ac

em
en

ts
w

ill
ge

ne
ra

lly
be

th
e

on
ly

ty
pe

of
re

pl
ac

em
en

tw
in

do
w

w
hi

ch
w

ill
be

ac
ce

pt
ed

.

V
en

til
at

or
s

cu
t

th
ro

ug
h

th
e

gl
as

s
or

vi
si

bl
e

on
th

e
w

in
do

w
fr

am
es

w
ill

no
t

be
co

ns
id

er
ed

ac
ce

pt
ab

le
on

Li
st

ed
B

ui
ld

in
gs

or
on

pu
bl

ic
el

ev
at

io
ns

in
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n

A
re

as
.

V
en

til
at

or
s,

w
he

re
re

qu
ire

d,
sh

ou
ld

be
lo

ca
te

d
un

ob
tr

us
iv

el
y

in
th

e
m

ee
tin

g
ra

il.
W

he
re

tr
ic

kl
e

ve
nt

ila
tio

n
is

re
qu

ire
d

ot
he

r
m

or
e

di
sc

re
et

m
ea

ns
of

ac
hi

ev
in

g
th

is
sh

ou
ld

al
w

ay
s

be
co

ns
id

er
ed

.
H

is
to

ric
S

co
tla

nd
�s

pu
bl

ic
at

io
n

�S
as

h
&

C
as

e
W

in
do

w
s:

A
G

ui
de

fo
r

H
om

eo
w

ne
rs

�
pr

ov
id

es
fu

rt
he

r
gu

id
an

ce
on

ve
nt

ila
tio

n.

C
on

se
nt

fo
r

re
pl

ac
em

en
t

w
in

do
w

s
on

Li
st

ed
B

ui
ld

in
gs

or
pu

bl
ic

el
ev

at
io

ns
in

a
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n

A
re

a
w

hi
ch

re
pr

od
uc

e
th

e
as

tr
ag

al
pa

tte
rn

bu
t

op
en

in
a

di
ffe

re
nt

m
an

ne
r

w
ill

al
w

ay
s

be
re

fu
se

d,
as

w
ill

co
ns

en
t

fo
r

th
os

e
w

he
re

th
e

as
tr

ag
al

s
ar

e
m

er
el

y
ap

pl
ie

d
to

th
e

su
rf

ac
e

of
,

or
ar

e
sa

nd
w

ic
he

d
be

tw
ee

n,
th

e
pa

ne
s

of
do

ub
le

gl
az

in
g.

W
he

re
as

tr
ag

al
s

ar
e

re
qu

ire
d,

th
ey

m
us

t
be

ke
pt

sl
en

de
r

to
m

at
ch

th
e

th
ic

kn
es

s
of

th
e

or
ig

in
al

as
tr

ag
al

s,
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

ly
in

m
ul

tip
le

pa
ne

sa
sh

es
.

W
he

re
gl

az
in

g
be

ad
s

ar
e

re
qu

ire
d

th
ey

sh
ou

ld
be

w
ed

ge
sh

ap
ed

to
m

at
ch

a
pu

tty
fil

le
t,

an
d

ta
pe

r
fr

om
10

m
m

at
th

e
gl

as
s

to
le

ss
th

an
2m

m
at

th
e

ou
ts

id
e.

T
he

ed
ge

of
th

e
be

ad
m

us
t

be
flu

sh
w

ith
,

or
ke

pt
sl

ig
ht

ly
ba

ck
fr

om
,

th
e

fa
ce

of
th

e
sa

sh
.

It
m

us
t

ne
ve

r
pr

oj
ec

to
ut

fr
om

th
e

fa
ce

of
th

e
sa

sh
,o

r
an

un
ac

ce
pt

ab
le

sh
ad

ow
lin

e
w

ill
be

cr
ea

te
d

ar
ou

nd
ea

ch
pa

ne
of

gl
as

s.

T
he

di
m

en
si

on
s

of
re

pl
ac

em
en

tw
in

do
w

as
tr

ag
al

s
sh

ou
ld

us
e

or
ig

in
al

sa
sh

w
in

do
w

s
as

th
e

m
od

el
.

T
yp

ic
al

ly
as

tr
ag

al
s

m
ay

on
ly

be
17

-1
9m

m
w

id
e.

In
Li

st
ed

B
ui

ld
in

gs
,w

he
re

th
e

in
te

rio
r

of
th

e
bu

ild
in

g
ca

n
of

te
n

be
as

im
po

rt
an

ta
s

th
e

ex
te

rio
r,

th
e

in
te

rn
al

pr
of

ile
of

th
e

as
tr

ag
al

s
m

us
t

no
t

be
ov

er
-s

im
pl

ifi
ed

,
bu

t
sh

ou
ld

re
pr

od
uc

e
tr

ad
iti

on
al

m
ou

ld
in

g
ap

pr
op

ria
te

to
th

e
pe

rio
d

an
d

de
ta

il
of

th
e

bu
ild

in
g.

A
st

ra
ga

ls
m

us
tc

ar
ry

th
ro

ug
h

th
e

sa
sh

to
co

m
pl

et
el

y
se

pa
ra

te
ea

ch
pa

ne
of

gl
as

s.D
is

cr
ee

tm
ea

ns
of

ac
hi

ev
in

g
ve

nt
ila

tio
n

w
ill

be
re

qu
ire

d
fo

r
Li

st
ed

B
ui

ld
in

gs
an

d
on

pu
bl

ic
el

ev
at

io
ns

in
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n

A
re

as

Page 408



T
ec

hn
ic

al
A

dv
ic

e
N

ot
e:

T
he

R
ep

ai
r

an
d

R
ep

la
ce

m
en

to
fW

in
do

w
s

an
d

D
oo

rs
15

G
la

zi
ng

in
sa

sh
w

in
do

w
s

on
Li

st
ed

B
ui

ld
in

gs
sh

ou
ld

pr
ef

er
ab

ly
be

re
ta

in
ed

in
po

si
tio

n
w

ith
tr

ad
iti

on
al

pu
tty

or
m

od
er

n
bu

ty
l

ba
se

d
pu

tty
,

w
hi

ch
is

al
w

ay
s

pr
ef

er
re

d
to

tim
be

r
be

ad
s.

In
bo

th
Li

st
ed

B
ui

ld
in

gs
an

d
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n

A
re

as
th

er
e

w
ill

be
a

st
ro

ng
pr

es
um

pt
io

n
in

fa
vo

ur
of

re
ta

in
in

g
st

ai
ne

d
or

de
co

ra
tiv

e
le

ad
ed

gl
as

s
an

d
et

ch
ed

gl
as

s
in

re
pl

ac
em

en
t

pr
op

os
al

s.
P

ro
po

sa
ls

to
us

e
w

ire
d

gl
as

s,
ob

sc
ur

ed
gl

as
s,

lo
uv

er
ed

gl
as

s
or

ex
tr

ac
tf

an
s

in
w

in
do

w
s

on
Li

st
ed

B
ui

ld
in

gs
or

on
pu

bl
ic

el
ev

at
io

ns
in

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n
A

re
as

w
ill

no
tg

en
er

al
ly

be
co

ns
id

er
ed

ac
ce

pt
ab

le
.

O
n

tr
ad

iti
on

al
bu

ild
in

gs
in

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n
A

re
as

,
m

od
er

n
w

in
do

w
de

si
gn

s
w

ill
ge

ne
ra

lly
be

in
ap

pr
op

ria
te

on
el

ev
at

io
ns

of
th

e
bu

ild
in

g
w

hi
ch

ar
e

vi
si

bl
e

fr
om

pu
bl

ic
ar

ea
s.

S
as

h
an

d
ca

se
�lo

ok
al

ik
e�

w
in

do
w

s,
w

hi
ch

cl
os

el
y

m
at

ch
th

e
de

ta
ili

ng
an

d
ap

pe
ar

an
ce

of
a

tr
ad

iti
on

al
sa

sh
an

d
ca

se
w

in
do

w
,

bu
t

m
ay

em
pl

oy
a

di
ffe

re
nt

op
en

in
g

m
ec

ha
ni

sm
,m

ay
be

ac
ce

pt
ab

le
in

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n
A

re
as

.

�L
oo

ka
lik

e�
w

in
do

w
s

w
ill

no
rm

al
ly

be
fo

rm
ed

in
tim

be
r

an
d

w
ill

ha
ve

up
pe

r
an

d
lo

w
er

sa
sh

es
of

th
e

sa
m

e
si

ze
as

th
os

e
in

th
e

w
in

do
w

th
ey

ar
e

to
re

pl
ac

e.
It

is
of

vi
ta

li
m

po
rt

an
ce

th
at

th
e

up
pe

r
sa

sh
is

st
ep

pe
d

ou
t

in
fr

on
to

ft
he

lo
w

er
sa

sh
in

pr
of

ile
,w

ith
th

e
m

ee
tin

g
ra

ils
fu

lly
ov

er
la

pp
in

g
as

se
en

in
el

ev
at

io
n,

su
ch

th
at

th
e

w
in

do
w

w
he

n
cl

os
ed

,
is

vi
rt

ua
lly

in
di

st
in

gu
is

ha
bl

e
fr

om
a

tr
ad

iti
on

al
sa

sh
an

d
ca

se
w

in
do

w
.

W
hi

te
uP

V
C

ve
rt

ic
al

sl
id

in
g

w
in

do
w

s
m

ay
be

ac
ce

pt
ab

le
as

'lo
ok

al
ik

e'
re

pl
ac

em
en

ts
fo

r
w

in
do

w
s

in
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n

A
re

as
pr

ov
id

ed
th

at
pr

op
os

al
s

w
ith

th
ro

ug
h

/e
m

be
dd

ed
as

tr
ag

al
s

co
m

pl
y

w
ith

or
ig

in
al

di
m

en
si

on
s.

N
o

pl
an

te
d

as
tr

ag
al

s
w

ill
be

ac
ce

pt
ed

on
el

ev
at

io
ns

in
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n

A
re

as
w

hi
ch

ar
e

vi
si

bl
e

fr
om

pu
bl

ic
ar

ea
s.

A
cc

ep
ta

bl
e

ty
pe

of
�lo

ok
al

ik
e�

in
a

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n
A

re
a

N
ot

ac
ce

pt
ab

le
as

a
�lo

ok
al

ik
e�

in
a

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n
A

re
a

Page 409



T
ec

hn
ic

al
A

dv
ic

e
N

ot
e:

T
he

R
ep

ai
r

an
d

R
ep

la
ce

m
en

to
fW

in
do

w
s

an
d

D
oo

rs
16

W
he

re
uP

V
C

�lo
ok

al
ik

e�
w

in
do

w
s

ar
e

to
be

us
ed

th
ey

sh
ou

ld
fu

lly
re

pl
ic

at
e

th
e

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
fe

at
ur

es
of

tim
be

r
sa

sh
an

d
ca

se
w

in
do

w
s.

S
uc

h
fe

at
ur

es
w

ou
ld

in
cl

ud
e:

a.
no

m
or

e
th

an
25

m
m

of
th

e
ou

te
r

w
in

do
w

fr
am

e
sh

ou
ld

be
vi

si
bl

e
at

th
e

to
p

an
d

si
de

s,
on

ce
th

e
w

in
do

w
ha

s
be

en
fit

te
d

in
to

th
e

m
as

on
ry

op
en

in
g.

b.
th

e
m

ee
tin

g
ra

ils
m

us
tf

ul
ly

ov
er

la
p.

c.
th

e
bo

tto
m

ra
il

of
th

e
lo

w
er

sa
sh

m
us

tb
e

at
le

as
t7

5m
m

hi
gh

.
d.

th
e

gl
as

s
m

us
tb

e
re

ce
ss

ed
fr

om
th

e
fr

on
tf

ac
e

of
th

e
sa

sh
by

at
le

as
t1

0m
m

..

T
he

C
ou

nc
il

m
ay

ch
oo

se
to

be
m

or
e

fle
xi

bl
e

w
he

n
co

ns
id

er
in

g
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
fo

r
re

pl
ac

em
en

t
w

in
do

w
s

an
d

do
or

s
in

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n
A

re
as

w
hi

ch
ar

e
no

t
vi

si
bl

e
fr

om
th

e
st

re
et

or
ar

e
on

ly
vi

si
bl

e
fr

om
a

pr
iv

at
e

co
ur

t.

O
n

no
n-

tr
ad

iti
on

al
,

m
or

e
m

od
er

n,
bu

ild
in

gs
in

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n
A

re
as

a
br

oa
de

r
ra

ng
e

of
m

at
er

ia
ls

an
d

de
si

gn
s

m
ay

be
pe

rm
itt

ed
,

de
pe

nd
in

g
on

th
e

in
di

vi
du

al
bu

ild
in

g
an

d
su

rr
ou

nd
in

g
ar

ea
.

E
ls

ew
he

re
in

th
e

co
un

tr
y

m
os

t
m

id
/la

te
V

ic
to

ria
n

w
in

do
w

s
ha

ve
�h

or
ns

�h
ow

ev
er

th
is

is
no

t
th

e
ca

se
in

A
be

rd
ee

n.
A

lo
ng

w
ith

or
ig

in
al

G
eo

rg
ia

n
an

d
ea

rly
V

ic
to

ria
n

w
in

do
w

s,
m

os
t

ni
ne

te
en

th
ce

nt
ur

y
w

in
do

w
s

in
A

be
rd

ee
n

do
no

t
ha

ve
ho

rn
s,

an
d

ne
ith

er
sh

ou
ld

th
e

w
in

do
w

s
w

hi
ch

re
pl

ac
e

th
em

.
T

he
us

e
of

ho
rn

s
sh

ou
ld

on
ly

be
co

nt
em

pl
at

ed
on

ly
w

he
re

th
er

e
is

cl
ea

r
ev

id
en

ce
th

at
th

ey
ex

is
te

d
on

th
e

or
ig

in
al

w
in

do
w

s,
an

d
in

su
ch

in
st

an
ce

s
th

e
de

si
gn

of
th

e
ho

rn
s

sh
ou

ld
m

at
ch

th
e

or
ig

in
al

.

E
le

va
tio

n
of

sa
sh

&
ca

se
�lo

ok
al

ik
e�

w
in

do
w

s
w

ith
no

�h
or

ns
�

Page 410



T
ec

hn
ic

al
A

dv
ic

e
N

ot
e:

T
he

R
ep

ai
r

an
d

R
ep

la
ce

m
en

to
fW

in
do

w
s

an
d

D
oo

rs
17

D
oo

rs

W
he

re
th

er
e

is
no

al
te

rn
at

iv
e

to
th

e
re

pl
ac

em
en

t
of

an
or

ig
in

al
do

or
,

ne
w

el
em

en
ts

m
us

t
m

at
ch

th
e

or
ig

in
al

as
fa

r
as

po
ss

ib
le

w
he

n
th

e
pr

op
er

ty
is

a
Li

st
ed

B
ui

ld
in

g
or

is
vi

si
bl

e
fr

om
a

pu
bl

ic
ar

ea
w

ith
in

a
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n

A
re

a.
T

he
ne

w
do

or
sh

ou
ld

m
at

ch
th

e
or

ig
in

al
in

te
rm

s
of

pr
op

or
tio

n,
pr

of
ile

an
d

m
at

er
ia

l,
an

d
re

us
e

hi
st

or
ic

gl
as

s
w

he
re

th
is

co
nt

rib
ut

es
to

a
bu

ild
in

g�
s

ch
ar

ac
te

r.
If

th
e

pr
op

er
ty

fo
rm

s
pa

rt
of

a
gr

ou
p

of
un

ifo
rm

de
si

gn
,

th
en

an
y

re
pl

ac
em

en
t

sh
ou

ld
m

ak
e

re
fe

re
nc

e
to

th
os

e
of

th
e

ne
ig

hb
ou

rin
g

pr
op

er
tie

s
in

st
yl

e,
de

si
gn

an
d

si
ze

.
Jo

in
er

-m
ad

e
re

pl
ic

as
w

ill
be

st
ro

ng
ly

en
co

ur
ag

ed
in

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n
A

re
as

an
d

w
ill

be
a

re
qu

ire
m

en
tf

or
Li

st
ed

B
ui

ld
in

gs
.

C
om

po
si

te
do

or
so

lu
tio

ns
m

ay
be

ap
pr

op
ria

te
on

pu
bl

ic
el

ev
at

io
ns

in
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n

A
re

as
de

pe
nd

in
g

on
th

e
sp

ec
ifi

ed
de

si
gn

pr
op

os
ed

.
C

om
po

si
te

,
al

um
in

iu
m

an
d

uP
V

C
so

lu
tio

ns
w

ill
ne

ve
r

be
ac

ce
pt

ab
le

on
Li

st
ed

B
ui

ld
in

gs
.

O
nl

y
on

no
n-

pu
bl

ic
el

ev
at

io
ns

in
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n

A
re

as
w

ill
uP

V
C

,
al

um
in

iu
m

or
do

or
s

fr
om

D
IY

ch
ai

n
st

or
es

be
ac

ce
pt

ab
le

.
D

oo
rs

fr
om

D
IY

ch
ai

n
st

or
es

an
d

flu
sh

pl
yw

oo
d

do
or

s
w

ith
m

ou
ld

in
gs

ap
pl

ie
d

to
re

se
m

bl
e

pa
ne

lli
ng

w
ill

no
t

be
ac

ce
pt

ab
le

su
bs

tit
ut

es
on

Li
st

ed
B

ui
ld

in
gs

or
on

pu
bl

ic
el

ev
at

io
ns

in
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n

A
re

as
.

R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t
do

or
s

w
ith

a
st

ai
ne

d
or

va
rn

is
he

d
fin

is
h,

an
d

th
os

e
w

hi
ch

in
tr

od
uc

e
as

ym
m

et
ric

al
el

em
en

ts
,

in
te

gr
al

fa
nl

ig
ht

s,
in

ap
pr

op
ria

te
gl

az
in

g
or

pa
ne

lle
d

pa
tte

rn
s,

w
ill

al
so

be
re

je
ct

ed
.

T
he

or
ig

in
al

pr
op

or
tio

ns
of

do
or

w
ay

s
an

d
do

or
op

en
in

gs
on

st
re

et
fr

on
ta

ge
s

m
us

t
al

w
ay

s
be

re
ta

in
ed

,
an

d
pr

op
os

al
s

to
re

ce
ss

a
do

or
ei

th
er

le
ss

or
m

or
e

de
ep

ly
w

ith
in

th
e

do
or

op
en

in
g

w
ill

no
t

be
su

pp
or

te
d.

O
rig

in
al

do
or

iro
nm

on
ge

ry
su

ch
as

le
tte

rb
ox

es
,

do
or

kn
oc

ke
rs

an
d

ha
nd

le
s

sh
ou

ld
be

re
ta

in
ed

an
d

re
us

ed
if

th
e

tim
be

r
do

or
is

be
in

g
re

pl
ac

ed
.

W
he

re
th

is
do

es
no

t
su

rv
iv

e,
th

e
re

pl
ac

em
en

t
of

m
od

er
n

fit
tin

gs
w

ith
ite

m
s

ap
pr

op
ria

te
to

th
e

pe
rio

d
of

th
e

bu
ild

in
g

w
ill

be
en

co
ur

ag
ed

.

W
he

re
th

e
op

po
rt

un
ity

ex
is

ts
,m

od
er

n
do

or
s

w
hi

ch
ar

e
ba

dl
y

pr
op

or
tio

ne
d,

or
of

th
e

w
ro

ng
ty

pe
or

m
at

er
ia

l,
sh

ou
ld

be
re

pl
ac

ed
w

ith
a

m
or

e
ap

pr
op

ria
te

so
lu

tio
n.

H
is

to
ric

gl
as

s
sh

ou
ld

be
re

us
ed

w
he

re
th

is
co

nt
rib

ut
es

to
th

e
ch

ar
ac

te
r

of
a

bu
ild

in
g

Page 411



T
ec

hn
ic

al
A

dv
ic

e
N

ot
e:

T
he

R
ep

ai
r

an
d

R
ep

la
ce

m
en

to
fW

in
do

w
s

an
d

D
oo

rs
18

C
ol

ou
r

P
al

et
te

A
s

w
hi

te
is

th
e

co
lo

ur
of

m
os

t
ex

is
tin

g
sa

sh
an

d
ca

se
w

in
do

w
s

in
A

be
rd

ee
n,

th
is

is
th

e
co

lo
ur

w
hi

ch
ne

w
w

in
do

w
s

w
ill

ge
ne

ra
lly

re
qu

ire
to

be
in

or
de

r
to

en
co

ur
ag

e
un

ifo
rm

ity
.

T
hi

s
w

ill
be

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
ly

im
po

rt
an

t
in

te
ne

m
en

ts
w

he
re

th
e

us
e

of
a

un
ifo

rm
w

in
do

w
co

lo
ur

he
lp

s
gi

ve
th

e
bu

ild
in

g
an

ar
ch

ite
ct

ur
al

co
he

si
on

it
m

ay
ot

he
rw

is
e

la
ck

.

O
th

er
co

lo
ur

s
w

ill
on

ly
be

ag
re

ed
to

in
ex

ce
pt

io
na

lc
irc

um
st

an
ce

s.

D
oo

rs
sh

ou
ld

be
pa

in
te

d
in

an
ap

pr
op

ria
te

da
rk

an
d

m
ut

ed
co

lo
ur

,
an

d
br

ig
ht

gl
os

se
s

an
d

w
hi

te
pa

in
ta

vo
id

ed
.

R
ep

la
ce

m
en

tw
in

do
w

s
w

ill
ge

ne
ra

lly
re

qu
ire

to
be

w
hi

te

Page 412



T
ec

hn
ic

al
A

dv
ic

e
N

ot
e:

T
he

R
ep

ai
r

an
d

R
ep

la
ce

m
en

to
fW

in
do

w
s

an
d

D
oo

rs
19

7
In
se
rt
in
g
N
ew

an
d
B
lo
ck
in
g
U
p
O
ld

A
pp

lic
at

io
ns

to
in

se
rt

ad
di

tio
na

l
w

in
do

w
s

in
Li

st
ed

B
ui

ld
in

gs
or

in
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n

A
re

as
m

ay
be

pe
rm

itt
ed

w
he

re
th

is
do

es
no

t
de

tr
ac

t
fr

om
th

e
ch

ar
ac

te
r

of
th

e
bu

ild
in

g
or

ar
ea

.

Lo
ca

tio
n

an
d

de
si

gn
ar

e
th

e
ke

y
co

ns
id

er
at

io
ns

fo
r

ne
w

w
in

do
w

op
en

in
gs

w
hi

ch
sh

ou
ld

be
as

se
ss

ed
in

th
e

co
nt

ex
t

of
th

e
re

st
of

th
e

bu
ild

in
g

an
d

su
rr

ou
nd

in
g

pr
op

er
tie

s.
T

he
bl

oc
ki

ng
up

,
in

w
ho

le
or

in
pa

rt
,

of
or

ig
in

al
op

en
in

gs
sh

ou
ld

on
ly

oc
cu

r
w

he
re

th
e

w
in

do
w

m
ak

es
lit

tle
co

nt
rib

ut
io

n
to

th
e

bu
ild

in
g

or
ar

ea
.

In
pr

in
ci

pl
e

th
e

bl
oc

ki
ng

up
sh

ou
ld

be
do

ne
in

m
at

er
ia

ls
th

at
re

la
te

to
th

e
su

rr
ou

nd
in

g
bu

ild
in

g
an

d
ev

id
en

ce
of

th
e

op
en

in
g,

su
ch

as
w

in
do

w
su

rr
ou

nd
s,

be
re

ta
in

ed
.

P
ro

po
sa

ls
to

in
cr

ea
se

th
e

gl
az

in
g

ar
ea

by
re

m
ov

in
g

st
on

e
or

tim
be

r
m

ul
lio

ns
w

hi
ch

fo
rm

th
e

di
vi

si
on

s
in

bi
pa

rt
ite

or
tr

ip
ar

tit
e

w
in

do
w

s
w

ill
no

t
be

su
pp

or
te

d
on

Li
st

ed
B

ui
ld

in
gs

or
in

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n
A

re
as

.

T
he

re
-o

pe
ni

ng
of

bl
oc

ke
d

w
in

do
w

s
w

ill
be

en
co

ur
ag

ed
on

ly
w

he
re

th
is

w
ill

re
in

st
at

e
th

e
in

te
nd

ed
el

ev
at

io
na

lt
re

at
m

en
t

of
th

e
bu

ild
in

g.
It

w
ill

no
t

be
pe

rm
itt

ed
in

ca
se

s
w

he
re

bl
oc

ki
ng

up
ha

s
ta

ke
n

pl
ac

e
du

rin
g

la
te

r
al

te
ra

tio
ns

to
th

e
st

ru
ct

ur
e

an
d

w
he

re
th

e
ea

rli
er

w
in

do
w

op
en

in
gs

co
ns

eq
ue

nt
ly

no
lo

ng
er

re
la

te
to

pr
es

en
t

el
ev

at
io

na
lf

or
m

.

D
oo

rs
in

st
re

et
fr

on
ta

ge
s,

ev
en

th
ou

gh
no

lo
ng

er
us

ed
,s

ho
ul

d
al

w
ay

s
be

re
ta

in
ed

E
xa

m
pl

e
of

bl
oc

ke
d

up
w

in
do

w
s

in
F

er
ry

hi
ll

Page 413



T
ec

hn
ic

al
A

dv
ic

e
N

ot
e:

T
he

R
ep

ai
r

an
d

R
ep

la
ce

m
en

to
fW

in
do

w
s

an
d

D
oo

rs
20

8.
S
u
m
m
ar
y
C
h
ar
ts

-
W
h
at

C
o
u
ld

B
e
A
cc
ep

ta
b
le

W
h
er
e?

T
he

fo
llo

w
in

g
ch

ar
ts

ha
ve

be
en

pr
od

uc
ed

fo
r

ge
ne

ra
l

gu
id

an
ce

pu
rp

os
es

on
ly

.
P

ro
po

sa
ls

w
ill

st
ill

re
qu

ire
to

de
m

on
st

ra
te

sa
tis

fa
ct

or
y

de
ta

ile
d

de
si

gn
s

an
d

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n
m

et
ho

ds
.

T
he

ch
ar

ts
sh

ou
ld

on
ly

be
re

ad
in

th
e

co
nt

ex
t

of
th

e
ad

vi
ce

pr
ov

id
ed

w
ith

in
th

e
re

st
of

th
is

T
A

N
.

A
ny

qu
er

ie
s

sh
ou

ld
be

di
re

ct
ed

to
th

e
C

ou
nc

il�
s

D
ev

el
op

m
en

tM
an

ag
em

en
tS

ec
tio

n.

W
in
d
o
w
s

L
is
te
d
B
u
ild

in
g
s

C
o
n
se
rv
at
io
n

A
re
as
:

P
u
b
lic

E
le
va
ti
o
n
s

C
o
n
se
rv
at
io
n
A
re
as

:
N
o
n
-P
u
b
lic

E
le
va
ti
o
n
s

Jo
in

er
m

ad
e

tim
be

r
sa

sh
an

d
ca

se
�

�
�

R
et

ai
ni

ng
hi

st
or

ic
or

or
ig

in
al

st
ai

ne
d

/
de

co
ra

tiv
e

le
ad

ed
gl

as
s

an
d

et
ch

ed
gl

as
s

�
�

�

uP
V

C
sa

sh
an

d
ca

se
�lo

ok
al

ik
es

�
X

�
�

T
hr

ou
gh

as
tr

ag
al

s
X

�
�

P
la

nt
ed

as
tr

ag
al

s
X

X
�

D
o
o
rs

an
d
D
o
o
rw

ay
s

L
is
te
d
B
u
ild

in
g
s

C
o
n
se
rv
at
io
n

A
re
as
:

P
u
b
lic

E
le
va
ti
o
n
s

C
o
n
se
rv
at
io
n
A
re
as

:
N
o
n
-P
u
b
lic

E
le
va
ti
o
n
s

Jo
in

er
m

ad
e

tim
be

r
pa

ne
lle

d
do

or
�

�
�

C
om

po
si

te
D

oo
r

X
�

�
uP

V
C

/a
lu

m
in

iu
m

/D
IY

ch
ai

n
st

or
e

do
or

X
X

�

F
lu

sh
(e

.g
.p

ly
w

oo
d)

do
or

s
w

ith
m

ou
ld

in
gs

ap
pl

ie
d

X
X

�

Page 414



T
ec

hn
ic

al
A

dv
ic

e
N

ot
e:

T
he

R
ep

ai
r

an
d

R
ep

la
ce

m
en

to
fW

in
do

w
s

an
d

D
oo

rs
21

E
xa
m
p
le
s
o
f
w
in
d
o
w
an

d
d
o
o
r
d
es
ig
n
s
to

av
o
id

o
n
L
is
te
d
B
u
ild

in
g
s
an

d
o
n

p
u
b
lic

el
ev
at
io
n
s
in

C
o
n
se
rv
at
io
n
A
re
as

Page 415



T
ec

hn
ic

al
A

dv
ic

e
N

ot
e:

T
he

R
ep

ai
r

an
d

R
ep

la
ce

m
en

to
fW

in
do

w
s

an
d

D
oo

rs
22

9.
W
h
at

T
o
D
o
N
ex
t

A
pp

lic
at

io
ns

fo
r

P
la

nn
in

g
P

er
m

is
si

on
an

d/
or

Li
st

ed
B

ui
ld

in
g

C
on

se
nt

ca
n

be
m

ad
e

on
lin

e
vi

a
th

e
S

co
tti

sh
G

ov
er

nm
en

t�s
e-

pl
an

ni
ng

w
eb

si
te

:
w

w
w

.e
pl

an
ni

ng
.s

co
tla

nd
.g

ov
.u

k

O
r

di
re

ct
to

A
be

rd
ee

n
C

ity
C

ou
nc

il
us

in
g

th
e

ap
pl

ic
at

io
n

fo
rm

s
av

ai
la

bl
e

on
ou

r
w

eb
si

te
:

w
w

w
.a

be
rd

ee
nc

ity
.g

ov
.u

k/
pl

an
ni

ng
_e

nv
iro

nm
en

t

F
or

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

fo
r

P
la

nn
in

g
P

er
m

is
si

on
an

ap
pl

ic
at

io
n

fe
e

w
ill

be
re

qu
ire

d.
T

he
re

is
no

ch
ar

ge
fo

r
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
fo

r
Li

st
ed

B
ui

ld
in

g
C

on
se

nt
,h

ow
ev

er
a

fe
e

m
ay

be
re

qu
es

te
d

to
ad

ve
rt

is
e

th
e

ap
pl

ic
at

io
n

in
th

e
lo

ca
lp

re
ss

.

F
ai

lu
re

to
ob

ta
in

ap
pr

op
ria

te
co

ns
en

ts
an

d
pe

rm
is

si
on

s
co

ul
d

re
su

lt
in

en
fo

rc
em

en
t

ac
tio

n
be

in
g

ta
ke

n
to

ha
ve

un
au

th
or

is
ed

w
in

do
w

s
or

do
or

s
re

pl
ac

ed
,w

hi
ch

m
ay

en
ta

il
co

ns
id

er
ab

le
co

st
s

fo
r

th
e

bu
ild

in
g

ow
ne

r.
U

na
ut

ho
ris

ed
w

in
do

w
s

an
d

ot
he

r
w

or
ks

ar
e

of
te

n
id

en
tif

ie
d

by
co

nv
ey

an
ci

ng
so

lic
ito

rs
an

d
ca

n
af

fe
ct

pr
op

er
ty

sa
le

s.

In
th

e
ca

se
of

a
Li

st
ed

B
ui

ld
in

g
un

ut
ho

ris
ed

w
or

k
fa

lls
un

de
r

cr
im

in
al

la
w

,
an

d
so

th
e

pe
rs

on
w

ho
ex

ec
ut

es
th

e
w

or
ks

,
or

ca
us

es
th

em
to

be
ex

ec
ut

ed
,i

s
lia

bl
e

to
pr

os
ec

ut
io

n
or

im
pr

is
on

m
en

ti
n

ad
di

tio
n

to
st

an
da

rd
en

fo
rc

em
en

tp
ro

ce
ed

in
gs

.

S
u
b
m
is
si
o
n
R
eq

u
ir
em

en
ts

T
w

o
(2

.n
o)

co
pi

es
of

th
e

fo
llo

w
in

g
sc

al
ed

dr
aw

in
gs

w
ill

be
re

qu
ire

d
fo

r
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
fo

r
P

la
nn

in
g

P
er

m
is

si
on

an
d

th
re

e
(3

.n
o)

fo
r

Li
st

ed
B

ui
ld

in
g

C
on

se
nt

in
ad

di
tio

n
to

th
e

re
le

va
nt

ap
pl

ic
at

io
n

fo
rm

s:

1.
A

n
O

S
P

la
n

w
hi

ch
cl

ea
rly

id
en

tif
ie

s
th

e
lo

ca
tio

n
of

th
e

si
te

2.
P

la
ns

an
d

de
ta

ile
d

el
ev

at
io

ns
of

bo
th

ex
is

tin
g

an
d

pr
op

os
ed

w
or

ks
.

3.
H

or
iz

on
ta

la
nd

se
ct

io
na

ld
ra

w
in

gs
w

ith
de

ta
ils

at
a

la
rg

er
ap

pr
op

ria
te

sc
al

e.
4.

D
et

ai
ls

of
pr

op
os

ed
m

at
er

ia
ls

an
d

st
yl

e
of

op
en

in
g.

5.
A

ny
ot

he
r

re
le

va
nt

te
ch

ni
ca

li
nf

or
m

at
io

n
an

d
ph

ot
og

ra
ph

s

Page 416



T
ec

hn
ic

al
A

dv
ic

e
N

ot
e:

T
he

R
ep

ai
r

an
d

R
ep

la
ce

m
en

to
fW

in
do

w
s

an
d

D
oo

rs
23

In
ad

di
tio

n,
fo

r
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
fo

r
th

e
re

pl
ac

em
en

t
of

w
in

do
w

s/
do

or
s

on
a

Li
st

ed
B

ui
ld

in
g

or
w

ith
in

a
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n

A
re

a,
th

e
fo

llo
w

in
g

w
ill

al
so

be
re

qu
ire

d:

6.
A

cl
ea

r
st

at
em

en
tw

hi
ch

se
ts

ou
ta

ju
st

ifi
ca

tio
n

fo
r

th
e

pr
op

os
al

s,
in

cl
ud

in
g

w
hy

th
e

w
or

ks
ar

e
de

si
ra

bl
e

or
ne

ce
ss

ar
y.

7.
D

et
ai

le
d

ju
st

ifi
ca

tio
n

(e
.g

.
a

pr
of

es
si

on
al

su
rv

ey
�

fo
r

m
or

e
in

fo
rm

at
io

n
re

fe
r

A
pp

en
di

x
1)

to
de

m
on

st
ra

te
to

th
e

sa
tis

fa
ct

io
n

of
th

e
C

ou
nc

il
th

at
th

e
w

in
do

w
s/

do
or

s
to

be
re

pl
ac

ed
ar

e
be

yo
nd

ec
on

om
ic

re
pa

ir.
W

ith
in

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n
A

re
as

th
is

w
ill

on
ly

be
re

qu
ire

d
fo

r
pr

op
os

al
s

af
fe

ct
in

g
fr

on
te

le
va

tio
ns

or
el

ev
at

io
ns

w
hi

ch
ar

e
vi

si
bl

e
fr

om
pu

bl
ic

ar
ea

s.
8.

D
ra

w
in

gs
w

ill
no

rm
al

ly
be

re
qu

ire
d

at
a

sc
al

e
of

1:
1

or
1:

2
an

d
sh

ou
ld

in
cl

ud
e

se
ct

io
ns

th
ro

ug
h

w
in

do
w

he
ad

,
m

ee
tin

g
ra

ils
,

bo
tto

m
ra

il
an

d
ci

ll,
w

in
do

w
ja

m
bs

an
d

as
tr

ag
al

s.
In

ad
di

tio
n,

an
el

ev
at

io
n

of
th

e
w

in
do

w
sh

ou
ld

be
pr

ov
id

ed
sh

ow
in

g
th

e
po

si
tio

n
of

th
e

m
ee

tin
g

ra
ils

an
d

th
e

ar
ra

ng
em

en
to

fa
ny

as
tr

ag
al

s.

S
o
u
rc
es

o
f
A
ss

is
ta
n
ce

If
yo

ur
pr

op
er

ty
is

a
Li

st
ed

B
ui

ld
in

g
or

si
tu

at
ed

w
ith

in
a

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n
A

re
a

th
en

yo
u

m
ay

w
is

h
to

in
ve

st
ig

at
e

w
he

th
er

an
y

so
ur

ce
s

of
fu

nd
in

g
as

si
st

an
ce

ex
is

t:

T
he

A
be

rd
ee

n
C

ity
H

er
ita

ge
T

ru
st

is
a

lim
ite

d
co

m
pa

ny
an

d
ch

ar
ity

th
at

op
er

at
es

w
ith

in
A

be
rd

ee
n

C
ity

.
T

he
T

ru
st

ha
s

its
ow

n
cr

ite
ria

fo
r

de
te

rm
in

in
g

in
w

ha
t

ci
rc

um
st

an
ce

s
it

m
ay

be
pr

ep
ar

ed
to

of
fe

r
as

si
st

an
ce

.
F

ur
th

er
de

ta
ils

ca
n

be
fo

un
d

on
its

w
eb

si
te

w
w

w
.a

be
rd

ee
nh

er
ita

ge
.o

rg
.u

k
or

by
ca

lli
ng

01
22

4
52

27
55

H
is

to
ric

S
co

tla
nd

al
so

ad
m

in
is

te
rs

a
pr

og
ra

m
m

e
of

bu
ild

in
g

re
pa

ir
gr

an
ts

th
ro

ug
ho

ut
S

co
tla

nd
fo

r
Li

st
ed

B
ui

ld
in

gs
of

ou
ts

ta
nd

in
g

ar
ch

ite
ct

ur
al

or
hi

st
or

ic
im

po
rt

an
ce

,
or

ke
y

bu
ild

in
gs

w
ith

in
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n

A
re

as
.

M
or

e
in

fo
rm

at
io

n
is

av
ai

la
bl

e
at

w
w

w
.h

is
to

ric
-

sc
ot

la
nd

.g
ov

.u
k/

gr
an

ts

Page 417



T
ec

hn
ic

al
A

dv
ic

e
N

ot
e:

T
he

R
ep

ai
r

an
d

R
ep

la
ce

m
en

to
fW

in
do

w
s

an
d

D
oo

rs
24

10
.
G
lo
ss
ar
y

A
rt
ic
le

4
D
ir
ec

ti
o
n
:

S
om

e
ty

pe
s

of
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t
do

no
t

ne
ed

pl
an

ni
ng

pe
rm

is
si

on
by

vi
rt

ue
of

pe
rm

itt
ed

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t

rig
ht

s.
A

n
A

rt
ic

le
4

D
ire

ct
io

n
is

an
or

de
r

m
ad

e
by

S
co

tti
sh

M
in

is
te

rs
w

hi
ch

su
sp

en
ds

(f
or

sp
ec

ifi
ed

ty
pe

s
of

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t)

th
e

ge
ne

ra
l

pe
rm

is
si

on
gr

an
te

d
un

de
r

th
e

T
ow

n
an

d
C

ou
nt

ry
(G

en
er

al
P

er
m

itt
ed

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t)
(S

co
tla

nd
)

O
rd

er
19

92
(a

s
am

en
de

d)
,

th
er

eb
y

re
m

ov
in

g
pe

rm
itt

ed
de

ve
lo

pm
en

tr
ig

ht
s.

A
rt

ic
le

4
D

ire
ct

io
ns

ar
e

cu
rr

en
tly

in
pl

ac
e

in
B

ur
nb

an
ks

an
d

pa
rt

s
of

K
in

gs
w

el
ls

.

A
st
ra
g
al
:

A
gl

az
in

g
ba

r
se

pa
ra

tin
g

pa
ne

s
of

gl
as

s
w

ith
in

a
w

in
do

w
.

C
o
n
se

rv
at
io
n
A
re
a:

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n
A

re
as

ar
e

ar
ea

s
of

sp
ec

ia
l

ar
ch

ite
ct

ur
al

or
hi

st
or

ic
al

in
te

re
st

,
th

e
ch

ar
ac

te
r

or
ap

pe
ar

an
ce

of
w

hi
ch

it
is

de
si

ra
bl

e
to

pr
es

er
ve

or
en

ha
nc

e.
S

uc
h

ar
ea

s
ar

e
de

si
gn

at
ed

by
th

e
lo

ca
lp

la
nn

in
g

au
th

or
ity

.D
et

ai
ls

of
th

e
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n

A
re

as
in

A
be

rd
ee

n
ca

n
be

fo
un

d
vi

a
w

w
w

.a
be

rd
ee

nc
ity

.g
ov

.u
k/

m
as

te
rp

la
nn

in
g.

D
w
el
lin

g
h
o
u
se
:

F
or

th
e

pu
rp

os
es

of
th

is
gu

id
an

ce
,

th
e

te
rm

�d
w

el
lin

gh
ou

se
�

do
es

no
t
in

cl
ud

e
a

bu
ild

in
g

co
nt

ai
ni

ng
on

e
or

m
or

e
fla

ts
,o

r
a

fla
tc

on
ta

in
ed

w
ith

in
su

ch
a

bu
ild

in
g

F
en

es
tr
at
io
n
:

T
he

ar
ra

ng
em

en
t/

pa
tte

rn
of

th
e

w
in

do
w

s
in

a
bu

ild
in

g.

F
la
t:

A
se

pa
ra

te
an

d
se

lf
co

nt
ai

ne
d

re
si

de
nc

e,
w

hi
ch

is
on

e
of

se
ve

ra
lw

ith
in

a
la

rg
er

bu
ild

in
g.

L
in
te
l:

A
st

ru
ct

ur
al

be
am

ab
ov

e
an

op
en

in
g,

su
ch

as
a

w
in

do
w

or
do

or
,

L
is
te
d
B
u
ild

in
g
:

W
or

ki
ng

on
be

ha
lf

of
S

co
tti

sh
M

in
is

te
rs

,
H

is
to

ric
S

co
tla

nd
in

sp
ec

to
rs

id
en

tif
y

bu
ild

in
gs

w
hi

ch
ar

e
w

or
th

y
of

st
at

ut
or

y
pr

ot
ec

tio
n.

T
he

se
ar

e
�L

is
te

d
B

ui
ld

in
gs

�.
T

he
cr

ite
ria

by
w

hi
ch

th
e

S
co

tti
sh

M
in

is
te

rs
de

fin
e

th
e

ne
ce

ss
ar

y
qu

al
ity

an
d

ch
ar

ac
te

r
un

de
r

th
e

re
le

va
nt

le
gi

sl
at

io
n

ar
e

br
oa

dl
y;

A
ge

an
d

R
ar

ity
;A

rc
hi

te
ct

ur
al

In
te

re
st

;a
nd

C
lo

se
H

is
to

ric
al

A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n

A
lis

to
f

lis
te

d
bu

ild
in

g
is

av
ai

la
bl

e
fr

om
H

is
to

ric
S

co
tla

nd
w

w
w

.h
is

to
ric

-s
co

tla
nd

.g
ov

.u
k/

hi
st

or
ic

an
dl

is
te

db
ui

ld
in

gs
.

Page 418



T
ec

hn
ic

al
A

dv
ic

e
N

ot
e:

T
he

R
ep

ai
r

an
d

R
ep

la
ce

m
en

to
fW

in
do

w
s

an
d

D
oo

rs
25

L
is
te
d
B
u
ild

in
g
C
o
n
se

n
t:

A
lth

ou
gh

th
e

lis
tin

g
of

a
bu

ild
in

g
sh

ou
ld

no
tb

e
se

en
as

a
ba

r
to

al
lf

ut
ur

e
ch

an
ge

,s
tr

ic
tc

on
tr

ol
s

do
ex

is
t

to
en

su
re

th
at

w
or

ks
un

de
rt

ak
en

to
Li

st
ed

B
ui

ld
in

gs
ar

e
ap

pr
op

ria
te

.
Li

st
ed

B
ui

ld
in

g
C

on
se

nt
is

ob
ta

in
ed

th
ro

ug
h

an
ap

pl
ic

at
io

n
pr

oc
es

s
w

hi
ch

is
se

pa
ra

te
fr

om
,

bu
t

ru
ns

pa
ra

lle
l

to
,

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

fo
r

pl
an

ni
ng

pe
rm

is
si

on
.

T
hi

s
se

pa
ra

te
re

gu
la

to
ry

m
ec

ha
ni

sm
al

lo
w

s
pl

an
ni

ng
au

th
or

iti
es

to
en

su
re

th
at

ch
an

ge
s

to
lis

te
d

bu
ild

in
gs

ar
e

ap
pr

op
ria

te
an

d
sy

m
pa

th
et

ic
to

th
e

ch
ar

ac
te

r
of

th
e

bu
ild

in
g.

M
at
er
ia
lC

o
n
si
d
er
at
io
n
:

A
ny

is
su

e
w

hi
ch

re
la

te
s

to
th

e
us

e
an

d
de

ve
lo

pm
en

to
fl

an
d

an
d

is
re

le
va

nt
to

th
e

pl
an

ni
ng

pr
oc

es
s.

M
u
lli
o
n
:

A
ve

rt
ic

al
pi

ec
e

of
st

on
e

or
tim

be
r

di
vi

di
ng

a
w

in
do

w
in

to
se

ct
io

ns
.

P
er
m
it
te
d
D
ev
el
o
p
m
en

t:
A

te
rm

us
ed

fo
r

ce
rt

ai
n

ty
pe

s
of

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t

w
hi

ch
,

by
sa

tis
fy

in
g

sp
ec

ifi
ed

co
nd

iti
on

s,
is

au
to

m
at

ic
al

ly
gr

an
te

d
pl

an
ni

ng
pe

rm
is

si
on

w
ith

ou
t

th
e

su
bm

is
si

on
of

an
ap

pl
ic

at
io

n
to

th
e

pl
an

ni
ng

au
th

or
ity

.
T

he
se

P
er

m
itt

ed
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

R
ig

ht
s

ar
e

re
m

ov
ed

fo
r

Li
st

ed
B

ui
ld

in
gs

,C
on

se
rv

at
io

n
A

re
as

,A
rt

ic
le

4
ar

ea
s,

an
d

fla
ts

.

P
la
n
n
in
g
A
u
th
o
ri
ty
:

T
he

te
rm

gi
ve

n
to

th
e

C
ou

nc
il

in
its

ro
le

ex
er

ci
si

ng
st

at
ut

or
y

fu
nc

tio
ns

un
de

r
P

la
nn

in
g

le
gi

sl
at

io
n.

A
ut

ho
rit

ie
s

ha
ve

th
re

e
m

ai
n

pl
an

ni
ng

du
tie

s:
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

M
an

ag
em

en
t

(a
ss

es
si

ng
an

d
de

te
rm

in
in

g
pl

an
ni

ng
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
);

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t
P

la
nn

in
g

(p
re

pa
rin

g,
up

da
tin

g
an

d
m

on
ito

rin
g

th
e

au
th

or
ity

�s
Lo

ca
l

P
la

n/
Lo

ca
l

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t
P

la
n)

;
an

d
E

nf
or

ce
m

en
t

(s
ee

ki
ng

to
in

ve
st

ig
at

e
an

d
re

so
lv

e
br

ea
ch

es
of

pl
an

ni
ng

co
nt

ro
l)

S
as

h
an

d
C
as
e
W
in
d
o
w
:

A
w

in
do

w
th

at
sl

id
es

ve
rt

ic
al

ly
on

a
sy

st
em

of
co

rd
s

an
d

ba
la

nc
ed

w
ei

gh
ts

.

T
er
ra
ce

H
o
u
se
:

A
dw

el
lin

gh
ou

se
si

tu
at

ed
in

a
ro

w
of

th
re

e
or

m
or

e
bu

ild
in

gs

T
ra
n
so

m
:

A
ho

riz
on

ta
lg

la
zi

ng
ba

r
in

a
w

in
do

w
.

Page 419



T
ec

hn
ic

al
A

dv
ic

e
N

ot
e:

T
he

R
ep

ai
r

an
d

R
ep

la
ce

m
en

to
fW

in
do

w
s

an
d

D
oo

rs
26

11
.
F
u
rt
h
er

R
ea
d
in
g

�
A
b
er
d
ee

n
L
o
ca

lD
ev
el
o
p
m
en

t
P
la
n

w
w

w
.a

be
rd

ee
nc

ity
.g

ov
.u

k/
lo

ca
ld

ev
el

op
m

en
tp

la
n

�
C
o
n
se

rv
at
io
n
A
re
a
A
p
p
ra
is
al
s

w
w

w
.a

be
rd

ee
nc

ity
.g

ov
.u

k/
m

as
te

rp
la

nn
in

g

�
H
is
to
ri
c
S
co

tl
an

d
-
E
n
er
g
y
E
ff
ic
ie
n
cy

A
d
vi
ce

ht
tp

://
w

w
w

.h
is

to
ric

-s
co

tla
nd

.g
ov

.u
k/

in
de

x/
he

rit
ag

e/
te

ch
ni

ca
lc

on
se

rv
at

io
n/

en
er

gy
ef

fic
ie

nc
ya

dv
ic

e.
ht

m

�
H
is
to
ri
c
S
co

tl
an

d
-
M
an

ag
in
g
C
h
an

g
e
in

th
e
H
is
to
ri
c
E
n
vi
ro
n
m
en

t:
D
o
o
rw

ay
s

ht
tp

://
w

w
w

.h
is

to
ric

-s
co

tla
nd

.g
ov

.u
k/

in
de

x/
he

rit
ag

e/
po

lic
y/

m
an

ag
in

gc
ha

ng
e.

ht
m

�
H
is
to
ri
c
S
co

tl
an

d
-
M
an

ag
in
g
C
h
an

g
e
in

th
e
H
is
to
ri
c
E
n
vi
ro
n
m
en

t:
W
in
d
o
w
s

ht
tp

://
w

w
w

.h
is

to
ric

-s
co

tla
nd

.g
ov

.u
k/

in
de

x/
he

rit
ag

e/
po

lic
y/

m
an

ag
in

gc
ha

ng
e.

ht
m

�
H
is
to
ri
c
S
co

tl
an

d
�
S
as

h
&
C
as
e
W
in
d
o
w
s:

A
S
h
o
rt
G
u
id
e
fo
r
H
o
m
eo

w
n
er
s

ht
tp

://
w

w
w

.h
is

to
ric

-s
co

tla
nd

.g
ov

.u
k/

m
ai

nt
ai

ni
ng

-y
ou

r-
ho

m
e.

pd
f

�
S
co

tt
is
h
H
is
to
ri
c
E
n
vi
ro
n
m
en

t
P
o
lic

y
w

w
w

.h
is

to
ric

-s
co

tla
nd

.g
ov

.u
k/

in
de

x/
he

rit
ag

e/
po

lic
y/

sh
ep

.h
tm

Page 420



T
ec

hn
ic

al
A

dv
ic

e
N

ot
e:

T
he

R
ep

ai
r

an
d

R
ep

la
ce

m
en

to
fW

in
do

w
s

an
d

D
oo

rs
27

A
p
p
en

d
ix

1:
P
ro
fe
ss
io
n
al
S
u
rv
ey

N
at

io
na

lp
la

nn
in

g
po

lic
y

on
ly

al
lo

w
s

w
in

do
w

s
in

Li
st

ed
B

ui
ld

in
gs

to
be

re
pl

ac
ed

w
he

re
th

er
e

is
ev

id
en

ce
th

at
th

ey
ca

nn
ot

be
re

pa
ire

d.
It

al
so

re
qu

ire
s

th
at

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

fo
r

Li
st

ed
B

ui
ld

in
g

C
on

se
nt

ar
e

su
pp

or
te

d
by

su
ffi

ci
en

t
in

fo
rm

at
io

n
to

en
ab

le
th

e
lo

ca
l

pl
an

ni
ng

au
th

or
ity

to
de

te
rm

in
e

th
em

.
T

hi
s

is
w

hy
w

e
as

k
fo

r
a

su
rv

ey
to

de
m

on
st

ra
te

th
at

ex
is

tin
g

w
in

do
w

(s
)

ar
e

be
yo

nd
re

pa
ir

an
d

ne
ed

to
be

re
pl

ac
ed

.
T

hi
s

is
in

ad
di

tio
n

to
th

e
el

ev
at

io
na

l
dr

aw
in

gs
an

d
se

ct
io

ns
re

qu
ire

d.
P

le
as

e
no

te
th

at
co

m
pr

eh
en

si
ve

w
in

do
w

re
pl

ac
em

en
ti

s
un

lik
el

y
to

be
ju

st
ifi

ed
in

al
lb

ut
ex

ce
pt

io
na

lc
irc

um
st

an
ce

s.

W
h
at

sh
o
u
ld

b
e
in

a
su

rv
ey
?

T
he

su
rv

ey
sh

ou
ld

be
ca

rr
ie

d
ou

tb
y

a
jo

in
er

or
si

m
ila

r
an

d
in

cl
ud

e
ea

ch
in

di
vi

du
al

w
in

do
w

.I
ts

ho
ul

d
in

cl
ud

e
an

im
ag

e
of

th
e

w
ho

le
el

ev
at

io
n

w
ith

th
e

w
in

do
w

s
nu

m
be

re
d

an
d

an
ac

co
m

pa
ny

in
g

pr
op

or
tio

na
te

am
ou

nt
of

in
fo

rm
at

io
n

ab
ou

tt
he

ty
pe

,a
ge

an
d

co
nd

iti
on

of
ea

ch
w

in
do

w
.F

or
a

st
ra

ig
ht

fo
rw

ar
d

re
si

de
nt

ia
lp

ro
pe

rt
y

th
is

co
ul

d
be

an
an

no
ta

te
d

ph
ot

o
w

ith
th

e
w

in
do

w
s

nu
m

be
re

d
an

d
a

sh
or

t
de

sc
rip

tio
n

of
th

e
w

in
do

w
co

nd
iti

on
.A

dd
iti

on
al

in
fo

rm
at

io
n

m
ay

be
re

qu
ire

d
fo

r
a

m
or

e
co

m
pl

ex
bu

ild
in

g
or

w
he

re
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

hi
st

or
ic

w
in

do
w

s
ar

e
in

vo
lv

ed

Page 421



T
ec

hn
ic

al
A

dv
ic

e
N

ot
e:

T
he

R
ep

ai
r

an
d

R
ep

la
ce

m
en

to
fW

in
do

w
s

an
d

D
oo

rs
28

A
p
p
en

d
ix

2:
B
u
ild

in
g
C
o
n
tr
o
lI
n
fo
rm

at
io
n

V
en

ti
la
ti
o
n

E
ve

ry
ap

ar
tm

en
t

m
us

t
ha

ve
a

w
in

do
w

(s
)

or
do

or
(s

)
w

ith
an

op
en

in
g

ar
ea

of
at

le
as

t
1/

30
th

of
th

e
flo

or
ar

ea
of

th
at

ro
om

.
W

he
re

th
e

op
en

in
g

ar
ea

of
th

e
ex

is
tin

g
w

in
do

w
is

al
re

ad
y

le
ss

th
an

1/
30

th
of

th
e

flo
or

,t
he

op
en

in
g

ar
ea

of
th

e
re

pl
ac

em
en

t
w

in
do

w
m

us
t

no
t

be
le

ss
th

an
th

e
or

ig
in

al
si

ze
.

If
th

e
ex

is
tin

g
w

in
do

w
ha

d
an

in
te

gr
al

tr
ic

kl
e

ve
nt

ila
to

r
th

e
re

pl
ac

em
en

t
w

in
do

w
m

us
t

al
so

ha
ve

an
in

te
gr

al
tr

ic
kl

e
ve

nt
ila

to
r

of
at

le
as

tt
he

sa
m

e
si

ze
as

th
e

or
ig

in
al

.

S
af
et
y
fr
o
m

C
o
lli
si
o
n

W
in

do
w

s
m

us
tn

ot
op

en
ov

er
fo

ot
pa

th
s

or
an

y
pl

ac
e

to
w

hi
ch

th
e

pu
bl

ic
ha

s
ac

ce
ss

,w
he

re
th

ey
co

ul
d

fo
rm

a
ha

za
rd

or
ob

st
ru

ct
io

n.

S
af
et
y
G
la
ss

G
la

zi
ng

w
hi

ch
is

le
ss

th
an

80
0

m
m

ab
ov

e
th

e
flo

or
m

us
t

be
to

ug
he

ne
d

or
la

m
in

at
ed

.
A

lte
rn

at
iv

el
y,

a
pr

ot
ec

tiv
e

ba
rr

ie
r

co
ul

d
be

in
st

al
le

d
to

pr
ev

en
tc

ol
lis

io
n.

T
h
er
m
al

In
su

la
ti
o
n

W
in

do
w

s
m

us
t

ha
ve

a
U

-v
al

ue
(t

he
rm

al
in

su
la

tio
n

ra
tin

g)
of

no
t

m
or

e
th

an
1.

8
W

/m
2K

.
T

he
re

ar
e

m
an

y
ty

pe
s

of
w

in
do

w
co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n
w

hi
ch

m
ee

tt
he

re
qu

ire
d

de
gr

ee
of

th
er

m
al

in
su

la
tio

n
an

d
th

is
sh

ou
ld

be
co

nf
irm

ed
w

ith
th

e
w

in
do

w
in

st
al

le
r.

P
ro
te
ct
iv
e
B
ar
ri
er
s

O
pe

na
bl

e
w

in
do

w
s

to
a

st
or

ey
w

ith
a

flo
or

le
ve

lo
f

at
le

as
t6

00
m

m
ab

ov
e

th
e

ou
ts

id
e

gr
ou

nd
le

ve
l,

an
d

w
ith

a
ci

ll
he

ig
ht

le
ss

th
an

80
0

m
m

ab
ov

e
flo

or
le

ve
l,

m
us

tb
e

pr
ov

id
ed

w
ith

a
pr

ot
ec

tiv
e

ba
rr

ie
r

to
m

in
im

is
e

th
e

ris
k

of
fa

lli
ng

fr
om

th
e

w
in

do
w

.
O

n
th

e
gr

ou
nd

an
d

fir
st

st
or

ey
s,

th
e

ba
rr

ie
r

m
us

t
be

no
t

le
ss

th
an

80
0

m
m

ab
ov

e
th

e
flo

or
le

ve
l.

T
he

re
m

us
t

no
t

be
an

y
ga

ps
in

th
e

ba
rr

ie
r

w
hi

ch
w

ou
ld

al
lo

w
a

10
0

m
m

ba
ll

to
pa

ss
th

ro
ug

h.
A

lte
rn

at
iv

el
y,

pe
rm

an
en

tly
fix

ed
sa

fe
ty

gl
as

s
m

ay
be

us
ed

in
st

ea
d

of
a

ba
rr

ie
r.

Page 422



T
ec

hn
ic

al
A

dv
ic

e
N

ot
e:

T
he

R
ep

ai
r

an
d

R
ep

la
ce

m
en

to
fW

in
do

w
s

an
d

D
oo

rs
29

E
m
er
g
en

cy
E
sc

ap
e
W
in
d
o
w
s

A
n

es
ca

pe
w

in
do

w
m

us
tb

e
pr

ov
id

ed
in

ev
er

y
ap

ar
tm

en
to

n
th

e
fir

st
flo

or
of

a
dw

el
lin

g.
E

sc
ap

e
w

in
do

w
s

m
us

t
al

so
be

pr
ov

id
ed

in
ro

om
s

on
th

e
gr

ou
nd

st
or

ey
w

he
re

th
e

es
ca

pe
is

th
ro

ug
h

an
ot

he
r

ro
om

.
E

sc
ap

e
w

in
do

w
s

m
us

th
av

e
an

un
ob

st
ru

ct
ed

op
en

ab
le

ar
ea

th
at

is
at

le
as

t0
.3

3
m

2
an

d
at

le
as

t4
50

m
m

hi
gh

an
d

45
0

m
m

w
id

e.
T

he
bo

tto
m

of
th

e
op

en
ab

le
ar

ea
m

us
tn

ot
be

m
or

e
th

an
11

00
m

m
ab

ov
e

th
e

flo
or

ex
ce

pt
in

ca
se

s
w

he
re

th
e

ex
is

tin
g

ci
ll

he
ig

ht
is

gr
ea

te
r

th
an

11
00

m
m

.

S
af
e
C
le
an

in
g

A
ll

w
in

do
w

s
m

us
t

be
sa

fe
ly

cl
ea

na
bl

e.
W

in
do

w
s,

al
lo

r
pa

rt
of

w
hi

ch
ar

e
m

or
e

th
an

4
m

ab
ov

e
th

e
ad

ja
ce

nt
gr

ou
nd

le
ve

lm
us

t
be

de
si

gn
ed

so
th

at
an

y
ex

te
rn

al
an

d
in

te
rn

al
gl

az
ed

su
rf

ac
es

ca
n

be
cl

ea
ne

d
sa

fe
ly

fr
om

in
si

de
th

e
bu

ild
in

g.
T

he
se

w
in

do
w

s
m

us
t

be
cl

ea
na

bl
e

w
hi

ls
t

st
an

di
ng

on
th

e
flo

or
an

d
w

ith
ou

t
ov

er
-r

ea
ch

in
g.

T
he

m
ax

im
um

re
ac

h
m

us
t

no
t

ex
ce

ed
th

at
sh

ow
n

in
th

e
di

ag
ra

m
s

ov
er

,
an

d
th

e
m

ax
im

um
up

w
ar

ds
re

ac
h

is
21

50
m

m
.

If
pa

rt
s

of
th

e
ex

is
tin

g
w

in
do

w
ar

e
ou

t
w

ith
th

e
m

ax
im

um
re

ac
h,

th
e

re
pl

ac
em

en
tw

in
do

w
sh

ou
ld

be
of

a
ty

pe
w

hi
ch

al
lo

w
s

th
os

e
pa

rt
s

to
be

br
ou

gh
tw

ith
in

th
e

sa
fe

re
ac

h
in

or
de

r
to

al
lo

w
sa

fe
cl

ea
ni

ng
.

(A
)

do
w

nw
ar

ds
re

ac
h

th
ro

ug
h

an
op

en
in

g
lig

ht
(B

)
si

de
re

ac
h

th
ro

ug
h

an
op

en
in

g
lig

ht
(C

)
re

ac
h

fo
r

cl
ea

ni
ng

an
op

en
w

in
do

w
w

ith
ea

sy
-c

le
an

hi
ng

es

Page 423



F
o
r
F
u
rt
h
er

In
fo
rm

at
io
n
P
le
as
e
C
o
n
ta
ct
:

P
la

nn
in

g
an

d
S

us
ta

in
ab

le
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

E
nt

er
pr

is
e,

P
la

nn
in

g
&

In
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
A

be
rd

ee
n

C
ity

C
ou

nc
il

B
us

in
es

s
H

ub
4

G
ro

un
d

F
lo

or
N

or
th

M
ar

is
ch

al
C

ol
le

ge
B

ro
ad

S
tr

ee
t

A
be

rd
ee

n
A

B
10

1A
B

T
el

ep
ho

ne
:0

12
24

52
34

70
F

ax
:0

12
24

52
31

80
E

m
ai

l:
pi

@
ab

er
de

en
ci

ty
.g

ov
.u

k

Page 424



 

 

 
ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 

 
 
COMMITTEE   Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure   
 
DATE     6 November 2012   
 
DIRECTOR    Gordon McIntosh   
 
TITLE OF REPORT  Aberdeen City and Shire Strategic Development 

Plan   
 
REPORT NUMBER:  EPI/12/234 
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to present a draft of the Proposed 

Strategic Development Plan (SDP) to the Committee for information 
prior to it’s consideration by the Strategic Development Planning 
Authority (SDPA) on 9 November 2012.  

 
1.2 After consideration and agreement by the SDPA, the Proposed Plan 

will be referred to both Aberdeen City Council and Aberdeenshire 
Council for ratification.  It is anticipated that this will be at the Council 
meeting on 19 December 2012.  There will then follow a period for 
representations before submission to Scottish Ministers. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATION(S)  

  
2.1 It is recommended that the Committee: 
 

(a) Note the contents of the draft Proposed Strategic Development 
Plan (Appendix 1); 

 
(b) Note the contents of the draft Minute of the Strategic 

Development Planning Authority on 21 September 2012 
(Appendix 2); 

 
(c) Agree to attach the Minute of this Committee to the report to 

Council following approval of the draft Proposed Plan by the 
SDPA. 

 
 

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
3.1 The financial implications arising from this report are met from within 

the SDPA’s budget. 
 

Agenda Item 9.8

Page 425



 

 

4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 This is a significant piece of work that has involved and will impact 

upon many other council services, public bodies, the business and 
development industries and the citizens of Aberdeen.   

 
5. BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 
 
5.1 The Aberdeen City and Shire Structure Plan was approved by Scottish 

Ministers in August 2009. It was the last structure plan to be approved 
in Scotland before the Planning etc (Scotland) Act 2006 came into 
force, introducing a requirement to prepare SDPs in the four largest city 
regions (including in Aberdeen and Aberdeenshire).  

 
5.2 Both councils have now adopted local development plans consistent 

with the structure plan. This was a significant achievement given the 
scale of change required from the previous local plans. 

 
5.3 Although not applying directly to the first SDP, there is a statutory 

requirement for future plans to be submitted to Scottish Ministers within 
four years of the approval of the previous plan. The current and 
previous development plan schemes have presented plan preparation 
timetables which set this as a target for the first strategic development 
plan. This means that submission is required to Scottish Ministers by 
17 August 2013. 

 
5.4 The SDPA started work on the preparation of a replacement plan in 

late 2010. This has involved the preparation of a range of studies and 
assessments as well as monitoring of the current structure plan and 
engagement with stakeholders and agencies. The SDPA approved a 
Main Issues Report at its meeting of 23 September 2011 and 
consultation took place between October 2011 and January 2012, with 
85 responses received. 

 
5.5 All members of both councils have been invited to two informal seminar 

sessions during the preparation of the plan to date. The first took place 
on 10 June 2011 on the proposed content of the Main Issues Report 
while the second took place on 10 September 2012 on the content of 
the Proposed Plan itself.  

 
5.6 An early draft of the Proposed Plan was shared with the Key Agencies 

for comment and their feedback was useful in informing the final draft 
attached. 

 
Proposed Plan 

 
5.7 The preparation of a Proposed Plan is a key stage in the preparation of 

the SDP. The proposed plan builds on the monitoring of the previous 
plan, engagement with stakeholders and Key Agencies, responses to 

Page 426



 

 

the Main Issues Report and the various studies and assessments 
prepared in support of the plan.  

 
5.8 The Proposed Plan presented in Appendix 1 represents a significant 

level of continuity with the current structure plan. This was the view 
clearly expressed by the majority of stakeholders, Key Agencies and 
those responding to the Main Issues Report.  
 

5.9 The plan continues to present an ambitious strategy for growth for the 
area while also focusing regeneration activity in those parts of the area 
with particular challenges. A common view throughout engagement 
and consultation was that the focus should be on implementation rather 
than making changes to a plan which was widely welcomed and still 
only a few years old. 
 

5.10  As identified in the Main Issues Report, while by no means immune 
from the consequences of the global economic turmoil since 2007/08, 
Aberdeen City and Shire has been one of the most resilient parts of the 
UK. Aberdeen City and Shire is consistently identified as one area in 
Scotland and the UK which has the potential to drive economic 
recovery. It is important that the SDP supports this and helps deliver on 
this opportunity. 
 

5.11 Housing and employment allowances up to at least 2026 have already 
resulted in allocations being made by the two Local Development Plans 
so there is already a clearly defined pattern of growth. The focus is 
therefore rightfully on the implementation of these plans. 
 

5.12 As indicated in the Main Issues Report, the opportunity has been taken 
to expand the ‘Spatial Strategy’ section of the plan and at the same 
time include more diagrams to explain the effect of the plan on different 
areas. At the same time the text retains the Crystal Mark from the Plain 
English Campaign for its clarity. 
 

5.13 The main changes from the current structure plan relate to five 
additional proposals and the policy positions around waste 
management and the strategic transport fund. These are addressed 
below after a consideration of the housing land supply position. 
 
Housing Land Supply  

5.14 While housing completions in Aberdeen City and Shire have declined 
since the start of the global economic turmoil in 2007/08, they have 
been more resilient than elsewhere in Scotland. The 2012 Audit 
indicates that completions are likely to rise again over the next few 
years as the new LDP allocations are developed.The Proposed SDP 
does not require additional housing or employment land to be identified 
in the subsequent LDPs for the period to 2026.  
 

5.15 The housing requirement and allowances in the Proposed Plan are 
based on the outputs of the 2011 Housing Need and Demand 

Page 427



 

 

Assessment (HNDA). Recent projections prepared by the National 
Records of Scotland (formerly the General Register Office for Scotland) 
suggest a significantly higher rate of population and household growth 
than was used as the basis for the HNDA. The Housing Market 
Partnership met earlier this year and recommended that the HNDA 
continue to be used as the basis for the SDP. The Proposed SDP 
continues to provide a generous supply of housing and employment 
land and is robust enough to accommodate higher levels of growth 
such as those projected by the National Records of Scotland in the 
medium-term (i.e. to 2026 at least and probably well into the final 
phase of the plan).  
 

5.16 Monitoring of population and household growth as well as the rate of 
new house building will be important on an annual basis to inform the 
review of the Housing Need and Demand Assessment and the SDP in 
five years’ time to ensure that the SDP continues to provide a robust 
plan for the future. 

 
Waste Management 

5.17 The publication of Scotland’s Zero Waste Plan in 2010 set a different 
context for planning for waste management to that contained in the 
current structure plan. This was anticipated in the structure plan which 
stated that the new framework would be reflected in the first SDP.  

 
5.18 The urgency and significant of the change to a more sustainable 

approach to waste management expressed in the structure plan 
remains. This plan seeks to facilitate the development of the required 
infrastructure, viewing waste as an important resource. 
 

5.19 The MIR presented a series of options to deal with the area’s waste 
and the preferred option has largely been carried forward into the 
proposed SDP. The proposed SDP emphasises the objective of 
meeting our waste management needs locally as far as possible, in line 
with the waste hierarchy, the proximity principle and the Zero Waste 
Plan. 
 

5.20 While we currently have sufficient landfill capacity, there is a need for at 
least an additional 300,000 tonnes of capacity in new waste 
management facilities in the area. These are likely to be facilities such 
as material recycling and composting plants as well as energy from 
waste facilities. The plan directs most of this capacity to the strategic 
growth areas within the Aberdeen Housing Market Area to reduce the 
environmental and financial costs of transporting waste and maximise 
the opportunity for using the heat generated by such proposals. Given 
the nature of modern waste management facilities, sites identified for 
employment purposes in the two local development plans are likely to 
be potentially suitable, along with sites adjacent to existing waste 
management facilities. Sites outwith the strategic growth areas may 
also be suitable, particularly where they meet a more local need or 
require a rural location. 

Page 428



 

 

 
Strategic Transport Fund 

5.21 The SDPA approved Supplementary Planning Guidance on a Strategic 
Transport Fund (STF) in December 2011 and this was subsequently 
ratified by both councils in early 2012.  
 

5.22 Financial contributions from development have already been received 
and a number of planning agreements have been signed which require 
a contribution to be made at a future date. Most of the contributions to 
the fund will come from new sites allocated in the two recently 
approved local development plans so it can be expected that the 
number of planning agreements with STF contributions will rise 
significantly as sites come forward for development over the next year 
or two. 
 

5.23 Engagement with the development industry is due to take place over 
the next few months around the timing of implementation of the 
individual interventions. This will also seek views on the implementation 
of the guidance and how it can be improved. A review of the guidance 
will be carried out over the next six to twelve months with reports to 
future meetings of the SDPA. Consultation will be carried out as part of 
this process and enable the guidance to be adopted as statutory 
supplementary guidance alongside the approval of the SDP. The 
existing guidance will continue in force until that time. 
 
Proposals 

5.24 All of the proposals contained in the current structure plan have been 
carried forward to the Proposed SDP with one exception. The proposal 
for a new prison at Peterhead has been removed as construction is 
well underway. All other proposals are still awaiting implementation and 
there is value in retaining the plan’s support for them until that stage 
has been reached. 

 
5.25 A number of additional proposals have been included in the Proposed 

SDP. Most of these were highlighted in the MIR, although the Scottish 
Government’s Infrastructure Investment Plan gave a commitment to 
dualling the A96 north of Inverurie and this has also been included. 
 

The new proposals include: 
 

• Upgrading the A96 to dual carriageway north of Inverurie; 
 
• Carbon capture and storage infrastructure at Peterhead as well as 

infrastructure for the transport of CO2 to St Fergus from outwith the 
area (either by pipeline or ship); 

 
• Electricity transmission infrastructure to the south of Peterhead 

including an extension to the electricity substation and converter 
stations required for offshore transmission (subject to a development 
framework for the area); 

Page 429



 

 

• Proposals to realise the potential of the ports at Aberdeen and 
Peterhead, particularly in the context of the National Renewables 
Infrastructure Plan; and 

 
• Strategic transport interventions required to address the cumulative 

impact of new development in and around Aberdeen. These 
interventions were identified and will be funded through the Strategic 
Transport Fund. 

 
6. IMPACT 
 
6.1 The Strategic Development Plan contributes to the following Single 

Outcome Priorities: 
1 – We live in a Scotland that is the most attractive place for doing  
business in Europe; 2. We realise our full economic potential with more 
and better employment opportunities for our people; 10. We live in well 
designed, sustainable places where we are able to access the 
amenities and services we need; 12 – We value and enjoy our built and 
natural environment and protect and enhance it for future generations. 

 
6.2 An Equality and Human Rights Impact Assessment was carried out on 

the Proposed Plan by the SDPA and is attached for information 
(Appendix 3). 

 
7. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

Appendix 1 - Aberdeen City and Shire Strategic Development Plan: 
Proposed Plan 
 

http://www.aberdeencityandshire-
sdpa.gov.uk/nmsruntime/saveasdialog.asp?lID=982&sID=556 

 Diagrams  
 
http://www.aberdeencityandshire-
sdpa.gov.uk/nmsruntime/saveasdialog.asp?lID=983&sID=556 
 
 Appendix 2 – Draft SDPA Minute 21 September 2012  
 Attached at end of this report. 
 
 Appendix 3 -  Proposed Plan - EHRIA 
http://www.aberdeencityandshire-
sdpa.gov.uk/nmsruntime/saveasdialog.asp?lID=988&sID=556 
 
 
8. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS  

 
Dr Margaret Bochel 
Head of Planning and Sustainable Development  
mbochel@aberdeencity.gov.uk 
01224 523133 

Page 430



 

 

Appendix 2 
DRAFT/ 
 

STRATEGIC DEVELOPMENT PLANNING AUTHORITY  
 
 ABERDEEN, 21 September, 2012 – minute of meeting of the STRATEGIC 

DEVELOPMENT PLANNING AUTHORITY.  Present: Councillor Milne 
(Chairperson), Councillor Argyle (Vice Convener); and Councillors Cormie 
(as substitute for Councillor Corall), Donnelly (as substitute for Councillor 
Thomson), Graham (as substitute for Councillor Grant) and Taylor (as 
substitute for Councillor Finlayson) (Aberdeen City Council), Bellarby, Cox, 
Merson, Norman Smith and Topping (Aberdeenshire Council).  

 
The agenda and reports associated with this minute can be located at the 
following link:    
http://www.aberdeencityandshire-sdpa.gov.uk/AboutUs/Agendas/2012_09_21_Agenda.asp 
 
 
APPOINTMENT OF CHAIRPERSON  
 
1. With reference to article 1 of the minute of its previous meeting of 22 June, 
2012, the clerk to the Authority invited nominations for a Chairperson, and explained 
that in terms of the constitution of the Authority, a Chair and Vice Chair would be 
elected by the members attending the first meeting of the Authority following local 
government elections, which would be this meeting, as the previous meeting had not 
been quorate; the Chair and Vice Chair could not be from the same Council and they 
would hold office for a period of two years from the date of today’s meeting. At the 
end of the Chair’s term of office the Vice Chair would automatically assume the role 
of Chairperson and a new Vice Chair would be elected. 
 
The Authority resolved: 
that Councillor Milne be appointed as Chairperson.  
 
At this juncture, Councillor Argyle assumed the Chair.  

Page 431



 

 

 
 
APPOINTMENT FOR VICE CHAIRPERSON  
 
2. The Chairperson invited nominations for a Vice Chairperson.  
 
The Authority resolved: 
to appoint Councillor Argyle as Vice Chairperson.  
 
 
MINUTE OF MEETING OF 9 MARCH, 2012 
 
3. The Authority had before it the minute of its meeting of 9 March, 2012. It was 
noted that the previous meeting of the Authority (22 June, 2012) had not been 
quorate, and therefore members had not been in a position to approve the minute of 9 
March, 2012 as a correct record at that time. It was further noted that only the Vice 
Convener and Councillor Cox had been in attendance at the meeting of 9 March from 
the attendees on this day, and they confirmed that the minute was a correct record.  
 
The Authority resolved: 
to approve the minute as a correct record.  
 
 
MINUTE OF PREVIOUS MEETING OF 22 JUNE, 2012 
 
4. The Committee had before it the minute of its previous meeting of 22 June, 
2012. It was again noted that this meeting had not been quorate.  
 
In relation to article 7, the Strategic Development Plan Manager advised that the 
Scottish Government would like to meet with the Authority to hold a seminar on the 
National Planning Framework.  
 
The Committee resolved: 

Page 432



 

 

(i) to note that “planed” on article 7, resolution (ii) of the minute should have read 
“planned”; 

(ii) to note that Councillor __ apologies had not been recorded; 
(iii) to ratify the annual report, as per article 5, resolution (i) of the minute; 
(iv) to note that the recommendation regarding the £34,000 payback to Aberdeen 

City and Aberdeenshire Councils would be considered at a later point in the 
agenda (article 8 of this minute refers);  

(v) to agree to meet the Scottish Government jointly with Nestrans at a date to be 
agreed between the clerk and the Chairs to the SDPA and Nestrans in relation 
to the National Planning Framework; and  

(vi) to otherwise note the minute.  
 
 
ORDER OF AGENDA 
 
5. The Chairperson suggested that item 7 of the agenda (Aberdeen City and Shire 
Strategic Development Plan) be considered as the next item of business.  
 
The Committee resolved: 
to agree to consider the Strategic Development Plan as the next item of business.  
 
 
ABERDEEN CITY AND SHIRE STRATEGIC DEVELOPMENT PLAN  
 
6. The Authority had before it a report by the Strategic Development Plan 
Manager which presented a draft of the proposed Strategic Development Plan (SDP) 
for consideration.  
 
The report provided a background to the Plan and a synopsis of the draft Plan, which 
was appended to the report along with (1) a number of indicative plans and diagrams, 
(2) a draft habitats regulation appraisal record, (3) a sea environmental report, (4) a 
strategic flood risk assessment, (5) an equalities and human rights impact assessment; 
and (6) a document outlining responses which had been received to the October, 2011 
Main Issues report.  

Page 433



 

 

 
A letter officers had received from the Harbour Board, which presented suggested 
wording to be incorporated into the Plan, was circulated to members. 
 
The Authority resolved: 
(i)  to commend the draft of the proposed Plan (appendix 1) and the associated 

supporting documentation (appendices 2 – 6) for further consideration by 
elected members, subject to (1) the “detail maps” etc on pages 41 - 49 being 
renamed “indicative diagrams”, and (2) officers considering how the 
comments in the letter received from the Harbour Board on 20 September, 
2012, could be reflected in the Plan; 

(ii) to defer approval of the Plan, and recommendations (b) – (e) for consideration 
at an additional meeting of the SDPA to be convened on 9 November, 2012.  

 
 
HOUSING LAND AUDIT 2012 
 
7. The Authority had before it a report by the Strategic Development Plan 
Manager which advised of the results of the 2012 Housing Land Audit (which was 
appended to the report), and explained its implications for the housing land supply 
position.  
 
The Authority resolved: 
to note the content of the 2012 Housing Land Audit and continue to monitor the land 
supply and rates of house building over the next few years as required by the Structure 
Plan.  
 
 
AUDITED STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2011/12 AND INDEPENDENT 
AUDITOR’S REPORT  
 
8. The Authority had before it a report by the Treasurer which presented the 
audited Statement of Accounts for 2011/12 and the independent auditor’s report on 

Page 434



 

 

the audit. The Statement of Accounts was appended to the report. The Authority heard 
Karlyn Watt (Audit Scotland) in relation to the independent auditor’s report.  
 
The Authority resolved: 
(i) to welcome the Statement of Accounts for 2011/12 and the independent 

auditor’s report; 
(ii) to thank officers for their prudent financial management of the accounts over 

the past year;  
(iii) to return £34,000 excess contributions to Aberdeen City and Aberdeenshire 

Councils; and  
(iv) that a £10 charge for a printed copy of the Statement of Accounts be made, 

and to note that the Statements could be accessed and downloaded free of 
charge from the SDPA website.  

 
 
BUDGET MONITORING  
 
9. With reference to article 5 of the minute of its meeting of 9 March, 2012 the 
Authority had before it a report by the Treasurer which advised on the forecast 
position for 2012/13, as at 31 August, 2012.  
 
The Authority resolved: 
to note the budget monitoring position and forecast outturn as at 31 August, 2012.  
 
 
DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS  
 
10. The Authority had before it proposed dates and times of future meetings.  
 
The Authority resolved: 
(i) to note that the next meeting would take place on 9 November, 2012 (article 6, 

resolution (ii) of this minute refers); and  

Page 435



 

 

(ii) to agree that the Authority would meet on 14 December, 2012 and 22 March, 
2013 at 2pm, whilst noting that a date for the additional joint meeting with 
Nestrans and the Scottish Government would be confirmed at an early date.  

  - COUNCILLOR MILNE; Convener 
 
 

Page 436



1 

F
o

re
w

o
rd

 
       

C
o

n
te

n
ts

 
 1 

In
tr

o
d

u
ct

io
n

  
 

 
 

p
ag

e 
 2

 
2 

T
h

e 
vi

si
o

n
 f

o
r 

th
e 

p
la

n
 

 
 

   
   

   
 5

 
3 

T
h

e 
sp

at
ia

l s
tr

at
eg

y 
 

 
   

   
   

 6
 

 
S

tr
at

eg
ic

 g
ro

w
th

 a
re

as
 

 
 

   
   

   
 7

 
 

Lo
ca

l g
ro

w
th

 a
nd

 d
iv

er
si

fic
at

io
n 

ar
ea

s 
   

   
   

   
 

8 
 

R
eg

en
er

at
io

n 
pr

io
rit

y 
ar

ea
s 

 
   

   
   

9 
 

S
G

A
1:

 A
be

rd
ee

n 
C

ity
 

 
 

 
10

 
 

S
G

A
2:

 A
be

rd
ee

n 
–
 H

un
tly

  
 

 
12

 
S

G
A

3:
 A

be
rd

ee
n 
–
 L

au
re

nc
ek

irk
 

 
 

13
 

S
G

A
4:

 A
be

rd
ee

n 
–
 P

et
er

he
ad

 
 

 
14

 
 

4 
O

b
je

ct
iv

es
 

 
 

 
 

   
   

   
15

 
 

E
co

no
m

ic
 G

ro
w

th
 

 
 

 
   

   
   

16
 

 
S

us
ta

in
ab

le
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t a

nd
 c

lim
at

e 
ch

an
ge

  
18

 
 

P
op

ul
at

io
n 

G
ro

w
th

 
 

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

21
 

 
Q

ua
lit

y 
of

 th
e 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t 

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

23
 

 
S

us
ta

in
ab

le
 m

ix
ed

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

24
 

 
A

cc
es

si
bi

lit
y 

 
 

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

26
 

 5 
P

u
tt

in
g

 t
h

is
 p

la
n

 in
to

 p
ra

ct
ic

e 
 

   
   

   
27

 
 

S
ch

ed
u

le
 1

: 
H

o
u

si
n

g
 a

llo
w

an
ce

s 
   

   
   

29
 

 
S

ch
ed

u
le

 2
: 

P
ro

p
o

sa
ls

 
 

 
 

29
 

 
G

lo
ss

ar
y 

 
 

 
 

   
   

   
30

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
   

 
 

 
   

 
           

Page 437



2 

1 
– 

In
tr

o
d

u
ct

io
n

 
 1.

1 
A

be
rd

ee
n 

C
ity

 a
nd

 S
hi

re
 i

s 
a 

re
gi

on
 o

f 
gl

ob
al

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
ce

. 
A

s 
th

e 
en

er
gy

 
ca

pi
ta

l 
of

 
E

ur
op

e 
it 

ha
s 

th
e 

am
bi

tio
n,

 
sk

ill
s 

an
d 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
to

 le
ad

 th
e 

m
ov

e 
to

w
ar

ds
 a

 m
or

e 
se

cu
re

 a
nd

 s
us

ta
in

ab
le

 
su

pp
ly

 o
f 

en
er

gy
 a

nd
 le

ad
 S

co
tla

nd
 f

or
w

ar
d 

on
 a

 p
at

h 
of

 e
co

no
m

ic
 

re
co

ve
ry

.  
 1.

2 
T

he
 a

re
a 

al
re

ad
y 

ha
s 

an
 e

nv
ia

bl
e 

re
pu

ta
tio

n 
as

 a
n 

at
tr

ac
tiv

e 
pl

ac
e 

to
 l

iv
e 

an
d 

w
or

k,
 w

ith
 a

 h
ig

h-
qu

al
ity

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
t, 

ab
ov

e-
av

er
ag

e 
in

co
m

es
, 

lo
w

 
un

em
pl

oy
m

en
t 

an
d 

am
on

g 
th

e 
ha

pp
ie

st
 

pe
op

le
 in

 t
he

 U
K

. 
H

ow
ev

er
, 

th
er

e 
is

 n
o 

ro
om

 f
or

 c
om

pl
ac

en
cy

. 
T

he
 

ef
fe

ct
s 

of
 

cl
im

at
e 

ch
an

ge
, 

th
e 

ne
ed

 
to

 
us

e 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

m
or

e 
ef

fic
ie

nt
ly

, 
ch

an
ge

s 
in

 
N

or
th

 
S

ea
 

oi
l 

an
d 

ga
s 

pr
od

uc
tio

n 
an

d 
di

ffe
re

nc
es

 in
 w

ea
lth

 a
nd

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
ty

 b
et

w
ee

n 
so

m
e 

of
 t

he
 r

eg
io

n’
s 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

 w
ill

 t
hr

ea
te

n 
ev

er
yo

ne
’s

 w
el

lb
ei

ng
 i

f 
w

e 
do

 n
ot

 t
ak

e 
ac

tio
n.

  
 1.

3 
B

y 
20

35
, 

A
be

rd
ee

n 
C

ity
 a

nd
 S

hi
re

 w
ill

 n
ee

d 
to

 h
av

e 
ad

ap
te

d 
to

 
a 

ve
ry

 d
iff

er
en

t 
w

or
ld

. 
W

e 
ne

ed
 t

o 
fa

ce
 u

p 
to

 t
he

 c
ha

lle
ng

es
 a

he
ad

 
to

 b
e 

ab
le

 t
o 

m
ai

nt
ai

n 
an

d 
im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
at

tr
ac

tiv
en

es
s 

of
 t

he
 r

eg
io

n 
as

 a
 p

la
ce

 to
 li

ve
, v

is
it 

an
d 

do
 b

us
in

es
s.

 
 1.

4 
T

he
 p

ur
po

se
 o

f 
th

is
 p

la
n 

is
 to

 s
et

 a
 c

le
ar

 d
ire

ct
io

n 
fo

r 
th

e 
fu

tu
re

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
of

 t
he

 N
or

th
 E

as
t 

– 
re

co
gn

is
in

g 
th

e 
im

po
rt

an
ce

 o
f 

im
pr

ov
in

g 
lin

ks
 a

nd
 c

on
ne

ct
io

ns
, 

ad
di

ng
 t

o 
th

e 
al

re
ad

y 
en

vi
ab

le
 

qu
al

ity
 

of
 

lif
e 

an
d 

pr
ov

id
in

g 
th

e 
op

po
rt

un
iti

es
 

fo
r 

hi
gh

-q
ua

lit
y 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

gr
ow

th
 t

ow
ar

ds
 w

hi
ch

 t
he

 p
ub

lic
 a

nd
 p

riv
at

e 
se

ct
or

s 
ca

n 
w

or
k 

to
 d

el
iv

er
 o

ur
 v

is
io

n.
 

 1.
5 

T
hi

s 
pl

an
 i

s 
th

e 
fir

st
 s

tr
at

eg
ic

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
pl

an
 t

o 
co

ve
r 

th
e 

ar
ea

. 
It 

ha
s 

be
en

 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

fr
om

 
th

e 
pr

ev
io

us
 

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
pl

an
 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 b
y 

S
co

tti
sh

 M
in

is
te

rs
 in

 2
00

9 
an

d 
re

fle
ct

s 
th

e 
w

id
es

pr
ea

d 
su

pp
or

t t
ha

t p
la

n 
re

ce
iv

ed
.  

 1.
6 

T
he

 p
la

n 
co

ve
rs

 th
e 

w
ho

le
 o

f A
be

rd
ee

n 
C

ity
 a

nd
 A

be
rd

ee
ns

hi
re

 
ex

ce
pt

 th
at

 p
ar

t w
ith

in
 th

e 
C

ai
rn

go
rm

s 
N

at
io

na
l P

ar
k.

 I
t 

ha
s 

be
en

 
pr

ep
ar

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
A

be
rd

ee
n 

C
ity

 a
nd

 S
hi

re
 S

tr
at

eg
ic

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 

P
la

nn
in

g 
A

ut
ho

rit
y 

on
 b

eh
al

f 
of

 A
be

rd
ee

n 
C

ity
 a

nd
 A

be
rd

ee
ns

hi
re

 
co

un
ci

ls
. I

t r
ep

re
se

nt
s 

a 
sh

ar
ed

 v
is

io
n 

fo
r 

th
e 

fu
tu

re
 o

f 
th

e 
ar

e
a 

an
d 

ha
s 

be
en

 d
ev

el
op

ed
 in

 a
 w

ay
 w

hi
ch

 a
im

s 
to

 in
cl

ud
e 

ev
er

yo
ne

 in
 th

e 
pr

oc
es

s,
 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
, 

pu
bl

ic
-s

ec
to

r 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

ns
 

an
d 

bu
si

ne
ss

es
. 

 L
ay

o
u

t 
an

d
 c

o
n

te
n

t 
o

f 
th

e 
p

la
n

 
1.

7 
T

hi
s 

pl
an

 fo
cu

se
s 

on
 w

ha
t w

e 
w

an
t t

o 
ch

an
ge

. I
t d

oe
s 

no
t c

ov
er

 
al

l p
la

nn
in

g 
is

su
es

 b
ut

 o
nl

y 
th

os
e 

w
hi

ch
 a

re
 n

at
io

na
lly

 o
r 

re
gi

on
al

ly
 

im
po

rt
an

t 
or

 c
an

 b
es

t 
be

 d
ea

lt 
w

ith
 b

y 
A

be
rd

ee
n 

C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

an
d 

A
be

rd
ee

ns
hi

re
 

C
ou

nc
il 

w
or

ki
ng

 
to

ge
th

er
. 

B
ot

h 
co

un
ci

ls
 

pr
ep

ar
e 

lo
ca

l 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
pl

an
s 

w
hi

ch
 c

ov
er

 a
 w

id
er

 r
an

ge
 o

f 
is

su
es

 i
n 

m
or

e 
de

ta
il.

 
 1.

8 
A

 
ke

y 
pa

rt
 

of
 

th
is

 
pl

an
 

is
 

ou
r 

vi
si

on
 

an
d 

sp
at

ia
l 

st
ra

te
gy

, 
su

pp
or

te
d 

by
 a

 s
er

ie
s 

of
 o

bj
ec

tiv
es

 a
nd

 t
ar

ge
ts

. 
P

ro
po

sa
ls

 a
re

 
in

cl
ud

ed
 w

he
re

 t
he

y 
ar

e 
im

po
rt

an
t 

to
 p

ut
tin

g 
th

e 
pl

an
 in

to
 p

ra
ct

ic
e.

 
W

e 
ha

ve
 t

rie
d 

to
 u

se
 a

s 
fe

w
 t

ec
hn

ic
al

 t
er

m
s 

as
 p

os
si

bl
e,

 b
ut

 t
he

re
 

is
 a

 g
lo

ss
ar

y 
at

 t
he

 e
nd

 o
f 

th
e 

pl
an

 w
hi

ch
 d

ef
in

es
 s

om
e 

w
or

ds
 a

nd
 

ph
ra

se
s 

yo
u 

m
ay

 n
ot

 b
e 

fa
m

ili
ar

 w
ith

.  
 1.

9 
It 

is
 v

ita
l t

o 
re

co
gn

is
e 

th
e 

lin
ks

 b
et

w
ee

n 
th

e 
di

ffe
re

nt
 p

ar
ts

 o
f t

he
 

pl
an

. W
e 

ha
ve

 d
iv

id
ed

 th
e 

pl
an

 in
to

 a
 n

um
be

r 
of

 th
em

es
 r

at
he

r 
th

an
 

to
pi

c-
ba

se
d 

ch
ap

te
rs

 b
ec

au
se

 in
di

vi
du

al
 to

pi
cs

 r
el

at
e 

to
 s

om
e,

 if
 n

ot
 

al
l, 

of
 th

e 
th

em
es

. T
hi

s 
em

ph
as

is
es

 th
at

 th
e 

pl
an

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 r

ea
d 

as
 

a 
w

ho
le

.  
 1.

10
 T

he
 p

la
n 

is
 s

up
po

rt
ed

 b
y 

a 
P

ro
po

se
d 

A
ct

io
n 

P
ro

gr
am

m
e 

w
hi

ch
 

sh
ow

s 
ho

w
 w

e 
pl

an
 t

o 
pu

t 
th

e 
pl

an
 i

nt
o 

ef
fe

ct
 w

ith
 o

ur
 p

ar
tn

er
s.

 
Lo

ca
l 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

pl
an

s 
ar

e 
on

e 
of

 t
he

 m
ai

n 
w

ay
s 

of
 p

ut
tin

g 
th

is
 

pl
an

 in
to

 e
ffe

ct
 b

ut
 t

he
re

 a
re

 o
th

er
s.

 B
ot

h 
co

un
ci

ls
 w

ill
 u

se
 t

hi
s 

pl
an

 
in

 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 
ca

se
s 

to
 

he
lp

 
de

ci
de

 
w

he
th

er
 

a 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
pr

op
os

al
 w

ou
ld

 t
ak

e 
th

e 
ar

ea
 i

n 
th

e 
rig

ht
 d

ire
ct

io
n.

 H
ow

ev
er

, 
lo

ca
l 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

pl
an

s 
(a

nd
 s

up
pl

em
en

ta
ry

 g
ui

da
nc

e)
 c

on
si

st
en

t 
w

ith
 

th
is

 p
la

n 
w

ill
 b

e 
th

e 
m

ai
n 

pl
an

s 
w

e 
w

ill
 u

se
 t

o 
as

se
ss

 a
pp

lic
at

io
ns

 
fo

r 
pl

an
ni

ng
 p

er
m

is
si

on
. 

Page 438



3 

In
fl

u
en

ce
s 

o
n

 t
h

e 
p

la
n

 
1.

11
 W

e 
ha

ve
 w

rit
te

n 
th

is
 p

la
n 

w
ith

 a
 w

id
e 

ra
ng

e 
of

 i
nt

er
na

tio
na

l, 
na

tio
na

l a
nd

 r
eg

io
na

l i
nf

lu
en

ce
s 

in
 m

in
d.

  
 1.

12
 

A
t 

an
 

in
te

rn
at

io
na

l 
le

ve
l, 

is
su

es
 

su
ch

 
as

 
cl

im
at

e 
ch

an
ge

, 
pr

ot
ec

tin
g 

th
e 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t, 

se
cu

rin
g 

en
er

gy
 s

up
pl

ie
s 

fo
r 

th
e 

fu
tu

re
 

an
d 

ec
on

om
ic

 r
ec

ov
er

y 
al

l s
et

 a
n 

im
po

rt
an

t c
on

te
xt

 fo
r 

th
is

 p
la

n.
 

 1.
13

 A
t 

th
e 

na
tio

na
l 

le
ve

l, 
N

at
io

na
l 

P
la

nn
in

g 
F

ra
m

ew
or

k 
2 

w
as

 
pu

bl
is

he
d 

by
 

th
e 

S
co

tti
sh

 
G

ov
er

nm
en

t 
in

 
Ju

ne
 

20
09

. 
T

he
 

fr
am

ew
or

k 
lo

ok
s 

fo
rw

ar
d 

to
 

20
30

 
w

ith
 

th
e 

m
ai

n 
pa

rt
s 

of
 t

he
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

st
ra

te
gy

 b
ei

ng
 s

ho
w

n 
in

 
fig

ur
e 

2.
 T

he
 e

as
t 

co
as

t 
co

rr
id

or
 

fr
om

 
A

be
rd

ee
n 

to
 N

ew
ca

st
le

 i
s 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
as

 
a 

‘k
ey

 
ec

on
om

ic
 

co
rr

id
or

’ 
of

fe
rin

g 
op

po
rt

un
iti

es
 

to
 

de
ve

lo
p 

‘k
no

w
le

dg
e 

ec
on

om
y 

lin
ks

’ w
ith

 th
e 

en
er

gy
 a

nd
 

of
fs

ho
re

 
in

du
st

rie
s 

an
d 

th
e 

un
iv

er
si

tie
s 

al
on

g 
th

e 
ro

ut
e.

 
P

et
er

he
ad

 
is

 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

as
 

a 
‘d

ee
p 

w
at

er
 

op
po

rt
un

ity
’ 

an
d 

A
be

rd
ee

n 
as

 
an

 
in

te
rn

at
io

na
l 

ga
te

w
ay

. 
T

he
 A

90
 a

nd
 A

96
 a

re
 i

de
nt

ifi
ed

 a
s 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
tr

an
sp

or
t 

ro
ut

es
 w

hi
le

 
A

be
rd

ee
n 

is
 

al
so

 
sh

ow
n 

as
 

ha
vi

ng
 

‘s
tr

at
eg

ic
 

tr
an

sp
or

t 
ro

ut
es

’ 
be

yo
nd

 t
he

 s
tr

at
eg

ic
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

pl
an

 a
re

a.
 A

 p
ot

en
tia

l 
su

bs
ea

 
en

er
gy

 n
et

w
or

k 
ha

s 
be

en
 i

de
nt

ifi
ed

 o
ff 

th
e 

ea
st

 c
oa

st
, 

w
ith

 a
 k

ey
 

on
sh

or
e 

co
nn

ec
tio

n 
at

 P
et

er
he

ad
. 

 

1.
14

 A
lo

ng
 w

ith
 t

he
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

as
so

ci
at

ed
 w

ith
 t

he
 c

ha
ng

in
g 

na
tu

re
 o

f t
he

 o
ffs

ho
re

 o
il 

an
d 

ga
s 

in
du

st
ry

, t
he

 p
ot

en
tia

l o
f t

he
 N

or
th

 
E

as
t 

to
 b

ui
ld

 o
n 

its
 s

tr
en

gt
hs

 i
s 

al
so

 r
ec

og
ni

se
d 

– 
gr

ow
in

g 
an

d 
di

ve
rs

ify
in

g 
th

e 
ec

on
om

y.
 

T
he

 
N

at
io

na
l 

P
la

nn
in

g 
F

ra
m

ew
or

k 
em

ph
as

is
es

 th
e 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

 o
ffe

re
d 

by
 t

he
 d

ee
pe

st
 h

ar
bo

ur
 in

 t
he

 
N

or
th

 E
as

t a
t P

et
er

he
ad

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 a

 p
ot

en
tia

l r
ol

e 
in

 ta
ki

ng
 o

ffs
ho

re
 

eq
ui

pm
en

t 
ou

t 
of

 u
se

. 
T

hr
ee

 ‘
na

tio
na

l 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
’ 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

in
 

th
e 

ar
ea

 
– 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 
(in

cl
ud

in
g 

ac
ce

ss
) 

to
 

A
be

rd
ee

n 
ai

rp
or

t, 
th

e 
up

gr
ad

in
g 

of
 P

et
er

he
ad

 p
ow

er
 s

ta
tio

n 
an

d 
re

in
fo

rc
in

g 
th

e 
el

ec
tr

ic
ity

 g
rid

 (
E

as
t C

oa
st

 tr
an

sm
is

si
on

 r
ou

te
).

 
 1.

15
 

R
ec

en
t 

le
gi

sl
at

io
n 

an
d 

S
co

tti
sh

 
G

ov
er

nm
en

t 
st

ra
te

gi
es

, 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
e 

C
lim

at
e 

C
ha

ng
e 

(S
co

tla
nd

) 
A

ct
 

20
09

, 
La

nd
 

U
se

 
S

tr
at

eg
y,

 
Z

er
o 

W
as

te
 

P
la

n,
 

E
co

no
m

ic
 

S
tr

at
eg

y,
 

R
eg

en
er

at
io

n 
S

tr
at

eg
y 

an
d 

th
e 

A
ge

nd
a 

fo
r 

C
iti

es
, 

ha
ve

 
be

en
 

pu
bl

is
he

d 
si

nc
e 

th
e 

pr
ev

io
us

 s
tr

uc
tu

re
 p

la
n.

 F
or

th
co

m
in

g 
w

or
k 

in
cl

ud
es

 m
ar

in
e 

pl
an

ni
ng

 a
t t

he
 

na
tio

na
l a

nd
 r

eg
io

na
l l

ev
el

. 
 1.

16
 

O
ve

r 
th

e 
la

st
 

fe
w

 
ye

ar
s 

th
e 

S
co

tti
sh

 G
ov

er
nm

en
t 

ha
s 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
a 

ra
ng

e 
of

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 to
 th

e 
ro

ad
 

an
d 

ra
il 

in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 

in
 

th
e 

ar
ea

 
ov

er
 t

he
 p

er
io

d 
of

 t
hi

s 
pl

an
. 

T
he

se
 

in
cl

ud
e 

m
ak

in
g 

th
e 

fu
ll 

le
ng

th
 o

f 
th

e 
A

96
 a

 d
ua

l 
ca

rr
ia

ge
w

ay
 a

s 
w

el
l 

as
 

re
du

ci
ng

 
jo

ur
ne

y 
tim

es
 

an
d 

in
cr

ea
si

ng
 th

e 
fr

eq
ue

nc
y 

of
 tr

ai
ns

 o
n 

th
e 

A
be

rd
ee

n-
In

ve
rn

es
s 

ra
ilw

ay
 li

ne
. 

 1.
17

 
T

he
 

re
gi

on
al

 
st

ra
te

gi
es

 
an

d 
pl

an
s 

w
hi

ch
 h

av
e 

an
 i

m
po

rt
an

t 
in

flu
en

ce
 o

n 
th

is
 p

la
n 

in
cl

ud
e 

th
e 

N
or

th
 E

as
t 

S
co

tla
nd

 T
ra

ns
po

rt
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
’s

 (
N

es
tr

an
s)

 R
eg

io
na

l 
T

ra
ns

po
rt

 S
tr

at
eg

y 
an

d 
A

be
rd

ee
n 

C
ity

 a
nd

 S
hi

re
 E

co
no

m
ic

 F
ut

ur
e’

s 
E

co
no

m
ic

 M
an

ife
st

o.
 

Page 439



4 

2 
– 

T
h

e 
vi

si
o

n
 f

o
r 

th
e 

p
la

n
 

 2.
1 

W
e 

ne
ed

 
to

 
fa

ce
 

up
 

to
 

th
e 

ch
al

le
ng

es
 

an
d 

gr
as

p 
th

e 
op

po
rt

un
iti

es
 

ah
ea

d 
to

 
be

 
ab

le
 

to
 

m
ai

nt
ai

n 
an

d 
im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
at

tr
ac

tiv
en

es
s 

of
 th

e 
re

gi
on

 a
s 

a 
pl

ac
e 

to
 li

ve
, v

is
it 

an
d 

do
 b

us
in

es
s.

 
A

 v
is

io
n 

fo
r 

a 
su

cc
es

sf
ul

 a
nd

 s
us

ta
in

ab
le

 fu
tu

re
 is

 s
et

 o
ut

 b
el

ow
. 

 V
is

io
n

 
“A

be
rd

ee
n 

C
ity

 
an

d 
S

hi
re

 
w

ill
 

be
 

an
 

ev
en

 
m

or
e 

at
tr

ac
tiv

e,
 

pr
os

pe
ro

us
 a

nd
 s

us
ta

in
ab

le
 E

ur
op

ea
n 

ci
ty

 r
eg

io
n 

an
d 

an
 e

xc
el

le
nt

 
pl

ac
e 

to
 li

ve
, v

is
it 

an
d 

do
 b

us
in

es
s.

  
 W

e 
w

ill
 b

e 
re

co
gn

is
ed

 fo
r:

 
 · 

ou
r 

en
te

rp
ris

e 
an

d 
in

ve
nt

iv
en

es
s,

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
ly

 in
 t

he
 k

no
w

le
dg

e 
ec

on
om

y 
an

d 
in

 h
ig

h-
va

lu
e 

m
ar

ke
ts

;  
· 

th
e 

un
iq

ue
 q

ua
lit

ie
s 

of
 o

ur
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

t; 
an

d 
· 

ou
r 

hi
gh

 q
ua

lit
y 

of
 li

fe
.  

 W
e 

w
ill

 h
av

e 
ac

te
d 

co
nf

id
en

tly
 a

nd
 t

ak
en

 th
e 

co
ur

ag
eo

us
 d

ec
is

io
ns

 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

to
 f

ur
th

er
 d

ev
el

op
 a

 r
ob

us
t 

an
d 

re
si

lie
nt

 e
co

no
m

y 
an

d 
to

 
le

ad
 t

he
 w

ay
 t

ow
ar

ds
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

be
in

g 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e,
 i

nc
lu

di
ng

 
de

al
in

g 
w

ith
 c

lim
at

e 
ch

an
ge

 a
nd

 c
re

at
in

g 
a 

m
or

e 
in

cl
us

iv
e 

so
ci

et
y.

” 
 2.

2 
T

o 
m

ak
e 

th
is

 v
is

io
n 

a 
re

al
ity

, 
w

e 
ha

ve
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 a
 s

er
ie

s 
of

 
ai

m
s.

 T
he

se
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

 u
se

fu
l g

ui
de

 w
hi

ch
 b

ot
h 

in
te

rp
re

ts
 t

he
 v

is
io

n 
an

d 
fo

cu
se

s 
cl

ea
rly

 o
n 

th
e 

ro
le

 t
hi

s 
pl

an
 w

ill
 p

la
y 

in
 d

el
iv

er
in

g 
it.

 
T

hi
s 

re
co

gn
is

es
 t

ha
t 

m
an

y 
di

ffe
re

nt
 p

eo
pl

e 
an

d 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

ns
 w

ill
 

be
 in

vo
lv

ed
 in

 d
el

iv
er

in
g 

th
is

 v
is

io
n.

  
 

A
im

s 
 T

he
 m

ai
n 

ai
m

s 
of

 th
e 

pl
an

 a
re

 to
: 

 • 
pr

ov
id

e 
a 

st
ro

ng
 fr

am
ew

or
k 

fo
r 

in
ve

st
m

en
t d

ec
is

io
ns

 w
hi

ch
 h

el
p 

to
 

gr
ow

 
an

d 
di

ve
rs

ify
 

th
e 

re
gi

on
al

 
ec

on
om

y,
 

su
pp

or
te

d 
by

 
pr

om
ot

in
g 

th
e 

ne
ed

 
to

 
us

e 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

m
or

e 
ef

fic
ie

nt
ly

 
an

d 
ef

fe
ct

iv
el

y;
 a

nd
 

• 
ta

ke
 o

n 
th

e 
ur

ge
nt

 c
ha

lle
ng

es
 o

f 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
an

d 
cl

im
at

e 
ch

an
ge

. 
 T

o 
su

pp
or

t t
he

se
 m

ai
n 

ai
m

s,
 th

e 
pl

an
 a

ls
o 

ai
m

s 
to

: 
• 

m
ak

e 
su

re
 t

he
 a

re
a 

ha
s 

en
ou

gh
 p

eo
pl

e,
 h

om
es

 a
nd

 j
ob

s 
to

 
su

pp
or

t 
th

e 
le

ve
l 

of
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

an
d 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
ne

ed
ed

 t
o 

m
ai

nt
ai

n 
an

d 
im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
qu

al
ity

 o
f l

ife
;  

• 
pr

ot
ec

t a
nd

 im
pr

ov
e 

ou
r 

va
lu

ed
 a

ss
et

s 
an

d 
re

so
ur

ce
s,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
th

e 
bu

ilt
 a

nd
 n

at
ur

al
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

t a
nd

 o
ur

 c
ul

tu
ra

l h
er

ita
ge

;  
• 

he
lp

 c
re

at
e 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

m
ix

ed
 c

om
m

un
iti

es
, a

nd
 th

e 
as

so
ci

at
ed

 
in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

, 
w

hi
ch

 m
ee

t 
th

e 
hi

gh
es

t 
st

an
da

rd
s 

of
 u

rb
an

 a
nd

 
ru

ra
l 

de
si

gn
 a

nd
 c

at
er

 f
or

 t
he

 n
ee

ds
 o

f 
th

e 
w

ho
le

 p
op

ul
at

io
n;

 
an

d 
 

• 
m

ak
e 

th
e 

m
os

t 
ef

fic
ie

nt
 u

se
 o

f 
th

e 
tr

an
sp

or
t 

ne
tw

or
k,

 r
ed

uc
in

g 
th

e 
ne

ed
 f

or
 p

eo
pl

e 
to

 t
ra

ve
l 

an
d 

m
ak

in
g 

su
re

 t
ha

t 
w

al
ki

ng
, 

cy
cl

in
g 

an
d 

pu
bl

ic
 tr

an
sp

or
t a

re
 a

ttr
ac

tiv
e 

ch
oi

ce
s.

 
 2.

3 
W

e 
ar

e 
co

m
m

itt
ed

 t
o 

al
l 

th
e 

ai
m

s 
as

 a
 w

ho
le

. 
T

hi
s 

is
 t

he
 o

nl
y 

w
ay

 w
e 

w
ill

 b
e 

ab
le

 to
 a

ch
ie

ve
 o

ur
 v

is
io

n.
  

 P
o

lic
y 

 In
 

as
se

ss
in

g 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
pr

op
os

al
s,

 
w

e 
w

ill
 

ba
la

nc
e 

th
e 

im
po

rt
an

ce
 g

iv
en

 t
o 

ea
ch

 a
im

 i
n 

co
m

in
g 

to
 a

 d
ec

is
io

n,
 t

ak
in

g 
in

to
 

ac
co

un
t t

he
 s

pa
tia

l s
tr

at
eg

y,
 o

bj
ec

tiv
es

 a
nd

 ta
rg

et
s 

of
 th

e 
pl

an
. 

Page 440



5 

3 
– 

T
h

e 
sp

at
ia

l s
tr

at
eg

y 
 3.

1 
A

ll 
pa

rt
s 

of
 t

he
 N

or
th

 E
as

t 
ar

e 
im

po
rt

an
t 

fo
r 

th
e 

fu
tu

re
 o

f 
th

e 
ar

ea
. 

H
ow

ev
er

, 
di

ffe
re

nt
 a

re
as

 w
ill

 ta
ke

 d
iff

er
en

t 
ro

le
s 

as
 a

 r
es

ul
t o

f 
th

ei
r 

cu
rr

en
t 

ch
ar

ac
te

ris
tic

s 
an

d 
fu

tu
re

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s.
 T

hi
s 

pl
an

 w
ill

 
se

t 
a 

cl
ea

r 
di

re
ct

io
n 

an
d 

be
 s

pe
ci

fic
 w

he
re

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
, 

w
hi

le
 g

iv
in

g 
lo

ca
l 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

pl
an

s 
th

e 
op

po
rt

un
ity

 
to

 
re

sp
on

d 
to

 
lo

ca
l 

ci
rc

um
st

an
ce

s.
  

 3.
2 

Id
en

tif
yi

ng
 w

he
re

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
w

ill
 t

ak
e 

pl
ac

e 
is

 a
 v

ita
l 

pa
rt

 o
f 

de
liv

er
in

g 
th

e 
ch

an
ge

s 
ne

ed
ed

 i
n 

th
e 

A
be

rd
ee

n 
C

ity
 a

nd
 S

hi
re

 
ar

ea
. 

B
ei

ng
 c

le
ar

 a
bo

ut
 w

he
re

 w
e 

w
an

t 
ne

w
 h

om
es

, 
bu

si
ne

ss
es

 
an

d 
ot

he
r 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

 t
o 

be
 p

ro
vi

de
s 

lo
ng

-t
er

m
 c

er
ta

in
ty

 a
nd

 
co

nf
id

en
ce

 
fo

r 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
, 

bu
si

ne
ss

es
 

an
d 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
ns

 
th

at
 

pr
ov

id
e 

se
rv

ic
es

. 
It 

al
lo

w
s 

us
 t

o 
m

ak
e 

be
st

 u
se

 o
f 

th
e 

in
ve

st
m

en
t 

th
at

 w
e 

w
ill

 n
ee

d 
to

 m
ai

nt
ai

n 
an

d 
im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
qu

al
ity

 o
f 

lif
e 

in
 t

he
 

ar
ea

 o
ve

r 
th

e 
co

m
in

g 
de

ca
de

s 
of

 g
ro

w
th

. 
 3.

3 
W

e 
ha

ve
 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
a 

sp
at

ia
l 

st
ra

te
gy

 
w

hi
ch

 
pr

om
ot

es
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

in
 p

la
ce

s 
th

at
 m

ee
t 

th
e 

ne
ed

s 
of

 b
us

in
es

s 
an

d,
 a

t 
th

e 
sa

m
e 

tim
e,

 a
re

 s
us

ta
in

ab
le

 a
nd

 t
ak

e 
on

 t
he

 c
ha

lle
ng

es
 o

f 
cl

im
at

e 
ch

an
ge

. 
T

he
 s

tr
at

eg
y 

al
so

 r
ec

og
ni

se
s 

th
e 

ne
ed

 t
o 

m
ai

nt
ai

n 
an

d 
im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
ar

ea
’s

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

 a
nd

 th
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 th
ey

 d
ep

en
d 

on
. 

 3.
4 

A
ll 

pa
rt

s 
of

 th
e 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t p
la

n 
ar

ea
 a

re
 e

ith
er

 w
ith

in
 

a 
st

ra
te

gi
c 

gr
ow

th
 a

re
a 

or
 a

 l
oc

al
 g

ro
w

th
 a

nd
 d

iv
er

si
fic

at
io

n 
ar

ea
. 

H
ow

ev
er

, 
so

m
e 

ar
ea

s 
ar

e 
al

so
 i

de
nt

ifi
ed

 a
s 

re
ge

ne
ra

tio
n 

pr
io

rit
y 

ar
ea

s.
 

 3.
5 

T
hi

s 
st

ra
te

gy
 (

se
e 

fig
ur

e 
3)

 f
oc

us
es

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
in

 p
la

ce
s 

w
he

re
 t

he
re

 a
re

 c
le

ar
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

to
 e

nc
ou

ra
ge

 p
eo

pl
e 

to
 u

se
 

pu
bl

ic
 t

ra
ns

po
rt

, 
w

hi
ch

 i
ts

el
f 

ca
n 

be
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

in
 a

n 
ef

fic
ie

nt
 w

ay
. 

T
he

 s
tr

at
eg

y 
pl

an
s 

fo
r 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 g

ro
w

th
 i

n 
a 

lim
ite

d 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 
pl

ac
es

, w
he

re
 th

er
e 

ca
n 

be
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t p
ub

lic
 a

nd
 p

riv
at

e 
in

ve
st

m
en

t 
in

 s
ch

oo
ls

, 
co

m
m

un
ity

 f
ac

ili
tie

s 
an

d 
tr

an
sp

or
t 

in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 w

ith
ou

t 
af

fe
ct

in
g 

pe
op

le
’s

 q
ua

lit
y 

of
 l

ife
. 

It 
al

so
 p

ro
vi

de
s 

th
e 

fle
xi

bi
lit

y 
to

 

m
ee

t 
th

e 
ne

ed
s 

of
 l

oc
al

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

. 
T

he
 s

tr
at

eg
y 

al
so

 i
de

nt
ifi

es
 

th
os

e 
ar

ea
s 

th
at

 n
ee

d 
in

ve
st

m
en

t 
to

 t
ac

kl
e 

im
po

rt
an

t 
re

ge
ne

ra
tio

n 
ne

ed
s.

  
 3.

6 
 A

ll 
ar

ea
s 

w
ill

 n
ee

d 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 u
pg

ra
de

s 
to

 t
he

 c
om

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

 
in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 t
o 

al
lo

w
 f

or
 s

up
er

fa
st

 b
ro

ad
ba

nd
 e

ar
ly

 i
n 

th
e 

pe
rio

d 
co

ve
re

d 
by

 th
is

 p
la

n.
 

 T
ar

g
et

s 
 • 

O
ve

r 
th

e 
pe

rio
d 

to
 2

03
5,

 a
t 

le
as

t 
75

%
 o

f 
al

l 
ho

m
es

 b
ui

lt,
 a

nd
 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t 

la
nd

 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

sh
ou

ld
 

be
 

in
 

th
e 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
gr

ow
th

 
ar

ea
s.

  
• 

O
ve

r 
th

e 
pe

rio
d 

to
 2

03
5,

 a
t l

ea
st

 5
0%

 o
f 

al
l h

om
es

 b
ui

lt 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

in
 A

be
rd

ee
n 

C
ity

.  
• 

F
or

 a
ll 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

 m
ee

tin
g 

m
or

e 
th

an
 l

oc
al

 n
ee

ds
 t

o 
be

 i
n 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
gr

ow
th

 a
re

as
, u

nl
es

s 
an

ot
he

r 
ar

ea
 c

an
 b

e 
ju

st
ifi

ed
. 

 H
o

w
 t

o
 m

ee
t 

th
e 

ta
rg

et
s 

 • 
Lo

ca
l d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

pl
an

s 
(a

nd
, 

w
he

re
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
, 

su
pp

le
m

en
ta

ry
 

gu
id

an
ce

) 
w

ill
 u

se
 t

he
 s

pa
tia

l 
st

ra
te

gy
 t

o 
se

t 
po

lic
ie

s 
an

d 
id

en
tif

y 
la

nd
 fo

r 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t. 
• 

P
la

nn
in

g 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 w

ill
 b

e 
as

se
ss

ed
 a

ga
in

st
 th

e 
sp

at
ia

l s
tr

at
eg

y 
to

 d
ec

id
e 

w
he

th
er

 t
he

 lo
ca

tio
n,

 n
at

ur
e 

an
d 

sc
al

e 
of

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
is

 
in

 li
ne

 w
ith

 th
e 

pl
an

.  
 M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 

 P
at

te
rn

s 
in

 h
ou

se
-b

ui
ld

in
g 

an
d 

la
nd

 u
se

d 
fo

r 
ne

w
 e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t u

se
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

m
on

ito
re

d 
ea

ch
 y

ea
r.

 

Page 441



6 

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 g

ro
w

th
 a

re
as

  
 3.

7 
T

hi
s 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
pl

an
 id

en
tif

ie
s 

fo
ur

 s
tr

at
eg

ic
 g

ro
w

th
 

ar
ea

s 
w

hi
ch

 w
ill

 b
e 

th
e 

m
ai

n 
fo

cu
s 

fo
r 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

in
 t

he
 a

re
a 

up
 

to
 2

03
5.

  
 3.

8 
A

lth
ou

gh
 th

es
e 

ar
ea

s 
w

ill
 c

ar
ry

 o
ut

 d
iff

er
en

t 
ro

le
s,

 t
og

et
he

r 
th

ey
 

ca
n 

be
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

to
 a

cc
ou

nt
 f

or
 a

ro
un

d 
75

%
 o

f 
th

e 
gr

ow
th

 o
ve

r 
th

e 
ne

xt
 2

0 
ye

ar
s 

or
 m

or
e.

 T
he

 s
tr

at
eg

ic
 g

ro
w

th
 a

re
as

 a
re

 c
en

tr
ed

 o
n 

A
be

rd
ee

n 
an

d 
th

e 
m

ai
n 

pu
bl

ic
 t

ra
ns

po
rt

 r
ou

te
s.

 T
he

y 
ai

m
 t

o 
m

ak
e 

ho
us

in
g,

 
em

pl
oy

m
en

t 
an

d 
se

rv
ic

es
 

hi
gh

ly
 

ac
ce

ss
ib

le
 

by
 

pu
bl

ic
 

tr
an

sp
or

t a
nd

 th
ey

 w
ill

 b
e 

re
la

tiv
el

y 
na

rr
ow

, 
up

 t
o 

ar
ou

nd
 5

km
 w

id
e.

 
H

ow
ev

er
, 

th
e 

A
be

rd
ee

ns
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
P

la
n 

w
ill

 d
ec

id
e 

w
hi

ch
 s

et
tle

m
en

ts
 a

nd
 s

ite
s 

ar
e 

w
ith

in
 a

 s
tr

at
eg

ic
 g

ro
w

th
 a

re
a.

 
 3.

9 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

in
 t

he
se

 a
re

as
 w

ill
 b

rin
g 

ab
ou

t 
a 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 n

ee
d 

fo
r 

ne
w

 a
nd

 i
m

pr
ov

ed
 i

nf
ra

st
ru

ct
ur

e.
 T

hi
s 

w
ill

 i
nc

lu
de

 n
ew

 p
rim

ar
y 

an
d 

se
co

nd
ar

y 
sc

ho
ol

s,
 o

pe
n 

sp
ac

e,
 i

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 t
o 

ro
ad

s 
an

d 
ra

ilw
ay

s 
as

 w
el

l 
as

 w
al

ki
ng

, 
cy

cl
in

g 
an

d 
bu

s 
ne

tw
or

ks
, 

an
d 

ne
w

 
w

at
er

 a
nd

 w
as

te
-w

at
er

 s
ys

te
m

s.
  

 3.
10

 W
e 

sh
ou

ld
 e

xp
lo

re
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

to
 p

ut
 i

n 
pl

ac
e 

a 
st

ra
te

gi
c 

w
al

ki
ng

 a
nd

 c
yc

le
 n

et
w

or
k 

w
hi

ch
 b

ui
ld

s 
on

 t
he

 c
ur

re
nt

 n
et

w
or

ks
 

be
in

g 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

in
 A

be
rd

ee
n 

an
d 

A
be

rd
ee

ns
hi

re
 t

ow
ns

 b
y 

lin
ki

ng
 

th
es

e 
to

ge
th

er
. 

W
e 

sh
ou

ld
 

do
 

th
is

 
in

 
a 

w
ay

 
w

hi
ch

 
cr

ea
te

s 
op

po
rt

un
iti

es
 

fo
r 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 
to

 
th

e 
na

tu
ra

l 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t 
by

 
lin

ki
ng

 h
ab

ita
ts

 a
nd

 s
pe

ci
es

 i
n 

gr
ee

n 
ne

tw
or

ks
. 

N
ew

 t
re

e-
pl

an
tin

g 
co

ul
d 

pl
ay

 a
n 

im
po

rt
an

t r
ol

e 
in

 d
el

iv
er

in
g 

th
es

e 
ne

tw
or

ks
. 

 3.
11

 T
hi

s 
in

ve
st

m
en

t i
n 

in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 is

 e
ss

en
tia

l i
f w

e 
ar

e 
to

 c
re

at
e 

su
cc

es
sf

ul
 s

us
ta

in
ab

le
 m

ix
ed

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

, 
an

d 
th

e 
co

st
 is

 li
ke

ly
 t

o 
be

 
se

ve
ra

l 
hu

nd
re

d 
m

ill
io

n 
po

un
ds

. 
W

hi
le

 
th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 
se

ct
or

 
is

 
co

m
m

itt
ed

 t
o 

in
ve

st
in

g 
in

 t
he

 a
re

a,
 a

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t 

pa
rt

 o
f 

th
e 

co
st

 w
ill

 
ha

ve
 t

o 
be

 p
ai

d 
fo

r 
by

 d
ev

el
op

er
s 

an
d 

la
nd

ow
ne

rs
 w

ho
 s

ho
ul

d 
ta

ke
 

ac
co

un
t o

f t
hi

s 
w

he
n 

ne
go

tia
tin

g 
th

e 
pr

ic
e 

pa
id

 fo
r 

la
nd

.  

3.
12

 
W

e 
al

so
 

ne
ed

 
in

ve
st

m
en

t 
in

 
ne

w
 

w
as

te
-m

an
ag

em
en

t 
in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 
su

ch
 

as
 

re
cy

cl
in

g,
 

co
m

po
st

in
g 

an
d 

en
er

gy
 

fr
om

 
w

as
te

. 
M

os
t 

of
 t

hi
s 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
lo

ca
te

d 
in

 t
he

 s
tr

at
eg

ic
 g

ro
w

th
 a

re
as

 
cl

os
e 

to
 A

be
rd

ee
n 

or
 in

 A
be

rd
ee

n 
its

el
f. 

 3.
13

 
A

ll 
fo

ur
 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
gr

ow
th

 
ar

ea
s 

sh
ou

ld
 

fo
cu

s 
on

 
cr

ea
tin

g 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
m

ix
ed

 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
 

w
ith

 
th

e 
se

rv
ic

es
, 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
an

d 
in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 fo

r 
th

e 
21

st
 c

en
tu

ry
.  

 3.
14

 W
e 

di
sc

us
s 

ea
ch

 o
f t

he
 fo

ur
 a

re
as

 in
 d

et
ai

l b
el

ow
. 

 

Page 442



7 

L
o

ca
l g

ro
w

th
 a

n
d

 d
iv

er
si

fi
ca

ti
o

n
 a

re
as

  
 3.

15
 M

os
t o

f 
A

be
rd

ee
ns

hi
re

 is
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

in
 th

is
 p

la
n 

fo
r 

lo
ca

l g
ro

w
th

 
an

d 
di

ve
rs

ifi
ca

tio
n.

 T
he

se
 a

re
as

 a
re

 i
m

po
rt

an
t 

as
se

ts
 t

o 
th

e 
N

or
th

 
E

as
t 

an
d 

S
co

tla
nd

 a
s 

a 
w

ho
le

, 
pr

ov
id

in
g 

ar
ea

s 
of

 r
ic

h 
ag

ric
ul

tu
ra

l 
la

nd
 a

s 
w

el
l 

as
 h

ig
h 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l 
qu

al
ity

 f
or

 t
ou

ris
m

 a
nd

 o
ut

do
or

 
re

cr
ea

tio
n.

 T
he

 t
ow

ns
 a

nd
 v

ill
ag

es
 r

ef
le

ct
 t

he
 d

iff
er

en
t 

ro
le

s 
th

ey
 

ha
ve

 p
la

ye
d 

ov
er

 ti
m

e.
 

 3.
16

 F
is

hi
ng

, 
fa

rm
in

g 
an

d 
fo

re
st

ry
 a

re
 i

m
po

rt
an

t 
se

ct
or

s 
of

 t
he

 
ec

on
om

y.
 H

ow
ev

er
, t

he
re

 is
 a

 n
ee

d 
fo

r 
di

ve
rs

ifi
ca

tio
n 

an
d 

gr
ow

th
 in

 
th

e 
ec

on
om

y 
in

 t
hi

s 
ar

ea
 t

o 
m

ee
t 

lo
ca

l 
ne

ed
s,

 w
ith

 t
ou

ris
t-

re
la

te
d 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

 
ha

vi
ng

 
a 

ro
le

 
to

 
pl

ay
. 

E
nc

ou
ra

gi
ng

 
em

pl
oy

m
en

t 
gr

ow
th

 
in

 
th

es
e 

ar
ea

s 
is

 
a 

ce
nt

ra
l 

pa
rt

 
of

 
m

ak
in

g 
th

em
 

m
or

e 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
an

d 
re

du
ci

ng
 t

he
 n

ee
d 

to
 c

om
m

ut
e,

 w
ith

 it
s 

ec
on

om
ic

, 
so

ci
al

 a
nd

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l c
on

se
qu

en
ce

s.
 

 3.
17

 
In

cr
ea

si
ng

 
tr

ee
 

co
ve

r 
ca

n 
br

in
g 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l, 
ec

on
om

ic
, 

so
ci

al
 a

nd
 c

om
m

un
ity

 b
en

ef
its

 i
f 

ne
w

 p
la

nt
in

g 
re

sp
ec

ts
 

th
e 

di
ffe

re
nt

 f
un

ct
io

ns
 o

f 
th

e 
la

nd
 c

on
ce

rn
ed

 a
nd

 it
s 

ro
le

 in
 a

 w
id

er
 

gr
ee

n 
ne

tw
or

k.
 T

he
re

 is
 c

le
ar

 p
ot

en
tia

l t
o 

in
cr

ea
se

 th
e 

tr
ee

 c
ov

er
 o

f 
th

is
 a

re
a 

w
hi

le
 r

es
pe

ct
in

g 
th

e 
co

m
pe

tin
g 

in
te

re
st

s 
fo

r 
la

nd
. T

hi
s 

w
ill

 
co

nt
rib

ut
e 

to
 a

 w
id

er
 S

co
tti

sh
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t 
ta

rg
et

 o
f 

in
cr

ea
si

ng
 t

re
e 

co
ve

r 
an

d 
re

co
gn

is
in

g 
th

e 
ro

le
 o

f 
w

oo
dl

an
d 

in
 r

ed
uc

in
g 

th
e 

ca
us

es
 

of
 c

lim
at

e 
ch

an
ge

 (
kn

ow
n 

as
 m

iti
ga

tio
n)

. 
 3.

18
 W

e 
ne

ed
 t

o 
im

pr
ov

e 
so

m
e 

of
 t

he
 r

oa
d 

in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 i

n 
th

e 
ar

ea
, 

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
ly

 
th

os
e 

lin
ks

 
to

 
an

d 
fr

om
 

no
rt

he
rn

 
co

as
ta

l 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
 s

uc
h 

as
 F

ra
se

rb
ur

gh
 a

nd
 B

an
ff.

 T
hi

s 
w

ill
 s

up
po

rt
 v

ita
l 

ec
on

om
ic

 g
ro

w
th

 a
nd

 r
eg

en
er

at
io

n 
in

 t
hi

s 
ar

ea
. 

T
hi

s 
ar

ea
 w

ill
 a

ls
o 

pl
ay

 a
 p

ar
t i

n 
su

pp
or

tin
g 

ne
w

 s
us

ta
in

ab
le

 e
ne

rg
y 

in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
, a

nd
 

ha
rb

ou
rs

 
al

on
g 

th
e 

no
rt

h 
co

as
t 

m
ay

 
pl

ay
 

a 
ro

le
 

in
 

su
pp

ly
in

g 
se

rv
ic

es
 to

 o
ffs

ho
re

 r
en

ew
ab

le
 e

ne
rg

y 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s.

 
 3.

19
 L

ev
el

s 
of

 g
ro

w
th

 in
 in

di
vi

du
al

 s
et

tle
m

en
ts

 s
ho

ul
d 

re
la

te
 to

 lo
ca

l 
ne

ed
s,

 a
lth

ou
gh

 t
he

 s
ca

le
 o

f 
th

is
 g

ro
w

th
 w

ill
 v

ar
y 

fr
om

 p
la

ce
 t

o 

pl
ac

e.
 

W
hi

le
 

w
e 

sh
ou

ld
 

ai
m

 
to

 
pr

ov
id

e 
a 

m
ix

 
of

 
ho

us
in

g 
op

po
rt

un
iti

es
 f

or
 e

ve
ry

on
e,

 w
e 

ne
ed

 t
o 

fo
cu

s 
on

 p
ro

vi
di

ng
 s

m
al

le
r 

ho
m

es
 

to
 

bu
y 

or
 

re
nt

, 
an

d 
a 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 

am
ou

nt
 

of
 

af
fo

rd
ab

le
 

ho
us

in
g.

 W
e 

ne
ed

 to
 g

iv
e 

pr
io

rit
y 

to
 m

ix
ed

-u
se

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 w

hi
ch

 
re

sp
ec

t t
he

 c
ha

ra
ct

er
 o

f t
he

 la
nd

sc
ap

e 
an

d 
lo

ca
l i

de
nt

ity
. 

 3.
20

 H
ou

si
ng

 a
llo

w
an

ce
s 

fo
r 

th
is

 a
re

a 
ar

e 
se

t 
ou

t 
be

lo
w

, 
w

hi
le

 
em

pl
oy

m
en

t l
an

d 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

m
ad

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

to
 m

ee
t l

oc
al

 n
ee

ds
. 

  
H

ou
si

ng
 a

llo
w

an
ce

s 
 

E
xi

st
in

g 
LD

P
 

al
lo

ca
tio

ns
 to

 
20

16
 

20
17

-2
02

6 
20

27
-2

03
5 

Lo
ca

l g
ro

w
th

 (
A

H
M

A
) 

1,
00

0 
1,

35
0 

1,
35

0 
Lo

ca
l g

ro
w

th
 (

R
H

M
A

) 
4,

20
0 

4,
00

0 
4,

00
0 

 3.
21

 I
n 

th
is

 a
re

a,
 t

he
re

 w
ill

 c
on

tin
ue

 t
o 

be
 p

re
ss

ur
e 

fo
r 

ho
us

in
g 

in
 

th
e 

co
un

tr
ys

id
e 

w
hi

ch
 i

s 
no

t 
co

nn
ec

te
d 

to
 e

xi
st

in
g 

se
ttl

em
en

ts
. 

H
ow

ev
er

, 
lo

ca
l 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

pl
an

s,
 i

n 
lin

e 
w

ith
 S

co
tti

sh
 P

la
nn

in
g 

P
ol

ic
y,

 s
ho

ul
d 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 t
hi

s 
by

 f
oc

us
in

g 
ne

w
 h

ou
si

ng
 i

n,
 o

r 
as

 a
n 

ex
te

ns
io

n 
to

, 
ex

is
tin

g 
se

ttl
em

en
ts

, 
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

ly
 t

ho
se

 w
hi

ch
 a

re
 w

el
l 

se
rv

ed
 b

y 
pu

bl
ic

 t
ra

ns
po

rt
. 

T
hi

s 
w

ill
 h

el
p 

to
 c

re
at

e 
an

d 
m

ai
nt

ai
n 

su
cc

es
sf

ul
 p

la
ce

s 
an

d 
be

 m
or

e 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e.
 

 3.
22

 I
n 

so
m

e 
ca

se
s,

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 w

hi
ch

 a
im

 t
o 

m
ee

t 
m

or
e 

th
an

 
lo

ca
l 

ne
ed

s 
m

ay
 n

ee
d 

to
 b

e 
ba

se
d 

in
 t

hi
s 

ar
ea

, 
su

ch
 a

s 
m

in
er

al
 

ex
tr

ac
tio

n.
 

In
 

th
es

e 
ca

se
s,

 
de

ve
lo

pe
rs

 
w

ill
 

ne
ed

 
to

 
ju

st
ify

 
th

is
 

ag
ai

ns
t 

th
e 

ai
m

s,
 

st
ra

te
gy

, 
ob

je
ct

iv
es

 
an

d 
ta

rg
et

s 
of

 
th

is
 

pl
an

. 
M

ee
tin

g 
re

ge
ne

ra
tio

n 
ne

ed
s 

co
ul

d 
be

 o
ne

 p
ar

t o
f t

hi
s 

ju
st

ifi
ca

tio
n.

 
  

Page 443



8 

R
eg

en
er

at
io

n
 p

ri
o

ri
ty

 a
re

as
  

3.
23

 
R

eg
en

er
at

io
n 

is
 

a 
vi

ta
l 

pa
rt

 
of

 
th

e 
st

ra
te

gy
 

of
 

th
is

 
pl

an
. 

In
eq

ua
lit

y 
ex

is
ts

 in
 s

om
e 

pa
rt

s 
of

 t
he

 a
re

a 
an

d 
th

es
e 

ar
ea

s 
w

ill
 n

ot
 

m
ee

t 
th

ei
r 

fu
ll 

po
te

nt
ia

l 
un

le
ss

 
w

e 
ta

ke
 

po
si

tiv
e 

st
ep

s.
 

T
he

se
 

ac
tio

ns
 a

re
 n

ee
de

d 
to

 s
up

po
rt

 o
ng

oi
ng

 c
om

m
un

ity
 e

ffo
rt

s 
an

d 
w

ill
 

in
vo

lv
e 

fo
rm

in
g 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
ps

 
ac

ro
ss

 
th

e 
pu

bl
ic

, 
pr

iv
at

e 
an

d 
vo

lu
nt

ar
y 

se
ct

or
s,

 a
nd

 w
ill

 f
oc

us
 o

n 
ac

hi
ev

in
g 

cl
ea

r 
re

su
lts

. W
or

k 
is

 
al

re
ad

y 
go

in
g 

on
 b

ut
 n

ee
ds

 to
 c

on
tin

ue
 a

nd
 in

cr
ea

se
. 

 3.
24

 T
he

 a
re

as
 in

 n
ee

d 
of

 r
eg

en
er

at
io

n 
ar

e 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

br
oa

dl
y 

in
 th

is
 

pl
an

 b
ut

 a
re

 f
oc

us
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

ne
ed

s 
of

 e
xi

st
in

g 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
. 

T
he

y 
in

cl
ud

e 
so

m
e 

of
 

th
e 

co
as

ta
l 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

 
of

 
no

rt
h 

an
d 

so
ut

h 
A

be
rd

ee
ns

hi
re

 (
in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
e 

tw
o 

la
rg

es
t 

to
w

ns
 o

f 
F

ra
se

rb
ur

gh
 a

nd
 

P
et

er
he

ad
),

 a
s 

w
el

l 
as

 p
ar

ts
 o

f 
A

be
rd

ee
n 

(t
he

 C
ity

 C
en

tr
e 

an
d 

a 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 it
s 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

).
 Im

pr
ov

in
g 

th
e 

ec
on

om
y,

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l 
qu

al
ity

, 
ac

ce
ss

ib
ili

ty
, 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

 
an

d 
th

e 
co

m
pe

tit
iv

en
es

s 
of

 b
us

in
es

s 
sh

ou
ld

 p
la

y 
a 

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
 r

ol
e 

in
 t

he
se

 
ar

ea
s.

 
 3.

25
 T

he
 c

ha
lle

ng
es

 a
nd

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
in

 t
he

se
 a

re
as

 a
re

 w
id

e-
ra

ng
in

g 
an

d 
de

m
an

d 
a 

re
sp

on
se

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 t
o 

th
e 

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
 a

re
a.

 
W

e 
m

us
t 

do
 e

ve
ry

th
in

g 
w

e 
ca

n 
an

d 
ex

pl
or

e 
fu

nd
in

g 
to

 b
rin

g 
ab

ou
t 

po
si

tiv
e 

ch
an

ge
 i

n 
th

es
e 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

. 
T

hi
s 

ch
an

ge
 m

us
t 

br
in

g 
la

st
in

g 
be

ne
fit

s 
an

d 
ha

ve
 

po
si

tiv
e 

ef
fe

ct
s 

on
 

th
ei

r 
vi

ta
lit

y 
an

d 
vi

ab
ili

ty
. 

 3.
26

 O
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
fo

r 
re

de
ve

lo
pi

ng
 b

ro
w

nf
ie

ld
 s

ite
s 

w
ill

 v
ar

y 
fr

om
 

pl
ac

e 
to

 p
la

ce
 a

nd
 o

ve
r 

tim
e 

bu
t 

ne
ed

 t
o 

be
 a

 c
le

ar
 p

rio
rit

y.
 S

uc
h 

re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
sh

ou
ld

 
re

sp
ec

t 
th

e 
ch

ar
ac

te
r 

of
 

th
e 

lo
ca

l 
ar

ea
, 

im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

qu
al

ity
 o

f 
th

e 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t, 
us

e 
hi

gh
-q

ua
lit

y 
de

si
gn

 a
nd

 
in

cl
ud

e 
a 

m
ix

 o
f u

se
s.

 
 3.

27
 

A
be

rd
ee

n 
C

ity
 

C
ou

nc
il 

is
 

cu
rr

en
tly

 
de

ve
lo

pi
ng

 
a 

ne
w

 
fr

am
ew

or
k 

fo
r 

re
ge

ne
ra

tio
n 

to
 r

ep
la

ce
 it

s 
st

ra
te

gy
 o

f 
20

07
. 

T
hi

s 
w

ill
 

in
te

gr
at

e 
so

ci
al

, e
co

no
m

ic
 a

nd
 a

re
a-

ba
se

d 
in

iti
at

iv
es

 in
 a

 n
um

be
r 

of
 

pa
rt

s 
of

 
th

e 
ci

ty
. 

A
s 

w
el

l 
as

 
re

di
re

ct
in

g 
ex

is
tin

g 
sp

en
di

ng
, 

th
e 

st
ra

te
gy

 w
ill

 l
oo

k 
at

 a
cc

es
s 

to
 n

ew
 f

un
di

ng
 s

ou
rc

es
 a

nd
 t

he
 u

se
 o

f 
its

 o
w

n 
as

se
t b

as
e 

to
 s

tim
ul

at
e 

ne
w

 in
ve

st
m

en
t. 

 
 3.

28
 

A
be

rd
ee

ns
hi

re
 

C
ou

nc
il 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
a 

‘F
ra

m
ew

or
k 

fo
r 

R
eg

en
er

at
io

n’
 i

n 
20

10
 a

nd
 t

hi
s 

is
 s

up
po

rt
ed

 b
y 

a 
se

rie
s 

of
 a

ct
io

n 
pl

an
s.

 T
he

se
 a

re
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

ne
ed

s 
an

d 
op

po
rt

un
iti

es
 o

f p
ar

tic
ul

ar
 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

 
an

d 
co

ve
r 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 
to

 
th

e 
bu

ilt
 

an
d 

na
tu

ra
l 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t, 

ac
tio

ns
 t

o 
im

pr
ov

e 
to

w
n-

ce
nt

re
 v

ita
lit

y,
 a

nd
 m

ea
su

re
s 

to
 im

pr
ov

e 
op

po
rt

un
iti

es
 fo

r 
em

pl
oy

m
en

t. 
 

 3.
29

 I
m

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 t

o 
tr

an
sp

or
t 

ar
e 

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
ly

 i
m

po
rt

an
t 

to
 t

he
 

co
as

ta
l 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

 
of

 
no

rt
h 

an
d 

so
ut

h 
A

be
rd

ee
ns

hi
re

. 
T

he
 

A
be

rd
ee

n 
W

es
te

rn
 

P
er

ip
he

ra
l 

R
ou

te
 

an
d 

du
al

lin
g 

of
 

th
e 

A
90

 
be

tw
ee

n 
B

al
m

ed
ie

 
an

d 
T

ip
pe

rt
y 

ar
e 

im
po

rt
an

t 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 

to
 

he
lp

 
ta

ck
le

 t
he

se
 i

ss
ue

s.
 H

ow
ev

er
, 

fu
rt

he
r 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 t
o 

th
e 

A
90

 
no

rt
h 

of
 A

be
rd

ee
n 

an
d 

be
tte

r 
lin

ks
 t

o 
th

e 
tr

un
k 

ro
ad

 n
et

w
or

k 
(s

uc
h 

as
 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 
to

 
th

e 
A

94
7 

an
d 

A
95

2 
fr

om
 

B
an

ff 
an

d 
F

ra
se

rb
ur

gh
) 

w
ill

 a
ls

o 
he

lp
 i

m
pr

ov
e 

ac
ce

ss
 t

o 
m

ar
ke

ts
. 

A
cc

es
s 

to
 

se
rv

ic
es

 
an

d 
em

pl
oy

m
en

t 
in

 
so

ut
h 

A
be

rd
ee

ns
hi

re
 

is
 

be
in

g 
su

pp
or

te
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

ac
tio

n 
by

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

.  
 3.

30
 T

he
 

qu
al

ity
 

of
 

th
e 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t 

va
rie

s 
fr

om
 

ar
ea

 
to

 
ar

ea
, 

al
th

ou
gh

 i
t 

w
ill

 b
e 

po
ss

ib
le

 t
o 

fu
rt

he
r 

de
ve

lo
p 

to
ur

is
m

 i
n 

so
m

e 
co

as
ta

l a
re

as
. 

Page 444



9 

A
b

er
d

ee
n

 C
it

y 

3.
31

 
A

be
rd

ee
n 

is
 

S
co

tla
nd

’s
 

th
ird

-la
rg

es
t 

ci
ty

 
an

d 
th

e 
re

gi
on

al
 

ce
nt

re
 f

or
 e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t, 

re
ta

il,
 c

ul
tu

re
, 

he
al

th
 a

nd
 h

ig
he

r 
ed

uc
at

io
n 

as
 w

el
l a

s 
be

in
g 

th
e 

re
gi

on
’s

 tr
an

sp
or

t h
ub

 –
 w

ith
 r

oa
d,

 r
ai

l, 
se

a 
an

d 
ai

r 
lin

ks
. 

 3.
32

 A
ro

un
d 

ha
lf 

of
 a

ll 
ne

w
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

in
 t

he
 c

ity
 r

eg
io

n 
w

ill
 b

e 
w

ith
in

 A
be

rd
ee

n 
C

ity
. W

hi
le

 w
e 

pr
ef

er
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t t

o 
ta

ke
 p

la
ce

 o
n 

br
ow

nf
ie

ld
 s

ite
s,

 th
e 

sc
al

e 
of

 g
ro

w
th

 w
e 

ex
pe

ct
 w

ill
 m

ea
n 

th
at

 m
or

e 
th

an
 h

al
f 

of
 t

he
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

w
ill

 n
ee

d 
to

 t
ak

e 
pl

ac
e 

on
 g

re
en

fie
ld

 
si

te
s.

 R
ed

uc
in

g 
tr

av
el

 d
is

ta
nc

es
 a

nd
 m

ak
in

g 
w

al
ki

ng
, 

cy
cl

in
g 

an
d 

pu
bl

ic
 t

ra
ns

po
rt

 m
or

e 
at

tr
ac

tiv
e 

to
 p

eo
pl

e 
is

 v
ita

l. 
W

e 
w

ill
 n

ee
d 

to
 

m
ak

e 
su

re
 t

ha
t 

on
e 

or
 t

w
o 

se
co

nd
ar

y 
sc

ho
ol

s,
 a

ss
oc

ia
te

d 
pr

im
ar

y 
sc

ho
ol

s 
an

d 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 t

o 
tr

an
sp

or
t 

in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 a

re
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

to
 s

er
ve

 n
ew

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t i
n 

th
e 

ci
ty

.  
 3.

33
 H

ou
si

ng
 a

nd
 e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t a

llo
w

an
ce

s 
fo

r 
A

be
rd

ee
n 

  
H

ou
si

ng
 a

llo
w

an
ce

s 
 

E
xi

st
in

g 
LD

P
 a

llo
ca

tio
ns

 
to

 2
01

6 
20

17
-2

02
6 

20
27

-2
03

5 

B
ro

w
nf

ie
ld

 
4,

50
0 

3,
00

0 
3,

00
0 

G
re

en
fie

ld
 

12
,0

00
 

5,
00

0 
4,

00
0 

 
 

 
 

 
E

m
pl

oy
m

en
t l

an
d 

al
lo

w
an

ce
s 

(h
ec

ta
re

s)
 

 
10

5 
70

 
 3.

34
 W

e 
ha

ve
 p

la
nn

ed
 a

 w
id

e 
ra

ng
e 

of
 tr

an
sp

or
t m

ea
su

re
s 

to
 e

ith
er

 
ta

ck
le

 e
xi

st
in

g 
pr

ob
le

m
s 

or
 s

up
po

rt
 t

he
 g

ro
w

th
 p

la
nn

ed
 o

ve
r 

th
e 

ne
xt

 2
0 

to
 2

5 
ye

ar
s.

 W
hi

le
 c

on
ge

st
io

n 
is

 a
 k

ey
 f

ac
to

r,
 r

ed
uc

in
g 

th
e 

ef
fe

ct
 

of
 

tr
an

sp
or

t 
on

 
th

e 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t 
(in

cl
ud

in
g 

im
pr

ov
in

g 
ai

r 
qu

al
ity

) 
is

 a
ls

o 
im

po
rt

an
t. 

S
ub

st
an

tia
l 

pu
bl

ic
- 

se
ct

or
 f

un
di

ng
 w

ill
 

de
liv

er
 t

he
 A

be
rd

ee
n 

W
es

te
rn

 P
er

ip
he

ra
l 

R
ou

te
 a

nd
 p

ar
k-

an
d-

rid
e 

at
 

its
 

ju
nc

tio
n 

w
ith

 
th

e 
A

96
 

as
 

w
el

l 
as

 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 

to
 

th
e 

H
au

da
ga

in
 R

ou
nd

ab
ou

t 
an

d 
a 

ne
w

 b
rid

ge
 o

ve
r 

th
e 

R
iv

er
 D

on
. 

F
ur

th
er

 p
ro

po
sa

ls
 to

 s
up

po
rt

 g
ro

w
th

 in
cl

ud
e:

 

· 
ne

w
 

bu
s 

se
rv

ic
es

 
an

d 
ac

tio
n 

to
 

gi
ve

 
pr

io
rit

y 
to

 
bu

se
s 

an
d 

in
cr

ea
se

 th
ei

r 
fr

eq
ue

nc
y;

 
· 

ju
nc

tio
n 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 
on

 
th

e 
A

96
, 

A
94

4,
 

A
95

6,
 

A
90

, 
K

in
gs

w
el

ls
 N

or
th

 a
nd

 P
ar

kh
ill

;  
· 

sa
fe

ty
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 o

n 
th

e 
ac

ce
ss

 r
oa

d 
to

 th
e 

A
93

; 
· 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 to
 th

e 
P

ar
kw

ay
 a

nd
 P

er
sl

ey
 B

rid
ge

; a
nd

 
· 

a 
lin

k 
ov

er
 th

e 
R

iv
er

 D
ee

.  
 3.

35
 C

om
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
an

d 
tr

an
sp

or
t 

lin
ks

 a
re

 c
rit

ic
al

 t
o 

th
e 

fu
tu

re
 

pr
os

pe
rit

y 
of

 th
e 

ci
ty

 r
eg

io
n,

 a
nd

 A
be

rd
ee

n 
A

irp
or

t h
as

 a
 v

ita
l r

ol
e 

to
 

pl
ay

 
in

 
m

ai
nt

ai
ni

ng
 

an
d 

im
pr

ov
in

g 
th

es
e 

bo
th

 
do

m
es

tic
al

ly
 

an
d 

in
te

rn
at

io
na

lly
. 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 a
t 

th
e 

ai
rp

or
t 

ar
e 

ne
ed

ed
 t

o 
im

pr
ov

e 
cu

st
om

er
s’

 e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

an
d 

in
cr

ea
se

 t
he

 n
um

be
r 

of
 t

ra
ve

lle
rs

 it
 c

an
 

su
pp

or
t 

w
hi

le
 k

ee
pi

ng
 t

he
 e

ffe
ct

 o
n 

th
e 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t 

to
 a

 m
in

im
um

. 
A

cc
es

s 
to

 t
he

 a
irp

or
t 

al
so

 n
ee

ds
 t

o 
be

 im
pr

ov
ed

, 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

bu
ild

in
g 

th
e 

A
be

rd
ee

n 
W

es
te

rn
 P

er
ip

he
ra

l R
ou

te
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 r
el

at
ed

 p
ro

je
ct

s.
 

 3.
36

 A
be

rd
ee

n 
H

ar
bo

ur
 is

 a
 v

ita
l g

at
ew

ay
 f

or
 th

e 
re

gi
on

al
 e

co
no

m
y 

an
d 

pr
ov

id
es

 im
po

rt
an

t 
pa

ss
en

ge
r 

an
d 

fr
ei

gh
t 

lin
ks

 t
o 

th
e 

N
or

th
er

n 
Is

le
s.

 T
he

 h
ar

bo
ur

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

as
 a

 k
ey

 p
or

t 
in

 t
he

 N
at

io
na

l 
R

en
ew

ab
le

s 
In

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 P
la

n.
 W

or
k 

w
ill

 b
e 

ne
ed

ed
 t

o 
se

t 
ou

t 
in

 
m

or
e 

de
ta

il 
th

e 
lik

el
y 

im
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 o
f 

th
is

 a
nd

 t
he

 w
id

er
 p

ot
en

tia
l f

or
 

gr
ow

th
 i

t 
pr

ov
id

es
. 

G
iv

en
 i

ts
 c

ity
-c

en
tr

e 
lo

ca
tio

n,
 t

hi
s 

w
or

k 
sh

ou
ld

 
ta

ke
 i

nt
o 

ac
co

un
t 

th
e 

w
id

er
 c

ity
-c

en
tr

e 
re

ge
ne

ra
tio

n 
as

 p
ar

t 
of

 t
he

 
cu

rr
en

t 
C

ity
 C

en
tr

e 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

F
ra

m
ew

or
k 

an
d 

th
e 

co
m

pe
tin

g 
de

m
an

ds
 fo

r 
la

nd
.  

 3.
37

 A
be

rd
ee

n 
C

ity
 c

en
tr

e 
is

 a
n 

im
po

rt
an

t 
as

se
t 

fo
r 

th
e 

re
gi

on
 b

ut
 

its
 r

eg
en

er
at

io
n 

is
 v

ita
l f

or
 th

e 
ec

on
om

ic
 f

ut
ur

e 
of

 th
e 

ar
ea

 a
nd

 h
ow

  
po

te
nt

ia
l i

nv
es

to
rs

 a
nd

 r
es

id
en

ts
 s

ee
 it

. 
D

et
ai

ls
 o

n 
th

is
 a

re
 in

cl
ud

ed
 

in
 t

he
 C

ity
 C

en
tr

e 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

F
ra

m
ew

or
k 

bu
t 

w
e 

ne
ed

 t
o 

ta
ke

 
de

te
rm

in
ed

 a
ct

io
n 

to
 c

re
at

e 
a 

ci
ty

 c
en

tr
e 

to
 b

e 
pr

ou
d 

of
 a

nd
 w

hi
ch

 
re

fle
ct

s 
th

e 
gl

ob
al

 s
ta

tu
s 

an
d 

am
bi

tio
ns

 o
f 

th
e 

ci
ty

 a
nd

 t
he

 w
id

er
 

re
gi

on
. 

T
he

 B
us

in
es

s 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

(B
ID

),
 s

et
 u

p 
in

 2
01

1,
 

w
as

 a
 m

aj
or

 in
iti

at
iv

e 
an

d 
sh

ow
ed

 th
at

 th
e 

pr
iv

at
e 

se
ct

or
 w

as
 w

ill
in

g 
to

 a
ct

iv
el

y 
ta

ke
 p

ar
t 

in
 t

hi
s 

pr
oc

es
s.

 T
he

re
 n

ee
ds

 t
o 

be
 a

 s
tr

on
g 

Page 445



10
 

fo
cu

s 
on

 im
pr

ov
in

g 
th

e 
qu

al
ity

 o
f  

th
e 

ci
ty

 c
en

tr
e’

s 
sh

op
pi

ng
, 

le
is

ur
e,

 
co

m
m

er
ci

al
 

an
d 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t 

– 
w

ith
 

pa
rt

ia
l 

pe
de

st
ria

ni
sa

tio
n 

of
 U

ni
on

 S
tr

ee
t h

av
in

g 
an

 im
po

rt
an

t r
ol

e.
  

 3.
38

 A
be

rd
ee

n 
ha

s 
a 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 c

om
m

un
iti

es
 w

hi
ch

 w
ou

ld
 b

en
ef

it 
fr

om
 r

eg
en

er
at

io
n.

 T
he

se
 a

re
 la

rg
el

y 
ar

ea
s 

w
ith

 a
 h

ig
h 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 

of
 

so
ci

al
 

ho
us

in
g 

bu
ilt

 
in

 
th

e 
19

60
s 

w
hi

ch
 

no
 

lo
ng

er
 

pr
ov

id
e 

sa
tis

fa
ct

or
y 

liv
in

g 
co

nd
iti

on
s.

 T
he

re
 is

 m
or

e 
de

ta
il 

ab
ou

t 
th

is
 in

 t
he

 
R

eg
en

er
at

io
n 

P
rio

rit
y 

A
re

a 
th

em
e 

be
lo

w
. 

 3.
39

 
T

w
o 

po
ss

ib
le

 
lo

ca
tio

ns
 

ar
e 

sh
ow

n 
fo

r 
a 

ne
w

 
C

om
m

un
ity

 
S

ta
di

um
 to

 s
up

po
rt

 th
e 

gr
ow

in
g 

sp
or

tin
g 

in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 o

f t
he

 c
ity

. 
   

Page 446



11
 

A
b

er
d

ee
n

 t
o

 H
u

n
tl

y 
 

3.
40

 
T

hi
s 

ar
ea

 is
 th

e 
ke

y 
co

rr
id

or
 li

nk
in

g 
A

be
rd

ee
n 

an
d 

In
ve

rn
es

s 
an

d 
co

nt
ai

ns
 s

ev
er

al
 th

riv
in

g 
A

be
rd

ee
ns

hi
re

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

. 
S

ig
ni

fic
an

t d
ev

el
op

m
en

t w
ill

 ta
ke

 p
la

ce
 in

 th
e 

31
-m

ile
 r

oa
d 

an
d 

ra
il 

co
rr

id
or

 s
tr

et
ch

in
g 

fr
om

 H
un

tly
 to

 B
la

ck
bu

rn
. D

ev
el

op
m

en
t a

t t
he

 
so

ut
he

rn
 e

nd
 o

f t
he

 c
or

rid
or

 w
ill

 b
e 

m
ai

nl
y 

fo
cu

se
d 

to
w

ar
ds

 th
e 

en
d 

of
 th

e 
pl

an
 p

er
io

d,
 b

ey
on

d 
20

27
, w

hi
le

 fu
rt

he
r 

no
rt

h 
it 

w
ill

 b
e 

sp
re

ad
 

th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 th

e 
pe

rio
d 

of
 th

e 
pl

an
.  

H
ou

si
ng

 a
nd

 e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t a
llo

w
an

ce
s 

fo
r 

th
is

 a
re

a 
  

H
ou

si
ng

 a
llo

w
an

ce
s 

 
E

xi
st

in
g 

LD
P

 
al

lo
ca

tio
ns

 to
 

20
16

 

20
17

-2
02

6 
20

27
-2

03
5 

In
ve

ru
rie

 -
 B

la
ck

bu
rn

 
1,

00
0 

1,
50

0 
4,

00
0 

H
un

tly
 -

 P
itc

ap
le

 
30

0 
50

0 
20

0 
 

 
 

 
 

E
m

pl
oy

m
en

t l
an

d 
al

lo
w

an
ce

s 
(h

ec
ta

re
s)

 
H

un
tly

 -
 B

la
ck

bu
rn

 
42

 
28

 
 3.

41
 

S
ou

th
 

of
 

In
ve

ru
rie

 
th

e 
co

rr
id

or
 

is
 

se
rv

ed
 

by
 

a 
du

al
 

ca
rr

ia
ge

w
ay

 t
o 

A
be

rd
ee

n,
 w

ith
 t

he
 S

co
tti

sh
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t 
co

m
m

itt
ed

 
to

 c
om

pl
et

in
g 

th
e 

A
96

 d
ua

l 
ca

rr
ia

ge
w

ay
 b

et
w

ee
n 

In
ve

ru
rie

 a
nd

 
In

ve
rn

es
s 

ov
er

 
th

e 
lif

et
im

e 
of

 
th

is
 

pl
an

. 
H

ow
ev

er
, 

sh
or

t-
te

rm
 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 w
ill

 a
ls

o 
be

 m
ad

e 
(s

uc
h 

as
 r

ep
la

ci
ng

 th
e 

In
ve

ra
m

sa
y 

B
rid

ge
 t

o 
al

lo
w

 t
w

o-
w

ay
 t

ra
ffi

c)
 b

ef
or

e 
th

e 
m

or
e 

co
m

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 

up
gr

ad
e 

pl
an

ne
d 

fo
r 

la
te

r 
in

 
th

e 
pl

an
 

pe
rio

d.
 

S
ig

ni
fic

an
t 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 a
re

 a
ls

o 
pl

an
ne

d 
to

 t
he

 A
be

rd
ee

n-
In

ve
rn

es
s 

ra
ilw

ay
 

lin
e,

 w
ith

 m
or

e 
se

rv
ic

es
, 

sh
or

te
r 

jo
ur

ne
y 

tim
es

 a
nd

 a
 n

ew
 s

ta
tio

n 
at

 
K

in
to

re
. 

W
e 

w
ill

 a
ls

o 
lo

ok
 a

t 
fu

rt
he

r 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
, 

in
 t

he
 f

or
m

 o
f 

a 
m

or
e 

lo
ca

l 
ra

il 
se

rv
ic

e 
to

 
be

tte
r 

se
rv

e 
co

m
m

ut
er

s,
 

sh
op

pe
rs

, 
st

ud
en

ts
 a

nd
 v

is
ito

rs
. 

T
hi

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
su

pp
or

te
d 

by
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

in
 t

hi
s 

co
rr

id
or

. 
B

us
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

on
 t

hi
s 

co
rr

id
or

 a
re

 a
lre

ad
y 

go
od

, 
al

th
ou

gh
 

w
e 

w
ill

 n
ee

d 
to

 m
ak

e 
fu

rt
he

r 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 t

o 
m

ak
e 

th
es

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 

an
 

ev
en

 
m

or
e 

at
tr

ac
tiv

e 
ch

oi
ce

. 
W

e 
w

ill
 

ne
ed

 
to

 
pr

ov
id

e 
a 

se
co

nd
ar

y 
sc

ho
ol

 a
nd

 
as

so
ci

at
ed

 
pr

im
ar

y 
sc

ho
ol

s 
in

 
th

is
 

ar
ea

. 
S

ev
er

al
 

tr
un

k 
ro

ad
 

ju
nc

tio
ns

 
w

ill
 

al
so

 
ne

ed
 

to
 

be
 

im
pr

ov
ed

, 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
os

e 
at

 I
nv

er
ur

ie
, 

w
ith

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 f
or

 a
n 

ea
st

er
n 

by
pa

ss
 fo

r 
th

e 
to

w
n.

 
 3.

42
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
w

ill
 b

e 
su

pp
or

te
d 

by
 n

ew
 i

nf
ra

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
w

ith
in

 
A

be
rd

ee
n 

C
ity

 s
uc

h 
as

 t
he

 A
be

rd
ee

n 
W

es
te

rn
 P

er
ip

he
ra

l R
ou

te
, 

a 
ne

w
 

pa
rk

-a
nd

-r
id

e 
si

te
 

at
 

its
 

ju
nc

tio
n 

w
ith

 
th

e 
A

96
 

an
d 

ot
he

r 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 o

n 
th

e 
A

96
 c

or
rid

or
.  

  

Page 447



12
 

A
b

er
d

ee
n

 t
o

 L
au

re
n

ce
ki

rk
 

3.
43

 
T

hi
s 

ar
ea

 i
s 

th
e 

ke
y 

co
rr

id
or

 l
in

ki
ng

 t
he

 r
eg

io
n 

w
ith

 c
en

tr
al

 
an

d 
so

ut
he

rn
 S

co
tla

nd
 a

s 
w

el
l 

as
 t

he
 r

es
t 

of
 t

he
 U

K
 b

y 
ro

ad
 a

nd
 

ra
il.

 I
ts

 m
ai

n 
se

ttl
em

en
t 

is
 S

to
ne

ha
ve

n 
w

he
re

 t
he

 H
ig

hl
an

d 
F

au
lt 

Li
ne

 m
ar

ks
 th

e 
bo

un
da

ry
 b

et
w

ee
n 

H
ig

hl
an

d 
an

d 
Lo

w
la

nd
 S

co
tla

nd
, 

w
hi

ch
 c

an
 b

e 
se

en
 in

 th
e 

ge
ol

og
y 

an
d 

la
nd

sc
ap

e 
of

 th
e 

ar
ea

. 
 3.

44
 

W
e 

ar
e 

pr
op

os
in

g 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 
ne

w
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

in
 

th
e 

no
rt

he
rn

 p
ar

t 
of

 t
hi

s 
co

rr
id

or
 e

ar
ly

 i
n 

th
e 

pl
an

 p
er

io
d.

 A
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t 
ne

w
 s

et
tle

m
en

t 
is

 p
la

nn
ed

 s
ou

th
 o

f 
P

or
tle

th
en

 a
t 

C
ha

pe
lto

n 
of

 
E

ls
ic

k 
w

hi
ch

 h
as

 t
he

 p
ot

en
tia

l 
to

 s
et

 t
he

 s
ta

nd
ar

d 
fo

r 
fu

tu
re

 n
ew

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t i
n 

A
be

rd
ee

n 
C

ity
 a

nd
 S

hi
re

 a
nd

 b
ey

on
d.

 
 3.

45
 

N
ew

 h
ou

si
ng

 a
nd

 e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t d
ev

el
op

m
en

t i
s 

al
so

 p
ro

po
se

d 
in

 t
he

 s
ou

th
er

n 
en

d 
of

 t
he

 c
or

rid
or

 a
s 

w
el

l, 
bu

t 
on

 a
 m

or
e 

lim
ite

d 
sc

al
e.

 
T

hi
s 

w
ill

 
be

 
su

pp
or

te
d 

by
 

a 
ne

w
 

se
co

nd
ar

y 
sc

ho
ol

 
in

 
La

ur
en

ce
ki

rk
 (

M
ea

rn
s 

A
ca

de
m

y 
C

om
m

un
ity

 C
am

pu
s)

 w
hi

ch
 w

ill
 

re
pl

ac
e 

th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

sc
ho

ol
 o

n 
a 

ne
ar

by
 s

ite
. 

 H
ou

si
ng

 a
nd

 e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t a
llo

w
an

ce
s 

fo
r 

th
is

 a
re

a 
 

  
H

ou
si

ng
 a

llo
w

an
ce

s 
 

E
xi

st
in

g 
LD

P
 

al
lo

ca
tio

ns
 to

 
20

16
 

20
17

-2
02

6 
20

27
-2

03
5 

P
or

tle
th

en
 –

 S
to

ne
ha

ve
n 

2,
20

0 
2,

40
0 

1,
00

0 
S

ou
th

 o
f D

ru
m

lit
hi

e 
- 

La
ur

en
ce

ki
rk

 
50

0 
40

0 
10

0 
 

 
 

 
 

E
m

pl
oy

m
en

t l
an

d 
al

lo
w

an
ce

s 
(h

ec
ta

re
s)

 
P

or
tle

th
en

 -
 L

au
re

nc
ek

irk
 

63
 

42
 

 3.
46

 
Im

pr
ov

ed
 

ju
nc

tio
ns

 
on

 
th

e 
A

90
 

w
ill

 
al

so
 

be
 

ne
ed

ed
 

fo
r 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

at
 

E
ls

ic
k 

an
d 

La
ur

en
ce

ki
rk

 
(w

he
re

 
ex

is
tin

g 
sa

fe
ty

 
is

su
es

 a
ls

o 
ne

ed
 to

 b
e 

ta
ke

n 
in

to
 a

cc
ou

nt
) 

to
 g

o 
ah

ea
d.

 
 

3.
47

 
T

he
 s

ou
th

er
n 

le
g 

of
 t

he
 A

be
rd

ee
n 

W
es

te
rn

 P
er

ip
he

ra
l R

ou
te

 
pa

ss
es

 t
hr

ou
gh

 t
he

 n
or

th
er

n 
pa

rt
 o

f 
th

is
 a

re
a 

an
d 

th
e 

F
as

tli
nk

 w
ill

 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

ly
 

im
pr

ov
e 

ac
ce

ss
 

fr
om

 
th

e 
so

ut
h 

to
 

th
e 

ai
rp

or
t 

an
d 

no
rt

he
rn

 A
be

rd
ee

ns
hi

re
. 

A
 p

ar
k-

an
d-

rid
e 

w
ill

 b
e 

bu
ilt

 a
t 

P
or

tle
th

en
 

so
 t

ha
t 

tr
af

fic
 h

ea
di

ng
 f

or
 t

he
 c

ity
 c

an
 u

se
 m

or
e 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

tr
av

el
 

fo
r 

th
e 

la
st

 le
g 

of
 th

e 
jo

ur
ne

y.
 

 3.
48

 
A

 
ne

w
 

st
at

io
n 

op
en

ed
 

at
 

La
ur

en
ce

ki
rk

 
in

 
20

09
 

an
d 

ha
s 

pr
ov

ed
 

ex
tr

em
el

y 
po

pu
la

r,
 

w
ith

 
tw

ic
e 

th
e 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 
pa

ss
en

ge
rs

 
al

re
ad

y 
us

in
g 

it.
 

W
e 

w
ill

 
lo

ok
 

at
 

th
e 

po
te

nt
ia

l 
fo

r 
de

ve
lo

pi
ng

 a
 f

ur
th

er
 s

ta
tio

n 
at

 N
ew

to
nh

ill
 a

lo
ng

si
de

 o
th

er
 p

os
si

bl
e 

lo
ca

tio
ns

 
w

ith
in

 
A

be
rd

ee
n.

 
O

th
er

 
ra

il 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 

in
cl

ud
e 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 to
 jo

ur
ne

y 
tim

es
 a

nd
 e

le
ct

rif
ic

at
io

n.
 

 3.
49

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

w
ill

 b
e 

su
pp

or
te

d 
by

 n
ew

 i
nf

ra
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

w
ith

in
 

A
be

rd
ee

n 
C

ity
 

su
ch

 
as

 
a 

ne
w

 
lin

k 
ov

er
 

th
e 

R
iv

er
 

D
ee

 
an

d 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 to

 th
e 

A
95

6.
 

 3.
50

 
W

e 
w

ill
 s

up
po

rt
 p

ro
po

sa
ls

 o
ut

w
ith

 t
he

 s
tr

at
eg

ic
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

pl
an

 a
re

a 
w

hi
ch

 r
ed

uc
e 

jo
ur

ne
y 

tim
es

 b
y 

ro
ad

 a
nd

 r
ai

l s
ou

th
. 

Page 448



13
 

A
b

er
d

ee
n

 t
o

 P
et

er
h

ea
d

 

3.
51

 
T

hi
s 

ar
ea

 h
as

 im
po

rt
an

t s
tr

at
eg

ic
 a

ss
et

s,
 h

ig
h 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l 
qu

al
ity

 a
nd

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t p

ot
en

tia
l f

or
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t. 

E
ne

rg
et

ic
a 

is
 

al
re

ad
y 

he
lp

in
g 

to
 r

ea
lis

e 
th

is
 p

ot
en

tia
l a

nd
 c

re
at

e 
a 

gl
ob

al
 h

ub
 fo

r 
th

e 
en

er
gy

 s
ec

to
r 

in
 a

 fi
rs

t-
cl

as
s 

co
as

ta
l l

oc
at

io
n.

 T
hi

s 
is

 b
ei

ng
 d

on
e 

th
ro

ug
h 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p 

be
tw

ee
n 

th
e 

pu
bl

ic
 a

nd
 p

riv
at

e 
se

ct
or

s.
 

3.
52

 
B

ot
h 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t a

nd
 h

ou
si

ng
 la

nd
 w

ill
 b

e 
ne

ed
ed

 o
ve

r 
th

e 
pe

rio
d 

of
 th

e 
pl

an
, w

ith
 th

es
e 

al
lo

w
an

ce
s 

se
t o

ut
 in

 fi
gu

re
 s

df
 b

el
ow

. 
C

ur
re

nt
 p

la
ns

 a
lre

ad
y 

id
en

tif
y 

la
nd

 u
p 

to
 2

02
6,

 w
hi

le
 la

nd
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

fo
r 

th
e 

pe
rio

d 
be

yo
nd

 2
02

7 
w

ill
 n

ee
d 

to
 b

e 
al

lo
ca

te
d 

in
 fu

tu
re

 lo
ca

l 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t p
la

ns
. 

H
ou

si
ng

 a
nd

 e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t a
llo

w
an

ce
s 

fo
r 

th
is

 a
re

a 
  

H
ou

si
ng

 a
llo

w
an

ce
s 

 
E

xi
st

in
g 

LD
P

 
A

llo
ca

tio
ns

 to
 2

01
6 

20
17

-2
02

6 
20

27
-2

03
5 

B
la

ck
do

g 
- 

E
llo

n 
80

0 
1,

50
0 

1,
50

0 
H

at
to

n 
- 

P
et

er
he

ad
 

80
0 

80
0 

60
0 

 
 

 
 

 
E

m
pl

oy
m

en
t l

an
d 

al
lo

w
an

ce
s 

(h
ec

ta
re

s)
 

B
la

ck
do

g 
- 

P
et

er
he

ad
 

45
ha

 
43

ha
 

 3.
53

 
T

he
 n

or
th

er
n 

en
d 

of
 t

he
 E

ne
rg

et
ic

a 
co

rr
id

or
 h

as
 a

 u
ni

qu
e 

op
po

rt
un

ity
 to

 p
la

y 
an

 im
po

rt
an

t r
ol

e 
in

 th
e 

en
er

gy
 fu

tu
re

 o
f E

ur
op

e.
  

 · 
W

e 
ne

ed
 t

o 
m

ak
e 

th
e 

be
st

 u
se

 o
f 

th
e 

de
ep

w
at

er
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

at
 

P
et

er
he

ad
 

P
or

t. 
It 

ha
s 

be
en

 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

in
 

th
e 

N
at

io
na

l 
R

en
ew

ab
le

s 
In

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 
P

la
n 

an
d 

w
e 

ne
ed

 
to

 
ai

d 
its

 
di

ve
rs

ifi
ca

tio
n 

in
to

 
oi

l 
an

d 
ga

s 
de

co
m

m
is

si
on

in
g 

as
 

w
el

l 
as

 
of

fs
ho

re
 r

en
ew

ab
le

s.
  

 · 
T

he
 P

et
er

he
ad

 a
nd

 S
t 

F
er

gu
s 

ar
ea

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
vi

ta
l t

o 
th

e 
U

K
 o

il 
an

d 
ga

s 
in

du
st

ry
 o

ve
r 

th
e 

la
st

 4
0 

ye
ar

s 
an

d 
w

ill
 b

e 
w

el
l i

nt
o 

th
e 

fu
tu

re
. 

It 
no

w
 

al
so

 
ha

s 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 
po

te
nt

ia
l 

fo
r 

ca
pt

ur
in

g,
 

tr
an

sp
or

tin
g 

an
d 

st
or

in
g 

ca
rb

on
 d

io
xi

de
 u

nd
er

 t
he

 N
or

th
 S

ea
 

(c
ar

bo
n 

ca
pt

ur
e 

an
d 

st
or

ag
e)

. 
T

hi
s 

w
ou

ld
 m

ak
e 

ex
te

ns
iv

e 
us

e 
of

 e
xi

st
in

g 
in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

, h
el

p 
to

 d
el

iv
er

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t 

re
du

ct
io

ns
 in

 
gr

ee
nh

ou
se

 g
as

 e
m

is
si

on
s 

an
d 

pr
ov

id
e 

a 
m

aj
or

 c
om

pe
tit

iv
e 

ad
va

nt
ag

e 
in

 th
is

 e
m

er
gi

ng
 te

ch
no

lo
gy

.  
 · 

P
et

er
he

ad
 a

ls
o 

ha
s 

th
e 

po
te

nt
ia

l 
to

 b
e 

an
 i

m
po

rt
an

t 
hu

b 
in

  
tr

an
sm

itt
in

g 
re

ne
w

ab
le

 e
ne

rg
y 

bo
th

 w
ith

in
 t

he
 U

K
 a

nd
 m

or
e 

w
id

el
y 

as
 p

ar
t 

of
 a

 E
ur

op
ea

n 
ne

tw
or

k.
 I

ts
 c

oa
st

al
 l

oc
at

io
n 

an
d 

ex
is

tin
g 

co
nn

ec
tio

ns
 m

ak
e 

it 
an

 a
ttr

ac
tiv

e 
ch

oi
ce

 f
or

 s
ub

se
a 

ca
bl

es
 a

nd
 th

ei
r 

on
sh

or
e 

in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
.  

 3.
54

 
T

he
se

 n
at

io
na

lly
 a

nd
 in

te
rn

at
io

na
lly

 im
po

rt
an

t 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
 

ne
ed

 to
 b

e 
co

-o
rd

in
at

ed
 e

ffe
ct

iv
el

y 
(s

ee
 fi

gu
re

 s
df

).
 T

o 
ac

hi
ev

e 
th

is
, 

a 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
fr

am
ew

or
k 

w
ill

 b
e 

ne
ed

ed
 f

or
 t

he
 s

ou
th

er
n 

ga
te

w
ay

 
to

 P
et

er
he

ad
.  

 3.
55

 
F

ur
th

er
 s

ou
th

, 
re

al
is

in
g 

th
e 

ec
on

om
ic

 p
ot

en
tia

l o
f 

th
e 

M
en

ie
 

E
st

at
e 

go
lf 

re
so

rt
 

w
ill

 
be

 
im

po
rt

an
t 

as
 

w
el

l 
as

 
de

liv
er

in
g 

vi
ta

l 
in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 p
ro

je
ct

s 
in

 t
he

 f
irs

t 
pl

an
 p

er
io

d 
to

 e
nc

ou
ra

ge
 g

ro
w

th
. 

T
he

se
 i

nc
lu

de
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

th
e 

A
be

rd
ee

n 
W

es
te

rn
 P

er
ip

he
ra

l 
R

ou
te

, 
m

ak
in

g 
th

e 
A

90
 

be
tw

ee
n 

B
al

m
ed

ie
 

an
d 

T
ip

pe
rt

y 
a 

du
al

 
ca

rr
ia

ge
w

ay
, 

im
pr

ov
in

g 
th

e 
H

au
da

ga
in

 R
ou

nd
ab

ou
t 

an
d 

de
liv

er
in

g 
a 

ne
w

 b
rid

ge
 o

ve
r 

th
e 

R
iv

er
 D

on
. U

nt
il 

th
is

 
in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 
is

 
in

 
pl

ac
e,

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
in

 t
he

 s
ou

th
er

n 
pa

rt
 o

f 
th

e 
co

rr
id

or
 w

ill
 b

e 
lim

ite
d.

 T
he

 f
oc

us
 

in
 

th
e 

w
ho

le
 

ar
ea

 
ne

ed
s 

to
 

be
 

on
 

de
ve

lo
pi

ng
 

an
d 

di
ve

rs
ify

in
g 

th
e 

ec
on

om
y 

w
ith

 a
 s

tr
on

g 
fo

cu
s 

on
 t

he
 

qu
al

ity
 o

f 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t. 
W

e 
w

ill
 a

ls
o 

ne
ed

 
to

 
pr

ov
id

e 
a 

ne
w

 
se

co
nd

ar
y 

sc
ho

ol
 a

nd
 a

ss
oc

ia
te

d 
pr

im
ar

y 
sc

ho
ol

 
in

 th
is

 a
re

a.
 

Page 449



14
 

4 
– 

O
b

je
ct

iv
es

 
  

Page 450



15
 

E
co

n
o

m
ic

 G
ro

w
th

 

O
b

je
ct

iv
e 

 T
o 

pr
ov

id
e 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

 w
hi

ch
 e

nc
ou

ra
ge

 e
co

no
m

ic
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

an
d 

cr
ea

te
 n

ew
 e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t 

in
 a

 r
an

ge
 o

f 
ar

ea
s 

th
at

 a
re

 b
ot

h 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 f
or

 a
nd

 a
ttr

ac
tiv

e 
to

 t
he

 n
ee

ds
 o

f 
di

ffe
re

nt
 i

nd
us

tr
ie

s,
 

w
hi

le
 

at
 

th
e 

sa
m

e 
tim

e 
im

pr
ov

in
g 

th
e 

es
se

nt
ia

l 
st

ra
te

gi
c 

in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

 to
 a

llo
w

 th
e 

ec
on

om
y 

to
 g

ro
w

 o
ve

r 
th

e 
lo

ng
 

te
rm

.  
 Is

su
es

 
 4.

1 
A

be
rd

ee
n 

C
ity

 
an

d 
S

hi
re

 
ha

s 
a 

he
al

th
y 

ec
on

om
y.

 
W

hi
le

 
cu

rr
en

tly
 

do
m

in
at

ed
 

by
 

th
e 

oi
l 

an
d 

ga
s 

in
du

st
rie

s,
 

it 
al

so
 

ha
s 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 s

tr
en

gt
hs

 i
n 

lif
e 

sc
ie

nc
es

, 
fo

od
 a

nd
 d

rin
k 

an
d 

to
ur

is
m

. 
T

he
 o

il 
an

d 
ga

s 
in

du
st

ry
 w

ill
 c

on
tin

ue
 t

o 
be

 v
er

y 
im

po
rt

an
t 

in
to

 t
he

 
fu

tu
re

. I
ts

 c
ha

ng
in

g 
fo

cu
s 

ov
er

 th
e 

ne
xt

 fe
w

 d
ec

ad
es

 (
in

to
 s

up
pl

yi
ng

 
th

e 
ex

po
rt

 m
ar

ke
t 

an
d 

de
co

m
m

is
si

on
in

g)
 w

ill
 m

ea
n 

th
at

 t
he

 a
re

a 
w

ill
 n

ee
d 

to
 s

el
l 

its
el

f 
m

or
e 

st
ro

ng
ly

 t
o 

m
ak

e 
su

re
 g

ro
w

th
 h

ap
pe

ns
 

he
re

. 
T

ra
di

tio
na

l 
in

du
st

rie
s,

 
su

ch
 

as
 

fa
rm

in
g 

an
d 

fis
hi

ng
, 

m
us

t 
co

nt
in

ue
 t

o 
be

 s
up

po
rt

ed
. 

T
o 

pr
om

ot
e 

a 
di

ve
rs

e 
lo

ca
l e

co
no

m
y 

w
e 

w
ill

 h
av

e 
to

 b
ui

ld
 o

n 
ou

r 
ex

is
tin

g 
as

se
ts

 (
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

ly
 i

n 
th

e 
fie

ld
 o

f 
re

ne
w

ab
le

 e
ne

rg
y)

 a
nd

 p
ut

 in
to

 p
ra

ct
ic

e 
ne

w
 id

ea
s,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
th

os
e 

fr
om

 o
ur

 u
ni

ve
rs

iti
es

, 
re

se
ar

ch
 o

rg
an

is
at

io
ns

 a
nd

 o
ur

 s
ki

lle
d 

an
d 

in
no

va
tiv

e 
w

or
kf

or
ce

, 
an

d 
im

pr
ov

e 
ou

r 
co

nn
ec

tio
ns

 t
o 

th
e 

ou
ts

id
e 

w
or

ld
 

th
ro

ug
h 

tr
an

sp
or

t 
an

d 
hi

gh
-s

pe
ed

 
di

gi
ta

l 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
 

ne
tw

or
ks

.  
 4.

2 
A

 s
tr

on
g 

se
rv

ic
e 

se
ct

or
 is

 a
ls

o 
im

po
rt

an
t 

an
d 

in
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

, 
re

ta
il 

an
d 

al
l f

or
m

s 
of

 to
ur

is
m

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 b

us
in

es
s 

to
ur

is
m

, w
ill

 h
av

e 
a 

ro
le

 
to

 p
la

y.
 It

 is
 v

er
y 

im
po

rt
an

t t
ha

t r
et

ai
l s

er
vi

ce
s 

th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 th

e 
re

gi
on

 
ar

e 
pr

om
ot

ed
 t

o 
gu

ar
an

te
e 

th
e 

vi
ta

lit
y 

an
d 

vi
ab

ili
ty

 o
f 

ou
r 

to
w

n 
ce

nt
re

s,
 w

hi
le

 c
re

at
in

g 
op

po
rt

un
iti

es
 fo

r 
gr

ow
th

 in
 th

e 
ec

on
om

y.
 It

 is
 

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
ly

 i
m

po
rt

an
t 

th
at

 w
e 

co
nt

in
ue

 t
o 

su
pp

or
t 

th
e 

re
ge

ne
ra

tio
n 

of
 A

be
rd

ee
n 

ci
ty

 c
en

tr
e 

– 
m

ak
in

g 
su

re
 t

ha
t 

th
is

 k
ey

 r
eg

io
na

l 
as

se
t 

fu
lfi

ls
 i

ts
 p

ot
en

tia
l 

by
 i

m
pr

ov
in

g 
its

 s
ho

pp
in

g,
 l

ei
su

re
, 

co
m

m
er

ci
al

 
an

d 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l e
nv

iro
nm

en
t 

as
 w

el
l a

s 
its

 v
is

ito
r 

ex
pe

rie
nc

e.
 S

om
e 

of
 t

he
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

bl
oc

ks
 a

re
 a

lre
ad

y 
in

 p
la

ce
 (

su
ch

 a
s 

th
e 

C
ity

 C
en

tr
e 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
F

ra
m

ew
or

k 
an

d 
th

e 
B

us
in

es
s 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t 

D
is

tr
ic

t)
 

bu
t 

th
er

e 
is

 s
til

l 
m

uc
h 

to
 b

e 
do

ne
. 

In
 l

in
e 

w
ith

 S
co

tti
sh

 P
la

nn
in

g 
P

ol
ic

y,
 a

 s
eq

ue
nt

ia
l 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 w
ill

 b
e 

ta
ke

n 
w

he
n 

id
en

tif
yi

ng
 s

ite
s 

fo
r 

ne
w

 r
et

ai
l 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

ac
ro

ss
 t

he
 s

tr
at

eg
ic

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
pl

an
 

ar
ea

. 
 4.

3 
M

ak
in

g 
su

re
 t

ha
t 

th
er

e 
is

 e
no

ug
h 

of
 t

he
 r

ig
ht

 t
yp

e 
of

 l
an

d 
fo

r 
bu

si
ne

ss
 u

se
, 

in
 t

he
 r

ig
ht

 p
la

ce
s,

 w
ill

 g
iv

e 
A

be
rd

ee
n 

C
ity

 a
nd

 S
hi

re
 

a 
co

m
pe

tit
iv

e 
ad

va
nt

ag
e,

 t
hi

s 
in

cl
ud

es
 m

ix
ed

-u
se

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 o

n 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 s
ite

s.
 W

e 
ex

pe
ct

 t
ha

t 
th

e 
E

ne
rg

et
ic

a 
in

iti
at

iv
e 

w
ill

 h
el

p 
to

 d
el

iv
er

 t
hi

s 
in

 t
he

 A
be

rd
ee

n 
to

 P
et

er
he

ad
 s

tr
at

eg
ic

 g
ro

w
th

 a
re

a,
 

w
hi

le
 w

e 
w

ill
 e

nc
ou

ra
ge

 e
co

no
m

ic
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

in
 lo

ca
l g

ro
w

th
 a

nd
 

di
ve

rs
ifi

ca
tio

n 
ar

ea
s 

at
 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 

le
ve

ls
 

to
 

m
ee

t 
lo

ca
l 

ne
ed

. 
A

be
rd

ee
n 

C
ity

 a
nd

 S
hi

re
 a

lre
ad

y 
ha

s 
a 

ve
ry

 w
el

l-d
ev

el
op

ed
 r

ol
e 

in
 

th
e 

kn
ow

le
dg

e 
ec

on
om

y.
 P

ro
vi

di
ng

 h
ig

h-
qu

al
ity

 b
us

in
es

s 
sp

ac
e 

ha
s 

an
 im

po
rt

an
t 

ro
le

 t
o 

pl
ay

 in
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

on
 t

hi
s,

 a
s 

ha
s 

su
pp

or
t f

or
 h

ig
h 

qu
al

ity
 e

du
ca

tio
n 

an
d 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
fr

om
 s

ch
oo

ls
, 

co
lle

ge
s 

an
d 

un
iv

er
si

tie
s.

 
 4.

4 
T

he
 r

ol
l-o

ut
 o

f 
hi

gh
-s

pe
ed

 b
ro

ad
ba

nd
 t

hr
ou

gh
ou

t 
th

e 
ar

ea
 i

s 
vi

ta
l 

fo
r 

th
e 

ec
on

om
y 

as
 w

el
l 

as
 b

rin
gi

ng
 s

oc
ia

l 
an

d 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l 

be
ne

fit
s.

 W
or

ld
-le

ad
in

g 
in

te
rn

et
 a

cc
es

s 
is

 e
ss

en
tia

l 
in

 t
he

 s
tr

at
eg

ic
 

gr
ow

th
 

ar
ea

s,
 

w
hi

le
 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
ly

 
im

pr
ov

ed
 

sp
ee

ds
 

ar
e 

al
so

 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

in
 t

he
 r

ur
al

 g
ro

w
th

 a
nd

 d
iv

er
si

fic
at

io
n 

ar
ea

s.
 T

he
 p

ub
lic

 
an

d 
pr

iv
at

e 
se

ct
or

s 
w

ill
 n

ee
d 

to
 w

or
k 

to
ge

th
er

 t
o 

de
liv

er
 t

he
se

 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
. 

 4.
5 

C
on

ne
ct

io
ns

, 
w

ith
in

 A
be

rd
ee

n 
C

ity
 a

nd
 S

hi
re

 a
s 

w
el

l 
as

 t
o 

th
e 

re
st

 o
f 

S
co

tla
nd

, 
th

e 
U

K
 a

nd
 th

e 
re

st
 o

f 
th

e 
w

or
ld

 a
re

 c
rit

ic
al

 f
or

 th
e 

fu
tu

re
 

he
al

th
 

of
 

th
e 

lo
ca

l 
ec

on
om

y.
 

A
be

rd
ee

n 
ai

rp
or

t 
an

d 
th

e 
re

gi
on

’s
 m

ai
n 

po
rt

s 
ar

e 
ke

y 
ga

te
w

ay
s 

an
d 

ha
ve

 a
 v

ita
l r

ol
e 

to
 p

la
y 

in
 

ac
ce

ss
in

g 
in

te
rn

at
io

na
l 

m
ar

ke
ts

 
as

 
w

el
l 

as
 

pr
ov

id
in

g 
lif

el
in

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 t

o 
O

rk
ne

y 
an

d 
S

he
tla

nd
. 

It 
is

 v
ita

l 
th

at
 t

he
se

 i
m

po
rt

an
t 

Page 451



16
 

re
gi

on
al

 a
ss

et
s 

ar
e 

su
pp

or
te

d 
in

 m
ee

tin
g 

th
ei

r 
po

te
nt

ia
l 

fo
r 

th
e 

re
gi

on
al

 e
co

no
m

y 
an

d 
th

at
 t

he
y 

re
fle

ct
 t

he
 a

im
s 

of
 t

he
 a

re
a.

 F
ut

ur
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

sh
ou

ld
 

no
t 

be
 

al
lo

w
ed

 
to

 
lim

it 
th

e 
gr

ow
th

 
of

 
th

e 
ec

on
om

y 
by

 
m

ak
in

g 
th

e 
re

gi
on

 
le

ss
 

at
tr

ac
tiv

e 
to

 
bu

si
ne

ss
, 

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
ly

 i
n 

re
la

tio
n 

to
 c

on
ge

st
io

n 
an

d 
ac

ce
ss

 t
o 

ro
ad

s,
 p

or
ts

, 
ai

rp
or

ts
 a

nd
 r

ai
l f

ac
ili

tie
s.

 T
hi

s 
in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 n
ee

ds
 t

o 
be

 p
ro

te
ct

ed
 

an
d 

im
pr

ov
ed

, 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

su
pp

or
tin

g 
fr

ei
gh

t 
be

in
g 

tr
an

sp
or

te
d 

by
 r

ai
l 

an
d 

se
a.

 
 T

ar
g

et
s 

 • 
T

o 
m

ak
e 

su
re

 t
he

re
 i

s 
at

 l
ea

st
 6

0 
he

ct
ar

es
 o

f 
m

ar
ke

ta
bl

e 
la

nd
 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
to

 b
us

in
es

se
s 

at
 a

ll 
tim

es
 i

n 
a 

ra
ng

e 
of

 p
la

ce
s 

w
ith

in
 

A
be

rd
ee

n 
C

ity
. 

• 
T

o 
m

ak
e 

su
re

 t
he

re
 i

s 
at

 l
ea

st
 6

0 
he

ct
ar

es
 o

f 
m

ar
ke

ta
bl

e 
la

nd
 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
to

 b
us

in
es

se
s 

at
 a

ll 
tim

es
 i

n 
a 

ra
ng

e 
of

 p
la

ce
s 

w
ith

in
 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
gr

ow
th

 a
re

as
 in

 A
be

rd
ee

ns
hi

re
. 

• 
F

or
 a

t l
ea

st
 2

0 
he

ct
ar

es
 o

f t
he

 a
bo

ve
 la

nd
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

to
 b

us
in

es
se

s 
in

 t
he

 s
tr

at
eg

ic
 g

ro
w

th
 a

re
as

 t
o 

be
 o

f 
a 

st
an

da
rd

 w
hi

ch
 w

ill
 a

ttr
ac

t 
hi

gh
-q

ua
lit

y 
bu

si
ne

ss
es

 o
r 

be
 s

ui
ta

bl
e 

fo
r 

co
m

pa
ny

 h
ea

dq
ua

rt
er

s.
 

• 
F

or
 A

be
rd

ee
n 

to
 r

em
ai

n 
on

e 
of

 th
e 

to
p-

20
 r

et
ai

l a
re

as
 in

 th
e 

U
K

. 
• 

F
or

 a
ll 

ne
w

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
to

 h
av

e 
th

e 
us

e 
of

 m
od

er
n,

 u
p-

to
-d

at
e 

hi
gh

-s
pe

ed
 te

le
co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
 n

et
w

or
ks

, s
uc

h 
as

 fi
br

e 
op

tic
s.

 
 H

o
w

 t
o

 m
ee

t 
th

e 
ta

rg
et

s 
• 

Lo
ca

l d
ev

el
op

m
en

t p
la

ns
 s

ho
ul

d,
 w

he
re

 p
os

si
bl

e,
 p

ro
te

ct
 s

tr
at

eg
ic

 
re

se
rv

e 
la

nd
 fr

om
 o

th
er

 u
se

s 
(s

ee
 fi

gu
re

s 
3 

an
d 

4)
.  

 

F
ig

ur
e 

3:
 E

m
pl

oy
m

en
t l

an
d 

al
lo

ca
tio

ns
 

 

 
E

st
ab

lis
he

d 
la

nd
 

20
11

 
(h

ec
ta

re
s)

 

M
ar

ke
ta

bl
e 

la
nd

 
20

11
 

(h
ec

ta
re

s)
 

M
in

im
um

 
la

nd
 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
at

 
al

l 
tim

es
 

(h
ec

ta
re

s)
 

LD
P

 
al

lo
ca

tio
ns

 
to

 
20

26
 

(h
ec

ta
re

s)
 

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 

re
se

rv
e 

la
nd

 
20

27
-

20
35

 
(h

ec
ta

re
s)

 
A

be
rd

ee
n 

C
ity

 
21

0 
87

 
60

 
10

5 
70

 
A

be
rd

ee
ns

hi
re

 
 

H
un

tly
 

to
 

La
ur

en
ce

ki
rk

 
15

3 
75

 
40

 
10

5 
70

 

B
la

ck
do

g 
to

 
P

et
er

he
ad

 
10

4 
86

 
20

 
45

 
43

 

T
ot

al
 

46
7 

24
8 

12
0 

25
5 

18
3 

 • 
Id

en
tif

yi
ng

 a
nd

 m
ai

nt
ai

ni
ng

 a
n 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 a

m
ou

nt
 o

f 
bu

si
ne

ss
 

la
nd

 
in

 
th

e 
lo

ca
l 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

pl
an

 
fo

r 
‘lo

ca
l 

gr
o

w
th

 
an

d 
di

ve
rs

ifi
ca

tio
n’

 a
re

as
 in

 A
be

rd
ee

ns
hi

re
. 

• 
P

ut
 t

he
 C

ity
 C

en
tr

e 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

F
ra

m
ew

or
k 

in
to

 p
ra

ct
ic

e 
an

d 
ca

rr
y 

ou
t a

 w
id

er
 r

eg
en

er
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
ar

ea
. 

• 
W

or
k 

w
ith

 p
ar

tn
er

s 
to

 m
ak

e 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 i
m

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 t

o 
pr

ov
id

e 
w

or
ld

-c
la

ss
 te

le
co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
 n

et
w

or
ks

. 
• 

W
or

ki
ng

 
in

 
pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

p 
w

ith
 

un
iv

er
si

tie
s,

 
co

lle
ge

s 
an

d 
ot

he
r 

re
se

ar
ch

 o
rg

an
is

at
io

ns
 to

 h
el

p 
th

em
 m

ak
e 

as
 p

os
iti

ve
 a

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
as

 p
os

si
bl

e 
to

 t
he

 a
re

a,
 i

nc
lu

di
ng

 f
or

 e
xa

m
pl

e,
 t

he
 i

m
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 
th

e 
F

or
es

te
rh

ill
 

M
as

te
rp

la
n 

pr
ep

ar
ed

 
by

 
th

e 
U

ni
ve

rs
ity

 
of

 
A

be
rd

ee
n 

an
d 

N
H

S
 G

ra
m

pi
an

. 
• 

U
si

ng
 a

ct
io

n 
pr

og
ra

m
m

es
 t

o 
id

en
tif

y 
an

d 
co

-o
rd

in
at

e 
th

e 
ac

tio
ns

 
ne

ed
ed

 t
o 

m
ak

e 
la

nd
 a

llo
ca

tio
ns

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
to

 b
us

in
es

s 
in

 l
in

e 
w

ith
 

th
e 

sp
at

ia
l s

tr
at

eg
y.

 
 M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 

 M
on

ito
rin

g 
w

ill
 f

oc
us

 o
n 

th
e 

su
pp

ly
 o

f 
em

pl
oy

m
en

t 
la

nd
, 

th
e 

ro
ll-

ou
t 

of
 h

ig
h-

sp
ee

d 
te

le
co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
 n

et
w

or
ks

 a
nd

 r
et

ai
l r

an
ki

ng
s.

 

Page 452



17
 

S
u

st
ai

n
ab

le
 d

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
an

d
 c

lim
at

e 
ch

an
g

e 
 O

b
je

ct
iv

e 
 T

o 
be

 a
 c

ity
 r

eg
io

n 
w

hi
ch

 t
ak

es
 t

he
 le

ad
 in

 r
ed

uc
in

g 
th

e 
am

ou
nt

 o
f 

ca
rb

on
 d

io
xi

de
 r

el
ea

se
d 

in
to

 th
e 

ai
r,

 a
da

pt
s 

to
 th

e 
ef

fe
ct

s 
of

 c
lim

at
e 

ch
an

ge
 a

nd
 li

m
its

 th
e 

am
ou

nt
 o

f n
on

-r
en

ew
ab

le
 r

es
ou

rc
es

 it
 u

se
s.

 
 Is

su
es

 
 4.

6 
T

he
 c

ha
lle

ng
es

 o
f s

us
ta

in
ab

le
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t a

nd
 c

lim
at

e 
ch

an
ge

 
ar

e 
so

m
e 

of
 t

he
 m

os
t 

se
rio

us
 w

e 
w

ill
 f

ac
e 

ov
er

 t
he

 p
er

io
d 

co
ve

re
d 

by
 t

hi
s 

pl
an

. 
R

ed
uc

in
g 

th
e 

ca
us

es
 o

f 
cl

im
at

e 
ch

an
ge

 (
kn

ow
n 

as
 

m
iti

ga
tio

n)
 is

 im
po

rt
an

t. 
H

ow
ev

er
, d

ue
 to

 c
ur

re
nt

 a
nd

 p
as

t a
ct

io
ns

, i
t 

is
 

vi
ta

l 
to

 
pu

t 
in

 
pl

ac
e 

a 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 
m

ea
su

re
s 

to
 

lim
it 

th
e 

co
ns

eq
ue

nc
es

 o
f c

lim
at

e 
ch

an
ge

 a
s 

w
el

l (
kn

ow
n 

as
 a

da
pt

at
io

n)
.  

 4.
7 

T
o 

ta
ck

le
 c

lim
at

e 
ch

an
ge

, 
en

er
gy

 e
ffi

ci
en

cy
 w

ill
 n

ee
d 

to
 b

e 
im

pr
ov

ed
 

in
 

ex
is

tin
g 

as
 

w
el

l 
as

 
ne

w
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t. 

A
ll 

ne
w

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
 m

us
t 

be
 d

es
ig

ne
d 

an
d 

bu
ilt

 t
o 

us
e 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
m

or
e 

ef
fic

ie
nt

ly
 a

nd
 b

e 
lo

ca
te

d 
in

 p
la

ce
s 

w
he

re
 t

he
y 

ha
ve

 a
s 

lit
tle

 a
n 

ef
fe

ct
 o

n 
th

e 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t 
as

 p
os

si
bl

e.
 F

oc
us

in
g 

in
iti

al
ly

 o
n 

us
in

g 
en

er
gy

-e
ffi

ci
en

cy
 m

ea
su

re
s 

is
 li

ke
ly

 t
o 

be
 t

he
 b

es
t 

w
ay

 o
f 

re
du

ci
ng

 
th

e 
de

m
an

d 
fo

r 
en

er
gy

 a
s 

a 
st

ep
 t

ow
ar

ds
 a

ch
ie

vi
ng

 c
ar

bo
n-

ne
ut

ra
l 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t, 

an
d 

th
is

 
sh

ou
ld

 
be

 
do

ne
 

as
 

so
on

 
as

 
pr

ac
tic

al
ly

 
po

ss
ib

le
. J

oi
nt

 s
up

pl
em

en
ta

ry
 g

ui
da

nc
e 

m
ay

 b
e 

pr
ep

ar
ed

 to
 r

eq
ui

re
 

ne
w

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
to

 m
ee

t 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
ca

rb
on

-d
io

xi
de

 l
ev

el
s 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

su
st

ai
na

bi
lit

y 
la

be
lli

ng
 

m
ec

ha
ni

sm
. 

D
ev

el
op

er
s 

w
ill

 
ne

ed
 

to
 

ex
am

in
e 

th
e 

sc
op

e 
fo

r 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

co
m

bi
ne

d 
he

at
 

an
d 

po
w

er
 

sc
he

m
es

 w
he

n 
pr

ep
ar

in
g 

la
rg

er
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t p

ro
po

sa
ls

. 
 4.

8 
S

ig
ni

fic
an

t 
ch

an
ge

s 
w

ill
 a

ls
o 

be
 n

ee
de

d 
to

 r
ed

uc
e 

th
e 

ef
fe

ct
s 

of
 

tr
an

sp
or

t 
on

 
cl

im
at

e 
ch

an
ge

. 
A

s 
w

el
l 

as
 

in
cr

ea
si

ng
 

en
er

gy
 

ef
fic

ie
nc

y,
 w

e 
w

ill
 n

ee
d 

to
 e

nc
ou

ra
ge

 t
he

 u
se

 o
f 

al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

fu
el

s 
an

d 
ta

ke
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s,

 s
uc

h 
as

 p
ro

vi
di

ng
 e

le
ct

ric
-v

eh
ic

le
 c

ha
rg

in
g 

po
in

ts
, t

o 
en

co
ur

ag
e 

pe
op

le
 to

 u
se

 th
em

. 

 4.
9 

W
e 

al
so

 n
ee

d 
to

 t
ac

kl
e 

th
e 

su
pp

ly
 o

f 
en

er
gy

 d
ur

in
g 

th
e 

pl
an

 
pe

rio
d.

 
T

hi
s 

w
ill

 
in

vo
lv

e 
in

cr
ea

si
ng

 
th

e 
su

pp
ly

 
of

 
en

er
gy

 
fr

om
 

re
ne

w
ab

le
 

so
ur

ce
s 

an
d 

re
du

ci
ng

 
em

is
si

on
s 

of
 

cl
im

at
e-

ch
an

ge
 

ga
se

s 
fr

om
 e

xi
st

in
g 

po
w

er
 s

ta
tio

ns
. 

A
s 

w
el

l a
s 

so
m

e 
ex

tr
a 

ca
pa

ci
ty

 
fo

r 
on

sh
or

e 
w

in
d 

th
er

e 
is

 s
til

l 
co

ns
id

er
ab

le
 p

ot
en

tia
l 

in
 o

ffs
ho

re
 

w
in

d,
 e

ne
rg

y 
fr

om
 w

as
te

, 
so

la
r 

an
d 

bi
om

as
s,

 a
s 

w
el

l 
as

 g
ro

un
d,

 
w

at
er

 
an

d 
ai

r 
so

ur
ce

 
he

at
 

pu
m

ps
. 

A
 

m
or

e 
ba

la
nc

ed
 

m
ix

 
of

 
re

ne
w

ab
le

 e
ne

rg
y 

so
ur

ce
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

ne
ed

ed
 i

f 
w

e 
ar

e 
to

 m
ee

t 
ou

r 
re

ne
w

ab
le

s 
ta

rg
et

s.
 

 4.
10

 
O

ne
 o

f 
ou

r 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 p
ot

en
tia

l 
ro

le
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

to
 p

ut
 i

n 
pl

ac
e 

in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 s

o 
th

at
 S

co
tla

nd
 c

an
 m

ee
t 

its
 r

en
ew

ab
le

 e
ne

rg
y 

an
d 

ca
rb

on
-e

m
is

si
on

s 
ta

rg
et

s.
  

 · 
T

he
 o

ns
ho

re
 e

le
ct

ric
ity

 g
rid

 w
ill

 n
ee

d 
to

 b
e 

up
gr

ad
ed

 t
o 

al
lo

w
 

ne
w

 s
ou

rc
es

 o
f r

en
ew

ab
le

 e
ne

rg
y 

to
 b

e 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

in
 th

e 
no

rt
h 

of
 

S
co

tla
nd

. 
T

hi
s 

m
ea

ns
 u

pg
ra

di
ng

 t
he

 E
as

t 
C

oa
st

 t
ra

ns
m

is
si

on
 

ro
ut

e 
fr

om
 

27
5k

V
 

to
 

40
0k

V
 

(id
en

tif
ie

d 
as

 
a 

‘n
at

io
na

l 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t’ 
in

 th
e 

N
at

io
na

l P
la

nn
in

g 
F

ra
m

ew
or

k)
 a

s 
w

el
l a

s 
th

e 
lin

e 
fr

om
 R

ot
hi

en
or

m
an

 t
o 

P
et

er
he

ad
. 

H
ow

ev
er

, 
th

e 
vo

lu
m

es
 o

f 
el

ec
tr

ic
ity

 li
ke

ly
 t

o 
be

 g
en

er
at

ed
 m

ea
n 

th
at

 o
ffs

ho
re

 t
ra

ns
m

is
si

on
 

w
ill

 
al

so
 

be
 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y,
 

w
ith

 
P

et
er

he
ad

 
ac

tin
g 

as
 

a 
m

ai
n 

tr
an

sm
is

si
on

 h
ub

 w
ith

 li
nk

s 
to

 E
ng

la
nd

 a
s 

w
el

l a
s 

ot
he

r 
E

ur
op

ea
n 

co
un

tr
ie

s 
to

 b
al

an
ce

 r
en

ew
ab

le
 e

ne
rg

y 
ge

ne
ra

tio
n 

an
d 

ov
er

co
m

e 
th

e 
in

te
rm

itt
en

cy
 c

ha
lle

ng
es

 a
ss

oc
ia

te
d 

w
ith

 t
he

 w
id

es
pr

ea
d 

us
e 

of
 w

in
d 

en
er

gy
.  

 · 
C

ar
bo

n 
ca

pt
ur

e 
an

d 
st

or
ag

e 
ha

s 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 p
ot

en
tia

l 
to

 r
ed

uc
e 

gr
ee

nh
ou

se
 g

as
 e

m
is

si
on

s 
fr

om
 c

on
ve

nt
io

na
l p

ow
er

 s
ta

tio
ns

 a
nd

 
he

lp
 t

he
 c

ha
ng

e 
to

 a
 l

ow
-c

ar
bo

n 
fu

tu
re

. 
W

e 
ar

e 
w

el
l 

pl
ac

ed
 t

o 
pl

ay
 a

 k
ey

 r
ol

e 
in

 t
hi

s,
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

on
 o

ur
 w

or
ld

-le
ad

in
g 

ex
pe

rt
is

e,
 

ex
is

tin
g 

in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 a

nd
 n

ea
rn

es
s 

to
 p

ot
en

tia
l 

st
or

ag
e 

si
te

s.
 

T
he

 te
ch

no
lo

gy
 h

as
 h

ug
e 

gl
ob

al
-m

ar
ke

t p
ot

en
tia

l o
ve

r 
th

e 
pe

rio
d 

of
 t

hi
s 

pl
an

 a
nd

 b
ey

on
d.

 T
he

 p
ow

er
 s

ta
tio

n 
at

 P
et

er
he

ad
 o

ffe
rs

 
an

 
id

ea
l 

op
po

rt
un

ity
 

to
 

de
m

on
st

ra
te

 
th

e 
te

ch
no

lo
gy

 
an

d 

Page 453



18
 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 s

to
ra

ge
 p

ot
en

tia
l t

ha
t 

lie
s 

in
 o

ld
 o

il 
an

d 
ga

s 
re

se
rv

oi
rs

 
un

de
r 

th
e 

N
or

th
 S

ea
, 

w
ith

 S
t 

F
er

gu
s 

th
e 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

ga
te

w
ay

 t
o 

th
is

 p
ot

en
tia

l. 
U

si
ng

  
ex

is
tin

g 
in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 w
ill

 b
e 

th
e 

ke
y 

to
 

m
ak

in
g 

th
e 

te
ch

no
lo

gy
 c

om
m

er
ci

al
ly

 v
ia

bl
e,

 w
ith

 e
xi

st
in

g 
hi

gh
-

pr
es

su
re

 g
as

 p
ip

el
in

es
 a

lre
ad

y 
in

 p
la

ce
 b

et
w

ee
n 

S
t 

F
er

gu
s 

an
d 

ce
nt

ra
l S

co
tla

nd
. P

et
er

he
ad

 a
ls

o 
ha

s 
th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l t

o 
ac

t a
s 

a 
ke

y 
im

po
rt

 
po

in
t, 

w
ith

 
ca

rb
on

 
di

ox
id

e 
be

in
g 

sh
ip

pe
d 

th
er

e 
fr

om
 

el
se

w
he

re
 in

 t
he

 U
K

 o
r 

fu
rt

he
r 

af
ie

ld
 b

ef
or

e 
be

in
g 

tr
an

sp
or

te
d 

in
 

ex
is

tin
g 

pi
pe

lin
es

 u
p 

to
 S

t F
er

gu
s 

an
d 

on
w

ar
ds

 fo
r 

st
or

ag
e 

un
de

r 
th

e 
N

or
th

 S
ea

. 
 4.

11
 A

re
as

 o
f A

be
rd

ee
n 

an
d 

A
be

rd
ee

ns
hi

re
 a

re
 a

lre
ad

y 
at

 r
is

k 
fr

om
 

flo
od

in
g,

 b
ut

 i
nc

re
as

ed
 r

is
k 

co
m

es
 a

bo
ut

 t
hr

ou
gh

 c
ha

ng
in

g 
an

d 
m

or
e 

un
pr

ed
ic

ta
bl

e 
w

ea
th

er
 p

at
te

rn
s 

an
d 

ris
in

g 
se

a 
le

ve
ls

. A
vo

id
in

g 
flo

od
 r

is
k 

is
 a

n 
im

po
rt

an
t 

m
ea

su
re

 t
o 

ad
ap

t 
to

 c
lim

at
e 

ch
an

ge
. 

W
e 

w
ill

 n
ee

d 
to

 t
ak

e 
ac

co
un

t 
of

 t
he

 s
ca

le
 o

f 
th

es
e 

ch
an

ge
s 

w
he

n 
w

e 
co

ns
id

er
 w

ha
t 

ne
w

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 b
ui

lt 
an

d 
w

he
re

 t
he

y 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

lo
ca

te
d.

  
 4.

12
 S

co
tla

nd
’s

 Z
er

o 
W

as
te

 P
la

n 
ha

s 
se

t 
a 

ta
rg

et
 o

f 
re

cy
cl

in
g 

or
 

co
m

po
st

in
g 

70
%

 o
f a

ll 
w

as
te

, a
nd

 li
m

iti
ng

 w
as

te
 s

en
t t

o 
la

nd
fil

l s
ite

s 
to

 5
%

, 
by

 2
02

5.
 M

ee
tin

g 
th

es
e 

ta
rg

et
s 

w
ill

 r
ep

re
se

nt
 a

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t 

ch
an

ge
 

fr
om

 
cu

rr
en

t 
pr

ac
tic

e 
an

d 
m

ov
e 

th
e 

em
ph

as
is

 
fr

om
 

pr
ov

id
in

g 
en

ou
gh

 la
nd

fil
l s

pa
ce

 to
 p

ro
vi

di
ng

 s
ite

s 
fo

r 
ot

he
r 

tr
ea

tm
en

t 
pr

oc
es

se
s 

(s
uc

h 
as

 c
om

po
st

in
g 

an
d 

en
er

gy
 fr

om
 w

as
te

).
  

 4.
13

 
O

ur
 

ob
je

ct
iv

e 
is

 
to

 
m

ee
t 

ou
r 

w
as

te
-m

an
ag

em
en

t 
ne

ed
s 

lo
ca

lly
 a

s 
fa

r 
as

 p
os

si
bl

e.
 T

hi
s 

w
ill

 m
ak

e 
su

re
 

th
at

 
th

e 
ec

on
om

ic
, 

so
ci

al
 

an
d 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l 
va

lu
e 

fr
om

 m
an

ag
in

g 
th

is
 im

po
rt

an
t 

re
so

ur
ce

 is
 k

ep
t 

in
 t

he
 

lo
ca

l 
ar

ea
 a

nd
 t

he
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l 

co
st

s 
of

 t
ra

ns
po

rt
 a

re
 k

ep
t 

to
 a

 
m

in
im

um
.  

 

4.
14

 W
hi

le
 th

er
e 

is
 n

o 
ov

er
al

l n
ee

d 
fo

r 
ne

w
 la

nd
fil

l s
pa

ce
 in

 th
e 

pl
an

 
ar

ea
, w

e 
ar

e 
lik

el
y 

to
 n

ee
d 

tim
e 

ex
te

ns
io

ns
 a

t s
om

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
si

te
s 

to
 

m
ak

e 
su

re
 w

e 
m

ai
nt

ai
n 

ca
pa

ci
ty

, 
m

ak
e 

th
e 

be
st

 u
se

 o
f 

si
te

s 
an

d 
re

st
or

e 
th

e 
si

te
s 

to
 t

he
 h

ig
he

st
 s

ta
nd

ar
ds

. 
W

e 
sh

ou
ld

 d
o 

th
is

 w
hi

le
 

ta
ki

ng
 i

nt
o 

ac
co

un
t 

th
e 

ef
fe

ct
 o

n 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
 a

nd
 t

he
 l

eg
iti

m
at

e 
co

nc
er

ns
 o

f r
es

id
en

ts
 c

lo
se

 to
 s

uc
h 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s.
  

 4.
15

 M
an

ag
in

g 
ou

r 
w

as
te

 r
es

po
ns

ib
ly

 a
nd

 i
n 

lin
e 

w
ith

 t
he

 w
as

te
 

hi
er

ar
ch

y,
 p

ro
xi

m
ity

 p
rin

ci
pl

e 
an

d 
Z

er
o 

W
as

te
 P

la
n 

w
ill

 m
ea

n 
w

e 
w

ill
 

ne
ed

 a
 v

ar
ie

ty
 o

f 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 e
xt

ra
 w

as
te

-t
re

at
m

en
t 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
(w

ith
 a

 
ca

pa
ci

ty
 o

f 
ov

er
 3

00
,0

00
 t

on
ne

s)
 i

n 
a 

va
rie

ty
 o

f 
lo

ca
tio

ns
. 

W
e 

sh
ou

ld
 d

ev
el

op
 t

he
se

 n
ew

 f
ac

ili
tie

s 
as

 c
lo

se
 

as
 p

os
si

bl
e 

to
 t

he
 s

ou
rc

e 
of

 t
he

 w
as

te
, 

w
ith

 
ar

ou
nd

 7
5%

 o
f 

th
em

 b
ei

ng
 i

n 
th

e 
st

ra
te

gi
c 

gr
ow

th
 a

re
as

 w
ith

in
 o

r 
cl

os
e 

to
 A

be
rd

ee
n.

 
O

ut
w

ith
 t

hi
s 

ar
ea

, 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

sh
ou

ld
 g

en
er

al
ly

 
m

ee
t 

a 
m

or
e 

lo
ca

l 
ne

ed
 o

r 
ne

ed
 t

o 
be

 i
n 

a 
ru

ra
l 

lo
ca

tio
n.

 
P

os
si

bl
e 

lo
ca

tio
ns

 
in

cl
ud

e 
si

te
s 

ne
xt

 
to

 
ex

is
tin

g 
w

as
te

-m
an

ag
em

en
t 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
or

 
la

nd
 

w
hi

ch
 

lo
ca

l 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
pl

an
s 

ha
ve

 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

fo
r 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t 

or
 

m
ix

ed
-u

se
 

pu
rp

os
es

 
w

he
re

 
th

e 
ne

w
 

si
te

 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

co
m

pa
tib

le
 w

ith
 n

ea
rb

y 
ex

is
tin

g 
or

 
pr

op
os

ed
 u

se
s.

  
 4.

16
 W

he
n 

de
ci

di
ng

 w
he

th
er

 a
 s

ite
 i

s 
su

ita
bl

e,
 a

 r
an

ge
 o

f 
fa

ct
or

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
im

po
rt

an
t, 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
go

od
 a

cc
es

s 
to

 t
he

 t
ra

ns
po

rt
 n

et
w

or
k 

an
d 

w
he

th
er

 t
he

re
 i

s 
a 

re
al

is
tic

 p
ro

sp
ec

t 
of

 u
si

ng
 a

ny
 h

ea
t 

or
 

el
ec

tr
ic

ity
 g

en
er

at
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

pr
oc

es
s.

 W
e 

m
us

t 
in

te
gr

at
e 

ho
w

 w
e 

m
an

ag
e 

w
as

te
 

in
to

 
al

l 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
pr

op
os

al
s 

an
d 

co
ns

id
er

 
co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n 
an

d 
de

m
ol

iti
on

 
w

as
te

 
as

 
w

el
l 

as
 

w
as

te
 

ge
ne

ra
te

d 
du

rin
g 

th
e 

lif
et

im
e 

of
 t

he
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t. 

E
ne

rg
y 

fr
om

 w
as

te
 f

ac
ili

tie
s 

w
ith

in
 w

id
er

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
pr

op
os

al
s 

w
hi

ch
 u

se
 s

ur
pl

us
 h

ea
t 

fo
r 

ho
m

es
, 

bu
si

ne
ss

es
 a

nd
 c

om
m

un
ity

 f
ac

ili
tie

s 
ar

e 
lik

el
y 

to
 b

e 
ve

ry
 

ef
fic

ie
nt

 a
nd

 w
ill

 r
eq

ui
re

 p
ot

en
tia

l d
ev

el
op

er
s 

to
 s

pe
ak

 to
 e

ac
h 

ot
he

r 
at

 a
n 

ea
rly

 s
ta

ge
. 

Page 454



19
 

 4.
17

 T
he

 R
iv

er
 D

ee
 (

se
e 

fig
ur

e 
6)

 i
s 

an
 i

m
po

rt
an

t 
ec

on
om

ic
 a

ss
et

 
as

 w
el

l 
as

 b
ei

ng
 t

he
 r

eg
io

n’
s 

m
ai

n 
so

ur
ce

 o
f 

dr
in

ki
ng

 w
at

er
 a

nd
 a

 
S

pe
ci

al
 A

re
a 

of
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n.

 T
hi

s 
re

so
ur

ce
 is

 u
nd

er
 p

re
ss

ur
e 

an
d 

as
 

a 
re

su
lt,

 
m

an
ag

in
g 

th
e 

us
e 

of
 

w
at

er
 

an
d 

in
cr

ea
si

ng
 

w
at

er
 

ef
fic

ie
nc

y 
is

 v
ita

l. 
D

ur
in

g 
an

d 
be

yo
nd

 t
he

 p
er

io
d 

of
 t

hi
s 

pl
an

 t
he

 
ef

fe
ct

s 
of

 c
lim

at
e 

ch
an

ge
 m

ay
 a

ffe
ct

 t
he

 r
iv

er
 a

nd
 w

e 
m

ay
 h

av
e 

to
 

ta
ke

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 a
da

pt
at

io
n 

m
ea

su
re

s.
 

 T
ar

g
et

s 
 • 

F
or

 a
ll 

ne
w

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
 to

 b
e 

ca
rb

on
 n

eu
tr

al
 b

y 
20

20
. 

• 
F

or
 t

he
 c

ity
 r

eg
io

n’
s 

el
ec

tr
ic

ity
 n

ee
ds

 t
o 

be
 m

et
 f

ro
m

 r
en

ew
ab

le
 

so
ur

ce
s 

by
 2

02
0.

 
• 

T
o 

av
oi

d 
ha

vi
ng

 t
o 

in
cr

ea
se

 t
he

 a
m

ou
nt

 o
f 

w
at

er
 S

co
tti

sh
 W

at
er

 
ar

e 
lic

en
se

d 
to

 t
ak

e 
fr

om
 t

he
 R

iv
er

 D
ee

, 
as

 a
 r

es
ul

t 
of

 t
he

 n
ew

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
 p

ro
po

se
d 

in
 th

e 
pl

an
.  

• 
F

or
 a

ll 
ne

w
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

 to
 u

se
 w

at
er

-s
av

in
g 

te
ch

no
lo

gy
. 

• 
T

o 
av

oi
d 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

 o
n 

la
nd

 w
hi

ch
 i

s 
at

 a
n 

un
ac

ce
pt

ab
le

 r
is

k 
fr

om
 c

oa
st

al
 o

r 
riv

er
 f

lo
od

in
g 

(a
s 

de
fin

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
’In

di
ca

tiv
e 

R
iv

er
 

an
d 

C
oa

st
al

 F
lo

od
 M

ap
 fo

r 
S

co
tla

nd
’ o

r 
th

ro
ug

h 
a 

de
ta

ile
d 

flo
od

 r
is

k 
as

se
ss

m
en

t)
, e

xc
ep

t i
n 

ex
ce

pt
io

na
l c

irc
um

st
an

ce
s.

 
• 

T
o 

w
or

k 
to

w
ar

ds
 

an
 

ex
tr

a 
30

0,
00

0 
to

nn
es

 
of

 
ne

w
 

w
as

te
-

m
an

ag
em

en
t i

nf
ra

st
ru

ct
ur

e.
 

 H
o

w
 t

o
 m

ee
t 

th
e 

ta
rg

et
s 

 • 
Lo

ca
l 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

pl
an

s 
(a

nd
 

su
pp

le
m

en
ta

ry
 

gu
id

an
ce

) 
w

ill
 

pr
om

ot
e 

a 
gr

ad
ua

l 
m

ov
e 

to
w

ar
ds

 
bu

ild
in

gs
 

w
hi

ch
 

ar
e 

ca
rb

on
 

ne
ut

ra
l. 

• 
Lo

ca
l 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

pl
an

s 
(a

nd
 

su
pp

le
m

en
ta

ry
 

gu
id

an
ce

) 
w

ill
 

id
en

tif
y 

ar
ea

s 
or

 t
ec

hn
ol

og
y 

w
hi

ch
 c

an
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

e 
to

 t
he

 s
up

pl
y 

of
 

re
ne

w
ab

le
 e

ne
rg

y.
 

• 
 W

or
k 

w
ith

 S
co

tti
sh

 N
at

ur
al

 H
er

ita
ge

, 
th

e 
S

co
tti

sh
 E

nv
iro

nm
en

t 
P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
A

ge
nc

y,
 S

co
tti

sh
 W

at
er

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 s

ta
ke

ho
ld

er
s 

to
 b

et
te

r 
un

de
rs

ta
nd

 th
e 

lik
el

y 
m

ed
iu

m
 to

 lo
ng

-t
er

m
 e

ffe
ct

s 
of

 c
lim

at
e 

ch
an

ge
 

on
 

th
e 

R
iv

er
 

D
ee

 
an

d 
an

y 
ad

ap
ta

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

s 
th

at
 

m
ay

 
be

 
ne

ed
ed

. 
• 

T
he

 t
w

o 
co

un
ci

ls
 s

ho
ul

d 
w

or
k 

to
ge

th
er

 to
 id

en
tif

y 
an

d 
pu

t 
in

 p
la

ce
 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 r

es
id

ua
l w

as
te

 m
an

ag
em

en
t s

ol
ut

io
ns

. 
• 

Lo
ca

l 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
pl

an
s 

sh
ou

ld
 

no
t 

id
en

tif
y 

si
te

s 
fo

r 
ne

w
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

w
hi

ch
 

ar
e 

at
 

an
 

un
ac

ce
pt

ab
le

 
ris

k 
fr

om
 

flo
od

in
g,

 
ex

ce
pt

 f
or

 b
ro

w
nf

ie
ld

 s
ite

s 
w

hi
ch

 h
av

e 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 f
lo

od
 p

re
ve

nt
io

n 
m

ea
su

re
s 

in
 p

la
ce

. 
U

na
cc

ep
ta

bl
e 

ris
k 

w
ill

 n
or

m
al

ly
 b

e 
m

or
e 

th
an

 a
 

1 
in

 2
00

 (
0.

5%
) 

ch
an

ce
 o

f 
a 

flo
od

 h
ap

pe
ni

ng
 in

 a
ny

 y
ea

r,
 a

lth
ou

gh
 

th
is

 w
ill

 v
ar

y 
w

ith
 th

e 
ty

pe
 o

f d
ev

el
op

m
en

t b
ei

ng
 p

ro
po

se
d.

 
• 

U
se

 m
as

te
r 

pl
an

ni
ng

 (
an

d 
su

pp
le

m
en

ta
ry

 g
ui

da
nc

e)
 t

o 
co

ns
id

er
 

th
e 

po
ss

ib
le

 
sc

op
e 

of
 

co
m

bi
ne

d 
he

at
 

an
d 

po
w

er
 

sc
he

m
es

 
to

 
co

nt
rib

ut
e 

to
w

ar
ds

 u
si

ng
 e

ne
rg

y 
m

or
e 

ef
fic

ie
nt

ly
 a

nd
 in

 r
ed

uc
in

g 
th

e 
am

ou
nt

 o
f e

ne
rg

y 
us

ed
 o

ve
ra

ll.
 

 M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 
 M

on
ito

rin
g 

w
ill

 f
oc

us
 o

n 
th

e 
qu

an
tit

y 
of

 w
at

er
 e

xt
ra

ct
ed

 f
ro

m
 t

he
 

R
iv

er
 D

ee
, 

th
e 

am
ou

nt
 o

f 
re

ne
w

ab
le

 e
ne

rg
y 

pr
od

uc
ed

 i
n 

th
e 

ar
ea

 
an

d 
th

e 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 o
f 

w
as

te
 w

hi
ch

 i
s 

ta
ke

n 
to

 l
an

df
ill

, 
re

cy
cl

ed
 o

r 
co

m
po

st
ed

. 
 

Page 455



20
 

P
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

 g
ro

w
th

 
 O

b
je

ct
iv

e 
 T

o 
in

cr
ea

se
 

th
e 

po
pu

la
tio

n 
of

 
th

e 
ci

ty
 

re
gi

on
 

an
d 

ac
hi

ev
e 

a 
ba

la
nc

ed
 a

ge
 r

an
ge

 t
o 

he
lp

 m
ai

nt
ai

n 
an

d 
im

pr
ov

e 
pe

op
le

’s
 q

ua
lit

y 
of

 li
fe

. 
 Is

su
es

 
 4.

18
 E

xp
ec

ta
tio

ns
 o

f 
ho

us
in

g 
ne

ed
 a

nd
 d

em
an

d 
ov

er
 t

he
 p

er
io

d 
to

 
20

35
 

ha
ve

 
be

en
 

as
se

ss
ed

 
in

 
a 

H
ou

si
ng

 
N

ee
d 

an
d 

D
em

an
d 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t (

20
11

).
  

 4.
19

 T
he

 p
op

ul
at

io
n 

of
 t

he
 c

ity
 r

eg
io

n 
ha

s 
be

en
 g

ro
w

in
g 

fo
r 

a 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 y
ea

rs
 a

nd
 w

as
 4

65
,0

00
 in

 2
01

1.
 T

hi
s 

is
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

to
 g

ro
w

 
to

 a
ro

un
d 

50
0,

00
0 

by
 2

03
5.

 H
ow

ev
er

, 
as

 w
el

l 
as

 t
he

 t
ot

al
 s

iz
e 

of
 

th
e 

po
pu

la
tio

n,
 

th
e 

ag
e 

ra
ng

e 
of

 
th

e 
po

pu
la

tio
n 

al
so

 
pr

es
en

ts
 

ch
al

le
ng

es
 in

 th
e 

ye
ar

s 
ah

ea
d.

 T
he

 o
ve

r-
65

s 
ag

e 
gr

ou
p 

is
 p

re
di

ct
ed

 
to

 g
ro

w
 a

t 
th

e 
fa

st
es

t 
ra

te
 –

 t
hi

s 
w

ill
 h

av
e 

a 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 e
ffe

ct
 o

n 
th

e 
ec

on
om

y 
of

 th
e 

ar
ea

 a
nd

 th
e 

w
ay

 in
 w

hi
ch

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
ar

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
 fo

r 
an

 in
cr

ea
si

ng
ly

 e
ld

er
ly

 p
op

ul
at

io
n.

 
 4.

20
 P

la
nn

in
g 

fo
r 

an
 i

nc
re

as
e 

in
 t

he
 p

op
ul

at
io

n 
of

 3
5,

00
0 

ov
er

 2
4 

ye
ar

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
a 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 c

ha
lle

ng
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

N
or

th
 E

as
t. 

H
ow

ev
er

, 
m

os
t 

of
 t

he
 n

ee
d 

fo
r 

al
m

os
t 

54
,0

00
 n

ew
 h

om
es

 (
se

e 
fig

ur
e 

8)
 

co
m

es
 f

ro
m

 t
he

 e
xi

st
in

g 
po

pu
la

tio
n 

of
 t

he
 a

re
a 

as
 t

he
 a

ve
ra

ge
 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 p

eo
pl

e 
in

 e
ac

h 
ho

us
eh

ol
d 

fa
lls

. 
W

e 
w

ill
 o

nl
y 

ac
hi

ev
e 

th
es

e 
ch

al
le

ng
in

g 
le

ve
ls

 o
f 

gr
ow

th
 if

 w
e 

w
or

k 
to

w
ar

ds
 o

ur
 a

im
s 

an
d 

ob
je

ct
iv

es
 w

ith
 o

ur
 p

ar
tn

er
s.

  
 4.

21
 I

f 
th

e 
po

pu
la

tio
n 

gr
ow

s 
to

 t
he

 le
ve

ls
 w

e 
ar

e 
ai

m
in

g 
fo

r,
 w

e 
w

ill
 

ne
ed

 a
n 

in
cr

ea
se

 i
n 

th
e 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 h

om
es

 w
hi

ch
 a

re
 b

ui
lt 

ea
ch

 
ye

ar
. T

hi
s 

pr
es

en
ts

 a
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t c
ha

lle
ng

e 
gi

ve
n 

th
e 

cu
rr

en
t a

cc
es

s 
to

 fi
na

nc
e 

fo
r 

bo
th

 d
ev

el
op

er
s 

an
d 

ho
us

eh
ol

ds
. 

 

 4.
22

 T
he

 h
ou

si
ng

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

t i
s 

se
t o

ut
 in

 fi
gu

re
 8

 b
el

ow
. 

 F
ig

u
re

 8
: 

H
o

u
si

n
g

 r
eq

u
ir

em
en

t 
  

20
11

-2
01

6 
20

17
-2

02
6 

20
27

-2
03

5 
T

ot
al

 
A

be
rd

ee
n 

H
M

A
 

9,
96

5 
15

,0
17

 
13

,5
06

 
38

,4
88

 
R

ur
al

 H
M

A
 

4,
23

7 
6,

41
1 

4,
83

6 
15

,4
84

 
T

ot
al

 
14

,2
02

 
21

,4
28

 
18

,3
42

 
53

,9
72

 
 4.

23
 S

ch
ed

ul
e 

1 
(p

ag
e 

27
) 

sh
ow

s 
th

e 
ho

us
in

g 
al

lo
w

an
ce

s 
ne

ed
ed

 
to

 h
el

p 
de

liv
er

 t
hi

s 
in

cr
ea

se
 i

n 
ne

w
 h

om
es

 a
nd

 a
llo

w
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

at
 th

e 
ra

te
s 

ta
rg

et
ed

 in
 th

is
 p

la
n.

 
 4.

24
 In

 li
ne

 w
ith

 S
co

tti
sh

 P
la

nn
in

g 
P

ol
ic

y,
 t

he
se

 a
llo

w
an

ce
s 

pr
ov

id
e 

a 
ge

ne
ro

us
 s

up
pl

y 
of

 la
nd

 f
or

 n
ew

 h
ou

si
ng

 (
S

ch
ed

ul
e 

1)
 o

n 
to

p 
of

 
th

e 
ho

us
in

g 
re

qu
ire

m
en

t (
fig

ur
e 

8)
. A

s 
a 

re
su

lt,
 w

e 
ca

nn
ot

 e
xp

ec
t a

ll 
th

e 
ne

w
 h

om
es

 t
o 

be
 b

ui
lt 

w
ith

in
 t

he
 r

el
ev

an
t 

pl
an

 p
er

io
d.

 T
hi

s 
m

ak
es

 s
ur

e 
th

e 
pl

an
 c

an
 c

op
e 

w
ith

 h
ig

he
r 

le
ve

ls
 o

f 
de

m
an

d 
th

an
 

w
e 

cu
rr

en
tly

 e
xp

ec
t. 

 
 T

ar
g

et
s 

 • 
T

o 
in

cr
ea

se
 th

e 
po

pu
la

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
ci

ty
 r

eg
io

n 
to

 5
00

,0
00

 b
y 

20
35

. 
• 

T
o 

m
ov

e 
to

w
ar

ds
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

at
 l

ea
st

 2
,5

00
 h

om
es

 a
 y

ea
r 

by
 2

01
6 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t p

la
n.

 
• 

T
o 

m
ov

e 
to

w
ar

ds
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

at
 l

ea
st

 3
,0

00
 h

om
es

 a
 y

ea
r 

by
 2

02
0 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t p

la
n.

 
 H

o
w

 t
o

 m
ee

t 
th

e 
ta

rg
et

s 
 4.

25
 B

ot
h 

pl
an

ni
ng

 a
ut

ho
rit

ie
s 

w
ill

 n
ee

d 
to

 m
ak

e 
la

nd
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

fo
r 

ho
m

es
 t

hr
ou

gh
 l

oc
al

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
pl

an
s 

in
 l

in
e 

w
ith

 t
he

 s
pa

tia
l 

st
ra

te
gy

 a
nd

 s
ch

ed
ul

e 
1 

of
 t

hi
s 

pl
an

. P
ha

si
ng

 o
f 

la
nd

 a
llo

ca
tio

ns
 fo

r 
th

e 
pe

rio
d 

20
17

-2
02

6 
m

ay
 b

e 
pu

t 
in

 p
la

ce
 w

he
re

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

. 
W

e 
w

ill
 u

se
 a

ct
io

n 
pr

og
ra

m
m

es
, 

pl
an

ni
ng

 a
gr

ee
m

en
ts

 a
nd

 p
os

si
bl

y 

Page 456



21
 

co
m

pu
ls

or
y 

pu
rc

ha
se

 p
ow

er
s 

to
 f

oc
us

 a
tte

nt
io

n 
on

 d
el

iv
er

in
g 

ne
w

 
ho

us
in

g,
 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t 

an
d 

co
m

m
er

ci
al

 
us

es
 

an
d 

pr
ov

id
in

g 
th

e 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
. 

 4.
26

 A
s 

w
el

l a
s 

th
es

e,
 t

he
re

 a
re

 a
ls

o 
ot

he
r 

ac
tio

ns
 w

e 
ne

ed
 t

o 
ta

ke
 

to
 

m
ee

t 
th

is
 

ob
je

ct
iv

e.
 

T
he

se
 

ac
tio

ns
 

ar
e 

co
ve

re
d 

un
de

r 
ot

he
r 

ob
je

ct
iv

es
 w

hi
ch

 f
oc

us
 o

n 
th

e 
qu

al
ity

 o
f 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

an
d 

w
ill

 h
el

p 
to

 m
ak

e 
th

e 
N

or
th

 E
as

t 
an

 e
ve

n 
m

or
e 

at
tr

ac
tiv

e 
pl

ac
e 

to
 l

iv
e,

 v
is

it 
an

d 
do

 
bu

si
ne

ss
. 

In
 

th
is

 
w

ay
, 

pr
ov

id
in

g 
la

nd
 

fo
r 

ho
us

in
g 

an
d 

in
cr

ea
si

ng
 t

he
 p

op
ul

at
io

n 
is

 o
ne

 p
ar

t 
of

 a
 s

tr
at

eg
y 

to
 i

nc
re

as
e 

th
e 

qu
al

ity
 o

f 
lif

e 
in

 t
he

 a
re

a.
 P

ro
vi

di
ng

 n
ew

 h
ou

si
ng

 w
hi

ch
 d

oe
s 

no
t 

m
ee

t t
he

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
 o

f t
he

 s
pa

tia
l s

tr
at

eg
y 

or
 m

ee
t t

he
 s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 
se

t o
ut

 u
nd

er
 o

th
er

 o
bj

ec
tiv

es
 w

ill
 n

ot
 b

e 
su

pp
or

te
d 

by
 th

is
 p

la
n.

 
 4.

27
 M

ee
tin

g 
th

es
e 

ta
rg

et
s 

w
ill

 a
ls

o 
de

pe
nd

 o
n 

fa
ct

or
s 

w
hi

ch
 a

re
 

no
t 

re
la

te
d 

to
 t

he
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

pl
an

 o
r 

un
de

r 
th

e 
co

nt
ro

l 
of

 t
he

 
pl

an
ni

ng
 a

ut
ho

rit
ie

s.
 T

he
se

 f
ac

to
rs

 i
nc

lu
de

 t
he

 h
ea

lth
 o

f 
th

e 
gl

ob
al

 
an

d 
lo

ca
l 

ec
on

om
y,

 t
he

 p
ric

e 
of

 o
il,

 a
cc

es
s 

to
 a

nd
 t

he
 c

os
t 

of
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

an
d 

m
or

tg
ag

e 
fin

an
ce

, 
th

e 
re

sp
on

se
 o

f 
th

e 
ho

us
e

-
bu

ild
in

g 
in

du
st

ry
 

an
d 

ho
w

 
th

e 
ar

ea
 

is
 

m
ar

ke
te

d 
to

 
po

te
nt

ia
l 

re
si

de
nt

s 
fr

om
 th

e 
re

st
 o

f S
co

tla
nd

 o
r 

fu
rt

he
r 

af
ie

ld
. 

   M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

  
 M

on
ito

rin
g 

w
ill

 
as

se
ss

 
tr

en
ds

 
in

 
po

pu
la

tio
n 

gr
ow

th
 

an
d 

ho
us

e
-

bu
ild

in
g 

in
 th

e 
ar

ea
.  

 

Page 457



22
 

Q
u

al
it

y 
o

f 
th

e 
en

vi
ro

n
m

en
t 

 
 O

b
je

ct
iv

e 
 T

o 
m

ak
e 

su
re

 
ne

w
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

m
ai

nt
ai

ns
 

an
d 

im
pr

ov
es

 
th

e 
re

gi
on

’s
 im

po
rt

an
t b

ui
lt,

 n
at

ur
al

 a
nd

 c
ul

tu
ra

l a
ss

et
s.

 
 Is

su
es

 
 4.

28
 

T
he

 
bu

ilt
, 

na
tu

ra
l 

an
d 

cu
ltu

ra
l 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t 

is
 

a 
va

lu
ab

le
 

re
so

ur
ce

, 
bu

t 
on

e 
w

hi
ch

 n
ee

ds
 t

o 
be

 p
ro

te
ct

ed
. 

T
he

 w
ay

 i
n 

w
hi

ch
 

si
te

s 
ar

e 
ch

os
en

, 
an

d 
hi

gh
 q

ua
lit

y 
de

si
gn

, 
w

ill
 m

ak
e 

su
re

 t
ha

t 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
do

es
 n

ot
 le

ad
 t

o 
th

e 
de

cl
in

e 
of

 t
he

 N
or

th
 E

as
t’s

 b
ui

lt,
 

na
tu

ra
l a

nd
 c

ul
tu

ra
l a

ss
et

s.
  

 4.
29

 B
io

di
ve

rs
ity

, 
w

ild
lif

e 
ha

bi
ta

ts
 a

nd
 la

nd
sc

ap
e 

ca
n 

be
 v

ul
ne

ra
bl

e 
to

 th
e 

ef
fe

ct
s 

of
 n

ew
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t. 

A
s 

a 
re

su
lt,

 w
e 

ne
ed

 to
 fo

cu
s 

on
 

m
ai

nt
ai

ni
ng

 a
nd

 i
m

pr
ov

in
g 

th
em

, 
es

pe
ci

al
ly

 w
he

re
 t

he
re

 a
re

 p
la

ns
 

fo
r 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t. 

In
 

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
, 

w
e 

ne
ed

 
to

 
ta

ke
 

ca
re

 
ov

er
 

th
e 

po
ss

ib
le

 
ef

fe
ct

s 
of

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
on

 
N

at
ur

a 
20

00
 

si
te

s 
an

d 
th

e 
C

ai
rn

go
rm

s 
N

at
io

na
l P

ar
k.

 
 4.

30
 N

ot
 a

ll 
w

at
er

 b
od

ie
s 

in
 t

he
 a

re
a 

m
ee

t 
th

e 
qu

al
ity

 s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 

un
de

r 
th

e 
W

at
er

 F
ra

m
ew

or
k 

D
ire

ct
iv

e.
 R

iv
er

 B
as

in
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
P

la
ns

 h
av

e 
be

en
 p

re
pa

re
d 

in
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 to

 d
ea

l w
ith

 th
es

e 
is

su
es

. 
 4.

31
 T

he
 g

re
en

 b
el

t 
ar

ou
nd

 A
be

rd
ee

n 
w

ill
 c

on
tin

ue
 t

o 
pl

ay
 a

 v
ita

l 
ro

le
 i

n 
pr

ot
ec

tin
g 

th
e 

ch
ar

ac
te

r 
an

d 
la

nd
sc

ap
e 

se
tti

ng
 o

f 
th

e 
C

ity
. 

H
ow

ev
er

, 
it 

w
ill

 n
ee

d 
to

 c
ha

ng
e 

to
 m

ee
t 

th
e 

gr
ow

th
 t

hi
s 

pl
an

 s
ee

ks
 

to
 a

ch
ie

ve
. 

It 
m

us
t 

gu
id

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
to

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 p
la

ce
s 

w
hi

le
 

pr
ot

ec
tin

g 
th

e 
m

os
t 

im
po

rt
an

t 
ar

ea
s.

 A
cc

es
si

bl
e 

gr
ee

n 
ne

tw
or

ks
 

w
ith

in
 a

nd
 a

ro
un

d 
A

be
rd

ee
n 

an
d 

ot
he

r 
m

aj
or

 s
et

tle
m

en
ts

 w
ill

 a
ls

o 
be

 im
po

rt
an

t t
o 

ac
hi

ev
in

g 
a 

hi
gh

 q
ua

lit
y 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t. 

 

4.
32

 S
ite

s 
an

d 
ar

ea
s 

va
lu

ed
 f

or
 t

he
ir 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n 

to
 t

he
 b

ui
lt 

an
d 

hi
st

or
ic

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
t 

ar
e 

ju
st

 a
s 

se
ns

iti
ve

 a
nd

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 p

ro
te

ct
ed

 
fr

om
 th

e 
ne

ga
tiv

e 
ef

fe
ct

s 
of

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t. 
 T

ar
g

et
s 

 • 
T

o 
m

ak
e 

su
re

 th
at

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t i
m

pr
ov

es
 a

nd
 d

oe
s 

no
t l

ea
d 

to
 th

e 
lo

ss
 o

f, 
or

 d
am

ag
e 

to
, b

ui
lt,

 n
at

ur
al

 o
r 

cu
ltu

ra
l h

er
ita

ge
 a

ss
et

s.
 

• 
T

o 
av

oi
d 

ne
w

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
pr

ev
en

tin
g 

w
at

er
 b

od
ie

s 
ac

hi
ev

in
g 

‘g
oo

d 
ec

ol
og

ic
al

 s
ta

tu
s’

 u
nd

er
 th

e 
W

at
er

 F
ra

m
ew

or
k 

D
ire

ct
iv

e.
 

 H
o

w
 t

o
 m

ee
t 

th
e 

ta
rg

et
s 

 • 
Lo

ca
l d

ev
el

op
m

en
t p

la
ns

 (
an

d 
su

pp
le

m
en

ta
ry

 g
ui

da
nc

e)
 w

ill
 m

ak
e 

su
re

 t
he

 N
or

th
 E

as
t’s

 n
at

ur
al

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
t 

an
d 

hi
st

or
ic

 s
ite

s 
an

d 
bu

ild
in

gs
 c

on
tin

ue
 to

 b
e 

pr
ot

ec
te

d 
an

d 
im

pr
ov

ed
.  

• 
B

ot
h 

co
un

ci
ls

 
w

ill
 

ta
ke

 
pa

rt
 

in
 

th
e 

R
iv

er
 

B
as

in
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

P
la

nn
in

g 
pr

oc
es

s,
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

ly
 a

s 
it 

re
la

te
s 

to
 n

ew
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t. 

• 
B

ot
h 

co
un

ci
ls

 w
ill

 t
ak

e 
ac

co
un

t 
of

 b
io

di
ve

rs
ity

, 
w

ild
lif

e 
ha

bi
ta

ts
, 

la
nd

sc
ap

e,
 g

re
en

 n
et

w
or

ks
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 s
en

si
tiv

e 
ar

ea
s 

in
 i

de
nt

ify
in

g 
la

nd
 

fo
r 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t, 

pr
ep

ar
in

g 
m

as
te

rp
la

ns
 

an
d 

as
se

ss
in

g 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t p
ro

po
sa

ls
. 

 M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 
 • 

M
ea

su
rin

g 
th

e 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 o
f 

w
at

er
 b

od
ie

s 
th

at
 a

ch
ie

ve
 ‘

go
od

 
ec

ol
og

ic
al

 
st

at
us

’, 
ca

rr
ie

d 
ou

t 
by

 
th

e 
S

co
tti

sh
 

E
nv

iro
nm

en
t 

P
ro

te
ct

io
n 

A
ge

nc
y.

 
• 

A
ss

es
si

ng
 h

ow
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

ha
s 

di
re

ct
ly

 o
r 

in
di

re
ct

ly
 l

ed
 t

o 
th

e 
lo

ss
 o

f 
th

e 
bu

ilt
, n

at
ur

al
 a

nd
 c

ul
tu

ra
l a

ss
et

s,
 b

y 
ca

rr
yi

ng
 o

ut
 r

ev
ie

w
s 

th
ro

ug
h 

lo
ca

l d
ev

el
op

m
en

t p
la

ns
. 

• 
A

ss
es

si
ng

 h
ow

 m
uc

h 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
ha

s 
be

en
 g

ra
nt

ed
 p

la
nn

in
g 

pe
rm

is
si

on
 a

ga
in

st
 g

re
en

 b
el

t 
po

lic
ie

s,
 u

si
ng

 a
pp

ea
l d

ec
is

io
ns

 a
nd

 
S

co
tti

sh
 M

in
is

te
r 

no
tif

ic
at

io
ns

. 
 

Page 458



23
 

S
u

st
ai

n
ab

le
 m

ix
ed

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s 
 O

b
je

ct
iv

e 
 T

o 
m

ak
e 

su
re

 t
ha

t 
ne

w
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

m
ee

ts
 t

he
 n

ee
ds

 o
f 

th
e 

w
ho

le
 

co
m

m
un

ity
, b

ot
h 

no
w

 a
nd

 in
 th

e 
fu

tu
re

, a
nd

 m
ak

es
 th

e 
ar

ea
 a

 m
or

e 
at

tr
ac

tiv
e 

pl
ac

e 
fo

r 
re

si
de

nt
s 

an
d 

bu
si

ne
ss

es
 to

 m
ov

e 
to

. 
 Is

su
es

 
 4.

33
 

T
oo

 
of

te
n 

in
 

th
e 

pa
st

, 
ne

w
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

ha
s 

no
t 

be
en

 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e,
 

m
ix

ed
 

or
 

fo
cu

se
d 

on
 

m
ee

tin
g 

th
e 

ne
ed

s 
of

 
th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

. W
e 

m
us

t n
ot

 a
llo

w
 th

is
 to

 c
on

tin
ue

. I
f w

e 
ar

e 
to

 a
ch

ie
ve

 
ou

r 
vi

si
on

, 
w

e 
m

us
t 

se
t 

th
e 

hi
gh

es
t 

st
an

da
rd

s 
fo

r 
ur

ba
n 

an
d 

ru
ra

l 
de

si
gn

, 
th

e 
m

ix
 o

f 
la

nd
 u

se
s,

 u
si

ng
 l

an
d 

m
or

e 
ef

fic
ie

nt
ly

 a
nd

 r
e-

us
in

g 
pr

ev
io

us
ly

 d
ev

el
op

ed
 la

nd
.  

 4.
34

 A
 f

oc
us

 o
n 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

m
ix

ed
 c

om
m

un
iti

es
 m

ea
ns

 n
ot

 d
ea

lin
g 

w
ith

 d
iff

er
en

t 
la

nd
 u

se
s 

in
 is

ol
at

io
n.

 R
et

ai
l, 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t, 

ed
uc

at
io

n,
 

he
al

th
, 

le
is

ur
e,

 o
pe

n 
sp

ac
e 

an
d 

tr
an

sp
or

t 
as

 w
el

l a
s 

ho
us

in
g 

ar
e 

al
l 

vi
ta

l 
fo

r 
su

cc
es

sf
ul

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t. 
S

uc
h 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

cr
ea

te
s 

a 
st

ro
ng

 s
en

se
 o

f 
pl

ac
e 

an
d 

a 
hi

gh
-q

ua
lit

y 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t 
in

 w
hi

ch
 t

o 
liv

e 
an

d 
w

or
k.

 
 4.

35
 O

ur
 f

ut
ur

e 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
 m

us
t 

be
 m

ix
ed

 i
n 

te
rm

s 
of

 t
he

 t
yp

e 
an

d 
si

ze
 o

f 
ho

m
es

, 
as

 w
el

l a
s 

th
ei

r 
te

nu
re

 a
nd

 c
os

t. 
W

e 
al

so
 n

ee
d 

to
 m

ak
e 

su
re

 t
ha

t 
ne

w
 h

om
es

 a
re

 d
es

ig
ne

d 
to

 a
 h

ig
h 

st
an

da
rd

 a
nd

 
th

at
 t

he
y 

re
sp

ec
t 

an
d 

im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

qu
al

iti
es

 o
f 

th
e 

ar
ea

. 
If 

w
e 

w
an

t t
o 

al
lo

w
 p

eo
pl

e 
to

 h
av

e 
a 

ch
oi

ce
 o

f w
he

re
 th

ey
 w

an
t t

o 
liv

e,
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

 m
us

t 
pr

ov
id

e 
a 

w
id

e 
ra

ng
e 

of
 o

pt
io

ns
, 

fr
om

 s
ta

rt
er

 
ho

m
es

 t
o 

la
rg

e 
de

ta
ch

ed
 h

ou
se

s.
 P

ro
vi

di
ng

 a
ffo

rd
ab

le
 h

ou
si

ng
 i

s 
al

so
 c

rit
ic

al
 t

o 
de

liv
er

in
g 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

m
ix

ed
 c

om
m

un
iti

es
. 

H
ow

ev
er

, 
cu

rr
en

tly
 th

er
e 

is
 m

or
e 

of
 a

 n
ee

d 
fo

r 
af

fo
rd

ab
le

 h
ou

si
ng

 (
id

en
tif

ie
d 

in
 

th
e 

H
ou

si
ng

 
N

ee
d 

an
d 

D
em

an
d 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

as
 

38
%

 
of

 
ne

w
 

ho
m

es
) 

th
an

 t
he

re
 is

 f
un

di
ng

 a
va

ila
bl

e.
  

M
ee

tin
g 

th
e 

ta
rg

et
s 

in
 t

hi
s 

pl
an

 w
ill

 n
ee

d 
co

ns
id

er
ab

le
 e

ffo
rt

 a
nd

 c
re

at
iv

ity
 o

n 
th

e 
pa

rt
 o

f 
bo

th
 

pu
bl

ic
 a

nd
 p

riv
at

e 
se

ct
or

s 
w

or
ki

ng
 t

og
et

he
r.

 T
he

 t
w

o 
co

un
ci

ls
 w

ill
 

pr
ep

ar
e 

lo
ca

l 
ho

us
in

g 
st

ra
te

gi
es

 w
hi

ch
 w

ill
 c

on
si

de
r 

in
 m

or
e 

de
ta

il 
ho

w
 t

o 
pr

ov
id

e 
af

fo
rd

ab
le

 h
ou

si
ng

. 
H

av
in

g 
a 

va
rie

ty
 o

f 
ho

m
es

 a
nd

 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ts
 w

ill
 h

el
p 

to
 i

m
pr

ov
e 

ur
ba

n 
de

si
gn

 i
n 

th
e 

ci
ty

, 
to

w
ns

 a
nd

 r
ur

al
 a

re
as

. 
N

ew
 h

ou
si

ng
 w

hi
ch

 d
oe

s 
no

t 
m

ee
t 

th
e 

ta
rg

et
s 

se
t o

ut
 b

el
ow

 w
ill

 n
ot

 b
e 

su
pp

or
te

d 
by

 th
is

 p
la

n.
 

 4.
36

 I
t 

is
 i

m
po

rt
an

t 
th

at
 n

ew
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

m
ee

ts
 t

he
 n

ee
ds

 o
f 

th
e 

w
ho

le
 

co
m

m
un

ity
, 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
th

e 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
ne

ed
s 

of
 

G
yp

si
es

 
/ 

T
ra

ve
lle

rs
. W

ith
 a

n 
ag

ei
ng

 p
op

ul
at

io
n 

an
d 

sm
al

le
r 

ho
us

eh
ol

ds
, 

ne
w

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
w

ill
 n

ee
d 

to
 m

ee
t 

th
e 

ch
an

gi
ng

 n
ee

ds
 o

f 
so

ci
et

y 
ov

er
 

its
 w

ho
le

 li
fe

.  
 4.

37
 L

an
d 

br
ou

gh
t f

or
w

ar
d 

fo
r 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t m

us
t b

e 
us

ed
 e

ffi
ci

en
tly

 
an

d 
br

ow
nf

ie
ld

 
si

te
s 

an
d 

re
ge

ne
ra

tio
n 

ar
ea

s 
sh

ou
ld

 
be

 
gi

ve
n 

pr
io

rit
y.

 T
hr

ou
gh

 t
hi

s 
pr

oc
es

s,
 w

e 
sh

ou
ld

 c
re

at
e 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

 f
or

 
ne

w
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

th
at

 w
ill

 c
lo

se
 t

he
 g

ap
 b

et
w

ee
n 

th
e 

w
ea

lth
y 

an
d 

m
os

t d
is

ad
va

nt
ag

ed
 a

re
as

 o
f t

he
 r

eg
io

n.
 

 4.
38

 N
ew

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
ne

ed
s 

to
 f

oc
us

 o
n 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

. 
In

 t
he

 
st

ra
te

gi
c 

gr
ow

th
 a

re
as

, 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

nd
 f

ac
ili

tie
s 

fo
r 

th
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
 

m
us

t 
be

 a
 p

ar
t 

of
 t

he
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t. 

T
hi

s 
pl

an
 w

ill
 n

ot
 s

up
po

rt 
ho

us
e-

bu
ild

in
g 

th
at

 f
ai

ls
 t

o 
pr

ov
id

e 
th

es
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 a
nd

 f
ac

ili
tie

s 
w

hi
ch

 h
el

p 
m

ak
e 

su
cc

es
sf

ul
 a

nd
 s

us
ta

in
ab

le
 c

om
m

un
iti

es
. 

  4.
39

 I
n 

th
e 

sa
m

e 
w

ay
, 

a 
fo

cu
s 

on
 c

om
m

un
iti

es
 m

ea
ns

 t
ha

t 
ne

w
 

ho
us

in
g 

an
d 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

 f
or

 e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t 
an

d 
co

m
m

er
ci

al
 u

se
 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
in

te
gr

at
ed

 (
w

el
l 

re
la

te
d 

to
 e

ac
h 

ot
he

r 
an

d 
co

m
m

un
ity

 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s)

 t
o 

im
pr

ov
e 

pe
op

le
’s

 q
ua

lit
y 

of
 l

ife
 a

nd
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

ty
. 

T
hi

s 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

a 
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

 f
oc

us
 i

n 
m

as
te

rp
la

ns
 p

re
pa

re
d 

fo
r 

la
rg

er
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t a

re
as

. 
 4.

40
 T

o 
cr

ea
te

 s
us

ta
in

ab
le

 m
ix

ed
 c

om
m

un
iti

es
, 

re
ta

il 
se

rv
ic

es
 m

us
t 

be
 o

ne
 o

f 
th

e 
m

ai
n 

co
ns

id
er

at
io

ns
 i

n 
pr

ep
ar

in
g 

m
as

te
rp

la
ns

 a
nd

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
br

ie
fs

 f
or

 n
ew

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t. 
W

e 
w

ill
 t

ak
e 

a 
se

qu
en

tia
l 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 t
o 

ne
w

 r
et

ai
l d

ev
el

op
m

en
t. 

H
ow

ev
er

, 
w

e 
w

ill
 a

ls
o 

su
pp

or
t 

Page 459



24
 

ex
is

tin
g 

re
ta

il 
ce

nt
re

s 
to

 m
ak

e 
su

re
 th

at
 th

e 
ne

ed
s 

of
 th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

 
ar

e 
m

et
 n

ow
 a

s 
w

el
l a

s 
in

 th
e 

fu
tu

re
. 

 4.
41

 T
hi

s 
pl

an
 h

as
 a

 c
le

ar
 o

bj
ec

tiv
e 

fo
r 

po
pu

la
tio

n 
gr

ow
th

 i
n 

th
e 

N
or

th
 E

as
t a

nd
 in

cr
ea

si
ng

 th
e 

le
ve

l o
f h

ou
se

-b
ui

ld
in

g.
 H

ow
ev

er
, t

hi
s 

w
ill

 o
nl

y 
be

 a
cc

ep
ta

bl
e 

if 
th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t i
s 

of
 th

e 
hi

gh
es

t q
ua

lit
y.

 
 T

ar
g

et
s 

 • 
T

o 
in

cr
ea

se
 t

he
 r

an
ge

 a
nd

 q
ua

lit
y 

of
 h

ou
si

ng
 a

nd
 t

he
 r

es
id

en
tia

l 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t i
n 

th
e 

‘re
ge

ne
ra

tio
n 

pr
io

rit
y 

ar
ea

s’
. 

• 
F

or
 4

0%
 o

f 
al

l n
ew

 h
ou

si
ng

 in
 A

be
rd

ee
n 

C
ity

 t
o 

be
 o

n 
br

ow
nf

ie
ld

 
si

te
s.

 
• 

F
or

 a
ll 

ho
us

in
g 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

of
 o

ve
r 

on
e 

he
ct

ar
e 

in
 s

tr
at

eg
ic

 
gr

ow
th

 a
re

as
 t

o 
be

 i
n 

lin
e 

w
ith

 a
pp

ro
ve

d 
su

pp
le

m
en

ta
ry

 g
ui

da
nc

e 
an

d 
ge

ne
ra

lly
 h

av
e 

no
 le

ss
 th

an
 3

0 
dw

el
lin

gs
 p

er
 h

ec
ta

re
.  

• 
F

or
 t

he
 q

ua
lit

y 
an

d 
de

si
gn

 o
f 

ne
w

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 in

 t
he

 c
ity

 r
eg

io
n 

to
 b

e 
na

tio
na

lly
 r

ec
og

ni
se

d.
 

• 
F

or
 n

ew
 h

ou
si

ng
 t

o 
m

ee
t 

th
e 

ne
ed

s 
of

 t
he

 w
ho

le
 c

om
m

un
ity

 b
y 

pr
ov

id
in

g 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 l
ev

el
s 

of
 a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 h
ou

si
ng

 (
ar

ou
nd

 2
5%

) 
an

d 
an

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 m
ix

 o
f 

ty
pe

s 
an

d 
si

ze
s 

of
 h

om
es

, 
in

 l
in

e 
w

ith
 

lo
ca

l d
ev

el
op

m
en

t p
la

ns
 a

nd
 a

pp
ro

ve
d 

su
pp

le
m

en
ta

ry
 g

ui
da

nc
e.

 
• 

F
or

 lo
ca

l d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
pl

an
s 

an
d 

al
l m

as
te

rp
la

ns
 t

o 
fu

lly
 c

on
si

de
r 

th
e 

sc
op

e 
fo

r 
a 

m
ix

 o
f u

se
s 

on
 a

 s
ite

. 
 H

o
w

 t
o

 m
ee

t 
th

e 
ta

rg
et

s 
 • 

Lo
ca

l d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
pl

an
s 

w
ill

 t
ak

e 
ac

co
un

t 
of

 t
he

se
 t

ar
ge

ts
 w

he
n 

de
ci

di
ng

 h
ow

 a
nd

 w
he

re
 to

 id
en

tif
y 

la
nd

 fo
r 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t. 

• 
E

ve
ry

on
e 

in
vo

lv
ed

 in
 th

e 
pr

oc
es

s 
ne

ed
s 

to
 s

ho
w

 a
 c

om
m

itm
en

t t
o 

qu
al

ity
 a

nd
 s

et
 t

he
 h

ig
he

st
 s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 t
hr

ou
gh

ou
t 

th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

pr
oc

es
s,

 s
et

tli
ng

 fo
r 

go
od

 p
ra

ct
ic

e,
 b

ut
 a

im
in

g 
fo

r 
ex

ce
lle

nc
e.

 
• 

U
si

ng
 s

up
pl

em
en

ta
ry

 g
ui

da
nc

e 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 m
or

e 
de

ta
il 

on
 t

he
 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 

m
ix

 
of

 
pr

op
er

tie
s,

 
ur

ba
n-

de
si

gn
 

pr
in

ci
pl

es
 

an
d 

co
m

m
un

ity
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s.

 

• 
M

ai
nt

ai
n 

a 
de

si
gn

 r
ev

ie
w

 p
ro

ce
ss

 f
or

 m
as

te
rp

la
ns

 a
nd

 t
he

 m
os

t 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 p
la

nn
in

g 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
. 

 M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

  
 • 

M
ea

su
rin

g 
ho

w
 m

an
y 

pr
op

er
tie

s 
th

er
e 

ar
e 

in
 e

ac
h 

he
ct

ar
e 

fo
r 

si
te

s 
of

 o
ve

r 
on

e 
he

ct
ar

e 
w

hi
ch

 h
av

e 
be

en
 g

ra
nt

ed
 p

la
nn

in
g 

pe
rm

is
si

on
 

in
 s

tr
at

eg
ic

 g
ro

w
th

 a
re

as
, 

ca
rr

ie
d 

ou
t 

ea
ch

 y
ea

r 
us

in
g 

th
e 

ho
us

in
g 

la
nd

 a
ud

it.
 

• 
M

ea
su

rin
g 

th
e 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f 
ne

w
 h

ou
si

ng
 o

n 
br

ow
nf

ie
ld

 s
ite

s 
in

 
A

be
rd

ee
n,

 c
ar

rie
d 

ou
t e

ac
h 

ye
ar

 u
si

ng
 th

e 
ho

us
in

g 
la

nd
 a

ud
it.

 
• 

R
ep

or
t o

n 
re

ge
ne

ra
tio

n 
ac

tiv
ity

 a
nd

 o
ut

co
m

es
. 

• 
B

ui
ld

in
g 

up
 

a 
de

ta
ile

d 
pi

ct
ur

e 
of

 
ne

w
 

ho
us

in
g 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t, 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
th

e 
si

ze
s,

 ty
pe

s 
an

d 
te

nu
re

 o
f p

ro
pe

rt
ie

s,
 c

ar
rie

d 
ou

t e
ac

h 
ye

ar
 u

si
ng

 th
e 

ho
us

in
g 

la
nd

 a
ud

it.
  

 

Page 460



25
 

A
cc

es
si

b
ili

ty
 

 O
b

je
ct

iv
e 

 T
o 

m
ak

e 
su

re
 

th
at

 
al

l 
ne

w
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

 
co

nt
rib

ut
e 

to
w

ar
ds

 
re

du
ci

ng
 t

he
 n

ee
d 

to
 t

ra
ve

l a
nd

 e
nc

ou
ra

ge
 p

eo
pl

e 
to

 w
al

k,
 c

yc
le

 o
r 

us
e 

pu
bl

ic
 tr

an
sp

or
t b

y 
m

ak
in

g 
th

es
e 

at
tr

ac
tiv

e 
ch

oi
ce

s.
 

 Is
su

es
 

 4.
42

 I
t 

is
 w

id
el

y 
ac

ce
pt

ed
 t

ha
t 

th
er

e 
ar

e 
ne

ga
tiv

e 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l, 

ec
on

om
ic

 
an

d 
so

ci
al

 
ef

fe
ct

s 
as

so
ci

at
ed

 
w

ith
 

ro
ad

 
tr

an
sp

or
t, 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
ai

r 
an

d 
no

is
e 

po
llu

tio
n 

an
d 

co
ng

es
tio

n.
 

 4.
43

 T
hi

s 
pl

an
 w

ill
 h

el
p 

to
 p

ro
m

ot
e 

th
e 

lin
k 

be
tw

ee
n 

la
nd

 u
se

 a
nd

 
tr

an
sp

or
t 

to
 m

ak
e 

su
re

 t
ha

t 
al

l 
ne

w
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

is
 c

on
ve

ni
en

tly
 

lo
ca

te
d 

an
d 

de
si

gn
ed

 i
n 

su
ch

 a
 w

ay
 a

s 
to

 e
nc

ou
ra

ge
 w

al
ki

ng
, 

cy
cl

in
g 

an
d 

th
e 

us
e 

of
 p

ub
lic

 t
ra

ns
po

rt
. 

Im
pr

ov
in

g 
bu

s 
an

d 
tr

ai
n 

se
rv

ic
es

 w
ill

 m
ak

e 
su

re
 th

at
 p

eo
pl

e 
w

ill
 b

e 
en

co
ur

ag
ed

 to
 u

se
 m

or
e 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

lly
 fr

ie
nd

ly
 fo

rm
s 

of
 tr

an
sp

or
t. 

 4.
44

 W
al

ki
ng

 a
nd

 c
yc

lin
g 

ar
e 

th
e 

m
os

t 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
lly

 f
rie

nd
ly

 
fo

rm
s 

of
 t

ra
ns

po
rt

 a
nd

 s
ho

ul
d 

al
so

 b
e 

en
co

ur
ag

ed
 a

s 
th

is
 w

ill
 h

el
p 

to
 a

ch
ie

ve
 im

po
rt

an
t h

ea
lth

, s
oc

ia
l a

nd
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l b

en
ef

its
. 

 4.
45

 
Im

pr
ov

in
g 

ac
ce

ss
 

to
 

th
e 

N
or

th
 

E
as

t 
is

 
al

so
 

es
se

nt
ia

l 
to

 
de

ve
lo

pi
ng

 a
 s

tr
on

g 
ec

on
om

y 
an

d 
pr

ov
id

in
g 

be
tte

r 
lin

ks
. T

he
 s

pa
tia

l 
st

ra
te

gy
 p

ro
m

ot
es

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
at

 h
ar

bo
ur

s 
an

d 
th

e 
ai

rp
or

t 
as

 w
el

l 
as

 
he

lp
in

g 
to

 
pr

om
ot

e 
ac

ce
ss

ib
ili

ty
 

by
 

m
ak

in
g 

su
re

 
th

at
 

fu
tu

re
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

al
so

 a
llo

w
s 

fo
r 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 i
n 

th
e 

ra
il 

an
d 

ro
ad

 
ne

tw
or

ks
. 

T
hi

s 
w

ill
 h

el
p 

to
 i

m
pr

ov
e 

bu
s 

an
d 

tr
ai

n 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

nd
 

en
co

ur
ag

e 
pe

op
le

 to
 u

se
 th

em
. 

 T
ar

g
et

s 
 • 

F
or

 a
ll 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

 to
 m

ee
t t

he
 a

cc
es

si
bi

lit
y 

st
an

da
rd

s 
se

t o
ut

 in
 

th
e 

re
gi

on
al

 tr
an

sp
or

t s
tr

at
eg

y.
 

• 
F

or
 m

aj
or

 e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t 
an

d 
se

rv
ic

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
 i

n 
st

ra
te

gi
c 

gr
ow

th
 a

re
as

 t
o 

sh
ow

 t
ha

t 
th

ey
 a

re
 e

as
y 

to
 a

cc
es

s 
by

 w
al

ki
ng

, 
cy

cl
in

g 
or

 u
si

ng
 p

ub
lic

 t
ra

ns
po

rt
. 

T
he

 t
ra

ve
l 

pl
an

s 
pr

od
uc

ed
 f

or
 

th
es

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
 s

ho
ul

d 
re

du
ce

 th
e 

ne
ed

 fo
r 

pe
op

le
 to

 u
se

 c
ar

s.
 

• 
T

o 
re

du
ce

 th
e 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f j
ou

rn
ey

s 
m

ad
e 

by
 c

ar
. 

 H
o

w
 t

o
 m

ee
t 

th
e 

ta
rg

et
s 

 
 • 

Lo
ca

l 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
pl

an
s 

w
ill

 
id

en
tif

y 
an

d 
pr

ot
ec

t 
la

nd
 

fr
om

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
to

 m
ak

e 
su

re
 t

ha
t 

tr
an

sp
or

t 
pr

op
os

al
s 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
in

 t
he

 
lo

ca
l a

nd
 r

eg
io

na
l t

ra
ns

po
rt

 s
tr

at
eg

ie
s 

ca
n 

be
 d

ev
el

op
ed

. 
T

ra
ns

po
rt

 
pr

op
os

al
s 

ne
ed

ed
 d

ue
 t

o 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
pr

om
ot

ed
 in

 t
he

 p
la

n 
w

ill
 b

e 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

in
 s

up
pl

em
en

ta
ry

 g
ui

da
nc

e.
 

• 
W

or
k 

w
ith

 
N

es
tr

an
s 

to
 

m
ak

e 
su

re
 

th
at

 
pu

tti
ng

 
th

e 
st

ra
te

gi
c 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

pl
an

 
in

to
 

pr
ac

tic
e 

cl
os

el
y 

lin
ks

 
w

ith
 

th
e 

re
gi

on
al

 
tr

an
sp

or
t s

tr
at

eg
y.

 
• 

T
he

 s
pa

tia
l 

st
ra

te
gy

 w
ill

 d
ire

ct
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

to
 a

re
as

 t
ha

t 
ca

n 
be

 
ac

ce
ss

ed
 

by
 

a 
gr

ea
te

r 
ch

oi
ce

 
of

 
m

or
e 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

lly
 

fr
ie

nd
ly

 
fo

rm
s 

of
 tr

an
sp

or
t. 

• 
B

ot
h 

co
un

ci
ls

 w
ill

 p
re

pa
re

 a
nd

 k
ee

p 
un

de
r 

re
vi

ew
 c

or
e 

pa
th

 p
la

ns
 

ta
ki

ng
 a

cc
ou

nt
 o

f 
w

he
re

 n
ew

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 w

ill
 t

ak
e 

pl
ac

e 
an

d 
is

su
es

 w
hi

ch
 a

ffe
ct

 b
ot

h 
co

un
ci

l a
re

as
. 

• 
T

he
 

ac
tio

n 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
w

ill
, 

at
 

an
 

ea
rly

 
st

ag
e,

 
id

en
tif

y 
th

e 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 t
o 

m
ak

e 
su

re
 t

ha
t 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

 c
an

 b
e 

ac
ce

ss
ed

 b
y 

w
al

ki
ng

, c
yc

lin
g 

an
d 

pu
bl

ic
 tr

an
sp

or
t. 

• 
A

pp
ro

ve
d 

su
pp

le
m

en
ta

ry
 g

ui
da

nc
e 

w
ill

 in
cl

ud
e 

la
yo

ut
s 

an
d 

de
si

gn
 

fo
r 

ne
w

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 w

hi
ch

 c
an

 b
e 

ac
ce

ss
ed

 e
as

ily
 b

y 
w

al
ki

ng
, 

cy
cl

in
g 

an
d 

pu
bl

ic
 tr

an
sp

or
t. 

 
 M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 

 M
on

ito
rin

g 
w

ill
 f

oc
us

 o
n 

th
e 

ac
ce

ss
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

 a
nd

 t
he

 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 o
f j

ou
rn

ey
s 

w
hi

ch
 a

re
 m

ad
e 

by
 d

iff
er

en
t m

et
ho

ds
. 

 

Page 461



26
 

5 
- 

P
u

tt
in

g
 t

h
is

 p
la

n
 in

to
 p

ra
ct

ic
e 

 5.
1 

T
hi

s 
pl

an
 p

ro
vi

de
s 

a 
vi

si
on

 t
ha

t 
ai

m
s 

to
 d

ev
el

op
 t

he
 e

co
no

m
y,

 
m

ai
nt

ai
n 

an
d 

im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

qu
al

ity
 o

f 
ou

r 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t 
an

d 
pr

ov
id

e 
a 

hi
gh

 q
ua

lit
y 

of
 l

ife
. 

T
he

 s
ca

le
 o

f 
th

e 
ch

an
ge

s 
ne

ed
ed

 a
nd

 t
he

 
ch

al
le

ng
es

 s
et

 b
y 

th
e 

vi
si

on
, 

es
pe

ci
al

ly
 i

n 
re

la
tio

n 
to

 s
us

ta
in

ab
le

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t a
nd

 c
lim

at
e 

ch
an

ge
, s

ho
ul

d 
no

t b
e 

un
de

re
st

im
at

ed
. 

 5.
2 

T
hi

s 
pl

an
 s

et
s 

th
e 

fr
am

ew
or

k 
fo

r 
ot

he
r 

pl
an

s 
an

d 
st

ra
te

gi
es

, a
nd

 
pr

om
ot

es
 ta

rg
et

s 
to

 a
ch

ie
ve

 o
ur

 a
im

s.
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 w

or
ki

ng
 b

et
w

ee
n 

th
e 

pu
bl

ic
 a

nd
 p

riv
at

e 
se

ct
or

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
es

se
nt

ia
l 

to
 p

ut
 t

he
 p

la
n 

in
to

 
pr

ac
tic

e.
 O

ne
 o

f 
th

e 
m

ai
n 

w
ay

s 
w

e 
w

ill
 p

ut
 t

hi
s 

pl
an

 in
to

 p
ra

ct
ic

e 
is

 
th

ro
ug

h 
lo

ca
l 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

pl
an

s 
an

d 
su

pp
le

m
en

ta
ry

 
gu

id
an

ce
. 

T
he

se
 

ar
e 

pr
ep

ar
ed

 
se

pa
ra

te
ly

 
by

 
A

be
rd

ee
n 

C
ity

 
C

ou
nc

il 
an

d 
A

be
rd

ee
ns

hi
re

 C
ou

nc
il 

an
d 

m
us

t b
e 

co
ns

is
te

nt
 w

ith
 th

is
 p

la
n.

 
 5.

3 
H

ow
ev

er
, 

lo
ca

l 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
pl

an
s 

w
ill

 n
ot

 h
av

e 
th

e 
lo

ng
-t

er
m

 
vi

si
on

 o
f 

th
e 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
pl

an
. 

T
he

re
 m

ay
 b

e 
ac

tio
n 

th
at

 
ne

ed
s 

to
 b

e 
ta

ke
n 

no
w

 t
o 

al
lo

w
 p

ro
po

sa
ls

 t
o 

be
 i

nc
lu

de
d 

in
 f

ut
ur

e 
lo

ca
l d

ev
el

op
m

en
t p

la
ns

. W
e 

ha
ve

 d
ev

el
op

ed
 a

n 
ac

tio
n 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

to
 s

up
po

rt
 th

is
 p

la
n.

  
 5.

4 
T

he
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
id

en
tif

ie
s 

w
ho

 i
s 

to
 t

ak
e 

ac
tio

n,
 w

he
n 

th
is

 w
ill

 
ne

ed
 t

o 
ha

pp
en

 a
nd

 h
ow

 i
t 

w
ill

 b
e 

fu
nd

ed
 a

nd
 d

el
iv

er
ed

. 
T

hi
s 

w
ill

 
gi

ve
 t

he
 p

eo
pl

e 
co

nc
er

ne
d 

th
e 

co
nf

id
en

ce
 t

o 
m

ak
e 

de
ci

si
on

s 
on

 
in

ve
st

m
en

t. 
T

he
 a

ct
io

n 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
w

ill
 b

e 
m

on
ito

re
d 

re
gu

la
rly

 a
nd

 
re

vi
ew

ed
 a

t l
ea

st
 e

ve
ry

 tw
o 

ye
ar

s.
 

 5.
5 

In
 t

ru
ly

 e
xc

ep
tio

na
l c

irc
um

st
an

ce
s,

 f
or

 e
xa

m
pl

e 
if 

it 
is

 e
ss

en
tia

l 
to

 p
ut

 t
he

 p
la

n’
s 

st
ra

te
gy

 i
nt

o 
pr

ac
tic

e,
 p

la
nn

in
g 

pe
rm

is
si

on
 m

ay
 

ne
ed

 to
 b

e 
gr

an
te

d 
on

 s
ite

s 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

in
 lo

ca
l d

ev
el

op
m

en
t p

la
ns

 fo
r 

th
e 

pe
rio

d 
20

27
-2

03
5 

(s
ho

w
n 

in
 s

ch
ed

ul
e 

1)
. 

A
ny

 p
er

m
is

si
on

 m
ay

 
ha

ve
 c

on
di

tio
ns

 w
hi

ch
 c

on
tr

ol
 t

he
 r

at
e 

of
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t. 

W
e 

w
ou

ld
 

ne
ed

 
to

 
hi

gh
lig

ht
 

th
e 

ne
ed

 
fo

r 
th

is
 

ac
tio

n 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
A

ct
io

n 
P

ro
gr

am
m

e 
an

d 
bo

th
 t

he
 s

tr
at

eg
ic

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
pl

an
ni

ng
 a

ut
ho

rit
y 

an
d 

th
e 

re
le

va
nt

 c
ou

nc
il 

w
ou

ld
 h

av
e 

to
 a

gr
ee

 to
 it

. 

 5.
6 

W
e 

ha
ve

 c
ar

rie
d 

ou
t 

a 
‘H

ab
ita

ts
 R

eg
ul

at
io

ns
 A

pp
ra

is
al

’ f
or

 t
hi

s 
pl

an
. 

H
ow

ev
er

, 
w

e 
w

ill
 

ha
ve

 
to

 
ca

rr
y 

ou
t 

a 
m

or
e 

de
ta

ile
d 

as
se

ss
m

en
t a

t a
 la

te
r 

st
ag

e 
fo

r 
lo

ca
l d

ev
el

op
m

en
t p

la
ns

 a
nd

 c
er

ta
in

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
 t

o 
m

ak
e 

su
re

 t
he

y 
w

ill
 n

ot
 h

av
e 

a 
ne

ga
tiv

e 
ef

fe
ct

 o
n 

an
y 

N
at

ur
a 

20
00

 s
ite

. 
 P

ro
vi

d
in

g
 in

fr
as

tr
u

ct
u

re
 

 5.
7 

T
o 

m
ak

e 
ch

an
ge

s 
on

 t
he

 s
ca

le
 p

ro
po

se
d 

in
 t

hi
s 

pl
an

, 
w

e 
m

us
t 

in
ve

st
 

in
 

ex
is

tin
g 

an
d 

ne
w

 
in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 
in

 
th

e 
st

ra
te

gi
c 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

pl
an

 a
re

a.
 T

hi
s 

is
 im

po
rt

an
t 

to
 m

ai
nt

ai
n 

qu
al

ity
 o

f 
lif

e 
in

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

. 
T

he
 e

xi
st

in
g 

ro
ad

s,
 s

ew
er

s 
an

d 
sc

ho
ol

s 
w

ill
 n

ot
 b

e 
ab

le
 to

 c
op

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
de

m
an

ds
 e

xt
ra

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t w
ill

 b
rin

g.
 W

e 
w

ill
 

al
so

 n
ee

d 
to

 in
ve

st
 in

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
an

d 
se

rv
ic

es
 fo

r 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
. T

he
se

 
tw

o 
ne

ed
s 

ha
ve

 t
o 

be
 c

ar
ef

ul
ly

 c
on

si
de

re
d 

ve
ry

 e
ar

ly
 i

n 
th

e 
la

nd
-

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

pr
oc

es
s,

 
ev

en
 

be
fo

re
 

la
nd

 
is

 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

in
 

lo
ca

l 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t p
la

ns
.  

 5.
8 

D
ev

el
op

er
s 

w
ill

 
ha

ve
 

to
 

ac
ce

pt
 

th
e 

ne
ed

 
fo

r 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
 

to
w

ar
ds

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

, 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

nd
 f

ac
ili

tie
s 

w
ith

in
 t

he
ir 

ow
n 

si
te

. 
H

ow
ev

er
, 

in
 c

as
es

 w
he

re
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

ha
s 

w
id

er
 e

ffe
ct

s,
 

w
e 

w
ill

 h
av

e 
to

 s
ec

ur
e 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
ns

 to
 d

ea
l w

ith
 th

es
e 

as
 w

el
l. 

 
 5.

9 
W

e 
w

ill
 p

re
pa

re
 s

up
pl

em
en

ta
ry

 g
ui

da
nc

e 
in

 s
up

po
rt

 o
f t

hi
s 

pl
an

.  
T

hi
s 

w
ill

 
al

lo
w

 
(t

hr
ou

gh
 

a 
‘S

tr
at

eg
ic

 
T

ra
ns

po
rt

 
F

un
d’

) 
tr

an
sp

or
t 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 w
hi

ch
 a

re
 n

ee
de

d 
as

 a
 r

es
ul

t o
f t

he
 c

om
bi

ne
d 

ef
fe

ct
 o

f n
ew

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
in

 t
he

 s
tr

at
eg

ic
 g

ro
w

th
 a

re
as

 w
ith

in
 

th
e 

A
be

rd
ee

n 
H

ou
si

ng
 M

ar
ke

t A
re

a 
to

 b
e 

fu
nd

ed
 a

nd
 d

el
iv

er
ed

.  
 5.

10
 W

e 
ex

pe
ct

 t
ha

t 
th

e 
in

cr
ea

se
 i

n 
la

nd
 v

al
ue

, 
as

 a
 r

es
ul

t 
of

 
gr

an
tin

g 
pl

an
ni

ng
 p

er
m

is
si

on
, 

w
ill

 f
un

d 
a 

la
rg

e 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 o
f 

th
e 

ne
w

 in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 n

ee
de

d,
 a

lth
ou

gh
 th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 s
ec

to
r 

w
ill

 a
ls

o 
ne

ed
 

to
 m

ak
e 

an
 im

po
rt

an
t 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n.

 W
e 

w
ill

 n
ee

d 
to

 s
ec

ur
e 

a 
hi

gh
er

 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 o
f 

th
e 

in
cr

ea
se

 in
 la

nd
 v

al
ue

s 
th

an
 w

e 
ha

ve
 in

 th
e 

pa
st

, 
to

 b
e 

ab
le

 to
 c

re
at

e 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
m

ix
ed

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

.  

Page 462



27
 

 5.
11

 T
he

 A
be

rd
ee

n 
W

es
te

rn
 P

er
ip

he
ra

l 
R

ou
te

, 
du

al
lin

g 
of

 t
he

 A
90

 
be

tw
ee

n 
B

al
m

ed
ie

 a
nd

 T
ip

pe
rt

y 
an

d 
of

 t
he

 A
90

 b
et

w
ee

n 
In

ve
ru

rie
 

an
d 

th
e 

bo
rd

er
 w

ith
 M

or
ay

 a
re

 a
lre

ad
y 

T
ra

ns
po

rt
 S

co
tla

nd
 p

ro
je

ct
s,

 
al

on
g 

w
ith

 a
 n

ew
 s

ta
tio

n 
at

 K
in

to
re

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 s

er
vi

ce
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 

on
 t

he
 A

be
rd

ee
n-

In
ve

rn
es

s 
ra

il 
lin

e.
 A

ll 
ot

he
r 

w
or

k 
af

fe
ct

in
g 

th
e 

tr
un

k 
ro

ad
, 

or
 

ra
il 

ne
tw

or
k,

 
w

ill
 

ne
ed

 
T

ra
ns

po
rt

 
S

co
tla

nd
’s

 
pe

rm
is

si
on

. 
 P

ro
p

o
sa

ls
 

 5.
12

 A
 r

an
ge

 o
f 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 h
av

e 
be

en
 p

ro
po

se
d 

th
at

 w
ill

 h
el

p 
us

 
ac

hi
ev

e 
ou

r 
vi

si
on

 f
or

 t
he

 N
or

th
-E

as
t. 

W
hi

le
 s

om
e 

ar
e 

w
el

l 
un

de
r 

w
ay

, 
ot

he
rs

 a
re

 a
t 

an
 e

ar
ly

 s
ta

ge
. 

T
he

se
 a

re
 s

et
 o

ut
 a

t 
th

e 
fr

on
t 

of
 

th
e 

pl
an

 in
 th

e 
sp

at
ia

l s
tr

at
eg

y 
as

 w
el

l a
s 

be
in

g 
lis

te
d 

in
 S

ch
ed

ul
e 

2.
 

Y
ou

 c
an

 f
in

d 
m

or
e 

de
ta

il 
on

 e
ac

h 
pr

op
os

al
 in

 t
he

 [
P

ro
po

se
d]

 A
ct

io
n 

P
ro

gr
am

m
e.

 
 M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 r
ev

ie
w

in
g

 t
h

is
 p

la
n

 
 5.

13
 

W
e 

re
co

gn
is

e 
th

at
 

th
in

gs
 

w
ill

 
ch

an
ge

 
ov

er
 

tim
e,

 
bo

th
 

in
 

re
sp

on
se

 t
o 

th
e 

di
re

ct
io

n 
th

is
 p

la
n 

pr
om

ot
es

 a
nd

 e
ve

nt
s 

w
e 

w
er

e 
no

t 
ab

le
 

to
 

pr
ed

ic
t. 

M
on

ito
rin

g 
m

us
t 

ta
ke

 
pl

ac
e 

to
 

as
se

ss
 

ou
r 

pr
og

re
ss

 in
 m

ee
tin

g 
th

e 
pl

an
’s

 o
bj

ec
tiv

es
 a

nd
 u

lti
m

at
el

y,
 th

e 
vi

si
on

. 
 5.

14
 E

ac
h 

ob
je

ct
iv

e 
of

 t
hi

s 
pl

an
 i

de
nt

ifi
es

 w
ay

s 
of

 m
on

ito
rin

g 
an

d 
w

e 
w

ill
 p

ro
du

ce
 a

 m
on

ito
rin

g 
re

po
rt

 t
o 

as
se

ss
 o

ur
 p

ro
gr

es
s 

in
 

m
ee

tin
g 

th
e 

ta
rg

et
s.

 
 5.

15
 S

ig
ni

fic
an

t 
ch

an
ge

s 
in

 s
oc

ie
ty

, 
th

e 
ec

on
om

y,
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

t 
an

d 
po

pu
la

tio
n 

w
ill

 o
nl

y 
be

co
m

e 
cl

ea
r 

ov
er

 th
e 

lo
ng

er
 te

rm
, b

ut
 w

ill
 a

ls
o 

ne
ed

 
to

 
be

 
m

on
ito

re
d 

to
 

m
ak

e 
su

re
 

th
e 

pl
an

’s
 

ob
je

ct
iv

es
 

ar
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
. 

M
on

ito
rin

g 
th

es
e 

w
ill

, 
in

 
pr

ac
tic

e,
 

be
 

a 
co

nt
in

uo
us

 
pr

oc
es

s.
 

H
ow

ev
er

, 
w

e 
w

ill
 

on
ly

 
re

po
rt

 
on

 
th

em
 

as
 

pa
rt

 
of

 
th

e 
m

on
ito

rin
g 

st
at

em
en

t p
re

pa
re

d 
fo

r 
th

e 
ne

xt
 p

la
n.

 
 

5.
16

 W
e 

w
ill

 
re

vi
ew

 
th

is
 

pl
an

 
on

 
th

e 
tim

es
ca

le
 

se
t 

ou
t 

in
 

th
e 

le
gi

sl
at

io
n,

 w
ith

 a
 r

ev
is

ed
 p

la
n 

go
in

g 
to

 S
co

tti
sh

 M
in

is
te

rs
 w

ith
in

 
fo

ur
 y

ea
rs

 o
f t

hi
s 

pl
an

’s
 a

pp
ro

va
l. 

 
 

Page 463



28
 

S
ch

ed
u

le
 1

: 
H

o
u

si
n

g
 a

llo
w

an
ce

s 
  

E
ff

ec
ti

ve
 

L
an

d
 

S
u

p
p

ly
 

20
11

 

C
o

n
st

ra
in

ed
 

L
an

d
 

su
p

p
ly

 2
01

1 

E
xi

st
in

g
 

L
D

P
 

a l
lo

w
an

ce
s 

to
 2

01
6 

20
17

 
to

 
20

26
 

20
27

 
to

 
20

35
 

T
o

ta
l 

A
be

rd
ee

n 
C

ity
 –

 
B

ro
w

nf
ie

ld
* 

1,
18

8 
1,

24
4 

4,
50

0 
3,

00
0 

3,
00

0 
10

,5
00

 

A
be

rd
ee

n 
C

ity
 –

 
G

re
en

fie
ld

* 
1,

20
7 

50
6 

12
,0

00
 

5,
00

0 
4,

00
0 

21
,0

00
 

A
b

er
d

ee
n

 C
it

y 
2,

53
0 

1,
75

0 
16

,5
00

 
8,

00
0 

7,
00

0 
31

,5
00

 
 H

un
tly

 –
 P

itc
ap

le
 

19
1 

20
7 

30
0 

50
0 

20
0 

1,
00

0 
 

In
ve

ru
rie

 –
 

B
la

ck
bu

rn
* 

1,
19

1 
27

9 
1,

00
0 

1,
50

0 
4,

00
0 

6,
50

0 
 

P
or

tle
th

en
 –

 
S

to
ne

ha
ve

n*
 

71
4 

16
 

2,
20

0 
2,

40
0 

1,
00

0 
5,

60
0 

 

S
ou

th
 o

f 
D

ru
m

lit
hi

e 
– 

La
ur

en
ce

ki
rk

 

25
3 

10
 

50
0 

40
0 

10
0 

1,
00

0 
 

P
et

er
he

ad
 –

 
H

at
to

n 
72

4 
31

1 
80

0 
80

0 
60

0 
2,

20
0 

 

E
llo

n 
– 

B
la

ck
do

g*
 

28
0 

54
5 

80
0 

1,
50

0 
1,

50
0 

3,
80

0 
 

Lo
ca

l G
ro

w
th

 
(A

H
M

A
)*

 
1,

28
3 

18
5 

1,
00

0 
1,

35
0 

1,
35

0 
3,

70
0 

 

Lo
ca

l G
ro

w
th

 
(R

H
M

A
) 

1,
58

4 
1,

43
4 

4,
20

0 
4,

00
0 

4,
00

0 
12

,2
00

  

S
m

al
l S

ite
s 

(A
H

M
A

)*
 

45
5 

 
 

 
 

 

S
m

al
l S

ite
s 

(R
H

M
A

) 
74

5 
 

 
 

 
 

A
b

er
d

ee
n

sh
ir

e 
7,

28
5 

2,
98

7 
10

,8
00

 
12

,4
50

 
12

,7
50

 
36

,0
00

 
 A

H
M

A
 (

*)
 

6,
31

8 
2,

77
5 

21
,5

00
 

14
,7

50
 

14
,8

50
 

51
,1

00
 

R
H

M
A

 
3,

49
7 

1,
96

2 
5,

80
0 

5,
70

0 
4,

90
0 

16
,4

00
 

A
b

er
d

ee
n

 C
it

y 
an

d
 S

h
ir

e 
9,

81
5 

4,
73

7 
27

,3
00

 
20

,4
50

 
19

,7
50

 
67

,5
00

 

 *A
be

rd
ee

n 
H

ou
si

ng
 M

ar
ke

t A
re

a 
(A

H
M

A
) 

 
 N

ot
e:

 T
he

 ‘E
ffe

ct
iv

e 
La

nd
 S

up
pl

y 
20

11
’ i

nc
lu

de
s 

th
e 

5-
ye

ar
 e

ffe
ct

iv
e 

ho
us

in
g 

la
nd

 s
up

pl
y 

as
 w

el
l 

as
 t

he
 e

ffe
ct

iv
e 

su
pp

ly
 p

ro
gr

am
m

ed
 b

ey
on

d 
ye

ar
 f

iv
e.

 T
o 

av
oi

d 
do

ub
le

-c
ou

nt
in

g,
 

w
e 

ha
ve

 
no

t 
in

cl
ud

ed
 

an
y 

lo
ca

l 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
pl

an
 

al
lo

ca
tio

ns
 

in
 

th
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
or

 
co

ns
tr

ai
ne

d 
la

nd
 s

up
pl

y.
 

 T
he

 P
la

in
 E

ng
lis

h 
C

am
pa

ig
n’

s 
C

ry
st

al
 M

ar
k 

do
es

 n
ot

 a
pp

ly
 to

 a
ny

 ta
bl

e.
 

S
ch

ed
u

le
 2

: 
P

ro
p

o
sa

l 
 • 

T
he

 A
be

rd
ee

n 
W

es
te

rn
 P

er
ip

he
ra

l R
ou

te
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 a
ss

oc
ia

te
d 

m
ea

su
re

s 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 
be

tte
r 

ac
ce

ss
 a

nd
 c

on
ne

ct
io

ns
 t

o 
ot

he
r 

pl
ac

es
 a

nd
 t

o 
al

lo
w

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

lly
 f

rie
nd

ly
 

m
et

ho
ds

 o
f t

ra
ns

po
rt

 to
 b

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
. 

• 
D

ua
lli

ng
 b

et
w

ee
n 

B
al

m
ed

ie
 a

nd
 T

ip
pe

rt
y 

an
d 

fu
rt

he
r 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 t
o 

th
e 

A
90

 
(n

or
th

) 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 b
et

te
r 

ac
ce

ss
 a

nd
 c

on
ne

ct
io

ns
.  

• 
 R

ep
la

ce
 t

he
 I

nv
er

am
sa

y 
B

rid
ge

 a
nd

 l
on

ge
r-

te
rm

 d
ua

lli
ng

 o
f 

th
e 

A
96

 b
et

w
ee

n 
In

ve
ru

rie
 a

nd
 th

e 
bo

rd
er

 w
ith

 M
or

ay
. 

• 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 t

o 
th

e 
H

au
da

ga
in

 r
ou

nd
ab

ou
t, 

a 
th

ird
 c

ro
ss

in
g 

of
 t

he
 R

iv
er

 D
on

 a
nd

 
ot

he
r 

as
so

ci
at

ed
 m

ea
su

re
s 

to
 d

ea
l 

w
ith

 c
on

ge
st

io
n 

an
d 

al
lo

w
 g

ro
w

th
 i

n 
an

d 
to

 t
he

 
no

rt
h 

of
 th

e 
ci

ty
. 

• 
T

w
o 

ne
w

 p
ar

k-
an

d-
rid

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

ro
un

d 
A

be
rd

ee
n 

to
 i

m
pr

ov
e 

ac
ce

ss
ib

ili
ty

, 
ai

r 
qu

al
ity

 a
nd

 p
ro

vi
de

 w
id

er
 tr

an
sp

or
t b

en
ef

its
. 

• 
R

oa
d 

an
d 

ra
il 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

, 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

a 
ne

w
 s

ta
tio

n 
at

 K
in

to
re

 a
nd

 i
m

pr
ov

ed
 lo

ca
l 

ra
il 

se
rv

ic
es

, 
to

 m
ak

e 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
lly

 f
rie

nd
ly

 m
et

ho
ds

 o
f 

tr
an

sp
or

t 
m

or
e 

at
tr

ac
tiv

e 
– 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
re

du
ci

ng
 jo

ur
ne

y 
tim

es
 to

 In
ve

rn
es

s 
an

d 
E

di
nb

ur
gh

 / 
G

la
sg

ow
 a

nd
 b

ey
on

d.
 

• 
P

ut
tin

g 
th

e 
A

be
rd

ee
n 

ai
rp

or
t m

as
te

rp
la

n 
in

to
 p

ra
ct

ic
e.

 
• 

B
et

te
r 

lin
ks

 
be

tw
ee

n 
A

be
rd

ee
n 

an
d 

th
e 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

 
on

 
th

e 
no

rt
h 

co
as

t 
of

 
A

be
rd

ee
ns

hi
re

. 
• 

In
iti

at
iv

es
 b

y 
th

e 
un

iv
er

si
tie

s,
 c

ol
le

ge
s 

an
d 

re
se

ar
ch

 o
rg

an
is

at
io

ns
 t

o 
st

re
ng

th
en

 o
ur

 
kn

ow
le

dg
e 

ec
on

om
y.

 
• 

T
he

 E
ne

rg
et

ic
a 

in
iti

at
iv

e 
be

in
g 

pr
om

ot
ed

 b
y 

A
be

rd
ee

n 
C

ity
 a

nd
 S

hi
re

 E
co

no
m

ic
 

F
ut

ur
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

A
be

rd
ee

n 
to

 P
et

er
he

ad
 s

tr
at

eg
ic

 g
ro

w
th

 a
re

a.
 

• 
Im

pr
ov

in
g 

th
e 

po
rt

 a
nd

 a
ss

oc
ia

te
d 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
at

 A
be

rd
ee

n 
an

d 
P

et
er

he
ad

 to
 m

ak
e 

th
e 

m
os

t o
f t

he
ir 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

 a
nd

 p
ot

en
tia

l, 
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

ly
 fo

r 
th

e 
en

er
gy

 (
in

cl
ud

in
g 

of
fs

ho
re

 
w

in
d)

 a
nd

 fi
sh

in
g 

se
ct

or
s.

 
• 

P
ro

po
sa

ls
 t

o 
re

ge
ne

ra
te

 A
be

rd
ee

n 
ci

ty
 c

en
tr

e 
an

d 
so

m
e 

of
 t

he
 c

ity
 r

eg
io

n’
s 

m
os

t 
di

sa
dv

an
ta

ge
d 

ar
ea

s.
 

• 
P

ut
 in

 p
la

ce
 t

he
 C

ity
 C

en
tr

e 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

F
ra

m
ew

or
k,

 w
hi

ch
 in

cl
ud

es
 p

ro
po

sa
ls

 t
o 

m
ak

e 
pa

rt
 o

f U
ni

on
 S

tr
ee

t a
n 

ar
ea

 fo
r 

pe
de

st
ria

ns
 o

nl
y.

 
• 

A
 n

ew
 c

om
m

un
ity

 s
ta

di
um

 –
 a

 r
eg

io
na

lly
 im

po
rt

an
t f

ac
ili

ty
 w

hi
ch

 w
ill

 b
rin

g 
ec

on
om

ic
, 

so
ci

al
 a

nd
 c

ul
tu

ra
l b

en
ef

its
 (

tw
o 

po
ss

ib
le

 lo
ca

tio
ns

 a
re

 s
ho

w
n 

on
 m

ap
 x

).
 

• 
U

pg
ra

de
s 

to
 

th
e 

on
sh

or
e 

el
ec

tr
ic

ity
 

gr
id

 
an

d 
th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
of

 
of

fs
ho

re
 

tr
an

sm
is

si
on

 fr
om

 P
et

er
he

ad
. 

• 
U

pg
ra

di
ng

 o
f 

P
et

er
he

ad
 p

ow
er

 s
ta

tio
n 

an
d 

pu
tti

ng
 i

n 
pl

ac
e 

ca
rb

on
 c

ap
tu

re
 a

nd
 

st
or

ag
e 

te
ch

no
lo

gy
 a

nd
 in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

. 
• 

A
 r

an
ge

 o
f t

ra
ns

po
rt

 m
ea

su
re

s 
to

 d
ea

l w
ith

 th
e 

co
m

bi
ne

d 
ef

fe
ct

 o
f n

ew
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

on
 th

e 
tr

an
sp

or
t n

et
w

or
k 

in
 a

 n
um

be
r 

of
 lo

ca
tio

ns
 in

cl
ud

in
g:

 
§ 

ne
w

 b
us

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
an

d 
ac

tio
n 

to
 g

iv
e 

th
em

 p
rio

rit
y 

an
d 

in
cr

ea
se

 th
ei

r 
fr

eq
ue

nc
y;

 
§ 

 ju
nc

tio
n 

an
d 

ca
pa

ci
ty

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 o
n 

th
e 

A
96

, A
94

4,
 A

95
6,

 A
90

, K
in

gs
w

el
ls

 
N

or
th

 a
nd

 P
ar

kh
ill

; 
§ 

 s
af

et
y 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 o
n 

th
e 

ac
ce

ss
 r

oa
d 

to
 th

e 
A

93
;  

§ 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 to

 th
e 

P
ar

kw
ay

 a
nd

 P
er

sl
ey

 B
rid

ge
; a

nd
  

§ 
a 

lin
k 

ov
er

 th
e 

R
iv

er
 D

ee
. 

Page 464



29
 

G
lo

ss
ar

y 
 A

ct
io

n
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
es

 
 D

oc
um

en
ts

 
th

at
 

se
t 

ou
t 

w
ha

t 
ne

ed
s 

to
 

be
 

do
ne

 
to

 
pu

t 
th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
pl

an
 i

nt
o 

pr
ac

tic
e.

 T
he

y 
sh

ow
 i

m
po

rt
an

t 
da

te
s 

an
d 

w
ho

 is
 r

es
po

ns
ib

le
 fo

r 
ea

ch
 a

ct
io

n.
  

 A
d

ap
ta

ti
o

n
 

 A
ct

io
n 

to
 li

m
it 

ho
w

 e
xp

os
ed

 t
he

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
t 

an
d 

pe
op

le
 a

re
 t

o 
th

e 
ef

fe
ct

s 
of

 c
lim

at
e 

ch
an

ge
. 

 A
ff

o
rd

ab
le

 h
o

u
si

n
g

 
 H

ou
si

ng
 w

hi
ch

 is
 m

ad
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
at

 a
 c

os
t 

be
lo

w
 f

ul
l m

ar
ke

t 
va

lu
e 

to
 m

ee
t 

an
 i

de
nt

ifi
ed

 n
ee

d.
 I

t 
in

cl
ud

es
 h

om
es

 r
en

te
d 

fr
om

 t
he

 
co

un
ci

l a
nd

 h
ou

si
ng

 a
ss

oc
ia

tio
ns

 a
nd

, 
in

 s
om

e 
ca

se
s,

 h
om

es
 s

ol
d 

or
 r

en
te

d 
fr

om
 th

e 
pr

iv
at

e 
se

ct
or

. 
 A

llo
ca

ti
o

n
s 

 A
re

as
 

of
 

la
nd

 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

in
 

a 
lo

ca
l 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

pl
an

 
fo

r 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t. 
 B

io
d

iv
er

si
ty

 
 T

he
 v

ar
ie

ty
 o

f 
lif

e 
an

d 
ric

hn
es

s 
of

 a
ll 

liv
in

g 
th

in
gs

 i
n 

th
e 

na
tu

ra
l 

w
or

ld
. 

 B
ro

w
n

fi
el

d
 s

it
es

 
 La

nd
, 

no
rm

al
ly

 i
n 

to
w

ns
 a

nd
 v

ill
ag

es
, 

w
hi

ch
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

bu
ilt

 o
n 

or
 

us
ed

 
in

 
th

e 
pa

st
 

fo
r 

so
m

e 
pu

rp
os

e.
 

B
ro

w
nf

ie
ld

 
la

nd
 

do
es

 
no

t 
in

cl
ud

e 
pr

iv
at

e 
or

 p
ub

lic
 g

ar
de

ns
, 

sp
or

ts
 p

itc
he

s,
 w

oo
dl

an
ds

 o
r 

op
en

 s
pa

ce
s 

us
ed

 fo
r 

le
is

ur
e 

an
d 

re
cr

ea
tio

n 
pu

rp
os

es
. T

he
 g

ro
un

ds
 

of
 in

st
itu

tio
ns

 (
su

ch
 a

s 
sc

ho
ol

s 
or

 h
os

pi
ta

ls
) 

th
at

 a
re

 n
o 

lo
ng

er
 u

se
d 

ar
e 

no
t c

on
si

de
re

d 
as

 b
ro

w
nf

ie
ld

 s
ite

s.
 

C
ar

b
o

n
 n

eu
tr

al
 

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
w

hi
ch

 l
im

its
 t

he
 a

m
ou

nt
 o

f 
en

er
gy

 u
se

d 
an

d 
cr

ea
te

s 
as

 m
uc

h 
re

ne
w

ab
le

 e
ne

rg
y 

as
 i

t 
us

es
 e

ac
h 

ye
ar

 f
or

 h
ea

tin
g 

an
d 

el
ec

tr
ic

al
 a

pp
lia

nc
es

.  
 C

o
m

p
u

ls
o

ry
 p

u
rc

h
as

e 
 T

hi
s 

gi
ve

s 
lo

ca
l 

au
th

or
iti

es
 t

he
 p

ow
er

, 
by

 l
aw

, 
to

 b
uy

 l
an

d 
an

d 
bu

ild
in

gs
 w

hi
ch

 a
re

 n
ee

de
d 

to
 d

el
iv

er
 im

po
rt

an
t p

ro
je

ct
s.

 
 D

iv
er

si
fy

 
 In

cr
ea

se
 t

he
 r

an
ge

 o
f 

se
ct

or
s 

of
 t

he
 e

co
no

m
y 

to
 r

ed
uc

e 
th

e 
ris

k 
of

 
re

ly
in

g 
to

o 
m

uc
h 

on
 a

ny
 o

ne
 s

ec
to

r.
  

 D
w

el
lin

g
s 

p
er

 h
ec

ta
re

  
 T

he
 n

um
be

r 
of

 h
om

es
 th

at
 a

re
 b

ui
lt 

on
 a

 s
in

gl
e 

he
ct

ar
e 

of
 la

nd
. 

 E
ff

ec
ti

ve
 h

o
u

si
n

g
 la

n
d

 s
u

p
p

ly
 

 T
he

 h
ou

si
ng

 la
nd

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
on

 w
hi

ch
 to

 b
ui

ld
 n

ew
 h

om
es

. 
 E

n
er

g
et

ic
a 

 A
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

in
iti

at
iv

e 
be

tw
ee

n 
A

be
rd

ee
n 

an
d 

P
et

er
he

ad
 

to
 

cr
ea

te
 a

 w
or

ld
-c

la
ss

 b
us

in
es

s 
an

d 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l l
oc

at
io

n 
w

ith
in

 a
 h

ig
h-

qu
al

ity
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l s

et
tin

g.
  

  E
n

er
g

y 
fr

o
m

 w
as

te
 

 T
he

 p
ro

ce
ss

 o
f 

cr
ea

tin
g 

en
er

gy
, 

in
 t

he
 f

or
m

 o
f 

el
ec

tr
ic

ity
 o

r 
he

at
 (

or
 

bo
th

),
 fr

om
 w

as
te

. 
 

Page 465



30
 

F
lo

o
d

 p
re

ve
n

ti
o

n
 m

ea
su

re
s 

 E
xa

m
pl

es
 i

nc
lu

de
 w

al
ls

, 
em

ba
nk

m
en

ts
, 

ne
w

 c
ha

nn
el

s 
an

d 
flo

od
 

st
or

ag
e 

ar
ea

s 
to

 tr
y 

an
d 

pr
ev

en
t a

 s
ite

 fr
om

 fl
oo

di
ng

. 
 G

re
en

 b
el

t 
 A

n 
ar

ea
 o

f c
ou

nt
ry

si
de

 w
he

re
 s

tr
ic

t p
la

nn
in

g 
co

nt
ro

ls
 a

re
 in

 p
la

ce
 to

 
pr

ot
ec

t 
th

e 
la

nd
sc

ap
e 

se
tti

ng
 o

f 
th

e 
ci

ty
, 

m
ai

nt
ai

n 
th

e 
id

en
tit

y 
of

 
pl

ac
es

 a
nd

 p
ro

vi
de

 la
nd

 fo
r 

re
cr

ea
tio

n.
  

 G
re

en
fi

el
d

 s
it

es
 

 La
nd

 o
n 

w
hi

ch
 n

o 
bu

ild
in

g 
ha

s 
ta

ke
n 

pl
ac

e.
 

 G
ri

d
 r

ei
n

fo
rc

em
en

t 
U

pg
ra

di
ng

 t
he

 e
le

ct
ric

ity
 s

up
pl

y 
ne

tw
or

k,
 w

hi
ch

 i
nc

lu
de

s 
ov

er
he

ad
 

po
w

er
 li

ne
s 

an
d 

su
bs

ta
tio

ns
. 

 H
ab

it
at

s 
R

eg
u

la
ti

o
n

s 
A

p
p

ra
is

al
 

 A
n 

as
se

ss
m

en
t 

w
e 

m
us

t 
ca

rr
y 

ou
t 

un
de

r 
th

e 
E

ur
op

ea
n 

H
ab

ita
ts

 
D

ire
ct

iv
e 

to
 m

ak
e 

su
re

 t
he

 p
la

n 
w

ill
 h

av
e 

no
 n

eg
at

iv
e 

ef
fe

ct
s 

on
 

in
te

rn
at

io
na

lly
 d

es
ig

na
te

d 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l s

ite
s.

 
 H

ec
ta

re
 

 A
n 

ar
ea

 o
f 

la
nd

 e
qu

al
 t

o 
10

,0
00

 s
qu

ar
e 

m
et

re
s 

(1
00

 x
 1

00
 m

et
re

s)
 

or
 2

.4
71

 a
cr

es
. 

 H
ig

h
-v

al
u

e 
m

ar
ke

ts
 

 T
he

 g
oo

ds
 a

nd
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

ac
ro

ss
 m

an
y 

di
ffe

re
nt

 m
ar

ke
t 

se
ct

or
s 

th
at

 
ar

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 to
 b

e 
of

 h
ig

he
r 

va
lu

e,
 fo

r 
ex

am
pl

e,
 lu

xu
ry

 ic
e 

cr
ea

m
, 

hi
gh

-q
ua

lit
y 

cl
ot

hi
ng

, o
il 

su
pp

or
t o

r 
co

m
pu

tin
g 

te
ch

no
lo

gy
 s

er
vi

ce
s.

 
 

H
o

u
si

n
g

 r
eq

u
ir

em
en

t 
 T

he
 to

ta
l a

m
ou

nt
 o

f n
ew

 h
ou

si
ng

 n
ee

de
d 

ov
er

 th
e 

pl
an

 p
er

io
d.

 
 H

u
b

 
 A

n 
im

po
rt

an
t 

po
in

t 
on

 a
 t

ra
ns

po
rt

 (
or

 o
th

er
) 

ne
tw

or
k 

w
hi

ch
 h

as
 a

 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 c
on

ne
ct

io
ns

. 
 In

fr
as

tr
u

ct
u

re
 

 T
he

 p
ar

ts
 o

f 
ci

tie
s,

 t
ow

ns
 o

r 
vi

lla
ge

s 
th

at
 m

ak
e 

th
em

 w
or

k.
 T

hi
s 

in
cl

ud
es

 w
at

er
, 

dr
ai

na
ge

, 
el

ec
tr

ic
ity

 a
nd

 p
ho

ne
s,

 a
s 

w
el

l 
as

 r
oa

ds
, 

sc
ho

ol
s,

 c
om

m
un

ity
 h

al
ls

, h
ea

lth
ca

re
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s,

 li
br

ar
ie

s,
 o

pe
n 

sp
ac

e 
an

d 
bu

s 
st

op
s.

 
 K

n
o

w
le

d
g

e 
ec

o
n

o
m

y 
 S

ec
tio

ns
 o

f 
th

e 
ec

on
om

y 
th

at
 u

se
 k

no
w

le
dg

e 
ra

th
er

 t
ha

n 
ph

ys
ic

al
 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
to

 c
re

at
e 

w
ea

lth
. 

E
xa

m
pl

es
 in

cl
ud

e 
ed

uc
at

io
n,

 r
es

ea
rc

h,
 

an
d 

pr
od

uc
t d

ev
el

op
m

en
t. 

 L
o

ca
l d

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
p

la
n

 
 T

he
se

 a
re

 p
re

pa
re

d 
by

 e
ve

ry
 lo

ca
l a

ut
ho

rit
y.

 T
he

y 
co

nt
ai

n 
de

ta
ile

d 
po

lic
ie

s 
an

d 
si

te
s 

th
at

 h
av

e 
be

en
 c

ho
se

n 
fo

r 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
in

 l
in

e 
w

ith
 t

he
 a

pp
ro

ve
d 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
pl

an
 a

nd
 a

fte
r 

a 
lo

t 
of

 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n 
w

ith
 l

oc
al

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

. 
T

he
 l

oc
al

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
pl

an
 

w
ill

 b
e 

th
e 

m
ai

n 
w

ay
 fo

r 
pl

an
ni

ng
 a

pp
lic

at
io

ns
 to

 b
e 

as
se

ss
ed

. 
 M

it
ig

at
io

n
 

 A
ct

io
n 

to
 

re
du

ce
 

ca
rb

on
 

di
ox

id
e 

an
d 

ot
he

r 
ha

rm
fu

l 
su

bs
ta

nc
es

 
re

le
as

ed
 i

nt
o 

th
e 

ai
r 

as
 a

 w
ay

 o
f 

re
du

ci
ng

 t
he

 l
ev

el
 o

f 
cl

im
at

e 
ch

an
ge

. 
 

Page 466



31
 

N
at

io
n

al
 d

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
 A

 p
ro

je
ct

 i
n 

th
e 

N
at

io
na

l 
P

la
nn

in
g 

F
ra

m
ew

or
k 

w
hi

ch
 t

he
 S

co
tti

sh
 

G
ov

er
nm

en
t a

gr
ee

s 
is

 n
ee

de
d 

an
d 

w
an

ts
 to

 s
ee

 b
ui

lt.
 

 N
at

io
n

al
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 F

ra
m

ew
o

rk
 

 A
 d

oc
um

en
t 

th
at

 s
et

s 
ou

t 
th

e 
S

co
tti

sh
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t’s
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

pr
io

rit
ie

s 
an

d 
id

en
tif

ie
s 

na
tio

na
l d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

. 
 N

at
u

ra
 2

00
0 

 A
 E

ur
op

ea
n 

ne
tw

or
k 

of
 p

ro
te

ct
ed

 s
ite

s 
w

hi
ch

 r
ep

re
se

nt
 a

re
as

 o
f t

he
 

hi
gh

es
t v

al
ue

 fo
r 

na
tu

ra
l h

ab
ita

ts
 a

nd
 s

pe
ci

es
 o

f p
la

nt
s 

an
d 

an
im

al
s 

w
hi

ch
 

ar
e 

ra
re

, 
en

da
ng

er
ed

 
or

 
vu

ln
er

ab
le

 
in

 
th

e 
E

ur
op

ea
n 

C
om

m
un

ity
. 

T
he

 
ar

ea
s 

ar
e 

kn
ow

n 
as

 
ei

th
er

 
‘S

pe
ci

al
 

A
re

as
 

of
 

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
(S

A
C

)’ 
or

 ‘S
pe

ci
al

 P
ro

te
ct

io
ns

 A
re

as
 (

S
P

A
)’.

 
 N

o
n

-r
en

ew
ab

le
 r

es
o

u
rc

es
 

 R
es

ou
rc

es
 th

at
 w

ill
 r

un
 o

ut
 a

nd
 c

an
no

t b
e 

re
pl

ac
ed

. N
on

-r
en

ew
ab

le
 

en
er

gy
 s

ou
rc

es
 in

cl
ud

e 
co

al
, g

as
 a

nd
 o

il.
 

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 g
ai

n
 

 M
on

ey
 o

r 
in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 (
se

e 
ab

ov
e)

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
by

 d
ev

el
op

er
s 

an
d 

la
nd

ow
ne

rs
 t

o 
al

lo
w

 e
ss

en
tia

l 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 t

o 
be

 b
ui

lt 
th

at
 a

re
 d

ire
ct

ly
 

lin
ke

d 
to

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
pr

op
os

al
s.

 P
la

nn
in

g 
ga

in
 w

ill
 n

or
m

al
ly

 b
e 

pa
rt

 o
f a

 le
ga

l a
gr

ee
m

en
t. 

 R
en

ew
ab

le
 r

es
o

u
rc

es
 

 R
es

ou
rc

es
 t

ha
t 

do
 n

ot
 r

un
 o

ut
. 

R
en

ew
ab

le
 e

ne
rg

y 
so

ur
ce

s 
in

cl
ud

e 
en

er
gy

 fr
om

 th
e 

su
n,

 th
e 

gr
ou

nd
, w

in
d,

 w
av

es
, t

id
es

 a
nd

 w
oo

d.
 

 

R
es

id
u

al
 w

as
te

 
 T

he
 w

as
te

 le
ft 

ov
er

 a
fte

r 
ite

m
s 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
re

m
ov

ed
 to

 b
e 

re
-u

se
d 

or
 

re
cy

cl
ed

. 
 S

co
tt

is
h

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
o

lic
y 

 S
ta

te
m

en
ts

 o
f 

th
e 

S
co

tti
sh

 G
ov

er
nm

en
t’s

 p
ol

ic
ie

s 
on

 n
at

io
na

l 
la

nd
 

us
e 

an
d 

ot
he

r 
pl

an
ni

ng
 m

at
te

rs
, 

su
ch

 a
s 

ho
us

in
g,

 t
ra

ns
po

rt
 a

nd
 

gr
ee

n 
be

lts
. 

 S
eq

u
en

ti
al

 a
p

p
ro

ac
h

 
 A

 p
ro

ce
ss

 f
or

 c
ho

os
in

g 
si

te
s 

fo
r 

re
ta

il 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t. 
T

he
 a

pp
ro

ac
h 

fir
st

 lo
ok

s 
fo

r 
si

te
s 

in
 c

ity
 a

nd
 t

ow
n 

ce
nt

re
s,

 t
he

n 
si

te
s 

on
 t

he
 e

dg
e 

of
 t

he
se

 c
en

tr
es

, 
th

en
 o

th
er

 c
om

m
er

ci
al

 c
en

tr
es

 i
de

nt
ifi

ed
 i

n 
th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
pl

an
, 

an
d 

fin
al

ly
 o

ut
-o

f-
to

w
n 

si
te

s 
w

hi
ch

 c
an

 b
e,

 o
r 

ar
e,

 a
cc

es
se

d 
by

 d
iff

er
en

t f
or

m
s 

of
 tr

an
sp

or
t. 

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 

 Im
po

rt
an

t i
ss

ue
s 

w
hi

ch
 n

ee
d 

bo
th

 c
ou

nc
ils

 to
 w

or
k 

to
ge

th
er

. 
 S

tr
at

eg
ic

 d
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

p
la

n
 

 T
he

se
 h

av
e 

re
pl

ac
ed

 s
tr

uc
tu

re
 p

la
ns

 a
nd

 a
re

 p
re

pa
re

d 
by

 s
tr

at
eg

ic
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t p

la
nn

in
g 

au
th

or
iti

es
. T

he
y 

se
t o

ut
 a

 p
la

n 
fo

r 
th

ei
r 

ar
ea

 
an

d 
m

us
t 

co
nc

en
tr

at
e 

on
 

th
e 

m
ai

n 
la

nd
 

us
e 

an
d 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

m
at

te
rs

 in
 t

ha
t 

ar
ea

. 
T

he
se

, 
al

on
g 

w
ith

 t
he

 lo
ca

l d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
pl

an
 

(s
ee

 a
bo

ve
),

 w
ill

 b
e 

th
e 

m
ai

n 
w

ay
 f

or
 p

la
nn

in
g 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 t
o 

be
 

as
se

ss
ed

. 
 S

tr
at

eg
ic

 in
fr

as
tr

u
ct

u
re

  
 T

hi
s 

is
 m

aj
or

 i
nv

es
tm

en
t 

in
 l

ar
ge

-s
ca

le
 i

nf
ra

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
(s

ee
 a

bo
ve

).
 

T
hi

s 
ca

n 
in

cl
ud

e 
m

ai
n 

ro
ad

s,
 m

aj
or

 j
un

ct
io

ns
, 

w
at

er
 r

es
er

vo
irs

, 
w

as
te

-w
at

er
 t

re
at

m
en

t 
w

or
ks

, 
pu

m
pi

ng
 s

ta
tio

ns
, 

se
co

nd
ar

y 
sc

ho
ol

s 
an

d 
ho

sp
ita

ls
. 

Page 467



32
 

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 r

es
er

ve
 

 A
re

as
 o

f 
la

nd
 i

de
nt

ifi
ed

 i
n 

a 
lo

ca
l 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

pl
an

 f
or

 p
os

si
bl

e 
fu

tu
re

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t. 
 S

u
p

p
le

m
en

ta
ry

 g
u

id
an

ce
 o

r 
su

p
p

le
m

en
ta

ry
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 g

u
id

an
ce

 
 T

he
se

 d
oc

um
en

ts
 s

up
po

rt
 a

 p
la

n 
by

 s
et

tin
g 

ou
t 

de
ta

ils
 o

f 
ho

w
 t

he
 

po
lic

ie
s 

or
 p

ro
po

sa
ls

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 p

ut
 in

to
 p

ra
ct

ic
e.

 T
he

se
 c

an
 in

cl
ud

e 
m

as
te

rp
la

ns
, 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

br
ie

fs
 a

nd
 d

es
ig

n 
br

ie
fs

. 
T

he
y 

m
ay

 a
ls

o 
in

cl
ud

e 
ot

he
r 

po
lic

y 
st

at
em

en
ts

 o
n 

a 
w

id
e 

ra
ng

e 
of

 is
su

es
. 

 S
u

st
ai

n
ab

ili
ty

 la
b

el
lin

g
 

 A
 s

ys
te

m
 w

hi
ch

 r
ec

og
ni

se
s 

th
e 

m
os

t 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
ne

w
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

bu
ild

in
g 

st
an

da
rd

s 
sy

st
em

. 
 S

u
st

ai
n

ab
le

 
 S

om
et

hi
ng

 t
ha

t 
w

ill
 l

as
t 

be
ca

us
e 

it 
ha

s 
ta

ck
le

d 
its

 c
ur

re
nt

 a
nd

 
lo

ng
er

-t
er

m
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l, 

so
ci

al
 a

nd
 e

co
no

m
ic

 e
ffe

ct
s 

an
d 

do
es

 
no

t r
el

y 
on

 n
on

-r
en

ew
ab

le
 r

es
ou

rc
es

. 
 S

u
st

ai
n

ab
le

 d
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

 
 A

 w
id

el
y 

us
ed

 d
ef

in
iti

on
 o

f 
th

is
 i

s 
‘d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

th
at

 m
ee

ts
 t

he
 

ne
ed

s 
of

 t
he

 p
re

se
nt

 w
ith

ou
t 

co
m

pr
om

is
in

g 
th

e 
ab

ili
ty

 o
f 

fu
tu

re
 

ge
ne

ra
tio

ns
 t

o 
m

ee
t 

th
ei

r 
ow

n 
ne

ed
s’

. 
It 

m
ea

ns
 t

ha
t 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

sh
ou

ld
 t

ak
e 

fu
ll 

ac
co

un
t 

of
 i

ts
 i

m
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 o
n 

th
e 

lo
ca

l 
co

m
m

un
ity

 
an

d 
ec

on
om

y 
an

d 
on

 th
e 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t b

ot
h 

lo
ca

lly
 a

nd
 w

or
ld

w
id

e.
 

 T
en

u
re

 
 T

he
 

le
ga

l 
rig

ht
 

un
de

r 
w

hi
ch

 
pr

op
er

ly
 

is
 

he
ld

. 
H

ou
si

ng
 

te
nu

re
s 

in
cl

ud
e 

ow
ne

r-
oc

cu
pi

ed
 

ho
m

es
, 

ho
m

es
 

re
nt

ed
 

fr
om

 
pr

iv
at

e 
la

nd
lo

rd
s,

 a
nd

 h
om

es
 r

en
te

d 
fr

om
 a

 c
ou

nc
il 

or
 h

ou
si

ng
 a

ss
oc

ia
tio

n.
 

S
ha

re
d 

ow
ne

rs
hi

p 
is

 a
 t

en
ur

e 
w

he
re

 a
 p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 a
 p

ro
pe

rt
y 

is
 

ow
ne

d 
an

d 
th

e 
re

st
 is

 r
en

te
d.

 

V
it

al
it

y 
an

d
 v

ia
b

ili
ty

 
 A

 m
ea

su
re

 o
f 

ho
w

 l
iv

el
y 

an
d 

bu
sy

 c
ity

 a
nd

 t
ow

n 
ce

nt
re

s 
ar

e 
an

d 
th

ei
r 

ab
ili

ty
 

to
 

at
tr

ac
t 

on
go

in
g 

in
ve

st
m

en
t 

fo
r 

m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

, 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t a
nd

 to
 m

ee
t c

ha
ng

in
g 

ne
ed

s.
 

 W
as

te
 h

ie
ra

rc
h

y 
 A

 w
ay

 o
f 

th
in

ki
ng

 a
bo

ut
 w

as
te

 w
hi

ch
 f

oc
us

es
 o

n 
re

du
ci

ng
 w

as
te

 in
 

th
e 

fir
st

 p
la

ce
 t

hr
ou

gh
 r

e-
us

in
g,

 r
ec

yc
lin

g,
 a

nd
 r

ec
ov

er
in

g 
en

er
gy

. 
W

as
te

 d
is

po
sa

l i
n 

la
nd

fil
l s

ite
s 

is
 a

t t
he

 b
ot

to
m

 o
f t

he
 h

ie
ra

rc
hy

. 
 W

at
er

 b
o

d
ie

s 
 P

la
ce

s 
w

he
re

 w
at

er
 i

s 
fo

un
d 

su
ch

 a
s 

riv
er

s,
 b

ur
ns

, 
lo

ch
s,

 p
on

ds
, 

bo
gg

y 
w

et
 la

nd
, w

at
er

 h
el

d 
un

de
r 

th
e 

gr
ou

nd
 a

nd
 c

oa
st

al
 w

at
er

s.
 

Page 468



H
un

tl
y

El
lo

n

B
an

ff

In
ve

rb
er

vi
e

St
on

eh
av

en

B
an

ch
or

y

K
in

to
re

In
ve

ru
ri

e

A
lf

or
d La

ur
en

ce
ki

rk

A
bo

yn
eP

or
ts

oy

A
be

rc
hi

rd
er

Tu
rr

iff
M

in
tl

aw

D
yc

e

O
ld

m
el

dr
um

W
es

th
ill

A
be
rd
ee
n

P
et
er
he
ad

Fr
as

er
bu

rg
h

A
be
rd
ee
n

P
et
er
he
ad

Fr
as

er
bu

rg
h

A
be
rd
ee
n

D
un
de
e

St
ir
lin
g

G
la
sg
ow
E
di
nb
ur
gh

K
ey

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l t
ra

de
A

fr
ic

a

A
si

a 
P

ac
ifi

c

A
us

tr
al

as
ia

Eu
ro

pe
an

 U
ni

on

Fo
rm

er
 S

ov
ie

t U
ni

on
 a

nd
 

E
as

te
rn

 E
ur

op
e

La
tin

 A
m

er
ic

a

M
id

dl
e 

E
as

t

N
or

th
 A

m
er

ic
a

W
es

te
rn

 E
ur

op
e 

(e
xc

lu
di

ng
 E

U
)

St
ra

te
gi

c 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t P

la
n 

A
re

as

A
be

rd
ee

n 
C

it
y 

an
d 

Sh
ir

e

D
un

de
e,

 P
er

th
, A

ng
us

 a
nd

 N
or

th
 F

ife

Ed
in

bu
rg

h 
an

d 
So

ut
h 

E
as

t S
co

tl
an

d

G
la

sg
ow

 a
nd

 th
e 

C
ly

de
 V

al
le

y

Sa
te

lli
te

 la
nd

 u
se

 im
ag

e
 O

rd
na

nc
e 

Su
rv

ey
 B

 P
la

n 

M
ov

em
en

t

G
re

en
/G

re
en

be
lt

P
la

ce

W
at

er

01
  C

on
te

xt
 m

ap
 (l

oc
at

io
n)

  |
   

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l, 
na

tio
na

l, 
lo

ca
l a

nd
 B

 P
la

n 
lo

ca
l 

Page 469



K
ey

St
ra

te
gi

c 
co

nc
ep

t

Sp
at

ia
l g

ro
w

th

R
eg

en
er

at
io

n

Lo
ca

l g
ro

w
th

H
ou

si
ng

 a
re

a 
bo

un
da

ry

02
  S

tr
at

eg
ic

 (b
ig

 p
ic

tu
re

)  
|  

X-
ra

y 
an

d 
A

bs
tr

ac
t m

ap

Page 470



K
ey

G
ro

w
th

: S
pa

tia
l

 
Lo

ca
l

R
eg

en
er

at
io

n

03
  S

pa
tia

l m
ap

 (a
re

as
 o

f c
ha

ng
e)

  |
  G

ro
w

th
 a

nd
 R

eg
en

er
at

io
n

Page 471



2

3

1

4

5
6

7
8

16

19

13

14

15

2
0

10
11

12

18

9

17

K
ey

 
E

xi
st

in
g 

P
ro

po
se

d

Sp
at

ia
l g

ro
w

th
 a

re
as

U
rb

an
 a

re
as

M
ov

em
en

t

G
re

en

P
la

ce

IN
FO

 T
O

 C
H

A
N

G
E

05
 B

 P
la

n 
de

ta
il 

m
ap

 (A
re

a 
1)

  |
  A

be
rd

ee
n 

C
ity

Page 472



1

3

2

4

5

6

7

8
9

11

12

13

10

K
ey

 
E

xi
st

in
g 

P
ro

po
se

d

Sp
at

ia
l g

ro
w

th
 a

re
as

U
rb

an
 a

re
as

H
ou

si
ng

 a
re

a 
bo

un
da

ry

M
ov

em
en

t

G
re

en

P
la

ce

In
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re

05
 B

 P
la

n 
de

ta
il 

m
ap

 (A
re

a 
4)

  |
  H

un
tly

IN
FO

 T
O

 C
H

A
N

G
E

Page 473



1

3
2

4 5

6

7

8

9

10
11

K
ey

 
E

xi
st

in
g 

P
ro

po
se

d

Sp
at

ia
l g

ro
w

th
 a

re
as

U
rb

an
 a

re
as

H
ou

si
ng

 a
re

a 
bo

un
da

ry

M
ov

em
en

t

G
re

en

P
la

ce

05
 B

 P
la

n 
de

ta
il 

m
ap

 (A
re

a 
3)

  |
  L

au
re

nc
ek

ir
k

Page 474



5

6 7

8
9

10

11

13

12

14
15

16

17

19 2
1

18

2
0

1

2

3
4

K
ey

 
E

xi
st

in
g 

P
ro

po
se

d

Sp
at

ia
l g

ro
w

th
 a

re
as

U
rb

an
 a

re
as

H
ou

si
ng

 a
re

a 
bo

un
da

ry

M
ov

em
en

t

G
re

en

P
la

ce

In
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re

05
 B

 P
la

n 
de

ta
il 

m
ap

 (A
re

a 
2)

  |
  P

et
er

he
ad

Page 475



K
ey

St
ra

te
gi

c 
co

nc
ep

t

Sp
at

ia
l g

ro
w

th

Lo
ca

l g
ro

w
th

R
eg

en
er

at
io

n

P
ro

je
ct

s

M
ov

em
en

t

G
re

en

P
la

ce

In
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 H

ou
si

ng
 a

re
a 

bo
un

da
ry

07
 F

ut
ur

e 
Fo

ot
pr

in
t (

br
in

gi
ng

 it
 a

ll 
to

ge
th

er
) |

 A
be

rd
ee

n 
 C

ity
 a

nd
 S

hi
re

Page 476



K
ey

Sp
at

ia
l g

ro
w

th

H
ou

si
ng

 a
re

a 
bo

un
da

ry

M
ov

em
en

t

G
re

en

P
la

ce

In
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re

04
  B

 P
la

n 
m

ap
 (P

ro
je

ct
s)

  |
  P

ro
po

se
d 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

 o
n 

th
e 

gr
ou

nd

Page 477



Page 478

This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

Aberdeen City and Shire Strategic Development Plan 
 

Equalities and Human Rights Impact Assessment 
 
Introduction 
 

Section 270B of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997, as amended, 
requires planning authorities to “perform their functions…in a manner which encourages 
equal opportunities”. This complements a range of legislation which applies to public 
and private sector organisations to underpin equal opportunities and human rights. 
 

This Equalities and Human Rights Impact Assessment assesses the Proposed 
Aberdeen City and Shire Strategic Development Plan, with an overall purpose to help 
ensure that the plan does not discriminate and that where possible, opportunities are 
taken to promote equality, as well as all other human rights and good relations between 
groups. 
 
The Aberdeen City and Shire Strategic Development Plan is an evolution of the 
Aberdeen City and Shire Structure Plan (2009). That plan went through an Equalities 
and Human Rights Assessments as well, so this assessment builds on that experience. 
 

All Equalities and Human Rights Assessments involve three stages: 
1. Assessing the impact of proposed or existing policies or functions on different 

equalities groups including collecting and analysing relevant data; 
2. Consulting people who are likely to be affected by the policies; and 
3. Reviewing and revising the policies in the light of the consultation and assessment. 
 
An Equalities and Human Rights Assessment involves thinking through the potential 
consequences of policies and functions on both the identified equality target groups and 
society at large, making sure that as far as possible, any negative impacts are 
minimised or eliminated and that opportunities for promoting equality and respect for all 
other human rights are maximised. The assessment follows the process adopted by 
Aberdeen City Council. 
 
Process 
 
The initial (Stage I) assessment was conducted in September 2011 on basis of the 
changes envisaged to the Structure Plan by the Main Issues Report. The Main Issues 
Report and its Equalities and Human Rights Assessments were published for 
consultation on 7 October 2011.  
 
Stage II (consultation) was undertaken between October and December 2011. No 
responses were received to the Equalities and Human Rights Assessments. 
 
Stage III of the process was carried out in 2012 as the proposed strategic development 
plan was prepared. In late 2012 there will be further opportunity to respond to the 
proposed strategic development plan which will be accompanied by this revised 
Equalities and Human Rights Assessment. 
 
The proposed strategic development plan will be submitted to Scottish Ministers in mid-
2013 who will approve it with or without modifications on the basis of an ‘examination’ 
into unresolved objections. The impact of any modifications to the plan prior to approval 
would be for Scottish Ministers to determine. However, if modifications are proposed, 
the SDPA will request that this assessment is updated prior to approval. 

Page 479



2 
 

STEP 1: Identify essential information 
 
 
1. Name of proposal. 
 
 

2. Officers completing this form. 
 

Name Designation Service 
 
David Jennings 
 
 

 
Strategic Development 
Plan Manager 

 
Aberdeen City and Shire SDPA 

 
3. Date of Impact Assessment. 
 
 

4. When is the proposal next due for review? 
 
 

5. Committee Name. 
 
 
6. Date the Committee is due to meet.  
 
 

7. Identify the Lead Council Service and who else is involved in the delivery of this 
proposal.  (for example other Council services or partner agencies) 

 

 
Aberdeen City and Shire Strategic Development Planning Authority.  Planning and 
Sustainable Development (Aberdeen City Council) as well as Planning and Building 
Standards (Aberdeenshire Council) will have a very important role to play in 
delivery, along with a range of other services of the two councils including housing, 
economic development and transportation. A range of partnerships, agencies and 
the private sector will also have an important role to play. 
 

 
9.  Please summarise this Equality and Human Rights Impact Assessment, (EHRIA).  

This must include any practical actions you intend to take / have taken to reduce, 
justify or remove any adverse negative impacts.   

 

 
The assessment has identified positive impacts on a range of equality target 
groups, along with neutral impacts on the others.  
 

 
10.  Where will you publish the results of the Equality and Human Rights Impact 

Assessment?   
 

ü Full EHRIA will be attached to the committee report as an appendix. 
ü Full EHRIA will be available on the SDPA website, at all public libraries and on 

request from the SDPA. 

2017 

14 September 2012 

Aberdeen City and Shire Strategic Development Plan 
 

Aberdeen City and Shire Strategic Development 
Planning Authority 

21 September 2012 

Page 480



3 
 

STEP 2: Outline the aims of the proposal 
 
11. What are the main aims of the proposal? 
 

 
To guide the future development of Aberdeen and Aberdeenshire over the period to 
2035 in such a way that it becomes more prosperous, sustainable and inclusive. 
 

 
12.  Who will benefit most from the proposal? 
 

 
The strategic development plan is intended to be of benefit to the whole of 
Aberdeen City and Aberdeenshire - residents, businesses and visitors.  
 

 
13. Tell us if and how the proposal will increase equality of opportunity by permitting 

positive action to redress disadvantage? 
 

 
N/A 
 

 
14. What impact will the proposal have on promoting good relations and wider 

community cohesion? 
 

 
Sustainable mixed communities are a key component of the way development is 
envisaged to take place – meeting the needs of all in the community through the 
provision of a wide range of housing options with high quality design and 
community facilities. 
 

 

Page 481



4 
 

STEP 3: Gather and consider evidence 

15. What evidence is there to identify any potential positive or negative impacts in 
terms of consultation, research officer knowledge and experience, equality 
monitoring data, user feedback and other? 

 

 
 

 
The ‘Monitoring Statement’ identifies the scale of change in Aberdeen City and 
Shire over recent years, particularly focusing on the targets in the current structure 
plan. This identifies the scale and nature of population growth across the area. 
 
The ‘Housing Need and Demand Assessment’ seeks to identify the housing needs 
of the various equalities groups (p103 – 143).  The assessment identified for 
example an increasing percentage of the population in older age groups (a 200% 
increase in the over 85 age group for example between 2008 and 2033) and that 
ethnic minorities generally require homes with more bedrooms. At the strategic 
planning level, need is generally generic (with a few exceptions), but it is at the 
delivery phase where services and individual products need to be tailored to the 
needs of individual groups. It will be local housing strategies in particular which 
focus on these individual needs but the role of the strategic development plan is to 
ensure that the framework is in place to be best able to meet these needs in land 
use planning terms. The main exception relates to the housing needs of the 
gypsy/traveller community which are already identified explicitly in the structure 
plan (and there is no proposal to change this). In a few cases, such as within the 
LGB community, it was not possible to identify particular housing needs due to a 
lack of data – but it is thought unlikely that any need would require a distinctive 
response in the strategic development plan. 
 
Customer feedback has expressed concern over a lack of progress with dealing 
with the housing needs of the gypsy/traveller community on the ground. However, 
the structure plan saw local development plans as the main delivery mechanism to 
help meet their housing needs. Both local development plans have responded 
positively to this and have recently been adopted by both councils. As a 
consequence, it is too early to tell whether there is a need to change the 
framework in the strategic development plan. However, early indications are that 
sites are being identified through the masterplans prepared for some of the larger 
housing allocations in line with these policies. 
 
No additional impacts were identified in response to the Equalities and Human 
Rights Impact Assessment published alongside the Main Issues Report in 2011.  
 
Any unresolved objections to the Proposed Strategic Development Plan will be 
considered by an independent Reporter who will prepare a report with 
recommendations for Scottish Ministers outlining if and how the plan should be 
changed. Scottish Ministers are responsible for the final approval of the plan. 

Page 482



5 
 

STEP 4:  Assess likely impacts on equality strands 
 
16. Which, if any, equality target groups and others could be affected positively or 

negatively by this proposal?  Place the symbol in the relevant box. 
 

(Positive +, neutral 0, - negative) 
 

Equality Target Group 
Race* + Disability + Gender** 0 
LGB*** 0 Belief 0 Younger + 
Older + Others e.g. 

poverty 
+/0  

 
*  Race includes Gypsies/Travellers 
** Gender includes women, men, Transgender 
*** LGB: Lesbian, Gay and Bisexual 

 
17. Please detail the potential positive and/or negative impacts on the groups you have 

highlighted above?  Detail the impacts and describe the groups affected. 
 

Positive impacts 
(describe groups affected) 
 
Race – explicit recognition in the 
structure plan of the specific housing 
needs of gypsies / travellers. Improved 
quality of life and life chances in 
regeneration areas. 
 
Disability – increased accessibility to new 
developments by non-car modes of 
transport, including buses. 
 
Young People – economic growth will 
increase employment opportunities. 
Increased affordability and availability of 
housing. Increased accessibility of new 
development by non-car modes of 
transport. Reduced energy demand from 
new homes will reduce costs. 
 
Older People – Increased accessibility of 
new development by non-car modes of 
transport. Reduced energy demand from 
new homes will reduce costs. 
 
Other (poverty) – affordable housing for 
low income groups / young people / 
people with families / single people. 
Economic growth will increase 
employment opportunities. Regeneration 
will increase the quality of life and life 
chances. 

 

Negative Impacts 
(describe groups affected) 
 
 

Page 483



6 
 

STEP 5: Apply the three key assessment tests for compliance assurance 
 
18. Does this policy/procedure have the potential to interfere with an individual’s rights 

as set out in the Human Rights Act 1998?  State which rights might be affected by 
ticking the appropriate box(es) and how.  If you answer “no”, go to question 22. 

 
o Article 3 – Right not to be subjected to torture, inhumane or degrading treatment 
or punishment 
o Article 6 – Right to a fair and public hearing 
o Article 8 – Right to respect for private and family life, home and correspondence 
o Article 10 – freedom of expression 
o Other article not listed above 
 
How? 
 

No 
 

 
Legality 
 
19. Where there is a potential negative impact is there a legal basis in the relevant 

domestic law? 
 

 
N/A 

 
Legitimate aim 
 
20. Is the aim of the policy a legitimate aim being served in terms of the relevant 

equality legislation or the Human Rights Act? 
 

 
N/A 

 
 
Proportionality 
 
21. Is the impact of the policy proportionate to the legitimate aim being pursued?  Is it 

the minimum necessary interference to achieve the legitimate aim? 
 

 
N/A 

 

 

Page 484



7 
 

STEP 6: Monitor and review 
 
22. How will you monitor the implementation of the proposal?  (For example, customer 

satisfaction questionnaires) 
 

 
Monitoring is an essential part of the implementation of the strategic development 
plan. The plan will contain a monitoring framework directly related to the targets in 
the plan (as well as changes to the context) which will include a monitoring 
statement as well as more regular reports to the SDPA on individual subjects. 
 

 
23. How will the results of this impact assessment and any further monitoring be used 

to develop the proposal? 
 

 
This impact assessment has been produced to accompany the proposed strategic 
development plan, building on the assessment of the main issues report and 
previous structure plan. Any response to this assessment will be taken into 
account in the assessment of representations to the proposed plan itself. Any 
modifications to the proposed plan will be assessed by Scottish Ministers before 
approval of the strategic development plan (expected in late 2013 or early 2014). 
Monitoring will inform the review of the plan in 5 years’ time. 
 
Local development plans are a key means of implementing the strategic 
development plan. These are also subject to Equalities and Human Rights 
Assessments so the detailed implementation of the plan will also be subject to 
assessment by both Aberdeen City Council and Aberdeenshire Council. 
 

 

Page 485



8 
 

STEP 7: SIGN OFF 
 
The final stage of the EHRIA is formally to sign off the document as being a complete, 
rigorous and robust assessment. At this stage the assessment is interim in nature and 
subject to consultation. 
 
Person(s) completing the impact assessment. 
 
Name Date Signature 
 
David Jennings 
 

 
14 September 2012 

 

 
 
 

Page 486



 

 

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 
 
COMMITTEE   Enterprise, Planning & Infrastructure        
 
DATE     6th November 2012   
 
DIRECTOR    Gordon McIntosh   
 
TITLE OF REPORT MUSIC (Mitigation in Urban Areas: Solutions for 

Innovative Cities) Project Update  
 
REPORT NUMBER EPI/12/219        
 
 
1 PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
The purpose of this report is to provide Elected Members with a progress 
update on the MUSIC (Mitigation in Urban Areas: Solutions for Innovative 
Cities) Project and to solicit the active support of members in the Project.   
 
2 RECOMMENDATION(S)  

  
It is recommended that the Committee: 
1. Notes the positive progress of the MUSIC project to date; 
2. Approves the attendance of a Councillor to represent the Council at the 

MUSIC Partnership meeting and Midterm Conference in Ghent, 19th – 21st 
November 2012; 

3. Approve the selected Councillor to continue to participate as a 
‘Frontrunner’ for the duration of the project (to April 2014); and 

4. Instruct officers to report back to this Committee with progress on the 
MUSIC Project twice annually, following the reporting schedule set by the 
EU fund.  

 
3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
The MUSIC Project is part funded through the North West Europe Interreg 
IVB programme European Regional Development Fund (ERDF).  The 
project’s ‘Lead Beneficiary’ (Lead Partner) is the City of Rotterdam (NL) and 
ACC is a ‘Beneficiary’ (Partner), alongside the cities of Ludwigsburg 
(Germany), Montreuil (France) and Ghent (Belgium).  In addition, ACC is 
supported within the project by DRIFT (Dutch Research Institute for 
Transitions) and the Henri Tudor Institute, Luxembourg.  
 
Responsibility for co-ordinating ACC’s MUSIC Project finances lies with the 
Partnerships, Projects and Funding Team. ACC’s Corporate Accounting 
Manager is authorised and designated by the European Commission to act as 
ACC’s ‘First Level Controller’ – ACC’s accountability rests with that officer.  
 
MUSIC Project – Budget (Cost Centre: C27124) 

Agenda Item 9.9

Page 487



 

 

 
Aberdeen’s total budget: €645,151 (£516,120 – exchange rate dependent) 
 
The Aberdeen element of the MUSIC Project consists of a 50% contribution 
from ERDF, with a 50% matching contribution from ACC. The ACC match 
funding has been agreed from within existing budgets, the majority of which 
consists of officer time allocated to manage and deliver the project. 
 
Finance update (to date of last ERDF claim – 30th June 2012): 
Project spend to date:  €163,667 (approx. £138,618 - exchange rate variable) 
ERDF claimed to date: €81,834   (approx. £69,309   - exchange rate variable) 
 
50% of the Project’s overall final spend will be reclaimed from the ERDF. 
 
Partner meeting and Mid term Conference costs 
As Beneficiary, ACC is committed to the MUSIC partner meeting and midterm 
conference taking place in Ghent in late November 2012. Costs associated 
with this, including officer and Elected Member attendance, will be covered by 
the existing project budget.  
 
Travel and accommodation arrangements are yet to be put in place for these 
events. They will include return flights and accommodation for 4 persons for 3 
nights, estimated as: £3,500. 
 
4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
ACC will continue to benefit from the MUSIC Project through improved city 
wide engagement on the subject of Sustainability. ACC are being assisted in 
this ‘Transition Management’ process by a member of the DRIFT partnership, 
to trial a methodology which is increasingly recognised as a means of 
developing citywide low carbon strategies.  In Sept 2012, EP&I Committee 
agreed to use the transition management process to develop a Smarter City 
strategy and action plan for Aberdeen. 
 
The Transition Management approach engages key stakeholders 
(Frontrunners) to assist with Aberdeen’s transition towards a low carbon 
economy, thereby helping to meet ACC’s ‘Public Bodies Climate Change 
Duties’ under the Climate Change (Scotland) Act 2009 and reduce the risks to 
Aberdeen associated with future climate change. 
 
Our Geographical Information Systems data is directly benefiting from 
increased investment, as well as working in collaboration with the Henri Tudor 
Institute, a disciplinary expert body based in Luxembourg.  It is the project’s 
aim to make GIS technology and applications more user-friendly and a tool for 
public consultation on city issues, i.e. addressing fuel poverty. 
 
Furthermore, photo voltaic (solar) panels have been installed on Loriston 
Primary School in Cove as a demonstration project to identify the benefits of 
making energy efficiency measures at the heart of a community. Installation of 

Page 488



 

 

these panels also help to reduce our energy use and our reliance on fossil 
fuels – thereby reducing annual energy costs and carbon emissions. 
 
5. BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 

 
5.1 MUSIC Project Background 
The MUSIC Project is a four year European project, running from April 2010 to 
June 2014. 
 
The MUSIC-partnership is composed of five frontrunner-cities; Lead Partner 
Rotterdam, and Ghent, Ludwigsburg, Montreuil and Aberdeen, along with two 
renowned knowledge institutions, DRIFT on governance methodology and 
CRP Henri Tudor on Geographical Information Systems (GIS). 
 
The aim of the MUSIC Project is to stimulate actions to reduce CO2 emissions 
in urban areas by 50% by 2030 and thereby create solutions for innovative 
cities.  
 
New techniques and measures to reach the EU-climate targets of 20% CO2 
reduction in 2020 are increasingly available and implemented. However, to 
mainstream these techniques in urban policy and consider them as “business 
as usual”, techniques is not enough. A transition towards innovative thinking 
about urban planning is needed in which all stakeholders are involved.  
 
Aberdeen’s contribution to the MUSIC Project is co-ordinated by a dedicated 
Project Manager based within the Environmental Policy team. The project is 
split into three distinct work packages, which are supported by officers with 
expertise in the relevant fields. Details of the Work Packages (WP) and 
supporting teams are outlined below:  
 
5.2 WP1 – Transition Management  
5.2.1 WP1 Outline 
The project’s principle objective is to mobilise stakeholders to take action 
towards CO2 reduction through the development of a transnationally 
applicable Transition Management (TM) Strategy. TM is an innovative 
approach to changes in society, based on a multi-stakeholder learning 
process – searching for tangible small scale solutions to big problems. In 
MUSIC, these stakeholders will include local governments, hospitals, school 
boards, businesses, building owners and energy agencies.  
 
Each partner in the MUSIC project is conducting a local consultation process 
using the TM methodology.  This consists of hosting a series of ‘Arena’ 
meetings where the role of the project team is to facilitate discussions and 
observe TM is based on the assumption that transitions can never be 
completely controlled but can be steered - by influencing, adapting and 
monitoring – the frontrunner workshops will lead to a shared vision, action 
agenda and concrete actions on CO2 reduction.   
 
Summary of the TM process 

Page 489



 

 

1. Preparation & Exploration – form the TM team by identifying and 
approaching frontrunners 

2. Problem structuring & Envisioning – the first arena meetings take place 
where the city’s issues are considered and priorities for change identified.  
Develop a set of guiding principles and form a shared vision for the city’s 
sustainable future 

3. Backcasting, Pathways and Agenda Building – Identify the transitions that 
will need to be experienced via specific targeted actions 

4. Experimenting and Implementing 
5. Monitoring & Evaluation 
 
ACC’s MUSIC Project Manager delivers WP1, including Chairing the TM 
Arenas. Their work is actively supported by the Dutch Research Institute for 
Transitions (DRIFT), Rotterdam.  
 
5.2.2 WP1 progress to date 
Five TM Arenas have been successfully completed with our Front Runners, 
including one introductory session, preparation and exploration of city 
sustainability issues and most recently, envisioning what kind of city our 
participants want to live in by their target year of 2030.  The group have 
established a list of ‘Guiding Principles’; themes that identify the main 
challenges that face the city, these are: 
By 2030, we are living in a(n): 
• Opportunity City 
• Attractive City 
• Learning City 
• Energy Efficient & Resilient City 
• Accessible City 
 
5.2.3 WP1 next steps 
The next meetings of the group will consider ‘Backcasting’ – that is identifying 
the various stages of progress that will need to take place between now and 
2030 before the sustainable future can be realised.  This process is 
complimented by the building of ‘Pathways’ that identify who the responsibility 
for these tasks should lie with.  This is then followed by a package of wider 
dissemination of the group’s findings, a broad publicity campaign and 
expansion of the network. 
 
5.3 WP2 – Geospatial Urban Energy and Support System 
5.3.1 WP2 Outline 
Integrating energy issues in urban planning will be progressed through the 
development of a Geospatial Urban Energy Information and Support System. 
This Geographical Information System (GIS) based demonstration platform 
will allow cities to form energy maps and create scenarios that will observe 
opportunities for CO2 reduction in urban planning. The system will facilitate 
transnational comparisons and strengthen joint strategies for the future of this 
technology.  
 

Page 490



 

 

ACC’s MUSIC Project Manager co-ordinates delivery of WP2, with active 
support from our GIS Team and the Henri Tudor Public Research Centre, 
Luxemburg. 
 
5.3.2 WP2 progress to date 
Working with the Henri Tudor Institute in Luxembourg, the GIS team has been 
using a system called iGuess to create energy maps of the project cities.  In 
essence, these maps will show not only where energy projects are taking 
place, such as Combined Heat and Power (CHP) facilities, but it will identify 
the energy potential of the city based on solar exposures, thermal energy and 
wind power.  This can be used as an engagement tool throughout the 
community to inform businesses and householders how to best harness the 
energy potential of their property.   
 
5.3.3 WP2 next steps 
The three WPs of the project will start being combined in the upcoming TM 
Arenas.  This will involve inviting the GIS coordinator to the arenas to 
demonstrate the technology and how it can be used to create visualisations of 
different scenarios and working with the school that has had PVs installed to 
undertake a similar process with their pupils about energy/sustainability 
issues. 
 
In Aberdeen we aim to create a map showing spots of ‘Energy Poverty’ – 
where the housing stock is of insufficient quality and the heating demands 
outweigh the income of the household.   
 
5.4 WP3 – Innovative Pilots 
5.4.1 WP3 Outline 
The MUSIC Project also allows for an innovative pilot test of the tools and 
strategies developed through the work explained above. In Aberdeen’s case, 
this will consist of an energy efficiency measure being made (installation of 
photo-voltaic (PV) panels) at the centre of a local community (Loirston 
Primary) where stakeholder involvement can be witnessed and energy data 
gathered and stored on the GIS systems. 
 
ACC’s MUSIC Project Manager co-ordinates delivery of WP3, with active 
support from our Energy Management Team. 
 
5.4.2 WP3 progress to date 
Loirston Primary School was identified as the community centre where the 
energy efficiency investment would be made. The site was selected on the 
basis of its solar exposure and building fabrication. The contracts for 
installation of the PVs was concluded in March 2012 and work got underway 
the following month. The PVs have now been installed.  
 
5.4.3 WP3 next steps 
There will be an education package associated with the PV installation 
delivered through the school in order to engage with the pupils, their parents 
and the school itself – ACC will work with ‘Our Generation’ to deliver this.  
 

Page 491



 

 

5.5 MUSIC Project management 
5.5.1 Next steps 
Having submitted four progress reports to the North West Europe 
Programme’s secretariat, the project has been commended for the activities 
conducted by the partnership. 
 
The MUSIC Project is currently midterm and while much has been achieved, 
there remains a significant amount to deliver. Details of actions for the 
forthcoming period are outlined below:  
Project meeting and Midterm Conference, Ghent, Belgium (details below); 
Continue to recruit Front Runners to Transition Management process; 
Coordinate publicity & promotion of project activities and findings; 
2013 – Project meeting, Montreuil, France; 
2013 – Monitoring and evaluating of MUSIC Project in Aberdeen 
 
5.5.2 MUSIC Project meeting & Midterm Conference, Ghent, Belgium 
The event will take place over three days and will consist of the following: 
 
Days 1 & 2:  19th & 20th November – Project partners meeting 
Project partners will present on the progress made within their projects and 
the plans they have for the ensuing six months.  There will be focus groups to 
allow the GIS representatives to have technical discussions, whilst the 
remaining project members will consider common issues pertaining to the 
Transition Management process.  There will also be time attributed to 
discussing project management and finance issues. 
 
Day 3: 21st November – Midterm Conference 
A free and open invite Conference where the cities will share their results, 
discuss their findings and consider the process that got them where they are 
today. 
 
The Conference will focus on the following questions: 
• How to create a common understanding of problems and potential for 

change?  
• How to mobilise different types of actors in the city to work towards a 

sustainable future?  
• How to get support from within your organisation for an innovative 

approach to reduce CO2 emissions?  
• How to use “hard” assessment tools to support “soft” participation 

processes? 
 
6. IMPACT 
 
6.1 Corporate Impact:  
The MUSIC Project and associated recommendations in this report aim to 
assist with delivery of the following corporate commitments: 
 
Aberdeen City Council Vision Statement - Aberdeen: A Smarter City… 

Page 492



 

 

• We will define the image of an international 21st century energy city, 
leading a new leaner, cleaner industrial revolution using the intensity of our 
social, business and community connections. 

• At the centre of the vision lies the concept of 21st century sustainable 
living. This will require smarter connections both within Aberdeen and to 
the world beyond. We will take a European lead in adapting new transport 
and communication technologies to make this possible.  

 
High-level priorities: 
SMARTER GOVERNANCE (Participation) 
• We will encourage and support citizens to participate in the development, 

design and decision making of services to promote civic pride, active 
citizenship and resilience.  

 
SMARTER ENVIRONMENT (Natural Resources) 
• We will design and construct all new infrastructure to be energy efficient by 

maximising the use of low carbon technology and materials. We will use 
recycled materials where appropriate.  

• We will increase energy efficiency and introduce carbon reduction 
measures in our processes and our housing and non housing assets to 
reduce our carbon footprint, save money and to bring people out of fuel 
poverty.  

 
SMARTER MOBILITY (Transport and ICT) 
• We will provide and promote a sustainable transport system, including 

cycling, which reduces our carbon emissions. 
 
Community Plan & Single Outcome Agreement (SOA) Local Outcomes: 
• The impact of council activities on the environment is minimised, including 

a target of being carbon neutral overall by 2020 and a commitment that all 
new council developments will be carbon neutral. 

• Minimise the environmental impact of transport on our community and the 
wider world. 

 
6.2 Public Impact: 
The MUSIC Project and the recommendations in this report relate to strategic 
research and discussions work at this stage, as opposed to implementing 
direct change. Therefore, an Equalities and Human Rights Impact 
Assessment (EHRIA) has not been carried out at this stage. Any subsequent 
implementation work may be subject to an EHRIA, where appropriate.  
  
7. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
Website: www.themusicproject.eu/ 
 
8. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS  

 
Sinclair Laing 
Senior Sustainable Development Officer 
silaing@aberdeencity.gov.uk 

Page 493



 

 

01224 522 793 
 

Page 494



ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

COMMITTEE:   Environment, Planning and Infrastructure 
 
DATE:    6th November 2012 
 
DIRECTOR:    Gordon McIntosh 

TITLE OF REPORT: Various small scale traffic management and development 
associated proposals (New Works) 

 
REPORT NUMBER:  EPI/12/230 

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 

This report is to advise Committee of the need for various small scale traffic management 
measures identified by officers, residents, local members, emergency services, etc and 
verified as necessary through surveys by officers. It also brings forward proposals 
associated with new developments as part of the development management process. 
In addition to these measures, this report also includes proposals for individual parking 
spaces for Blue Badge holders which now require to be progressed through the normal 
legal process for the required Traffic Regulation Order.  
 

2. RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 

That the Committee: 
 
1. Approve the proposals in principle. 
 
2. Instruct the appropriate officers to commence the necessary legal procedures of 

preliminary statutory consultation for the traffic regulation orders required as 
described in this report. If no significant objections are received, then progress 
with the public advertisement and report the results to a future meeting of this 
Committee. 

 
3. Instruct the appropriate officers to commence the combined statutory consultation 

for the traffic regulation order for the list of Blue Badge parking spaces and report 
back to a future meeting of this Committee. 

 

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
The current Five Year Business Plan has identified savings from the Road Safety and 
Traffic Management budget. There has also been a comprehensive review of the Capital 
Plan which will result in proposals having to await funding for implementation. 

Agenda Item 10.1

Page 495



Budget Implementation 
costs (£) 

Additional 
maintenance 
costs (£) after 5 
years 

Comments 

(�) Cycling, Walking, 
Safer, Streets (Scot Gov 
grant-funded) 

2650 1875 

If budgets are not currently 
available locations will be 
placed on a priority list for 
when future funding becomes 
available 

(�) Developer financed - 8950 

Maintenance of these works 
generally falls to the council 
maintenance budget when 
they are on-street restrictions 

(�) Disabled Parking 3300 4000 

Some of these spaces will 
require to be relined 
approximately every 10 years 
at a cost of £100 per space and 
some will require removal 
before this time at a cost of 
£108 per space.

4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 

There is a risk that any approved traffic regulation orders may have to re-enter the 
legislative process if they are unable to be implemented within the statutory 
implementation time of 2 years from the start of public consultation if funding is 
insufficient. 

 

5. BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 
 
There are 7 traffic management proposals for locations brought forward during the 
course of routine examination of road safety and traffic flows and 3 proposals resulting 
from requests from developers.  
 

Page 496



Key: 
 
ÿ Funded from the Cycling, Walking, Safer Streets grant funded budget 

 
� Funded by the developer 

 
� Funded from the current Disabled Parking revenue budget 

 
o No funding required 

 

ÿ The following proposals will be funded from Cycling, Walking, 
Safer Streets budget

ÿ Braeside Place � Proposed �One-way� restriction from north to south 

Braeside Primary school has, over an extended period of time, been used to 
house primary schools temporarily whilst new accommodation was being built. 
The one-way was required as pupils were being driven from their old school to 
Braeside primary (busses/private cars) and Braeside Place was considered too 
narrow to accommodate the increased traffic around the school. 
A temporary One-way was arranged and has been in place for some time now. 
However during this period it was indicated to officers that some residents would 
prefer the one-way restriction to become permanent although others were keen to 
see the temporary restriction returned to the original two-way system. 
A questionnaire was delivered to all the residents of Braeside Place asking them 
to indicate their preference. The returns were conclusive with the majority (almost 
2-1) in favour of maintaining the one-way system. 
This proposal is submitted for approval to start the legal process to make the One-
way a permanent restriction. 
 
The proposals are indicated on the plan below. 

 
Implementation cost - £nil  

 Estimated additional maintenance cost � no additional costs 
 

Ward (11) �  Airyhall/Broomhill/Garthdee 
 Elected members � Taylor, Townson, Yuill 
 

ÿ Garvock Wynd � Proposed �At any time� waiting restrictions 

Follow reports from the City Wardens covering that area detailing the parking 
patterns now regularly in place, it is clear that waiting restrictions are now required 
to allow access, both pedestrian and vehicular, along this narrow street. 
Previously vehicles would only park on one side however they are now parking on 
both sides and totally blocking the footway on the north side. 
It is now proposer to put �At any time� waiting restrictions along the full length of 
the north side to maintain pedestrian access to the footway. 

Page 497



The proposals are indicated on the plan below. 
 

Implementation cost - £750 
 Estimated additional maintenance cost � £750 every 5 years 
 

Ward (8) � George Street/Harbour 
Elected members � May, Jean Morrison, Nathan Morrison 

 

ÿ Girdleness Road � Proposed relocation of �School Keep Clear� zig-zags 
 
Currently there are two sets of �School Keep Clear� zig-zags outside Tullos 
Primary school with a small unrestricted length of kerbside between them, and a 
set of zig-zags associated with the Zebra crossing adjacent to the school. 
There is a short section of carriageway where two sets of zig-zags are overlapping 
that requires to be tidied up and the short section of unrestricted kerbside between 
the School Keep Clear zig-zags is being used by parents/carers to park on whilst 
the pupils are being taken into the school. This parking is not welcome at this 
location and it is proposed to relocate one set of �School Keep Clear� zigzags to 
cover this gap and also tidy up the restrictions adjacent to the zebra crossing. 

 
The proposals are indicated on the plan below. 

 
Implementation cost - £600 

 Estimated additional maintenance cost � £500 every 10 years 
 

Ward (12) � Torry/Ferryhill 
Elected members � Allan, Dickson, Donnelly, Kiddie 

 

ÿ Maberly Street / George Street � Proposed loading restrictions; Mon � Fri, 
7:00am to 9:00am and 4:00pm to 6:00pm 

Maberly Street is a relatively narrow street which takes a large volume of traffic at 
peak times, both vehicular and pedestrian, and is a street regularly used by the 
emergency services.  
On the corner of Maberly Street there is a Public House which takes regular 
weekly deliveries of beer/drinks that takes some considerable time to complete. 
The lorry making these deliveries consistently parked adjacent to the stop line 
associated with the traffic signals. They also carried this activity out during the 
peak traffic flow times, generally 7:00 � 7:30am, creating a dangerous situation. 
 
The delivery company was advised by Grampian Police to deliver outwith the peak 
vehicle flow times, which are generally 7:00am to 9:00am and 4:00pm to 6:00pm 
at this location, or to off-load their goods from George Street and trolley them to 
the cellar entrance. 
The company adhered to this advice for some time however, they have recently 
reverted to their previous practice which is not acceptable in any way. 

Page 498



Currently there are �At any time� waiting restrictions on all roads leading from this 
junction, however it is now proposed to implement a loading ban, mainly on 
Maberly Street but also into George Street a short distance, to allow the City 
Wardens to keep these delivery vehicles away from the signaled junction.  

 
The extent of the proposals is indicated on the plan below. 

 
Implementation cost - £800 

 Estimated additional maintenance cost � £300 every 10 years 
 

Ward (8) � George Street/Harbour 
 Elected members � May, Jean Morrison, Nathan Morrison 
 

ÿ Maryville Place � Proposed �At any time� waiting restrictions 

Some time ago drivers of the waste collection vehicles reported that residents� 
vehicles were being parked in the turning head of this small cul-de-sac and 
causing the refuse vehicles to reverse into the cul-d-sac from North Anderson 
Drive and along the length of the road. This is not an ideal situation from a road 
safety point of view. 
Letters were delivered to these properties asking that they cease from this practice 
especially on bin collection days and for a period of time the situation improved. 
However, the parking has now recommenced and we now proposed to put �At any 
time� waiting restrictions around the turning head to resolve this issue. 

 
The proposals are indicated on the plan below. 

 
Implementation cost - £350 

 
Estimated additional maintenance cost � £350 every 10 years 

 
Ward (10) � Hazlehead/Ashley/Queens Cross 
Elected members � Corall, Greig, Stewart, Thomson 

 

ÿ Union Street / Crown Street junction � Proposed alteration to Traffic Regulation 
Order to exempt winter maintenance vehicles from the right turn restriction 
 
It has recently been highlighted that the Traffic Regulation Order, restricting the 
right-turn movements for all vehicles except buses from Union Street into Crown 
Street, does not have within it an exemption for winter maintenance vehicles to 
allow access to clear snow/grit etc. during periods of adverse weather. 
These snow clearing and gritting operations are mainly carried out overnight or in 
the early hours of the day when traffic is very light, especially in these conditions. 
The alternative route for these operations is not reasonably accessible and could, 
in practical terms, result in a reduced frequency of visits over that section of 
carriageway.  

Page 499



It is therefore proposed that winter maintenance vehicles be exempt from the right-
turn restriction (as the buses currently are) in order to carry out these road safety 
operations. 
 
Implementation cost - £nil 

 Estimated additional maintenance cost � £nil  
 

Ward (12) � Torry/Ferryhill 
 Elected members � Allan, Dickson, Donnelly, Kiddie 

 

ÿ Westburn Road � Proposed extension of �At any time� waiting restrictions 

It has been reported, and subsequently confirmed, that the visibility to the right 
when exiting the eastern-most access to Aberdeen Royal Infirmary, could be 
improved. 
It is therefore proposed to remove two Pay and Display parking spaces, approx 
10m) from the north side of Westburn Road and replace them with �At any time� 
waiting restrictions. Visibility should be noticeably improved with this modification. 
 
The proposals are indicated on the plan below. 

 
Implementation cost - £150 

 Estimated additional maintenance cost � £50 every 5 years 
 

Ward (7) � Midstocket/Rosemount 
 Elected members � Cormie, Forsyth, Laing 

 

The following proposals will be funded by the developer

� Earlspark Avenue � Proposed 20mph with speed tables. 
 
As a result of a further residential development proposal to the north of Earlspark  
Avenue, a condition was set within its planning consent that residents were to be 
consulted on a proposal to install traffic calming speed tables on Earlspark 
Avenue. 
This survey was carried out and the result revealed that the overwhelming majority 
of residents who replied were in favour of the traffic calming measures being 
promoted. 
It is therefore proposed that a 20mph speed restriction be promoted with traffic 
calming speed tables incorporated. 
 
The proposals are indicated on the plan below. 

 
Implementation cost - £nil 

 Estimated additional maintenance cost � £150 every 5 years 
 

Ward (9) � Lower Deeside 
Elected members � Boulton, Malik, Malone 

Page 500



� Mugiemoss, Davidson Mills � Proposed �At any time� waiting restrictions, �One-
way� restrictions, �No right turn�, �No left turn� and �No U-turn� restrictions, 
�disabled parking bays� and �Stopping up� orders. 

As a part of the planning application for this industrial/retail/residential 
development, several traffic movement and parking/waiting restrictions are 
required to be promoted for both safety and traffic management reasons. 

 
The proposals are indicated on the plans below. 

 
Plan 1 � Proposed �One-way�, �No right/left turn� and �No U-turn� restrictions 

 Plan 2 � Proposed �Stopping up� (1) 
 Plan 3 � Proposed �At any time� waiting restrictions 
 Plan 4 � Proposed �Disabled parking bays� 
 

Implementation cost - £nil 
 Estimated additional maintenance cost � £5000 every 5 years 
 

Ward (1) � Dyce/Bucksburn/Danestone 
 Elected members � Crockett, Lawrence, MacGregor, Samarai 
 

� Wellington Road, Cove � Proposed �At any time� waiting restriction, �One-way� 
restriction, �No right/left turn� restriction, and �Prohibition of Driving� order 
 
As part of the Planning application for this residential development, traffic 
movements and waiting restrictions are required to be promoted for both road 
safety and traffic management reasons 
 
The proposals are indicated on the plans below. 
 
Plan 1 � Proposed �At any time� waiting restriction, �One �way� restriction and �No 
right/left turn� restriction  
Plan 2 � Proposed �Prohibition of driving� restriction 

 
Implementation cost - £nil 

 Estimated additional maintenance cost � £3800 every 5 years 
 

Ward (13) � Kincorth/Loirston 
 Elected members � Cooney, Finlayson, McCaig 
 

Page 501



The following proposals will be funded from the Disabled Parking 
Revenue budget

� Disabled parking bays to be provided through the Disabled Persons Parking 
Places (Scotland) Act 2009 
There is one application to be considered at this meeting. 
(Plans are not included as, under normal circumstance, are located close to the properties.) 

 
On-street parking � 28 spaces 

 
27 Berrywell Gardens 26 School Drive 
62 Gladstone Place, Harlaw 121 School Drive 
11 Osborne Place 89 Bankhead Avenue 
29 Hilton Terrace 95 Bankhead Avenue 
105 Western Road, Woodside 14 Sunnyside Gardens 
8 Kepplehills Drive 85 Crown Crescent, Culter 
9 Swannay Road 448 North Anderson Drive 
5 Seaton Road 14 Faulds Wynd 
240 Victoria Road 49 Tollohill Gardens 
226 Victoria Road 16 Seaforth Road 
11 Manor Walk 38 Dulnain Road 
175 Hilton Avenue 442 Clifton Road 
14 Bedford Avenue 21 School Terrace 
33 Aboyne Road Duff Street 

Off-street parking � 12 spaces 
 
Mugiemoss, Davidson Mills � 7 spaces 3a Kings Crescent 
1 Overhills Walk 3 Craigielea Avenue 
34 Garnitehill House, Marchburn Drive 13 Findon Ness (o/s No 17) 

6. IMPACT 

This report meets with the local Community Plan objectives to 
continually improve road safety and maximise accessibility for 
pedestrians and all modes of transport. 

 
The proposals are in line with the Councils Transportation Strategy to 
improve safety for all road users by continuing to reduce the number of 
casualties in traffic collisions. 

 
This report is likely to be of interest to the public in the streets affected 
by the proposals. 

 
There is no Equality and Human Rights Impact Assessment required as 
this report only recommends that these proposals progress to the 
Statutory Consultation process therefore there will be no changes 
effected as a result of the recommendations being approved by the 
Committee 

 

Page 502



7. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 N/A 
 

8. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS  
 

Ruth Milne 
Technical Officer,  
rumilne@aberdeencity.gov.uk
(01224) 538052 
 

Page 503



Consultees comments

Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure Committee
Convener: Councillor Barney Crockett � has been consulted  
Vice Convenor: Councillor Ramsay Milne � has been consulted 

 
Councillor George Adam � has been consulted 
Councillor Yvonne Allan � has been consulted  
Councillor Kirsty Blackman � has been consulted 
Councillor Marie Boulton � has been consulted 
Councillor David Cameron � has been consulted 
Councillor Scott Carle � has been consulted 
Councillor Neil Cooney � has been consulted 
Councillor John Corall � has been consulted  
Councillor Bill Cormie � has been consulted 
Councillor Steve Delaney � has been consulted 
Councillor Graham Dickson � has been consulted 
Councillor Alan Donnelly � has been consulted 
Councillor Jackie Dunbar � has been consulted 
Councillor Lesley Dunbar � has been consulted 
Councillor Andrew Findlayson � has been consulted 
Councillor Fraser Forsythe � has been consulted 
Councillor Gordon Graham � has been consulted 
Councillor Ross Grant � has been consulted 
Councillor Martin Greig � has been consulted 
Councillor Len Ironside � has been consulted 
Councillor Muriel Jaffrey � has been consulted 
Councillor James Kiddie � has been consulted 
Councillor Jenny Laing � has been consulted 
Councillor Graeme Lawrence � has been consulted 
Councillor Neil MacGregor � has been consulted 
Councillor M Tauqeer Malik � has been consulted 
Councillor Aileen Malone � has been consulted 
Councillor Andrew May � has been consulted 
Councillor Callum McCaig � has been consulted 
Councillor Jean Morrison � has been consulted and has no comments  
Councillor Nathan Morrison � has been consulted  
Councillor Jim Noble � has been consulted 
Councillor John Reynolds � has been consulted 
Councillor Gill Samarai � has been consulted 
Councillor Jennifer Stewart � has been consulted 
Councillor Sandy Stuart � has been consulted 
Councillor Angela Taylor � has been consulted 
Councillor Ross Thomson � has been consulted 
Councillor Gordon Townson � has been consulted 
Councillor Willie Young � has been consulted 
Councillor Ian Yuill � has been consulted 

Page 504



Council Officers

Barry Jenkins, Head of Finance, Resources � has been consulted and has no 
comments on this report  
Jane MacEachran, City Solicitor, Continuous Improvement - has been 
consulted 
Ciaran Monaghan, Head of Service, Office of Chief Executive - has been 
consulted 
Gordon McIntosh, Director of Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure - has been 
consulted 
Hugh Murdoch, Head of Service, Shelter and Environment � has been 
consulted 
Margaret Bochel, Head of Planning & Infrastructure, Strategic Leadership � has 
been consulted and has no comments on this report 
Mike Cheyne, Roads Manager - has been consulted 
Neil Carnegie, Community Safety Manager - has been consulted 
Dave Young, Account Manager, Service, Design and Development - has been 
consulted 
Laura Watson, Service Co-ordinator 

Page 505



Page 506

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
COMMITTEE   Enterprise, Planning & Infrastructure  
    
DATE     6th November 2012     
 
DIRECTOR    Gordon McIntosh  
 
TITLE OF REPORT  Justice Mill Lane – Traffic Management 

Proposals Initial Statutory Consultation  
 
REPORT NUMBER EPI/12/221 
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 

To advise the Committee of the results of the initial statutory 
consultation on the proposed traffic management scheme on Justice 
Mill Lane and the request to include a cycling provision. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATION(S)  

  
That the committee acknowledges the responses received as a result 
of the statutory consultation and hence instructs the appropriate 
officials to progress to public advertisement and report the results to a 
future Committee. 

 
3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  

 
Developer contributions are available for the implementation of the 
proposed traffic management scheme and subject to the preparation of 
an appropriate detailed design would fund the works. The proposed 
improvements whilst enhancing the environment will potentially reduce 
future road revenue maintenance costs. 
 
A preliminary design and estimation for the traffic management 
proposals on Justice Mill Lane has now been completed, with the 
estimated costs being £210,000. This cost does not include the 
signalised crossing on Holburn Street which is estimated at £35,000. 
Therefore the total cost of the works is £245,000. 
 
 

4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 

None 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 10.2

Page 507



 

 

5. BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 
 
5.1 Report 
 

At its meeting on 13th September 2011 the Enterprise, Planning and 
Infrastructure Committee considered a previous traffic management 
proposal that included a one-way system on Justice Mill Lane and at its 
meeting it was resolved to revise the design to retain two-way traffic.  
 
A preliminary design was further submitted to Committee at its meeting 
on 31st May 2012 at which the Committee resolved to approve the 
preliminary scheme on Justice Mill Lane and to commence the required 
legal process for the necessary Traffic Regulation Order. 
 

 
5.2 Proposals 
 

The proposed scheme for Justice Mill Lane includes a revision of 
parking restrictions, traffic calming measures, realignment of kerb lines, 
a right-turn ban when exiting Justice Mill Lane westbound into Holburn 
Street and the upgrading of the footway to provide a 2m minimum 
width. In order to maintain two-way traffic and a standard 2m wide 
footway it has been necessary to include a give and take priority 
section where there is limited road space for two vehicles to pass and 
this effectively enhances the traffic calming element of the design. A 
controlled pedestrian crossing is also proposed on Holburn Street as 
part of the scheme to the north of justice Mill Lane and would seen to 
improve pedestrian access and safety. A plan of the proposed traffic 
management proposal is attached in Appendix A. 

 
5.3 It is recommended this Committee acknowledges the responses 

received as a result of the Statutory Consultation and thereafter 
instructs officers to progress to the public advertisement stage and 
report the results to a future committee. 
 

5.4 Provision for Cyclists 
 
At its meeting on 31st May 2012 Committee there was a request raised 
by Councillor Yuill to include the provision for the separation of cyclists 
in both directions within the detailed design. A subsequent meeting was 
held with officers and Councillor Yuill explaining that there is insufficient 
road space to accommodate a segregated cycle provision and cyclists 
will require to operate within the controlled traffic management scheme 
with all other road users. Following discussion Councillor Yuill accepted 
that adequate provision had been made for cyclists. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 508



 

 

6. IMPACT 
 

Within the Community Plan, City Centre redevelopment is identified as 
a strategic priority, and within the Single Outcome Agreement, two 
national outcome objectives identified are that “We live in well 
designed, sustainable places” and that “We value our natural and build 
environment and protect it and enhance it for future generations.” 
 

 
7. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
  

Minute of Enterprise Planning and Infrastructure Committee meeting 
13th September 2011 
 
Minute of Enterprise Planning and Infrastructure Committee meeting 
31st May 2012. 

 
8. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS  

 
Michael Cowie 
Traffic Management Team 
micowie@aberdeencity.gov.uk 
(01224) 538050  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 509



 

 

Table 1 
Initial Statutory Consultation 

 
Consultee Response 

Grampian Police No issues from a Police perspective regarding 
this proposal. 

Freight Transport Association Has been consulted 21/09/12 
Scottish Ambulance Service Has been consulted 21/09/12 

Stagecoach Bluebird Has been consulted 21/09/12 
Public Transport Unit Has been consulted 21/09/12 
The Access Panel Has been consulted 21/09/12 

Grampian Fire & Rescue Service “As the fire service is always keen to support 
any scheme to enhance road safety, we 
therefore offer no objection to these proposals.” 

First Aberdeen Ltd Has been consulted 21/09/12 
RAC Foundation To be no longer consulted 

Federation of Small Businesses Has been consulted 21/09/12 
Road Haulage Association Has been consulted 21/09/12 
Aberdeen Cycle Forum “Cycling by Design states that in all cases traffic 

management schemes should permit all cycle 
movements to ensure full permeability and to 
maintain direct access. The default position 
should be cyclist’s exemptions from turning right. 
ACF believes the default position of a cycle 
exemption from the right turn ban should be 
adopted here, with monitoring for the first year to 
assess if any issues arise.”  

NESTRANS Nestrans does not have any formal comments 
on the proposals on Justice Mill Lane as this not 
considered to be part of the strategic road 
network, although the potential road safety 
benefit are welcomed. 

Ferryhill Community Council Has been consulted 21/09/12 
Ashley & Broomhill Community Council Has been consulted 21/09/12 

Queens Cross / Harlaw Community Council Has been consulted 21/09/12 
Councillor Jennifer Stewart Has been consulted 21/09/12 
Councillor Martin Greig Has been consulted 21/09/12 
Councillor John Corall Has been consulted 21/09/12 

Councillor Ross Thomson Has been consulted 21/09/12 
Councillor Yvonne Allan Has been consulted 21/09/12 

Councillor Graham Dickson  Has been consulted 21/09/12 
Councillor Alan Donnelly Has been consulted 21/09/12 
Councillor James Kiddie Has been consulted 21/09/12 

Page 510



 

 

 
Consultees comments 
 
 
Councillor Alan Donnelly – has been consulted 02/10/12 
Councillor Graham Dickson – has been consulted 02/10/12 
Councillor James Kiddie – has been consulted 02/10/12 
Councillor Jennifer Stewart – has been consulted 02/10/12 
Councillor John Corall – has been consulted 02/10/12 
Councillor Martin Greig – has been consulted 02/10/12 
Councillor Ross Thomson – has been consulted 02/10/12 
Councillor Yvonne Allan – has been consulted 02/10/12 
 
Council Officers 
Barry Jenkins, Head of Finance, Corporate Governance – has been consulted and 
has no comments from Finance 
Jane MacEachran, Head of Legal and Democratic Service – has been consulted 
Ciaran Monaghan, Head of Service, Office of Chief Executive – has been 
consulted 
Gordon McIntosh, Director of Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure – has been 
consulted   
Hugh Murdoch, Head of Asset Management and Operations, E,P and I – has 
been consulted 
Margaret Bochel, Head of Planning & Sustainable Development – has been 
consulted and is in agreement with the comments of this report. 
Mike Cheyne, General Manager, Operations – has been consulted  
Neal Carnegie, Community Safety Manager – has been consulted  
Dave Young, Account Manager, Corporate Governance – has been consulted  
Laura Watson, Service Co-ordinator E P & I 
Mark Masson, Committee Services Officer 
 
 

Page 511



Page 512

This page is intentionally left blank



ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 

COMMITTEE Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure 

DATE 6 November 2012 

DIRECTOR Director of Corporate Governance 

TITLE OF REPORT  Traffic Orders at the Final Stage of the 
Statutory Process  

(i) The (A96 / Old Meldrum Road / Mugiemoss Road, Aberdeen) 
(Redetermination of Means of Exercise of Public Right of Passage) 
Order 201() 

(ii) The Aberdeen City Council (North Grampian Circle, South 
Grampian Circle, Aberdeen) (One-Way) Order 201() 

REPORT NUMBER: CG/12/112 

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 

This report deals with two orders at the final statutory stage;  that is to 
say, the main statutory advertisement period is now over in respect of 
each of these orders and this report presents the objections (where 
relevant) in each case.  The public notices are attached, from which 
members will be able to see the exact content of the proposals.   

2. RECOMMENDATION(S) 
It is recommended that the Committee:- 
(a) approve The Aberdeen City Council (A96 / Old Meldrum Road / 

Mugiemoss Road, Aberdeen)(Redetermination of Means of Exercise of 
Public Right of Passage) Order 201(), and agree that this order be 
made as originally envisaged; and 

(b) approve The Aberdeen City Council (North Grampian Circle, South 
Grampian Circle, Aberdeen) (One-Way) Order 201(), and agree that 
this order be made as originally envisaged. 

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  

The proposals contained in the first order will be fully funded by CWSS 
budget, whilst the second order will be fully funded from the Traffic 
Calming and Road Safety budget for 2012 – 2013. 

4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 

There are no other implications worthy of being identified in the 
abstract here, although, again, both Section 5 and the appendix 
rehearse concerns raised by objectors. 

Agenda Item 10.3

Page 513



5. BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 

This section has been sub-divided into sub-sections corresponding to 
the two orders under consideration. 

5.1 (A96 / Old Meldrum Road / Mugiemoss Road, Aberdeen) 
((Redetermination of Means of Exercise of Public Right of 
Passage) Order 201()

5.1.1 Members will recall that at previous meetings it considered proposals 
to redetermine the means of exercise of the public right of passage 
over certain lengths of the A96, Old Meldrum Road and Mugiemoss 
Road so that these lengths of road become cycle track to be used by 
persons on foot and pedal cycle only.  At the time of the first proposal 
was advertised, no objections were received, however on advertising 
the second section one objection was received.  This objection was 
reported to the Committee and on consideration it was agreed that in 
accordance with The Stopping Up of Roads and Private Accesses and 
the Redetermination of Public Rights of Passage (Procedure) 
(Scotland) Regulations 1986, that the matter be referred to the Scottish 
Ministers for determination.   

Subsequent to the latter decision, a technical issue with the initial 
notice was identified and therefore it was deemed necessary for the 
proposal to redetermine all of the lengths of the A96, Old Meldrum 
Road and Mugiemoss Road to be re-advertised thus providing a new 
opportunity for objections to be submitted.  During this period no new 
objections were received.  The previous objector was written to and 
advised of the position, in particular of the new objection period and 
that she required to confirm whether she wished to object in the same 
terms or for her original objection to remain.  The objection period has 
now concluded and the previous objector has not confirmed that she 
wishes her objection to proceed and therefore on that basis no 
objections have been received. 

5.2 The Aberdeen City Council (North Grampian Circle, South 
Grampian Circle, Aberdeen) (One-Way) Order 201()

5.2.1 No statutory objections have been received. 

6. SERVICE AND IMPACT 

Section 5 above – and also the public notices attached – will allow 
members to consider the possible impact on communities compared 
with the intended virtue of the original proposals. 

7. BACKGROUND PAPERS 

Page 514



No background papers were used as a point of departure for writing 
this report. 

The statutory advertisements are published here for information, 
allowing members to see the import of each order as advertised. 

8. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS 

Allison Swanson 
Committee Services Officer 
aswanson@aberdeencity.gov.uk
(01224) 522822 

Page 515



ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 

ROAD SCOTLAND ACT 1984 

THE ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
(A96 / OLD MELDRUM ROAD / MUGIEMOSS ROAD, ABERDEEN)( (REDETERMINATION OF MEANS OF 

EXERCISE OF PUBLIC RIGHT OF PASSAGE) ORDER 201() 

Aberdeen City Council proposes to make the above-named order in terms of its powers under the Road 
Scotland Act 1984. The effect of this order will be to redetermine the means of exercise of the public right of 
passage over certain lengths of the A96, Old Meldrum Road and Mugiemoss Road, detailed in the Schedule 
below so that these lengths of road become cycle track to be used by persons on foot and pedal cycle only. 

Full details of the proposal are to be found in the draft order, which, together with maps showing the intended 
measures and an accompanying statement of the Council's reasons for promoting them, may be examined 
during normal office hours on weekdays between 22 September to 23 October 2012, in the offices of the roads 
officials in the Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure department, at 74-76 Spring Garden, Aberdeen. It is 
recommended that anyone visiting Spring Garden to view any of the documents should make an appointment to 
do so, in order that a member of staff can be present to offer an explanation if necessary.  Anyone unable to visit 
Spring Garden can telephone (01224 538069) to speak to one of the officials. 

Anyone wishing to object to the proposed order should send details of the grounds for objection, including their 
name and address, in writing to the undersigned or to trafficmanagement@aberdeencity.gov.uk during the 
statutory objection period which also runs from 22 September to 23 October 2012, inclusively. 

Any person who submits an objection to a road traffic order should be aware that any objection made will be 
available to members of the Committee, available for inspection by members of the public, distributed to the 
press, and will form part of the agenda pack which is available on the Council’s website. To that extent, however, 
they are redacted, with e-mail addresses, telephone numbers and signatures removed from this 
correspondence. 

20 September 2012 
Jane MacEachran, Head of Legal and Democratic Services, Aberdeen City Council, Town House, Aberdeen 

SCHEDULE
INTERPRETATION - In this Schedule: 

“Plan 01” means the plan numbered ACC/TRO/D5299/03 and “Plan 02” means the plan numbered 
ACC/TRO/D5299/04 both entitled “The Aberdeen City Council (A96 Great Northern Road / Inverurie Road / Old 
Meldrum Road, Aberdeen) (Redetermination of Means of Exercise of Public Right of Passage) Order 2012” 
signed with reference to this order and deposited at the offices of the Aberdeen City Council 74-76 Spring 
Garden, Aberdeen. 

Roads over which means of exercise of public right of passage is to be redetermined - Aberdeen 
That length of footway on the north side of the Inverurie Road from a point 143m east of its junction with 
Kepplehills Road, eastwards for a distance of 8m, as indicated by sawtooth hatching between the points marked 
‘A’ and ‘B’ on Plan 01. 

That length of footway associated with the Inverurie Road Pedestrian Underpass linking Gilbert Road to 
Inverurie Road, as indicated by sawtooth hatching between the points marked ‘C’ and ‘D’ on Plan 01. 

That length of footway on the west side of Gilbert Road from a point 4m north-east of its junction with the A96 
Trunk Road, north-eastwards for a distance of 8m, as indicated by sawtooth hatching between the points 
marked ‘E’ and ‘F’ on Plan 01. 

That length of footway on the east side of Old Meldrum Road between its junction with the A96 Trunk Road and 
its junction with Station Road, Bucksburn, as indicated by sawtooth hatching between the points marked ‘G’ and 
‘H’ on Plan 01. 

That length of footway on the north side of the A96 Great Northern Road, Aberdeen, between its junction with 
the Haudagain Roundabout and a point 38m west of its junction with Bank Street, Woodside, as indicated by 
sawtooth hatching between the points marked ‘I’ and ‘J’ on Plan 02. 

That length of footway on the south side of the A96 Great Northern Road from its junction with Queen Street, 
Woodside, eastwards for a distance of 30m, as indicated by sawtooth hatching between the points marked ‘K’ 
and ‘L’ on Plan 02. 

Page 516



ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 

ROAD TRAFFIC REGULATION ACT 1984 

THE ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL (NORTH GRAMPIAN CIRCLE, SOUTH GRAMPIAN CIRCLE, ABERDEEN) 
(ONE-WAY) ORDER 2012 

Aberdeen City Council proposes to make the above-named order in terms of its powers under the Road Traffic 
Regulation Act 1984. The effect of the order will be to introduce a one-way requirement on North Grampian 
Circle, Aberdeen, and South Grampian Circle, Aberdeen. The permitted direction of travel on North Grampian 
Circle would be eastbound. The permitted direction of travel on the West section of South Grampian Circle 
would be eastbound.  The permitted direction of travel on the East section of South Grampian Circle would be 
westbound. 

Full details of the proposal are to be found in the draft order, which, together with maps showing the intended 
measures and an accompanying statement of the Council's reasons for promoting them, may be examined 
during normal office hours on weekdays between 12 September to 3 October 2012, in the offices of the roads 
officials in the Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure department, at 74-76 Spring Garden, Aberdeen. 

It is recommended that anyone visiting Spring Garden to view any of the documents should make an 
appointment to do so, in order that a member of staff can be present to offer an explanation if necessary.  
Anyone unable to visit Spring Garden can telephone (01224 538069) to speak to one of the officials. 

Anyone wishing to object to the proposed order should send details of the grounds for objection, including their 
name and address, in writing to the undersigned or to trafficmanagement@aberdeencity.gov.uk during the 
statutory objection period which also runs from 12 September to 3 October 2012, inclusively. 

Any person who submits an objection to a road traffic order should be aware that any objection made will be 
available to members of the Committee, available for inspection by members of the public, distributed to the 
press, and will form part of the agenda pack which is available on the Council’s website. To that extent, however, 
they are redacted, with e-mail addresses, telephone numbers and signatures removed from this 
correspondence. 

Jane MacEachran, Head of Legal and Democratic Services, Aberdeen City Council, Town House, Aberdeen 

Page 517



Page 518

This page is intentionally left blank



 

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
COMMITTEE   Enterprise, Planning & Infrastructure   
 
DATE     6th November 2012 
 
DIRECTOR    Gordon McIntosh   
 
TITLE OF REPORT  AWPR – Advance Works & Services 
 
REPORT NUMBER: EPI/12/242 
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 

The purpose of this report is to inform Elected Members of the outcome 
of the appeal process and to seek approval to procure the Works & 
Services required in advance of the Main Works construction of the 
Aberdeen Western Peripheral Route (“AWPR”), including approval of 
the estimated expenditure relating to advance Works & Services . 

 
2. RECOMMENDATION(S)  

  
It is recommended that Committee: -  

 
(a)  Note the disposal of the appeal against the decision of Scottish 

Ministers to approve the AWPR scheme by the United Kingdom 
Supreme Court; 

 
(b) Note the conclusion of the statutory approvals process for 

AWPR by Scottish Ministers in accordance with the Roads 
(Scotland) Act 1984; and, 

 
(c) Per Standing Order 1 (3), Members approve the procurement of 

the advance Works & Services detailed within the exempt 
information Annexe A to this report, deemed necessary to 
expedite the commencement of construction of the AWPR, and 
also approve the estimated expenditure for each contract (with a 
+10% allowance to account for variation in tender estimates). 

 
3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  

 
Funding for the AWPR has been the subject of agreement between 
Aberdeen City Council, Aberdeenshire Council and the Scottish 
Government with a signed Memorandum of Understanding. The Works 
and Services required for the AWPR will be paid for through this 
ongoing joint funding agreement, as detailed within report CG/12/08 by 
the Head of Finance to Full Council on 10th October 2012. 

Agenda Item 10.4

Page 519



 

4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 The delivery of the AWPR will achieve a number of the objectives and 

policies listed in Aberdeen City Council’s “The Smarter City” policy 
statement and also the Single Outcome Agreement.  This includes, for 
example, the provision of a sustainable transport system and promotion 
of Aberdeen as a city to invest, live, work and export from. 

 
4.2 Environmental and sustainability issues associated with the AWPR 

were considered during the Environmental Impact Assessment of the 
proposed scheme as published in the 2007 Environmental Statement, 
and examined during the subsequent Public Local Inquiry (PLI) and 
with appropriate mitigation measures being confirmed within the 
Ministerial Decision Letter of 21st December 2009.   

 
5. MAIN ISSUES 
 
5.1 With the judgment of the UK Supreme Court on 17th October 2012 

(Case Reference: UKSC 2012/0098), the appeal by Mr. William Walton 
against the decision of Scottish Ministers of 21st December 2009 to 
approve the AWPR was unanimously dismissed, and the AWPR 
scheme has now completed its statutory authorisation process. 
 

5.2 Aberdeen City Council, in its capacity as the appointed Agent of 
Scottish Ministers in relation to the AWPR scheme, published a Prior 
Information Notice (“PIN”) on 19th October 2012 in the Official Journal 
of the European Union (“OJEU”) and the Public Contracts Scotland 
web portal relating to the Main Works construction contract of the 
AWPR scheme. 

 
5.3 In order to, variously, de-risk specific elements of the scheme; meet on-

going ecological and environmental commitments; and, to facilitate the 
earliest possible commencement of construction of this long delayed 
scheme, it is proposed that a range of advance Works & Services are 
procured and delivered to ensure that the AWPR is delivered in as 
short as possible timeframe. 

 
5.4 Members should note that, per Standing Order 1(6)(b), Chief Officers of 

the Council approved the expenditure and acceptance of a 
Supplementary Ground Investigation tender, following advertisement in 
OJEU (reference 2012/S 20-032228), notwithstanding the fact that the 
amount of the tender was marginally in excess of the original estimated 
expenditure amount to meet the exigencies of the Service. 

 
5.5 Aberdeen City Council’s Standing Orders in Relation to Contracts and 

Procurement (approved by Full Council on 30th June 2010 – Article 15 
refers) and Financial Regulations shall apply to all Works and Services 
procured.  This includes adherence to the European Treaty principles 
of transparency, equal treatment and non-discrimination, proportionality 

Page 520



 

and mutual recognition which apply to all procurement activity 
regardless of value. 

 
5.6 Where the estimated or aggregated value of contracts is within 10% of 

the relevant European Union (“EU”) threshold, and/or where the 
contract may potentially be of interest to economic operators elsewhere 
in the EU, then such contract opportunities will be advertised in the 
OJEU.  Where the estimated or aggregated value is below this 
threshold, then contracts (and all sub-contracts) will be advertised via 
the Public Contracts Scotland (www.publiccontractsscotland.gov.uk) 
web portal.  

 
5.7 The utilisation of the Public Contracts Scotland portal for the 

advertisement of all sub-OJEU threshold contract opportunities has the 
potential to expose contract opportunities to Scottish and other Small to 
Medium Enterprises (and, of course, secure better value for money for 
Aberdeen City Council as a purchaser).  This is especially important in 
the current difficult economic climate and in addition to ensuring 
consistency with the existing EU procurement law requirement that 
contracts should be the subject of “adequate publicity”. 

 
5.8 The anticipated advance Works & Services to be procured are listed in 

Annexe A elsewhere within Elected Member’s report pack.  It is 
important to note that Annexe A contains exempt information as 
described in paragraph 8 of Part 1 of Schedule 7A of the Local 
Government (Scotland) Act 1973, enacted by the Local Government 
(Access to Information) Act 1985, and is therefore not included within 
the main body of this report as were it to do so, there would be 
disclosure to the public of exempt information as defined in the 
Schedule.   

 
5.9 This is because the report refers to the amount of expenditure 

proposed to be incurred by the Council for a number of contracts for 
the provision of works and services (including, amongst others, 
archeological services, ecological and other advance works) where 
disclosure to the public of the amount herein referred to would be likely 
to give an advantage to a person or organisation entering, or seeking to 
enter, a contract with the Council. 

 
5.10 Approval is sought to go out to tender for each contract specified in 

Annexe A and approval of the estimated expenditure (with a +10% 
allowance to account for variation in tender estimates) in accordance 
with Council Standing Order 1 (3). 

   
5.11 It should be noted that the above Services and Works are entirely 

separate from the Main Works contract which is the subject of a 
separate OJEU procurement process as outlined in report EPI/12/056 
to Members of this Committee dated 31st January 2012 (Article 46 
refers). 
 

Page 521



 

6. IMPACT 
 
6.1 Corporate - The AWPR will provide access to the Park & Choose and 

rail freight transfer sites around the periphery of Aberdeen and improve 
access to national and European transport networks, reducing the 
peripherality of the Aberdeen City and Shire.  It will remove traffic from 
unsuitable rural and urban roads in and around Aberdeen and will 
improve road safety.  By cutting congestion it will reduce journey times 
and improve journey time reliability.   

 
6.2 Public - The AWPR will provide a boost to the north-east economy 

increasing business, employment, leisure and tourism opportunities.     
 
7. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

None. 
 
9. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS  

 
Alun Williams 
Implementation Co-ordinator 
� awilliams@aberdeencity.gov.uk 
� 01224 332323 

 
 

Page 522



 

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
COMMITTEE   Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure   
 
DATE     6 November 2012  
 
DIRECTOR    Gordon McIntosh  
 
TITLE OF REPORT  Strategic and Local Transportation Projects  
    Update Report  
 
REPORT NUMBER: EPI/12/188      
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
The purpose of this report is to advise Members of the progress to date of 
various strategic and local transportation projects within Aberdeen City and 
the wider area. These projects flow from the development of the Regional 
Transport Strategy (RTS) produced by Nestrans, and the Council’s own Local 
Transport Strategy (LTS).  
 
2. RECOMMENDATION(S)  

  
It is recommended that Members: 

 
a) Note the contents of this report;  
b) Endorse development through Nestrans as outlined in section 5 

of the report, including Board decisions and progress on the 
2012/13 programme of works; and 

c) Instruct officers to initiate a refresh of the LTS and to report back 
to this Committee with a suggested programme of activity 
including public and stakeholder engagement. 

 
3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  

 
The projects described in this report are being funded through various 
budgets including Nestrans, the Regional Transport Partnership. Details are 
included in the relevant sections. There are no implications for approved PBB 
options. 
 
4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
None 
 
5. BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 
 
A) Issues Requiring a Committee Decision 
 

Agenda Item 10.5

Page 523



 

Nestrans 
 
1 Nestrans Projects and Programmes 
 
1.1 The Nestrans Board met on the 20th June and 29th August 2012 and
 copies of the minutes of these meetings are available in Appendix A.
 The Board also met on the 9th October 2012 and the minute of this 
 meeting will be included within a future report. 
 
1.2 Nestrans Capital Programme 2012/13 
 
1.2.1 The capital programme expenditure for 2012/13 was approved at the
 Nestrans board meeting on 18th April 2012. Details of the programme 
 within Aberdeen City, totaling approximately £976,000, are listed 
 below, along with an update for those projects still outstanding.  
 
1.2.2 Active Travel 

 
Core Paths  
A series of improvements have now begun on the following Core 
Paths, with completion expected by February 2013: 

• Core Path 8: Auchmill Community Woodland 
• Core Path 61: Hazledene Road – Countesswells Road/Hayfield 
 Road 
• Core Path 63: Den of Cults 
• Core Path 66: Deeside Line 
• Core Path 68: Den of Cults 
• Core Path 69: Duthie Park  
• Core Path 70: River Dee   
• Core Path 78: Coastal Path 

 Physical works will be accompanied by promotion and signage. 
  
Aberdeen to Blackburn Cycle Route 

 The statutory consultation process for the Redetermination Order to 
 allow shared cycle and pedestrian use on the footpaths along the 
 A96 trunk road was completed on 11th September 2012 and no formal 
 objections were received. The signing and lining of the route is now 
 underway following the infrastructure improvements which were carried 
 out last year. The Order will be completed by Transport Scotland within 
 approximately 4 weeks of the installation of the signing and lining, 
 therefore it will be necessary to cover the signs after installation and 
 remove the covers as soon as the order comes into force.  
 

A statutory consultation was carried out during March and April 2012 
on the proposed redetermination to shared pedestrian and cycle use of 
those sections of footway under the control of Aberdeen City Council 
(sections of Great Northern Road, Old Meldrum Road and Muggiemoss 
Road). Although no statutory objections were received it subsequently 
came to light that the word “redetermination” was omitted from the 
consultation documents and therefore it was necessary to re-advertise 

Page 524



 

this order between 22nd September and 22nd October 2012. The 
outcomes of this process will be reported to this Committee within a 
separate report. 
   

 Toucan crossings will be provided at either end of the route, one on the 
 A96 west of the Sclattie Park roundabout and the other on Great 
 Northern Road beside its junction with Queen Street. These will be 
 installed this year in time for the formal route opening. 
 

Cycle Demonstration Project  
 Improvements to two popular paths will be taking place this financial 
 year. One of these, Link 3 in the Greenbrae Cycle Project Action Plan 
 (Greenbrae Drive to Seaview), should be completed by the end of 
 December, while the other, Link 6 (Lochside to Denmore Road), will be 
 completed during January and February 2013. These will deliver 
 improved pedestrian and cycle links to Greenbrae School and to the 
 Denmore Industrial Estate. A series of shared use paths have 
 successfully been through the Traffic Regulation Order (TRO) process 
 and are currently being formalised through signage. These are: 

• Link 2 (Greenbrae Crescent to Greenbrae Drive) 
• Link 5 (Dubford Road) 
• Link 7 (Greenbrae Drive West) 

 
 Working in partnership with members of the local community, a refresh 
 of the Action Plan has commenced to reflect some recent 
 developments within the area. Links 15 (Lochside Road to Scotstown 
 Road) and 16 (Lochside Road to Dubford Road) are to be removed 
 from the Plan following discussions with the landowners. Link 15 
 appears unfeasible from an engineering point of view, while 
 improvements to Link 16 are being taken forward by the landowners to 
 their own specification. Links 13 (Dubford Road to Greenbrae Circle) 
 and 14 (Greenbrae Circle to Greenbrae Drive) are also to be removed 
 from the Action Plan because of the limited benefits they will bring in 
 comparison to the expenditure required and due to the fact that these 
 links are effectively duplicated elsewhere, therefore resources could be 
 better spent elsewhere.  
 
 Due to the high costs and potentially limited benefits associated with 
 Links 10 (Seaview Drive to Dubford Road) and 11 (Dubford Road to 
 Dubford Gardens), alternative cycle routes, using quiet roads and 
 existing pathways, have been identified which will be far more cost-
 effective than constructing brand new paths of considerable length and 
 can be formalised merely by signage and promotion. It is also 
 anticipated that similar paths to those originally outlined in the Action 
 Plan may ultimately be delivered by the private sector as part of the 
 forthcoming Dubford development. Although the revised routes will be 
 predominantly on-road, these roads are lightly-trafficked and benefit 
 from traffic-calming features. These routes will arguably be safer than 
 those originally proposed, especially for child cyclists, as they will 
 benefit from existing street lighting and natural surveillance. It is 

Page 525



 

 anticipated that these routes will also be formalised by the end of the 
 year. 
 
 A public event took place on 6th October to discuss these modifications 
 with members of the community and to update them on the progress of 
 the Action Plan. The event was also intended to further encourage and 
 promote cycling to residents and comprised the Getabout Bike 
 Roadshow and, a ‘bike doctor’ free for the local community. The event 
 was attended by approximately 50-60 local residents and all proposals 
 warmly received. 
 
 Hands Up Survey results for 2012 show that the cycle to school rate 
 has doubled at Greenbrae School in the past year, with 6% of pupils 
 now regularly cycling to school, compared to 3% in 2011. Following the 
 installation of a scooter rack at the school earlier this year, 9% of 
 school pupils are now regularly arriving by scooter, compared to 1% 
 last year.  
 
 The next stage of the project will involve looking at ways of improving 
 cycle access from the study area to the popular trip generators of 
 Oldmachar Academy and the Middleton Park shopping facilities and 
 preparing a cycle map of the local area in partnership with Greenbrae 
 School pupils. 
 
1.2.3 Public Transport 
 
 A96 Park and Choose/Dyce Drive Link Road  
 Work is continuing on the specimen design for inclusion in the 
 Aberdeen Western Peripheral Route (AWPR) contract. 

 
Aberdeen City and Shire Joint Bus Stop Information Initiatives  
The programme of provision/replacement of bus timetable display 
cases at bus stops throughout Aberdeen City and Shire is continuing. 

 
Upgrade Bus Lane Enforcement Cameras on Strategic Bus Corridors 
Tenders have been returned and the tender has been awarded to 
Vysionics ITS Limited. It is expected that the system will be operational 
early 2013. The Councils’ Finance and Resources Committee, at their 
meeting in October, agreed a £60 penalty charge for bus lane 
violations. 
 

 A four week public awareness campaign will be undertaken in advance 
 of the system becoming operational to inform the public of the 
 start date for civil enforcement and to explain the objectives of the 
 scheme. Various advertising media will be utilised to promote the 
 new system including local press, bus panels and websites. 

 
 Warning letters will be issued to motorists captured driving in bus lanes 
 during the first two weeks of the publicity campaign, which is in line with 

Page 526



 

 best practice and Department for Transport guidance, thus allowing 
 drivers to change their habits prior to enforcement commencing. 

  
Airport Bus Turning Circle  
Design is underway and it is intended to lodge a planning application 
for this project in November 2012.  

 
Night Time Transport Zone  
The installation of lit signs at night time bus stops on Union Street 
should be complete by the end of the year. 

 
1.2.4 Strategic Road Safety Improvements 
 

Road Studs and Lining  
A programme of renewing road studs and relining works on Wellington 
Road and the A944 is continuing.  

 
1.3 Nestrans Revenue Programme 2012/13 
 
1.3.1 The revenue programme expenditure for 2012/13 was approved at the 
 same meeting and details of the programme, totaling £324,000, are 
 listed below along with scheme updates. 
 
1.3.2 Bus Action Plan 
  

Bridge of Don Park & Ride Feasibility  
An economic assessment of the retention and improvement of the Park 
and Ride within the Aberdeen Exhibition and Conference Centre 
(AECC) site has been undertaken. The report compares the loss of the 
Park and Ride site with 500 space and 1000 space car parks.  
 
The value of the Park and Ride is considered in terms of user benefits 
including travel time, vehicle operating costs, public finances and local 
network benefits such as noise, local air quality, greenhouse gases, 
journey ambience and accident benefits.  
 
As would be expected, the benefits increase as the volume of traffic 
using the Park and Ride increases and the report clearly shows that the 
financial benefit (net present value) of the Park and Ride site 
substantially outweighs any anticipated expenditure to create the 
infrastructure. The report results are included in Appendix B. 
 
As reported to this Committee in September a tendering process is 
being undertaken to appoint a Development Partner for the AECC. 
There is an initial shortlist of 4 applicants and it is anticipated that the 
final appointment will be made in Summer 2013.  
 
As developers are coming forward with opportunities for development 
of the whole AECC site, these may include alternate options for the 
Park and Ride. Officers will work with the developers throughout the 

Page 527



 

process to ensure that sustainable transport options are considered 
and that realistic Park and Ride options remain available.  
 
Bus Link Improvements to Anderson Drive  

 Modeling of east-west priority along junctions on Anderson Drive 
 and sections of bus priority on the corridor is continuing.  

 
Upgrade of Backroom Office Equipment for Bus Lane Decriminalisation  
See Section 1.2.3. 

 
1.3.3 Rail Action Plan 
 

Contribution to Dyce Shuttle Bus  
Tenders have been returned and awarded to Stagecoach. Patronage 
data continues to be gathered for this service and is showing a sharp 
increase in passenger numbers in recent months. 

 
1.3.4 Project Feasibility and Monitoring 
  

Bridge of Dee - Project Feasibility & Development  
 The pre-appraisal report (Volume 1 of 4), the outcomes of which were 
 agreed by this Committee in May 2012, has been published on the 
 Aberdeen City Council website alongside all other information relating 
 to the study that is already available:  
 
 http://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/transport_streets/roads_pavements/tra
 nsport_projects/roa_access_from_south_home.asp 
 

This gives the public an opportunity to comment and an offer was also 
extended to meet with adjacent Community Councils. A meeting was 
therefore arranged for Monday 22 October 2012 to facilitate this 
discussion to which all the affected community councils were invited. 
Unfortunately no representatives of the community councils were able 
to attend. Further efforts will be made to enable the community councils 
to discuss the pre-appraisal should they wish to and the further stages 
of the STAG process will also have continued opportunities for 
stakeholder and public engagement. 

 
 The formal Scottish Transport Appraisal Guidance (STAG) process is 
 now ongoing and a programme has been developed for the STAG Part 
 1 Appraisal phase of the work including identification of elements of the 
 study that will be progressed during 2012/13. The methodology will be 
 in line with the STAG - Part 1 Appraisal Guidance Note (01/01/2012).  
 
 STAG Part 1 Appraisal Summary Tables (ASTs) will be prepared for 
 each option assessed, detailing the findings in respect of:  
 

• proposal details and background information;  
• performance against the project specific objectives;  
• implementability appraisal; 

Page 528



 

• environmental assessment;  
• safety assessment;  
• economic assessment;  
• integration assessment; and  
• accessibility and social inclusion assessment. 

 
 The following key elements of the work have been identified  for 
 progression during 2012/13.  
 

• Technical Development - The first task required in this phase is 
 to identify the physical implications of these improvements.  
 Completion of this work will enable assessment of engineering 
 feasibility and cost. This work will require the preparation of 
 preliminary designs of structures for each concept.  

 
• Environment - The key environmental attributes and 

 characteristics of the study area will be summarised and 
 environmental baseline data will be gathered from readily 
 available existing information. 

 
• Traffic Modeling – Further traffic modeling work will be carried 

 out for each option being assessed and transport economic 
 efficiency modeling work will also be undertaken. 

 
 The study will continue to involve full engagement with stakeholders 
 throughout the appraisal process. 
 
 Part 1 ASTs and Volume 2 of the STAG report is anticipated to be 
 completed for consideration by the end of March 2014. Members will 
 be kept up to date on progress of this study through future reports or 
 bulletins to this Committee. 
 
1.3.5 It is therefore recommended that Members endorse development 
 through Nestrans as outlined above, including Board decisions and 
 progress on the 2012/13 programme of works. 
 
2 Regional Transport Strategy and Local Transport Strategy   
 
2.1 Reference is made to the September meeting of this Committee where 

Members agreed a response to Nestrans on the draft Regional 
Transport Strategy (RTS) Main Issues Report.  

 
2.2 A formal 6 week consultation period on the refresh of the RTS 
 commenced in early October with the Main Issues Report available on 
 the Nestrans website and circulated to stakeholders. A separate 
 Nestrans Board workshop took place on 9th October 2012 to consider 
 the refresh, while it was also discussed at a meeting of the North 
 East Transport Consultative Forum, a wide-ranging group of local 
 and national stakeholders with an interest in all aspects of transport 
 development in the north east, on 30th October 2012. Following the 

Page 529



 

 consultation period, a revised RTS Action Plan will be considered by 
 the Nestrans Board, with a Strategic Environmental Assessment (SEA) 
 and Equalities and Human Rights Impact Assessment (EHRIA) 
 prepared in parallel. 
 
2.3 Aberdeen City Council's Local Transport Strategy (LTS) sets out a 
 vision for transport in the City for a five year period. The current LTS 
 was written in 2008 and is due to expire shortly.  
 
2.4 The vision, aims, objectives and actions of the 2008 LTS were informed 
 by the current RTS and are very much predicated on the AWPR being 
 in place, with the resultant  freed up network being 'locked in' to public 
 transport, cycling and walking schemes to maximise the benefits of the 
 new road. Since ongoing legal challenges  have delayed the  AWPR it 
 is proposed that a full-scale review is not required at this time given 
 that timescales for building the AWPR remain very much aligned with 
 any future adoption  of a Local Transport Strategy (i.e. 2013-  2018).  
 
2.5 With the RTS in the  process of being refreshed, therefore, what is 
 proposed instead is to commence a similar refresh of the LTS, 
 informed by the RTS refresh, and focusing on revisiting the visions, 
 aims, objectives, actions and targets with text within the main 
 document updated and revised as required. This will also reflect other 
 relevant developments and strategies that have come to the fore since 
 the LTS was originally developed in 2006/7, such as climate change 
 legislation. Officers would also suggest an Action Plan for delivery to 
 accompany the refresh. 
 
2.6  It is anticipated that the refresh of the RTS will be completed by the end 
 of December 2012, allowing the LTS refresh to commence in the New 
 Year. 
 
2.7 It is therefore recommended that  Members instruct officers to initiate a 
 refresh of the LTS and to report back to Committee with a suggested 
 programme of activity including public and stakeholder engagement. 
 
B) Issues for Information  
 
Active Travel and Air Quality 
 
3 Hands Up Survey 2012 
 
3.1 The 2012 Hands Up Scotland school travel survey took place during 
 the week beginning 10th September, with all schools in Aberdeen 
 requested to participate. 90% of primary schools and 75% of 
 secondary schools ultimately took part in the survey, compared to 82% 
 and 75% respectively in 2011. Following efforts from Sustrans 
 Scotland, who co-ordinates the survey nationally, to include as many 
 nurseries, SEN (Special Educational Needs) schools and independent 

Page 530



 

 schools in this year’s survey,  31% of nurseries, 38%  of SEN schools 
 and 63% of independent schools also took part. 
 
3.2 Results from local authority primary and secondary schools are
 almost identical to 2011 results, with 58% of children regularly 
 walking to school, 3% cycling, 11% travelling by bus and 20% being 
 driven to school in both 2011 and 2012. Despite there having been little 
 movement since last year, however, these results are welcome in that 
 they demonstrate, as was suggested by last year’s results, that active 
 travel rates are stabilising following a number of years of decline. 
 
3.3 Nevertheless, there are some noteworthy results. The cycle to school 
 rate amongst primary school children is at its highest since the 
 survey began, with almost 4% of all primary school pupils cycling to 
 school regularly. Two primary schools also have record numbers of 
 pupils  cycling to school - Airyhall has 14% and Fernielea 12%. Torry 
 Academy also reports 90% of pupils travelling to school by active 
 modes of transport, the highest proportion in the City. 
 
3.4 National results will be published during Spring 2013, allowing 
 Aberdeen City to benchmark travel to school figures with other Scottish 
 local authorities, and will be reported to this Committee in a future 
 report. The next survey will take place in September 2013. 
 
4 Sustrans Community Links Fund 2012/13 
 
4.1 In May 2012, a series of bids were made to Sustrans Scotland’s 
 Community Links Fund 2012/13 for the match-funding of upgrades to 
 some walking and cycling paths within the City. The following 
 applications have been successful: 

• Deeside Line - £60,000 awarded 
• Greenbrae - £35,000 awarded for path improvements in the 

 area. 
 
4.2 Officers are awaiting a response from Sustrans regarding which 
 elements of the Greenbrae works they are willing to match-fund. The 
 Deeside Line improvements will be delivered between November 
 2012 and January 2013. Match funded by Nestrans, this will see the 
 tarmacing of the route, including drainage works, continuing to just 
 short of Peterculter, leaving only 1500m of granite dust path left within 
 the ACC boundary.   
 
5 Sustrans School Cycle Parking Fund 2012 
 
5.1 As reported to this Committee in September, £8,750 of match funding 
 was received from Sustrans Scotland to install the following facilities at 
 Aberdeen schools: 

• a cycle shelter at Torry Academy; 
• a shelter to cover the existing cycle stands at Ferryhill School 

 and a new scooter rack for the school grounds; and 

Page 531



 

• a cycle shelter and scooter rack to benefit junior pupils at 
 Fernielea School. 

 The remaining funding was supplied from the Council’s Cycling, 
 Walking and Safer Streets (CWSS) fund and the facilities were 
 successfully installed in September. 
 
6 Cycle Friendly and Sustainable Communities Fund 
 
6.1 Muirfield School has been successful in an application for match 
 funding from Cycling Scotland’s Cycle Friendly and Sustainable 
 Communities Fund. Entitled the ‘Muirfield MAD (Make a Difference) 
 Group’, the school proposes to develop a cycle skills trail in the 
 playground for children, staff and parents to practice on, with the facility 
 also available for the wider community to use during evenings, 
 weekends and school holidays. This will be accompanied by a soft 
 measures campaign, involving cycle training, events, leaflets, maps 
 and other promotional items, to get school pupils and the community as 
 a whole excited about and engaged with cycling. 
 
6.2 The aim of the project is to develop a love of cycling for all, to open up 
 new lifestyle choices for children, to encourage them to take a 
 leadership role and to improve health and fitness levels in the Mastrick 
 community. Further updates on this project will be supplied to this 
 Committee as the project progresses. 
 
7 European Mobility Week 2012 
 
7.1 European Mobility Week (EMW) 2012 took place during September 
 and the Council marked the occasion with a series of events and 
 promotions throughout the week. As well as a sustainable commuter 
 challenge for staff, which received more than 70 entries, the Getabout 
 Bike Roadshow visited Hazlehead School, Bucksburn Academy 
 and the University of Aberdeen during the week to generate 
 enthusiasm for cycling amongst pupils and students. These events all 
 received extremely positive feedback from participants, with the 
 Principal Teacher of Physical Education at Bucksburn Academy writing 
 after the event to say, The kids are really buzzed about cycling, 
 especially any potential events or activities that may be coming off.  It’s 
 almost like the event had kick started our plans again.  We hope the 
 pupils will lead ideas off the back of this event. 
 
7.2 EMW traditionally culminates in ‘In Town Without My Car Day’, when 
 participating local authorities close a road to motor vehicles and 
 reserve the space solely for pedestrians and cyclists. Aberdeen City 
 Council, in partnership with Getabout, celebrated In Town Without My 
 Car Day on Sunday 23rd September by closing a section of the Beach 
 Esplanade to traffic and filling it with sustainable transport-themed 
 events and activities. These included the Getabout Bike Roadshow, a 
 free bike doctor and rickshaw taxis along the Esplanade. ACC and 
 Getabout staff were also there to discuss transport and air quality 

Page 532



 

 issues with members of the public, First and Stagecoach came along 
 to promote their services and some recent innovations in bus travel, 
 while Commonwheels were also present to promote the benefits of the 
 Car Club. Officers estimate that between 500 and 700 members of the 
 public attended the event. 
 
8 Council Staff Travel Survey 
 
8.1 Aberdeen City Council has a Travel Plan in place which demonstrates 
 the Council’s commitment to minimising the impact of staff travel on the 
 environment by reducing the level of unnecessary travel and 
 encouraging those who have to travel do so in a more environmentally-
 friendly and efficient way. The Travel Plan is monitored via a biennial 
 staff travel survey which aims to find out how staff members usually 
 travel to work and while on work and what would encourage them to 
 adopt more sustainable travel habits. 
 
8.2 During April and May 2012, the third biennial staff travel survey was 

undertaken. Results from 2012, as well as from previous surveys, can 
be found on The Zone at: 

 
 http://thezone/OurEnvironment/Transport/tra_counciltravelplansurvey.a
 sp   
 
8.3 One of the key questions asked is how employees usually travel to 
 their main place of work. The results of this question can be seen in the 
 table below. 
 

Q. How do you usually travel to your main 
place of work? 
 2008 2010 2012 
Solo driving 46.2% 43.2% 45.6% 
Car sharing 11.7% 11.9% 13.3% 
Public transport 19.5% 21.7% 22.3% 
Walk 18.8% 17.5% 14% 
Cycle 2.7% 4% 2.7% 
Motorcycle 0.7% 0.8% 0.7% 

 
 Results show that the number of employees travelling to work by car is 
 increasing following a period of decline, whilst walking and cycling rates 
 have fallen since 2010. There has been a slight increase in the 
 number of staff members travelling to work by bus. 
 
8.4 Officers within E, P & I continue to progress initiatives to encourage a 
 reduction in the number of staff travelling to work by car and an 
 increase in the number travelling by active modes of transport including 
 offering free membership of the Car Club, free  membership of a car 
 share scheme, promotion of salary sacrifice schemes for the  purchase 
 of bicycles and annual bus tickets, pool bicycles at Marischal College 

Page 533



 

 and free advice and literature on  travelling by  bike, on foot or by 
 public transport. 
 
8.5 The next staff travel survey will take place in Spring 2014.  
 
9 City Centre Transport Masterplan/Sustainable Urban Mobility Plan 
 
9.1 In the September Report Members were informed of plans to carry out 

pedestrian footfall and on-street surveys to inform the background 
information for the City Centre Transport Masterplan. Two surveys 
were developed with the first taking the form of an online questionnaire 
and the second a series of questions asked face to face on-street over 
a two day period in five locations. In addition, cameras were set up in 
27 city centre locations to observe pedestrian  movements over a 7 
day period. These were completed in conjunction with car park user 
surveys being undertaken to inform the development of a new City 
Centre Traffic Model. A series of “drop in” stakeholder workshops were 
also held at the end of October to gather the opinions of various 
transport issues across the City Centre. The outcomes of this process 
will be reported to the next meeting of the E, P and I Committee, with 
possible actions to be undertaken as a result.  

  
9.2 In addition, it is proposed to reclassify the City Centre Transport 
 Masterplan as a Sustainable Urban Mobility Plan (SUMP). Currently 
 the European Commission provides the following guidelines on                      
 SUMPs:  
 A Sustainable Urban Mobility Plan aims to create a sustainable urban 
 transport system, by addressing at least the following objectives: 

• Ensure the transport system is accessible to all;  
• Improve the safety and security of its users;  
• Reduce air and noise pollution, greenhouse gas emissions and 

energy consumption;  
• Improve the efficiency and cost-effectiveness of the 

transportation of persons and goods;  
• Enhance the attractiveness and quality of the urban 

environment.  
 The policies and measures defined in a Sustainable Urban Mobility 
 Plan should comprehensively address all modes and forms of transport 
 in the entire urban agglomeration: Public and private, passenger and 
 freight, motorised and non-motorised, moving and parking. 
 These aims and objectives fit with the City Centre Transport 
 Masterplan and allow comparison with other Local Authorities across 
 Europe. It also allows Aberdeen City to apply for EC grants and awards 
 towards transport improvements. 
10 Electric Vehicle Procurement Support Scheme 

Page 534



 

 
10.1 On the 10th of October 2012 the Scottish Government via Transport 
 Scotland awarded Aberdeen Community Planning Partnership a 
 grant of £120,000 for the 2012/13 financial year. This grant is for the 
 supply and installation of electric vehicle charging infrastructure with 
 connection to Transport Scotland's back office facility as part of the 
 national "Plugged in Places" project.  
  
10.2 The particular focus of this funding is to allow Aberdeen to become one 
 of a number of country-wide strategic charging hubs, enabling electric 
 vehicles to be driven throughout Scotland. The goal is to have 380 
 charging outlets in publicly accessible locations across Scotland, 
 strategically placed along major routes at a maximum of 50 miles apart. 
 Aberdeen City has been allocated a grant to purchase and install six 
 charging points comprising two rapid charge, capable of recharging a 
 standard electric car in under 30 minutes, two fast charge and two 
 standard charge units within the City area. These will be made 
 available to members of the public using a "Pay as you go"  system.  
  
10.3 Aberdeen City Council Officers have already expressed concern that 

this late funding announcement puts the Council under considerable 
pressure to have infrastructure procured and installed  before the end 
of the current financial year, particularly as the  value of the award will 
require a tender process to be undertaken. However, officers fully 
intend to spend the £120,000 that has been awarded and are currently 
drafting a programme to ensure that the  work is undertaken in line with 
Transport Scotland timescales whilst ensuring compliance with 
procurement rules.  

 
10.4  Officers continue to work with the local Electric Vehicle 
 Association Scotland (EVAS) to establish preferred locations for 
 publicly accessible charging infrastructure and to devise an electric 
 vehicle strategy for Aberdeen which will outline how the network will 
 operate.  
 
11 Car Club 
 
11.1 The Co-wheels Car Club (as it has been rebranded) in Aberdeen is 
 now the fastest growing Car Club in the UK, with 305 members and 9 
 corporate members at the end of September.  
 
11.2 A new car, located within the Donside development at Tillydrone in a 

dedicated parking space, is to be added to the fleet before the end of 
the year. This will be funded by the site developer with free 
membership of the Car Club offered to all residents of the 
development. 

 
Major Projects 
 
12  Strategic Transport Fund 

Page 535



 

 
12.1 A report on the implementation of the Strategic Transport Fund (STF) 

since the adoption of the Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG): 
Delivering Identified Projects through a Strategic Transport Fund’, was 
considered by the Nestrans Board on 9th October 2012. This report can 
be found at Appendix C. 

 
12.2 The report outlined the income to the fund to date - £43,000 in the fund, 

of a total of £1,286,000 secured so far from committed development via 
Section 75 Legal Agreements and voluntary upfront payments. Officers 
in Planning and Sustainable Development continue to ensure this 
policy is consistently applied across the City. 

 
12.3 The transport infrastructure projects outlined within the SPG to be 

delivered with this new fund are in the process of being prioritised for 
design and delivery, with this prioritisation being informed by 
information from the development industry across the region on likely 
build out rates of the housing and employment allocations within the 
respective Aberdeen City and Aberdeenshire Local Development 
Plans. Nestrans plans to hold a stakeholder workshop later this year to 
consult the development industry on a prioritised programme, with a 
view to reporting back to their Board in December 2012. 

 
12.4 Planning and Sustainable Development officers continue to be involved 

in this prioritisation process and it is anticipated that a finalised 
programme will be commended to both Aberdeen City and 
Aberdeenshire Councils, respectively, for their consideration in the New 
Year. 

 
The Supplementary Planning Guidance referred to above can be found 
at the following web link: 

 
http://www.aberdeencityandshire-
sdpa.gov.uk/nmsruntime/saveasdialog.asp?lID=963&sID=38 

 
13 Aberdeen Western Peripheral Route 
 
13.1 In July 2012, the UK Supreme Court heard an appeal against the 
 decision of the Inner House of the Court of Session to refuse a legal 
 challenge against the proposed route of the AWPR. On 17th October 
 2012 it was announced that the appeal had been rejected. 
 
13.2 The defeat in this latest appeal now enables the planned route to go 
 ahead. The Scottish Government has announced that it will be 
 quantifying the total project costs and updating Parliament with revised 
 figures as soon as possible. It is now anticipated that the route will be 
 completed by Spring 2018. 
 
14 Third Don Crossing 
 

Page 536



 

14.1 In May 2012, opponents of the scheme, including local residents 
 served with Compulsory Purchase Orders (CPOs), launched a legal 
 challenge at the Court of Sessions against the decision of Scottish 
 Ministers to proceed with CPOs. The case is due to be heard in 
 December 2012. 
 
15 A90 (S) Park and Ride 
 
15.1 Officers within Aberdeenshire Council are developing a new  Park and 

Ride site by the A90 at Schoolhill, south of Aberdeen as part of the 
public transport objectives of the Regional Transport Strategy. This will 
compliment the existing Park and Rides at Bridge of Don and Ellon, 
and the A96 location that will be constructed within Aberdeen City. 
Preliminary design work is now complete, land negotiations are 
underway and a planning application has been  submitted. 

 
6. IMPACT 
 
The contents of this report link to the Community Plan vision of creating a 
‘sustainable City with an integrated transport system that is accessible to all'.  
 
All of the projects and strategies referred to in this report will contribute to 
delivery of the Smarter Mobility aims of Aberdeen – The Smarter City: “We will 
develop, maintain and promote road, rail, ferry and air links from the city to the 
UK and the rest of the world. We will encourage cycling and walking”, and 
“We will provide and promote a sustainable transport system, including 
cycling, which reduces our carbon emissions.” 
 
The projects identified in this report will also assist in the delivery of actions 
identified in the Single Outcome Agreement (SOA), in particular the delivery of 
both Local and Regional Transport Strategies which will contribute directly 
and indirectly to 14 out of the 15 National Outcomes described in Aberdeen 
City Council’s 2009/10 SOA. 
 
The Local Transport Strategy (LTS) and Regional Transport Strategy (RTS) 
from which the transportation schemes within this report are an integral part 
have been subject to Equalities & Human Rights Impact Assessments. 
 
7. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
All background papers are referenced within the main body of the report. 
 
8. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS  

 
Will Hekelaar 
Planner (Transport Strategy and Programmes)  
Whekelaar@aberdeencity.gov.uk 
Tel. No. (52)3324 

Page 537



 

 
Appendix A 

 
NORTH EAST SCOTLAND TRANSPORT PARTNERSHIP 

 
Minute of Meeting of the North East Scotland Transport Partnership Board 

 
Aberdeen, 20 June, 2012 

 
Present:   Councillors Finlayson, Grant, McCaig and Milne 
   (Aberdeen City Council); Councillors Argyle, Buchan,  
   Clark, and Latham (Aberdeenshire Council); Eddie  
   Anderson, Jennifer Craw, and David Sullivan (External 
   Members); and Stephen Archer (Director of Infrastructure 
   Services, Aberdeenshire Council) and Dr Margaret  
   Bochel (Head of Planning and Sustainable Development, 
   Aberdeen City Council) (Advisers to the Board). 
 
In Attendance:  Derick Murray, Rab Dickson and Kirsty Morrison 
   (Nestrans Office); Tom Buchan and Ewan Wallace  
   (Aberdeenshire Council); Martin Allan (Aberdeen City  
   Council); and Laura Grant (The Big Partnership). 
 
Apologies:   Derek Provan (External Member). 
 
 
The agenda and reports associated with this minute can be located at 
the following link: 
 
http://www.nestrans.org.uk/48/board-meetings.html 
 
 
In the absence of a Chairperson, Eddie Anderson (Depute Chair) opened 
the meeting and welcomed all present to the first meeting of the Board 
following the recent local government elections. 
 
 
APPOINTMENT OF CHAIRPERSON 
 
1.  Councillor Milne, seconded by Councillor Latham, proposed that Councillor 
Argyle be appointed as Chairperson of Nestrans. 
 
The Board resolved: 
to appoint Councillor Argyle as Chairperson. 
 
 
At this juncture, Councillor Argyle took the Chair. 
 
 
APPOINTMENT OF DEPUTY CHAIR 

Page 538



 

2.  The Chairperson, seconded by Councillor Grant, proposed that Councillor 
Milne be appointed as a Deputy Chair of Nestrans. 
 
The Board resolved: 
(i)  to appoint Councillor Milne as a Deputy Chair; and 
(ii) to reaffirm Eddie Anderson as Deputy Chair. 
 
 
APPOINTMENT OF A PROFESSIONAL ADVISER 
 
3.  The clerk to the Board advised that the relevant legislation and guidance 
relating to the membership and operation of Regional Transport Partnership’s 
allows for the appointment of Advisers to the Board, for periods of four years, 
unless otherwise specified at the time of the appointment(s). 
 
The Board resolved: 
that due to the Council term being five years, to appoint Dr Margaret Bochel 
(Head of Planning and Sustainable Development, Aberdeen City Council) and 
Stephen Archer (Director of Infrastructure Services, Aberdeenshire Council) 
as Advisers to the Board for a period of five years. 
 
 
MINUTE OF PREVIOUS MEETING 
 
4.  The Board had before it the minute of its previous meeting of 8 April, 2012. 
 
 
The Board resolved: 
to approve the minute as a correct record. 
 
 
LIAISON BETWEEN REGIONAL TRANSPORT PARTNERSHIPS AND THE 
SCOTTISH GOVERNMENT AND OTHERS 
 
5.  With reference to article 3 of the minute of its previous meeting of 18 April, 
2012, the Board had before it a report by the Director which provided an 
update on liaison with other Regional Transport Partnerships (RTPs), the 
Scottish Government and others. 
 
The meetings included – 
 � Regional Transport Partnership Lead Officers’ meeting in Perth on 16 
 May, 2012 
 � Health and Transport Action Plan Steering Group in Aberdeen on 22 
 May, 2012 and 5 June, 2012 
 � Freight Forum in Aberdeen on 21 May, 2012 
 � Local Authority and Bus Operator Forum Steering Group meeting in 
 Aberdeen on 24 May, 2012 
 � Scottish Transport Awards in Glasgow on 14 June, 2012 
 � Scottish Government Health Directorate in Edinburgh on 15 June, 
 2012 

Page 539



 

 � Nestrans member induction in Aberdeen on 18 June, 2012 
 
The Director advised that the information hubs for health transport were to be 
linked into appointments for patients; however, there was currently no 
Government funding available for this. The Scottish Ambulance Service was 
keen to progress this and had suggested that two members of its staff look at 
developing this system for six months. It was further suggested that Nestrans, 
Aberdeen City Council, Aberdeenshire Council, NHS Grampian contribute 
£6,000 each to fund these two posts for a further six months. This was 
contained within the Health and Transport Action Plan budget and would 
require its approval. 
 
The Board resolved: 
(i)  to agree to the proposal to fund posts to develop information hubs at a 
 cost of £6000 (to be met from the Health and Transport Action Plan 
 budget); 
(ii) to note progress on liaison arrangements with other RTPs, the Scottish 
 Government, and others; and 
(iii)  to note the arrangements for future meetings as detailed within the 
 report. 
 
 
STRATHCLYDE PARTNERSHIP FOR TRANSPORT – BUS REGULATION 
 
6.  With reference to article 3 of the minute of its previous meeting, the Board 
had before it a report by the Director which set out the north east response to 
the proposals by the Strathclyde Partnership for Transport (SPT) on the 
regulation of buses. 
 
The Board resolved: 
(i)  to note the joint north east response to the Strathclyde Partnership for 
 Transport (SPT) proposals; 
(ii)  to instruct officers to send a copy of this response to East 
 Dunbartonshire Council in response to their letter requesting political 
 support for these proposals; and 
(iii)  to note that some of the issues detailed in the letter from East 
 Dunbartonshire Council do not affect Nestrans but will require to be 
 considered by the two local authorities. 
 
 
ABERDEEN – INVERNESS RAIL ENHANCEMENTS 
 
7.  The Board had before it a report by the Director which updated members 
on the proposal to enhance journey times and frequencies on the Aberdeen – 
Inverness railway line. 
 
The Board resolved: 
(i)  to note the report and instruct officers to continue dialogue with 
 Transport Scotland and Network Rail, and report back on the Aberdeen 
 – Inverness enhancement project when the report is published; and 

Page 540



 

(ii)  to request that officers investigate the possibility of a case being made 
 for an additional railway station at either Newtonhill or Persley. 
 
 
PROGRESS REPORT 
 
8.  With reference to article 10 of the minute of its previous meeting of 18 
April, 2012, the Board had before it a progress chart summarising the work in 
the three sub strategies of the Regional Transport Strategy as at 12 June, 
2012. 
 
The Sub Committee resolved: 
to note the content of the progress chart. 
 
 
PUBLICATIONS AND CONSULTATIONS 
 
9.  With reference to article 9 of the minute of its meeting of 15 February, 
2012, the Board had before it a report by the Director which summarised and 
advised on a number of different publications and consultations as follows and 
sought approval of draft responses as appropriate – 
 � the airport masterplan 
 � new railway stations fund 
 � Reforming our Railways: Putting the Customer First 
 � rail fares and ticketing review 
 � rail decentralisation 
 � Network Rail – alternative solutions scoping document 
 � A96 Inveramsay Bridge Improvement 
 
The Board resolved: 
to note the report and the documents referred to above, and to endorse the 
comments as Nestrans’ response to the consultations. 
 
 
 DECLARATION OF INTEREST 
 Laura Grant (Press Officer, BIG Partnership) declared an interest 
 in the  subject matter of the following article due to the nature of 
 the business to be transacted therein, and withdrew from the 
 meeting during consideration of this item. 
 
 
PUBLIC RELATIONS 
 
10.  With reference to article 11 of the minute of its previous meeting of 18 
April, 2012, the Board had before it a report by the Director which brought 
members up to date with discussions which had taken place between 
Aberdeen City and Shire Economic Forum (ACSEF) regarding a joint Public 
Relations contract. 
 
The Board resolved: 

Page 541



 

to approve the tender proposal as detailed within the report. 
 
 
BOARD MEETING DATES 
 
11.  The Board had before it proposed dates and times of future meetings for 
consideration. It was noted that two of the previously agreed dates (22 
August, and 10 October) now clashed with meetings of Aberdeen City 
Council. 
 
The Sub Committee resolved: 
to agree that meetings would be held on the following dates, and that all 
meetings would commence at 2pm – 
 � Wednesday 29 August 
 � Tuesday 9 October 
 � Wednesday 12 December. 
 
 
EQUALITIES DUTIES 
 
12. The Board had before it a report by the Director which provided members 
with an update on Nestrans’ Equalities Duties, and presented an annual report 
in this regard. 
 
The Board resolved: 
to approve the report and the appendix as the Partnership’s report on 
Equalities. 
 
 
UNAUDITED STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS AND ANNUAL AUDIT PLAN 
 
13.  The Board had before it a report by the Treasurer which presented the 
unaudited Statement of Accounts for 2011/12, and a plan by Audit Scotland 
proposing audit arrangements for the 2011/12 audit. 
 
The Board resolved: 
(i)  to note the unaudited financial statements for 2011/12; 
(ii)  to approve the issuing of these statements to the external auditor and 
 the Controller of Audit; and 
(iii)  to note the Nestrans’ 2012 audit planning report, as appended to this 
 minute. 
 
 
INFORMATION BULLETIN 
 
14.  With reference to article 15 of the minute of its previous meeting of 18 
April, 2012, the Board had before it a report by the Director which provided 
information and updates for the Board on a number of matters not requiring a 
decision as follows – 
 � ScotRail Customer Forum 

Page 542



 

 � Flights to London City / easyJet event in Parliament 
 � Aviation consultation update / UK all party Parliamentary Group on 
 Aviation 
 � English review of strategic road network 
 � Scottish Government review of community planning 
 � Update on Northern Isles ferry services tender 
 � Bridge of Dee study 
 � ScotRail timetabling 
 � A944 / B9119 junction improvements 
 � Nestrans’ press releases 
 � Getabout events 
 � Dyce Shuttle Bus 
 
The Board resolved: 
(i)  to request that the Director arrange a meeting between the press and 
 the new Chairperson at an early date in order to get the key messages 
 from Nestrans across; 
(ii)  to request that the Director updates the Board on his proposal to 
 organise an event for MPs in relation to the aviation policy; 
(iii)  to note that the Director would speak to Derek Provan about the 
 possibility of reinstating flights to Stansted; 
(iv) to note that a report on the possible reduction of congestion at Dyce 
 Station associated with the shuttle bus (by utilising a different area of 
 the station for turning of the bus) would be presented to a future 
 meeting of the Board; 
(v)  to note that for the shuttle bus the Director would provide information 
 on customer feedback following a customer satisfaction survey and 
 investigate whether the advertising of the bus within the airport could 
 be improved and report back to a future meeting of the board; and 
(vi)  to otherwise note the content of the bulletin. 
 
 
CONFERENCES AND PRESENTATIONS 
 
15.  With reference to article 16 of the minute of its previous meeting of 18 
April, 2012, the Board had before it a report by the Director summarising 
recent and forthcoming conferences of interest to the Partnership along with 
presentations by Nestrans and its partners. 
 
The Board resolved: 
to note the information as presented. 
 
 
PENDING BUSINESS AND REPORTS FOR FUTURE MEETINGS 
 
16.  With reference to article 17 of the minute of its previous meeting of 18 
April, 2012, the Board had before it a report by the Director detailing pending 
business and information on reports to be submitted to future Board meetings. 
 

Page 543



 

The Board resolved: 
to note the information. 
- PETER ARGYLE, Chairperson. 

Page 544



 

NORTH EAST TRANSPORT PARTNERSHIP 
 

Minute of Meeting of the North East Transport Partnership 
 

Aberdeen, 29 August, 2012 
 
Present:   Councillor Argyle (Chairperson); Councillor Milne (Deputy 
   Chair); and Councillors Finlayson, Young (as substitute 
   for Councillor Grant) and Yuill (as substitute for Councillor 
   McCaig) (Aberdeen City Council), Councillors Buchan, 
   Clark and Latham (Aberdeenshire Council), Jennifer  
   Craw and Derek Provan (External Members). 
 
In attendance: Martin Allan (Aberdeen City Council), Jenny Anderson 
   (Nestrans), David Bell (Deloitte), Tom Buchan  
   (Aberdeenshire Council), Rebecka Coull (Aberdeen City 
   Council), Rab Dickson (Nestrans), Will Hekelaar  
   (Aberdeen City Council), Dave McDermid (BIG   
   Partnership), Derick Murray (Nestrans), Colin Parker  
   (Harbour Board) (item 1 only), Katherine Purvis  
   (Aberdeen City Council), Ewan Wallace (Aberdeenshire 
   Council), and Karlyn Watt (Deloitte). 
 
Apologies:   Eddie Anderson (External Member), Stephen Archer  
   (Adviser to the Board), Dr Maggie Bochel (Adviser to the 
   Board), Councillor Grant (Aberdeen City Council),  
   Councillor McCaig (Aberdeen City Council), and David 
   Sullivan (External Member). 
 
The agenda and reports associated with this minute can be located at 
the following link: 
 
http://www.nestrans.org.uk/48/board-meetings.html 
 
 
INTRODUCTION – HARBOUR OPERATIONS CENTRE 
 
1.  Colin Parker (Chief Executive, Aberdeen Harbour Board), welcomed  
members of Nestrans to the Harbour Operations Centre and provided a short 
presentation on the Harbour Board and Operations Centre. The Harbour 
Board’s Annual Review document was circulated for information. 
 
 
MINUTE OF PREVIOUS MEETING 
 
2.  The Board had before it the minute of its previous meeting of 20 June, 
2012. 
 
The Board resolved: 
(i) to note that Jennifer Craw had been in attendance; and 

Page 545



 

(ii) to approve the minute as a correct record, subject to Jennifer Craw being 
added to the list of attendees. 
 
 
LIAISON BETWEEN REGIONAL TRANSPORT PARTNERSHIPS AND THE 
SCOTTISH GOVERNMENT AND OTHERS 
 
3.  With reference to article 5 of the minute of its previous meeting of 20 
June, 2012, the Board had before it a report by the Director which provided an 
update on liaison with other Regional Transport Partnerships (RTPs), the 
Scottish Government and others. 
 
The meetings included – 
 � Scotland Railway Planning in Glasgow on 26 June, 2012 
 � Scottish Council for Development and Industry in Aberdeen on 26 
 June, 2012 
 � A press briefing in Aberdeen on 4 July, 2012 
 � Health and Transport Action Plan Steering Group in Aberdeen on 17 
 July, 2012 and 21 August, 2012 
 � Nestrans/ Hitrans/ Transport Scotland in relation to aviation policy in 
 Edinburgh on 18 July, 2012 
 � Aberdeen and Grampian Chamber of Commerce in Aberdeen on 26 
 July, 2012 
 � Regional Transport Partnership Lead Officers’ meeting in Perth on 15 
 August, 2012 
 � Local Authority and Bus Operator Forum Steering Group meeting in 
 Aberdeen on 16 August, 2012 
 � Transport Scotland in Aberdeen on 20 August, 2012 
 
The Board resolved: 
(i)  to note progress on liaison arrangements with other Regional Transport 
 Partnerships, the Scottish Government, and others; and 
(ii)  to note the arrangements for future meetings as detailed within the 
 report. 
 
 
REGIONAL TRANSPORT STRATEGY REFRESH 
 
4.  The Board had before it a report by the Director which brought 
members up to date with the refresh of the Regional Transport Strategy that 
was being undertaken. The report presented proposals for the strategic 
environmental assessment, equalities impact assessment and consultation on 
the refresh. 
 
The Director advised that it was his intent to consult Aberdeen City and 
Aberdeenshire Councils on this report. 
 
The Board resolved: 
(i) to agree that the draft main issues report be circulated for consultation; 

Page 546



 

(ii)  to note the proposals in terms of the strategic environmental 
 assessment and equalities impact assessment processes; 
(iii)  to agree the proposals as detailed in the report in relation to the 
 proposed consultation process; and 
 (iv) to instruct the Director to arrange a workshop with members of the 
 Board, in order for their views to be taken into account. 
 
 
PROGRESS REPORT 
 
5.  With reference to article 8 of the minute of its previous meeting of 20 
June, 2012, the Board had before it a progress chart summarising the work in 
the three sub strategies of the Regional Transport Strategy as at 22 August, 
2012. 
 
A number of queries were raised in connection with Western Peripheral 
Route, and it was agreed that the Director would write to Transport Scotland 
prior to the Regional Transport Strategy being circulated for consultation, in 
order that Nestrans would be in a position to answer these questions if they 
arise during the consultation period. 
 
The Board resolved: 
(i)  to note the content of the progress chart; and 
(ii)  to instruct the Director to write to Transport Scotland prior to the 
 Regional Transport Strategy being circulated for consultation, in order 
 to get a formal response on the following questions (1) what is the 
 current projected timetable for the Western Peripheral Route; (2) how 
 long will it take from the end of any Court action, to commencement on 
 site; and (3) have all legal avenues been exhausted at this stage? 
 
 
 DECLARATION OF INTEREST 
 
 During discussion of the following item, Derek Provan declared an 
 interest due to his position as Managing Director at Aberdeen 
 Airport. Mr Provan chose to remain in the meeting during this 
 discussion. 
 
 
PUBLICATIONS AND CONSULTATIONS 
 
6.  With reference to article 8 of the minute of its previous meeting of 20 
June, 2012, the Board had before it a report by the Director which 
summarised and advised on a number of different publications and 
consultations as follows and sought approval of draft responses as 
appropriate – 
 � Inter City East Coast Rail franchise 
 � Ministerial Statement on Railways 
 � High level output statement 
 � First Aberdeen network changes 

Page 547



 

 � Draft Aviation Policy Framework. 
 
A discussion took place in relation to the draft Aviation Policy, and it was 
suggested that it would be helpful if statistics and/ or other evidence could be 
provided in relation to emerging markets, and what the income for the area 
would be if the current projections are realised. The Director suggested that 
ACSEF or Scottish Enterprise may be able to assist with this. 
 
The Board resolved: 
(i)  to note the report and the documents referred to above, and to 
 endorse the comments as Nestrans’ response to the consultations; and 
(ii)  to note that the draft response of the Aviation Policy would be brought 
 to the next meeting for approval. 
 
 
STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS AND EXTERNAL AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
7.  The Board had before it (1) a report by the Treasurer which presented 
the audited statement of accounts for 2011/12, and (2) a report by Deloitte 
which advised that they had undertaken an audit of Nestrans’ financial 
statements, and presented their findings in this regard. 
 
The Board resolved: 
(i) to note the audited statement of accounts for 2011/12, and the report 
 by Deloitte; and 
(ii) to agree that a £10 charge for printing a copy of the statement of 
 accounts be made; and 
(iii)  to note that the statement of accounts could be downloaded free of 
 charge from the Nestrans website. 
 
 
BUDGET MATTERS 
 
8. With reference to article 13 of the minute its meeting of 18 April, 2012, 
the Board had before it a report by the Treasurer which provided an update on 
spend and programming of the Partnership’s 2012/13 budget and forecast 
outturn in this regard. 
 
The Board resolved: 
to note the monitoring position and forecast. 
 
 
INFORMATION BULLETIN 
 
9.  With reference to article 14 of the minute of its previous meeting of 20 
June 2012, the Board had before it a report by the Director which provided 
information and updates for the Board on a number of matters not requiring a 
decision as follows – 
 � Aberdeen to Stansted route 
 � Hydrogen buses launch 

Page 548



 

 � Stagecoach green bus launch 
 � Jet 727, Jet connect and Deeside corridor audio announcements 
 launch 
 � West coast main line franchise award 
 � ARI bus interchange 
 � Laurencekirk junctions 
 � North east bus fares and ticketing strategy update 
 � Nestrans’ press releases. 
 
The Board resolved: 
to note the content of the bulletin. 
 
 
CONFERENCES AND PRESENTATIONS 
 
10.  With reference to article 15 of the minute of its previous meeting of 
20 June, 2012, the Board had before it a report by the Director summarising 
recent and forthcoming conferences of interest to the Partnership along with 
presentations by Nestrans and its partners. 
 
The Board resolved: 
to note the information as presented. 
 
 
PENDING BUSINESS AND REPORTS FOR FUTURE MEETINGS 
 
11.  With reference to article 16 of the minute of its previous meeting of 
20 June 2012, the Board had before it a report by the Director detailing 
pending business and information on reports to be submitted to future Board 
meetings. 
 
The Board resolved: 
to note the information 
- PETER ARGYLE, Chairperson. 

Page 549



 

 
Appendix B 

Bridge of Don Park and Ride Site Economic Assessment Summary 

Page 550



 

 

Page 551



 

 

 

Page 552



 

 
Appendix C 

Nestrans Board Report – Strategic Transport Fund 
 

NORTH EAST SCOTLAND TRANSPORT PARTNERSHIP – 9 October 2012 
 

 

Strategy - 
3b Strategic Transport Fund 
 

 

� Purpose of Report 
 
The purpose of this report is to update the Board on the implementation of the 
Strategic Transport Fund (STF) since the adoption of the supplementary guidance 
‘Delivering Identified Projects through a Strategic Transport Fund’. It also outlines the 
proposed timescales for the next steps. 
 
The report also asks the Board to designate two board members as ‘Proper Officers’ 
able to sign Section 75 agreements relating to the STF in the absence of the 
Director. 
 

� Background 
 
The Strategic Development Planning Authority adopted the supplementary guidance 
in December 2011. This guidance is non-statutory supplementary guidance in 
support of the Aberdeen City and Shire Structure Plan 2009 and was adopted with 
the intention that it would be reviewed and adopted as statutory guidance as part of 
the new Strategic Development Plan.   
 
The purpose of the supplementary guidance is to seek contributions from housing 
and non-residential development for the delivery of identified strategic transport 
projects identified as required as a result of the scale of development proposed in the 
development plan. The calculations proposed for housing are based on a per unit 
cost linked to the number of bedrooms with an average cost of £2,064 per house.  
 
For employment uses, a per hectare contribution is applied based on the Use 
Classes Order and weighted on the basis of relative land value and trip generation 
with an average cost per hectare of £62,010.  
 
These contributions are to be used specifically for the delivery of the strategic 
transport projects identified through the Cumulative Transport Appraisal and 
developers will continue to make appropriate payments towards local transport 
improvements and other required infrastructure such as education and affordable 
housing.   
 

� Update on the Fund 
 
Since the adoption of the supplementary guidance in December 2011, contributions 
have been formally agreed for four developments. Three of these have been agreed 
through Section 75 agreements for which payment will be received on completion of 
the development and one through a payment upfront for which the 20 year period for 
retention of these funds will start on implementation of the planning permission.   

Page 553



 

 
These agreements account for a total agreed contribution of £1,286,000 of which 
£43,000 has already been paid.  
 
Discussions are taking place within the two Councils on a large number of other sites 
that are coming forward and that will require to make an STF contribution. 
 
Full details of the contributions received into the fund and expenditure will be 
provided in the Nestrans Annual Report for 2012/13. 
 

� Proposed timescales 
 
There are two streams of work that are currently being taken forward in relation to the 
STF: 

• Prioritisation of the strategic infrastructure interventions; and 
 

• Review of the supplementary guidance (required prior to adoption as statutory 
supplementary guidance under the Strategic Development Plan). This 
provides the opportunity to review and respond to a number of points that 
have arisen during the early implementation. 

 
It is proposed that a discussion paper be prepared that covers both of these issues 
and that this is used as the basis to consult with the development industry through a 
stakeholder workshop in late 2012.  
 
The prioritisation of infrastructure would then be reported back to the Board in 
December while the comments received on the supplementary guidance would be 
used to inform a review of the document and production of a revised draft for further 
consultation. The timescales the SDPA are working to in terms of producing the final 
supplementary guidance are that it be complete by the end of 2013 at the latest so 
that it is in a position to be adopted alongside the approval of the Strategic 
Development Plan. 
 

� Proper Officer 
 
At its meeting in April 2012, the Board homologated the decision to appoint the 
Nestrans Director as a Proper Officer under Schedule 1, paragraph 13 of the 
Transport (Scotland) Act 2005 which states that “a transport partnership shall appoint 
one of its employees as its proper officer for the purposes of sections 190, 191 and 
193 of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973”. The provisions under those 
sections of the 1973 Act refer to the service of legal proceedings and notices and the 
authentication of documents.  This decision allows the Director to sign Section 75 
agreements that relate to the Strategic Transport Fund on behalf of Nestrans. 
 
Legal advice has been sought on designating further Proper Officers who are able to 
sign these agreements in the absence of the Director. It has been recommended by 
legal that the Board designate two of its Councillor members as Proper Officers who 
can perform this role if necessary. It is proposed that the Chair and Deputy Chair of 
Nestrans would be the most appropriate for this role. 
 

� Recommendation 
 
      The Board is recommended to: 

Page 554



 

 
• Note the update on payments into the Strategic Transport Fund; 
• Agree the proposed timescale for prioritisation; 
• Note the proposed timescale for the SDPA to carry out a review and update 

of the supplementary guidance. 
• Agree the appointment of the Chair and Deputy Chair as Proper Officers able 

to sign Section 75 agreements for the Strategic Transport Fund on behalf of 
Nestrans. 

 
 

KM 26 September 2012 
  

 
 

Page 555



Page 556

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
COMMITTEE:   Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure 
    
DATE:      6 November 2012   
 
DIRECTOR:      Gordon McIntosh   
 
TITLE OF REPORT:   Permit Misuse Policy     
 
REPORT NUMBER:   EPI/12/224        
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 

To update the Committee on the monitoring of permit misuse which has 
been undertaken to inform the development of a formal policy for 
dealing with misuse of all parking permits within the city, such as 
residents’ permits, business permits, contractors’ permits and Blue 
Badges.  
 

2. RECOMMENDATION(S)  
  

1. That the committee notes the levels and type of Blue Badge 
misuse and instructs officers to deal with such misuse by 
adopting the policy detailed in Appendix A. 

 
2. That the Committee instructs officers to undertake an additional 

three month monitoring period for residential parking permits 
and to report back to the EP&I Committee in January regarding 
the progress of the monitoring period. 

 
3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  

 
It is anticipated that the cost of staff time to monitor and deal with Blue 
Badge misuse can be absorbed within current staffing levels. However, 
depending on the results of the extended monitoring period for other 
permits and the levels of misuse found, the creation of a specific 
enforcement team dealing with permit misuse may be required. 
 

4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 

None 
 

 
5. BACKGROUND / MAIN ISSUES 
 
5.1 Background 
 

Agenda Item 10.6

Page 557



 
5.1.1 There has been an increasing number of complaints from the public 

regarding perceived misuse of Residents’ Parking Permits and officers 
are also aware of attempts to sell and purchase such permits. 

 
5.1.2 An initial report on permit misuse was submitted to the EP&I 

Committee on 11 September. The report outlined proposals to carry out 
a monitoring period from July to September 2012, to ascertain the 
levels of permit misuse, including misuse of Blue Badges and 
residential permits. 
 
 

5.2 Blue Badge misuse  
 

5.2.1 In order to determine if Blue Badges were being used as intended, it 
was necessary for the City Wardens to be present when the vehicle 
was arriving or leaving and for the Badge to be inspected. 

 
5.2.2 When the City Wardens were present where a driver or passenger was 

still in a car or entering/exiting a car displaying a Blue Badge, they 
asked to see the Badge. Wardens inspected Blue Badges on 42 
occasions and found 18 instances where the Badge was not being 
properly used. These are detailed in Appendix B.  

 
5.2.3 Each Blue Badge holder is provided with a copy of the Transport 

Scotland leaflet “The Blue Badge Scheme in Scotland – Rights and 
responsibilities of a Blue Badge holder”. 

 
5.2.4 Section 4 of this leaflet details common instances of Badge misuse, 

and states that these include the following: 
 

• Allowing family members or carers to use your badge when you 
are not with them to do something on your behalf, such as 
shopping or collecting something for you 

• Allowing non disabled people to take benefit from your badge 
while you sit in the car 

• Displaying a badge photograph side up so that the details on the 
front cannot be read 

• Copying or tampering with the badge 
• Using the badge if it is expired or if you are no longer eligible 

 
 
5.2.5 In instances of serious misuse, further investigation would be required 

to a standard that would secure a conviction, and would require the 
agreement of the Procurator Fiscal to pursue a case against the Badge 
Holder. Without this the Badge cannot be withdrawn, as per The 
Disabled Persons (Badges for Motor Vehicles) Scotland Regulations 
2000. Under the same legislation however, the Council can refuse to 
issue another Badge upon expiry, and this can be done without having 
to secure a conviction. 

5.2.6 The instances of misuse are mostly of a minor nature and appear to be 
the result of Badge Holders not familiarising themselves with their 
duties and responsibilities as a Badge Holder. 

 

Page 558



 
5.2.7 It is anticipated that the City Wardens will continue to ask to inspect 

Blue Badges as part of their daily duties and will then pass any 
instances of misuse on to the Road Safety and Traffic Management 
Team for further action 

 
5.2.8 The instances of misuse are generally in line with that experienced by 

the majority of other local authorities in Scotland, with the exception of 
the City of Edinburgh Council. 

 
5.2.9 A proposed policy is outlined in Appendix A. This policy is in line with 

the approach adopted by other local authorities, again with the 
exception of the City of Edinburgh Council, which has created a 
dedicated parking enforcement team. 

 
5.2.10 It is therefore recommended that the Council adopt the policy outlined 

in Appendix A, to deal with misuse of Blue Badges. 
 

 
5.3 Misuse of other parking permits 

 
5.3.1 It has proved more difficult to obtain evidence of misuse of residents’ 

parking permits etc than it has for Blue Badge misuse. This appears to 
be because the residents’ permits are being used by commuters, and 
therefore the Wardens have to be on site at exactly the time the driver 
is parking or driving away, which can be over the course of a couple of 
hours in the morning and again in the evening.  

 
5.3.2 In the case of Blue Badges, drivers are parking at various times of day 

which coincides with the Wardens carrying out their patrols and this 
misuse is therefore easier to confirm.  

 
5.3.3 With misuse of residents’ permits, if being used for commuter parking 

then it is dependent on the working hours of the driver when they are 
parking. Wardens may either arrive too late to witness the car being 
parked or driven away, or they may have to wait on site for a long 
period of time which severely impacts on their other duties and inhibits 
their ability to deal with other parking issues. There have therefore only 
been two instances which the Wardens have been able to fully 
investigate and confirm as misuse. 

 
5.3.4 In both these instances, the Wardens waited for a considerable period 

of time on site, in order to speak to the driver. Both instances were 
misuse of a flexible parking permit, where a resident had purchased 
this permit and sold it to a colleague. In both cases, the Warden asked 
that the permit be surrendered and the driver did so. 

 
5.3.5 The permit holder has been written to and reminded that the conditions 

of issue state that the permit may be withdrawn if it is been misused, 
including if it has been sold. 

 
5.3.6 There is no policy in place with regard to the circumstances under 

which the Council would seek to withdraw a permit, and whether it 
would wish to pursue a conviction for fraud before doing so. 

 

Page 559



 
5.3.7 With the publication of the report to the September EP&I Committee, 

officers also received an email of support from a resident, stating they 
were pleased to see the monitoring period being undertaken and 
alleging widespread misuse of residents’ permits in a specific area. 

 
5.3.8 Given the difficulties in monitoring the misuse as outlined above it is 

recommended that a further monitoring period be undertaken, to target 
misuse of residents’ permits and to investigate the claims made by the 
resident in response to the previous report. 

          
5.4 Conclusion 
 
5.4.1 On conclusion of the initial three month monitoring period, officers have 

a clearer understanding of the nature of Blue Badge misuse within the 
city, and propose to deal with this by the adoption of a policy outlined in 
Appendix A. 

 
5.4.2 Officers do not feel that they have been able to adequately gauge the 

type and extent of residential parking permit misuse, and therefore 
propose that a further three month monitoring period be carried out to 
target this misuse, with a report to be provided to the January EP&I 
Committee.  

 
  

6. IMPACT 
 

Within the Community Plan, protecting and enhancing the built and 
natural environment is identified as a strategic priority, and 
underpinning the Community Plan is an aim to deliver Local & Regional 
Transport Strategy commitments by, among other means, using 
enforcement.  

 
 
7. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

Outstanding Business statement of Enterprise Planning and 
Infrastructure Committee meeting on 31 May 2012, the allocation of 
Business Permits to Offices Report submitted to the Controlled Parking 
Area Working Group meeting on 5 April 2012 and the Permit Misuse 
Policy report no EPI/12/151, submitted to the EP&I Committee on 11 
September 2012. 
 
 

8. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS  
 
Louise Trayner 
Road Safety & Traffic Management Team 
ltrayner@aberdeencity.gov.uk 
(01224) 538065 
 

Page 560



 
Appendix A 
Enforcement of Blue Badges  
Note: Enforcement of Blue Badges is subject to a Code of Practice in accordance with The 
Chronically Sick and Disabled Persons’ Act 1970 and The Disabled Persons (Badges for 
Motor Vehicles) Scotland Regulations 2000, both as subsequently amended. 
 

• Some flexibility in using powers, in order to address local 
circumstances 

• Where the Badge Holder remains in the car to enable the driver or 
passenger to take advantage of the Blue Badge, the City Wardens will 
remind the Badge Holder about conditions of use and the Council will 
write to the Badge Holder reminding them of their duties and 
responsibilities in ensuring correct use of the Badge 

• Where a family member or friend has been found using a Blue Badge 
when not entitled to do so, the City Wardens will issue a PCN and the 
Council will write to the Badge Holder reminding them of their duties 
and responsibilities in ensuring correct use of the Badge 

• For the above instances of misuse, PCN’s will be issued on each 
occasion of misuse, letters will be sent out on two occasions and on the 
third occasion the Council will class this as habitual misuse and will ask 
the Procurator Fiscal to prosecute under The Chronically Sick and 
Disabled Persons’ Act 1970 and then withdraw the badge once a 
conviction has been secured, as per The Disabled Persons (Badges for 
Motor Vehicles) Scotland Regulations 2000 

• Where a Badge is habitually misused, under The Disabled Persons 
(Badges for Motor Vehicles) Scotland Regulations 2000 the Council will 
refuse to issue a new or replacement Badge, where it has reasonable 
grounds to believe that the applicant would permit another person to 
use it.  

• Where a Badge has been found to have been copied, altered, faked or 
forged, the Council will ask the Procurator Fiscal to prosecute under 
the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 

• Where a Badge has been found to have been copied, altered, faked or 
forged, under The Disabled Persons (Badges for Motor Vehicles) 
Scotland Regulations 2000 the Council will refuse to issue a new or 
replacement Badge, due to the seriousness of this offence 

• Where a lost/stolen Badge has been found to be used by someone 
other than the Badge Holder, the Council will also ask the Procurator 
Fiscal to prosecute the offender under the Road Traffic Regulation Act 
1984 

 
 

Page 561



 
Appendix B 
Misuse of Blue Badges  
 

Observed number 
of occasions of 
Blue Badge misuse 

Type of misuse Action Taken 

7 Badge holder remained in car 
while able bodied driver or 
passenger entered shops 

The Badge Holders were reminded of the 
conditions of use and it was explained that 
any driver or passenger who was not 
mobility impaired should be using a pay 
and display or other available parking bay. 

5 Expired Badge was displayed These appeared to have been genuine 
errors by the Badge Holders. No 
reminders are issued and it is the duty of 
the Badge Holder or their carer to renew 
the Badge as required. The Badge 
Holders were advised to apply for a new 
Badge and return the expired Badge. 

3 Family members were found 
to be using the Badge 
without the Badge Holder 
being present. 

Drivers were advised of the requirements 
for Badge use and the Badge Holders 
have been written to with a request for an 
explanation into the circumstances under 
which their Badge was misused. They 
have also been reminded of the duties and 
responsibilities of a Badge Holder and 
advised that being convicted of misusing 
the Badge carries a fine of £1000 and can 
result in withdrawal of the Badge. 
 

1 Badge Holder was parked on 
“School Keep Clear” 
markings 

Advised that this constituted misuse of the 
Badge. The Badge Holder has also been 
written to as above. 
 

1 Driver was parked illegally 
and claimed to be a Badge 
Holder but said his Badge 
was on a friend’s car. 

Driver has been written to as above, and 
also reminded that City Wardens should 
not be subject to abusive language when 
carrying out their role. 
 

1 Driver of illegally parked 
vehicle was questioned and 
produced a Blue Badge, but 
Wardens were still suspicious 
and issued a PCN 

Badge was reported lost within a month of 
issue and a duplicate Badge was issued. 
Grampian Police were contacted, as it was 
suspected that the lost badge may have 
been found and was being misused. 
The Police spoke to the Badge Holder and 
reminded him of his duties and 
responsibilities. The Badge Holder has 
been written to,  asked for a written 
explanation of the circumstances and has 
been asked to return the duplicate Badge 
 

 

 
 
 
 

Page 562



 

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
COMMITTEE   ENTERPRISE, PLANNING & INFRASTRUCTURE 
 
DATE     6 November 2012   
 
DIRECTOR    GORDON McINTOSH   
 
TITLE OF REPORT  Garthdee Controlled Parking Area- Permit Charges

  
 
REPORT NUMBER: EPI /12/233 
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 

This report advises the Committee that the current legal agreement 
with Robert Gordon University to meet the administration and 
enforcement costs for the Controlled Parking area within Garthdee 
expired on the 30th September 2012 and that consideration should be 
given to the introduction of charges for residents permits. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATION(S)  

  
That the committee ; 
 

a)  Approve the introduction of residential parking permit charges 
for the existing Garthdee controlled parking area in line with 
existing peripheral parking areas. 

b) Instruct officers to amend the Garthdee Controlled Parking 
Traffic Regulation order through the legislative process to 
include the agreed permit charges 

 
3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
3.1   There will now be an ongoing revenue cost to this council for the 

administration, enforcement and maintenance of the existing Garthdee 
controlled parking area for which there is no budget allocation. In order to 
meet budget expectations it would be necessary to apply a charge for 
residential permits  

 
4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 

None at this time   
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 10.7

Page 563



 

5. MAIN ISSUES 
 
5.1 The controlled parking area within the Garthdee area has now been 

operational for 10 years and was implemented to support sustainable 
transport objectives for travel to the RGU campus and to protect the 
residential environment / amenity of Garthdee from indiscriminate 
commuter parking. 

 
5.2 The need for the controlled parking area was recognised within the 

Transportation Assessment submitted in support of the planning 
application for the expansion of the Garthdee campus and implemented 
in line the approved planning conditions. 

 
5.3 In association with the planning permission RGU entered into a legal 

agreement that required that they meet the administration and 
enforcement costs for the zone for a period of 10 years. The legal 
agreement expired at the end of September 2012 and concluded RGU’s 
obligations in this respect.      

 
5.4 Since the introduction of the controlled parking area residents have not 

been charged for the issue of residential parking permits as there have 
been no direct costs to this council in relation to the administration of 
permits and enforcement of the parking restrictions. 

 
5.5 The costs for the administration and enforcement of the controlled parking 

area will now have to be borne in full by this council. It is considered that 
given the current financial constraints that in order to meet the costs 
associated with the issue of permits and enforcement that it would be 
prudent to introduce charges for permits in line with those for the other 
peripheral controlled parking areas at Foresterhill and Old Aberdeen. 

 
5.6 The residents within the Garthdee area have an entitlement to two 

permits per house in line with the other similar areas. At present an 
average of 1100 residential permits have been issued for the area with 
many issued to residents who have available off street parking but also 
choosing to take up the option for permits. Should charges be introduced 
it is reasonable to assume that the demand for permits will diminish with 
only those requiring on street parking applying for permits when existing 
permits expire. However experience at Foresterhill following the 
introduction of charges for residential permits has shown an overall 
increase in demand for permits.  

 
5.7 It is thought that there is an element of abuse of the existing permit 

system related to parking at the university campus and it is considered 
that the introduction of permit charges may assist in the reduction of this 
abuse. 

 
5.8 In conclusion it is proposed that in order to off set the cost associated with 

the operation of the Garthdee controlled parking area that residential 
parking permit charges, in line with the existing peripheral areas (the  

Page 564



 

current annual charge for permits within the peripheral zones is £80 for 
the first permit and £120 for the second) be introduced. 

 
        
6. IMPACT 
 

Corporate - This report links to the Service Plan for Enterprise, 
Planning & Infrastructure Strategic Priorities 4(4), 4(5) & 
5(2) 

 
Public - This report is likely to be of interest to the public as it involves a 

potentially significant alteration to a junction on one of the main 
arterial corridors in the city. 

 
7. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

None 
 
8. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS  

 
Andrew Smith  
Traffic Engineering Manager 
Tel 538056 
andrews@aberdeencity.gov.uk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 565



 

Consultees comments 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Councillor Angela Taylor – has been consulted 02/10/12 
Councillor Gordon Townson – has been consulted 02/10/12 
Councillor Ian Yuill – has been consulted 02/10/12 
 
Council Officers 
Barry Jenkins, Head of Finance, Corporate Governance – has been consulted  
Jane MacEachran, Head of Legal and Democratic Service – has been consulted 
Ciaran Monaghan, Head of Service, Office of Chief Executive – has been 
consulted 
Gordon McIntosh, Director of Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure – has been 
consulted   
Hugh Murdoch, Head of Asset Management and Operations, E,P and I – has 
been consulted 
Margaret Bochel, Head of Planning & Sustainable Development – has been 
consulted  
Mike Cheyne, General Manager, Operations – has been consulted  
Neal Carnegie, Community Safety Manager – has been consulted  
Dave Young, Account Manager, Corporate Governance – has been consulted  
Laura Watson, Service Co-ordinator E P & I 
Mark Masson, Committee Services Officer 
 
 

Page 566



 

 

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
COMMITTEE   Enterprise Planning and Infrastructure  
   
DATE              6 November 2012    
 
DIRECTOR              Gordon McIntosh    
 
TITLE OF REPORT   City Wide Flooding Issues 
 
REPORT NUMBER:  EPI/12/240 
 
 
 
1.0 PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 

To update the Committee on recent city wide flooding incidents and to 
outline the ongoing work necessary to assess and manage the risk of 
flooding. 

 
 
2.0 RECOMMENDATION(S)  
  

It is recommended that the Committee: 
 

2.1 Notes :- 
 

a) The extent of the flooding problem as experienced on 25 
August. 

 
b) The progress made to investigate and alleviate the causes 

of flooding. 
 

2.2 Approves :- 
 

                 c)    That a briefing session is arranged to update elected  
                         members on the national and local strategy to risk manage   
                         and alleviate flooding. 
 
 
 
   
 

3.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  
 

Minor works to improve drainage and flood protection are funded from   
           existing revenue and capital budgets. 

 

Agenda Item 10.8

Page 567



 

 

At present flood prevention schemes with a capital value up to £2M do 
not attract grant funding from the Scottish Government. Approved 
schemes in excess of this value can attract 80% funding. The 
continuation of this threshold could disadvantage the City. 
 
 
 

4.0 OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 

The Council has a statutory obligation to work in partnership with the 
North East Local Plan District (NELPD), SEPA, Scottish Water and 
others to develop a Local Plan for Flood Risk Management. The plan 
will include prioritised schemes for flood management. The deadline for 
publishing the first draft plan is December 2014. Some schemes, 
particularly major schemes, will be eligible for grant funding. An 
explanation of this strategy and partnership working will be the subject 
of a briefing session for elected members. 

 
 
5.0 BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 
 

5.1 Flooding Events – 25 August 
            

           Heavy rain on 25 August caused a large number of flooding 
incidents city wide, affecting both domestic and commercial 
properties, as well as disrupting travel. A full list of the incidents 
reported to the flood management team is given in appendix A. 
The appendix also details progress to date to mitigate 
recurrences of these incidents. Some of the issues can be dealt 
with locally; others require a robust understanding of the 
watercourse and drainage system to allow development of a 
solution, some of which may involve major capital works. 
 
The rain on the 25th was localised, intense and of relatively short 
duration, because of this, no official measurement of the rainfall 
is available. However it is assessed that up to 30mm fell within 
one hour, placing the downpour in excess of a 1 in 100 year 
event. It should be noted however that the 1 in 100 year event is 
based on statistical analysis of limited historical records. If 
increased rainfall, as has been experienced in recent years, is 
the product of climate change, then the intensity of the predicted 
1 in 100 year event will increase, as will the frequency of 
flooding. 
 

     
 
6.0 IMPACT 
 

There is considerable public interest in this, particularly from those 
affected by flooding issues and from the media. 

Page 568



 

 

 
 
7.0 BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

a) Potentially Vulnerable Area Data Sheets 06/15-19  available at -                
http://www.sepa.org.uk/flooding/flood_risk_management/national_f
lood_risk_assessment/datasheets.aspx. 

 
b) Flood Risk Management Strategies and Local Flood Risk 

Management Plans available at - 
http://www.sepa.org.uk/flooding/flood_risk_management/national_f
lood_risk_assessment.aspx. 

 
c) Aberdeen Integrated Catchment Study – report to 31 May 2012 

EP&I Committee. 
 
d) Flood Risk Management (Scotland) Act 2009 – Governance 

Arrangements for the North East Local Plan District (NELPD) – 
report to 12 September 2012 EP&I Committee 

 
 

8.0 REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS  
 

          Alan Robertson – Structures, Flooding and Coastal Engineering   
          Manager 
          Tel:  (01224) 538072 
          Email: alanr@aberdeencity.gov.uk  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 569



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Appendix A 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 570



 

 

 
 

Record of Flooding Incidents for Saturday 25th August 2012 
Incident 
Number Location Description of Incident Action Taken 

1 Jack Brae 

Denburn – out of channel 
flow – resulting in flooding of 
garage & yard. This is an 
area of repeat problems. 
Work has already been 
carried out to prevent flood 
water flowing down Jack’s 
Brae an into Denburn car 
park etc. 

Survey carried out 28/08/12. 
Owner requested meeting with ACC / SW / 
Lawyer 
Discussed with SW & Planning 03/09/12. 
Meeting with Owners 17/09/12 & 01/10/12. 
Lower trash screen removed 21/09/12. 
ACC to carry out work to adjust wall heights 
and driveway levels as soon as budgets 
permit. 
Owner to fit non-return valves to drains. 
Owner to propose alterations to burn walls 
and ACC to facilitate meeting with 
Conservation Team to discuss 
Sandbags issued to homeowner on 12/1012 

2 Braeside 
Avenue 

Flooding in rear garden. 
Blocked Culvert. 

CCTV survey carried out. 
discussed with SW 03/09/12. 
Blockage Cleared. 

3 
Golf Road / 
Accommoda
tion Road 

Social club flooded. 
Manhole surcharged at 
junction of Pittodrie Street. 
Overloading of combined 
sewer due to rainfall 

Raised with SW 03/09/12. 
Social club to discuss with SW. 
Discussed with SW on 15/10/12 – problem a 
result of  ceased valve at York Street pumping 
station – valve has been repaired. 

4 Kirk Brae Culvert unable to cope with 
volume of water 

Scheme to be implemented by ACC as soon 
as resources permit.  

5 
Fountainhall 
Road / 
Albert Lane 

Property flooded - water 
coming from Denburn 
overtopping in private lane & 
surface water on 
Fountainhall Road. The 
Denburn had reached 
capacity where it flows 
under Fountainhall Road. 
Detailed assessment of 
Denburn Capacity Required. 

Survey carried out 29/08/12. 
Consultant employed by local businesses. 
Meeting with Consultant on 17/09/12. 
Meeting with Councillor Jennifer Stewart& 
affected proprietors 
Temporary sand bag wall built 24/09/12 –to 
be replaced with permanent masonry wall – 
masonry wall completed by 11/10/12. 
Sandbags issued on 12/10/12 
Meeting arranged with SW for 15/10/12 to 
discuss joint survey of sewers and drains in 
area. Joint survey agreed. 

6 Jesmond 
Place 

Manhole surcharged, lifting 
road surface 

Manhole reset - waiting on a vented cover to 
replace existing cover. 
Discussed with SW on 03/09/12. 
SW responsibility. 

7 Langstracht 

a)    Flood Waters 
Survey required - Large runoff from Garden 
centre. 
Gullies don't connect directly into carrier 
drains. It is assumed that the outlets are 
blocked / silted up. - To be investigated. 

b)    School flooded 
CCTV required to inspect condition of 
Springhill culvert. The SW combined sewer 
may not have had capacity. Disciussed with 
SW on 15/10/12 – SW to look at improving 
details on combined sewer. 

Page 571



 

 

c)    Rear garden flooded 
Met with owner 30/08/12. 
Gullies have been cleaned & members 
enquiry responded to. 
Langstracht scheme required to alleviate 
future flood incidents. 

d)    Eday Walk - property 
flooded Langstracht scheme. 

8 Abbotswell 
Road 

a)    Water run off from ACC 
road 

Awaiting materials to programme works. 
ACC to repair gully / possibly add another 
large capacity gully. 

b)    Property flooded twice 
Awaiting materials to programme works. 
ACC to repair gully. 
Drainage channel to be installed – to Tullos 
burn. 

9 Monymusk 
Terrace Flooded greenhouse 

ACC have cleared blockage under 
Craigbuckler Avenue - Replied to Councillor 
Greig. 

10 
North 
Deeside 
Road 

a)    Flooding at Bairds Brae Either SW or private matter. 
b)    Muddy water coming up 
the toilet & bath / surface 
water from road 

SW to fit non-return valves. 

11 Westholme 
Avenue Partial blockage of culvert Burn cleared of vegetation etc upstream of 

bridge. 
12 Midstocket 

Road Flooding in garden Owner given advice on how to protect 
property with flood boards and vent covers. 

13 Den of Cults 

a) Flooding from Cults burn 
has damaged road surface Private road / burn - Owners to repair. 
b) Flooding from Cults burn 
has damaged road surface Private road / burn - Owners to repair. 
c) Flooded garden & 
damage to boundary 
retaining wall 

Private road / burn - Owners to repair. 

14 Greenbank 
Road Flooding of yard Owner is arranging the cleaning of internal 

drains. 

15 Abbotshall 
Gardens Water in back garden 

Survey carried out 26/09/12 
Lack of road drainage - run off into gardens. 
Being investigated. Possible regarding of 
road. 

16 Derbeth 
Grange 

Water surfacing between 
fence line of two properties 

Investigation ongoing - Site drawings obtained 
from developer. 

17 Deeside 
Gardens Flooding in back garden 

Discussed with SW 03/09/12. No reported 
flooding on 25/08/12 therefore improvement 
works by owner may have been effective. 

18 Craigieburn 
Park 

a)   Silt & foam in pond 
ACC met Chair of residents association on 
18/09/12. Advice given on how to protect 
pond from silting & responded to Councillor 
Greig. 

b)    Dip in road & lifting of 
carriageway SW responsibility 

19 Culter 
House Road 

Water running down Culter 
House Road 

ACC cleared blocked drain near Bellend 
Walk. 

Page 572



 

 

 
 

20 Pitfodels 
Station Road 

Water running into garden 
from road during heavy rain. 

ACC met with owner on 06/09/12. 
Arranged to get gullies cleaned. 
The land profile has been altered. 
ACC issued letter to owner's agent. 

21 Greenwell 
Road 

Standing water at dip in 
road Tullos cleared two gullies in dip of road. 

22 Countesswel
ls Road 

Ground water / Retaining 
wall 

Council Engineer visited on 04/09/12. Owner 
to discuss with solicitor 

23 Earlspark 
Crescent 

Standing water at boundary 
wall 

Council Engineer met with owner 12/09/12 
Upstand to be installed. 

24 Springfield 
Road 

Manhole on footpath nr. 
Braeside Ave SW to fix manhole - road inspector to check. 

25 Sycamore 
Place Road flooding Gullies cleaned 

26 Dubford 
Park 

Water running between 
property & sub station New gully to be installed. 

27 Manor Drive Edge of carriageway & 
footway lifted by flood water 

Site investigation carried out 27/09/12. 
Evidence of water issuing from SW manhole 
on the combined sewer on Manor Drive. 

28 Springfield 
Place 

 SW responsibility. 
29 Hazledene 

Road  
Flooding to warehousing etc 
on Council owned site. 

Culvert size inadequate. Situation could be 
improved by larger culvert of removal of 
culvert and reinstatement of open channel. 
To be discussed with tenant. 

Page 573



Page 574

This page is intentionally left blank



 

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
COMMITTEE   ENTERPRISE, PLANNING & INFRASTRUCTURE 
 
DATE     6 November 2012   
 
DIRECTOR    GORDON McINTOSH   
 
TITLE OF REPORT  MARKET STREET/GUILD STREET JUNCTION – 

RATIONALISATION OF TURNING MOVEMENTS 
TO IMPROVE CAPACITY   

 
REPORT NUMBER: EPI /12/227  
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 

This report seeks to advise the Committee of a proposal to improve the 
capacity and operational efficiency of the traffic signal controlled 
junction of Market Street and Guild Street through the rationalisation of 
turning movements.   

 
2. RECOMMENDATION(S)  

  
That the committee ; 
 

a. Instruct the appropriate officers to introduce of a temporary ban 
on the movement of vehicles westbound from Virginia Street into 
Guild Street over the period from 19/11/12 until 28/1/13. 

b. Instruct the appropriate officers to commence the necessary legal 
procedures for the introduction of a permanent ban on the 
movement of vehicles westbound from Virginia Street into Guild 
Street.  

  
 

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
Funding will require to be identified to allow for the necessary Traffic 
Regulation Orders (TRO’s) to be introduced. Physical alterations to the 
geometry of the Market Street/Guild Street junction will be required 
should the permanent ban be implemented and the cost of the 
necessary works is estimated at £15000. Should the temporary ban be 
approved temporary signing works will be necessary the cost of which 
is estimated at £2000. The temporary works cost can be 
accommodated within the existing Traffic Management and Road 
Safety budget and whilst the works for the proposed permanent TRO 
would be included in the Traffic Management and Road Safety budget 
allocation for 2013/14.  

 

Agenda Item 10.9

Page 575



 

 
4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 

It is anticipated that the introduction of a permanent ban on the 
movement of vehicles westbound from Virginia Street into Guild Street 
will reduce the potential for traffic conflicts at this busy junction and will 
improve junction efficiency thereby reducing congestion, delays and air 
pollution. 
 

5. BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 
 
 
Traffic volumes on the Market Street and Guild Street corridor are 
consistently high with the junctions operating at or beyond capacity. 
Since the opening of the Union Square development in October 2009 
traffic volumes on Market Street have increased, particularly at 
weekends and in the early evening. As a result traffic congestion and 
delays have increased during the morning and evening peak periods 
and at peak shopping times. The existing traffic signal phasing and 
conflicting east / west traffic movements on Guild Street and Virginia 
Street restrict the capacity of the junction and regularly create long 
delays for eastbound traffic movements on Guild Street, impacting on 
the journey time for buses exiting the bus station.  
 
At the weekends, during the run-up to Christmas, traffic levels increase, 
significant congestion occurs which further influences the operation of 
the surrounding road network leading to increased delays and  driver 
frustration.    
 
In addition complaints have been received from bus operators 
regarding difficulties experienced, on a day-to-day basis, by drivers 
wishing to turn right from Guild Street into Market Street. Following a 
period of monitoring by officers alterations were made to the traffic 
signal timings providing additional green time to turning traffic. Although 
the situation has been improved it has not been fully resolved, further 
improvements can only be realised through re-allocating green time 
from another traffic stage.   
 
Banning the westbound straight through manoeuvre from Virginia 
Street onto Guild Street will allow the operational efficiency of the 
Market Street/Guild Street junction to be improved. This improvement 
will be achieved by the reduction in the number of traffic stages from 4 
to 3 which will also lead to reduction in the amount of time lost during 
stage changes. 
 
Traffic monitoring data indicates that approximately 240 vehicles per 
hour travel westbound from Virginia Street into Guild Street, this 
equates to around 11 vehicles per cycle being redistributed onto the 
surrounding network. It is considered that there is sufficient capacity to 

Page 576



 

accommodate this redistribution within the existing city centre road 
network.  
 
 
From a traffic modelling perspective these changes will be most 
beneficial to traffic proceeding eastbound on Guild Street. Currently 
drivers wishing to travel from Guild Street onto Virginia Street only use 
the nearside lane as traffic in the offside lane is frequently delayed by 
right turning traffic unable to complete their manoeuvre by oncoming 
vehicles. They are only released when this opposing traffic is stopped. 
If there is no opposing traffic, vehicles turning right into Market Street 
from Guild Street will experience far fewer delays, which will encourage 
full utilisation of both traffic lanes. 
 
It is also considered that further minor efficiencies will also be gained 
through the proportional redistribution of the green time.  

  
Recent Experience 
 
Recently Scottish and Southern Energy carried out extensive works on 
electricity cables located under Guild Street, in front of St Magnus 
House.  
 
Due to the scale of the works it was necessary to introduce significant 
traffic management measures to reduce Guild Street to one lane in 
both directions. In order to reduce the likelihood of congestion on Guild 
Street impacting on the operation of the Market Street/Guild Street 
junction a decision was taken to put in place a Temporary Traffic 
Regulation Order (TTRO) banning vehicles from proceeding westbound 
from Virginia Street into Guild Street for the duration of the works. 
 
During monitoring of the works it was noted that during the initial period 
traffic congestion increased during the peak periods along Virginia 
Street and Union Street. However this was a short-term issue with 
drivers migrating onto alternative routes reducing congestion levels on 
Virginia Street to a more normal level. 
 
During the period of the works no significant delays to traffic travelling 
eastbound on Guild Street were noted. It is considered that this is due 
to the reduction in traffic conflicts realised through the banning of the 
westbound straight through manoeuvre from Virginia Street. 
 
 
 
Interim Short Term Proposal  
 
Given the traffic congestion experienced at the junction of Market 
Street and Guild Street during the festive period it is felt that introducing 
a ban on vehicles travelling westbound from Virginia Street onto Guild 

Page 577



 

Street would, as a short-term measure over the Christmas period and  
into mid January, prove beneficial. 
 
The high cycle time,160 seconds, that this junction has to run in order 
to manage the traffic flowing through it, limits the ability of officers to 
make changes to the operation of adjacent junctions without 
detrimentally affecting the linkages between them. 
 
Reducing the number of traffic stages, as outlined above, will permit a 
reduction in the cycle time and allow officers greater scope for 
improving the efficiency of the network and aid the management of 
traffic during periods of peak traffic flow. 
 
Long term Proposal  
 
It is anticipated that the longer term benefits gained from a permanent 
ban on vehicles travelling westbound from Virginia Street onto Guild 
Street will be enhanced by alterations to the management of vehicles 
entering and exiting the bus depot, further reducing congestion and 
delay for drivers using Guild Street and Market Street. 
 
Conclusion 
 
In conclusion it is considered that banning vehicles travelling 
westbound from Virginia Street into Guild Street will reduce congestion 
and delay on the local road network through the rationalisation of 
turning movements. It is recommended that a TTRO is introduced as a 
short-term measure over the festive period, whilst officers progress the 
introduction of a permanent order as a long term improvement.         

Page 578



 

6. IMPACT 
 

Corporate - This report links to the Service Plan for Enterprise, 
Planning & Infrastructure Strategic Priorities 4(4), 4(5) & 
5(2) 

 
Public - This report is likely to be of interest to the public as it involves a 

potentially significant alteration to a junction on one of the main 
arterial corridors in the city. 

 
7. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

None 
 
8. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS  

 
Donald Kinnear 
Principal Technical Officer 
538061 
donaldk@aberdeencity.gov.uk 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 579



 

Consultees comments 
 
 

 

Councillor Alan Donnelly – has been consulted 02/10/12 
Councillor Graham Dickson – has been consulted 02/10/12 
Councillor James Kiddie – has been consulted 02/10/12 
Councillor Yvonne Allan – has been consulted 02/10/12 
 
Council Officers 
Barry Jenkins, Head of Finance, Corporate Governance – has been consulted  
Jane MacEachran, Head of Legal and Democratic Service – has been consulted 
Ciaran Monaghan, Head of Service, Office of Chief Executive – has been 
consulted 
Gordon McIntosh, Director of Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure – has been 
consulted   
Hugh Murdoch, Head of Asset Management and Operations, E,P and I – has 
been consulted 
Margaret Bochel, Head of Planning & Sustainable Development – has been 
consulted and are comfortable with the outcomes of the modeling. Slight concern about the 
removal of the ability for traffic to route through to Willowbank Rd and the A93 but satisfied that 
traffic will find another route and for the surrounding roads to be monitored during the 
temporary order. 
Mike Cheyne, General Manager, Operations – has been consulted  
Neal Carnegie, Community Safety Manager – has been consulted  
Dave Young, Account Manager, Corporate Governance – has been consulted  
Laura Watson, Service Co-ordinator E P & I 
Mark Masson, Committee Services Officer 
 
 

Page 580



 

 
 

 
 

EN
TE
RP
RI
SE
, P
LA
NN
IN
G 
AN
D 
IN
FR
AS
TR
UC
TU
RE
 

 
 

CO
MM
ITT
EE
 B
US
IN
ES
S 

 
Fo
llo
wi
ng
 th
e M
ee
tin
g o
f 1
1 S
ep
tem
be
r 2
01
2 

No
. 

Mi
nu
te 

Re
fer
en
ce
 

  C
om
mi
tte
e D
ec
isi
on
 

 Up
da
te 
 (n
ew
 up
da
tes
 in
 bo
ld)
 

 
Le
ad
 

Of
fic
er(
s) 

Re
po
rt 
Du
e  

Re
po
rt 

Ex
pe
cte
d 

(if 
kn
ow
n) 

1. 
 E

nte
rpr

ise
, 

Pla
nn

ing
 an

d 
Inf

ras
tru

ctu
re 

Co
mm

itte
e 

26
.11

.09
 ar

tic
le 

18
 

Be
rry
de
n 
Co
rri
do
r 
– 
Tr
an
sp
or
t 

Inf
ras
tru
ctu
re 
Im
pr
ov
em
en
ts 

 Th
e 
Co

mm
itte

e 
res

olv
ed

 to
 ap

pro
ve

 
the

 p
ref

err
ed

 o
pti

on
 fo

r p
rog

res
sio

n 
to 

de
tai

led
 d
es

ign
 (i
.e.

 th
e 
so

-ca
lle

d 
“D

o 
So

me
thi

ng
” 

op
tio

n 
for

 
the

 
co

rrid
or,

 in
 a

ss
oc

iat
ion

 w
ith

 a
 b

us
 

ga
te 

at 
Be

dfo
rd 

Ro
ad

/Po
wis

 
Te

rra
ce

), a
nd

 th
at 

the
 of

fic
ial

s r
ep

ort
 

ba
ck

 o
n 

de
tai

led
 d

es
ign

, c
os

ts 
an

d 
pro

gra
mm

ing
.   

 
 

De
fin

itiv
e 

da
tes

 
for

 
the

 
ma

jor
 

tra
ns

po
rta

tio
n 

pro
jec

ts 
are

 d
iffi

cu
lt 

to 
pro

vid
e 

as
 m

uc
h 

of 
the

 w
ork

 
req

uir
ed

 to
 g

et 
to 

the
 n

ex
t k

ey
 

sta
ge

 fo
r r

ep
ort

ing
 w

ill 
eit

he
r b

e 
se

ve
ral

 m
on

ths
 a

wa
y 

or 
at 

lea
st 

mo
re 

tha
n 

12
 m

on
ths

 - 
in 

wh
ich

 
ca

se
 w

e 
do

n’t
 h

av
e 

co
mm

itte
e 

da
tes

, a
nd

 a
s 

alw
ay

s 
su

bje
ct 

to 
bu

dg
et 

an
d 

res
ou

rce
 a

va
ila

bil
ity

. 
Str

ate
gic

 
Tra

ns
po

rt 
Pr

oje
cts

 
rep

ort
s 

wh
ich

 c
on

tai
n 

up
da

tes
 o

n 
all

 th
es

e 
pro

jec
ts 

are
 p

rov
ide

d 
to 

the
 C

om
mi

tte
e 

by
 w

ay
 o

f a
 re

po
rt 

or 
bu

lle
tin

 as
 an

d w
he

n n
ec

es
sa

ry.
  

 As
 p

er 
the

 u
pd

ate
 o

f 
24

 M
ay

 
fun

din
g 

ha
s b

ee
n 

se
cu

red
 fo

r t
his

 
fin

an
cia

l 
ye

ar 
to 

en
ab

le 
de

ve
lop

me
nt 

bo
un

da
rie

s 
to 

be
 

es
tab

lish
ed

.  
 Su
gg
es
t t
ha
t t
his
 m
ay
 n
ow
 b
e 

co
ns
ide
red
 fo
r r
em
ov
al 
as
 fu
tur
e  

pr
og
res
s 
on
 t
his
 i
tem
 w
ill 
be
 

rec
or
de
d 
in 
the
 S
tra
teg
ic 
an
d 

Lo
ca
l 
Tr
an
sp
or
t 
up
da
te 
rep
or
t 

wh
ich
 is
 n
ow
 o
n 
ev
ery
 c
yc
le 
of 

the
 C
om
mi
tte
e 

  

Ma
rga

ret
 

Bo
ch

el 
 

No
 re

po
rt 

req
uir

ed
 

thi
s 

fin
an

cia
l 

ye
ar 

Agenda Item 11.1

Page 581



 
2

No
. 

Mi
nu
te 

Re
fer
en
ce
 

  C
om
mi
tte
e D
ec
isi
on
 

 Up
da
te 
 (n
ew
 up
da
tes
 in
 bo
ld)
 

 
Le
ad
 

Of
fic
er(
s) 

Re
po
rt 
Du
e  

Re
po
rt 

Ex
pe
cte
d 

(if 
kn
ow
n) 

  
2. 

 E
nte

rpr
ise

, 
Pla

nn
ing

 an
d 

Inf
ras

tru
ctu

re 
Co

mm
itte

e 
26

.11
.09

 ar
tic

le 
19

 

(1)
  
Ac
ce
ss
 fr
om
 th
e 
No
rth
 –
 A
n 

Int
eg
rat
ed
 Tr
an
sp
or
t S
olu
tio
n -
 (2
)  

Ac
ce
ss
 fr
om
 th
e 
No
rth
 P
ro
po
sa
ls 

“T
hir
d D
on
 C
ro
ss
ing
” 

Th
e 

Co
mm

itte
e 

res
olv

ed
, a

mo
ng

st 
oth

er 
thi

ng
s 

to 
req

ue
st 

a 
reg

ula
r 

rep
ort

 b
ac

k 
on

 p
rog

res
s 

in 
the

se
 

ma
tte

rs,
 in

clu
din

g 
the

 d
ev

elo
pm

en
t 

of 
a D

eli
ve

ry 
Pr

og
ram

me
. 

At 
its

 m
ee

tin
g o

n 1
8 J

an
ua

ry,
 20

11
, 

the
 C

om
mi

tte
e r

es
olv

ed
:- 

(a)
 a

gre
e, 

in 
pri

nc
ipl

e, 
the

 
pro

vis
ion

al 
pro

gra
mm

e 
for

 
de

live
ry 

of 
the

 ‘A
cc

es
s f

rom
 th

e 
No

rth
’ 

int
eg

rat
ed

 
tra

ns
po

rt 
pro

po
sa

ls;
 

(b)
 in

str
uc

t 
off

ice
rs 

to 
co

nti
nu

e 
dis

cu
ss

ion
s 

wit
h 

BE
AR

 a
nd

 
Tra

ns
po

rt 
Sc

otl
an

d 
reg

ard
ing

 
op

tio
ns

 
on

 
the

 
tru

nk
 

roa
d 

ne
tw

ork
; 

(c)
 in

str
uc

t 
off

ice
rs 

to 
pro

gre
ss

 
sc

he
me

s 
fro

m 
the

 fu
ll d

eli
ve

ry 
list

 
as

 
pri

ori
ty 

an
d 

fun
din

g 
wo

uld
 

pe
rm

it, 
su

bje
ct 

to 
co

ns
ult

ati
on

 
an

d 
ref

err
al 

to 
fut

ure
 C

om
mi

tte
es

 a
s r

eq
uir

ed
; 

an
d  

(d)
 to

 in
str

uc
t o

ffic
ers

 to
 k

ee
p 

the
 

Co
mm

itte
e 

up
 t

o 
da

te 
wit

h 
pro

gre
ss

 of
 th

e d
eli

ve
ry 

pla
n a

s 
tim

es
ca

les
 m

igh
t b

e 
am

en
de

d 
su

bje
ct 

to 
ag

ree
me

nt 
of 

fut
ure

 
ye

ars
 s

pe
nd

 p
rof

ile
s 

of 
the

 
No

n-H
ou

sin
g 

Ca
pit

al 
bu

dg
et 

an
d 

oth
er 

rel
ev

an
t s

ou
rce

s 
of 

fun
din

g. 
 

 Fu
tur

e u
pd

ate
s w

ill 
be

 pr
ov

ide
d a

s 
fun

din
g 

is 
ide

nti
fie

d 
for

 d
eli

ve
ry 

of 
thi

s 
pro

gra
mm

e. 
It 

is 
pro

po
se

d 
to 

Ma
rga

ret
 

Bo
ch

el 
 

 

Page 582



 
3

No
. 

Mi
nu
te 

Re
fer
en
ce
 

  C
om
mi
tte
e D
ec
isi
on
 

 Up
da
te 
 (n
ew
 up
da
tes
 in
 bo
ld)
 

 
Le
ad
 

Of
fic
er(
s) 

Re
po
rt 
Du
e  

Re
po
rt 

Ex
pe
cte
d 

(if 
kn
ow
n) 

up
da

te 
Me

mb
ers

 o
n 

an
 a

nn
ua

l 
ba

sis
 o

n 
pro

gre
ss

 o
f 

the
 w

ho
le 

pro
gra

mm
e, 

wit
h 

se
pa

rat
e 

rep
ort

ing
 

sh
ou

ld 
ind

ivid
ua

l 
ele

me
nts

 re
qu

ire
 fu

rth
er 

Co
mm

itte
e 

de
cis

ion
s. 

W
he

re 
ke

y 
pro

gre
ss

 is
 

ma
de

 d
uri

ng
 t

he
 y

ea
r, 

ad
-ho

c 
up

da
tes

 ca
n b

e p
rov

ide
d a

s p
art

 of
 

the
 b

ull
eti

n 
or 

inc
lud

ed
 w

ith
in 

the
 

Str
ate

gic
 Tr

an
sp

ort
 pr

oje
cts

 up
da

te 
rep

ort
. 

 A 
pro

gre
ss

 re
po

rt 
wa

s c
on

sid
ere

d 
on

 31
 M

ay
 20

12
. 

 Su
gg
es
t t
ha
t t
his
 m
ay
 n
ow
 b
e 

co
ns
ide
red
 fo
r r
em
ov
al 
as
 fu
tur
e  

pr
og
res
s 
on
 t
his
 i
tem
 w
ill 
be
 

rec
or
de
d 
in 
the
 S
tra
teg
ic 
an
d 

Lo
ca
l 
Tr
an
sp
or
t 
up
da
te 
rep
or
t 

wh
ich
 is
 n
ow
 o
n 
ev
ery
 c
yc
le 
of 

the
 C
om
mi
tte
e. 

  
3. 

 H
ou

sin
g a

nd
 

En
vir

on
me

nt 
Co

mm
itte

e  
16

.02
.10

 ar
tic

le 
20

 

Fu
rn
ish
ing
s C
on
tra
ct 
 

 Th
e 

Co
mm

itte
e 

res
olv

ed
 to

 re
qu

es
t 

off
ice

rs 
to 

su
bm

it 
a 

rep
ort

 to
 th

e 
En

ter
pri

se
, 

Pla
nn

ing
 

an
d 

Inf
ras

tru
ctu

re 
Co

mm
itte

e 
ex

plo
rin

g 
the

 
po

ss
ibi

lity
 

of 
the

 
ov

era
ll 

am
en

dm
en

t 
of 

the
 

Co
un

cil’
s 

pro
cu

rem
en

t 
pro

ce
du

res
 

to 
tak

e 
ac

co
un

t o
f s

oc
ial

 en
ter

pri
se

s e
tc.
 

 

At 
its

 m
ee

tin
g o

n 3
1 M

ay
 20

10
, th

e 
Co

mm
itte

e r
es

olv
ed

, a
mo

ng
st 

oth
er 

thi
ng

s, 
to 

ins
tru

ct 
off

ice
rs 

wit
hin

 
Co

rpo
rat

e 
Go

ve
rna

nc
e 

to 
co

nti
nu

e 
to 

wo
rk 

on
 th

e 
de

ve
lop

me
nt 

of 
a 

rob
us

t c
orp

ora
te 

po
licy

 o
n 

the
 u

se
 

of 
co

mm
un

ity
 be

ne
fit 

cla
us

es
 w

ith
in 

the
 C

ou
nc

il’s
 p

roc
ure

me
nts

, 
an

d 
tha

t t
he

 p
oli

cy
 b

e 
su

bm
itte

d 
to 

a 
fut

ure
 m

ee
tin

g o
f th

e C
om

mi
tte

e f
or 

ap
pro

va
l. 

Cr
aig

 In
ne

s 
31
.05
.12
 

22
.01

.13
 

Page 583



 
4

No
. 

Mi
nu
te 

Re
fer
en
ce
 

  C
om
mi
tte
e D
ec
isi
on
 

 Up
da
te 
 (n
ew
 up
da
tes
 in
 bo
ld)
 

 
Le
ad
 

Of
fic
er(
s) 

Re
po
rt 
Du
e  

Re
po
rt 

Ex
pe
cte
d 

(if 
kn
ow
n) 

 At 
its

 m
ee

tin
g 

on
 1

3 
Se

pte
mb

er,
 

20
11

, t
he

 C
om

mi
tte

e 
no

ted
 th

at 
a 

rep
ort

 
se

ek
ing

 
ap

pro
va

l 
of 

a 
gu

ida
nc

e 
po

licy
 

on
 

de
live

rin
g 

co
mm

un
ity

 
be

ne
fits

 
thr

ou
gh

 
pro

cu
rem

en
t w

ou
ld 

be
 c

on
sid

ere
d 

by
 

the
 

Co
rpo

rat
e 

Po
licy

 
an

d 
Pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 
Co

mm
itte

e 
on

 
22

 
Se

pte
mb

er,
 

20
11

, 
an

d 
tha

t 
if 

ap
pro

ve
d, 

off
ice

rs 
wo

uld
 re

po
rt 

to 
the

 ne
xt 

me
eti

ng
 of

 th
e 
En

ter
pri

se
, 

Pla
nn

ing
 

an
d 

Inf
ras

tru
ctu

re 
Co

mm
itte

e 
wit

h 
a 

us
er 

frie
nd

ly 
gu

ide
 to

 th
e 

po
licy

 s
pe

cif
ica

lly 
for

 
thi

s s
erv

ice
. 

 Th
e 

Co
rpo

rat
e 

Pr
oc

ure
me

nt 
Un

it 
(“C

PU
”) 

are
 
tak

ing
 
a 

lea
d 

on
 

co
mm

un
ity

 be
ne

fits
 an

d w
ill 

sh
ort

ly 
be

 p
rov

idi
ng

 o
ffic

er 
tra

ini
ng

 o
n 

thi
s 

top
ic.

   C
ate

go
ry 

Ma
na

ge
rs 

are
 no

w 
ali

gn
ed

 t
o 

Se
rvi

ce
s 

an
d 

thi
s 

wil
l 

all
ow

 t
he

m 
to 

pro
vid

e 
a 

mo
re 

tai
lor

ed
 S

erv
ice

 o
n 

iss
ue

s s
uc

h 
as

 
co

mm
un

ity
 b
en

efi
ts.

  I
t is

 th
ere

for
e 

tho
ug

ht 
tha

t th
e C

PU
 w

ill 
be

 ab
le 

to 
ca

ter
 fo

r 
the

 p
rev

iou
sly

 id
en

tifi
ed

 
ne

ed
s 

in 
res

pe
ct 

of 
co

mm
un

ity
 

be
ne

fits
. A

n 
up

da
te 

rep
ort

 o
n 

the
 

Co
un

cil’
s 

us
e 

of 
the

 c
om

mu
nit

y 
be

ne
fit 

cla
us

es
 w

ill 
be

 su
bm

itte
d i

n 
the

 ne
xt 

6-9
 m

on
ths

 to
 en

su
re 

tha
t 

co
mm

un
ity

 be
ne

fit 
ne

ed
s a

re 
be

ing
 

me
t. 

Page 584



 
5

No
. 

Mi
nu
te 

Re
fer
en
ce
 

  C
om
mi
tte
e D
ec
isi
on
 

 Up
da
te 
 (n
ew
 up
da
tes
 in
 bo
ld)
 

 
Le
ad
 

Of
fic
er(
s) 

Re
po
rt 
Du
e  

Re
po
rt 

Ex
pe
cte
d 

(if 
kn
ow
n) 

It 
is 

the
 in

ten
tio

n 
of 

the
 H

ea
d 

of 
Pr

oc
ure

me
nt 

to 
su

bm
it 

a 
rep

ort
 to

 
the

 ne
xt 

EP
&I 

Co
mm

itte
e t

o a
dv

ise
 

of 
rec

en
t 

ten
de

r 
ex

erc
ise

s, 
the

 
ou

tco
me

s o
f w

hic
h w

ill 
be

 kn
ow

n a
t 

tha
t 

tim
e, 

wh
ere

 
it 

ha
s 

be
en

 
po

ss
ibl

e 
to 

int
rod

uc
e 

co
mm

un
ity

 
be

ne
fit 

cla
us

es
.  

 Th
ere
 ar
e a
 nu
mb
er 
of 
ten
de
rs,
 

co
nta
ini
ng
 co
mm
un
ity
 be
ne
fit 

cla
us
es
 sp
ec
ific
all
y r
ela
tin
g t
o 

ap
pr
en
tic
es
hip
 sc
he
me
s o
n 

co
ns
tru
cti
on
 pr
oje
cts
 w
hic
h a
re 

be
ing
 ac
tiv
ely
 as
se
ss
ed
 at
 th
e 

mo
me
nt.
 Th
ere
 is
 al
so
 a 
nu
mb
er 

of 
for
thc
om
ing
 re
qu
ire
me
nts
 

wh
ere
 th
e c
lau
se
s w
ill 
be
 ad
de
d 

an
d O
ffic
ers
 ar
e s
co
pin
g o
ut 
as
 

to 
ho
w 
be
st 
sp
ec
ify
 an
d w
eig
ht 

the
m 
fro
m 
ex
pe
rie
nc
e g
ain
ed
 

fro
m 
the
 in
itia
l te
nd
ers
 to
 en
su
re 

ma
xim
um
 be
ne
fit 
is 
off
ere
d b
y 

int
ere
ste
d p
art
ies
. 

  Th
e C
PU
 ha
d h
op
ed
 to
 ad
vis
e t
he
 

Co
mm
itte
e 
of 
thi
s 
pr
og
res
s 
at 

the
 N
ov
em
be
r 
me
eti
ng
 b
ut 
thi
s 

wi
ll 
no
w 
be
 p
res
en
ted
 t
o 
the
 

Ja
nu
ary
 20
13
 C
om
mi
tte
e 

 

Page 585



 
6

No
. 

Mi
nu
te 

Re
fer
en
ce
 

  C
om
mi
tte
e D
ec
isi
on
 

 Up
da
te 
 (n
ew
 up
da
tes
 in
 bo
ld)
 

 
Le
ad
 

Of
fic
er(
s) 

Re
po
rt 
Du
e  

Re
po
rt 

Ex
pe
cte
d 

(if 
kn
ow
n) 

4. 
     

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

 
En

ter
pri

se
, 

Pla
nn

ing
 an

d 
Inf

ras
tru

ctu
re 

23
.02

.10
 ar

tic
le 

27
 

     Co
un

cil 
Bu

dg
et 

10
.02

.11
 

Ab
erd
ee
n 

We
ste
rn
 
Pe
rip
he
ral
 

Ro
ute
 – 
Pr
og
res
s R
ep
or
t 

 Th
e 

Co
mm

itte
e 

res
olv

ed
 to

 in
str

uc
t 

off
ice

rs 
to 

pro
vid

e a
 fu

rth
er 

rep
ort

 to
 

the
 a

pp
rop

ria
te 

Co
mm

itte
e 

du
rin

g 
the

 p
roc

ure
me

nt 
pro

ce
ss

 p
rov

idi
ng

 
an

 
up

da
ted

 
co

st 
es

tim
ate

 
an

d 
pro

gra
mm

e  
 Ge
ne
ral
 F
un
d 
Re
ve
nu
e 
Bu
dg
et 

20
11
/20
12
 

an
d 

Ind
ica
tiv
e 

20
12
/20
13
 to
 20
15
/20
16
 B
ud
ge
t  

 To
 

ins
tru

ct 
the

 
Dir

ec
tor

 
for

 
En

ter
pri

se
, 

Pla
nn

ing
 

an
d 

Inf
ras

tru
ctu

re 
to 

en
ter

 
int

o 
ne

go
tia

tio
ns

 
wit

h 
the

 
Sc

ott
ish

 
Go

ve
rnm

en
t w

ith
 a

 v
iew

 to
 h

av
ing

 
the

 3
rd 

Do
n 

cro
ss

ing
 d

eli
ve

red
 a

s 
pa

rt 
of 

the
 

Ab
erd

ee
n 

W
es

ter
n 

Pe
rip

he
ral

 R
oa

d S
ch

em
e a

nd
 re

po
rt 

ba
ck

 to
 th

e 
rel

ev
an

t C
om

mi
tte

e 
on

 
the

 pr
og

res
s a

nd
 ou

tco
me

. 

An
 ap

pe
al 

by
 M

r W
alt

on
 ag

ain
st 

the
 

jud
ge

me
nt 

of 
Lo

rd 
Ty

re 
([2

01
1] 

CO
SH

 1
31

) 
sit

tin
g 

in 
the

 O
ute

r 
Ho

us
e o

f th
e C

ou
rt 
of 

Se
ss

ion
 w

as
 

he
ard

 be
for

e L
ord

s C
lar

ke
, B

on
om

y 
an

d P
hil

ip 
sit

tin
g i

n t
he

 In
ne

r H
ou

se
 

of 
the

 C
ou

rt 
of 

Se
ss

ion
 b

etw
ee

n 
13

th
 & 

16
th
 D

ec
em

be
r 2

01
1. 

 
  Th

eir
 

Lo
rds

hip
s 

de
live

red
 

the
ir 

jud
ge

me
nt 

on
 2

9th
 F

eb
rua

ry 
20

12
 

dis
mi

ss
ing

 th
e a

pp
ea

l.  
  Fo

llo
win

g 
the

 
iss

uin
g 

of 
the

 
jud

ge
me

nt,
 th

e 
un

su
cc

es
sfu

l p
art

y 
ha

s 
a 

sta
tut

ory
 r

igh
t 

of 
ap

pe
al 

wit
hin

 4
2 
da

ys
 to

 th
e 
UK

 S
up

rem
e 

Co
urt

 in
 Lo

nd
on

, w
hic

h a
cts

 as
 th

e 
fin

al 
co

urt
 o

f a
pp

ea
l f

or 
all

 U
nit

ed
 

Kin
gd

om
 ci

vil 
ca

se
s. 

 M
r W

alt
on

 on
 

the
 1

2 
Ap

ril 
20

12
 s

ub
mi

tte
d 

an
 

ap
pe

al 
to 

the
 U

K 
Su

pre
me

 C
ou

rt. 
A 

da
te 

for
 a 

he
ari

ng
 ha

s y
et 

to 
be

 se
t. 

 

Ma
rga

ret
 

Bo
ch

el 
 

06
.11

.12
 

Page 586



 
7

No
. 

Mi
nu
te 

Re
fer
en
ce
 

  C
om
mi
tte
e D
ec
isi
on
 

 Up
da
te 
 (n
ew
 up
da
tes
 in
 bo
ld)
 

 
Le
ad
 

Of
fic
er(
s) 

Re
po
rt 
Du
e  

Re
po
rt 

Ex
pe
cte
d 

(if 
kn
ow
n) 

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
 

 
 

An
 ap

pe
al 

by
 M

r W
alt

on
 ag

ain
st 

the
 

jud
ge

me
nt 

of 
Lo

rd 
Ty

re 
([2

01
1] 

CO
SH

 1
31

) 
sit

tin
g 

in 
the

 O
ute

r 
Ho

us
e o

f th
e C

ou
rt 
of 

Se
ss

ion
 w

as
 

he
ard

 be
for

e L
ord

s C
lar

ke
, B

on
om

y 
an

d P
hil

ip 
sit

tin
g i

n t
he

 In
ne

r H
ou

se
 

of 
the

 C
ou

rt o
f S

es
sio

n b
etw

ee
n 

 13
th
 &

 1
6th

 D
ec

em
be

r 2
01

1. 
Th

eir
 

Lo
rds

hip
s d

eli
ve

red
 th

eir
 ju

dg
em

en
t 

on
 2

9th
 F

eb
rua

ry 
20

12
 d

ism
iss

ing
 

the
 ap

pe
al.

   
  

 
A 

fur
the

r 
ap

pe
al 

ag
ain

st 
tha

t 
de

cis
ion

 w
as

 m
ad

e 
to 

the
 U

K  
Su

pre
me

 C
ou

rt 
an

d 
wa

s h
ea

rd 
on

 
9th

 an
d 1

0th
 Ju

ly.
   

 A 
rep
or
t 
is 

on
 
the
 
cu
rre
nt 

ag
en
da
. 

 

Page 587



 
8

No
. 

Mi
nu
te 

Re
fer
en
ce
 

  C
om
mi
tte
e D
ec
isi
on
 

 Up
da
te 
 (n
ew
 up
da
tes
 in
 bo
ld)
 

 
Le
ad
 

Of
fic
er(
s) 

Re
po
rt 
Du
e  

Re
po
rt 

Ex
pe
cte
d 

(if 
kn
ow
n) 

 
 

 
5. 

 E
nte

rpr
ise

, 
Pla

nn
ing

 
an

d 
Inf

ras
tru

ctu
re 

15
.03

.11
 a

rtic
le 

4 

Pa
rki
ng
 

Ch
arg
es
/Em

iss
ion
s-

ba
se
d P
erm

it S
ys
tem

 
Th

e 
Co

mm
itte

e 
res

olv
ed

, a
mo

ng
st 

oth
er 

thi
ng

s, 
in 

rel
ati

on
 

to 
rec

om
me

nd
ati

on
s 

fro
m 

the
 

Co
ntr

oll
ed

 A
rea

s 
Pa

rki
ng

 W
ork

ing
 

Gr
ou

p -
 

(i) 
to 

ag
ree

 t
ha

t 
a 

rev
iew

 o
f 

pa
rki

ng
 

ch
arg

es
 

an
d 

en
titl

em
en

t s
et 

by
 ot

he
r C

ou
nc

il 
se

rvi
ce

s 
be

 u
nd

ert
ak

en
 a

nd
 

rep
ort

ed
 

to 
the

 
En

ter
pri

se
, 

Pla
nn

ing
 

an
d 

Inf
ras

tru
ctu

re 
Co

mm
itte

e 
for

 
co

ns
ide

rat
ion

 
an

d p
os

sib
le 

rev
isio

n; 
(ii)

 
to 

req
ue

st 
off

ice
rs 

to 
su

bm
it 

a 
de

tai
led

 re
po

rt o
n t

he
 po

ss
ibi

lity
 

of 
es

tab
lish

ing
 

a 
cit

y 
wid

e 
em

iss
ion

s-b
as

ed
 

pe
rm

it 
sy

ste
m,

 o
n 

the
 p

rov
iso

 t
ha

t 
su

ch
 

a 
pro

po
sa

l 
wo

uld
 

be
 

rev
en

ue
 

ne
utr

al 
to 

the
 

En
ter

pri
se

, 
pla

nn
ing

 
an

d 
Inf

ras
tru

ctu
re 

Co
mm

itte
e 

at 
its

 
me

eti
ng

 
on

 
13

 
Se

pte
mb

er,
 

20
11

; 
   

An
 up

da
te 

on
 th

es
e a

re 
as

 fo
llo

ws
:- 

(i) 
All

 
oth

er 
rel

ev
an

t 
Se

rvi
ce

s 
wit

hin
 

AC
C 

ha
ve

 
be

en
 

co
nta

cte
d t

o r
eq

ue
st 

de
tai

ls 
of 

the
 

loc
ati

on
s 

wit
hin

 
the

ir 
se

rvi
ce

 w
he

re 
ch

arg
ing

 oc
cu

rs 
an

d 
to 

req
ue

st 
de

tai
ls 

of 
the

 
ch

arg
es

 a
pp

lie
d. 

Of
fic

ers
 a

re 
sti

ll 
aw

ait
ing

 a
 re

sp
on

se
 a

nd
 

the
 re

vie
w 

ma
y 

ret
urn

 to
 th

e 
Co

mm
itte

e 
at 

its
 m

ee
tin

g 
on

 
31

 Ja
nu

ary
, h

ow
ev

er 
it i

s m
ore

 
like

ly 
to 

be
 re

po
rte

d o
n 3

1 M
ay

 
20

12
; 

(ii)
 

In 
rel

ati
on

 to
 re

so
lut

ion
 iii,

 w
ork

 
reg

ard
ing

 
the

 
po

ss
ibi

lity
 

of 
es

tab
lish

ing
 

a 
cit

y 
wid

e 
em

iss
ion

s-b
as

ed
 

pe
rm

it 
sy

ste
m 

is 
on

go
ing

; th
is 

wil
l b

e 
co

ns
ide

red
 a

t 
the

 C
on

tro
lle

d 
Pa

rki
ng

 A
rea

s -
 W

ork
ing

 P
art

y 
on

 
3 

Fe
bru

ary
 

20
12

. 
Th

ere
aft

er,
 th

e p
rop

os
al 

wil
l b

e 
de

ve
lop

ed
 in

 c
on

jun
cti

on
 w

ith
 

the
 

rev
iew

 
of 

20
12

/20
14

 
pa

rki
ng

 
ch

arg
es

 
to 

be
 

un
de

rta
ke

n 
in 

au
tum

n 
20

12
 

an
d 

rep
ort

ed
 to

 C
om

mi
tte

e 
in 

Sp
rin

g 2
01

3. 
 

 Hu
gh

 M
urd

oc
h 

            Ma
rga

ret
 

Bo
ch

el 
   

13
.09
.11
 

              Sp
rin

g 
20

13
 

             
6. 

 E
nte

rpr
ise

, 
Pla

nn
ing

 
an

d 
Inf

ras
tru

ctu
re 

13
.09

.11
 a

rtic
le 

So
uth
 

Ab
erd
ee
n 

Co
as
tal
 

Re
ge
ne
rat
ion
 P
ro
jec
t 
(S
AC
RP
) 
– 

Pr
og
ram

me
 D
ev
elo
pm
en
ts 

 

 
Ge

rry
 Br

ou
gh

 
31
.05
.12
 

 

Page 588



 
9

No
. 

Mi
nu
te 

Re
fer
en
ce
 

  C
om
mi
tte
e D
ec
isi
on
 

 Up
da
te 
 (n
ew
 up
da
tes
 in
 bo
ld)
 

 
Le
ad
 

Of
fic
er(
s) 

Re
po
rt 
Du
e  

Re
po
rt 

Ex
pe
cte
d 

(if 
kn
ow
n) 

24
 

Th
e 

Co
mm

itte
e 

res
olv

ed
, 
am

on
gs

t 
oth

er 
thi

ng
s, 

ag
ree

 t
o 

rec
eiv

e 
a 

rep
ort

 
ba

ck
 

to 
the

 
En

ter
pri

se
, 

Pla
nn

ing
 

an
d 

Inf
ras

tru
ctu

re 
Co

mm
itte

e 
in 

the
 A

pri
l/M

ay
 2

01
2 

cy
cle

, 
lin

kin
g 

co
as

tal
 r

eg
en

era
tio

n 
ini

tia
tiv

es
 

int
o 

the
 

ma
ins

tre
am

 
de

ve
lop

me
nt 

of 
clim

ate
 

ch
an

ge
 

ad
ap

tat
ion

 s
tra

teg
ies

 a
nd

 fl
oo

d 
ris

k 
ma

na
ge

me
nt.

 
 

7. 
 E

nte
rpr

ise
, 

Pla
nn

ing
 

an
d 

Inf
ras

tru
ctu

re 
13

.09
.11

 a
rtic

le 
39

 

Gr
ee
nb
rae
 C
yc
le 
Pr
oje
ct 

 Th
e 

Co
mm

itte
e 

res
olv

ed
, 
am

on
gs

t 
oth

er 
thi

ng
s, 

to 
ins

tru
ct 

off
ice

rs 
to 

rep
ort

 ba
ck

 to
 th

is 
Co

mm
itte

e o
n a

n 
an

nu
al 

ba
sis

 o
n 

pro
gre

ss
/ 

im
pa

ct 
an

d 
int

erm
itte

ntl
y 

as
 

leg
isla

tiv
e 

de
cis

ion
s r

eq
uir

ed
. 

 

Pr
og

res
s 

wil
l b

e 
inc

lud
ed

 in
 t

he
 

Str
ate

gic
 

an
d 

Lo
ca

l 
Tra

ns
po

rt 
Pr

oje
cts

 U
pd

ate
 R

ep
ort

. 
 Su
gg
es
t t
ha
t t
his
 m
ay
 n
ow
 b
e 

co
ns
ide
red
 fo
r r
em
ov
al 
as
 fu
tur
e  

pr
og
res
s 
on
 t
his
 i
tem
 w
ill 
be
 

rec
or
de
d 
in 
the
 S
tra
teg
ic 
an
d 

Lo
ca
l 
Tr
an
sp
or
t 
up
da
te 
rep
or
t 

wh
ich
 is
 n
ow
 o
n 
ev
ery
 c
yc
le 
of 

the
 C
om
mi
tte
e. 

 

Ma
rga

ret
 

Bo
ch

el 
 

 

8. 
 E

nte
rpr

ise
, 

Pla
nn

ing
 

an
d 

Inf
ras

tru
ctu

re 
13

.09
.11

 a
rtic

le 
41

 

Gr
ee
n B
ad
ge
 Sc
he
me
 

 Th
e 

Co
mm

itte
e 

res
olv

ed
 to

 in
str

uc
t 

off
ice

rs 
to 

rev
iew

 th
e p

os
sib

le 
im

pa
ct 

on
 th

e 
Cit

y 
Co

un
cil’

s 
Gr

ee
n 

Ba
dg

e 
sc

he
me

 a
nd

 t
o 

rep
ort

 b
ac

k 
to 

a 
fut

ure
 m

ee
tin

g 
of 

the
 C

om
mi

tte
e 

fol
low

ing
 co

ns
ult

ati
on

 w
ith

 in
ter

es
ted

 
pa

rtie
s. 

 
 

 
Hu

gh
 M

urd
oc

h 
 

31
.01
.12
 

 

9. 
 E

nte
rpr

ise
, 

Pla
nn

ing
 

an
d 
Te
ch
nic
al 

Ad
vic
e 
No
te 

: 
Th
e 

Re
pa
ir 

An
d 

Re
pla
ce
me
nt 

Of
 

Th
e 

Sc
ott

ish
 

Go
ve

rnm
en

t 
ha

ve
 

rec
en

tly
 is

su
ed

 n
ew

 g
uid

an
ce

 o
n 

Ma
rga

ret
 

Bo
ch

el 
31
.05
.12
 

6.1
1.1

2 

Page 589



 
10

 
No
. 

Mi
nu
te 

Re
fer
en
ce
 

  C
om
mi
tte
e D
ec
isi
on
 

 Up
da
te 
 (n
ew
 up
da
tes
 in
 bo
ld)
 

 
Le
ad
 

Of
fic
er(
s) 

Re
po
rt 
Du
e  

Re
po
rt 

Ex
pe
cte
d 

(if 
kn
ow
n) 

Inf
ras

tru
ctu

re 
15

.11
.11

 a
rtic

le 
17

 
Wi
nd
ow
s A
nd
 D
oo
rs 

 Th
e 

Co
mm

itte
e 

res
olv

ed
, a

mo
ng

st 
oth

er 
thi

ng
s, 

to 
ag

ree
 th

at 
fol

low
ing

 
co

mp
let

ion
 

of 
the

 
rel

ev
an

t 
co

ns
ult

ati
on

, 
an

y 
co

mm
en

ts 
rec

eiv
ed

 
an

d 
su

bs
eq

ue
nt 

am
en

dm
en

ts 
to 

the
 d

raf
t 

ad
vic

e 
no

te 
be

 p
res

en
ted

 t
o 

a 
fut

ure
 

me
eti

ng
 of

 th
e 
En

ter
pri

se
, P

lan
nin

g 
an

d I
nfr

as
tru

ctu
re 

Co
mm

itte
e. 

 

the
 h

ist
ori

c 
en

vir
on

me
nt 

an
d 

on
 

pe
rm

itte
d 

de
ve

lop
me

nt 
rig

hts
. T

his
 

me
an

s t
ha

t th
e d

oc
um

en
t w

ill 
ha

ve
 

to 
be

 re
-w

ritt
en

. A
 re

po
rt 

wil
l b

e 
su

bm
itte

d i
n N

ov
em

be
r 2

01
2. 

 Th
ere
 is
 a 
rep
or
t in
clu
de
d o
n t
his
 

ag
en
da
. 

10
.  

En
ter

pri
se

, 
Pla

nn
ing

 
an

d 
Inf

ras
tru

ctu
re 

15
.11

.11
 a

rtic
le 

18
 

Su
pp
lem
en
tar
y 
Gu
ida
nc
e 
: W

ind
 

Tu
rb
ine
 D
ev
elo
pm
en
t In
 A
be
rd
ee
n 

Ci
ty 

 Th
e 

Co
mm

itte
e 

res
olv

ed
, a

mo
ng

st 
oth

er 
thi

ng
s, 

to 
ag

ree
 th

at 
fol

low
ing

 
co

mp
let

ion
 

of 
the

 
rel

ev
an

t 
co

ns
ult

ati
on

, 
an

y 
co

mm
en

ts 
rec

eiv
ed

 
an

d 
su

bs
eq

ue
nt 

am
en

dm
en

ts 
to 

the
 

dra
ft 

Su
pp

lem
en

tar
y 

Gu
ida

nc
e 

be
 

pre
se

nte
d t

o a
 fu

tur
e m

ee
tin

g o
f th

e 
En

ter
pri

se
, 

Pla
nn

ing
 

an
d 

Inf
ras

tru
ctu

re 
Co

mm
itte

e. 
 

Of
fic

ers
 h

av
e 

ha
d 

to 
ca

rry
 o

ut 
a 

Str
ate

gic
 

En
vir

on
me

nta
l 

As
se

ss
me

nt 
on

 th
is 

Su
pp

lem
en

tar
y 

Gu
ida

nc
e 

wh
ich

 
is 

alm
os

t 
co

mp
let

e. 
Ho

we
ve

r, 
SN

H 
ha

ve
 

ind
ica

ted
 t

ha
t 

we
 m

ay
 a

lso
 b

e 
req

uir
ed

 t
o 

ca
rry

 o
ut 

a 
Ha

bit
ats

 
Re

gu
lat

ion
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
(ba

sic
all

y 
to 

se
e 
if t

he
 gu

ida
nc

e 
wo

uld
 a
ffe

ct 
the

 R
ive

r 
De

e 
Sp

ec
ial

 A
rea

 o
f 

Co
ns

erv
ati

on
). 

W
e 

wo
uld

 i
nte

nd
 

rep
ort

ing
 b

ac
k 

aft
er 

we
 d

o 
the

se
 

an
d 

ca
rry

 
ou

t 
the

 
ne

ce
ss

ary
 

co
ns

ult
ati

on
. 

 Th
ere
 is
 a 
rep
or
t in
clu
de
d o
n t
his
 

ag
en
da
. 

 

Ma
rga

ret
 

Bo
ch

el 
31
.05
.12
 

6.1
1.1

2 

11
.  

En
ter

pri
se

, 
Pla

nn
ing

 
an

d 
Inf

ras
tru

ctu
re 

31
.01

.12
 a

rtic
le 

42
 

Au
dit
 
Sc
otl
an
d 

Re
po
rt 

On
 

Tr
an
sp
or
t F
or
 H
ea
lth
 A
nd
 S
oc
ial
 

Ca
re 

– 
Se
lf 
As
se
ss
me
nt 

An
d 

Ac
tio
n P
lan

 
 

At 
thi

s s
tag

e t
he

re 
is 

sti
ll o

ne
 H

ea
lth

 
Tra

ns
po

rt 
Ac

tio
n 

Pla
n 

(H
TA

P)
 

pa
rtn

er 
org

an
isa

tio
n 

to 
go

 th
rou

gh
 

the
ir 

se
lf 

as
se

ss
me

nt.
 

Th
is 

is 
ex

pe
cte

d 
im

mi
ne

ntl
y 

fol
low

ing
 

Ma
rga

ret
 

Bo
ch

el 
31
.05
.12
 

22
.01

.13
 

Page 590



 
11

 
No
. 

Mi
nu
te 

Re
fer
en
ce
 

  C
om
mi
tte
e D
ec
isi
on
 

 Up
da
te 
 (n
ew
 up
da
tes
 in
 bo
ld)
 

 
Le
ad
 

Of
fic
er(
s) 

Re
po
rt 
Du
e  

Re
po
rt 

Ex
pe
cte
d 

(if 
kn
ow
n) 

Th
e 

Co
mm

itte
e 

res
olv

ed
, a

mo
ng

st 
oth

er 
thi

ng
s, 

to 
req

ue
st 

off
ice

rs 
to 

rep
ort

 b
ac

k 
to 

the
 C

om
mi

tte
e 

at 
its

 
me

eti
ng

 o
n 

31
 M

ay
, 2

01
2, 

wit
h 

a 
de

tai
led

 a
cti

on
 p

lan
 se

ttin
g 

ou
t h

ow
 

the
 

Co
un

cil 
an

d 
pa

rtn
er 

org
an

isa
tio

ns
 w

ou
ld 

tac
kle

 th
e a

rea
s 

for
 

de
ve

lop
me

nt 
fol

low
ing

 
se

lf 
as

se
ss

me
nt 

an
d 

ho
w 

the
 C

ou
nc

il 
wo

uld
 m

ee
t th

e r
ec

om
me

nd
ati

on
s a

s 
se

t o
ut 

by
 th

e A
ud

it S
co

tla
nd

 re
po

rt. 

wh
ich

 a
ll s

elf
 a

ss
es

sm
en

ts 
wil

l b
e 

co
lla

ted
 a

nd
 a

n 
ac

tio
n 

pla
n 

wil
l b

e 
dra

win
g 

up
 a

s 
a 

co
lle

cti
ve

 w
ith

 a
ll 

HT
AP

 p
art

ne
rs.

 A
s 

we
 a

re 
no

t a
t 

thi
s s

tag
e y

et,
 of

fic
ers

 ar
e n

ot 
ab

le 
to 

pro
vid

e t
he

 re
qu

es
ted

 ac
tio

n p
lan

 
rep

ort
 to

 C
om

mi
tte

e a
t th

is 
cy

cle
.  

 W
e 

are
 n

ot 
ab

le 
to 

rep
ort

 t
he

 
req

ue
ste

d a
cti

on
 pl

an
 fo

r th
is 

cy
cle

. 
W
e 

ha
ve

 s
till 

no
t s

ee
n 

the
 s

elf
-

as
se

ss
me

nt 
fro

m 
Sc

ott
ish

 
Am

bu
lan

ce
 S

erv
ice

 a
nd

 th
ere

for
e 

are
 

sti
ll 

un
ab

le 
to 

pre
pa

re 
a 

co
lle

cti
ve

 A
cti

on
 P

lan
 w

ith
 o

ur 
pa

rtn
er 

org
an

isa
tio

ns
. 

It 
is 

im
po

rta
nt 

tha
t 

the
re 

is 
a 

joi
nt 

ap
pro

ac
h 

to 
the

 
ac

tio
n 

pla
n 

the
ref

ore
 w

e 
ca

n 
no

t 
do

 t
his

 in
 

iso
lat

ion
.  

 Al
l 
pa
rtn
er 

or
ga
nis
ati
on
s 
Se
lf-

As
se
ss
me
nts
 

ha
ve
 

be
en
 

co
mp
let
ed
 a
nd
 t
he
 H
TA
P 
are
 

cro
ss
 

ref
ere
nc
ing
 

all
 

as
se
ss
me
nts
, i
n 
or
de
r 
tha
t 
the
 

are
as
 
ne
ed
ing
 
im
pr
ov
em
en
t 

ac
ro
ss
 

the
 

ag
en
cie
s 

are
 

ide
nti
fie
d 
an
d 
a 
ful
l a
cti
on
 p
lan
 

ca
n b
e p
ro
du
ce
d. 
It i
s a
nti
cip
ate
d 

tha
t t
his
 c
an
 b
e 
rep
or
ted
 to
 th
e 

Ja
nu
ary
 C
om
mi
tte
e. 

 

Page 591



 
12

 
No
. 

Mi
nu
te 

Re
fer
en
ce
 

  C
om
mi
tte
e D
ec
isi
on
 

 Up
da
te 
 (n
ew
 up
da
tes
 in
 bo
ld)
 

 
Le
ad
 

Of
fic
er(
s) 

Re
po
rt 
Du
e  

Re
po
rt 

Ex
pe
cte
d 

(if 
kn
ow
n) 

12
.  

En
ter

pri
se

, 
Pla

nn
ing

 
an

d 
Inf

ras
tru

ctu
re 

31
.05

.12
 a

rtic
le 

6 

Fo
ur
 T
raf
fic
 O
rd
ers
 – 
Ou
tco
me
 O
f 

Ma
in 

St
atu
tor
y 

Ad
ve
rti
se
me
nt 

St
ag
e –
 N
ew
hil
ls 
Av
en
ue
 

 Th
e 
Co

mm
itte

e 
res

olv
ed

 to
 ap

pro
ve

 
the

 re
co

mm
en

da
tio

ns
 in

 th
e 

rep
ort

 
wit

h t
he

 ex
ce

pti
on

 of
 (b

)(ii
) in

 re
lat

ion
 

to 
Ne

wh
ills

 
Av

en
ue

, 
wh

ere
 

the
 

Co
mm

itte
e 

req
ue

ste
d 

tha
t 

the
 

pro
po

sa
l 

for
 N

ew
hil

ls 
Av

en
ue

 b
e 

rem
ov

ed
 f

rom
 t

he
 A

be
rde

en
 C

ity
 

Co
un

cil 
(C

ity
 

W
ide

 
Tra

ffic
 

Ma
na

ge
me

nt 
Me

as
ure

s) 
(N

o 2
), a

nd
 

tha
t o

ffic
ers

 ex
plo

re 
the

 po
ss

ibi
lity

 of
 

pro
vid

ing
 fi

ve
, r

ath
er 

tha
n 

fou
r, 

ca
r 

pa
rki

ng
 s

pa
ce

s 
at 

the
 b

en
d 

of 
Ne

wh
ills

 A
ve

nu
e, 

an
d 
re-

co
mm

en
ce

 
the

 tra
ffic

 re
gu

lat
ion

 or
de

r p
roc

es
s. 

 

Th
is 

sc
he

me
 is

 ab
ou

t to
 go

 ou
t to

 a 
co

mb
ine

d 
Ini

tia
l 

Sta
tut

ory
 

an
d 

pu
bli

c a
dv

ert
 w

he
re 

the
 re

su
lts

 w
ill 

be
 

rep
ort

ed
 

to 
the

 
Ja

nu
ary

 
Co

mm
itte

e 

Hu
gh

 M
urd

oc
h  

   Ja
ne

 
Ma

cE
ac

hra
n 

6.1
1.1

2 
22
.01
.13
 

13
.  

En
ter

pri
se

, 
Pla

nn
ing

 
an

d 
Inf

ras
tru

ctu
re 

31
.05

.12
 ar

tic
le 

 

On
-st
ree
t 
Pa
rki
ng
 
Ch
arg
es
 
at 

Fo
res
ter
hil
l a
nd
 G
art
hd
ee
 

 Th
e 

Co
mm

itte
e 

res
olv

ed
, a

mo
ng

st 
oth

er 
thi

ng
s, 

in 
rel

ati
on

 
to 

rec
om

me
nd

ati
on

 
(d)

 
fro

m 
the

 
Co

ntr
oll

ed
 A

rea
s 

Pa
rki

ng
 W

ork
ing

 
Gr

ou
p, 

(A
rtic

le 
6 

of 
the

 m
inu

te 
of 

5 
Ap

ril)
 t

o 
ag

ree
 t

o 
po

stp
on

e 
the

 
inc

rea
se

 
of 

on
-st

ree
t 

pa
rki

ng
 

ch
arg

es
 in

 b
oth

 th
e 

Fo
res

ter
hil

l a
nd

 
Ga

rth
de

e 
Zo

ne
s 

un
til 

a 
rev

iew
 o

f 
NH

S 
Gr

am
pia

n’s
 

ne
w 

pa
rki

ng
 

sc
he

me
 h

ad
 b

ee
n 

un
de

rta
ke

n 
an

d 
tha

t 
off

ice
rs 

rep
ort

 b
ac

k 
to 

the
 

Co
mm

itte
e a

t th
is 

tim
e. 

 

A 
rep
or
t is
 on
 th
e c
ur
ren
t a
ge
nd
a 

in 
rel
ati
on
 to
 th
e G
art
hd
ee
 ar
ea
. 

Hu
gh

 M
urd

oc
h 

 
22

.01
.13

 
 

Page 592



 
13

 
No
. 

Mi
nu
te 

Re
fer
en
ce
 

  C
om
mi
tte
e D
ec
isi
on
 

 Up
da
te 
 (n
ew
 up
da
tes
 in
 bo
ld)
 

 
Le
ad
 

Of
fic
er(
s) 

Re
po
rt 
Du
e  

Re
po
rt 

Ex
pe
cte
d 

(if 
kn
ow
n) 

14
.  

En
ter

pri
se

, 
Pla

nn
ing

 
an

d 
Inf

ras
tru

ctu
re 

31
.05

.12
 a

rtic
le 

28
 

As
hle
y 
La
ne
, C
or
nh
ill 
Dr
ive
/A
sh
-

Hi
ll 
Dr
ive
, 
Cr
aig
sh
aw
 C
res
ce
nt,
 

Mi
ds
toc
ke
t 
Vie
w,
 N
or
th 
De
es
ide
 

Ro
ad
 

(La
ne
 

At
 

22
9/2
31
), 

Pe
ter
cu
lte
r, 
No
rth
 D
ee
sid
e 
Ro
ad
, 

Pe
ter
cu
lte
r, 
No
rth
 D
ee
sid
e 
Ro
ad
, 

Pe
ter
cu
lte
r, 

Ol
d 

Sk
en
e 
Ro
ad
, 

Ki
ng
sw
ell
s, 
Os
ca
r R
oa
d, 
Pr
ov
os
t 

Gr
ah
am
 
Av
en
ue
, 
Ro
ya
l 
Co
ur
t, 

Qu
ee
n’s
 R
oa
d, 
Su
mm
erh
ill 
Ro
ad
, 

Vir
gin
ia 

St
ree
t, 

Ph
arm

ac
y/R
es
ide
nti
al 

De
ve
lop
me
nt 

At
 

Le
ari
g, 

Ki
ng
sw
oo
d 
Dr
ive
, K
ing
sw
ell
s A
nd
 

We
llh
ea
ds
 D
riv
e, 
Dy
ce
 

 Th
e C

om
mi

tte
e r

es
olv

ed
 to

:- 
(i) 

ap
pro

ve
 

the
 

pro
po

sa
ls,

 
in 

pri
nc

ipl
e, 

wit
h 

the
 e

xc
ep

tio
n 

tha
t 

off
ice

rs 
pro

mo
te 

the
 

pro
po

se
d 

‘at
 a

ny
 ti

me
’ w

ait
ing

 
res

tric
tio

ns
 o
n 

the
 w

es
t s

ide
 of

 
No

rth
 D

ee
sid

e 
Ro

ad
 (L

an
e 

at 
22

9/3
31

), 
Pe

ter
cu

lte
r, 

as
 w

ell
 

as
 th

e 
ea

st 
sid

e, 
an

d 
ins

tru
ct 

off
ice

rs 
to 

co
mm

en
ce

 
the

 
ne

ce
ss

ary
 le

ga
l p

roc
ed

ure
s 

of 
pre

lim
ina

ry 
sta

tut
ory

 
co

ns
ult

ati
on

 
for

 
the

 
tra

ffic
 

reg
ula

tio
n 

ord
ers

 re
qu

ire
d, 

an
d 

if n
o s

ign
ific

an
t o

bje
cti

on
s w

ere
 

rec
eiv

ed
, t
he

n t
o 
pro

gre
ss

 w
ith

 
the

 p
ub

lic 
ad

ve
rtis

em
en

t 
an

d 
rep

ort
 th

e 
res

ult
s 

to 
a 

fut
ure

 
me

eti
ng

 
of 

the
 

En
ter

pri
se

, 

Th
es

e 
sc

he
me

s h
av

e 
go

ne
 o

ut 
for

 
ini

tia
l s

tat
uto

ry 
co

ns
ult

ati
on

 a
nd

 n
o 

ob
jec

tio
ns

 w
ere

 re
ce

ive
d 

the
ref

ore
 

the
se

 w
ill 

no
w 

pro
ce

ed
 to

 p
ub

lic 
ad

ve
rt 

an
d 

ret
urn

 
to 

a 
fut

ure
 

co
mm

itte
e. 

Hu
gh

 M
urd

oc
h 

  Ja
ne

 
Ma

cE
ac

hra
n 

6.1
1.1

2 
 

Page 593



 
14

 
No
. 

Mi
nu
te 

Re
fer
en
ce
 

  C
om
mi
tte
e D
ec
isi
on
 

 Up
da
te 
 (n
ew
 up
da
tes
 in
 bo
ld)
 

 
Le
ad
 

Of
fic
er(
s) 

Re
po
rt 
Du
e  

Re
po
rt 

Ex
pe
cte
d 

(if 
kn
ow
n) 

Pla
nn

ing
 

an
d 

Inf
ras

tru
ctu

re 
Co

mm
itte

e; 
 an

d 
(ii)

 
ins

tru
ct 

off
ice

rs 
to 

co
mm

en
ce

 
the

 
co

mb
ine

d 
sta

tut
ory

 
co

ns
ult

ati
on

 fo
r t

he
 tr

aff
ic 

ord
er 

for
 t

he
 l

ist
 o

f 
Blu

e 
Ba

dg
e 

pa
rki

ng
 s

pa
ce

s 
an

d 
to 

rep
ort

 
ba

ck
 to

 a 
fut

ure
 m

ee
tin

g o
f th

e 
En

ter
pri

se
, 

Pla
nn

ing
 

an
d 

Inf
ras

tru
ctu

re 
Co

mm
itte

e. 
 

15
.  

En
ter

pri
se

, 
Pla

nn
ing

 
an

d 
Inf

ras
tru

ctu
re 

31
.05

.12
 a

rtic
le 

31
 

St
rat
eg
ic 

An
d 

Lo
ca
l 

Tr
an
sp
or
tat
ion
 
Pr
oje
cts
 
Up
da
te 

Re
po
rt 
 

 Th
e 

Co
mm

itte
e 

res
olv

ed
, a

mo
ng

st 
oth

er 
thi

ng
s, 

to:
- 

(i) 
ins

tru
ct 

the
 

Dir
ec

tor
 

of 
En

ter
pri

se
, 

Pla
nn

ing
 

an
d 

Inf
ras

tru
ctu

re 
to 

bri
ng

 a
 fu

rth
er 

rep
ort

 to
 th

e E
nte

rpr
ise

, P
lan

nin
g 

an
d 

Inf
ras

tru
ctu

re 
Co

mm
itte

e 
rep

ort
ing

 on
 an

y p
ote

nti
al 

co
nfl

ict
 

be
tw

ee
n 

the
 

De
ve

lop
me

nt 
Fra

me
wo

rk 
an

d 
the

 p
ref

err
ed

 
op

tio
n 

for
 a

 p
erm

an
en

t s
ite

 fo
r 

the
 Br

idg
e o

f D
on

 Pa
rk 

an
d R

ide
;   

(ii)
 a

gre
e 

tha
t 

in 
the

 i
nte

rim
 t

he
 

cu
rre

nt 
sit

e 
co

nti
nu

e 
as

 
a 

tem
po

rar
y 

Pa
rk 

an
d 

Rid
e 

loc
ati

on
;  a

nd
  

(iii
) r

eq
ue

st 
tha

t 
the

 
Dir

ec
tor

 
of 

En
ter

pri
se

, 
Pla

nn
ing

 
an

d 
Inf

ras
tru

ctu
re 

fur
the

r d
isc

us
s 

all
 

po
ss

ibl
e 

sit
e 

op
po

rtu
nit

ies
 a

nd
 

Th
ere
 
is 

an
 
up
da
te 

rep
or
t 

inc
lud
ed
 on
 th
is 
ag
en
da
. 

Ma
rga

ret
 

Bo
ch

el 
6.1

1.1
2 

 

Page 594



 
15

 
No
. 

Mi
nu
te 

Re
fer
en
ce
 

  C
om
mi
tte
e D
ec
isi
on
 

 Up
da
te 
 (n
ew
 up
da
tes
 in
 bo
ld)
 

 
Le
ad
 

Of
fic
er(
s) 

Re
po
rt 
Du
e  

Re
po
rt 

Ex
pe
cte
d 

(if 
kn
ow
n) 

pro
vid

e a
 de

tai
led

 re
po

rt b
ac

k o
n 

all
 op

tio
ns

 to
 a 

fut
ure

 m
ee

tin
g o

f 
the

 
En

ter
pri

se
, 

Pla
nn

ing
 

an
d 

Inf
ras

tru
ctu

re 
Co

mm
itte

e. 
 

16
.  

Ho
us

ing
 

an
d 

En
vir

on
me

nt 
22

.05
.12

 a
rtic

le 
10

 

Ho
us
ing
 C
ar 
Pa
rki
ng
 – 
Pe
rm
it A
nd
 

En
for
ce
me
nt 
Co
ns
ult
ati
on
 R
es
ult
s 

 Th
e 

Ho
us

ing
 

an
d 

En
vir

on
me

nt 
Co

mm
itte

e 
ag

ree
d, 

am
on

gs
t 

oth
er 

thi
ng

s, 
to 

de
fer

 re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
(d)

 
pe

nd
ing

 
a 

co
mm

itte
e 

rep
ort

 
on

 
pa

rki
ng

 a
nd

 a
 b

roa
de

r 
rep

ort
 o

n 
pa

rki
ng

 p
oli

cy
 w

hic
h 

wil
l in

co
rpo

rat
e 

the
 H

ou
sin

g 
Re

ve
nu

e 
Ac

co
un

t a
nd

 
pa

rki
ng

 th
at 

the
 E

nte
rpr

ise
, P

lan
nin

g 
an

d 
Inf

ras
tru

ctu
re 

Se
rvi

ce
 

is 
res

po
ns

ibl
e f

or.
 

 

 
Hu

gh
 M

urd
oc

h  
  Do

na
ld 

Ur
qu

ha
rt 

 

6.1
1.1

2 
22

.01
.13

 

17
.  

En
ter

pri
se

, 
Pla

nn
ing

 
an

d 
Inf

ras
tru

ctu
re 

11
.09

.12
 a

rtic
le 

16
 

           

Ci
ty 
Ev
en
ts 
Pr
og
ram

me
 20
13
/14
 

 Th
e C

om
mi

tte
e a

gre
ed

:- 
(1)

 th
at 

off
ice

rs 
rep

ort
 b

ac
k 

to 
the

 
Co

mm
itte

e 
in 

ea
rly

 2
01

3 
pro

vid
ing

 
inf

orm
ati

on
 in

 re
lat

ion
 to

 th
e 
Fe

sti
ve

 
Co

mm
un

itie
s 

Gr
an

t, 
sp

ec
ific

all
y 

ide
nti

fyi
ng

 th
e 

be
ne

fits
 o

f t
he

 g
ran

t, 
ou

tlin
ing

 
pre

vio
us

 
an

d 
pre

se
nt 

up
tak

e 
fig

ure
s 

an
d 

ge
og

rap
hic

al 
sp

rea
d, 

an
d a

dv
isin

g 
wh

at 
the

 gr
an

t 
mo

nie
s 

ha
d 

be
en

 
sp

en
t 

on
 

pre
vio

us
ly;

 an
d  

(2)
 

tha
t 

off
ice

rs 
rev

iew
 

the
 

arr
an

ge
me

nts
 fo

r t
he

 S
an

ta 
Pa

rad
e 

an
d 

Ch
ris

tm
as

 
Lig

hts
 

Sw
itc

h-o
n 

 
G 

Br
ou

gh
 

22
.01

.13
 

 

Page 595



 
16

 
No
. 

Mi
nu
te 

Re
fer
en
ce
 

  C
om
mi
tte
e D
ec
isi
on
 

 Up
da
te 
 (n
ew
 up
da
tes
 in
 bo
ld)
 

 
Le
ad
 

Of
fic
er(
s) 

Re
po
rt 
Du
e  

Re
po
rt 

Ex
pe
cte
d 

(if 
kn
ow
n) 

     Fin
an

ce
 

an
d 

Re
so

urc
es

 
04

.10
.12

 
(ar

tic
le 

22
) 

 

ev
en

t, s
pe

cif
ica

lly 
wit

h a
n o

pti
on

 th
at 

the
y 

be
 h

eld
 j

oin
tly

, 
an

d 
rep

ort
 

 ba
ck

 to
 th

e C
om

mi
tte

e i
n e

arl
y 2

01
3 

in 
thi

s r
eg

ard
. 

 No
te 

tha
t o

ffic
ers

 w
ill 
su

bm
it a

 re
po

rt 
to 

the
 E

nte
rpr

ise
, 

Pla
nn

ing
 a

nd
 

Inf
ras

tru
ctu

re 
Co

mm
itte

e p
rio

r t
o t

he
 

en
d o

f F
eb

rua
ry 

20
13

, a
ss

es
sin

g t
he

 
po

ten
tia

l fo
r a

 20
13

 H
og

ma
na

y e
ve

nt 
an

d 
req

ue
sti

ng
 

ap
pro

va
l 

of 
an

 
ap

pro
pri

ate
 bu

dg
et 

to 
de

live
r a

 sa
fe,

 
inc

lus
ive

 an
d e

njo
ya

ble
 fa

mi
ly 

ev
en

t 
in 

20
13

. 
 

18
.  

En
ter

pri
se

, 
Pla

nn
ing

 
an

d 
Inf

ras
tru

ctu
re 

11
.09

.12
 a

rtic
le 

20
 

Ma
na
ge
me
nt 
of 
Ev
en
ts 
in 
Pa
rks
 

an
d O
pe
n S
pa
ce
s 

 Th
e 

Co
mm

itte
e 

ag
ree

d 
to 

req
ue

st 
tha

t 
off

ice
rs 

rep
ort

 b
ac

k 
to 

the
 

ap
pro

pri
ate

 C
om

mi
tte

e o
n h

ow
 fu

tur
e 

ev
en

ts 
of 

the
 ty

pe
 d

es
cri

be
d 

are
 to

 
be

 m
an

ag
ed

 in
 Pa

rk 
an

d R
ide

 si
tes

.
 
 

 

 
G 

Br
ou

gh
 

22
.01

.13
 

 

19
.  

En
ter

pri
se

, 
Pla

nn
ing

 
an

d 
Inf

ras
tru

ctu
re 

11
.09

.12
 a

rtic
le 

21
  

Vis
it A
be
rd
ee
n B
us
ine
ss
 Pl
an
 

 Th
e 

Co
mm

itte
e 

ag
ree

d 
to 

req
ue

st 
off

ice
rs 

to 
su

bm
it a

 re
po

rt t
o t

he
 ne

xt 
me

eti
ng

 of
 th

e C
om

mi
tte

e, 
co

nfi
rm

ing
 

the
 su

pp
ort

 ne
ed

ed
 fr
om

 th
e C

ou
nc

il 
to 

en
ab

le 
Vis

it 
Ab

erd
ee

n 
to 

un
de

rta
ke

 th
e 

ac
tiv

itie
s, 

an
d 

de
live

r 
the

 ou
tpu

ts,
 se

t o
ut 

in 
the

ir b
us

ine
ss

 
pla

n. 
 

A 
rep
or
t 
is 
inc
lud
ed
 o
n 
the
 

ag
en
da
 fo
r c
on
sid
era
tio
n. 

G 
Br

ou
gh

 
06

.11
.12

 
06

.11
.12

 

Page 596



 
17

 
No
. 

Mi
nu
te 

Re
fer
en
ce
 

  C
om
mi
tte
e D
ec
isi
on
 

 Up
da
te 
 (n
ew
 up
da
tes
 in
 bo
ld)
 

 
Le
ad
 

Of
fic
er(
s) 

Re
po
rt 
Du
e  

Re
po
rt 

Ex
pe
cte
d 

(if 
kn
ow
n) 

20
.  

En
ter

pri
se

, 
Pla

nn
ing

 
an

d 
Inf

ras
tru

ctu
re 

11
.09

.12
 a

rtic
le 

23
 

Ab
erd
ee
n 
Th
e 
Sm
art
er 

Ci
ty:
 A
 

St
rat
eg
y f
or
 20
20

 
 Th

e 
Co

mm
itte

e 
ag

ree
d 

to 
ins

tru
ct 

off
ice

rs 
to 

rep
ort

 
ba

ck
 

to 
the

 
Co

mm
itte

e 
in 

Au
gu

st 
20

13
 w

ith
 th

e 
str

ate
gy

 an
d i

mp
lem

en
tat

ion
 pl

an
 fo

r 
ap

pro
va

l 
 

 
M.

 Bo
ch

el 
Au

gu
st 

20
13

 
 

21
.  

En
ter

pri
se

, 
Pla

nn
ing

 
an

d 
Inf

ras
tru

ctu
re 

11
.09

.12
 a

rtic
le 

24
  

We
st 

Hu
xte
rst
on
e, 

Ki
ng
sw
ell
s 

Ma
ste
rp
lan
  

 Th
e C

om
mi

tte
e a

gre
ed

 :- 
(1)

 t
o 

de
lay

 c
on

sid
era

tio
n 

of 
the

 
rep

ort
 u

nti
l t

he
 n

ex
t m

ee
tin

g 
of 

the
 

Co
mm

itte
e, 

du
rin

g 
wh

ich
 

tim
e 

off
ice

rs 
to 

co
ns

ult
 w

ith
 K

ing
sw

ell
s 

Co
mm

un
ity

 
Co

un
cil 

on
 

the
 

Ma
ste

rpl
an

; a
nd

 
(2)

 
tha

t o
ffic

ers
 b

e 
ins

tru
cte

d 
to 

rep
ort

 b
ac

k 
to 

the
 n

ex
t m

ee
tin

g 
of 

the
 

Co
mm

itte
e 

on
 

the
 

ma
ste

rpl
an

nin
g 

pro
ce

ss
 a

nd
 to

 a
lso

 
rec

eiv
e a

 pr
es

en
tat

ion
 in

 th
is 

reg
ard

 
 

Th
ere
 is
 a 
rep
or
t in
clu
de
d o
n t
his
 

ag
en
da
. 

M.
 Bo

ch
el 

06
.11

.12
 

 

22
.  

En
ter

pri
se

, 
Pla

nn
ing

 
an

d 
Inf

ras
tru

ctu
re 

11
.09

.12
 a

rtic
le 

25
 

Va
rio
us
 
Sm
all
 
Sc
ale
 
Tr
aff
ic 

Ma
na
ge
me
nt 

an
d 
De
ve
lop
me
nt 

As
so
cia
ted
 

Pr
op
os
als
 

(N
ew
 

Wo
rks
) 

  Th
e C

om
mi

tte
e a

gre
ed

:- 
(1)

 to
 in

str
uc

t th
e a

pp
rop

ria
te 

off
ice

rs 
to 

co
mm

en
ce

 th
e 

ne
ce

ss
ary

 le
ga

l 
pro

ce
du

res
 o

f p
rel

im
ina

ry 
sta

tut
ory

 
co

ns
ult

ati
on

 fo
r t

he
 tr

aff
ic 

reg
ula

tio
n 

 
H 

Mu
rdo

ch
 

Da
te 

to 
be

 
co

nfi
rm

ed
. 

 

Page 597



 
18

 
No
. 

Mi
nu
te 

Re
fer
en
ce
 

  C
om
mi
tte
e D
ec
isi
on
 

 Up
da
te 
 (n
ew
 up
da
tes
 in
 bo
ld)
 

 
Le
ad
 

Of
fic
er(
s) 

Re
po
rt 
Du
e  

Re
po
rt 

Ex
pe
cte
d 

(if 
kn
ow
n) 

ord
ers

 re
qu

ire
d 

as
 d

es
cri

be
d 

in 
the

 
rep

ort
. If

 no
 si

gn
ific

an
t o

bje
cti

on
s a

re 
rec

eiv
ed

, 
the

n 
pro

gre
ss

 w
ith

 t
he

 
pu

bli
c 

ad
ve

rtis
em

en
t a

nd
 re

po
rt 

the
 

res
ult

s 
to 

a 
fut

ure
 m

ee
tin

g 
of 

thi
s 

Co
mm

itte
e; 

(2)
 to

 in
str

uc
t th

e a
pp

rop
ria

te 
off

ice
rs 

to 
co

mm
en

ce
 th

e c
om

bin
ed

 st
atu

tor
y 

co
ns

ult
ati

on
 fo

r t
he

 tr
aff

ic 
reg

ula
tio

n 
ord

er 
for

 t
he

 l
ist

 o
f 

Blu
e 

Ba
dg

e 
pa

rki
ng

 sp
ac

es
 an

d r
ep

ort
 ba

ck
 to

 a 
fut

ure
 m

ee
tin

g o
f th

is 
Co

mm
itte

e. 
(3)

 i
n 

ter
ms

 o
f 

the
 p

rop
os

al 
for

 
Fo

res
ter

hil
l R

oa
d, 

to 
no

te 
in 

rel
ati

on
 

to 
Co

un
cill

or 
Co

rm
ie’

s 
req

ue
st 

tha
t 

the
 

sp
ee

d 
lim

it 
ex

ten
sio

n 
be

 
mo

nit
ore

d, 
tha

t 
as

 
pa

rt 
of 

the
 

sta
tut

ory
 

co
ns

ult
ati

on
 

pro
ce

ss
 

off
ice

rs 
wo

uld
 re

ce
ive

 fe
ed

ba
ck

 fro
m 

pa
rtn

ers
 in

clu
din

g 
Gr

am
pia

n 
Po

lice
 

an
d 

NH
S 

Gr
am

pia
n, 

an
d 

wo
uld

 
rep

ort
 

ba
ck

 
to 

the
 

Co
mm

itte
e 

fol
low

ing
 th

e c
on

su
lta

tio
n p

eri
od

. 
 

23
.  

En
ter

pri
se

, 
Pla

nn
ing

 
an

d 
Inf

ras
tru

ctu
re 

11
.09

.12
 a

rtic
le 

26
 

(1)
 T
he
 A
be
rd
ee
n 
Ci
ty 
Co
un
cil
 

(A
96
/O
ld 

Me
ldr
um
 

Ro
ad
/M
ug
iem
os
s 

Ro
ad
, 

Ab
erd
ee
n) 

(S
ha
red
 

Pe
de
str
ian
/C
yc
le 

Pa
th)
 

(A
me
nd
me
nt)
 O
rd
er 
20
12
; a
nd
 

(2)
 

Th
e 
Ab
erd
ee
n 
Ci
ty 
Co
un
cil
 

(D
ub
for
d/G
ree
nb
rae
 

Ar
ea
) 

(V
ari
ou
s 

Fo
otw
ay
s)(
Re
de
ter
mi
na
tio
n 

of 
Me
an
s o
f E
xe
rci
se
 of
 P
ub
lic
 R
igh
t 

 
H 

Mu
rdo

ch
 

Se
pte

mb
er 

20
14

 
 

Page 598



 
19

 
No
. 

Mi
nu
te 

Re
fer
en
ce
 

  C
om
mi
tte
e D
ec
isi
on
 

 Up
da
te 
 (n
ew
 up
da
tes
 in
 bo
ld)
 

 
Le
ad
 

Of
fic
er(
s) 

Re
po
rt 
Du
e  

Re
po
rt 

Ex
pe
cte
d 

(if 
kn
ow
n) 

of 
Pa
ss
ag
e) 
Or
de
r 2
01
2. 

 Th
e 

Co
mm

itte
e 

ag
ree

d 
tha

t o
ffic

ers
 

be
 in

str
uc

ted
 to

 re
po

rt 
ba

ck
 in

 tw
o 

ye
ars

 t
im

e 
on

 h
ow

 t
he

se
 T

raf
fic

 
Or

de
rs 

ha
ve

 pr
og

res
se

d. 
 

24
.  

En
ter

pri
se

, 
Pla

nn
ing

 
an

d 
Inf

ras
tru

ctu
re 

11
.09

.12
 a

rtic
le 

29
  

Ex
ten
sio
n 

of 
Pa
y 
by
 
Ph
on
e 

Pa
rki
ng
 

 Th
e 

Co
mm

itte
e 

ag
ree

d 
to 

ins
tru

ct 
off

ice
rs 

to 
rep

ort
 

ba
ck

 
on

 
the

 
fea

sib
ility

 o
f p

ay
ing

 p
ark

ing
 ch

arg
es

 
by

 
cre

dit
/de

bit
 

ca
rds

 
at 

pa
rki

ng
 

ma
ch

ine
s 

 

 
H.

 M
urd

oc
h 

22
.01

.13
 

 

25
.  

En
ter

pri
se

, 
Pla

nn
ing

 
an

d 
Inf

ras
tru

ctu
re 

11
.09

.12
 a

rtic
le 

32
 

Pa
lm
ers
ton
 
– 
Re
vis
ed
 
Tr
aff
ic 

Ma
na
ge
me
nt 

an
d 

Co
ntr
oll
ed
 

Pa
rki
ng
 Zo
ne
 Pr
op
os
als
 

 Th
e C

om
mi

tte
e a

gre
ed

:- 
(1)

 to
 in

str
uc

t o
ffic

ers
 to

 pr
og

res
s t

he
 

pre
lim

ina
ry 

de
sig

n 
of 

the
 

tra
ffic

 
ma

na
ge

me
nt 

pro
po

sa
ls 

an
d 

Co
ntr

oll
ed

 Pa
rki

ng
 Zo

ne
; 

(2)
 to

 in
str

uc
t o

ffic
ers

 to
 e

sta
bli

sh
 

co
st 

es
tim

ate
s 

for
 

the
 

tra
ffic

 
ma

na
ge

me
nt 

pro
po

sa
ls 

an
d 

Co
ntr

oll
ed

 
Pa

rki
ng

 
Zo

ne
 

an
d 

de
ve

lop
 a

 b
us

ine
ss

 c
as

e 
for

 t
he

 
Co

ntr
oll

ed
 Pa

rki
ng

 Zo
ne

; a
nd

 
(3)

 to
 in

str
uc

t th
e a

pp
rop

ria
te 

off
ice

rs 
to 

rep
ort

 ba
ck

 on
 th

e f
ind

ing
s o

f th
e 

ab
ov

e 
to 

a 
fut

ure
 

Co
mm

itte
e 

me
eti

ng
. 

 
H.

 M
urd

oc
h 

Da
te 

to 
be

 
co

nfi
rm

ed
 

 

Page 599



 
20

 
No
. 

Mi
nu
te 

Re
fer
en
ce
 

  C
om
mi
tte
e D
ec
isi
on
 

 Up
da
te 
 (n
ew
 up
da
tes
 in
 bo
ld)
 

 
Le
ad
 

Of
fic
er(
s) 

Re
po
rt 
Du
e  

Re
po
rt 

Ex
pe
cte
d 

(if 
kn
ow
n) 

 

26
.  

En
ter

pri
se

, 
Pla

nn
ing

 
an

d 
Inf

ras
tru

ctu
re 

11
.09

.12
 a

rtic
le 

33
 

Pe
rm
it M
isu
se
 Po
lic
y 

 Th
e 

Co
mm

itte
e 

ag
ree

d 
to 

ins
tru

ct 
off

ice
rs 

to 
rep

ort
 

ba
ck

 
to 

the
 

Co
mm

itte
e 

in 
No

ve
mb

er 
on

 t
he

 
lev

els
 o

f 
mi

su
se

 a
nd

 w
ith

 d
raf

t 
po

lici
es

, 
pro

ce
du

res
, 

ac
tio

ns
 a

nd
 

an
y 

fin
an

cia
l 

im
pli

ca
tio

ns
 

ari
sin

g 
fro

m 
res

ou
rce

s 
to 

ad
dre

ss
 

the
 

mi
su

se
 o

f p
ark

ing
 p

erm
its

 a
nd

 B
lue

 
Ba

dg
es

. 
 

 
H 

Mu
rdo

ch
 

06
.11

.12
 

 

27
.  

En
ter

pri
se

, 
Pla

nn
ing

 
an

d 
Inf

ras
tru

ctu
re 

11
.09

.12
 a

rtic
le 

38
 

Bu
s S
he
lte
r A
dv
ert
isi
ng
 C
on
tra
ct 

 Th
e C

om
mi

tte
e a

gre
ed

:- 
(1)

 t
o 

ins
tru

ct 
off

ice
rs 

to 
en

ter
 

ne
go

tia
tio

ns
 w

ith
 C

lea
r C

ha
nn

el 
wit

h 
the

 a
im

 o
f a

gre
ein

g 
a 
red

uc
ed

 te
rm

 
for

 
the

 
Bu

s 
Sh

elt
er 

Ad
ve

rtis
ing

 
Co

ntr
ac

t; a
nd

 
 (2

) to
 in

str
uc

t o
ffic

ers
 to

 re
po

rt 
ba

ck
 

on
 

the
 

ou
tco

me
 

of 
the

 
ab

ov
e 

ne
go

tia
tio

ns
 a

nd
 w

ith
 a

 p
lan

 f
or 

ret
en

de
rin

g 
the

 
Co

ntr
ac

t 
an

d 
Va

ria
tio

n 

Le
tte
r t
o C
lea
r C
ha
nn
el 
ha
s b
ee
n 

dr
aft
ed
 a
nd
 i
s 
wi
th 
the
 L
eg
al 

tea
m 
for
 pr
og
res
sin
g. 

M 
Bo

ch
el 

22
.01

.13
 

 

28
.  

En
ter

pri
se

, 
Pla

nn
ing

 
an

d 
Inf

ras
tru

ctu
re 

11
.09

.12
 a

rtic
le 

4  

Sp
ee
d L
im
it R
ev
iew
 

 Th
e C

om
mi

tte
e a

gre
ed

:- 
(1)

 to
 In

str
uc

t th
e a

pp
rop

ria
te 

off
ice

rs 
to 

co
mm

en
ce

 th
e 

ne
ce

ss
ary

 le
ga

l 
pro

ce
du

res
 o

f  
pre

lim
ina

ry 
sta

tut
ory

 
co

ns
ult

ati
on

 fo
r t

he
 tr

aff
ic 

reg
ula

tio
n 

ord
ers

 re
qu

ire
d 

as
 d

es
cri

be
d 

in 
the

 

 
Hu

gh
 M

urd
oc

h 
22

.01
.13

 
 

Page 600



 
21

 
No
. 

Mi
nu
te 

Re
fer
en
ce
 

  C
om
mi
tte
e D
ec
isi
on
 

 Up
da
te 
 (n
ew
 up
da
tes
 in
 bo
ld)
 

 
Le
ad
 

Of
fic
er(
s) 

Re
po
rt 
Du
e  

Re
po
rt 

Ex
pe
cte
d 

(if 
kn
ow
n) 

rep
ort

. If
 no

 si
gn

ific
an

t o
bje

cti
on

s a
re 

rec
eiv

ed
, th

en
 pr

og
res

s  
wit

h 
the

 
pu

bli
c a

dv
ert

ise
me

nt 
an

d 
rep

ort
 th

e 
res

ult
s 

to 
a 

fut
ure

 m
ee

tin
g 

of 
thi

s 
Co

mm
itte

e; 
 

(2)
 to

 re
po

rt 
ba

ck
 o

n 
the

 fe
as

ibi
lity

 
an

d c
os

ts 
for

 co
nv

ert
ing

 ex
ist

ing
 20

’s 
Ple

nty
 

Zo
ne

 
sp

ee
d 

lim
its

 
to 

ma
nd

ato
ry 

20
mp

h s
pe

ed
 lim

its
; a

nd
 

(3)
 to

 re
po

rt 
ba

ck
 o

n 
red

uc
ing

 th
e 

sp
ee

d 
lim

it 
on

 (
1) 

the
 A

94
4 

cit
y 

bo
un

da
ry 

at 
W
es

thi
ll 

to 
Ha

zle
he

ad
 

fro
m 

50
mp

h t
o 4

0m
ph

, in
clu

din
g t

he
 

po
ss

ibl
e 

int
rod

uc
tio

n 
of 

fix
ed

 s
pe

ed
 

ca
me

ras
 f

or 
en

for
ce

me
nt 

an
d 

all
 

co
sti

ng
s 

as
so

cia
ted

 
wit

h 
the

 
pro

po
sa

l, 
co

ns
ult

ing
 

wit
h 

Ab
erd

ee
ns

hir
e 

Co
un

cil 
in 

the
 

pro
du

cti
on

 o
f 

thi
s 

rep
ort

; 
an

d 
(2)

 
Sk

en
e 

Ro
ad

 fr
om

 5
0m

ph
 to

 4
0m

ph
 

as
 a 

res
ult

 of
 th

e W
es

t H
ux

ter
sto

ne
, 

Kin
gs

we
lls 

de
ve

lop
me

nt,
 in

clu
din

g a
ll 

as
so

cia
ted

 co
sti

ng
s. 

29
.  

En
ter

pri
se

, 
Pla

nn
ing

 
an

d 
Inf

ras
tru

ctu
re 

11
.09

.12
 a

rtic
le 

13
 

Tr
aff
ic 
Ma
na
ge
me
nt 

 Th
e 

Co
mm

itte
e 

ag
ree

d 
tha

t o
ffic

ers
 

rep
ort

 ba
ck

 to
 th

e C
om

mi
tte

e o
n t

he
 

fea
sib

ility
 o

f 
uti

lisi
ng

 th
e 

pro
jec

ted
 

 un
de

rsp
en

d 
wit

hin
 

the
 

rev
en

ue
 

bu
dg

et 
in 

20
12

/13
 

for
 

roa
d, 

pa
ve

me
nt 

an
d s

tre
et 

lig
hti

ng
 re

pa
irs

. 
 

 
Hu

gh
 M

urd
oc

h 
22

.01
.13

 
 

 

Page 601



Page 602

This page is intentionally left blank



EN
TE

RP
RI

SE
, P

LA
NN

IN
G 

AN
D 

IN
FR

AS
TR

UC
TU

RE
 

 

MO
TIO

NS
 LI

ST
 - 1

1 S
EP

TE
MB

ER
 20

12
  

 

No
. 

Mo
tio

n 
Da

te 
of 

Co
un

cil
 

Me
eti

ng
 

Co
mm

itte
e M

oti
on

 re
fer

red
 to

 / 
 da

te/
 de

cis
ion

 of
 C

om
mi

tte
e 

Ac
tio

n t
ak

en
 / 

Pr
op

os
ed

 F
utu

re 
Ac

tio
n 

Re
sp

on
sib

le 
He

ad
(s)

  o
f 

Se
rvi

ce
 

Du
e D

ate
 

Is au
tho

rit
y 

so
ug

ht 
to 

rem
ov

e 
mo

tio
n 

fro
m 

lis
t? 

1. 
 
Mo

tio
n 

by
 
Co
un
cill
or 

Yu
ill 

 “Th
at 

Ab
erd

ee
n 

Cit
y 

Co
un
cil 

ag
ree

s 
to 

ins
tru
ct 

off
ice
rs 

to 
pre

pa
re 
a r
ep
ort
 on

 bo
th 

the
 

fea
sib
ility

 
of 

de
ve
lop
ing
, 

in 
pa
rtn
ers

hip
 

wit
h 

Ab
erd

ee
ns
hir
e 

Co
un
cil 

an
d 
Pe
rth
 a
nd
 K

inr
os
s 

Co
un
cil,
 a
 lo
ng
 d
ist
an
ce
 

foo
tpa

th 
– 

Th
e 

Ro
ya
l 

De
es
ide
 a
nd
 P
ert
hs
hir
e 

W
ay
 –

 f
rom

 F
itti
e 

to 
Pe
rth
 v
ia 

De
es
ide
 a
nd
 

wa
ys
 
in 

wh
ich
 
thi
s 

pro
jec
t m

igh
t b
e f
un
de
d.”
 27

.04
.11

 
En
ter
pri
se
, 
Pla

nn
ing
 a

nd
 

Inf
ras

tru
ctu
re 
13
.09

.11
 

 Am
on
gs
t, 
oth

er 
thi
ng
s, 

to 
req

ue
st 

off
ice
rs 

to 
pa
rtic
ipa
te 

in 
the

 R
oy
al 

De
es
ide
, 

An
gu
s 

an
d 

Pe
rth
sh
ire
 W

ay
 S

tee
rin
g 

Gr
ou
p 
wh
ich
 w
as
 a
lre
ad
y 

dis
cu
ss
ing
 

the
 

es
tab

lish
me

nt 
of 

the
 

“P
ict
ish
 W

ay
”, 

an
d 

tha
t 

off
ice
rs 
rep

ort
 b
ac
k 
to 
the

 
ne
xt 

me
eti
ng
 

of 
the

 
En
ter
pri
se
, 
Pla

nn
ing
 a

nd
 

Inf
ras

tru
ctu
re 

Co
mm

itte
e 

reg
ard

ing
 th
e 
ter
ms

 o
f t
he
 

mo
tio
n, 

an
d 
in 

pa
rtic
ula
r 

de
tai
lin
g 

the
 o

uts
tan

din
g 

as
pe
cts
 

req
uir
ed
 

to 
es
tab

lish
 a
nd
 s
ign
po
st 
the

 
pro

po
se
d “
Pic

tis
h W

ay
”, a

s 
we
ll a
s t
he
 fin

an
cia
l c
os
t o
f 

ac
hie
vin
g t
his
. 

   

At 
its
 
me

eti
ng
 
on
 
31
 

Ja
nu
ary

 
20
12
, 

the
 

Co
mm

itte
e r
es
olv
ed
 to
:- 

(i) 
ins
tru
ct 

off
ice
rs 

to 
mo

nit
or 

de
ve
lop
me

nts
 

on
 th

e 
Pic

tis
h 
W
ay
 b
y 

pa
rtn
ers

 
an
d 

att
en
d 

Ste
eri
ng
 G
rou

p m
ee
tin
gs
 

(so
 f
ar 

he
ld 

in 
Fo
rfa
r) 

wh
ere

 
res

ou
rce

s 
all
ow
ed
;  a

nd
 

(ii)
 in
str
uc
t o
ffic
ers

 to
 re
po
rt 

ba
ck
 to

 th
e 
En
ter
pri
se
, 

Pla
nn
ing
 

an
d 

Inf
ras

tru
ctu
re 
Co
mm

itte
e 

aft
er 
the

 su
mm

er 
rec

es
s 

on
 t
he
 f
ind
ing
s 

of 
a 

rep
ort
 

tha
t 

An
gu
s 

Co
un
cil 

int
en
de
d 

to 
co
mm

iss
ion
 

int
o 

the
 

de
ve
lop
me

nt 
of 

the
 

rou
te.
 

 Re
co
mm

en
da
tio
n 
(b)
 o
f t
he
 

rep
ort
 E

PI/
12
/03

0 
to 

the
 

31
st 

Ja
nu
ary

 m
ee
tin
g 
wa
s 

tha
t o

ffic
ers

 re
po
rt 
ba
ck
 to

 
thi
s 

Co
mm

itte
e 

on
 
the

 
fin
din
gs
 of
 a 
fea

sib
ility

 st
ud
y 

co
mm

iss
ion
ed
 
by
 
An
gu
s 

Co
un
cil.
  A

 fin
ali
se
d c

op
y o

f 
tha

t 
stu
dy
 
is 

no
t 

ye
t 

He
ad
 of
 

Pla
nn
ing
 an

d 
Su
sta

ina
ble
 

De
ve
lop
me

nt 
 

31
.05

.12
 

 No
w 
du
e 

06
.11

.12
 

No
 

Agenda Item 11.2

Page 603



 
2

No
. 

Mo
tio

n 
Da

te 
of 

Co
un

cil
 

Me
eti

ng
 

Co
mm

itte
e M

oti
on

 re
fer

red
 to

 / 
 da

te/
 de

cis
ion

 of
 C

om
mi

tte
e 

Ac
tio

n t
ak

en
 / 

Pr
op

os
ed

 F
utu

re 
Ac

tio
n 

Re
sp

on
sib

le 
He

ad
(s)

  o
f 

Se
rvi

ce
 

Du
e D

ate
 

Is au
tho

rit
y 

so
ug

ht 
to 

rem
ov

e 
mo

tio
n 

fro
m 

lis
t? 

av
ail
ab
le 

ho
we
ve
r, 

an
d 

a 
me

eti
ng
 
of 

the
 
Ste

eri
ng
 

Gr
ou
p 

ma
de
 
up
 
of 

the
 

va
rio
us
 a
uth

ori
tie
s i
nv
olv
ed
, 

to 
dis
cu
ss
 th
e 
fin
din
gs
 a
nd
 

ag
ree

 a
 w
ay
 fo
rw
ard

, is
 ye

t 
to 
tak

e p
lac
e. 
 It 
is 
the

ref
ore

 
pro

po
se
d 
tha

t a
 re

po
rt 
wil
l 

be
 p

res
en
ted

 t
o 

the
 6

th 
No
ve
mb

er 
me

eti
ng
. 

 
2. 

 
Mo

tio
n 

by
 
Co
un
cill
or 

Yu
ill 

 “Th
at,
 gi
ve
n t
he
 on

go
ing
 

dif
fic
ult
ies
 
ca
us
ed
 
by
 

HG
Vs
 u

sin
g 

Br
oo
mh

ill 
Ro
ad
 as

 a 
thr
ou
gh
 ro
ute

, 
Co
un
cil 

ins
tru
cts
 of
fic
ers

 
to 

rep
ort
 

to 
the

 
ap
pro

pri
ate

 
co
mm

itte
e 

on
 th
e i
ntr
od
uc
tio
n o

f a
n 

‘ex
ce
pt 

for
 

ac
ce
ss
’ 

we
igh
t 

or 
wid

th 
res

tric
tio
n o

n s
om

e o
r a
ll 

of 
Br
oo
mh

ill 
Ro
ad
 

be
tw
ee
n 
Ho
lbu
rn 

Str
ee
t 

an
d 

So
uth

 
An
de
rso

n 
Dr
ive
.”  

 

17
.08

.11
 

En
ter
pri
se
, 
Pla

nn
ing
 a

nd
 

Inf
ras

tru
ctu
re 
13
.09

.11
 

 To
 
req

ue
st 

off
ice
rs 

to 
rep

ort
 o
n 
the

 te
rm
s o

f t
he
 

mo
tio
n 
to 
a f
utu

re 
me

eti
ng
 

of 
the

 E
nte

rpr
ise
, P

lan
nin
g 

an
d 

Inf
ras

tru
ctu

re 
Co
mm

itte
e. 

 

At 
its
 
me

eti
ng
 
on
 
31
 

Ja
nu
ary

 
20
12
, 

the
 

Co
mm

itte
e 

res
olv
ed
 

to 
req

ue
st 

off
ice
rs 

to 
ex
plo
re 

oth
er 

op
tio
ns
 a
va
ila
ble
, n
ot 

ex
clu
din
g t
he
 in
tro
du
cti
on
 of
 

an
 “e
xc
ep
t fo

r a
cc
es
s” 
wid

th 
an
d/o

r w
eig
ht 
res

tric
tio
n, 
to 

ad
dre

ss
 t
he
 c

on
ce
rns

 o
f 

res
ide
nts

 
on
 

Br
oo
mh

ill 
Ro
ad
, a
nd
 to
 re
po
rt 
ba
ck
 to
 

a 
fut
ure

 m
ee
tin
g 

of 
the

 
En
ter
pri
se
, 

Pla
nn
ing
 
an
d 

Inf
ras

tru
ctu
re 
Co
mm

itte
e o

n 
the

se
 op

tio
ns
, a
s w

ell
 as

 th
e 

im
pli
ca
tio
ns
 

of 
the

 
int
rod

uc
tio
n o

f e
ac
h. 

 At 
its
 m

ee
tin
g 
on
 3
1 
Ma

y 
20
12
, 

the
 

Co
mm

itte
e 

res
olv
ed
 to
:- 

(a)
 a

gre
e 

tha
t, 

giv
en
 t
he
 

str
ate

gic
 im

po
rta
nc
e 
of 

He
ad
 of
 As

se
t 

Ma
na
ge
me

nt 
an
d O

pe
rat
ion
s 

31
.5.
12
 

No
  

Page 604



 
3

No
. 

Mo
tio

n 
Da

te 
of 

Co
un

cil
 

Me
eti

ng
 

Co
mm

itte
e M

oti
on

 re
fer

red
 to

 / 
 da

te/
 de

cis
ion

 of
 C

om
mi

tte
e 

Ac
tio

n t
ak

en
 / 

Pr
op

os
ed

 F
utu

re 
Ac

tio
n 

Re
sp

on
sib

le 
He

ad
(s)

  o
f 

Se
rvi

ce
 

Du
e D

ate
 

Is au
tho

rit
y 

so
ug

ht 
to 

rem
ov

e 
mo

tio
n 

fro
m 

lis
t? 

Br
oo
mh

ill 
Ro
ad
 w

ith
in 

the
 r
oa
d 
ne
tw
ork

 a
nd
 

the
 

pro
po
rtio

na
tel
y 

sm
all
 
pe
rce

nta
ge
 
of 

HG
Vs
 th

at 
we
re 

us
ing
 

Br
oo
mh

ill 
Ro
ad
 a

s 
a 

thr
ou
gh
 

rou
te,
 

res
tric
tin
g 

LG
Vs
/H
GV

s 
alo
ng
 B

roo
mh

ill 
Ro
ad
 

wo
uld
 

no
t 

be
 

ap
pro

pri
ate

;   
(b)
 a

gre
e t
ha
t n
o a

cti
on
 be

 
tak

en
 at
 th
is 
tim
e; 
an
d 

(c)
 a

nd
 to

 re
qu
es
t o

ffic
ers

 
to 

un
de
rta
ke
 
fur
the

r 
sp
ee
d, 
vo
lum

e 
 an

d 
pa
rki
ng
 

su
rve

ys
 

on
 

Br
oo
mh

ill 
Ro
ad
 

fol
low

ing
 

the
 

im
ple
me

nta
tio
n 

of 
the

 
ne
w 
pu
ffin

 cr
os
sin
g a

nd
 

rep
ort
 
ba
ck
 
to 

the
 

Co
mm

itte
e 

wit
h 

thi
s 

inf
orm

ati
on
. 

Page 605



 
4

No
. 

Mo
tio

n 
Da

te 
of 

Co
un

cil
 

Me
eti

ng
 

Co
mm

itte
e M

oti
on

 re
fer

red
 to

 / 
 da

te/
 de

cis
ion

 of
 C

om
mi

tte
e 

Ac
tio

n t
ak

en
 / 

Pr
op

os
ed

 F
utu

re 
Ac

tio
n 

Re
sp

on
sib

le 
He

ad
(s)

  o
f 

Se
rvi

ce
 

Du
e D

ate
 

Is au
tho

rit
y 

so
ug

ht 
to 

rem
ov

e 
mo

tio
n 

fro
m 

lis
t? 

3. 
 
No
tic
e o

f M
oti
on
 by
 

Co
un
cill
or 
To
wn
so
n  

 “C
ou
nc
il a
gre

es
 to
 

de
ve
lop
 a 
yo
uth

 
em

plo
ym
en
t s
tra
teg

y f
or 

Ab
erd

ee
n i
n c

on
su
lta
tio
n 

wit
h r
ele
va
nt 
pu
bli
c a

nd
 

pri
va
te 
org

an
isa
tio
ns
.” 

  

13
.06

.12
   

 
En
ter
pri
se
, 
Pla

nn
ing
 a

nd
 

Inf
ras

tru
ctu
re 
11
.09

.12
 

 To
 
req

ue
st 

off
ice
rs 

to 
su
bm

it 
a 

rep
ort
 o

n 
the

 
ter
ms

 o
f t
he
 m

oti
on
 to

 a
 

fut
ure

 
me

eti
ng
 
of 

the
 

En
ter
pri
se
, 
Pla

nn
ing
 a

nd
 

Inf
ras

tru
ctu
re 
Co
mm

itte
e 

Of
fic

ers
 a

re 
sti

ll 
wo

rki
ng

 
on

 
thi

s. 
A 

pr
eli

mi
na

ry 
rep

or
t w

ill 
be

 su
bm

itte
d t

o 
Co

mm
itte

e 
ou

tlin
ing

 t
he

 
sc

ale
 o

f 
the

 i
ss

ue
 a

nd
 

so
me

 
po

ss
ibl

e 
ac

tio
ns

 
tha

t 
wi

ll 
req

uir
e 

fur
the

r 
as

se
ss

me
nt 

as
 pa

rt 
of 

an
y 

str
ate

gy
 

de
ve

lop
me

nt 
pr

oc
es

s 

Ec
on
om

ic 
& 

Bu
sin
es
s 

De
ve
lop
me

nt 
 

06
.1

1.
12

 
No
 

4. 
 
No
tic
e o

f M
oti
on
 by
 

Co
un
cill
or 
Ma

lon
e  

 “To
 in
str
uc
t th

e D
ire
cto
r 

of 
En
ter
pri
se
, P
lan
nin
g 

an
d I
nfr
as
tru
ctu

re 
to 

su
pp
ort
 th
e r
eq
ue
st 
by
 

the
 In
ter
na
tio
na
l S
ch
oo
l 

of 
Ab
erd

ee
n a

nd
 in
sta

ll a
 

sa
fe 
pe
de
str
ian
 cr
os
sin
g 

sim
ila
r to

 ot
he
r c
ros

sin
gs
 

on
 N
ort
h D

ee
sid
e R

oa
d 

at 
the

 en
tra
nc
e o

f th
e 

Sc
ho
ol.
  A
t p
res

en
t th

ere
 

is 
no
 sa
fe 
cro

ss
ing
 an

d 
pu
pil
s a
nd
 co
mm

un
ity
 

me
mb

ers
 m
us
t n
eg
oti
ate

 
a v
ery

 bu
sy
 ro
ad
.” 

13
.06

.12
   

En
ter
pri
se
, 
Pla

nn
ing
 a

nd
 

Inf
ras

tru
ctu
re 
11
.09

.12
 

 Th
e 
Co
mm

itte
e 
ag
ree

d 
to 

de
fer
 c
on
sid
era

tio
n 
of 

thi
s 

ite
m 
un
til 
the

 ne
xt 
me

eti
ng
. 

 
As
se
t 

Ma
na
ge
me

nt 
& 

Op
era

tio
ns
 

 
No
 

Page 606



 
5

No
. 

Mo
tio

n 
Da

te 
of 

Co
un

cil
 

Me
eti

ng
 

Co
mm

itte
e M

oti
on

 re
fer

red
 to

 / 
 da

te/
 de

cis
ion

 of
 C

om
mi

tte
e 

Ac
tio

n t
ak

en
 / 

Pr
op

os
ed

 F
utu

re 
Ac

tio
n 

Re
sp

on
sib

le 
He

ad
(s)

  o
f 

Se
rvi

ce
 

Du
e D

ate
 

Is au
tho

rit
y 

so
ug

ht 
to 

rem
ov

e 
mo

tio
n 

fro
m 

lis
t? 

5. 
 
No
tic
e o

f M
oti
on
 by
 

Co
un
cill
or 
Je
nn
ife
r 

Ste
wa
rt  

 "C
ou
nc
il in

str
uc
ts 

off
ice
rs 
to 
rep

ort
 on

 th
e 

fea
sib
ility

 an
d 

im
pli
ca
tio
ns
 of
 

rem
ov
ing
/en

din
g o

n 
str
ee
t S
un
da
y p
ark

ing
 

ch
arg

es
" 

 

22
.08

.12
   

En
ter
pri
se
, 
Pla

nn
ing
 a

nd
 

Inf
ras

tru
ctu
re 
11
.09

.12
 

 To
 
req

ue
st 

off
ice
rs 

to 
su
bm

it 
a 

rep
ort
 o

n 
the

 
ter
ms

 o
f t
he
 m

oti
on
 to

 a
 

fut
ure

 
me

eti
ng
 
of 

the
 

En
ter
pri
se
, 
Pla

nn
ing
 a

nd
 

Inf
ras

tru
ctu
re 
Co
mm

itte
e 

 
As
se
t 

Ma
na
ge
me

nt 
& 

Op
era

tio
ns
 

06
.1

1.
12

 
No
 

6. 
 
No
tic
e o

f M
oti
on
 by
 

Co
un
cill
or 
Yu
ill  

 “Th
at 
thi
s C

ou
nc
il a
gre

e 
to 
ins
tru
ct 
off
ice
rs 
to 

rep
ort
 to
 th
e a

pp
rop

ria
te 

co
mm

itte
e o

n t
he
 

fea
sib
ility

 of
 pr
ov
idi
ng
 

loc
al 
co
mm

un
itie
s w

ith
 

the
 m
ate

ria
ls 
an
d 

eq
uip
me

nt 
ne
ce
ss
ary

 to
 

un
de
rta
ke
 sn
ow
 cl
ea
rin
g 

an
d g

ritt
ing
 an

d t
ha
t th

is 
rep

ort
 sh
ou
ld 
se
ek
 to
 

inc
lud
e i
nfo

rm
ati
on
 

ab
ou
t s
uc
h s

ch
em

es
 

op
era

tin
g e

lse
wh
ere

 in
 

Sc
otl
an
d a

nd
 th
e U

K.”
 

 

22
.08

.12
   

En
ter
pri
se
, 
Pla

nn
ing
 a

nd
 

Inf
ras

tru
ctu
re 
11
.09

.12
 

 To
 
req

ue
st 

off
ice
rs 

to 
su
bm

it 
a 

rep
ort
 o

n 
the

 
ter
ms

 o
f t
he
 m

oti
on
 to

 a
 

fut
ure

 
me

eti
ng
 
of 

the
 

En
ter
pri
se
, 
Pla

nn
ing
 a

nd
 

Inf
ras

tru
ctu
re 
Co
mm

itte
e 

 
As
se
t 

Ma
na
ge
me

nt 
& 

Op
era

tio
ns
 

06
.1

1.
12

 
No
 

Page 607



 
6

No
. 

Mo
tio

n 
Da

te 
of 

Co
un

cil
 

Me
eti

ng
 

Co
mm

itte
e M

oti
on

 re
fer

red
 to

 / 
 da

te/
 de

cis
ion

 of
 C

om
mi

tte
e 

Ac
tio

n t
ak

en
 / 

Pr
op

os
ed

 F
utu

re 
Ac

tio
n 

Re
sp

on
sib

le 
He

ad
(s)

  o
f 

Se
rvi

ce
 

Du
e D

ate
 

Is au
tho

rit
y 

so
ug

ht 
to 

rem
ov

e 
mo

tio
n 

fro
m 

lis
t? 

7. 
 
No
tic
e o

f M
oti
on
 by
 

Co
un
cill
ors

 Yu
ill, 

De
lan
ey
 an

d M
alo
ne
 

 “Th
at 
thi
s C

ou
nc
il 

ag
ree

s t
o w

rite
 to
 th
e 

Sc
ott
ish
 G
ov
ern

me
nt 

an
d A

be
rde

en
’s 
MS

Ps
 

ca
llin
g f
or 
a c

ha
ng
e i
n 

the
 re
gu
lat
ory

 re
gim

e f
or 

bu
s o
pe
rat
ors

 pr
ov
idi
ng
 

sc
he
du
led
 pu

bli
c 

se
rvi
ce
s t
o i
ntr
od
uc
e a

 
‘pu
bli
c s
erv

ice
 ob

lig
ati
on
’ 

wh
ich
 w
ou
ld 
req

uir
e a

ny
 

bu
s o
pe
rat
or 
pro

vid
ing
 

mo
re 
tha

n 5
0%

 of
 th
e 

bu
s s
erv

ice
s i
n a

 
pa
rtic
ula
r lo

ca
l a
uth

ori
ty 

are
a t
o p

rov
ide
 a 
ba
sic
 

lev
el 
of 
bu
s s
erv

ice
 

(in
clu
din
g i
n e

ve
nin
gs
 

an
d a

t w
ee
ke
nd
s) 
to 

co
mm

un
itie
s a

cro
ss
 th
at 

loc
al 
au
tho

rity
 ar
ea
.” 

22
.08

.12
   

En
ter
pri
se
, 
Pla

nn
ing
 a

nd
 

Inf
ras

tru
ctu
re 
11
.09

.12
 

 To
 
req

ue
st 

off
ice
rs 

to 
su
bm

it 
a 

rep
ort
 o

n 
the

 
ter
ms

 o
f t
he
 m

oti
on
 to

 a
 

fut
ure

 
me

eti
ng
 
of 

the
 

En
ter
pri
se
, 
Pla

nn
ing
 a

nd
 

Inf
ras

tru
ctu
re 
Co
mm

itte
e 

 
Pla

nn
ing
 

& 
Su
sta

ina
ble
 

De
ve
lop
me

nt 
06

.1
1.

12
 

No
 

8. 
 
No
tic
e o

f M
oti
on
 by
 

Co
un
cill
or 
Yu
ill 

 “Th
at 
thi
s C

ou
nc
il:-
 

1. 
Ex
pre

ss
es
 

co
nc
ern

 a
t 
the

 i
mp

ac
t 

the
 

wit
hd
raw

al 
of 

ev
en
ing
 b
us
 s
erv

ice
s 
to 

Air
yh
all
 
wil
l 
ha
ve
 
on
 22

.08
.12

   
En
ter
pri
se
, 
Pla

nn
ing
 a

nd
 

Inf
ras

tru
ctu
re 
11
.09

.12
 

 To
 
req

ue
st 

off
ice
rs 

to 
su
bm

it 
a 

rep
ort
 o

n 
the

 
ter
ms

 o
f t
he
 m

oti
on
 to

 a
 

fut
ure

 
me

eti
ng
 
of 

the
 

En
ter
pri
se
, 
Pla

nn
ing
 a

nd
 

Inf
ras

tru
ctu
re 
Co
mm

itte
e 

 
Pla

nn
ing
 

& 
Su
sta

ina
ble
 

De
ve
lop
me

nt 
06

.1
1.

12
 

No
 

Page 608



 
7

No
. 

Mo
tio

n 
Da

te 
of 

Co
un

cil
 

Me
eti

ng
 

Co
mm

itte
e M

oti
on

 re
fer

red
 to

 / 
 da

te/
 de

cis
ion

 of
 C

om
mi

tte
e 

Ac
tio

n t
ak

en
 / 

Pr
op

os
ed

 F
utu

re 
Ac

tio
n 

Re
sp

on
sib

le 
He

ad
(s)

  o
f 

Se
rvi

ce
 

Du
e D

ate
 

Is au
tho

rit
y 

so
ug

ht 
to 

rem
ov

e 
mo

tio
n 

fro
m 

lis
t? 

res
ide
nts

 
of 

tha
t 

co
mm

un
ity
, 

inc
lud
ing
 

inc
rea

se
d 

so
cia
l 

iso
lat
ion
 fo
r s
om

e. 
2. 

Ins
tru
cts
 
off
ice
rs 

to 
rep

ort
 to
 th
e 
rel
ev
an
t 

co
mm

itte
e 

on
 

the
 

fea
sib
ility

 an
d l
ike
ly 
co
st 

of 
int
rod

uc
ing
 
a 

Cit
y 

Co
un
cil 

su
pp
ort
ed
 

ev
en
ing
 b
us
 s
erv

ice
 to

 
Air
yh
all
 a
nd
 t
o 
fur
the

r 
rep

ort
 o

n 
op
tio
ns
 f
or 

fun
din
g 

su
ch
 

a 
su
pp
ort
ed
 se
rvi
ce
.” 

 
9. 

 
No
tic
e o

f M
oti
on
 by
 

Co
un
cill
or 
Gr
eig
 

 “Th
at 
thi
s C

ou
nc
il 

pro
du
ce
s a

 re
po
rt o

n 
ide
nti
fyi
ng
 fu
nd
ing
 

so
urc

es
 fo
r th

e b
us
 

se
rvi
ce
s w

hic
h a

re 
sc
he
du
led
 fo
r w
ith
dra

wa
l 

fro
m 
Se
afi
eld
 an

d 
Cr
aig
ieb
uc
kle
r.” 

 

22
.08

.12
   

En
ter
pri
se
, 
Pla

nn
ing
 a

nd
 

Inf
ras

tru
ctu
re 
11
.09

.12
 

 To
 
req

ue
st 

off
ice
rs 

to 
su
bm

it 
a 

rep
ort
 o

n 
the

 
ter
ms

 o
f t
he
 m

oti
on
 to

 a
 

fut
ure

 
me

eti
ng
 
of 

the
 

En
ter
pri
se
, 
Pla

nn
ing
 a

nd
 

Inf
ras

tru
ctu
re 
Co
mm

itte
e 

 
Pla

nn
ing
 

& 
Su
sta

ina
ble
 

De
ve
lop
me

nt 
06

.1
1.

12
 

No
 

Page 609



 
8

No
. 

Mo
tio

n 
Da

te 
of 

Co
un

cil
 

Me
eti

ng
 

Co
mm

itte
e M

oti
on

 re
fer

red
 to

 / 
 da

te/
 de

cis
ion

 of
 C

om
mi

tte
e 

Ac
tio

n t
ak

en
 / 

Pr
op

os
ed

 F
utu

re 
Ac

tio
n 

Re
sp

on
sib

le 
He

ad
(s)

  o
f 

Se
rvi

ce
 

Du
e D

ate
 

Is au
tho

rit
y 

so
ug

ht 
to 

rem
ov

e 
mo

tio
n 

fro
m 

lis
t? 

10
.  

No
tic
e o

f M
oti
on
 by
 

Co
un
cill
or 
De
lan
ey
  

 “Th
at 
thi
s C

ou
nc
il:-
 

1. 
De
plo
res

 
Fir
st 

Ab
erd

ee
n’s
 d
ec
isio

n 
to 

ter
mi
na
te 

the
 P

ark
 &

 
Rid

e 
se
rvi
ce
 

fro
m 

Kin
gs
we
lls 

at 
Ab
erd

ee
n 

Ro
ya
l In

firm
ary

. 
2. 

Ins
tru
cts
 o
ffic
ers

 
to 

se
ek
 a
 m

ee
tin
g 
wit
h 

Fir
st 

Ab
erd

ee
n 

to 
em

ph
as
ise
 th
e 
ne
ed
 fo
r 

eff
ec
tiv
e 

Pa
rk 

& 
Rid

e 
se
rvi
ce
s 

in 
ord

er 
to 

red
uc
e 

co
ng
es
tio
n 

ca
us
ed
 
by
 
co
mm

ute
r 

tra
ffic
 a
nd
 th

eir
 ro

le 
in 

ac
hie
vin
g t
his
. 

Ins
tru
cts
 th
e C

hie
f 

Ex
ec
uti
ve
 to
 se

ek
 a 

me
eti
ng
 w
ith
 th
e 

Tra
ns
po
rt M

ini
ste

r a
nd
 

Gr
ou
p L

ea
de
rs 
to 

dis
cu
ss
 re
ce
nt 

red
uc
tio
ns
 in
 bu

s 
fre
qu
en
cie
s a
cro

ss
 th
e 

cit
y a
nd
 Fi
rst
 Ab

erd
ee
n’s
 

fai
lur
e t
o d

eli
ve
r o
n l
oc
al 

an
d n

ati
on
al 

tra
ns
po
rta
tio
n p

oli
cie
s i
n 

Ab
erd

ee
n.”
 

22
.08

.12
   

En
ter
pri
se
, 
Pla

nn
ing
 a

nd
 

Inf
ras

tru
ctu
re 
11
.09

.12
 

 Fo
llo
win

g 
a 

vo
te 

the
 

Co
mm

itte
e a

gre
ed
 to
 ad

op
t 

the
 f
oll
ow
ing
 a

me
nd
me

nt 
to 
the

  m
oti
on
:- 

Th
at 

thi
s 

Co
un
cil 

(1)
 

reg
ret
s 

Fir
st 

Ab
erd

ee
n’s
 

de
cis
ion
 t
o 
ter
mi
na
te 

the
 

Pa
rk 

& 
Rid

e 
se
rvi
ce
 fr
om

 
Kin

gs
we
lls 

at 
Ab
erd

ee
n 

Ro
ya
l 

Inf
irm

ary
; 

(2)
 

ins
tru
cts
 o
ffic
ers

 to
 se

ek
 a
 

me
eti
ng
 

wit
h 

Fir
st 

Ab
erd

ee
n 

to 
em

ph
as
ise
 

the
 ne

ed
 fo
r e
ffe
cti
ve
 P
ark

 
& 
Rid

e s
erv

ice
s i
n o

rde
r t
o 

red
uc
e 
co
ng
es
tio
n 
ca
us
ed
 

by
 c

om
mu

ter
 t
raf
fic
 a

nd
 

the
ir 
rol
e 
in 
ac
hie
vin
g 
thi
s; 

an
d 
(3)
 in
str
uc
ts 
the

 C
hie
f 

Ex
ec
uti
ve
 

to 
se
ek
 

a 
me

eti
ng
 w
ith
 th
e T

ran
sp
ort
 

Mi
nis
ter
 

an
d 

Gr
ou
p 

Le
ad
ers

 to
 d
isc
us
s 
rec

en
t 

red
uc
tio
ns
 

in 
bu
s 

fre
qu
en
cie
s a
cro

ss
 th
e c
ity
.  

 

(2)
 O

ffic
ers

 h
av

e 
alr

ea
dy

 
rai

se
d c

on
ce

rn
s w

ith
 Fi

rst
 

an
d 

hig
hli

gh
ted

 
the

 
im

po
rta

nc
e 

of 
P&

R 
se

rvi
ce

s. 
A 

fur
the

r 
sp

ec
ific

 
me

eti
ng

 
to 

dis
cu

ss
 P

&R
 i

s 
to 

be
 

arr
an

ge
d, 

we
 p

ro
po

se
 to

 
wa

it u
nti

l w
e h

av
e a

t l
ea

st 
1 

mo
nth

s 
da

ta 
of 

P&
R 

us
ag

e 
sin

ce
 th

e 
ne

tw
or

k 
rev

iew
, s

o t
ha

t t
his

 ca
n b

e 
us

ed
 as

 a 
co

mp
ara

tor
. 

Pla
nn
ing
 

& 
Su
sta

ina
ble
 

De
ve
lop
me

nt 
06

.1
1.

12
 

No
 

 Page 610



Agenda Item 12.1

Page 611

Exempt information as described in paragraph(s) 6, 8 of Schedule 7A
of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973.

Document is Restricted



Page 658

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 12.2

Page 659

Exempt information as described in paragraph(s) 1 of Schedule 7A
of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973.

Document is Restricted



Page 676

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 12.3

Page 677

Exempt information as described in paragraph(s) 8 of Schedule 7A
of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973.

Document is Restricted



Page 678

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1.1 Aberdeen Masterplanning Process
	4.1 Minute of Previous Meeting of 11 September 2012
	4.2 Appointments to the North East Scotland Fisheries Development Partnership
	5.1 Notice of Motion by Councillor Malone - Referred from Council on 13th June 2012
	5.2 Notice of Motion by Councillor Townson - Referred from Council on 13 June 2012
	5.4 Motion by Councillor Yuill - The Glens and Deeside Way (Pictish Way)
	6.1 Delivering Transformational Change in Asset Management and Operations Services
	7.1 Capital Monitoring - Enterprise, Planning & Infrastructure Projects
	7.2 2012/13 Revenue Budget Monitoring
	EPI.12
	EPI.12 app1

	8.1 Visit Aberdeen
	8.2 Aberdeen Digital Connectivity
	8.3 International Partnership and Twinning Applications
	8.4 Support for Local Employability Training Providers
	9.1 West Huxterstone, Kingswells Masterplan
	EPI.12.222 - Appendix 1West Hux
	EPI.12.222 - Appendix 2 - Consultation Responses West Hux

	9.2 Loirston Development Framework
	EPI.12.200 - Appendix 1 Loirston Dev Framework

	9.3 Maidencraig Masterplan
	EPI.12.198 - Appendix -Maidencraig summary

	9.4 Adoption of Masterplans, Planning Briefs and Development Framework as Supplementary Guidance in Support of the Aberdeen Local Development Plan
	EPI.12.203 - Appendix 1
	EPI-12-203 Appendix 2 - 9.4 replacement

	9.5 Adoption of Draft Supplementary Guidance to Local Development Plan
	EPI.12.204 - Appendix 5

	9.6 Supplementary Guidance: Wind Turbine Development in Aberdeen City
	EPI.12.217 Appendix 1 Supplementary Guidance
	EPI.12.217 - Appendix 3 EHRIA

	9.7 Technical Advice Note: The Repair and Replacement of Windows and Doors
	EPI.12.189 - Appendix 1 Technical Advice Note - The Repair and Replacement

	9.8 Aberdeen City and Shire Strategic Development Plan
	EPI.12.234 Appendix 1 SDP for EP&I
	EPI.12.234 Appendix 1 SDP Diagrams
	EPI.12.234 SDP EHRIA

	9.9 MUSIC Project Update
	10.1 Various Small Scale Traffic Management and Development Associated Proposals (New Works)
	10.2 Justice Mill Lane - Traffic Management Proposals -  Initial Statutory Consultation
	10.3 Traffic Orders at the Final Stage of the Statutory Process
	10.4 Aberdeen Western Peripheral Route - Advance Works & Services
	10.5 Strategic and Local Transportation Projects
	10.6 Permit Misuse Policy
	10.7 Garthdee Controlled Parking Area - Permit Changes
	10.8 City Wide Flooding Issues
	10.9 Market Street/ Guild Street Junction - Rationalisation of Turning Movements to Improve Capacity
	11.1 Committee Business Statement
	11.2 Motions List
	12.1 Supplementary Report - Delivering Transformational Change in Asset Management & Operations Services (Refer to item 6.1 on the agenda)
	12.2 Appendix -  Visit Aberdeen Draft Business Plan - Stage Two Executive Summary (Refer to item 8.1 on the agenda)
	12.3 Appendix - Aberdeen Western Peripheral Route - Advance Works & Services (Refer to item 10.4 on the agenda)

